
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 PLACE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Date: Thursday 12 January 2017 
Time:  5.30 pm 
Venue:  Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business.  
 
If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Sharon Sissons, 
Democratic Services Officer (Committees) on 01392 265115. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street. 
 
Membership - 
Councillors Brimble (Chair), Lyons (Deputy Chair), Foggin, D Henson, Keen, Mitchell, Prowse, 
Robson, Wardle and Wood 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 
 Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 

1  
  
Apologies 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence from Committee members. 
  
 

 

2  
  
Minutes 
 

 

 To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 10 November 2016. 
  
 

 

3  
  
Declaration of Interests 
 

 

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been 
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the 
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the 
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave 
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item.  
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the day of the meeting. 

 
  

 



 

4  
  
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 - Exclusion of Press 
and Public 
 

 

 It is considered that the Committee would be unlikely to exclude the press and 
public during consideration of the items on this agenda, but if it should wish to do 
so, the following resolution should be passed:- 
 
RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting of the particular item(s) 
on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  
 

 

5  
  
Questions from the Public under Standing Order 19 
 

 

 Details of questions should be notified to the Corporate Manager Democratic and 
Civic Support at least three working days prior to the meeting.  Further 
information and a copy of the procedure are available from Democratic Services 
(Committees) (Tel: 01392 265115) and also on the Council web site - 
www.exeter.gov.uk/decisions. 
  
 

 

6  
  
Questions from Members of the Council under Standing Order 20 
 

 

 To receive questions from Members of the Council to appropriate Portfolio 
Holders. 
  
 

 

PRESENTATION TO COMMITTEE 

7  
  
Portfolio Holder Updates 
 

 

 Councillor R Denham (Portfolio Holder for Economy and Culture) Councillor R 
Sutton (Portfolio Holder for City Development) and Councillor R Hannaford 
(Portfolio Holder for Place) to present half yearly updates for 2016/17.  
 

(Pages 5 - 
14) 

8  
  
Estimates and Fees and Charges 2017/18 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Finance.   
 

(Pages 15 
- 44) 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE EXECUTIVE 

9  
  
Proposals for the Implementation of a Public Spaces Protection Order 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Environment.  
 

(Pages 45 
- 402) 

10  
  
Management of Exeter's Waterways 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Assistant Director Public Realm.  (Pages 

http://www.exeter.gov.uk/decisions


 403 - 408) 

11  
  
Exeter and the Heart of Devon Joint Growth and Productivity Strategy 2017 
- 2020 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Economy and Enterprise Manager.  
 

(Pages 
409 - 468) 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

12  
  
Unemployment in Exeter 
 

 

 To consider the report of the Economy and Enterprise Manager.   
 

(Pages 
469 - 484) 

13  
  
Support for Small Businesses 
 

 

 To consider the report of the  Economy and Enterprise Manager.   
 

(Pages 
485 - 490) 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

14  
  
Legacy Leisure Working Group Minutes 
 

 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Legacy Leisure Working Group 
meeting held on 13 December.    
 

(Pages 
491 - 494) 

Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next scheduled meeting of the Place Scrutiny Committee will be held on Thursday 9 March 2017 
at 5.30 pm in the Civic Centre. 
 
 
Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site http://www.exeter.gov.uk.  
This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you how you can ask a question 
at a Scrutiny Committee meeting.  Alternatively, contact the Democratic Services Officer 
(Committees) on (01392) 265107 for further information. 

 
Follow us: 
www.twitter.com/ExeterCouncil 
www.facebook.com/ExeterCityCouncil 

 
Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print on 
request to Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 265107. 

http://www.twitter.com/ExeterCouncil
http://www.facebook.com/ExeterCityCouncil


This page is intentionally left blank



 Final 

 

PLACE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

12 January 2017 
 

Portfolio Holder Priorities 2016/17 – Half Year report 
 
 

Half year updates against priorities for all Portfolio Holders are included within this 
report.   
 
Members will note that some Portfolio Holders report to a different scrutiny committee 
and are unable to take questions at all committees.   
 
 
2016/17 Leader of the Council: Councillor Peter Edwards 
 

 Priority Update 

PH1 Work with partners in the 
Heart of the South West on a 
devolution deal that meets 
the needs of Exeter 

No appetite from Government to progress 
Devolution Deal with Heart of South West.  
Proposal is to pause work on combined 
authority and to create a combined committee 
to produce productivity plan.  Indication is 
timetable for this work is slipping.  Following 
visit of Secretary of State to Exeter I did ask 
him whether he would be prepared to 
consider a different proposal.  He confirmed 
he would and since then both the Leader of 
Plymouth and I have explored an alternative 
approach.  This was set out in my response to 
Councillor Leadbetter at Council on 13 
December 2016.     

PH2 Set up a new vehicle for 
delivering housing and 
commercial schemes 

Outline business case being written.  Detailed 
business case being prepared.   

PH3 Introduce a pan-council 
performance framework 

Training on system set-up took place on 4/5 
October and InPhase workshops on 12-14 
December to start building an on-line Exeter 
performance framework. 

 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 Final 

 

2016/17 Portfolio Holder for Support Services: Councillor Ollie Pearson 
 

 Priority Update 

PH4 Produce and implement a digital 
customer platform and maximise 
opportunities for shifting customers to 
digital services 

Technical work is currently taking 
place by Strata and the Business 
Improvement Officer to prepare for 
the first services to go live in Feb 
17. 

PH5 Introduce a new communication and 
marketing strategy 

On 13 December 2016 Council 
agreed to appoint a Director of 
Communication and Marketing.  A 
draft strategy has been prepared 
for implementation. 

PH6 Oversee prioritisation of the council’s 
IT requirements and effective and 
efficient delivery by Strata Solutions 

Regular monthly meetings now 
taking place.   

PH7 Take forward the Asset Management 
Plan 

Approach determined. Early work 
will be on commercial acquisitions 
and community transfer. 

PH8 Introduce new procurement 
arrangements 

Following Executive, the AD 
Finance is able to proceed to the 
first consultation stage of the 
Council’s Organisational Change 
Policy for the restructure of the 
Procurement Function. 

 
  

Page 6



 Final 

 

2016/17 Portfolio Holder for Customer Access: Councillor Emma Morse 
 

 Priority Update 

PH9 Investigate and deliver 
more cost effective and 
responsive temporary 
accommodation to meet 
housing needs 

A temporary accommodation report is due to 
be presented to Executive in February 2017. 

PH10 Implement the action plan 
for the Homelessness 
Strategy 

A venue has been identified for Safe Sleep 
which will commence mid-December until 
March 2017.  The Members Steering Group 
has met to review progress in the Strategy. 
The Council has worked with partners to 
develop two bids for funding to Government 
to support delivery of actions in the 
Strategy. The bids have been submitted 
and we expect to hear the outcome before 
the end of the year.  

PH11 Ensure the City Council is 
taking an active role in 
development and 
monitoring the priorities of 
Integrated Care Exeter and 
CoLab 

The ICE Executive and the Council’s 
Transformation Board have agreed to the 
development of a full Business Case for 
consideration in January 2017, outlining a 
proposed new model for working with 
Homeless and Vulnerably Housed residents.  
Progress on the other workstreams is 
monitored by the ICE Executive which 
includes the Assistant Director Customer 
Access and reported to the Exeter Health & 
Wellbeing Board. 

PH12 Consult on and implement 
the new Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme for 
2017/18 

Draft scheme was considered by Executive 
8 November and agreed at Council on 13 
December. The proposals generally reflect 
the steer given by the Leaders at the Devon 
Local Government Steering Group. 

PH13 Work with partners to 
support the development of 
money management skills 

The current EMAP contract delivered by 
CAB and HomeMaker will end in March 17. 
As part of our funded partnership agreement 
with the DWP, we are able to offer some 
money management support to customers 
in receipt of Universal Credit. There has 
been no indication of other funding available 
from the Council.  The Portfolio Holder and 
officers have met with Plough & Share 
following a previous exploratory meeting 
with them. A report will be prepared for the 
10 January Executive and 21 February 
Council proposing how the Council might 
work with Plough & Share to deliver on 
Members’ Council resolution regarding an 
alternative to pay day lenders which will also 
offer some basic money management skills 
to members of the credit union.   

PH14 Ensure that the impact of 
Welfare Reform on 

Ongoing. The draft Exceptional Hardship 
Policy was part of the Local Council Tax 

Page 7



 Final 

 

 Priority Update 

residents and the Council is 
identified and mitigated 
where possible 

Support Scheme agreed by Council on 13 
December.  Members also agreed at the 
meeting, the Council’s Discretionary 
Housing Payments Policy. 

PH15 Continue to focus on the 
recovery of funds due to the 
Council, based on principles 
of understanding 
customers’ ability to pay 

With the restructure finally concluded, we 
have increased resources to maximise our 
collection whilst working to develop 
sustainable solutions with residents.  There 
remains the need for support for staff in 
change management around the new 
expectations and ways of working. 

Page 8



 Final 

 

2016/17 Portfolio Holder for Housing Revenue Account: Councillor Keith Owen 
 
 

 Priority Update 

PH16 Set up a HRA Management 
Board 

Once the detail on this has been agreed, a 
report will go to Scrutiny and Executive 
Committees.  It is hoped that this will be 
soon. 

PH17 Maximise value from 
contractors 

Regular contract management meetings 
with principal contractors are now in place, 
performance is being closely scrutinised 
and challenged, and changes are being 
made to IT systems to improve the 
effectiveness of service delivery.  Further 
proposed changes to the operating model 
will be presented to Members later in 2017.  

PH18 Ensure that the efficiency 
and effectiveness of the 
housing function matches, 
or aims to match that of 
best-in-class providers 

Externally benchmarked performance data 
is being produced and reviewed on a 
quarterly basis, which forms the basis for 
targeted management intervention. Specific 
areas of focus at present are improving the 
resolution of cases of anti-social behaviour 
in Council properties, greater emphasis on 
challenging contractor performance, and 
reducing levels of sickness absence. 

PH19 Propose and consult on a 
new model for supporting 
residents of our older 
persons’ accommodation 

Final business case approved by Executive 
in November 2016.  Work now underway to 
implement the new model with effect from 1 
April 2017. 

PH20 Undertake a 
comprehensive survey of 
our housing stock in order 
to understand future 
investment requirements 
and inform budget planning 

Out to tender via a procurement framework.  
Survey of 60% of housing stock scheduled 
to commence in February 2017 with a 
completion date of 30 June.  An interim 
stock condition report should be available by 
30 April 2017. 

 
 

  

Page 9



 Final 

 

2016/17 Portfolio Holder for Place: Councillor Rob Hannaford 
 

 Priority Update 

PH21 Work with Devon & Cornwall 
Police to provide extra police 
officers in Exeter 

Discussions with Police about the potential for 
co-location at Civic Centre ongoing. Existing 
collaboration being strengthened through the 
work of the CSP, AVENTE, StAG,ASBAT and 
linked structures. 

PH22 Develop and implement a 
strategy that provides public 
reassurance and reduces 
the root causes of ASB 

December meeting to align ASB Strategy & 
Housing ASB Policy. Four open public 
meetings for local residents and businesses 
regarding a revised PSPO carried out 1st 
week December. 

PH23 Improve the recycling rate Report and presentation to Scrutiny Place 
detailing challenges and planned actions 
delivered 10 October 16.  The recycling rate 
is static at just under 34% and is unlikely to 
change much until we make a substantial 
change in collection methodology such as 
introducing a food waste collection. However, 
the good news is that our residual rate is 
falling (down 5.6%) compared with a UK 
average of an increase of 0.6 % - this will 
keep us in the top 10% of well-performing 
councils in terms of waste produced per 
household. 

PH24 Improve cleansing of the city 
centre (to achieve A grade in 
the city centre and B grade 
elsewhere) 

The Clean Streets Strategy was adopted in 
September. Performance standards A-D for 
litter, detritus and weed growth have been 
introduced.  A routine performance reporting 
system is being established for SMT.  A 
business case for organisational change is 
being presented to January Executive.  The 
business case for mechanisation is being 
prepared for February Executive.   

PH25 Complete the business case 
for doorstep food waste 
collections and introduce it 
as soon as possible 

Eunomia (waste management consultants) 
modelling collection options, with preliminary 
draft report anticipated mid-December. 

  

Page 10



 Final 

 

2016/17 Portfolio Holder for Economy and Culture: Councillor Rosie Denham 
 

 Priority Update 

PH26 Lead the Council’s work 
with Exeter City Futures, 
including exploring how 
new technology can help to 
tackle congestion, achieve 
energy independence and 
progress a smart city 
agenda, including digital 
technology infrastructure 

Exeter City Futures (ECF) launched their 
‘’Crowdicity’ platform engaging with 
specialists and the public to explore ideas 
around issues; workshops on 7 December 
included Council staff/managers, and some 
external partners.  10 ‘challenges’ have 
been identified and uploaded to the 
Crowdicity platform for anyone to vote on, 
with a view to narrowing this down in late 
January and putting the selected challenges 
on the accelerator programme for 
entrepreneurs and businesses to offer 
solutions. 
 
Developing HNDU work programme having 
secured some grant funding from BEIS. 
 
Data sharing project starting in December. 
 
Transport Strategy meeting scheduled for 
January with the Council, ECF and Devon 
County Council. 

PH27 Support the Innovation 
Exeter project with the 
University and others to 
develop the knowledge 
economy to create more 
graduate and higher-paid 
jobs 

Executive have approved setting up the 
Joint Committee. Awaiting other partner 
authorities to take reports to their 
Cabinet/Executive. Detailed proposals for 
major Climate Science Institute and Centre 
for Data Science progressing. New Data 
Analytics qualification being promoted. 
Proposals for enhanced support activities for 
new and existing business being pursued.  A 
growth & productivity strategy for all four 
Local Authority’s has been finalised and is 
due to be presented to Place Scrutiny 
Committee in January 2017.   

PH28 Work with local residents 
and businesses to explore 
ideas for future investment 
in South Street and the 
wider West Quarter, 
including options for a new 
city-centre performance 
venue 

The New Exeter Venue Advisory Group has 
met twice. 
 
Area group convening in January 2017. 

PH29 Conclude the review of 
governance arrangements 
for the RAMM 

Following further consideration of the 
external consultant’s report, the Senior 
Officer/Member Working Group decided not 
to pursue transfer to trust at this stage, 
instead to maintain the museum within the 
local authority framework. 

 
  

Page 11



 Final 

 

 
2016/17 Portfolio Holder for City Development: Councillor Rachel Sutton 
 

 Priority Update 

PH30 Progress the publication of a 
new development plan and 
address securing a future 
five year housing supply 
(working with the Leader) 

Member steering group established and 
met. Report to Executive in January on 
timetable, resources and governance.  The 
proposal is for a Greater Exeter strategic 
plan including Teignbridge, East Devon, 
Mid Devon and Exeter.  The aim is for 
adoption in 2020. 

PH31 Sit as Chair of Planning 
Committee 

Completed 

PH32 Establish governance 
arrangements for the CIL 
and an infrastructure fund for 
the 3 authorities 

Exeter City Futures ‘Grass Roots Grants 
Programme’ has now launched with round 
one open for bids until 2 January 2017. 

PH33 Meet government targets for 
time taken to determining 
planning applications 

Government has recently published 
performance targets for October 2014 to 
September 2016 of 50% for major 
applications and 65% for non-major. The 
Council has achieved these (61.3% and 
67.7%). Higher targets of 60% and 70% will 
be set for October 2015- September 2017. 
The Council’s performance is 61.1% and 
75.5% at half way stage. Performance 
should improve if vacant posts can be filled. 

 
  

Page 12



 Final 

 

2016/17 Portfolio Holder for Communities and Neighbourhoods: Councillor 
Paul Bull 
 

 Priority Update 

PH34 Oversee implementation of 
the community strategy 

Launch of Grass Roots Grants programme in 
October 2016. First deadline 2 January 2017.  
 
Community Builders (CB) programme launch 
13 December. Invitation to community groups 
to work together on proposals for CB role for 
their neighbourhood. 

PH35 Explore how Asset Based 
Community Development 
(ABCD) can be introduced 
across the council and in key 
services 

Ongoing work with different departments in 
Council to support greater community 
engagement. This includes Parks, Open 
Spaces and Community Safety teams. 

PH36 Work with partners to 
improve the health and 
wellbeing of Exeter’s 
communities 

Launch of Community Builder programme 
linking ICE/Wellbeing Exeter funded Social 
prescribing/community resilience programme 
with Exeter Community Forum/NHB funded 
initiatives.  
Ongoing support for Exeter Health & 
Wellbeing Board, new development of 
Strategy for Exeter Food network and plans 
for launch of Sugar Smart City in New Year. 

PH37 Implement the council’s 
Equality and Diversity Policy 

A draft implementation plan is being drawn 
up with Portfolio Holder which will set out 
priority areas for action, timescales, 
resources etc. 

PH38 Renew Exeter’s Fairtrade 
City status and seek 
additional partners and new 
support for this initiative 

Fairtrade city status has been renewed. The 
Fairtrade Foundation was particularly 
impressed with our engagement with schools 
through the organisation of the conference for 
Fairtrade Fortnight. 

  

Page 13



 Final 

 

2016/17 Portfolio Holder for Sport and Health and Wellbeing: Councillor Phil 
Bialyk 
 

 Priority Update 

PH39 Take forward the St 
Sidwell’s Point and bus 
station developments, 
including procurement of 
operators 

Planning permission granted. 

Tendering period ongoing. 

Tender return period extended to 20 Jan 
2017. 
 
Control Point 6 – Main contractor approval 
scheduled 9 February 2017.   

PH40a Improve cycle routes – 
Assist Exeter Cycling 
Campaign to produce a 
manual of good design for 
cycle routes 

Initial discussions with Exeter Cycling 
Campaign regarding the production of a 
manual of good design. 

PH40b Provide more cycle parking 
around St Sidwell’s Point 

Initial discussions with Exeter Cycling 
Campaign and DCC to establish numbers 
and locations. 

PH41 Sign off and help implement 
the City Sports Strategy 

Visit to Sheffield for best practice planned 
for January 2017.  Sport England Strategic 
Director meeting with Portfolio holder early 
January to discuss. 

PH42 Continue working with 
partners to make Exeter the 
most active city in the South 
West by 2018 

Positive progress with Get Active Exeter 
(GAE) being made. Awaiting latest output 
figures, but very good gender balance of 
participants to date. GAE is working 
alongside the Greater Exeter Sports Board 
on a series of exciting programmes which 
will run throughout 2017, beginning with 
a launch of a ‘This Girl Can’ project to 
encourage women & girls into Sport & 
Physical activity.  A particular focus will be 
given to traditionally hard to engage inactive 
families, targeting busy adults. This will be 
achieved via community focus groups, 
activity in the workplace and collaborative 
working with local delivery partners.  
 
Winter Citizen article focus on risks of 
sedentary behaviour, and encouraging 
citizens to introduce more breaks between 
sitting for long periods at work and home. 
This ties in with the Devon Public Health 
campaign to combat sedentary behaviour.   

PH43 Progress a solution for 
management of the Exe 
Estuary Harbour, canal and 
waterways 

A report on the Management of Exeter’s 
Waterways will be presented to Place 
Scrutiny and February Executive. 

 
 

 

Page 14



REPORT TO:  PLACE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
DATE OF MEETING: 12 January 2017 
REPORT OF:  Assistant Director Finance 
TITLE:    Place Scrutiny Committee - Estimates 2017-18 

 
Is this a Key Decision? 
Yes    
 
Is this an Executive or Council Function? 
Council 
 

1. What is the report about? 
 

This report sets out the proposed revenue and capital estimates for 2017-18 in 
respect of Place Services. 

 
2. Recommendations: 

 
That Members of Scrutiny Committee – Place support the estimates for 2017-18 
and recommends their approval at the Special Meeting of the Council on 21 
February 2017. 

 
3. Reasons for the recommendation: 

 
Local authorities have a statutory duty to set an annual budget and to monitor the 
budget throughout the year.   

 
4. What are the resource implications including non financial resources 

 
The financial resources required to deliver Place Services during 2017-18 are set out 
in the body of this report. 
 

5. Section 151 Officer comments: 
 

 This report has been prepared on behalf of the Section 151 Officer to set out the 
revenue and capital estimates for 2017-18 in respect of Place Services. 

 
6. What are the legal aspects? 

 
  Part 2 of the Local Government Act 2003 provides the legislative framework for the 

process of setting and managing budgets.  The act places a duty on authorities to set 
robust estimates, maintain adequate reserves. 

 
7. Monitoring Officer Comments: 

 
This report raises no issues of concern for the Monitoring Officer. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



8. Report Details: 
 

BUDGET FRAMEWORK FOR PLACE SERVICES 
 
8.1      ANNUAL BUDGET SETTING 
 

Budgets are revisited each year to make amendments for assumptions made on interest 
rates, inflation and other changed circumstances. 

 
 
8.2      INFLATION 

 
An overall allowance of £114,560 has been set aside for inflation within Place Services.  
The inflationary increases allowed in the budgets are: 

 

Pay award 1.0% 

Pay – Increments 0.5% 

Electricity 1.5% 

Gas 1.5% 

Oil 1.5% 

Water 0.0% 

Insurance 5.0% 

Rates 1.2% 

Fuel 0.0% 

General Inflation 0.0% 

Income (excluding Car Parks)  1.5% 
 

  
General inflation has again been held at zero; however, where there are contracts in 
place, inflation at around the Retail Price Index (RPI) has been added. 

 
8.3       INTEREST RATES 
 

In respect of interest rates, next year’s budget assumes that the base rate will remain 
low meaning the cost of borrowing will remain at current levels.  The Council will 
continue to monitor the cost of borrowing and if it is likely that it will increase borrowing 
over a longer time-frame will be considered.   

 
8.4    RESOURCES AVAILABLE 2017/18 

 
 4 year Settlement 

During the settlement for 2016-17, the Government offered Local Authorities the 
opportunity to apply for a 4 year agreed settlement subject to producing an efficiency plan.  
The Council took up this offer and were notified in November that the Government had 
agreed the Settlement. 
 
The provisional settlement for 2017-18 therefore reflects the figures in the Medium Term 
Financial Plan. 
 

 Resources remain as per the medium term financial plan as the Government has agreed 
the four year settlement. 

 

Page 16



 

 

 2016/17 
£’000 

2017/18 
£’000 

2018/19 
£’000 

2019/20 
£’000 

2020/21 
£’000 

RSG 
Council Tax 
Business Rates 
 

 2,022 
 5,030 
4,830 

              

1,320 
5,338 

    5,207 
           

869 
5,472 

    5,360            

365 
5,697 
5,499 

       

0 
5,925 

   5,460 
       

Resources 
Increase/(decrease) 
Annual % change 

11,882 
      
      

  11,865 
  (17) 

    (0.1%) 

   11,701 
    (164) 

   (1.4%) 

11,561 
   (140) 

   (1.2%) 

11,385 
   (176) 

    (1.5%)   

  
The Government has announced in respect of the local authority tax referendum 
threshold, that Shire District councils will be allowed increases of less than 2% or up to 
and including £5, whichever is higher.  Upper Tier Authorities may increase their Council 
Tax by up to three per cent above the threshold as long as the additional income is spent 
on Adult Social Care. This is on top of the 1.99% increase they may make for other 
services but can total no more than 6% over the next three years.  Exeter’s budget 
strategy for next year assumes that council tax will increase by £5, which, along with the 
estimated surplus on the collection fund of £87,500 and increase in the tax base will raise 
an extra £308,000.  

 
8.5 GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

 
The proposed General Fund Capital Programme for the next three years has been 
established.  The total of the current programme is as follows: 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2017/18 
£’000 

2018/19 
£’000 

2019/20 
£’000 

New Bids 987 0 0 

Pre-approved 22,265 7,556 989 

Total 23,252 7,556 989 

 A list of the proposed new schemes for Scrutiny Committee - Place is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 
8.6       KEY BUDGET CHANGES PROPOSED FOR 2017-18 
 

The table below sets out the key changes between the budgets for the current 
financial year and the draft estimates for 2017-18.   
 

 In addition to the key changes below, internal Support Service Allocations 
have been reviewed producing an increased expenditure for this committee of 
£550,000, and Capital Charges have increased by £185,000.  Please also 
refer to Appendix 2.   

 The budgets for the Senior Management team have been removed from 
Place Committee and allocated to Corporate Services Committee due to the 
management restructure. 

 There has been an increase in the employers contribution rate in respect of 
the Local Government Pension Scheme resulting in an increase in the 
associated budget.  This increase has been reflected in the Corporate 
Services Committee report. 

 

Page 17



MU 
Code 

Management Unit Commentary 

81A4 Public Safety 

 Additional income in respect of Home Call Alarm 
included. 

 Software maintenance budget in respect of Home 
Call Alarm Service removed and passed to Strata 
Service Solutions. 

 Reduction in CCTV budgets. 

81A6 Parks & Green Spaces 

 Parks and Playing Fields budgets reduced as part of 
savings plan. 

 Transfer of various budgets to Public Realm Assets 
(81F1) to reflect operational responsibilities. 

81B&C 
Business & 
Commercial Ops 

 Budgets in respect of Countryside Recreation 
removed due to transfer to Devon Wildlife Trust 

 Increase in National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
budget due to business rates revaluation.  

81D2 
Domestic Refuse 
Collection 

 Employee costs have been reviewed and allocated 
to where time is spent 

 Domestic Clinical Waste Collection budget has been 
merged with Domestic Refuse. 

81D4 Street Cleaning 

 Support Service allocations to the management unit 
have increased significantly. 

 Employee costs have been reviewed and revised to 
reflect where time is spent. 

81D5 Public Conveniences 
 Operational budgets have been reduced as part of 

savings plan. 

81F1 Public Realm Assets 

 Increase in National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
budgets on Car Park Assets due to business rates 
revaluation. 

 Asset budgets in respect of Countryside Recreation 
removed due to the transfer to Devon Wildlife Trust. 

 Public Conveniences utilities budgets reduced. 

83A3 Parking Services 

 Income budget in respect of off street parking fees 
has increased significantly. 

 Pay Budgets have increased due to additional posts 
being approved. 

 Transfer of various budgets to Public Realm Assets 
(81F1) to reflect operational responsibilities. 

83A4 
Economic 
Development 

 Increase due to new recently approved posts and 
reduction due to moving Assistant Director – 
Economy Post to new budget for all ADs.  

83A5 Arts & Events 
 Reduction in Events budgets and an increase in the 

Grants budget. 

Page 18



MU 
Code 

Management Unit Commentary 

83A6 Tourist Information  Increase due to new recently approved posts  

83B9 Markets & Halls 
 Reduction in income from Car Auctions, events and 

boardroom hire.  

83C2 Museum Service  Increase in rates budget 

83C3 
Contracted Sports 
Facilities 

 Reduction in Priority Programmed Works budget. 

83C7 Sports Development  New budget created for Sports Strategy. 

 
 
8.7   FEES AND CHARGES 
 

The proposed Fees and Charges for Place Services in 2017-18 are included at 
Appendix 3.   

  
9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 

 
Place Service budgets contribute to 3 key purposes, as set out in the Corporate 
Plan; keep me/my environment safe and healthy, keep place looking good, help 
me find somewhere to live. 

 
10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 

 
The key risks revolve around ensuring that the Council has sufficient funds to both 
meet the financial plans set out in the report and to protect itself against any 
unexpected expenditure that occurs.  The risk is mitigated by ensuring that there are 
sufficient reserves held to offset unexpected expenditure needs.  Regular monitoring is 
undertaken and reported to both the Strategic Management Team and Members. 

 
 
11. What is the impact of the decision on equality and diversity; health and 

wellbeing; safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults, 
community safety and the environment? 

 
 No impact 
 
12. Are there any other options? 

 
 No 
 
Assistant Director Finance 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

Page 19



Background papers used in compiling this report: 
None 
 
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 2.3 
(01392) 265275 

Page 20



APPENDIX 1

SCHEMES LISTED WITHIN COUNCIL PURPOSES 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Future Years What the scheme is trying to achieve

£ £ £ £

PLACE

KEEP ME/MY ENVIRONMENT SAFE & HEALTHY

Vehicle Replacement Programme 977,000 400,000 400,000
To ensure that the Council's vehicles are replaced so that 

a safe and reliable fleet is maintained.

Bowling Green Marshes Coastal Defence Scheme 260,000

The coastal defences are in need of repair to retain the 

level of protection to the freshwater marshes. The 

scheme is entirely funded by the Environment Agency.

Topsham Flood Gates (Ferry Road/The Strand) 100,000

Provision and installation of 10 to 12 heavy duty 

floodgates across existing openings between defences.  

The scheme is entirely funded by Devon County Council 

and the Environment Agency.

Exeter Flood Alleviation Scheme 200,000

Approximately 30 to 40 properties that are not protected 

from the Environment Agency's main flood scheme will be 

offered property level protection.  The scheme is entirely 

funded by the Environment Agency.

RAMM Air Monitoring Equipment # 60,000 To replace the air quality monitoring station at the RAMM. 

Sub Total - Keep me/my environment safe & healthy 1,597,000 400,000 400,000 0

PLACE - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017/18 AND FUTURE YEARS

P
age 21



APPENDIX 1

SCHEMES LISTED WITHIN COUNCIL PURPOSES 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Future Years What the scheme is trying to achieve

£ £ £ £

PLACE - CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017/18 AND FUTURE YEARS

PROVIDE GREAT THINGS FOR ME TO SEE & DO

Sports Facilities Refurbishment 56,430 56,430 56,430
To undertake replacement of plant and equipment within 

the leisure management contract.

Sub Total - Provide great things for me to see & do 56,430 56,430 56,430 0

DELIVER GOOD DEVELOPMENT

Newcourt Community Hall (Grant) 9,570

Newtown Community Centre (1st Grant) 50,000

Newtown Community Centre (2nd Grant) 46,750

Bus Station Construction 3,806,520 1,223,140 To redevelop Exeter's Bus and Coach Station.

Leisure Complex - Build Project 14,937,750 5,313,580
To develop a new leisure complex and swimming pool on 

part of the bus station site to replace Pyramids.

Sub Total - Deliver good development 18,850,590 6,536,720 0 0

PLACE TOTAL 20,504,020 6,993,150 456,430 0

New Bids # 60,000 0 0 0

Pre-Approved 20,444,020 6,993,150 456,430 0

 

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 20,504,020 6,993,150 456,430 0

These community schemes are all grants awarded from 

the New Homes Bonus or S106 funding.

P
age 22



APPENDIX 2

L9 Account Type

Subjective Analysis
BASE ESTIMATE 

2016/2017
INFLATION

NEW PROPOSALS 

RECURRING

NEW PROPOSALS 

NON-RECURRING

OTHER 

ADJUSTMENTS

NEW ESTIMATE 

2017/2018

ExpensePAY 11,116,050 173,550 (148,090) 0 174,850 11,316,360

PREMISES 3,163,820 34,350 158,910 0 (204,890) 3,152,190

SUPPLIES & SERVICES 3,863,390 16,780 (103,300) 0 (78,310) 3,698,560

TRANSPORT 1,322,650 10,370 (2,530) 0 42,790 1,373,280

SUPPORT SERVICES 3,105,510 0 0 0 549,960 3,655,470

CAPITAL CHARGES 2,542,270 0 0 0 185,390 2,727,660

Total Expense 25,113,690 235,050 (95,010) 0 669,790 25,923,520

IncomeINCOME (16,412,640) (120,490) (812,000) 0 (103,450) (17,448,580)

Total Income (16,412,640) (120,490) (812,000) 0 (103,450) (17,448,580)

Net Expenditure 8,701,050 114,560 (907,010) 0 566,340 8,474,940

386,640 2,870 0 0 (46,570) 342,940

363,920 2,510 0 0 (31,720) 334,710

447,670 5,320 (145,000) 0 (23,460) 284,530

966,680 10,860 (106,390) 0 20,840 891,990

206,700 2,550 0 0 20,320 229,570

13,950 (3,040) (8,690) 0 (25,990) (23,770)

0 (90) 0 0 90 0

2,070,470 21,590 0 0 79,000 2,171,060

1,432,850 17,800 0 0 122,470 1,573,120

158,880 1,860 (30,000) 0 25,040 155,780

(316,320) (3,470) 0 0 28,850 (290,940)

215,010 1,450 (1,340) 0 (115,700) 99,420

172,070 8,120 (10,260) 0 36,310 206,240

2,813,820 15,790 142,610 0 354,560 3,326,780

41,460 230 0 0 240 41,930

(5,246,270) 3,460 (776,230) 0 (134,240) (6,153,280)

576,850 3,560 24,500 0 (40,570) 564,340

335,100 1,010 (95,000) 0 (54,550) 186,560

410,070 2,520 30,800 0 46,190 489,580

700 0 0 0 (700) 0

45,420 (600) 0 0 4,970 49,790

15,900 0 0 0 (15,900) 0

735,950 6,540 0 0 (4,340) 738,150

6,350 0 0 0 (1,350) 5,000

2,010 100 0 0 (510) 1,600

30,000 0 0 0 0 30,000

(388,960) (12,170) 4,360 0 80,220 (316,550)

65,080 (1,570) 0 0 (5,770) 57,740

2,250,660 28,510 63,630 0 113,090 2,455,890

888,390 (1,150) 0 0 75,520 962,760

0 0 0 0 60,000 60,000

8,701,050 114,560 (907,010) 0 566,340 8,474,940

F067 SPORTS DEVELOPMENT

Net Cost

83C3 CONTRACTED SPORTS FACILITIES

83A8 DISTRICT HIGHWAYS & FOOTPATHS

83A9 BUILDING CONTROL

83B1 LAND DRAINAGE

83B5 PLANNING SERVICES

83B6 CONSERVATION

83B7 ARCHAEOLOGICAL FIELD UNIT

83B8 MAJOR PROJECTS

83B9 MARKETS & HALLS

83C1 WATERWAYS

83C2 MUSEUM SERVICE

83A6 TOURIST INFORMATION

81D2 DOMESTIC REFUSE COLLECTION

81D4 STREET CLEANING

81D5 PUBLIC CONVENIENCES

81D6 CLEANSING CHARGEABLE SERVICES

81D7 EXTON ROAD OVERHEADS AND FLEET

81D8 RECYCLING

81F1 PUBLIC REALM ASSETS

83A2 TRANSPORTATION

83A3 PARKING SERVICES

83A4 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

83A5 ARTS & EVENTS

81C9 ASSISTANT DIRECTORS

5PLACE -  PLACE SERVICES

Represented By

81A1 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

81A3 LICENCING,FOOD,HEALTH & SAFETY

81A4 PUBLIC SAFETY

81A6 PARKS & GREEN SPACES

81B2 CEMETERIES OPERATIONAL

81B&C BUSINESS & COMMERCIAL OPS

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

A

1 - SCALE OF CHARGES AND FEES FOR PLANNING AND ADVERTISEMENT APPLICATIONS

2 - PUBLICATIONS

Conservation Area Character Appraisals*

- Central (only available as a paper copy)

- Southernhay (only available as a paper copy)

- Heavitree (FREE to download from the website)

- Cowick Street (FREE to download from the website)

- Alphington (FREE to download from the website)

- Exwick (FREE to download from the website)

- Longbrook (FREE to download from the website)

- Riverside (FREE to download from the website)

- St David's (FREE to download from the website)

- Princes Square (FREE to download from the website)

*Available on CD for £2 each

Development Plan Documents

- Core Strategy (adopted February 2012)

Supplementary Planning Documents

- Public Open Space

- Audit of Outdoor Recreational Facilities

- Neighbourhood Maps

- Neighbourhood Maps (Colour)

- Neighbourhood Maps (Black & White)

- Implementing Open Space Standards

- Houses in Multiple Occupation

- Student Accommodation Supplementary Planning Guidance

- Residential Extensions (Black & White)

- Residential Extensions (Colour)

- Trees in Relation to Development

- Planning Obligations

- Affordable Housing

- Draft Affordable Housing (2012)

-  Residential Design Guide

- Streatham Campus Masterplan (Black & White)

- Streatham Campus Masterplan (Colour)

Supplementary Planning Guidance

- Archaeology and Development 

Exeter Local Plan First Review

* half price for residents and students

Local Plan Maps

- Proposals

- City Centre Inset

Exeter Employment Study (2007)

- Black & White

- Colour

Exeter Fringe Landscape Sensitivity & Capacity Study (2007)

- Black & White

- Colour (A3)

Monkerton & Hill Barton Masterplan (2010)

- Black & White

- Colour (A3)

Newcourt Masterplan (2010)

- Black & White

- Colour (A3)

South West Masterplan (2012)

- Black & White

- Colour (A3)

3 - OTHER CHARGES

Copy of Planning Decision Notice 2.67 0.53                       3.20            3 2.71 0.54                       3.25            3

Copy Appeal Decision 2.67 0.53                       3.20            3 2.71 0.54                       3.25            3

Copy Tree Preservation Order 2.67 0.53                       3.20            3 2.71 0.54                       3.25            3

Copy S.106 (Legal Agreement) 2.67 0.53                       3.20            3 2.71 0.54                       3.25            3

PLACE SERVICES

Planning publications are  available for 

download for free from the Exeter City Council 

website.  If a printed copy is required a charge 

per copy will be made in line with the Plan 

photocopy detailed below in 3 - Other 

Charges

Planning publications are  available for 

download for free from the Exeter City Council 

website.  If a printed copy is required a charge 

per copy will be made in line with the Plan 

photocopy detailed below in 3 - Other 

Charges

Planning publications are  available for 

download for free from the Exeter City Council 

website.  If a printed copy is required a charge 

per copy will be made in line with the Plan 

photocopy detailed below in 3 - Other 

Charges

Planning publications are  available for 

download for free from the Exeter City Council 

website.  If a printed copy is required a charge 

per copy will be made in line with the Plan 

photocopy detailed below in 3 - Other 

Charges

- Decisions dated from 1 January 2000 20p per page

- Decisions dated from 1 January 2000 up to 10 pages 20p per page, over 

10 pages £2.80 flat rate

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

PLANNING SERVICES

The fees collectable are statutory and determined by Central 

Government.

Planning publications are  available for 

download for free from the Exeter City Council 

website.  If a printed copy is required a charge 

per copy will be made in line with the Plan 

photocopy detailed below in 3 - Other 

Charges

Planning publications are  available for 

download for free from the Exeter City Council 

website.  If a printed copy is required a charge 

per copy will be made in line with the Plan 

photocopy detailed below in 3 - Other 

Charges

- Midway Terrace and Ide Lane (FREE to download from the website)

- Exeter Local Plan First Review (with Proposals Map and City Centre 

Insert) 

Page 25



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

Compliance with terms of S106 or similar agreements ascertained 

from Application file 16.92 3.38                       20.30          3 17.17 3.43                       20.61          3

Compliance with terms of S106 or similar agreements ascertained 

from Application file and site visit 69.83 13.97                     83.80          3 70.88 14.18                     85.05          3

Compliance with Conditions:

for Householder planning consents 25.00 5.00                       30.00          3 25.38 5.08                       30.45          3

for all other consent types 86.25 17.25                     103.50        3 87.54 17.51                     105.05        3

14.83 2.97                       17.80          3 15.05 3.01                       18.06          3

Plan Photocopies (where permitted by Copyright)

- A4 each copy 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3

- A3 each copy 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3

- A2, A1, A0 each copy** 1.67 0.33                       2.00            3 1.70 0.34                       2.03            3

** if printing outsourced cost to ECC will be charged

Ordnance Survey (OS) A4 Extract

- Exeter City Council Fee per sheet 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3

Other Photocopying:

- A4 size 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3

- A3 size 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3 0.25 0.05                       0.30            3

NOTE Reasonable requests from school pupils and students of further education will be exempt from charge

B BUILDING CONTROL

Research Building Records (add £5 if invoiced) 15.00 3.00                       18.00          3 15.23 3.05                       18.27          3

Copy of Building Regulation Notices

(a) Full Plans stay the ssame as last year

1 Dwelling 650.00 130.00                   780.00        3 650.00 130.00                   780.00        3

2 Dwellings 850.00 170.00                   1,020.00     3 850.00 170.00                   1,020.00     3

3 Dwellings 1,050.00 210.00                   1,260.00     3 1,050.00 210.00                   1,260.00     3

4 Dwellings 1,250.00 250.00                   1,500.00     3 1,250.00 250.00                   1,500.00     3

5 Dwellings 1,425.00 285.00                   1,710.00     3 1,425.00 285.00                   1,710.00     3

6 Dwellings 1,600.00 320.00                   1,920.00     3 1,600.00 320.00                   1,920.00     3

7 Dwellings 1,775.00 355.00                   2,130.00     3 1,775.00 355.00                   2,130.00     3

8 Dwellings 1,950.00 390.00                   2,340.00     3 1,950.00 390.00                   2,340.00     3

9 Dwellings 2,125.00 425.00                   2,550.00     3 2,125.00 425.00                   2,550.00     3

10 Dwellings 2,300.00 460.00                   2,760.00     3 2,300.00 460.00                   2,760.00     3

(b) Building Notice

1 Dwelling 780.00 156.00                   936.00        3 780.00 156.00                   936.00        3

2 Dwellings 1,020.00 204.00                   1,224.00     3 1,020.00 204.00                   1,224.00     3

3 Dwellings 1,260.00 252.00                   1,512.00     3 1,260.00 252.00                   1,512.00     3

4 Dwellings 1,500.00 300.00                   1,800.00     3 1,500.00 300.00                   1,800.00     3

5 Dwellings 1,710.00 342.00                   2,052.00     3 1,710.00 342.00                   2,052.00     3

6 Dwellings 1,920.00 384.00                   2,304.00     3 1,920.00 384.00                   2,304.00     3

7 Dwellings 2,130.00 426.00                   2,556.00     3 2,130.00 426.00                   2,556.00     3

8 Dwellings 2,340.00 468.00                   2,808.00     3 2,340.00 468.00                   2,808.00     3

9 Dwellings 2,550.00 510.00                   3,060.00     3 2,550.00 510.00                   3,060.00     3

10 Dwellings 2,760.00 552.00                   3,312.00     3 2,760.00 552.00                   3,312.00     3

(c)  RG Charge

1 Dwelling 936.00 -                         936.00        9 936.00 -                         936.00        9

2 Dwellings 1,224.00 -                         1,224.00     9 1,224.00 -                         1,224.00     9

3 Dwellings 1,512.00 -                         1,512.00     9 1,512.00 -                         1,512.00     9

4 Dwellings 1,800.00 -                         1,800.00     9 1,800.00 -                         1,800.00     9

5 Dwellings 2,052.00 -                         2,052.00     9 2,052.00 -                         2,052.00     9

6 Dwellings 2,304.00 -                         2,304.00     9 2,304.00 -                         2,304.00     9

7 Dwellings 2,556.00 -                         2,556.00     9 2,556.00 -                         2,556.00     9

8 Dwellings 2,808.00 -                         2,808.00     9 2,808.00 -                         2,808.00     9

9 Dwellings 3,060.00 -                         3,060.00     9 3,060.00 -                         3,060.00     9

10 Dwellings 3,312.00 -                         3,312.00     9 3,312.00 -                         3,312.00     9

2 - Schedule 3 - Standard charges for work to which Schedules 1 and 2 do not apply.

(a) Full Plans

Estimate of cost

Under £2,000 106.38 21.28                     127.66        3 106.42 21.28                     127.70        3

£2,000 - £5,000 170.21 34.04                     204.25        3 170.25 34.05                     204.30        3

£5,001- £10,000 212.77 42.55                     255.32        3 212.75 42.55                     255.30        3

£10,001 - £25,000 340.43 68.09                     408.52        3 340.42 68.08                     408.50        3

£25,001 - £50,000 553.19 110.64                   663.83        3 553.17 110.63                   663.80        3

£50,001- £75,000 765.96 153.19                   919.15        3 766.00 153.20                   919.20        3

£75,000 - £100,000 978.72 195.74                   1,174.46     3 978.75 195.75                   1,174.50     3

For dwellings above 10, or work in excess of £100,000 please contact Building Control on 01392 265218

Note - The BUILDING NOTICE option is not available for buildings subject to The Regulatory Reform [Fire Safety] Order 2005

(b) Building Notice

- Decisions dated from 1 January 2000 up to 10 pages 20p per page, over 

10 pages £2.80 flat rate

Search type inquiry question answered by letter seeking information 

about property/land uses, Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas, 

(The charge for an Ordnance Survey (OS) extract map has been set by 

the OS and agreed with the Council in a Service Level Agreement e.g. 

£14.05 for 4 copies plus 10p per sheet = £14.45)

No charge as information available under EIR No charge as information available under EIR

1 - Schedule 1 - Standard charges for one or more Dwellings 

[Houses up to 300m
2
 and flats up to three storeys]

Page 26



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

Estimate of cost

Under £2,000 127.66 25.53                     153.19        3 127.67 25.53                     153.20        3

£2,000 - £5,000 204.25 40.85                     245.10        3 204.25 40.85                     245.10        3

£5,001- £10,000 255.32 51.06                     306.38        3 255.33 51.07                     306.40        3

£10,001 - £25,000 408.51 81.70                     490.21        3 408.50 81.70                     490.20        3

£25,001 - £50,000 663.83 132.77                   796.60        3 663.83 132.77                   796.60        3

£50,001- £75,000 919.15 183.83                   1,102.98     3 919.17 183.83                   1,103.00     3

£75,000 - £100,000 1,174.47 234.89                   1,409.36     3 1,174.50 234.90                   1,409.40     3

For dwellings above 10, or work in excess of £100,000 please contact Building Control on 01392 265218

Note - The BUILDING NOTICE option is not available for buildings subject to The Regulatory Reform [Fire Safety] Order 2005

(c) RG Charge

Estimate of cost

Under £2,000 153.19 -                         153.19        9 153.20 -                         153.20        9

£2,000 - £5,000 245.10 -                         245.10        9 245.10 -                         245.10        9

£5,001- £10,000 306.38 -                         306.38        9 306.40 -                         306.40        9

£10,001 - £25,000 490.21 -                         490.21        9 490.20 -                         490.20        9

£25,001 - £50,000 796.60 -                         796.60        9 796.60 -                         796.60        9

£50,001- £75,000 1,102.98 -                         1,102.98     9 1,103.00 -                         1,103.00     9

£75,000 - £100,000 1,409.36 -                         1,409.36     9 1,409.40 -                         1,409.40     9

For dwellings above 10, or work in excess of £100,000 please contact Building Control on 01392 265218

Note - The BUILDING NOTICE option is not available for buildings subject to The Regulatory Reform [Fire Safety] Order 2005

3 - Schedule 2 - Standard charges for work in connection with dwellings

(a) Full Plans

Type of Work

Replacement Glazing in dwellings - Single Unit 42.55 8.51                       51.06          3 42.58 8.52                       51.10          3

Replacement Glazing in dwellings - Multiple Units 72.34 14.47                     86.81          3 72.33 14.47                     86.80          3

Domestic Electrical Installations [CP serves BS 7671 certificate] 42.55 8.51                       51.06          3 42.58 8.52                       51.10          3

Domestic Electrical Installations [ECC to carry out inspections] 212.77 42.55                     255.32        3 212.75 42.55                     255.30        3

Extensions or Loft Conversions - Not exceeding 10m
2

297.87 59.57                     357.44        3 297.83 59.57                     357.40        3

Extensions or Loft Conversions - 10m
2
 to 40m

2    
425.53 85.11                     510.64        3 425.50 85.10                     510.60        3

Extensions or Loft Conversions - 40m
2
 to 60m

2
574.47 114.89                   689.36        3 574.50 114.90                   689.40        3

Conversion of attached garage to domestic habitable room 297.87 59.57                     357.44        3 297.83 59.57                     357.40        3

Garages, carports or similar - [not exempt] less than 40m
2

127.66 25.53                     153.19        3 127.67 25.53                     153.20        3

Re-roofing of existing dwellings 127.66 25.53                     153.19        3 127.67 25.53                     153.20        3

Note - For extensions or loft conversions exc 60m
2
, the minimum 

standard charge in Schedule 3 is £675.00 inc VAT for a Full Plans 

application and £810.00 inc Vat for a Building Notice application

Note - The ‘Regularisation charge’ does not attract a VAT element 

(b) Building Notice

Type of Work

Replacement Glazing in dwellings - Single Unit 42.55 8.51                       51.06          3 42.58 8.52                       51.10          3

Replacement Glazing in dwellings - Multiple Units 72.34 14.47                     86.81          3 72.33 14.47                     86.80          3

Domestic Electrical Installations [CP serves BS 7671 certificate] 42.55 8.51                       51.06          3 42.58 8.52                       51.10          3

Domestic Electrical Installations [ECC to carry out inspections] 212.77 42.55                     255.32        3 212.75 42.55                     255.30        3

Extensions or Loft Conversions - Not exceeding 10m
2

357.45 71.49                     428.94        3 357.42 71.48                     428.90        3

Extensions or Loft Conversions - 10m
2
 to 40m

2    
510.64 102.13                   612.77        3 510.67 102.13                   612.80        3

Extensions or Loft Conversions - 40m
2
 to 60m

2
689.37 137.87                   827.24        3 689.33 137.87                   827.20        3

Conversion of attached garage to domestic habitable room 357.45 71.49                     428.94        3 357.42 71.48                     428.90        3

Garages, carports or similar - [not exempt] less than 40m
2

153.19 30.64                     183.83        3 153.17 30.63                     183.80        3

Re-roofing of existing dwellings 127.66 25.53                     153.19        3 127.67 25.53                     153.20        3

Note - For extensions or loft conversions exc 60m
2
, the minimum 

standard charge in Schedule 3 is £675.00 inc VAT for a Full Plans 

application and £810.00 inc Vat for a Building Notice application

Note - The ‘Regularisation charge’ does not attract a VAT element 

(c) RG Charge

Type of Work

Replacement Glazing in dwellings - Single Unit 51.06 -                         51.06          9 51.10 -                         51.10          9

Replacement Glazing in dwellings - Multiple Units 86.81 -                         86.81          9 86.80 -                         86.80          9

Domestic Electrical Installations [CP serves BS 7671 certificate] 51.06 -                         51.06          9 51.10 -                         51.10          9

Domestic Electrical Installations [ECC to carry out inspections] 255.32 -                         255.32        9 255.30 -                         255.30        9

Extensions or Loft Conversions - Not exceeding 10m
2 428.94 -                         428.94        9 428.90 -                         428.90        9

Extensions or Loft Conversions - 10m
2
 to 40m

2    612.77 -                         612.77        9 612.80 -                         612.80        9

Extensions or Loft Conversions - 40m
2
 to 60m

2 827.24 -                         827.24        9 827.20 -                         827.20        9

Conversion of attached garage to domestic habitable room 428.94 -                         428.94        9 429.00 -                         429.00        9

Garages, carports or similar - [not exempt] less than 40m
2 183.83 -                         183.83        9 183.80 -                         183.80        9

Re-roofing of existing dwellings 153.19 -                         153.19        9 153.20 -                         153.20        9

Note - For extensions or loft conversions exc 60m
2
, the minimum 

standard charge in Schedule 3 is £675.00 inc VAT for a Full Plans 

application and £810.00 inc Vat for a Building Notice applicationNote - The ‘Regularisation charge’ does not attract a VAT element 

C LOCAL LAND CHARGES

Page 27



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

-  Basic Standard Fee 85.00 12.60 97.60          3 & 9 85.00 12.60 97.60          3 & 9

-  Basic Standard Fee (submitted electronically) 75.00 11.00 86.00          3 & 9 75.00 11.00 86.00          3 & 9

-  LLC1 Enquires 22.00 -                         22.00          9 22.00 -                         22.00          9

-  LLC1 Enquires (submitted electronically) 20.00 -                         20.00          9 20.00 -                         20.00          9

-  Extra Question (Optional Enquiries Part Two) 4.00 0.80                       4.80            3 4.00 0.80                       4.80            3

-  Extra Question (Optional Enquiries Q5/Q22) (set by Devon CC) 6.50 1.30                       7.80            3 6.50 1.30                       7.80            3

-  Each Additional Enquiry 10.00 -                         10.00          9 10.00 -                         10.00          9

-  Extra Parcel 4.00 -                         4.00            9 4.00 -                         4.00            9

-  Con 29R Enquires 63.00 12.60                     75.60          3 63.00 12.60                     75.60          3

-  Con 29R Enquires (submitted electronically) 55.00 11.00                     66.00          3 55.00 11.00                     66.00          3

-  Personal Searches 0.00 -                         -             9 0.00 -                         -             9

D UNDERGROUND PASSAGES

Adult 5.00 1.00                       6.00            3 5.00 1.00                       6.00            3

Child (5-16) 3.33 0.67                       4.00            3 3.33 0.67                       4.00            3

Senior/Student 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3

Family (2 adults and up to 3 children) 15.00 3.00                       18.00          3 15.00 3.00                       18.00          3

Adult group 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3

Child group 2.92 0.58                       3.50            3 2.92 0.58                       3.50            3

Conc group 3.75 0.75                       4.50            3 3.75 0.75                       4.50            3

* Admission fees are subject to discounting during quiet periods to encourage visitors to, and residents of, Exeter.

E RED COAT GUIDED GROUP TOURS

Adult 2.50 0.50                       3.00            3 3.33 0.67                       4.00            3

Child (5-16) 1.67 0.33                       2.00            3 2.08 0.42                       2.50            3

F CAR PARKS (Charges effective from January 2017)

Premium Car Parks

These charges apply at the following car parks:

Guildhall

John Lewis

Mary Arches Street

1 Hour 1.50 0.30                       1.80            3 1.67 0.33                       2.00            3

2 Hours 2.17 0.43                       2.60            3 2.50 0.50                       3.00            3

3 Hours 2.92 0.58                       3.50            3 3.33 0.67                       4.00            3

4 Hours 5.42 1.08                       6.50            3 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3

5 Hours 7.33 1.47                       8.80            3 5.00 1.00                       6.00            3

6 Hours 9.83 1.97                       11.80          3 5.83 1.17                       7.00            3

7 Hours 9.83 1.97                       11.80          3 6.67 1.33                       8.00            3

All Day 9.83 1.97                       11.80          3 10.00 2.00                       12.00          3

Short Stay Car Parks

These charges apply at the following car parks:

Bampfylde Street

Bartholomew Terrace

Harlequins

King William St / Leighton Terrace

Magdalen Road (Fairpark)

Magdalen Street

Matthews Hall Topsham

Princesshay 2 (Civic Centre)

Princesshay 3 (Broadwalk House)

Smythen Street

1 Hour 1.00 0.20                       1.20            3 0.83 0.17                       1.00            3

2 Hours 1.83 0.37                       2.20            3 1.67 0.33                       2.00            3

3 Hours 2.75 0.55                       3.30            3 2.50 0.50                       3.00            3

4 Hours 4.75 0.95                       5.70            3 3.33 0.67                       4.00            3

5 Hours 6.42 1.28                       7.70            3 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3

6 Hours 9.00 1.80                       10.80          3 5.00 1.00                       6.00            3

7 Hours 9.00 1.80                       10.80          3 5.83 1.17                       7.00            3

All Day 9.00 1.80                       10.80          3 8.33 1.67                       10.00          3

Long Stay Car Parks

These charges apply at the following car parks:

Belmont Road

Bystock Terrace

Cathedral & Quay

Haven Road 1

Howell Road

Parr Street

Richmond Road

Triangle

Topsham Quay

1 Hour 0.67 0.13                       0.80            3 0.67 0.13                       1.00            3

2 Hours 1.00 0.20                       1.20            3 1.00 0.20                       2.00            3

3 Hours 1.50 0.30                       1.80            3 1.50 0.30                       3.00            3

4 Hours 2.67 0.53                       3.20            3 2.67 0.53                       4.00            3

5 Hours 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3

All Day 5.17 1.03                       6.20            3 5.17 1.03                       6.00            3

Local Car Parks

These charges apply at the following car parks:

Gordon's Place

Charges apply 7 days a week 8am-6pm including Bank Holidays 

(Topsham car parks 9am-5pm) unless otherwise stated

Page 28



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

Haven Road 2 & 3

Holman Way

Okehampton Street

Tappers Close

1 Hour 0.50 0.10                       0.60            3 0.42 0.08                       0.50            3

2 Hours 0.67 0.13                       0.80            3 0.83 0.17                       1.00            3

3 Hours 0.83 0.17                       1.00            3 1.25 0.25                       1.50            3

4 Hours 1.00 0.20                       1.20            3 1.67 0.33                       2.00            3

All Day 1.50 0.30                       1.80            3 2.08 0.42                       2.50            3

Coach Parking at Haven Road 3 (per day) 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3 4.17 0.83                       5.00            3

Abode (Royal Clarence) Hotel

24 hour parking permits for use by hotel guests 8.75 1.75                       10.50          3 8.75 1.75                       10.50          3

Season Tickets

Quarterly Commuter Season Ticket 216.67 43.33                     260.00        3 250.00 50.00                     300.00        3

Residents Annual Season Ticket 104.17 20.83                     125.00        3 104.17 20.83                     125.00        3

Bartholomew Terrace Business Permit 170.83 34.17                     205.00        3 170.83 34.17                     205.00        3

Cathedral & Quay Business Bays 470.83 94.17                     565.00        3 470.83 94.17                     565.00        3

Penalty Charge Notices

70.00 -                         70.00          9 70.00 -                         70.00          9

50.00 -                         50.00          9 50.00 -                         50.00          9

G CANAL AND PORT OF EXETER

* With effect from 1st April 2017

Calculated lengths include Bumpkins, Bowsprits, Spars and other extensions fixed or rigged fore and/ or aft of the vessel at the mooring

Cost may be amended for operational reasons by the Port Manager

1 Mooring on Bight or Turf Buoy per day (or part thereof)

i Commercial/ Qualifying Vessel 44.66 -                         44.66          7 46.00 -                         46.00          7

ii
Recreational vessels enroute to the Canal or Topsham Quay

11.42 2.28                       13.70          3 11.58 2.32                       13.90          3

2 Dues on private recreational vessels

for access and passage outside these times contact the Port Service Manager 

2i
Weekday Locking in or out at Turf (pro rata Convoy Rates may 

apply)
41.44 8.29                       49.73          3 42.08 8.42                       50.50          3

2ii Cancellation of booking 25.00 5.00                       30.00          3 25.42 5.08                       30.50          3

2iii Late Payment of invoice - plus 10% per month

2a Mooring Licence (per metre per month or part month)

Moored Afloat

i Canal or Basin 9.10 1.82                       10.93          3 9.25 1.85                       11.10          3

ii
Canal or Basin min 6 months paid in advance includes Locking & 

Transit with convoy rate
54.63 10.93                     65.55          3 55.42 11.08                     66.50          3

iii Topsham Quay 11.29 2.26                       13.54          3 11.46 2.29                       13.75          3

iv
Topsham mooring off pontoon (six months minimum) under 5m

67.72 13.54                     81.26          3 68.75 13.75                     82.50          3

2b Storage Ashore

i Canal Basin/Boat Park 9.10 1.82                       10.93          3 9.25 1.85                       11.10          3

ii

Topsham Quay  (booking deposit required - mimimum period of 

stay will apply)
11.30 2.26                       13.56          3

11.46
2.29                       13.75          3

2c Charge for (single hull vessel) one way passage along the 

Canal (pro rata Convoy rates may apply)

i Mon to Fri (exc Public holidays) 08:00:15:00 41.44 8.29                       49.73          3 41.67 8.33                       50.00          3

2d Visiting Vessels' Mooring and Berths per day or part

Mooring alongside per day (max. 4 weeks in any year)

i
Turf weekdays (min period 2 days) per day inclusive of Locking

12.94 2.59                       15.53          3 16.67 3.33                       20.00          3

ii Turf 'weekend' (in Friday/out Monday) inclusive of Locking 33.33 6.67                       40.00          3

iii Topsham Quay per day 8.80 1.76                       10.56          3 9.17 1.83                       11.00          3

2e Multihull craft as applicable as applicable

3 Dues on Commercial Vessels

Applies to all Commercial, Passenger & Fishing Vessels

3a Canal Dues (per Dwt Tonne) 1.07 -                         1.07            7 1.10 -                         1.10            7

i Topsham Quay Dues (per Dwt Tonne) 0.81 -                         0.81            7 0.82 -                         0.82            7

3b Charge for one way passage along the Canal

i Weekdays 08:00 to 15:00 (excluding Public holidays) 114.70 -                         114.70        7 117.00 -                         117.00        7

ii Locking in or out at Turf (per operation) 41.44 8.29                       49.73          3 42.08 8.42                       50.50          3

3c For access and passage outside these times contact the Port Service Manager By Negotiation

4a Mooring or Storage Ashore (per metre per day or part thereof)

Laying alongside 

i Canal or Canal Basin 2.28 -                         2.28            7 2.30 -                         2.30            7

ii Topsham Quay 2.49 -                         2.49            7 2.50 -                         2.50            7

4b Storage Ashore (per metre per day or part thereof)

i Canal 2.28 -                         2.28            7 2.30 -                         2.30            7

ii Topsham Quay 3.05 -                         3.05            7 3.10 -                         3.10            7

5 Passenger Vessels and or boats for hire within the Port, Canal or Basin

i Landing passengers (per passenger/ occupant per

one way passage)  

ii Pontoons per metre per month 13.66 2.73                       16.39          3 13.75 2.75                       16.50          7

iii Contracted Use of the Waterway

6 Dues on Qualifying Vessels (HMRC Notice 744c) whilst withdrawn from commercial use

i Charges for Locking & passage through the canal as per Commercial vessels

Plus 25% afloat, 50% ashore Plus 25% afloat, 50% ashore

By negotiation By negotiation

These rates are laid down by guidance accompanying the Traffic 

Management Act, and therefore may be subject to change.

Charge for higher rate contravention (reduced by 50% if paid within 14 

days)Charge for lower rate contravention (reduced by 50% if paid within 14 

days)

Page 29



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

6a Mooring Licence (per metre per month or part month)

i Canal or Canal Basin - mooring afloat 10.97 -                         10.97          7 11.10 -                         11.10          7

ii Topsham Quay - mooring afloat 13.56 -                         13.56          7 13.75 -                         13.75          7

7 Services

i  Electricity, Water & Waste Disposal

7a Cranage

Lifting in or out

i Banksman supervision for cranage per boat - craning event 25.00 5.00                       30.00          3 25.42 5.08                       30.50          3

ii
Banksman supervision for cranage per boat - non craning event

70.00 14.00                     84.00          3 70.83 14.17                     85.00          3

iii Hire of cradles per (boat) metre per month or part 2.69 0.54                       3.23            3 2.71 0.54                       3.25            3

(cradle or legs on keel boats compulsory)

7b Masts

i Stepping or striking per half hour 43.47 8.69                       52.17          3 22.08 4.42                       26.50          3

ii Storage of masts ashore (per period up to 12 months) 59.01 11.80                     70.81          3 60.00 12.00                     72.00          3

7c Assistance / Supervision (where not included in other charges)

i Labour per half hour 43.47 8.69                       52.17          3 22.08 4.42                       26.50          3

ii Labour per half hour with use of boat (was per hour) 70.37 14.07                     84.44          3 35.42 7.08                       42.50          3

8 Hire of Unifloat per day (or part thereof) 72.47 14.49                     86.97          3 73.33 14.67                     88.00          3

8a Hire of pontoon per day (or part thereof) 30.00 6.00                       36.00          3 30.83 6.17                       37.00          3

i non commercial 'events' use - refer to Port Service manager By Negotiation

ii Storage of containers and cradless per metre per month 9.25 1.85                       11.10          3

9 Licensing of Pleasure Craft and Boat Operators

i Pleasure Craft (per annum) 12.43 2.49                       14.92          3 13.33 2.67                       16.00          3

ii Inspection of Vessel 3 3

9a Operators (per annum)

i Initial (including test) 56.92 11.38                     68.31          3 58.33 11.67                     70.00          3

ii Renewal 12.43 2.49                       14.92          3 13.33 2.67                       16.00          3

10 Topsham Ferry per crossing

i Per person (under 5 yrs old free) 0.97 0.19                       1.17            3 1.00 0.20                       1.20            3

ii Dogs, Bicycles, pushchairs etc 0.51 0.10                       0.61            3 0.50 0.10                       0.60            3

11 Salmon Fishing Permits (Limited locations)

i Annual 75.62 15.12                     90.74          3 76.67 15.33                     92.00          3

ii Day 8.80 1.76                       10.56          3 9.17 1.83                       11.00          3

H MUSEUM

(1)       RAMM

           - Admission to Museum Voluntary donation Voluntary donation

           - Free activities, talks, tours, special events, 

             workshops, special exhibitions etc

Voluntary donation Voluntary donation

           - Charged for activities, talks, tours, special events, 

             workshops, special exhibitions etc

           - School visits

(i)     Self led

(ii)    Volunteer led

(2)       St. Nicholas Priory - Booked sessions

(3)       Hire Charges

            (a) Spaces available for hire:

               (i) Corporate and private hire available, including 

wedding receptions     

                 (ii) When available Meeting Room A / B can be booked 

for schools to leave their bags and have lunch (rooms have a 

minimum 3 hour booking and a maximum capacity of 65 children)

            - Fewer than 25 children 102.00 20.40                     122.40        3 103.54 20.71                     124.25        3

            - 26 to 40 children 178.50 35.70                     214.20        3 181.17 36.23                     217.40        3

            - 41 to 65 children 280.50 56.10                     336.60        3 284.71 56.94                     341.65        3

      (b) Commission on sales in galleries when RAMM

           is acting as an intermediary 3 3

                     

      (c) Booked lectures and tours

          - Lecture by Museum Specialist, minimum per hour 

(additional research and travel beyond 30 minutes will incur extra 

charges)

80.00 0.00 80.00 9 81.20 0.00 81.20          9

          - RAMM gallery tour by Museum Specialist for up to 12 

people, 

            minimum per hour (additional research will incur extra 

charges)

75.00 0.00 75.00 9 76.15 0.00 76.15          9

          - Collections Study Centre tour by Museum Specialist for up 

to 8 people, minimum per hour (additional research will incur extra 

charges)

90.00 0.00 90.00 9 91.35 0.00 91.35          9

          - Other behind the scenes access led by Museum Specilist 

for up to 12 people, minimum per hour (additional research will 

incur extra charges)

150.00 0.00 150.00 9 152.25 0.00 152.25        9

40% of gross sales + VAT 40% of gross sales + VAT

at cost plus 20% at cost plus 20%

Email Adrienne Corner at adrienne.corner@exeter.gov.uk to 

check availability and arrange hire.

Email Neil Heasman at neil.heasman@exeter.gov.uk to check 

availability and arrange hire.

as 5(a)(bi)

At cost plus 15% At cost plus 15%

Prices vary - all are published each quarter in RAMM's events 

booklet and on RAMM's website: www.rammuseum.org.uk

Prices vary - all are published each quarter in RAMM's events 

booklet and on RAMM's website: www.rammuseum.org.uk

Vouluntary donation - booking essential via website: 

http://www.rammuseum.org.uk/schools

Vouluntary donation - booking essential via website: 

http://www.rammuseum.org.uk/schools

From £2 per child for 90 minutes visit comprising 3 x 30 minutes 

of activities / handling / tour. +50p per child for each additional 30 

minute activity / handling / tour.  Minimum charge £50

Unfortunately due to essential building repairs St Nicholas Priory is 

currently closed - see website for updates 

http://www.rammuseum.org.uk/visiting-us/st-nicholas-priory

Unfortunately due to essential building repairs St Nicholas Priory is 

currently closed - see website for updates 

http://www.rammuseum.org.uk/visiting-us/st-nicholas-priory

Contact Jacqui Channon on 01392 265384 / 

jacqui.channon@exeter.gov.uk for further information and a quote.

Contact Jacqui Channon on 01392 265384 / 

jacqui.channon@exeter.gov.uk for further information and a quote.

Page 30



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

          - Specialist collections research/advice, charge applies to 

enquiries beyond 30 minutes (charged at minimum per half hour, 

any travel will incur extra charges)
25.00 0.00 25.00 9 25.40 0.00 25.40          9

      (c) Conservation 

          - Conservation laboratory space hire per hour 4.34 0.87                       5.20            3 4.34 0.87                       5.20            3

          - Conservation workshop space hire per hour 3.23 0.65                       3.88            3 3.23 0.65                       3.90            3

          - Conservation work, per hour 42.25 8.45                       50.70          3 42.25 8.45                       50.70          3

          - Conservation work, (35 hours plus) per day 257.50 51.50                     309.00        3 257.50 51.50                     309.00        3

          - Conservation mountmaking, per hour 33.33 6.67                       40.00          3 33.33 6.67                       40.00          3

          - Minimum x-ray charge 157.59 31.52                     189.11        3 157.59 31.52                     189.10        3

       (d) Archaeological archives - Per box 3 3

       (e) Object Loan 3 3

(4)       Photographic Charges

NOTE: By visiting 'prints.rammuseum.org.uk' you can buy framed 

or unframed decorative prints and canvas prints, from a selection 25% discount for existing images available to students, and Devon registered publishers/press and registered charities.

Location photography is available on application and will be charged on an individual basis.

     (a) Digital Images

         (i) New high quality digital image 186.35 37.27                     223.62        3 189.17 37.83                     227.00        3

         (ii) Existing high quality digital image 23.47 4.69                       28.16          3 23.83 4.77                       28.60          3

         (iii) Existing digital Image 

               (scan from slide/transparency) 11.99 2.40                       14.39          3 12.17 2.43                       14.60          3

          - Postage & packaging costs may also apply 3 3

(5)       Reproduction Charges

NOTE: All fees cover one edition, one ISBN only.

For Print runs over 10,000 add 50% of reproduction fee.

For print runs under 500 reduce reproduction fee by 25%

25% discount for books, journals available to Devon registered publishers and registered charities.

Only one discount may be applied.

     (a) Book, journal etc

         (i) One Country, One Language

          - Inside 1/4 page - Black and White 24.08 4.82                       28.90          3 24.46 4.89                       29.35          3

                    - Colour 47.94 9.59                       57.53          3 48.67 9.73                       58.40          3

          - Inside 1/2 page - Black and White 48.15 9.63                       57.78          3 48.87 9.77                       58.65          3

                    - Colour 95.88 19.18                     115.06        3 97.33 19.47                     116.80        3

          - Inside full page - Black and White 72.23 14.45                     86.68          3 73.33 14.67                     88.00          3

                    - Colour 143.82 28.76                     172.58        3 146.00 29.20                     175.20        3

          - Cover  - Black and White 96.30 19.26                     115.56        3 97.75 19.55                     117.30        3

                    - Colour 191.76 38.35                     230.11        3 194.67 38.93                     233.60        3

         (ii) Single Continent, One Language

          - Inside 1/4 page - Black and White 25.28 5.06                       30.34          3 25.67 5.13                       30.80          3

                    - Colour 50.34 10.07                     60.41          3 51.08 10.22                     61.30          3

          - Inside 1/2 page - Black and White 50.56 10.11                     60.67          3 51.33 10.27                     61.60          3

                    - Colour 100.67 20.13                     120.80        3 102.17 20.43                     122.60        3

          - Inside full page - Black and White 75.84 15.17                     91.01          3 77.00 15.40                     92.40          3

                    - Colour 151.00 30.20                     181.20        3 153.26 30.65                     183.91        3

          - Cover  - Black and White 101.12 20.22                     121.34        3 153.25 30.65                     183.90        3

                    - Colour 201.34 40.27                     241.61        3 204.38 40.88                     245.25        3

         (iii) Single Continent, Multi Language

          - Inside 1/4 page - Black and White 26.55 5.31                       31.86          3 26.96 5.39                       32.35          3

                    - Colour 52.85 10.57                     63.42          3 53.67 10.73                     64.40          3

          - Inside 1/2 page - Black and White 53.09 10.62                     63.71          3 53.88 10.78                     64.65          3

                    - Colour 105.70 21.14                     126.84        3 107.30 21.46                     128.75        3

          - Inside full page - Black and White 79.35 15.87                     95.22          3 80.54 16.11                     96.65          3

                    - Colour 158.55 31.71                     190.26        3 160.92 32.18                     193.10        3

          - Cover  - Black and White 106.18 21.24                     127.42        3 107.79 21.56                     129.35        3

                    - Colour 211.40 42.28                     253.68        3 214.58 42.92                     257.50        3

         (iv) World, One Language

          - Inside 1/4 page - Black and White 27.29 5.46                       32.75          3 27.71 5.54                       33.25          3

                    - Colour 60.12 12.02                     72.14          3 61.04 12.21                     73.25          3

          - Inside 1/2 page - Black and White 54.58 10.92                     65.50          3 55.42 11.08                     66.50          3

                    - Colour 120.21 24.04                     144.25        3 122.00 24.40                     146.40        3

          - Inside full page - Black and White 81.87 16.37                     98.24          3 83.08 16.62                     99.70          3

                    - Colour 180.32 36.06                     216.38        3 183.04 36.61                     219.65        3

          - Cover  - Black and White 109.16 21.83                     130.99        3 110.79 22.16                     132.95        3

                    - Colour 240.42 48.08                     288.50        3 244.04 48.81                     292.85        3

         (v) World, Multi Language

          - Inside 1/4 page - Black and White 30.77 6.15                       36.92          3 31.25 6.25                       37.50          3

                    - Colour 72.53 14.51                     87.04          3 73.63 14.73                     88.35          3

          - Inside 1/2 page - Black and White 61.43 12.29                     73.72          3 62.33 12.47                     74.80          3

                    - Colour 145.06 29.01                     174.07        3 147.25 29.45                     176.70        3

          - Inside full page - Black and White 92.15 18.43                     110.58        3 93.54 18.71                     112.25        3

                    - Colour 217.59 43.52                     261.11        3 220.83 44.17                     265.00        3

          - Cover  - Black and White 122.86 24.57                     147.43        3 124.71 24.94                     149.65        3

                    - Colour 290.12 58.02                     348.14        3 294.46 58.89                     353.35        3

     (b) Websites

          (i) Newspapers & Magazines

          - Home Page, for cover period 79.80 15.96                     95.77          3 81.00 16.20                     97.20          3

          - Home Page, for up to 5 years 103.27 20.65                     123.93        3 104.83 20.97                     125.80        3

          - Secondary Page, for cover period 49.78 9.96                       59.74          3 50.54 10.11                     60.65          3

          - Secondary Page, for up to 5 years 68.85 13.77                     82.62          3 69.88 13.98                     83.85          3

     (ii) Corporate, Advertorial

Dependent on need Dependent on need

On application On application

On application On application

Page 31



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

          - Home Page, up to 1 year 177.12 35.42                     212.55        3 179.79 35.96                     215.75        3

          - Home Page, up to 5 Years 372.19 74.44                     446.63        3 377.79 75.56                     453.35        3

          - Secondary Page, up to 1 year 103.27 20.65                     123.93        3 104.83 20.97                     125.80        3

          - Secondary Page, up to 5 Years 224.92 44.98                     269.90        3 228.29 45.66                     273.95        3

     (iii) Academic

          - Home Page, up to 1 year 40.46 8.09                       48.56          3 41.08 8.22                       49.30          3

          - Home Page, up to 5 years 98.87 19.77                     118.65        3 100.38 20.08                     120.45        3

          - Secondary Page, up to 1 year 25.71 5.14                       30.85          3 26.08 5.22                       31.30          3

          - Secondary Page, up to 5 years 68.85 13.77                     82.62          3 69.88 13.98                     83.85          3

     (iv) Personal

          - Home/Secondary Page, up to 5 Years 18.55 3.71                       22.26          3 18.84 3.77                       22.60          3

     (v) CD/DVD (production run of 10,000)

          - Inside product, one language 30.02 6.00                       36.03          3 30.46 6.09                       36.55          3

          - Inside product, world rights, multi language 196.71 39.34                     236.05        3 199.67 39.93                     239.60        3

          - Product packaging, one country, one language 54.09 10.82                     64.91          3 54.92 10.98                     65.90          3

          - Product packaging, world rights, multi language 294.03 58.81                     352.83        3 298.42 59.68                     358.10        3

     (c) Personal use e.g. Home display, unpublished 

          study coursework
8.63 1.73                       10.35          3 8.75 1.75                       10.50          3

          - Record image (new photography produced in-house, 

available for personal use only)
3 3

     (d) Television/Film

         (i) Facilities fee, minimum per half day 332.16 66.43                     398.59        3 337.13 67.43                     404.55        3

         (ii) Still photographs reproduced/broadcast within a

              single TV programme, film etc.

         - Transmission (includes +1, 30 days on demand, internet streaming): 

           UK 37.50 7.50                       45.00          3 38.08 7.62                       45.70          3

           UK & Europe 45.83 9.17                       55.00          3 46.54 9.31                       55.85          3

           World 66.67 13.33                     80.00          3 67.67 13.53                     81.20          3

         - 1 year, up to 3 transmissions, (includes +1, on demand, internet streaming): 

           UK 54.17 10.83                     65.00          3 55.00 11.00                     66.00          3

           UK & Europe 70.83 14.17                     85.00          3 71.92 14.38                     86.30          3

           World 91.67 18.33                     110.00        3 93.04 18.61                     111.65        3

         - 3 years, up to 8 transmissions, (includes +1, on demand, internet streaming): 

           UK 83.33 16.67                     100.00        3 84.58 16.92                     101.50        3

           UK & Europe 125.00 25.00                     150.00        3 126.88 25.38                     152.25        3

           World 166.67 33.33                     200.00        3 169.17 33.83                     203.00        3

         - 5 years unlimited transmissions, (includes catchup, on demand, internet streaming): 

           UK 145.83 29.17                     175.00        3 148.00 29.60                     177.60        3

           UK & Europe 187.50 37.50                     225.00        3 190.33 38.07                     228.40        3

           World 270.83 54.17                     325.00        3 274.92 54.98                     329.90        3

         - 10 years unlimited transmissions, (includes catchup, on demand, internet streaming):

           UK 187.50 37.50                     225.00        3 190.33 38.07                     228.40        3

           UK & Europe 229.17 45.83                     275.00        3 232.63 46.53                     279.15        3

           World 312.50 62.50                     375.00        3 317.21 63.44                     380.65        3

     (e) Exhibition/Display usage

NOTE: For each additional venue add 25% of cost. 

          (i) Exhibition/Display - Single Venue

           - Printed, up to A4, up to 6 months 50.88 10.18                     61.06          3 51.63 10.33                     61.95          3

           - Printed, over A4, up to 6 months 63.60 12.72                     76.32          3 64.54 12.91                     77.45          3

           - Digital, up to 6 months 50.88 10.18                     61.06          3 51.63 10.33                     61.95          3

           - Marketing, up to 6 months usage 49.05 9.81                       58.86          3 49.80 9.96                       59.75          3

          (ii) Exhibition/Display - Single Venue

           - Printed, up to A4, up to 1 year 116.89 23.38                     140.27        3 118.63 23.73                     142.35        3

           - Printed, over A4, up to 1 year 145.98 29.20                     175.18        3 148.17 29.63                     177.80        3

           - Digital, up to 1 year 116.89 23.38                     140.27        3 118.63 23.73                     142.35        3

           - Marketing, up to 1 years usage 81.40 16.28                     97.68          3 82.62 16.52                     99.15          3

          (iii) Display - Permanent, up to 10 years 325.00 65.00                     390.00        3 329.88 65.98                     395.85        3

Reproduction projects not mentioned can be requested and will be considered on an individual basis.

I SPORTS AND LEISURE CENTRES

1.008

1 X Card

Adult 4.20 0.84 5.00 3 4.17 0.83 5.00 3

Under 18's/Senior Citizen 2.10 0.42 2.50 3 2.08 0.42 2.50 3

PLEASE NOTE:      

X Card is free from the contractual RPI Increase and has been left at last years fee

PLEASE NOTE:      

1 The prices quoted in 2 - 12 are the maxima to be charged.  In addition, non-LeisureCard scheme members 

(known as the Excite Card ) are subject to admission charges as appropriate,  

which apply to all customers at all centres as follows (except where marked #)

2 Exeter residents meeting the criteria for an X Card are entitled to a 50% discount off the activities denoted 

by an X during Off Peak times.

3 Clubs attaining Club Mark Accreditation are entitled to a 10% discount off the charges denoted by CM.

2 ADMISSION CHARGE

                              -  Adult 0.86 0.85 8 0.90 0.90 8

                              -  Under 18's/Senior Citizen 0.51 0.51 8 0.50 0.50 8

                              -  XCard Holders

3 ISCA CENTRE for bowls and bridge (Casual public use)

Bowls Per Person

On application On application

No Charge No Charge

Page 32



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

X                      -  1 hour 3.74 3.75 8 3.80 3.80 8

X                      -  1½ hours 4.78 4.80 8 4.85 4.85 8

X                      -  2 hours 5.64 5.65 8 5.75 5.75 8

X                      -  2½ hours 6.39 6.40 8 6.50 6.50 8

X                      -  3 hours 7.01 7.00 8 7.15 7.15 8

4 CLIFTON HILL GOLF DRIVING RANGE

    (max per 50 balls)

X            (a)     Adult 4.07 0.81 4.90 3 4.17 0.83 5.00 3

X            (b)     Under 18's/Senior Citizen 2.50 0.50 3.00 3 2.54 0.51 3.05 3

           (d)     Hire of Clubs 0.61 0.12 0.75 3 0.62 0.12 0.75 3

                     -  XCard Holders

5 CLIFTON HILL SPORTS CENTRE

(1)      Main Hall (per 1 hour session)

          (volleyball, basketball, 5-a-side etc)

CM                -  Peak 38.26 38.25 8 39.00 39.00 8

CM                -  Off Peak 27.91 27.90 8 28.45 28.45 8

(2)      Badminton Courts (per hour session)

                -  Peak 8.81 8.80 8 9.00 9.00 8

X                 -  Off Peak 6.16 6.15 8 6.30 6.30 8

(3)      Squash (per court per 45 minutes)

                -  Peak 6.39 6.40 8 6.50 6.50 8

X                 -  Off Peak 5.16 5.15 8 5.25 5.25 8

(4)     Shower 2.42 2.40 8 2.45 2.45 8

(5)      Fitness Centre

X (a)           Induction Course 10.31 10.30 8 10.50 10.50 8

X (b)          Adult per session 4.28 4.30 8 4.35 4.35 8

X (c)          Under 18's/Senior Citizen per session 2.42 2.40 8 2.45 2.45 8

X (d)          Fitness Test 17.22 17.20 8 17.55 17.55 8

(6)  Equipment Hire#

(a)         Large (e.g. Judo mats) 7.01 7.00 8 7.15 7.15 8

(b)        Standard 2.11 2.10 8 2.15 2.15 8

(c)        Small 0.62 0.60 8 0.65 0.65 8

(7)  Dance Studio

CM               -  Peak 27.22 27.20 8 27.75 27.75 8

CM               -  Off Peak 17.84 17.85 8 18.20 18.20 8

6 EXETER ARENA

(1)      Arena Hire (Hourly)#

CM                 -  Off Peak - Weekdays (before 6pm) 34.59 34.60 8 35.30 35.30 8

CM                 -  Peak - Weekdays (after 6pm) 47.39 47.40 8 48.35 48.35 8

CM                 -  Weekends/Bank Holidays 59.03 59.05 8 60.20 60.20 8

(2)      Stadium Hire

Basic Package

*1 Half Day     - Off Peak Weekdays (Before 6pm) 221.33 221.35 8 225.75 225.75 8

*2 Half Day     - Peak Weekdays (after 6pm) 285.34 285.35 8 291.05 291.05 8

*3 Whole Day - Weekends/Bank Holidays 628.07 628.05 8 640.65 640.65 8

*1 Includes 5hrs x track Hire @ Hire rate Improvement fund contribution 40.00 Improvement fund contribution 40.80

*2 Includes 5hrs x track Hire @ Hire rate Improvement fund contribution 40.00 Improvement fund contribution 40.80

*3 Includes 9hrs x track Hire @ Hire rate Improvement fund contribution 80.00 Improvement fund contribution 81.60

Hire of Full Competition Equipment Above Basic Package (per item) 5.04 5.05 8 5.15 5.15 8

(3)      Hire of Officals Cabin

Hire of Officals Cabin per day/event max charge 25.20 25.20 8 25.70 25.70 8

(4)      Floodlights (Per Hour or Part thereof)#

CM                 -  Full 16.57 16.55 8 16.90 16.90 8

CM                 -  Training 12.23 12.25 8 12.45 12.45 8

(5)      Casual Use (including changing/shower use)

(a)           Adult 

                 -  Peak 2.82 2.80 8 2.90 2.90 8

X                  -  Off Peak 1.97 1.95 8 2.00 2.00 8

(b)          Under 18's/Senior Citizen

                 -  Peak 1.35 1.35 8 1.40 1.40 8

X                  -  Off Peak 0.80 0.80 8 0.80 0.80 8

(6)      Casual Use of Field Event Equipment

Price per piece of equipment per hour

Pole Vault 10.08 10.10 8 10.30 10.30 8

High Jump, Long Jump 5.04 5.05 8 5.15 5.15 8

Small Items - Javelins, shot putts, discus 1.00 1.00 8 1.05 1.05 8

(7)      Annual Tickets # (Available to LeisureCard holders/Incentive Scheme Members)

(a)           Adult 

No charge No charge

Page 33



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

X                 -  Off Peak only 58.80 58.80 8 60.00 60.00 8

                -  All Other Times 97.76 97.75 8 99.70 99.70 8

(b)          Under 18's/Senior Citizen

X                 -  Off Peak only 29.45 29.45 8 30.05 30.05 8

                -  All Other Times 49.06 49.05 8 50.05 50.05 8

(8)      Soccer Pitch Match Hire (4 hour period)#

(a)           Off Peak (weekday before 6.00pm)

CM                  -  Adult 46.21 46.20 8 47.15 47.15 8

CM                  -  Under 18's 23.07 23.05 8 23.55 23.55 8

(b)           Peak (weekends, Bank Holidays and evenings after 6.00pm)

CM                  -  Adult 265.48 265.50 8 270.80 270.80 8

CM                  -  Under 18's 31.91 31.90 8 32.55 32.55 8

(9)      Gymnasium/Fitness Studio

X                   -  Induction 10.48 10.50 8 10.70 10.70 8

X                   -  Adult 4.28 4.30 8 4.35 4.35 8

X                   - Under 18's/Senior Citizen 2.42 2.40 8 2.45 2.45 8

X (10)      Shower 2.30 2.30 8 2.35 2.35 8

Notes:

Equipment Use Charges are retained by the contractor and used to replace equipment at the facility additional to annual budget

Improvement fund contribution is deducted from hirers within Exeter, income is used to fund facility improvements not contractually required

7 NORTHBROOK APPROACH GOLF COURSE

X (a)             Per Round - Adult 4.43 4.45 8 4.55 4.55 8

X (b)             Per Round - Junior/Senior Citizen 2.99 3.00 8 3.05 3.05 8

(b)             Per Ball # 1.91 1.90 8 1.95 1.95 8

(c)             Per Pencil # 0.10 0.10 8 0.10 0.10 8

8 PYRAMIDS SWIMMING AND LEISURE CENTRE

(1)   Swimming Pools

X (a)      Adult Swim Per Session 2.99 3.00 8 3.05 3.05 8

X (b)      Under 18's/Senior Citizen Per Session 2.33 2.35 8 2.35 2.35 8

X                  -  50+ Swims - Special Sessions only 2.53 2.55 8 2.60 2.60 8

X (c)      shower 2.99 3.00 8 3.05 3.05 8

(d)      Hire of Pool (per hour)#

CM                   -  Occasional Club/Voluntary Group 102.43 102.45 8 104.50 104.50 8

CM                   -  Regular Club/Voluntary Group 63.25 63.25 8 64.50 64.50 8

                  -  Gala requiring pool closure during

                                          public session 191.69 191.70 8 195.50 195.50 8

CM                   -  Early morning club training per lane 12.99 13.00 8 13.25 13.25 8

CM                   -  Learner pool 51.90 51.90 8 52.95 52.95 8

(e)      Season Tickets 

                  -  3 months Adult 69.35 69.35 8 70.75 70.75 8

                  -  3 months Under 18's/Senior Citizen 34.66 34.65 8 35.35 35.35 8

                  -  3 months Early Morning Swim Club 58.44 58.45 8 59.60 59.60 8

(2)   Fitness Studio

X                   -  Induction Courses 10.31 10.30 8 10.50 10.50 8

X                   -  Adult per session 4.43 4.45 8 4.55 4.55 8

X                   -  Under 18's/Senior Citizen per session 2.42 2.40 8 2.45 2.45 8

(3)   Sauna

X                   -  Sauna Senior Citizen (off peak only) 3.74 3.75 8 3.80 3.80 8

X                   -  Sauna (per 2 hour session) 5.41 5.40 8 5.50 5.50 8

9 NORTHBROOK SWIMMING POOL

(1)      Main Pool Hire (per hour)#

                 - Weekday 9am-4pm 20.60 20.60 8 21.00 21.00 8

CM                  - Weekday Opening - 9am, 4pm-Close 45.02 45.00 8 45.90 45.90 8

(2)      Casual Swims

X                  - Adult Swim Per Session 2.30 2.30 8 2.35 2.35 8

X                  - Under 18's/Senior Citizen Swim Per Session 1.91 1.90 8 1.95 1.95 8

10 RIVERSIDE LEISURE CENTRE

(1)     Swimming Pools

X (a)          Adult Swim per session 2.99 3.00 8 3.05 3.05 8

X (b)          Under 18's / senior citizen per session 2.33 2.35 8 2.35 2.35 8

X (c)          50+ special sessions 2.53 2.55 8 2.60 2.60 8

X (d)          Shower 2.99 3.00 8 3.05 3.05 8

(e)          Hire of Pool (per hour)#

CM                -Occasional club/Voluntary Group 102.45 102.45 8 104.50 104.50 8

CM                -Regular club/Voluntary Group 63.27 63.25 8 64.55 64.55 8

               -Gala requiring pool closure during public session 191.70 191.70 8 195.55 195.55 8

CM                -Early morning club training per lane 12.99 13.00 8 13.25 13.25 8

CM                -Learner Pool 51.92 51.90 8 52.95 52.95 8

(f)         Season Tickets 

             - 3 months Adult 69.35 69.35 8 70.75 70.75 8

             - 3 months Under 18's/Senior Citizen 34.65 34.65 8 35.35 35.35 8

             - 3 months Early Morning Swim Club 58.42 58.40 8 59.60 59.60 8

(2)    Fitness

X              -Induction 10.31 10.30 8 10.50 10.50 8

Page 34



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

X              -Adult per session 8.04 8.05 8 8.20 8.20 8

X              -Under 18's/Senior Citizen per session 4.33 4.35 8 4.40 4.40 8

(3)    Health Suite

X         - Sauna/Steam/Jacuzzi/Swim 8.04 8.05 8 8.20 8.20 8

(4)    Squash (per court per 45 mins)

             -Peak 6.39 6.40 8 6.50 6.50 8

X              -Off peak 5.16 5.15 8 5.25 5.25 8

(5)    Main Hall

(a)        half hall per hour session (5-a-side, volleyball etc)

CM               -  Peak 28.87 28.85 8 29.45 29.45 8

CM               -  Off Peak 20.42 20.40 8 20.80 20.80 8

(b)        full hall per hour session (basketball etc)

CM              -Peak 57.02 57.00 8 58.15 58.15 8

CM              -Off peak 43.31 43.30 8 44.15 44.15 8

(6)    Badminton (per hour session)

             -Peak 8.82 8.80 8 9.00 9.00 8

X              -Off peak 6.19 6.20 8 6.30 6.30 8

(7)    Equipment Hire#

             -large (eg Judo mats) 7.01 7.00 8 7.15 7.15 8

             -Racket/Football Hire 2.11 2.10 8 2.15 2.15 8

             -Small (eg Table Tennis Bat) 0.62 0.60 8 0.65 0.65 8

(8)    Lower Dance Studio (per hour session)

CM              -Peak 46.61 46.60 8 47.55 47.55 8

CM              -Off peak 31.76 31.75 8 32.40 32.40 8

(9)    Upper Activity Room (per hour session)

CM              -Peak 33.10 33.10 8 33.75 33.75 8

CM              -Off peak 20.42 20.40 8 20.80 20.80 8

11 WONFORD SPORTS CENTRE

(1)      Main Hall (per hour session)

          (volleyball, basketball, 5-a-side etc)

CM                 -  Peak 38.26 38.25 8 39.00 39.00 8

CM                 -  Off Peak 27.89 27.90 8 28.45 28.45 8

(2)      Badminton (per hour session)

                 -  Peak 8.82 8.80 8 9.00 9.00 8

X                  -  Off Peak 6.19 6.20 8 6.30 6.30 8

(3)      Outdoor Floodlit Area (per hour session)

CM                  -  Peak 24.18 24.20 8 24.65 24.65 8

CM                  -  Off Peak 18.92 18.90 8 19.30 19.30 8

CM                  -  Floodlights 3.87 3.85 8 3.95 3.95 8

X (4)      Shower 2.42 2.40 8 2.45 2.45 8

(5)      Sauna

X (a)          Sauna (Block Booking) 15.18 15.20 8 15.50 15.50 8

X (b)          Sauna 5.41 5.40 8 5.50 5.50 8

(6)      Fitness Studio

X (a)           Induction Course 10.31 10.30 8 10.50 10.50 8

X (b)          Adult per session 4.28 4.30 8 4.35 4.35 8

X (c)          Under 18's/Senior Citizen per session 2.42 2.40 8 2.45 2.45 8

X (d)          Fitness Test 17.22 17.20 8 17.55 17.55 8

(7)   Equipment Hire#

(a)          Large Equipment (e.g. Judo mats) 7.01 7.00 8 7.15 7.15 8

(b)          Racket/Ball Hire 2.11 2.10 8 2.15 2.15 8

(c)          Table Tennis Bat Hire 0.63 0.65 8 0.65 0.65 8

(12)      Activity Room 12.22 12.20 8 12.35 12.35 8

12 GP REFERRAL SCHEME #

(1)        Weekly Payment

X              - Assessment 8.51 8.50 8 8.70 8.70 8

X              - Session 2.95 2.95 8 3.00 3.00 8

X              - Reassessment 3.06 3.05 8 3.10 3.10 8

(2)        Course

X              - 20 sessions including assessment, sessions and 59.14 59.15 8 60.30 60.30 8

               reassessment

J PARKS AND RECREATION GROUNDS

(1)  Soccer and Rugby

Hire of Pitch incl. Changing Accommodation (discount 66% without accomodation)

(a)    Standard charge (single game) 71.89 14.38 83.27 3 72.97 14.59                     87.56          8

(b)    Seasonal Licence (Standard Charge) 954.10 -                         954.10        8 968.41 -                         968.41        8

(c)     Half Season 60% of Standard Charge 580.80 -                         580.80        8

(d)      Under 18's (Voluntary Organisations only)

Page 35



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

                     -  Standard pitch 75% of Standard Charge 75% of Standard Charge

                     -  Mini pitch 30% of Standard Charge 30% of Standard Charge

(e)     Practice Areas

   -  marked pitch (Season) 954.10 -                         954.10        8 968.00 -                         968.00        8

   -  unmarked area (Season) 20% of Standard Charge 193.60 -                         193.60        8

   -  Single Sessions (marked pitch or unmarked area) 76.13 15.23                     91.35          3 77.25 15.45                     92.70          3

(f)     Cancellation (Admin. Charge) 10% of Standard Charge 10% of Standard Charge

(g)      Mid-Season Changes of Use 345.10 -                         345.10        8 350.00 -                         350.00        8

(2)  Tennis

Tennis is free on City Council courts, on the understanding that players restrict games to one hour in total 

if others are waiting to play.  The Council retains the right to restrict the free use of the courts on occasions,

and to allocate courts for use by others.  Fees are charged for organised use.

(a)     Organised use (eg educational establishments) 7.61 1.52                       9.14            3 7.71 1.54                       9.25            3

         (Per Court, Per Hour)

(b)    Events and organised use Negotiable Negotiable 3

(3)  Bowls

(a)     Per Player, Per Hour

          -  X-Card Holder 2.54 0.51                       3.05            3 2.58 0.52                       3.10            3

          -  Non X-Card Holder 5.08 1.02                       6.09            3 5.17 1.03                       6.20            3

(b)     Season

          Adult, Under 18's, Senior Citizen

          -  X-Card Holder 53.29 10.66                     63.95          3 54.09 10.82                     64.90          3

          -  Non X-Card Holder 59.20 11.84                     71.05          3 60.09 12.02                     72.10          3

(c)      Use of green for County Competitions etc. 8.45 1.69                       10.15          3 8.58 1.72                       10.30          3

           (per rink hour)

(d)      Season charge payable by clubs operating from 385.70 -                         385.70        8 392.00 -                         392.00        8

           bowling greens

(4)  Croquet

(a)     Per Player, Per Hour

         (Incl. Equipment Hire)

          -  X-Card Holder 2.54 0.51                       3.05            3 2.58 0.52                       3.10            3

          -  Non X-Card Holder 5.08 1.02                       6.09            3 5.17 1.03                       6.20            3

(b)     Season

          Adult, Under 18's, Senior Citizen

          -  X-Card Holder 53.29 10.66                     63.95          3 54.17 10.83                     65.00          3

          -  Non X-Card Holder 59.20 11.84                     71.05          3 60.00 12.00                     72.00          3

(c)      Season charge payable by clubs operating from 227.77 -                         227.77        8 231.00 -                         231.00        8

           croquet lawns

(5)   Petanque

Annual charge payable by clubs operating from 81.20 -                         81.20          8 82.40 -                         82.40          8

 petanque terrain

(6)   Allotments

Charges are payable in September, or on commencement of the tenancy.

Tenancies commencing after 1 April are charged at 50%

From 1st September 2017

Allotment letting fee - payable on initial letting 8.88 1.78                       10.66          3 8.33 1.67                       10.00          3

Site Key deposit 8.88 1.78                       10.66          3 8.33 1.67                       10.00          3

(a)     Normal fee per 25sq. metres (approx. 1 rod) 6.50 -                         6.50            8 6.60 -                         6.60            8

(b)     Senior Citizen per 25 sq. Metres (first 250 sq. mtrs only) 3.25 -                         3.25            8 3.30 -                         3.30            8

applies only to exisitng tenants eligible before Sept 2014

(c)      Sites without water 5.18 -                         5.18            8 5.25 -                         5.25            8

Partnership arrangements with Allotment Associations By negotiation By negotiation

(7) Events

Fees are calculated to cover costs occurred in

 managing events on Council land. Other terms and  

conditions will apply eg specific insurance cover.

Fees for long running events by negotiation

Commercial events

Large circus/funfair (more than 200 seated/5 rides)

Set -up 258.83 51.77                     310.59        3 263.33 52.67                     316.00        3

Rate per day 353.73 70.75                     424.47        3 359.17 71.83                     431.00        3

Small circus/funfair (less than 200 seated/5 rides)

Set -up 172.55 34.51                     207.06        3 175.83 35.17                     211.00        3

Page 36



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

Rate per day 232.94 46.59                     279.53        3 236.67 47.33                     284.00        3

Major event (in excess of 1000 persons attending)

Set -up fee 301.96 60.39                     362.36        3 306.67 61.33                     368.00        3

Rate per day 414.12 82.82                     496.94        3 420.83 84.17                     505.00        3

Minor event (less than 1000 persons attending)

Set -up 120.79 24.16                     144.94        3 122.50 24.50                     147.00        3

Rate per day 172.55 34.51                     207.06        3 165.00 33.00                     198.00        3

Events organised by Charities and "Not for profit" organisations

Large event ( in excess of 1000 persons attending)

Set -up 69.02 13.80                     82.82          3 70.00 14.00                     84.00          3

Rate per day 120.79 24.16                     144.94        3 122.50 24.50                     147.00        3

Medium event (500 to 1000 persons attending)

Rate per day 120.79 24.16                     144.94        3 122.50 24.50                     147.00        3

Refundable deposit 120.79 24.16                     144.94        3 122.50 24.50                     147.00        3

Small event  (less than 500 persons attending)

Refundable deposit 120.79 24.16                     144.94        3 122.50 24.50                     147.00        3

Community events

Large events (in excess of 1000 persons attending) 60.39 12.08                     72.47          3 61.67 12.33                     74.00          3

Refundable deposit 120.79 24.16                     144.94        3 122.50 24.50                     147.00        3

Small events (less than 1000 persons attending)

Refundable deposit 120.79 24.16                     144.94        3 122.50 24.50                     147.00        3

Commercial use of open space (pitch fees) dependant upon location By Negotiation 8 or 3

K CEMETERIES

(1)     Purchase Fees for the Exclusive

          Right of Burial

          Purchase of burial rights for 30 years, extendable thereafter

Extension of Rights per 10 years 340.03 -                         340.03        9 345.00 -                         345.00        9

Children's Grave Extension of Rights per 10 years 152.25 -                         152.25        9 154.00 -                         154.00        9

          - Adult Lawn Grave (Exwick BH/Topsham) 1,015.00 -                         1,015.00     9 1,023.00 -                         1,023.00     9

          - Children's Section 456.75 -                         456.75        9 464.00 -                         464.00        9

          - Single depth graves double width (Higher) 1,507.28 -                         1,507.28     9 1,530.00 -                         1,530.00     9

(2)     Interment Fees

(a)         Interment of foetal remains FOC FOC

(b)        Stillborn child or child whose FOC FOC

             age at time of death did not exceed

             one month (in grave for which no

             right of burial granted)

(c)        Children under 16 years of age:

              (i)    In existing children's section FOC FOC

              (ii)   In adult section at depth not

                      exceeding 2.4 meters (8 ft approx) 155.30 -                         155.30        9 158.00 -                         158.00        9

(d)         Any person whose age at time of 

              death was 16 years or more:

              Depth not exceeding 2.4 metres (8 ft approx) 893.20 -                         893.20        9 907.00 -                         907.00        9

(e)          Cremated remains:

               Interment of child's ashes FOC FOC

               Buried in a grave or special section 167.48 -                         167.48        9 170.00 -                         170.00        9

               Scattering ashes 106.58 -                         106.58        9 108.00 -                         106.58        9

(3)    Grant of right to erect a memorial

               Lawn memorial 385.70 -                         385.70        9 391.00 -                         391.00        9

               Vases 135.00 -                         135.00        9 137.00 -                         137.00        9

               Cremation Tablets 182.70 -                         182.70        9 186.00 -                         186.00        9

               Additional Inscriptions 91.35 -                         91.35          9 93.00 -                         93.00          9

               Child's headstone 64.96 -                         64.96          9 66.00 -                         66.00          9

          NB Before any memorial is erected on 

          a grave, the exclusive right of burial

          must be purchased

(4)    Gardens of remembrance

Higher cemetery 

Scattering & Central plaque 131.95 -                         131.95        9 134.00 -                         134.00        9

Pinwheel 624.23 -                         624.23        9 633.00 -                         633.00        9

Desk Vase Tablet area 639.45 -                         639.45        9 650.00 -                         650.00        9

Extension small garden 639.45 -                         639.45        9 650.00 -                         650.00        9

Extension Large Garden 1,289.05 -                         1,289.05     9 1,300.00 -                         1,300.00     9

Exwick cemetery

Scattering & vase 370.48 -                         370.48        9 375.00 -                         375.00        9

Desk Vase Tablet 639.45 -                         639.45        9 650.00 -                         650.00        9

Page 37



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

Tablets 558.25 -                         558.25        9 567.00 -                         567.00        9

Topsham cemetery

Ashes section 639.45 -                         639.45        9 650.00 -                         650.00        9

(5)   Memorials other than on a grave

         Memorial bench with plaque 10yr lease 1,116.50 223.30                   1,339.80     3 1,133.33 226.67                   1,360.00     3

         Plaque on existing bench - 10 yr lease 279.13 55.83                     334.95        3 283.33 56.67                     340.00        3

        

(6)  Search of burials registers (except in the

          case of funeral directors and solicitors

          making arrangements in respect of a 

          recent death including location of grave on site.)

         Maximum Charge 131.95 -                         131.95        9 135.00 -                         135.00        9

          Certified copy of an entry in burial registers FOC FOC

(7)  Transfer of Exclusive Rights of Burial 

         Transfer of rights 43.14 8.63                       51.77          3 44.17 8.83                       53.00          3

L PUBLIC CONVENIENCES

Radar Keys 4.00 0.80                       4.80            3 4.00 0.80                       4.80            3

M CLEANSING SERVICES

Please contact the Cleansing Department on 01392 665010 to arrange these services

(1) Trade Refuse and Recycling collections, Hazardous and Clinical Waste

Collections of trade refuse, trade recycling, hazardous waste (including refrigeration equipment) and 

clinical waste are available.  Please contact 01392 665010 for charges.

(2)  Sale of Composters & Compost

Recommended to be sold at cost, current charges:

Composters

Compost Bin 220L 8.33 1.67                       10.00          3 8.33 1.67                       10.00          3

Compost Bin 330L 8.33 1.67                       10.00          3 8.33 1.67                       10.00          3

Compost bins are avialable to collect from Civic Centre or subject to a £6 delivery charge

Prices of composters may change for temporary special offers at the discretion of the Cleansing and Fleet Manager

(3)  Disposal of motor car 41.67 8.33 50.00          3 42.50 8.50                       51.00          3

(4)  Bulky items

We collect a limited number of bulky items from Domestic premises for a standard charge

For collection of more than four items, larger quantities of bulky or loose items, or collections from business premises,

an hourly charge will be made

Standard charge for items presented at boundary of property or in front garden or drive

One bulky item or up to four sacks of domestic waste 20.00 -                         20.00          9 21.00 -                         21.00          9

Per additional item 10.00 -                         10.00          9 10.00 -                         10.00          9

Additional charge for items collected from inside the property (i.e. 

from a shed, garage, garden or house) per booking

10.00 -                         10.00          9 10.00 -                         10.00          9

Hourly rate for collection (minimum charge - 1 hour)

  from any premises 98.50 -                         98.50          9 100.00 -                         100.00        9

Surchage for disposal of DIY-type waste - to be added to the above items where applicable 

Roofing felt (per bag/roll) 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Insulation materials (per Sheet/bag) 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Shower screen (per item) 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Bath or shower tray (plastic, fibreglass or composite) per single item 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Single plastic door or door frame , with or without glass 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Single plastic door or door frame , with or without glass, plus frame 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Double plastic door or door frame, with or without glass 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Plasterboard, including plaster and gypsum related products (per sheet/bag) 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Tyres (commercial vehicle tyres not accepted) - per tyre 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Plastic guttering/pies/facia etc (up to 5 lengths/pieces) 3.50 -                         3.50            9 3.70 -                         3.70            9

Soil & Rubble - per sacks (max 3 sacks per booking) 2.00 -                         2.00            9 2.15 -                         2.15            9

(5)  Garden Waste

Hire of 240l brown wheelie bin for year 44.00 -                         44.00          9 45.00 -                         45.00          9

        Additional 240l bins at same address 34.00 -                         34.00          9 34.50 -                         34.50          9

Hire of 120l brown wheelie bin for year 34.00 -                         34.00          9 34.50 -                         34.50          9

        Additional 120l bins at same address 24.00 -                         24.00          9 24.50 -                         24.50          9

Biodegradable sacks - each (available from 2.00 -                         2.00            9 2.00 -                         2.00            9

Council offices)

(6) Clear bags for domestic recyling 2.00 -                         2.00            9 2.10 -                         2.10            9

(7) Domestic Refuse containers

The following charges will be applied for the supply and delivery of domestic refuse bins

Page 38



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

Replacement or change of ONE container:

Green (recycling) bin 140-litre or 240-litre 12.00 -                         12.00          9 12.00 -                         12.00          9

Green (recycling) caddy 55-litre (new chargeable item) 5.00 -                         5.00            9 5.00 -                         5.00            9

140 litre wheeled grey (residual) bin 27.00 -                         27.00          9 27.50 -                         27.50          9

180 litre wheeled grey (residual) bin 32.00 -                         32.00          9 32.50 -                         32.50          9

240 litre wheeled grey (residual) bin 37.00 -                         37.00          9 37.50 -                         37.50          9

Seagull-deterrent sack (new chargeable item) 5.00 -                         5.00            9 5.00 -                         5.00            9

Replacement or change of shared containers for communal bin stores:

360 litre wheeled grey (residual) bin 76.00 -                         76.00          9 77.50 -                         77.50          9

660 litre grey (residual) wheeled bin 252.00 -                         252.00        9 256.00 -                         256.00        9

1100 litre grey (residual) wheeled bin 295.00 -                         295.00        9 300.00 -                         300.00        9

80 litre static grey (residual) bin 13.00 2.60                       15.60          3 13.50 2.70                       16.20          3

Replacement or changed containers may have been previously used but will be cleaned before delivery.

Supply and delivery of a roll of 200 sacks for residual waste 13.75 2.75                       16.50          3 14.00 2.80                       16.80          3

(8) Graffiti Removal

Graffiti kit 38.82 7.76                       46.59          3 39.41 7.88                       47.29          3

(9) Mechanical Sweeper

Maximum per hour (may vary depending on size of machine used) 73.33 14.67                     88.00          3 74.43 14.89                     89.32          3

(10) Clearing After Events

Charge per hour (litter picking) 17.26 3.45                       20.71          3 17.51 3.50                       21.02          3

N PEST CONTROL

(1)      Rat Control

          Domestic premises, non domestic premises and rented accommodation - standard treatment 

          (Per hour or part) 48.33 9.67                       58.00          3 48.33 9.67                       58.00          3

           Out of hours (per hour or part) 68.33 13.67                     82.00          3 68.33 13.67                     82.00          3

(2)  Mouse Control

          Domestic premises, non domestic premises and rented accommodation - standard treatment 

          (Per hour or part) 48.33 9.67                       58.00          3 48.33 9.67                       58.00          3

           Out of hours (per hour of part) 68.33 13.67                     82.00          3 68.33 13.67                     82.00          3

(3)  Insect Control

       Wasps - during standard hours 48.33 9.67                       58.00          3 48.33 9.67                       58.00          3

                      - out of hours 68.33 13.67                     82.00          3 68.33 13.67                     82.00          3

       Bed  Bugs - during standard hours (one room) 90.00 18.00                     108.00        3 91.67 18.33                     110.00        3

                      - out of hours (one room) 120.00 24.00                     144.00        3 125.00 25.00                     150.00        3

                      - additional rooms - per room 55.83 11.17                     67.00          3 56.67 11.33                     68.00          3

       Fleas - One room 65.00 13.00                     78.00          3 66.67 13.33                     80.00          3

                      - additional rooms - per room 23.33 4.67                       28.00          3 25.00 5.00                       30.00          3

                      - out of hours (one room) 120.00 24.00                     144.00        3 125.00 25.00                     150.00        3

       Cockroaches - One room 90.00 18.00                     108.00        3 91.67 18.33                     110.00        3

                      - additional rooms - per room 55.00 11.00                     66.00          3 55.83 11.17                     66.99          3

                      - out of hours (one room) 120.00 24.00                     144.00        3 125.00 25.00                     150.00        3

       Other Insects - during standard hours

                      - minimum charge  72.50 14.50                     87.00          3 73.33 14.67                     88.00          3

                      (price on application for each treatment or treatment out of hours)

(4) Survey and Advice Visits

Survey and Advice Visits to premises 14.17 2.83                       17.00          3 15.00 3.00                       18.00          3

(this charge will be deducted from the final cost of the treatment if a treatment is undertaken)

 Annual contracts for pest control at the discretion of the Assistant Director (Environment)

*       Charges are normally on a payment before treatment basis. Where an account is rendered, 

          an additional charge of £20.00 is levied (inc VAT).

Charges may be waived by the Assistant Director (Environment) for public health reasons.

P DOG KENNELLING

(1) Reception (inc. transportation)

189.81 37.96                     227.77        3 192.67 38.53                     231.20        3

(2) Other Charges

Administration (should an account be

necessary in respect of kennelling) 17.76 3.55                       21.32          3 18.04 3.61                       21.65          3

50% charge during office hours for survey and advice visits and the destruction of public health pests i.e. mice, 

fleas, bedbugs and wasps where householder/tenant is on Income Support, Income Based Job Seeker’s Allowance, 

Income Related Employment and Support Allowance and Guaranteed Pension Credit     

Where a stray dog is taken to a kennel (chosen by the Assistant Director - 

Public Realm), the owner of the dog will be charged for the transportation 

costs, kennelling (up to 7 days) and a statutory fine of £25 on collecting the dog.

Page 39



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

Statutory additional charge (Environmental Protection 25.88 -                         25.88          9 26.30 -                         26.30          9

(Stray Dogs) Regulations 1992)

Kennelling and Veterinary care charged at cost

Returning Dog to Owner 43.14 8.63                       51.77          3 43.79 8.76                       52.55          3

Q HOME CALL

           Householders (per week) 3.77 0.75                       4.52            3 or 7 3.83 0.77                       4.60            3 or 7

           Keysafe service - per week 1.90 0.38                       2.29            3 or 7 1.96 0.39                       2.35            3 or 7

           Keysafe (purchase) 91.39 18.28                     109.66        3 or 7 92.75 18.55                     111.30        3 or 7

          Smoke detector - per week 0.92 0.18                       1.10            3 or 7 0.96 0.19                       1.15            3 or 7

          Heat detector - per week 1.15 0.23                       1.38            3 or 7 1.16 0.23                       1.40            3 or 7

          CO detector - per week 1.43 0.29                       1.72            3 or 7 1.46 0.29                       1.75            3 or 7

          Fall detector - per week 1.38 0.28                       1.65            3 or 7 1.42 0.28                       1.70            3 or 7

          Contracts / monitoring only - By negotiation

          Lone Worker monitoring - By negotiation

Ad hoc equipment installation charge (per hour or part) 27.46 5.49                       32.95          3 27.88 5.58                       33.45          3

R CCTV

Production of CCTV data to third parties in connection

with litigation (not Subject Access Requests) 156.50 31.30                     187.80        3 158.83 31.77                     190.60        3

S MISCELLANEOUS

(1)       Surrender of unfit foodstuffs

                  per hour or part 86.67 17.33                     104.00        3 87.50 17.50                     105.00        3

                  Regular inspections -

                  Annual terms to be agreed

(2)       Food Export Licence

                (Per hour or part) 

                 Plus analysts fee 84.00 -                         84.00          9 85.00 -                         85.00          9

(3)     Water Sampling  and Private Water Supplies

Statutory charges:

Sampling Visit Fee plus analysis 68.33 13.67                     82.00          3 75.00 15.00                     90.00          3

Private Water Supply Risk Assessment 175.00 35.00                     210.00        3 179.17 35.83                     215.00        3

Private Water Supply Investigation Costs 68.33 13.67                     82.00          3 83.33 16.67                     100.00        3

Private Water Supply Granting an Authorisation 68.33 13.67                     82.00          3 83.33 16.67                     100.00        3

(4)     Food Hygiene Courses

              Level 2 Award in Food Safety in Catering 48.00 -                         48.00          8 48.00 -                         48.00          8

              Level 3 Award in Food Safety in Catering 265.00 -                         265.00        8 265.00 -                         265.00        8

              Level 4 Award in Food Safety in Catering 485.00 -                         485.00        8 485.00 -                         485.00        8

              Level 3 Award in Food Safety Supervision in Retail 265.00 -                         265.00        8 265.00 -                         265.00        8

              Level 2 Award in Healthier Foods and Special Diets 48.00 -                         48.00          8 48.00 -                         48.00          8

              Food Safety Awareness Session 15.00 -                         15.00          8 15.00 -                         15.00          8

              Other Courses 135.00 -                         135.00        8 135.00 -                         135.00        8

              Safer Food Better Business Pack (include diary) 15.00 -                         15.00          8 15.00 -                         15.00          8

              Safer Food Better Business 12 month Diary Refill 5.00 -                         5.00            8 5.00 -                         5.00            8

(5)     Statements

               Factual Statements for

               Civil Proceedings 140.00 28.00                     168.00        3 141.67 28.33                     170.00        3

(6)     Health & Safety Courses

              Level 2 Award in Health & Safety 48.00 -                         48.00          8 48.00 -                         48.00          8

              Level 4 Award in Health and Safety 485.00 -                         485.00        8 485.00 -                         485.00        8

              Level 3 Award in Risk Assessment 185.00 -                         185.00        8 185.00 -                         185.00        8

              Principals in Manual Handling 38.00 -                         38.00          8 38.00 -                         38.00          8

              Health and Safety Awareness Session 15.00 -                         15.00          8 15.00 -                         15.00          8

(7)     Environmental Awareness Course 48.00 -                         48.00          8 48.00 -                         48.00          8

(8)     Environmental Management Course 495.00 -                         495.00        8 495.00 -                         495.00        8

Fees for other courses to be at the discretion of the Assistant Director (Environment).

Where an account is rendered, an additional charge of £20.00 is levied (inc VAT).

T LICENSING FEES - GENERAL

A NON RETURNABLE ADMINISTRATION FEE OF £50 INCLUDING VAT AT THE CURRENT RATE IS PAYABLE WITH

ALL NEW APPLICATIONS (INCLUDES KNOWLEDGE TEST)

(1)     Hackney carriage

          Vehicle Licence 335.00 -                         335.00        9 340.00 -                         340.00        9

          (Incl Plate & Survey Charge)

(2)     Hackney Carriage

          Driver's Licence and Identity card - 1 year 98.00 -                         98.00          9 99.00 -                         99.00          9

          Driver's Licence and Identity card - 3 year 233.00 -                         233.00        9 235.00 -                         235.00        9

(3)     Private Hire Operators Licence

Other peripheral devices charged at a miminum of 1.4% of unit cost price plus 

VAT per week including:

Page 40



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

          per annum 110.00 -                         110.00        9 112.00 -                         112.00        9

          5 year licence 475.00 -                         475.00        9 480.00 -                         480.00        9

(4)     Private Hire Vehicle Licence 

          (Incl. Plate) 260.00 -                         260.00        9 262.50 -                         262.50        9

(5)     Private Hire Drivers

          Driver's Licence and Identity card - 1 year 98.00 -                         98.00          9 99.00 -                         99.00          9

          Driver's Licence and Identity card - 3 year 233.00 -                         233.00        9 235.00 -                         235.00        9

-                         -             

(6)     Vehicle Licences and Plate - Transfer Fees 60.00 -                         60.00          9 60.00 -                         60.00          9

(7)      Additional Knowledge Test 33.33 6.67                       40.00          3 33.33 6.67                       40.00          3

(8)     Miscellaneous fees

               Replacement plate 30.00 -                         30.00          9 30.00 -                         30.00          9

               Missed appointments 30.00 6.00                       36.00          3 30.00 6.00                       36.00          3

(9)     Consents to Street Trade

            For up to 3 months 730.00 -                         730.00        9 730.00 -                         730.00        9

            For up to 6 months 1,045.00 -                         1,045.00     9 1,045.00 -                         1,045.00     9

            For up to 9 months 1,575.00 -                         1,575.00     9 1,575.00 -                         1,575.00     9

            For up to 12 months 1,825.00 -                         1,825.00     9 1,825.00 -                         1,825.00     9

Animal Welfare 

(10)    Animal Boarding Establishment

             Licence

            (a)     New Licence (inclusive of vets fees) 215.00 -                         215.00        9 218.00 -                         218.00        9

            (b)     Renewal (inclusive of vets fees) 215.00 -                         215.00        9 218.00 -                         218.00        9

            (c)     Renewal (exclusive of vets fees) 85.00 -                         85.00          9 86.00 -                         86.00          9

(11)     Pet Animals Licence

            (a)     New Licence (inclusive of vets fees) 215.00 -                         215.00        9 218.00 -                         218.00        9

            (b)     Renewal (inclusive of vets fees) 215.00 -                         215.00        9 218.00 -                         218.00        9

            (c)     Renewal (exclusive of vets fees) 85.00 -                         85.00          9 86.00 -                         86.00          9

(12)     Riding Establishments Licence

            Minimum charge (inclusive of vets fees) 495.00 -                         495.00        9 500.00 -                         500.00        9

            per horse in excess of 10 7.25 -                         7.25            9 7.25 -                         7.25            9

(13)     Dog Breeding Establishments Licence

            (a)     New Licence (inclusive of vets fees) 215.00 -                         215.00        9 218.00 -                         218.00        9

            (b)     Renewal (inclusive of vets fees) 215.00 -                         215.00        9 218.00 -                         218.00        9

            (c)     Renewal (exclusive of vets fees) 85.00 -                         85.00          9 86.00 -                         86.00          9

(14)     Dangerous Wild Animals Act*

            Licence Fee (inclusive of vets fees) 345.00 -                         345.00        9 345.00 -                         345.00        9

(15)     Sex Establishments Licence 3,700.00 -                         3,700.00     9 3,750.00 -                         3,750.00     9

(16)     Small Lotteries

            Statutory Charges

            (a)     Registration 40.00 -                         40.00          9 40.00 -                         40.00          9

            (b)     Renewal 20.00 -                         20.00          9 20.00 -                         20.00          9

(17)     Gambling Act 2005

Statutory charges:

(i)  Bingo

                - Provisional statement 2,745.00 -                         2,745.00     9 2,745.00 -                         2,745.00     9

                - New premises following provisional statement 1,060.00 -                         1,060.00     9 1,060.00 -                         1,060.00     9

                - New premises without provisional statement 3,215.00 -                         3,215.00     9 3,215.00 -                         3,215.00     9

                - Annual fee - First year only following fast track conversion 590.00 -                         590.00        9 590.00 -                         590.00        9

                - Annual fee - other than above 765.00 -                         765.00        9 765.00 -                         765.00        9

                - Variation 1,380.00 -                         1,380.00     9 1,380.00 -                         1,380.00     9

                - Transfer 945.00 -                         945.00        9 945.00 -                         945.00        9

                - Reinstatement 945.00 -                         945.00        9 945.00 -                         945.00        9

(ii)  Adult Gaming Centre

                - Provisional statement 1,530.00 -                         1,530.00     9 1,530.00 -                         1,530.00     9

                - New premises following provisional statement 1,178.00 -                         1,178.00     9 1,178.00 -                         1,178.00     9

                - New premises without provisional statement 2,000.00 -                         2,000.00     9 2,000.00 -                         2,000.00     9

               - Annual fee - First year only following fast track conversion 590.00 -                         590.00        9 590.00 -                         590.00        9

                - Annual fee - other than above 765.00 -                         765.00        9 765.00 -                         765.00        9

                - Variation 765.00 -                         765.00        9 765.00 -                         765.00        9

                - Transfer 945.00 -                         945.00        9 945.00 -                         945.00        9

                - Reinstatement 945.00 -                         945.00        9 945.00 -                         945.00        9

(iii)   Family Entertainment Centre

                - Provisional statement 765.00 -                         765.00        9 765.00 -                         765.00        9

                - New premises following provisional statement 1,120.00 -                         1,120.00     9 1,120.00 -                         1,120.00     9

                - New premises without provisional statement 1,768.00 -                         1,768.00     9 1,768.00 -                         1,768.00     9

               - Annual fee - First year only following fast track conversion 415.00 -                         415.00        9 415.00 -                         415.00        9

Page 41



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

                - Annual fee - other than above 590.00 -                         590.00        9 590.00 -                         590.00        9

                - Variation 790.00 -                         790.00        9 790.00 -                         790.00        9

                - Transfer 765.00 -                         765.00        9 765.00 -                         765.00        9

                - Reinstatement 765.00 -                         765.00        9 765.00 -                         765.00        9

(iv)   Betting Track

                - Provisional statement 710.00 -                         710.00        9 710.00 -                         710.00        9

                - New premises following provisional statement 2,060.00 -                         2,060.00     9 2,060.00 -                         2,060.00     9

                - New premises without provisional statement 2,060.00 -                         2,060.00     9 2,060.00 -                         2,060.00     9

                - Annual fee - other than above 736.00 -                         736.00        9 736.00 -                         736.00        9

                - Variation 1,000.00 -                         1,000.00     9 1,000.00 -                         1,000.00     9

                - Transfer 710.00 -                         710.00        9 710.00 -                         710.00        9

                - Reinstatement 710.00 -                         710.00        9 710.00 -                         710.00        9

(v)   Betting Other

                - Provisional statement 2,142.00 -                         2,142.00     9 2,142.00 -                         2,142.00     9

                - New premises following provisional statement 1,200.00 -                         1,200.00     9 1,200.00 -                         1,200.00     9

                - New premises without provisional statement 3,000.00 -                         3,000.00     9 3,000.00 -                         3,000.00     9

                - Annual fee - other than above 600.00 -                         600.00        9 600.00 -                         600.00        9

                - Variation 1,075.00 -                         1,075.00     9 1,075.00 -                         1,075.00     9

                - Transfer 860.00 -                         860.00        9 860.00 -                         860.00        9

                - Reinstatement 860.00 -                         860.00        9 860.00 -                         860.00        9

(vi)  Miscellaneous Premises Licence Fees:

                - Change of circumstances (statutory charge) 50.00 -                         50.00          9 50.00 -                         50.00          9

                - Copy of Licence 27.50 -                         27.50          9 27.50 -                         27.50          9

(vii)  Unlicensed FEC permits

               - Application fee 330.00 -                         330.00        9 330.00 -                         330.00        9

               - Application fee - existing operator 110.00 -                         110.00        9 110.00 -                         110.00        9

               - Renewal fee 330.00 -                         330.00        9 330.00 -                         330.00        9

               - Change of name 27.50 -                         27.50          9 27.50 -                         27.50          9

               - Copy of permit 15.00 -                         15.00          9 15.00 -                         15.00          9

(viii)  Automatic entitlement - Alcohol Licensed Premises

 

               - Notification of two machines 50.00 -                         50.00          9 50.00 -                         50.00          9

(ix)  Permit for more than two machines - Alcohol Licensed Premises

               - Application fee - existing operator 100.00 -                         100.00        9 100.00 -                         100.00        9

               - Application fee other than as above 150.00 -                         150.00        9 150.00 -                         150.00        9

               - Permit variation fee 100.00 -                         100.00        9 100.00 -                         100.00        9

               - Permit transfer fee 25.00 -                         25.00          9 25.00 -                         25.00          9

               - Annual fee 50.00 -                         50.00          9 50.00 -                         50.00          9

               - Change of name 25.00 -                         25.00          9 25.00 -                         25.00          9

               - Copy of permit 15.00 -                         15.00          9 15.00 -                         15.00          9

(x)  Prize Gaming

               - Application fee 300.00 -                         300.00        9 300.00 -                         300.00        9

               - Application fee - existing operator 100.00 -                         100.00        9 100.00 -                         100.00        9

               - Renewal fee 300.00 -                         300.00        9 300.00 -                         300.00        9

               - Change of name 25.00 -                         25.00          9 25.00 -                         25.00          9

               - Copy of permit 15.00 -                         15.00          9 15.00 -                         15.00          9

(xi)  Club Gaming and Club Machine Permits

               - Application fee - existing operator 110.00 -                         110.00        9 110.00 -                         110.00        9

               - Application fee other than as above 220.00 -                         220.00        9 220.00 -                         220.00        9

               - Permit variation fee 110.00 -                         110.00        9 110.00 -                         110.00        9

               - Permit fee - fast track 110.00 -                         110.00        9 110.00 -                         110.00        9

               - Renewal fee - other 220.00 -                         220.00        9 220.00 -                         220.00        9

               - Annual fee 50.00 -                         50.00          9 50.00 -                         50.00          9

               - Copy of permit 15.00 -                         15.00          9 15.00 -                         15.00          9

(18) Scrap Metal Licences

               - New Scrap Metal Site Licence 270.00 -                         270.00        9 270.00 -                         270.00        9

               - New Scrap Metal Collectors Licence 128.00 -                         128.00        9 128.00 -                         128.00        9

               - Scrap Metal Site Licence Renewal 180.00 -                         180.00        9 180.00 -                         180.00        9

               - Scrap Metal Collectors Licence Renewal 95.00 -                         95.00          9 95.00 -                         95.00          9

               - Vary Licence Holders Details 15.00 -                         15.00          9 15.00 -                         15.00          9

               - Vary Licensed Sites 65.00 -                         65.00          9 65.00 -                         65.00          9

               - Vary Site Manager 35.00 -                         35.00          9 35.00 -                         35.00          9

               - Vary Change from Site to Collector Licence 35.00 -                         35.00          9 35.00 -                         35.00          9

               - Vary Change from Collector to Site 120.00 -                         120.00        9 120.00 -                         120.00        9

(19)     Control of Skin Piercing etc

            Registration Fee - premises (inc one person) 95.00 -                         95.00          9 95.00 -                         95.00          9

                                               - extra person 45.00 -                         45.00          9 45.00 -                         45.00          9

(20)     Food Premises Register

            Copy of whole Register 640.00 -                         640.00        9 640.00 -                         640.00        9

            Copy of a section of Register 135.00 -                         135.00        9 135.00 -                         135.00        9

            Copy  of individual premises 16.00 -                         16.00          9 16.00 -                         16.00          9

U LICENSING FEES - LICENSING ACT 2003

Statutory charges:

(1)      Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates

Page 42



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

           Grant or variation

           Band A - No rateable value up to £4,300 100.00 -                         100.00        9 100.00 -                         100.00        9

           Band B - Rateable value £4,301 to £33,000 190.00 -                         190.00        9 190.00 -                         190.00        9

           Band C - Rateable value £33,301 to £87,000 315.00 -                         315.00        9 315.00 -                         315.00        9

           Band D - Rateable value £87,001 to £125,000 450.00 -                         450.00        9 450.00 -                         450.00        9

           Band C - Rateable value £125,001 and above 635.00 -                         635.00        9 635.00 -                         635.00        9

           Annual fee

           Band A - No rateable value up to £4,300 70.00 -                         70.00          9 70.00 -                         70.00          9

           Band B - Rateable value £4,301 to £33,000 180.00 -                         180.00        9 180.00 -                         180.00        9

           Band C - Rateable value £33,301 to £87,000 295.00 -                         295.00        9 295.00 -                         295.00        9

           Band D - Rateable value £87,001 to £125,000 320.00 -                         320.00        9 320.00 -                         320.00        9

           Band C - Rateable value £125,001 and above 350.00 -                         350.00        9 350.00 -                         350.00        9

           * An additional fee is payable for premises exclusively or primarily carrying on the supply of alcohol for 

              consumption on the premises for events of 5,000 or more persons.

(2)      Other charges

           Temporary event notice 21.00 -                         21.00          9 21.00 -                         21.00          9

           Theft, loss etc of premises licence or summary 10.50 -                         10.50          9 10.50 -                         10.50          9

           Application for provisional statement 315.00 -                         315.00        9 315.00 -                         315.00        9

           Notification of change of name and address 10.50 -                         10.50          9 10.50 -                         10.50          9

           Variation to specify individual as premises supervisor 23.00 -                         23.00          9 23.00 -                         23.00          9

          Transfer of premises licence 23.00 -                         23.00          9 23.00 -                         23.00          9

           Interim authority notice 23.00 -                         23.00          9 23.00 -                         23.00          9

           Theft, loss etc of certificate or summary 10.50 -                         10.50          9 10.50 -                         10.50          9

           Notification of change of name or alteration of club rules 10.50 -                         10.50          9 10.50 -                         10.50          9

           Change of relevant registered address of club 10.50 -                         10.50          9 10.50 -                         10.50          9

           Theft, loss etc of temporary event notice 10.50 -                         10.50          9 10.50 -                         10.50          9

           Grant or renewal of personal licence 34.00 -                         34.00          9 34.00 -                         34.00          9

           Theft, loss etc of personal licence 10.50 -                         10.50          9 10.50 -                         10.50          9

           Duty to notify change of name or address 10.50 -                         10.50          9 10.50 -                         10.50          9

           Right of freeholder to be notified 21.00 -                         21.00          9 21.00 -                         21.00          9

V HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION

Licence for Houses in multiple occupation with five or more residents occupying a property more 

than two storeys high (under the provisions of the Housing Act 2004)

(1)  Licensing

5 year licence - per property * 730.80 -                         730.80        9 740.00 -                         740.00        9

Processing a shorter term licence 730.80 -                         730.80        9 740.00 -                         740.00        9

Processing an application for a Temporary Exemption Notice 129.00 -                         128.91        9 131.00 -                         131.00        9

Fee for officers to draw property plans for application 129.00 -                         128.91        9 131.00 -                         131.00        9

Variation of licence 129.00 -                         128.91        9 131.00 -                         131.00        9

Revocation of licence 129.00 -                         128.91        9 131.00 -                         131.00        9

* A £125 discount on the mandatory HMO licensing fee will apply where landlords are accredited under a 

nationally recognised accreditation scheme

(2) Serving of notices and making of orders

Improvement notice 240.00 -                         240.56        9 244.00 -                         244.00        9

Hazard awareness notice 240.00 -                         240.56        9 244.00 -                         244.00        9

Prohibition order / Emergency prohibition order 240.00 -                         240.56        9 244.00 -                         244.00        9

Emergency remedial action 240.00 -                         240.56        9 244.00 -                         244.00        9

Demolition order 273.00 -                         273.04        9 277.00 -                         277.00        9

Reviewing suspended notice or order 134.00 -                         133.98        9 136.00 -                         136.00        9

Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm Penalty Charge Notice 5,000.00 -                         5,000.00     9

(3) Fee reductions

Full compliance with improvement notice within timescales 

        specified by the notice 240.00 -                         240.56        9 244.00 -                         244.00        9

Full compliance with prohibition order within timescales 

        specified by the order 240.00 -                         240.56        9 244.00 -                         244.00        9

Resolution of hazards within 3 months of receipt of

       Hazard awareness notice 240.00 -                         240.56        9 244.00 -                         244.00        9

(4) Immigration Visits

166.67 33.33                     200.00        3 169.17 33.83                     203.00        3

Inspection undertaken following a missed appointment or cancellation. Payment must be made in full before the inspection is carried out and is non returnable.63.33 12.67                     76.00          3 64.17 12.83                     77.00          3

(5) Additional Licensing for Certain Types of Houses in Multiple Occupation

710.00 -                         558.25        9 720.00 -                         720.00        9

2 Flats* 860.00 -                         710.50        9 870.00 -                         870.00        9

3 Flats* 1,010.00 -                         862.75        9 1,025.00 -                         1,025.00     9

4 Flats* 1,165.00 -                         1,015.00     9 1,180.00 -                         1,180.00     9

5 to 7 Flats* 1,320.00 -                         1,167.25     9 1,340.00 -                         1,340.00     9

8 to 10 Flats* 1,470.00 -                         1,319.50     9 1,490.00 -                         1,490.00     9

10 or more Flats* As above, plus £150 per additional flat 9 9

* Discounts available:

1 Flat* (per flat; in the case of flats in multiple occupation in a mixed used 

building with up to 5 tenants, additional £100 per tenant thereafter)

Pre immigration visit to determine the suitability of a premises for occupation 

including a full HHSRS inspection and production of a letter confirming the 

outcome of that visit. Payment must be made in full before the inspection is 

carried out and is non returnable.

Page 43



APPENDIX 3

1.015

Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT Fee VAT @ 20% Total VAT

£  p £    p £     p Code £  p £    p £     p Code

2016-17 Proposed Charges for 2017-18

(100.00) -                         (101.50) 9 (100.00) -                         (100.00) 9

- Early registration discount (50.00) -                         (50.75) 9 (50.00) -                         (50.00) 9

- Accreditation / landlord association discount (125.00) -                         (126.88) 9 (125.00) -                         (125.00) 9

- Single ownership discount (all flats need to be under one ownership for this 

discount to apply) No discount applied where there are fewer  than 2 flats

Page 44



Final 

 

 

REPORT TO PLACE SCRUTINY  
Date of Meeting: 12 January 2017 
 
REPORT TO EXECUTIVE  
Date of Meeting: 14 February 2017 
 
REPORT TO COUNCIL 
Date of Meeting: 21 February 2017 
 
Report of: Assistant Director Environment 

Title: Proposals for the Implementation of a Public Spaces Protection Order 
 
Is this a Key Decision?  
 
Yes 
 
Is this an Executive or Council Function? 
 
Council 
  
1. What is the report about? 
 
1.1. To advise Members on the consultation responses and subsequent consideration 

given to the implementation of a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO or Order) in 
the City Centre area of Exeter. 

 
1.2. To make recommendations on the implementation of a Public Spaces Protection 

Order. 
 
2. Recommendations:  
 
2.1 That Scrutiny Place and Executive supports and Council approves: 
 

a) the implementation of a Public Space Protection Order, in the area defined by the 
attached map (Appendix 1A), with the restrictions (contained in Appendix 1B), for 
a period of 3 years from the commencement date of 1 June 2017;  

 
b) this Order to replace the Designated Public Places Order that currently exists in 

the City Centre to control the problematic consumption of alcohol within public 
places, and which is contained within the boundary of the proposed Public 
Spaces Protection Order; 

 
c) that officers work with the Police and Exeter Community Safety Partnership in the 

development of an enforcement and positive/restorative pathway protocol for the 
Public Spaces Protection Order, together with a supporting training programme. 
The purpose of this is to provide clear guidance on what action is deemed 
appropriate, proportionate, reasonable and compassionate, with particular regard 
given to the rights of freedom of expression and freedom of assembly as set out 
in articles 10 and 11 of the Convention on Human Rights;  

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



  

 

d) the adoption of a zero penalty fee where a recipient of a fixed penalty notice 
issued for a breach or the PSPO commits to the option of an Acceptable 
Behaviour Contract contained within and offered by the respective fixed penalty 
notice;  

 
e) that any funding received by the Council from fixed penalty notices issued for a 

breach of any PSPO will be ring-fenced for programmes to address anti-social 
behaviour and the funding administered by the Exeter Community Safety 
Partnership; and 

 
f) that officers bring back a report to Scrutiny Place after 6 months of any Order 

being implemented as to its operation and effectiveness in reducing the 
problematic anti-social behaviour it seeks to manage together with any negative 
or unforeseen impacts that it may develop, and any recommendations for varying 
or discharging the Order. 

 
3. Reasons for the recommendations: 
 
3.1 There is justification for the Order based on intelligence from Devon & Cornwall 

Police, the Council, and the Exeter Community Safety Partnership, together with 
information from complaints made by the public to the Council, a survey carried out 
amongst members of the Business Improvement District (BID) in the Autumn of 2015 
(Appendix 3D), from the four months of substantive public consultation about the 
proposed PSPO, ending 29 February 2016 (Appendix 2A), and from more recent 
feedback from residents and businesses in open public meetings held in December 
2016 (Appendix 3E).  From this information it is clear that the prevalence of persistent 
and problematic anti-social behaviour from the issues that the proposed Order seeks 
to control, is relatively high in the proposed area of the Order when compared with 
other parts of Exeter. 
 

3.2 Data from complaints to the Police and Council, Control Room CCTV data (Appendix 
3A) and Police data (Appendix 3B & 3C), together with views collated through a 
survey of retailers in the Business Improvement District (Appendix 3D), responses 
made to the PSPO public consultation (Appendix 2A, 2C, & 2D), and feedback for 
open public meetings in December 2016 (Appendix 3E) show there is evidence that 
these anti-social behaviours are having or are likely to have a detrimental impact on 
the quality of life of those in the locality, i.e. residents, workers and visitors situated 
within the proposed Order area. These anti-social activities have persisted over many 
months and are continuing at a level that is unreasonable and justifies the restrictions 
proposed in the Order. 

 
3.3 The control mechanisms offered by the proposed Order will either introduce a control 

measure where one does not exist at present, or provide an alternative, more 
effective control measure than currently exists, and one that does not necessarily 
criminalise a perpetrator in breach of the Order. Furthermore, when applied in 
conjunction with other interventions, it can be used to engender positive behaviour 
change by offering the option of a restorative or positive alternative to a penalty fine 
(e.g. Lincoln Council have crafted a much reduced fixed penalty fee for those users 
of new psychoactive substances (NPS’s) who actively take up the offer of addiction 
services). In this regard the option of agreeing to a positive pathway by means of 
signing an Acceptable Behaviour Contract (ABC), will normally be included within the 
fixed penalty notice (FPN), so that there is a positive/restorative option alongside the 
punitive option of a penalty.  

Page 46



  

 

 
3.4 Following the extensive public consultation from November 2015 to February 2016, 

the anti-social behaviours that the proposed Order would seek to control within the 
defined area of public space include: 
 

 the taking of intoxicants (alcohol, new psychoactive substances commonly known 
as ‘legal highs’ and other stimulants); 

 individuals or groups causing anti-social behaviour;  

 urinating in the street; and 

 aggressive begging 
 

3.5 Whilst there is also evidence of problematic anti-social behaviour associated with 
street encampments, it is clear from the public consultation that currently there is 
insufficient public support for the inclusion of powers to control such within any Order, 
with only 17% of responses in favour of restrictions on street encampments. Whilst 
the original restrictions were deliberately crafted to distinguish between those that are 
sleeping rough (which in itself is not anti-social) and instead attempted to focus on 
the anti-social manifestations of encampments when they interfere with the lawful use 
of a public space by other members of the public or property owners (e.g. obstructing 
access to a building or deterring use of part of a park), it is apparent that many 
respondents felt that this was specifically aimed at members of the street community 
as a means of removing them from the streets, rather than dealing with the anti-social 
behaviour that can manifest when other lawful users seek to use that space.  It is 
important that there is general public support for the introduction and implementation 
of any PSPO, therefore, the prohibitions and restrictions regarding street 
encampments that were originally included in the proposed Order for consultation, 
have now been removed from the set of controls recommended in this report. 
  

3.6 In relation to the proposed control over begging in general, there was insufficient 
public support for this proposal to be included in its entirety. However, on further 
examination, it is accepted by officers and partners of the Community Safety 
Partnership that there is a distinction between ‘passive begging’ (e.g. where 
someone is sat at a shop entrance collecting money from a hat), and someone who 
purposefully places themselves beside a pay-point or cash-point, where members of 
the public have to take out their money or bank cards in order to use the facility, or 
someone who proactively walks up to a person to demand money in an intimidating 
manner; these latter two examples may be described as ‘aggressive begging’ due to 
their intimidating nature and higher likelihood to cause fear, alarm or distress to a 
member of the public so approached. 

 
3.7 The Act also make changes to some of the existing legislation and the Council is 

required, within the period of three years from the implementation of the Act (i.e. by 
October 2017), to reconsider its Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) and either 
withdraw or replace it with a new Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO). As there is 
evidence of ongoing anti-social behaviour with street drinking both in the DPPO area 
and immediately beyond that area, it is prudent to replace the current DPPO at this 
stage, and include the nearby locations where problematical street drinking occurs, 
(e.g. St. Thomas Pleasure Gardens and Belmont Park) within a PSPO. 

 
3.8 In operational terms, the Police will provide the primary front-line resource managing 

the respective anti-social behaviours within the PSPO area, whilst the Council will 
assist the Police in the administration of the Order by working with them in crafting 

Page 47



  

 

any Acceptable Behaviour Contract (where this gives an alternative option to the 
penalty), issuing fixed penalty notices retrospectively based on Police evidence, (e.g. 
issuing an FPN by post to a late night reveller who has been caught urinating against 
a shop front) and pursuing breaches of the Order where liability has not been 
discharged by the perpetrator through payment of the FPN to the Council, or their 
agreement to commit and adhere to an ABC.  
 

3.9 The Council will set the FPN fee, and in appropriate circumstances can require a 
reduced or zero fee (preferred) where this is linked to a positive action by the 
perpetrator of the anti-social behaviour (e.g. agreeing to an assessment of need at 
Co-Lab, which may then lead to accessing other support services such as addiction 
services). Formulation of a fee structure and guidance around the content of an ABC 
will take place alongside the development of an enforcement and positive/restorative 
pathway protocol by the Exeter Community Safety Partnership (CSP). It is intended 
that any penalty payment will be ring-fenced for use by the CSP to help fund projects 
specifically aimed at reducing anti-social behaviour, (e.g. the CSP funds youth 
activity diversion programmes aimed at encouraging positive behaviour during school 
holiday periods, or responsible graffiti art programmes aimed at channelling latent 
artistic talent in a positive direction). 

 
3.10 It will be prudent to monitor the operation of the Order via the Exeter Community 

Safety Partnership, and report back to Members through Scrutiny Committee – Place 
to advise them of progress along with any recommendations for necessary 
modifications to the Order. It is intended that this will be initially be 6 months after the 
introduction of any PSPO and annually thereafter, should the PSPO be continued. 

 
4. What are the resource implications including non-financial resources. 

 
4.1. Operationally, the Police will be the principal agency using the PSPO powers on the 

ground, and in many instances these will allow a more efficient and effective 
intervention than their existing powers allow (e.g. in controlling the injection/taking of 
new psychoactive substances, or dispersing anti-social groups), and give a 
positive/restorative pathway option (through use of ABC’s embodied in fixed penalty 
notices). In addition, it is anticipated that the Order will have a useful deterrent effect, 
in many cases allowing the Police to resolve any issues of anti-social behaviour 
without the need to escalate the intervention with formal enforcement. The initial 
experience of Lincoln’s PSPO, which has a focus on prohibiting the public use of new 
psychoactive substances (NPS), is a notable reduction in the number of referrals for 
NPS users to the drug treatment charity Addaction, and a reduction of people using 
them at its needle exchange, indicating a reduction in the use of NPS’s. One of the 
problems with NPS use is that, unlike illicit drugs such as heroin or cocaine where the 
resultant behaviour and effects on the body are well documented and predictable, 
this is not the case with the myriad of chemically manufactured psychoactive 
substances, resulting in alarming and unpredictable behaviour by those taking NPS’s 
in public areas. 

 
4.2. Any intervention and enforcement costs in pursuit of breaches of this Order will be 

met by existing Police and/or Council resources. Front-line Council officers will not be 
deployed to use the PSPO powers, and in the main, FPN’s will not be dynamically 
served on-the-spot, but instead will be served retrospectively after liaison between 
senior Council and Police, which may include input from another appropriate lead 
agency (for the Council this will be at Service Lead or Principal level). However, the 
Council will support the Police in the use of powers under the Order, which include 

Page 48



  

 

the crafting of ABC’s together and the processing of fixed penalty notices (FPN). For 
example, the Council could issue a FPN by post for someone caught urinating in the 
street by a Police Officer; in such cases there would be joint consideration of the 
appropriateness of an ABC, and FPN would be issued on receipt of appropriate 
evidence from that Police Officer, and processed by the Council in much the same 
way as FPN’s for litter or dog fouling.  
 

4.3. The experience of other Councils that have introduced PSPO’s is that the number of 
breaches being pursued through the Magistrates Court is relatively low, which is 
likely to be mirrored in Exeter. The introduction of the alternative option of an ABC 
contained within the FPN, will further mitigate the likelihood of non-compliance with 
the terms of the FPN. However, should that not be the case and numbers are found 
to be far higher than expected, then there is the potential risk that this will place a 
strain on existing Council resources within Environment and Legal Services, but it 
should be emphasised that this risk is considered low.  
 

4.4. The number of FPNs issued and the resultant income derived is expected to be 
small, and any income derived from FPN’s will be ring-fenced for use by Exeter 
Community Safety Partnership to support programmes tackling anti-social behaviour 
within the City.  

 
4.5. There will be some costs for the publication of the Order, and the installation of 

appropriate signage (estimated at £1000). There will also be officer resources 
needed to develop an enforcement and positive/restorative pathway protocol with the 
Police and other agencies, together with training. These will be met from within 
existing budgets. 

 
5. Section 151 Officer comments: 

 
There are no additional financial implications for the Council contained within this 
report. 

 
6. What are the legal aspects? 
 
6.1. The provisions relating to PSPO powers fall under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime 

and Policing Act 2014 (detailed in a previous report to Scrutiny and Executive on 8 
and 15 September 2015, respectively).  
 

6.2. The Council has the power to make a Public Spaces Protection Order if satisfied  on 
reasonable grounds that two conditions are met. The first condition is that: 

 
a) activities carried on in a public place within the Authority’s area have had a 

detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, or 
 
b) it is likely that activities will be carried on in a public place within that area and 

that they will have such an effect. 
  

 Officers are satisfied that this condition has been met by the intelligence data, and 
survey information gathered about anti-social behaviour associated with the taking of 
intoxicants, urinating in the street, aggressive begging and anti-social behaviour by 
individuals and groups in the proposed PSPO area (detailed in Appendix 3). 

 
6.3. The second condition is that the effect, or likely effect, of the activities: 

Page 49



  

 

 
a) is, or is likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature, 

b) is, or is likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable, and 

c) justifies the restrictions imposed by the notice. 

 From the evidence contained in the Appendices, officers are satisfied that the 
activities in question are persistent and continuing, that their detrimental impacts are 
unreasonable, and that the restrictions proposed in the Order are reasonable and 
justified to either prevent or reduce the detrimental effect of the activities. 
Furthermore, the introduction of the ABC option as an inherent part of fixed penalty 
notices, will give a positive pathway for behaviour change for the better, which is 
predominantly absent within the legislative tools existing before the introduction of the 
Act. 

 
6.4. A Public Space Protection Order is an order that identifies the space to which it 

applies (“the restricted area” within which the impact has or is likely to occur) and can 
make requirements, or prohibitions, or both within the area. This means that the 
Council can, by virtue of the order, require people to do specific things in a particular 
area or not to do specific things in a particular area. The local authority can grant the 
prohibitions/requirements where it believes that they are reasonable in order to 
prevent or reduce the detrimental impact. The order can be made so as to apply to 
specific people within an area, or to everybody within that area. It can also apply at all 
times, or within specified times and equally to all circumstances, or specific 
circumstances.  

 
6.5. The Order can apply for a maximum of three years upon which the process of 

reviews and consultation must be repeated to ensure the issues are still occurring 
and the Order is having the required effect. Thereafter it can be extended for a further 
three years and, upon review and consultation taking place, be extended more than 
once for further periods of three years. 
 

6.6. Failure to comply with either a prohibition, or requirement within the Order, without 
reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence. Upon summary conviction (offences heard 
within the Magistrates Courts) defendants can face a fine not exceeding level 2 (in 
the case of breaches relating to alcohol) or level 3 on the standard scale for all other 
breaches (currently £500 and £1000 respectively). Breaches of an Order can also be 
discharged by use of a fixed penalty notice (FPN) that can be set at no more than 
£100. Payment of a FPN must be made within 14 days of issue to discharge liability, 
and is paid to the Council. However, the FPN can be further modified to allow a 
reduced or zero fee to apply when the recipient undertakes an alternative option 
offered within the FPN; this is akin to a fixed penalty to speeding in a vehicle when 
the option is to pay a penalty and lose points on a driving licence (a punitive action) 
or attend a driver awareness course (a positive/restorative action). It is the intention 
to include a positive/restorative alternative within any FPN in order to encourage 
positive and sustained changes in behaviour, and if that alternative is taken then the 
preferred fee-setting will be zero. 
 

6.7. Implementation of this Order, legally, would require a public notice to be published. 
This would be done through a formal notice in the local newspaper, notification on 
our website and press releases through media outlets. 
 

Page 50



  

 

6.8. Notices are required to be erected on or adjacent to the land to which the PSPO 
applies, essentially explaining the Order in plain English and what it means in 
practical terms. This is primarily to inform the public within the PSPO area, but it will 
also provide a visible support for the application and enforcement of the Order and 
lessen the risk of mitigation pleas from those found to be in breach. Such notices 
would be of modest size and concise, and would ordinarily be on all major access 
points to the prescribed area covered by the Order, replacing the existing Designated 
Public Place Order signage. 
 

6.9. As with any new legislation of its type, this is largely untested ground and the 
legislation will no doubt be further defined in years to come by a process of appeals 
and High Court rulings; however, it is worth noting that Lincoln Council has carried 
out a small number of prosecutions of users of NPS’s within the area of their city 
centre PSPO, who have failed to discharge their liability following the issuing of a 
FPN; all of these prosecutions have been successful.  
 

6.10. The Council, (in this context this means Full Council) has the power to vary or 
discharge the Order once implemented; therefore once an Order is in place, it is able 
to extend or reduce the geographical area, remove or amend existing prohibitions or 
restrictions, and include additional prohibitions or restrictions, where there is 
evidence to support this. It may also end the Order at an earlier date than originally 
designated, for example where circumstances have improved considerably, or where 
the intended mitigation is not working. Any such modifications or termination would 
require a report through Scrutiny Place, Executive and ultimately Full Council for the 
decision to be made. In such circumstances, the Council would again need to have 
regard to section 72 of the Act in respect of Convention rights, consultation, publicity 
and notification. 

  
7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 
 

Members should note that there is a mechanism to allow an Interested Person to 
challenge the validity of the Order made by way of appeal to the High Court.  

 
8. Report details: 
 
8.1. The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 introduced new powers 

relevant to tackling anti-social behaviour, including Public Spaces Protection Orders. 

Public spaces protection orders (PSPOs) are intended to deal with a particular 
nuisance or problem in a particular area that is detrimental to the local 
community’s qualify of life, by imposing conditions on the use of that area which 
apply to everyone. They are designed to ensure the law-abiding majority can use 
and enjoy public spaces, safe from anti-social behaviour.  

 
8.2. These orders are flexible and can be applied to a much broader range of issues, with 

local authorities having the ability to design and implement their own prohibitions or 
requirements where certain conditions are met. These conditions centre on the 
impact to the quality of life in the locality, persistence, and whether the impact makes 
the problem behaviour unreasonable. 

 
8.3. Exeter, much like other towns and cities nationally, has a persistent and recurring 

issue with street drinking in the City Centre, particularly in the summer months. There 
is support from the Police and the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office for the 

Page 51



  

 

continuation of a geographically-based mechanism for controlling the anti-social 
consumption of alcohol in public places within the City Centre.  
 

8.4. New Psychoactive Substances (NPS), often referred to as ‘legal highs’, have become 
a major concern to local agencies in Exeter over the last three years or so. Whilst 
previous concerted Police action has resulted in over-the counter sales of NPS’s 
being constrained in Exeter, up until May 2016 sales were still been taking place from 
other outlets including shops outside of Exeter, mobile traders, and internet sales.  
 

8.5. Nationally, in an effort to reduce the supply of NPS’s, new legislation in the form of 
the Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 came into force on 26 May 2016, making it an 
offence to supply NPS’s, but it is not yet an offence to consume them. Supply, whilst 
constrained, has gone ‘underground’, leading to continued consumption in public 
spaces, with all the associated anti-social behaviour remaining. Restriction A of the 
proposed Order would enable an intervention in respect of someone in possession of 
NPS’s for the purpose of consumption in a public place. 
 

8.6. In order to make the Public Space Protection Order, Members would need to be 
satisfied that the legal conditions, laid out above in paragraphs 6.2 and 6.3, have 
been met. Officers’ view is that these requirements have been met based on: 

 

 Evidence gathered by the Council itself, and from other associated agencies 
including the Police, recorded crime and ASB data for the area attached as 
Appendix 3 

 Feedback from a 2015 survey of BID members - summary attached as Appendix 
3D 

 Representations from the PSPO public consultation, Appendix 2A, 2C, & 2D 

 Feedback from Open Public and Business Meetings survey held in December 
2016 (Appendix 3E) 

 
8.7. Results of Public Consultation 

 
8.8. The Council consulted on a proposed Order for an extended period of approximately 

4 months running from 6 November 2015 to 29 February 2016. Details of the 
proposed Order were published on the Council’s website with a headline link on the 
front page for the majority of time during that 4 months; the details included a map of 
the proposed area, the proposed prohibitions and restrictions (6 in total), and 
explanation of the operation of these restrictions, a ‘frequently asked questions’ 
document, a draft Equality Impact Assessment and a survey feed-back form. 
Interested parties could either carry out the survey online, or download the feed-back 
form to complete and return as a hardcopy. In addition, people could submit their 
responses in the form of a letter, if they so wished.  
 

8.9. This consultation did not restrict who could make representations and did not 
differentiate between residents of Exeter, or people living outside of Exeter who visit 
for work, retail, and entertainment purposes. Nor did it prevent people who had no 
connection with Exeter from making representations; for example the impact of the 
Change.org petition (see paragraph 8.15) that sought to prevent the introduction of a 
PSPO in Exeter and encouraged people to respond to the Council’s consultation is 
not known, but as around 12000 people supported the petition, it is likely that a 
sizeable number of them were sufficiently motivated to complete our online 

Page 52



  

 

consultation to disagree with the proposals. Officers therefore have concerns that the 
genuine voice of Exeter citizens and businesses, particularly those from communities 
in the proposed PSPO area that have suffered from anti-social behaviour, may have 
been diluted by a wider audience who have no experience of the local situation. 
 

8.10. Whilst there is some evidence of the same detailed wording being used multiple 
times (one example was 15 times), it is not known whether this was a result of one 
person making multiple entries, or a person sharing the wording with 14 others who 
then copied it for their submissions. Generally, officers feel that attempts to influence 
the outcome of the consultation by an individual making multiple submissions was 
limited, and did not skew the overall results substantially.  
 

8.11. A total of 1,237 completed survey responses were received during the consultation 
period, which is a substantial number, with another 19 public responses received in 
letter format. In a minority of cases, not all of the proposed Restrictions from 1 to 6 
were responded to. Three responses were received shortly after the consultation 
period had ended, and whilst these have not been included in the statistics presented 
in this report, they have been included for information only in Appendix 2D. 

 
8.12. An analysis of the responses formulated from the 1,237 survey responses (which 

exclude ‘necessary consultees’ such as the Chief Constable and Police and Crime 
Commissioner) show a for and against split as follows: 
 

 Restriction 1 (intoxicants)    46% for, 54% against 

 Restriction 2 (urinating)    49% for, 51% against 

 Restriction 3 (encampments)   17% for, 83% against 

 Restriction 4 (begging)    26% for, 74% against 

 Restriction 5 (anti-social persons/groups) 49% for, 51% against 

 Restriction 6 (dispersal)    45% for, 55% against 

It should be remembered that consultation is not a referendum; for the purpose of 
this report it is an exercise in seeking the views of interested parties, stakeholders 
and the public in order to assist in the formulation of policy on the implementation of 
a PSPO, and the restrictions contained within it. The methodology used for the PSPO 
consultation could not prevent multiple responses by one person, nor could it limit the 
geographical area from which respondents were drawn, so in that regard it is 
distinctly different from a local or general election, or national referendum. As 
discussed in paragraphs 8.8 and 8.20, the Change.org organiser encouraged 
petitioners to respond to the Council’s PSPO consultation survey, using the emotive 
title of, ‘Exeter City Council: Don't Criminalise Exeter's rough sleepers or destroy their 
belongings’. Officers are concerned that many petitioners who were not necessarily 
citizens of Exeter, nor had a connection with Exeter, followed this advice, with their 
responses likely to be based upon that emotive title and the petition organiser’s own 
agenda that underpinned it. Bearing in mind the Cabinet Office General Principles of 
Consultation 2016 issued by central government and paragraphs F and G in 
particular it is appropriate for Members to give a higher weighting to the responses 
from the ‘necessary consultees’ demanded by the Act, as well as taking into 
consideration the responses from the Business Improvement District members 
survey of Autumn 2015. 
 

Page 53



  

 

8.13. A great deal of views were expressed on both sides of the argument, but can be 
broadly grouped into the following themes: 
 
Not in support of an Order 
 

 Sufficient powers already exist, negating the need for an Order 

 The street community would be victimised by the Order, instead the Council 
should provide services to assist them 

 Human rights will be violated by confiscation of belongings or substances that are 
lawful to possess 

 The right to free assembly would be threatened, and placed at the discretion of 
the Police 

 The powers could be abused by over-zealous application, criminalising activities 
that are not anti-social 

 Fixed penalty notices would not be a useful tool when applied to those with no 
income and unable to afford paying the fee 

 
 In support of an Order 
 

 The powers do not go far enough 

 The area of the PSPO should be extended to cover a wider area in Exeter 

The Council’s response to the representations made in the consultation is contained 
in Appendix 2E, to be read in conjunction with Appendix 1D. 
 

8.14. Convention Rights 
 
Under the Act, in deciding upon the making of a PSPO the Council must have 
particular regard to the rights of freedom of expression and freedom of assembly set 
out in Articles 10 and 11 of the Convention under section 21(1) of the Human Rights 
Act 1998. In terms of the development of a joint protocol on enforcement and 
positive/restorative pathways for the PSPO, and the training that will follow from that, 
the importance of these two freedoms will be made explicit. In addition, both the 
protocol and training will have regard to Article 1 of the First Protocol of the Human 
Rights Act 1998 (protection of property) in relation to the surrendering of intoxicants 
to authorised persons, contained within the PSPO. 
 
In practical terms, this would mean that the application of the PSPO would not be 
used to restrict a lawful trade union picket, an organised peaceful protest, a religious 
assembly, or someone preaching in a public space. Nor would it be used to 
confiscate alcohol from someone who had just made a purchase from an off-licence 
with the intention of taking that purchase home for consumption. 
 
 

8.15. Necessary Consultation, Publicity and Notification 
 
In addition, under S.72 of the Act, there is necessary consultation, publicity and 
notification to take place with the Chief Constable, the Police & Crime Commissioner, 
County Council, any community representatives the Council thinks appropriate, and 

Page 54



  

 

the owner or occupier of land within the restricted area of the Order. This was duly 
carried out, together with representative bodies for the community and business 
being consulted. In relation to relevant owners and occupiers of land that the public 
may have access to without payment which includes business premises with 
forecourts open to the public, all were consulted by letter and encouraged to either 
submit a response via the survey document, or by letter or email. The relevant 
responses from these are contained in Appendix 2. 
 
The draft Order was published on the Council’s website during this consultation 
period, satisfying the publicity criterion contained in section 72(4) of the Act. The 
County Council was notified of the proposal, satisfying the necessary notification 
criterion under section 72(4) of the Act. 
 
Given that the substantive consultation ended on February 29th 2016, and as a result 
of that consultation that the proposed PSPO has been revised to the current 
recommendations contained in this report, the revised draft Order has been further 
published on the Council’s website (December 2016), together with the original draft 
Order and an explanation given for the revisions that have taken place. Furthermore, 
the named necessary consultees have been written to again with details of the 
revised draft PSPO, and the County Council duly notified (in December 2016) in 
accordance with section 72(4) of the Act. 
 

8.16. In terms of the consultation exercise, officers feel that the views of the Chief 
Constable, Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Executive of Devon County 
Council, are particularly relevant, and would invite Members to give due weighting to 
those views. These views, together with those of representative bodies, are 
summarised below: 

 
8.17. Police 

 
On behalf of Chief Constable Sawyer, Russ Middleton, Assistant Chief Constable 
welcomed the proposals for an Order and was fully supportive of it. He referred to an 
increase in anti-social behaviour in Exeter City Centre over previous months 
including drinking and drug taking in the streets, large and threatening groups 
congregating, and businesses highlighting urinating in public places as an escalating 
problem, in particular around shop fronts and doorways. He acknowledge the multi-
agency work being carried out by the Street Attachment Group, and the importance 
of its approach of engagement, support and, where necessary, the use of 
enforcement. He ended by noting that the prohibitions were crafted as to be both 
proportionate and enforceable, and would equip Police officers with a range of 
powers appropriately tailored to deal with the anti-social behaviours occurring, which 
due to their current ongoing impact on the community, made the Order restrictions 
justified. 

 
8.18. Police & Crime Commissioner 

 
Tony Hogg, the PCC at the time of consultation, supported the introduction of the 
proposed Order as a valuable tool to assist the Police and partners in keeping 
communities safe. He was particularly pleased to see controls over NPS’s, which he 
viewed as highly dangerous, with a strong link between use in the public arena and 
anti-social behaviour within town centres. He also highlighted the need to monitor the 
potential for displacement, and to take appropriate action where necessary. 

 

Page 55



  

 

8.19. Devon County Council 
  
Phil Norrey, Chief Executive of Devon County Council, supported the principle of the 
proposed Order, but highlighted the need to give consideration to the complex and 
chaotic life experiences of members of the street community, and the need to link in 
with and augment support services. Like the PCC, he raised the issue of 
displacement, and the potential impact that could have on quieter residential areas. 
He also specifically mentioned the Human Rights Act Article 1 in relation to removal 
of bedding, etc. (this was in relation to the proposed Restriction 3, which has not 
been recommended for inclusion in the Order for this report). Importantly he ended 
by offering support in assisting the development of the proposals into implementation, 
linking it to existing work streams of Integrated Care in Exeter (ICE) and Wat Tyler 
House (Co-Lab). 

 
8.20. St. David’s Neighbourhood Partnership 

 
The Partnership’s committee discussed and supported the proposed Order at its 
meeting on 19 January 2016. 

 
8.21. Exeter Business Against Crime (EBAC) 

 
The Chairman of EBAC, Andrew McNeilly, reported that members did not express 
dissent over the proposals relating to, ‘beggars, street drinkers and anti-social 
individuals/teenage groups’, which one can take as tacit support for the respective 
restriction/prohibitions in the proposed PSPO, however, he did state that Restriction 3 
(street encampments), which is no longer included in the proposals contained in this 
report, evoked strong feelings on both sides, mirroring the feedback from the public 
consultation survey.  

 
8.22. Change.org online petition 

 
 As has been the case with other local authorities considering the implementation of a 

PSPO, an online petition was initiated by the campaigner Jonathon Walker of ‘The 
Keep Streets Live Campaign’ against the Council’s PSPO proposal. He titled the 
petition, ‘Exeter City Council: Don't Criminalise Exeter's rough sleepers or destroy 
their belongings’, and attracted 12,441 supporters from many part of the UK. It has 
yet to be presented to the Council for consideration. The petitioner encouraged 
people to engage with the Council’s public consultation and provided a web-link to 
the relevant Council web-page. A letter from Cllr. Bull that explained the rationale for 
the proposed PSPO and outlined the breadth of support for homelessness and the 
street community that the Council provided along with partner agencies was posted 
on the Change.org petition site, in an attempt to give some balance to the issue. 
However, it is likely that this organised campaign was influential in motivating a wider 
audience beyond Exeter to comment against the proposals on our online 
consultation, particularly in relation to the two proposals more closely associated with 
rough sleepers, that of begging and street encampments. 

 
8.23. Liberty 

 
 A letter from Rosie Brighouse, Solicitor for the National Council for Civil Liberties, 

‘Liberty’, was received expressing concerns about the proposals contained in the 
proposed Order, and citing the large number of supporters of the Chang.org online 
petition opposing the Order. The letter was critical of the proposals, namely 3, 4, 5 

Page 56



  

 

and 6, and questioned the evidence base for its introduction. The Council’s response 
to the points made in the letter are encapsulated in Appendices 2e and 1d, although 
it should be noted by Members that this report does not recommend inclusion of 
Restriction 3 (encampments) and further recommends a revision of Restriction 4 
(from begging to aggressive begging) in the proposed Order. 

 
 
 
 
8.24. Street Community Deputation  

 
 On 29 February 2016, the Assistant Director Environment received the leaders of a 

deputation of over 40 people, most of whom were members of the street community. 
Following a lengthy discussion and clarification on the proposed Order, the 
deputation was given sufficient hard copies of the survey form to make their 
representations, and 41 completed forms were handed in later that day. Interestingly, 
whilst the majority of responses (26) were wholeheartedly against the Order, a 
minority (15) were supportive of some of the proposed restrictions, predominantly 
those controlling street urination and anti-social individuals/groups, but also 
intoxicants and begging. 

 
9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 
 
9.1. The main contribution of the designation of a Public Spaces Protection Order is to 

reduce problematic anti-social behaviour in the City Centre, and in so doing it 
supports the purpose of ‘Keep me / my environment safe & healthy’ and ‘building a 
stronger City’. In achieving this, it is necessary to work with partners who make up 
the Community Safety Partnership to ensure that any Order is effectively 
implemented alongside other interventions. 

 
10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 
 
10.1. Any legal challenge presents a risk to the Authority. The legislation supporting 

implementation of the new Orders states that “interested persons” may challenge the 
validity of any Order in the High Court. This means that the Council could face a 
challenge against its decision to make the Order. An application of this nature must 
be made within six weeks beginning on the day the Order is made or varied. The 
grounds upon which a challenge could be made are: 

 
 that the local authority did not have the power to make the order or variation, or 

to include particular prohibitions or requirements imposed by the order (or by the 
order as varied); 

 that a requirement under this part of the legislation was not complied with in 
relation to the order or variation. 

 
The High Court has the power to suspend, quash, amend or uphold the order.  
 

10.2. This risk has been mitigated by the Council adhering to the provisions of the Act with 
regard to the formulation, consultation and implementation process of an order, in 
response to evidence of continuing and unreasonable anti-social behaviours 
occurring in the City Centre area encapsulated within the proposed PSPO boundary. 

 

Page 57



  

 

10.3. There is also a risk that public expectations will be raised by this Order that agency 
resources cannot fully meet; the Order is unlikely to remove the issues in total, but 
can act to support and augment other initiatives. The inclusion of a 
positive/restorative option in the crafting of a fixed penalty notice will be an innovative 
use of the legislation by the Council in helping to change negative behaviours, reduce 
re-offending and help readily engage the support of partner agencies. 
 

10.4. Implementation of this Order could lead to problem-displacement. Officers have 
considered this and think that the area of the proposed Order is sufficiently large to 
minimise any acute problems arising from any displacement, however, the situation 
will need to be closely monitored by the Council, Police, and other agencies, and 
action taken accordingly in response to any such displacement. 
 

10.5. The Order will be reviewed by the Exeter Community Safety Partnership (CSP), and 
by Members of Scrutiny Committee – Place,  six months after implementation, and 
annually thereafter in order to mitigate the prevalence of any of the associated risks, 
and to identify any unforeseen or negative impacts. In this regard, the Street 
Attachment Group (StAG), which acts under the auspices of the CSP, will play a 
critical role in this review, and will also help inform the enforcement protocol for the 
PSPO. 

 
11. What is the impact of the decision on equality and diversity; health and 

wellbeing; safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults, 
community safety and the environment? 

 
11.1. The Order is designed to reduce problematic anti-social behaviour occurring in the 

public arena, and is not intended to victimise individuals or groups of people; in 
particular it is not aimed at members of the street community, also referred to as the 
street homeless. 

 
11.2. It has the potential to deliver a significant positive community impact, in terms of 

reducing the anti-social behaviours associated with people taking intoxicants in public 
spaces, urinating in the street, aggressively begging and causing anti-social 
behaviour as an individual or group; in turn this will encourage greater use of public 
spaces in the City Centre by citizens and help reduce any perception that parts of 
Exeter are unsafe. When operated alongside other targeted interventions and work-
streams currently available and being developed by the Exeter Community 
Partnership and through its task groups, (the Alcohol Violence Evening & Night Time 
Economy Group, and Street Attachment Group (StAG)) and Integrated Care in 
Exeter (ICE), the Order can be part of a positive tool to change behaviour. For 
example, it could assist in weakening the ‘attachment’ that some members of the 
street community have, and help them on the pathway to sustainable accommodation 
and assistance with health and addiction issues. The use of Acceptable Behaviour 
Contracts as a positive option within a fixed penalty notice, will have a significant role 
to play in this regard, especially when the formulation of the ABC involves 
engagement of other partners in the CSP, StAG and ICE programmes.  
 

11.3. The attached Equality Impact Assessment (Appendix 1C) provides more detail, but 
no significant negative impact has been identified against any diversity groups. 

 
12. Are there any other options? 
 

Page 58



  

 

12.1. Maintain the status quo – the current Designated Public Place Order could be left 
unchanged for a period ending October 2017 and either replaced with a PSPO at that 
juncture or ended. This option was considered and dismissed due to the clear need 
to tackle issues relating to use of new psychoactive substances that are not covered 
by the DPPO, the recognition that anti-social behaviours are taking place outside the 
boundaries of the smaller DPPO, and that other anti-social behaviours are occurring 
that are linked to intoxication, but are not able to be controlled by the DPPO. 
 

12.2. Replace the DPPO with a simple alcohol-related PSPO - this was again 
considered and dismissed due to the need to tackle the problems associated with 
new psychoactive substances, which are unlikely to be significantly curtailed by the 
Psychoactive Substances Act 2016, and the linked anti-social behaviours around 
street drinking and intoxication in a public place, problems with street urination linked 
with the night-time economy, aggressive begging and anti-social individuals and 
groups during the day and night. 

 
 
Assistant Director Environment 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

 
 Home Office (October 2014) New Psychoactive Substances Review: Report of the Expert 

Panel 

 Lincoln City Council (January 2015) Executive Report Proposals for the Implementation of a 
Public Space Protection Order 

 Highways Act 1980 

 Psychoactive Substances Act 2016 

 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014 

 PSPOs: A Busybodies’ Charter (Manifesto Club 17-01-16) 

 
 
Contact for enquiries:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 2.3 
01392 265275 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



List of Appendices to PSPO Report 
 

Appendix Contents 81216 
 

List of Appendices 
 
The following information is attached to the report to Council on 21 February 2017 
regarding the implementation or otherwise of a Public Spaces Protection Order. 
 
Appendix 1: About the proposed PSPO    

A. Map of PSPO area 
B. Restrictions 
C. EQIA 
D. FAQs 

 
Appendix 2: Results of Public Consultation  

A. Headlines (pie-charts showing % breakdown) & comments from 
survey feedback form by each Restriction 

B. Letters from 'necessary consultees' 
C. Letters from other respondents  
D. Letters received outside of consultation period 
E. Council's response to representations 

 
Appendix 3: Supporting data regarding incidents of ASB in proposed area 

A. CCTV Control Room Incidents (City Centre), Jan 2015 - Dec 2016 
B. Exeter City Centre Crimes & Incidents, April 2015-April 2016 
C. Exeter City Centre Crimes & Incidents, April 2016-Nov 2016 
D. BID survey of businesses November 2015 
E. Survey responses from attendees of Open Public Meetings and 

Business Meeting, December 2016 
 

Appendix 4: Responses from Open Public & Business Meetings 
A. Analysis of support for revised PSPO restrictions from attendees of 

Open Public Meetings and Business Meeting, December 2016 
 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1B 

 

 

FINAL VERSION 

 

Prohibitions and actions contained in Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) 
 
Person(s) within this PSPO area, whilst situated in the street or other public space 
where the public have access without payment, shall: 
 
A. Surrender any intoxicating substance in their possession to an authorised person 

on request, if they are found to be ingesting, inhaling, injecting, smoking or 
otherwise using intoxicating substances, or are in possession of such intoxicating 
substances with the intent of using such intoxicating substances within this area, 
where the authorised person has reasonable grounds to believe that such person 
is using or intends to use the intoxicating substance within the said area. 
 
Notes 
Intoxicating Substances is given the following definition (which includes Alcohol and 
new psychoactive substances [NPS] that are commonly referred to as ‘legal highs’): 
substances with the capacity to stimulate or depress the central nervous system.  
 
Exemptions shall apply in cases where the substances are used for a valid and 
demonstrable medicinal use, given to an animal as a medicinal remedy, are cigarettes or 
vaporisers (tobacco products), or are food stuffs regulated by food safety legislation, or 
where the use of the intoxicating substances fall within the curtilage of a premises 
licenced for the sale and consumption of alcohol, and within the operating hours of such. 

 
An authorised person shall be a Police Constable, Police Community Support Officer or 
authorised Exeter City Council Officer, who must be able to present their authority upon 
request. 

 
A. Not urinate in a street or public open space. 
 
The term ‘street’ includes any road, footway, beach or other area to which the public 
have access without payment. It also includes a service area as defined in Section 329 
of the Highways Act 1980. Other areas will include parks and retail car parks to which 
the public have access to without payment. 
 
Exemptions shall apply where authorised temporary public urinals/toilets have been 
provided in accordance with any specification issued by Exeter City Council, and with its 
agreement. 

 
B. Not carry out aggressive begging. 
 
Aggressive begging is defined as behaviour that a reasonable person would regard as 
intimidating and which is designed to cause a member of the general public to offer 
money to a person not known to them.  
 
Exeter City Council would define that behaviour as: 
 (1) clearly intimidating, i.e. through the use of threatening language or gestures, or  
 
(2) intimidating by being passive aggressive, such as standing or sitting in close 
proximity (i.e. within 5 metres) to a cash machine or pay station either singly or in a 
group of two or more,  where people expect privacy and/or feel vulnerable with their 
money, bank cards, wallets or purse on display. 

 

Page 65



APPENDIX 1B 

 

 

FINAL VERSION 

 

C. Not behave (either individually or in a group of two or more people) in a 
manner that has caused or is likely to cause a member of the public to suffer 
harassment, alarm or distress by that behaviour. 

 
D. Persons within this area who breach Prohibition D while in a group shall when 

ordered to do so by an authorised person disperse either immediately or by 
such time as may be specified and in such a manner as may be specified. 
 

 
The manner specified by the authorised person may include a requirement not to re-
enter a defined zone within the PSPO area until a certain time, which shall be no later 
than 6 hours from the time that an authorised person orders persons in a group to 
disperse.  

Page 66



APPENDIX 1C 

EQIA PSPO FINAL 

 

 
 
 
Public Space Protection Order for Exeter City Centre – Equality Impact Assessment  
 
 

Introduction 
 
A Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) allows a local authority to introduce a series of measures into a defined locality. The 

proposed PSPO will bring in measures to control and restrict certain activities, in particular the consumption of psychoactive 

substances, consumption of alcohol in public (other than in licensed premises), anti-social behaviour of groups or by an individual, 

aggressive begging and urination (other than in public toilets). 

This is a legal order that can last for up to three years and it will prohibit a number of activities. If an element of this order is breached, 

the outcome could be that the individual is issued with a fixed penalty notice (the penalty can be set from zero up to a maximum of £100) 

or fined up to a maximum of £1000 on summary conviction as a result of legal proceedings for that breach. 

 

The Executive agreed on the15 September 2015 its wish to progress a consultation on a proposal to introduce a Public Space 

Protection Order for Exeter. This was proposing introducing measures to restrict the use of psychoactive substances and alcohol, 

prohibition on begging, prohibition of street encampments, prohibition on public urination and controls to be introduced for controlling 

anti-social groups or individuals. 

 
 
A 16 week consultation took place from 6 November 2015 to 29 February 2016 on the proposals. The results of the consultation 

will be presented to Place Scrutiny, Executive and Council for a decision on whether to implement an Order, and if so, what that 

Order would restrict. Following an analysis of the results, officers are not recommending that the Order seeks to place 

restrictions on street encampments. With regard to begging, a distinction has been made between passive begging (e.g. 

someone sat or stood in one spot with a hat on the floor to collect money), and intimidating begging; therefore the original 

restriction will be modified to focus on aggressive begging where someone actively approaches a passer-by asking for money in 

an intimidating way, or purposefully places themselves in close proximity (within 5 metres) of an automatic pay point (e.g. 

P
age 67



APPENDIX 1C 

EQIA PSPO FINAL 

 

automatic telling machine [ATM], or parking pay machine) where people expect privacy and/or feel more vulnerable with their 

money on display). 

 

In relation to fixed penalty notices, officers will be recommending that these are not routinely served dynamically, but instead and 

in most instances, will be served retrospectively. In addition, the intention will be to offer an alternative positive/restorative 

pathway to the punitive pathway of a monetary penalty, by means of opting to commit to an Acceptable Behaviour Contract 

(ABC) that will be crafted on an individual basis between the Police and Council, with input from any other agency where 

appropriate.  

 
 
A draft Equality Assessment was produced at the start of the consultation period, and has now been reviewed following completion 

of the consultation and also to reflect the proposals that are being presented to Place Scrutiny, Executive and Council. 

 

Lead officer: Robert Norley, Assistant Director Environment 

 

Stakeholders: Devon & Cornwall Constabulary, residents, visitors, elected members, regulatory services, Third Sector Providers, 

Business Community, commissioned services, alcohol licensed trade, Taxi trade, health providers, users of intoxicating 

substances and individuals who are street attached. 

 

For each of the areas below, an assessment has been made on whether the policy has a positive, negative or neutral impact, and 

brief details of why this decision was made and notes of any mitigation are included. Where the impact is negative, a high, medium 

or low assessment is given. The assessment rates the impact of the policy based on the current situation (i.e. disregarding any 

actions planned to be carried out in future). For clarification, the term ‘Target Group’ used in this assessment, refers to a defined group 

within the population that may be directly or indirectly affected by the proposal, and does not mean that this group is being deliberately 

targeted or singled out. 

P
age 68



APPENDIX 1C 

EQIA PSPO FINAL 

 

 

 

High impact – a significant potential impact, risk of exposure, history of complaints, no mitigating measures in place etc. 

 

Medium impact –some potential impact exists, some mitigating measures are in place, poor evidence 

 

Low impact – almost no relevancy to the process, e.g. an area that is very much legislation led and where the Council has very 

little discretion 

 

Target group / area 
 

Neutral Positive Negative 

Race and ethnicity 
(including Gypsies and 
Travellers; migrant workers 
asylum seekers etc.) 

There is no evidence that 
the order will impact on this 
group 

  

Disability 
(as defined by the Equality 
Act - a person has a disability if 
they have a physical or mental 
impairment that has a 
substantial and long-term 
adverse effect on their ability to 
carry out normal day-to-day 
activities) 

 

 

The Order may well have a 
positive effect and ensure 
that people who may be 
sleeping rough and have an 
addiction, engage with the 
support that is available and 
this in turn will deliver 
positive health benefits to 
them. 

Medium. A disproportionate 
number of street homeless (street 
attached) people suffer mental ill 
health and addiction, and 
therefore present a higher risk of 
breaching the PSPO. To mitigate 
this, the Community Safety 
Partnership, and its Street 
Attachment Group have been 
developing a co-ordinated 
approach to weaken ‘street 
attachments’ and engender the 
positive movement of an 
individual into sustainable 
accommodation with necessary 
support for issues of mental 
health, physical health and 

P
age 69



APPENDIX 1C 

EQIA PSPO FINAL 

 

addiction. This is also linked to 
Integrated Care in Exeter (ICE) 
Workstream C, MEAM, and 
CoLab. 
The measures that have been 
proposed that will restrict the 
consumption of alcohol, and 
NPS’s on the street could also 
affect those that are alcohol 
dependent and/or drug 
dependent. The proposed 
order will not bring in any new 
powers in respect of alcohol 
but will replace the existing 
Designated Public Protection 
Order. The Order may well 
have a positive effect and 
ensure that people with a 
street attachment and have an 
addiction, engage with the 
support that is available and 
this in turn will deliver positive 
health benefits to them. The 
inclusion of an ABC option 
within any FPN, will give a 
positive pathway to 
engagement with support 
services, and away from 
detrimental behaviour. 

Gender  

The Order may serve to help 
engage members of each 
gender that have alcohol 
and substances addictions 
with support services, 
thereby having a positive 
impact on their health. 

Medium.  The majority of 
people sleeping rough are 
male. Males, particularly 
males with a street 
attachment, are also more 
likely to have an alcohol or 
substance addiction. The 

P
age 70



APPENDIX 1C 

EQIA PSPO FINAL 

 

alcohol/intoxicating 
substances, and anti-social 
behaviour elements could 
disproportionately affect men. 
However the Order may also 
serve to engage those 
affected with support services 
and have a positive impact on 
their health. 

Gender reassignment 
There is no evidence that 
the order will impact on this 
group 

  

Religion and belief 
There is no evidence that 
the order will impact on this 
group 

  

Sexual orientation (including 
heterosexual, lesbian, gay, 
bisexual) 
 

There is no evidence that 
the order will impact on this 
group 

  

Age (children and young people 
aged 0 – 24, adults aged 25 – 50, 
younger older people aged 51 – 
75/80; older people 81+. The age 
categories are for illustration only 
as overriding consideration 
should be given to needs). 

 

Reports have stated the life 
expectancy of someone 
‘sleeping rough’ can be in 
their early 40’s. Therefore 
there is a clear benefit by 
encouraging and supporting 
people away from this 
lifestyle into sustainable 
accommodation with access 
to support services; where 
an intervention under the 
PSPO takes place in 
reaction to a breach of the 
PSPO, then that will be used 
to help link that person with 
support services both 
informally and through an 

 

P
age 71



APPENDIX 1C 

EQIA PSPO FINAL 

 

ABC if part of a FPN. 

In Exeter, there is growing 
evidence of more young 
people being drawn to the 
street attached lifestyle. 
Such young people are very 
vulnerable to exploitation in 
this situation, therefore 
using the PSPO tools to 
positively change behaviour 
will benefit this group. 

Areas of deprivation  

In terms of the street 
community, the intention is 
that this Order will sit 
alongside other 
interventions to encourage 
individuals to engage with 
the support services offered 
and this in turn will benefit 
the individuals involved. 

 

High. There is a risk that this 
activity will have a negative 
impact on those that are 
street attached and sleeping 
rough.  To some this is a 
choice as they do not wish to 
engage with support services. 
The intention is that this Order 
will sit alongside other 
interventions to encourage 
individuals to engage with the 
support that is offered. The 
use of an ABC option within a 
FPN will amplify this 
encouragement and this in 
turn will benefit the individuals 
involved. 

 

Human Rights  

The Order has been 
proposed due to the volume 
of incidents that are 
occurring that are having a 
significant impact on 
peoples quality of lives. 

High. There is a potential high 
impact on a number of groups 
that are likely to be affected. 
E.g. someone taking a NPS 
may feel their human rights 
have been impacted 

P
age 72



APPENDIX 1C 

EQIA PSPO FINAL 

 

Evidence has been collated 
of negative impacts on 
visitors, residents, 
businesses and their 
employees; this Order will 
have a positive impact on 
residents, visitors and 
businesses. 
Surrendering of alcohol or 
psychoactive substances 
could positively benefit the 
taker from the self-harm that 
substance can cause to their 
health and the effect of that 
intoxicant in terms of leaving 
them in a vulnerable 
situation in a public place. 

(enjoyment of property) if 
their supply of NPS is 
confiscated, or a loud, 
aggressive group asked to 
disperse (freedom of 
assembly and association). 
These human rights need to 
be balanced against the 
impact any ASB emanating 
from the subjects is having on 
other law-abiding users of a 
public space, and their human 
rights (e.g. the protection of 
property in relation to a 
retailer whose business is 
suffering from the ASB of 
groups regularly congregating 
outside his/her shop). The 
Community Safety 
Partnership will develop an 
Enforcement & 
Positive/Restorative Pathway 
Protocol and training 
programme for officers, with 
safeguards to ensure this 
impact is mitigated, with 
appropriate, proportionate 
and compassionate 
application of any 
intervention. 

Health and Wellbeing 
(consider both the wider 
determinants of health such 
as education, housing, 
employment, environment, 
crime and transport, as well 

The Order has been 
proposed due to the volume 
of ASB incidents that are 
occurring, which are having 
a significant impact on 
people’s quality of lives. 

The introduction of 
Acceptable Behaviour 
Contracts as a 
positive/restorative 
alternative within a fixed 
penalty notice, that will be 

 

P
age 73



APPENDIX 1C 

EQIA PSPO FINAL 

 

as the possible impacts on 
lifestyles and the effect there 
may be on health and care 
services) 

There has been an evidence 
gathering process 
undertaken and the 
introduction of this Order will 
have an overall positive 
impact on the community. 
The restriction on the use of 
psychoactive substances 
and alcohol will in turn have 
a positive impact on health 
and a positive action to 
encourage people to 
engage with the support that 
is available. A reduction in 
the personal use of alcohol 
and drugs for users with an 
addiction, will have a 
positive health impact for 
that user group. 

jointly crafted between the 
Council, Police and where 
appropriate any lead agency 
engaged with an individual, 
will provide a positive and 
strengthening mechanism 
for engagement with support 
services such as addiction 
services, and health needs 
assessment. 

 

 

Documents 

 
There are a number of documents that will be made available at www.exeter.gov.uk/pspo. This includes information that details the 

proposed zone, a document that contains frequently asked questions, a copy of the proposed order prohibitions/restrictions.  

 

There has been a range of evidence that has been collated that captures the impact these activities contained within the proposed 

PSPO is having on visitors, residents, businesses and other stakeholders within the city. A summary of the evidence collated and 

further information about the proposal will be made available within the report to be presented to the Place Scrutiny, Executive, and 

Council in January and February 2017.  

P
age 74

http://www.exeter.gov.uk/pspo.


APPENDIX 1D 
 

 

Proposed Public Spaces Protection Order for Exeter City Centre 

Frequently Asked Questions about prohibitions and requirements contained in Public 
Spaces Protection Order. 

 
What are Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPO)? 

These are areas that can be designated by Exeter City Council where anti-social behaviour 
has been causing a nuisance or annoyance. In these areas, police, police community 
support officers and council officers (where designated) have certain powers to help tackle 
such behaviour. 

 
 
The PSPO will be in force all hours of the day, every day. The PSPO will last for three years 
and can be extended following a review. 

 
Will there be any extra policing to enforce the PSPO? 

No. 
Police Neighbourhood Teams will continue to patrol and respond to incidents as part of their 
community response. 

 
What are the benefits of a PSPO? 
The main benefits of a PSPO are to help tackle anti-social behaviour associated with street 
drinking or the taking of other intoxicating substances, urinating in the street, aggressive or 
intimidating behaviour of groups or individuals, and aggressive begging. 

 
What will the PSPO control? 
The PSPO will seek to control the following forms of anti-social behaviour: 

 
Consumption of alcohol and other intoxicating substances in a public place. 
The Order will stipulate that person(s) within this area, whilst situated in the street or other 
public space where the public have access without payment shall: 

 
A.  Surrender any intoxicating substance in their possession to an authorised 

person (e.g. Police) on request, if: 

 
a)  they are found to be ingesting, inhaling, injecting, smoking or otherwise using 

intoxicating substances, or, 
b)  they are in possession of such intoxicating substances with the intent of using 

such intoxicating substances within this area, or, 
c)  the authorised person has reasonable grounds to believe that such person is 

using or intends to use the intoxicating substance within the said area. 
 
Intoxicating Substances is given the following definition (which includes Alcohol and 
what are commonly referred to as ‘legal highs’): Substances with the capacity to 
stimulate or depress the central nervous system. 

 
Exemptions shall apply in cases where the substances are used for a valid and 
demonstrable medicinal use, given to an animal as a medicinal remedy, are cigarettes or 
vaporisers (tobacco products), or are food stuffs regulated by food safety legislation, or 
where the use of the intoxicating substances fall within the curtilage of a premises licenced 
for the sale and consumption of alcohol, and within the operating hours of such. 

 
An authorised person shall be a Police Constable, Police Community Support Officer or 
authorised Exeter City Council Officer, who must be able to present their authority upon 
request.

Page 75



APPENDIX 1D 
 

 

What are the concerns and issues with street drinking? 
Street drinking is sometimes associated with anti-social behaviour, causing high levels of 
noise, rowdy and nuisance behaviour, harassment and intimidation of passers-by, as well as 
the littering of cans and bottles. People taking other intoxicating substances such as new 
psychoactive substances (commonly called Legal Highs), can also exhibit the same types of 
unpredictable anti-social behaviour. 

 
How will the PSPO work? 
Officers can request people to stop drinking alcohol in the designated public places and ask 
to surrender their drink, including unopened containers of drink being carried. They can also 
request people to stop using other intoxicating substances and ask them to surrender such 
substances if they believe that they will be consumed in a public place within the PSPO 
area. If people refuse they can be issued a fixed penalty notice w i t h  a  p e n a l t y  
of up to £100, or a zero penalty with an option to commit to an acceptable behavior 
contract (ABC), and a maximum of £1000 upon prosecution. 

 
A PSPO is not an outright ban on street drinking. It is not an offence to consume alcohol in a 
public place; the offence is failing to comply with an officer’s request. 

 
Can I be stopped or arrested for carrying alcohol or legal highs in public spaces? 

A PSPO does not make it illegal to carry alcohol or to drink alcohol in a public place.  So 
long as drinking is done responsibly a PSPO will only be used to tackle alcohol related anti- 
social behaviour or disorder.  Under these circumstances authorized persons (e.g. Police) 
will have the power to stop people drinking alcohol and seize or confiscate alcohol within the 
controlled area.  If you fail to comply with an officer’s request to stop drinking and/or dispose 
of alcohol, you could be issued with a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN). 

 
With other intoxicating substances such as legal highs it is not an offence to carry such in a 
public place, but police and council officers (where designated) will have the power to stop 
people consuming, injecting or smoking legal highs, and seize or confiscate legal highs 
within the controlled area. If you fail to comply with an officer’s request to stop using legal 
highs, or surrender such substances, you could be issued with a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN). 

 
Do Police already have these powers? 
Currently there is a Designated Public Places Protection Order (DPPO) in force within the 
city centre to deal with problematic street drinking. By law, this DPPO must be replaced by 
a PSPO by October 2017, or ended. As the need to manage down anti-social street 
drinking in the city centre remains, there is a need to replace the DPPO with a PSPO, and 
include public areas outside of the current DPPO (such as Belmont Park and St. Thomas 
Pleasure Ground) where problematical street drinking continues. 
 
The Police can make an arrest for street drinking related anti-social behaviour, or similar 
behaviour from intoxication by other substances.  However, it is only an offence to refuse 
with an officer’s request to stop drinking alcohol/taking legal highs or to surrender 
alcohol/legal highs when asked, where a PSPO is in operation.  Where there is no PSPO in 
operation, it is not an offence alone to refuse to surrender alcohol/legal highs, although any 
related anti-social behaviour can give cause for arrest. 

 
Will there be signs in Exeter City Centre alerting people to the new PSPO? 

Yes. 
The intention is that signs will be located in Exeter City Centre to signify that this is a PSPO, 
very much like is in place now for the DPPO. 

 
Would people still be able to drink or hold alcohol bottles outside pubs? 
Yes. 
The PSPO does not make it illegal to drink alcohol in a public place. However, if a person 
was to drink beyond the legal boundary of a licensed premise and they do not stop drinking 
if asked to do so by a police officer or another authorised person, then they could be at risk 
of breaching the Order. Page 76



APPENDIX 1D 
 

 

 
Are licensed premises affected? 
Although a PSPO would restrict alcohol consumption in a public area the Act states that 
licensed premises are not affected. 

 
What about street parties and events in parks? 

Events within a public place authorised by a premises license or a Temporary Event Notice 
(TEN) will be excluded from the PSPO powers.

Page 77



APPENDIX 1D 
 

 

Urinating 

The Order will stipulate that person (s) within this area, whilst situated in the street or other 
public space where the public have access without payment shall: 

 
B. Not urinate in a street or public open space 

 
The term ‘street’ includes any road, footway, beach or other area to which the public have 
access without payment. It also includes a service area as defined in Section 329 of the 
Highways Act 1980. Other areas will include parks and retail car parks to which the public 
have access to without payment. 

 
Exemptions shall apply where authorised temporary public urinals/toilets have been 
provided in accordance with any specification issued by Exeter City Council, and with its 
agreement. 

 
What are the problems with street urination? 
This is mainly a problem at night-time when people leave establishments after drinking, 
although it can also take place in the day. Apart from indecently exposing oneself, which 
many find offensive, people who urinate in the street often do so against premises, in car- 
park stairwells, or in shop fronts, making it very unpleasant for the premises owners or 
residents who must clean up the mess, and for employees, visitors and customers who 
frequent the premises and have to walk through the mess. For many, it can also add to the 
perception of feeling unsafe. 

 
There are no public toilets open at night? 
Although there are no public toilets open at night, all drinking establishments, clubs, pubs, 
restaurants and cinemas have toilets for use by patrons, so there is little excuse for not 
going before leaving. 

 
Street Encampments 

 
The revised Order will no longer contain a specific restriction regarding the control of 
street encampments. 

 
Are rough sleepers being targeted? 

They are not being targeted, nor is any specific group or part of the community being 
targeted. There are good support services and temporary accommodation available to 
people who sleep rough, but some chose not to access this support. Sleeping rough in the 
city centre can place someone in a very vulnerable situation, and it is not beneficial to 
their health and wellbeing. Officers enforcing the Order will be briefed to signpost rough 
sleepers to appropriate support services. 

 

 
 

Aggressive Begging 
The revised Order recognises that there is a dinstinction to be made between passive begging, 
(where someone is sat or stood on a spot with a collection receptacle) and more intimidating or 
aggressive begging where an active, direct approach is made requesting money in an 
intimidating way, or someone purposefully places themselves close to a pay point in order to 
request money from users of that pay point who necessarily have to visit that pay point. For 
that reason the proposed Order has been revised to place a restriction on aggressive begging 
only. 
 
The proposed Order will stipulate that person(s) within this area, whilst situated in the street or 
other public space where the public have access without payment shall: 
 

A. 1)  Not carry out aggressive begging. 
 

Page 78



APPENDIX 1D 
 

 

Aggressive begging is defined as behaviour that a reasonable person would regard as 
intimidating and which is designed to cause a member of the general public to offer money 
to a person not known to them.  
 
Exeter City Council would define that behaviour as: 
 (1) clearly intimidating, i.e. through the use of threatening language or gestures, or  
 
(2) intimidating by being passive aggressive, such as standing or sitting in close proximity 
(i.e. within 5 metres) to a cash machine or pay station either singly or in a group of two or 
more i.e. where people expect privacy and/or feel vulnerable with their money, bank cards, 
wallets or purse on display. 

 
What’s the problem with begging? 

Many people feel uncomfortable or intimidated by people begging at cash points, parking 
ticket machines, under-passes and shop entrances. Sometimes the person begging can be 
aggressive in their approach, making people fearful, particularly when on their own. They 
can also put people off entering a shop if they are begging by the entrance, so the shop 
loses trade. However, people are more concerned about being actively stopped and 
approached in the street by someone begging, or being obliged to use a pay-point at which 
someone has purposefully placed themselves to beg from users of that pay-point who 
necessarily need to get out their money or cash cards. 

 
Sometimes people who have overnight accommodation at a hostel prefer to beg late at night 
because it can prove quite lucrative during the busy night-time. The problem with this is they 
may lose their accommodation and can be quite vulnerable to being picked on by night-time 
economy visitors. 

 
Begging is actually a criminal offence under the Vagrancy Act, but under this act the only 
option is for the Police to prosecute the person begging, whereas the PSPO would allow the 
alternative of a fixed penalty notice to deter aggressive begging, within which there would be 
the option of committing to an acceptable behavior contract, giving a positive pathway rather 
than a punitive one. 

 
What about buskers? 
The revised PSPO is designed to deter aggressive begging,  rather  than genuine musicians 
busking in the street; busking will not fall under the definition of aggressive begging.  In 
terms of the PSPO, it will only be an offence to aggressively beg in a public place without 
the written consent of the land owner.  

 
What about Big Issue sellers, street pedlars & vendors, and charity personnel? 

People selling periodicals (newspapers, etc.) are not covered by the PSPO, and neither are 
other street vendors, pedlars and charity personnel asking for donations to charity. 

 
Anti-social behaviour from groups or individuals 

The Order will stipulate that person(s) within this area, whilst situated in the street or other 
public space where the public have access without payment shall:

Page 79



APPENDIX 1D 
 

 

D  Not behave either individually or in a group of two or more people in a manner that 
has resulted or is likely to result in any member of the public being intimidated, 
harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. 

 
E  Persons within this area who breach Prohibition D while in a group shall when 

ordered to do so by an authorised officer disperse either immediately or by such time 
as may be specified and in such a manner as may be specified. 

 
Will this affect lawful pickets or protests? 

No.  
The PSPO shall not be used to stop or interfere with a lawful picket or peaceful protest, it 
has been designed to deal with unruly groups that are causing a problem for other users of 
the public space, for example a drunken group in a park shouting at passers-by, or an 
intoxicated individual who is aggressively approaching people in a shopping precinct. 
 
Will religious speakers or other public speakers be affected by this? 

No. 
The PSPO shall not be used to curtail religious or other speakers who are making public 
speeches in a peaceful way in order to make a particular point. 

 
What about a group of friends having a picnic, or playing a game such as 
‘catch’, or kicking a ball around in a park? 
Parks and open spaces are there to be enjoyed by the public for such recreational purposes, 
and such activities are welcomed. It is difficult to see how such activities would alarm or 
distress other users of the public space. Unless the group start causing alarm or distress to 
others in some way, (e.g. by aggressively and unreasonably warning people to stay out of 
their space), then of course it will be perfectly acceptable for those activities to take place. 

 
How long will someone have to leave the PSPO area before returning if required to do 
so? 
This will to be no longer than 6 hours, which should be long enough for the group dynamic 
to be broken, but not so long that it interferes with an individual’s personal freedom, e.g. to 
attend work at a later hour. The period may be less than 6 hours, depending upon the 
judgement of the authorised person.  

Page 80



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Proposed Prohibitions and Actions contained in Public Spaces Protection Order 
for Exeter City Centre 

Analysis 01/06/16 

TOTAL NO OF SURVEYS: 1237 

1. Do you agree with Proposal 1? 

Proposal 1 Frequency 

Yes 557 

No 668 

2. Do you agree with Proposal 2? 

Proposal 2 Frequency 

Yes 594 

No 621 

3. Do you agree with Proposal 3? 

Proposal 3 Frequency 

Yes 211 

No 1,013 

4. Do you agree with Proposal 4? 

Proposal 4 Frequency 

Yes 324 

No 896 

5.. Do you agree with Proposal 5? 

Proposal 5 Frequency 

Yes 594 

No 629 

6. Do you agree with Proposal 6? 

Proposal 6 Frequency 

Yes 541 

No 658 

Page 81



 
 
 

 

 1. Do you agree with Proposal 1? 

 2. Do you agree with Proposal 2? 

Page 82



 
 

 
 

 3. Do you agree with Proposal 3? 

 4. Do you agree with Proposal 4? 

Page 83



 
 

 
 

5. Do you agree with Proposal 5? 

 6. Do you agree with Proposal 6? 

Page 84



 
 

PSPO Consultation 
Responses to Restriction 1 

01/06/16 

Comments Proposal 1 
This proposal in my opinion has been long overdue, the powers to prevent begging and drinking in a public place have been available 

to enforce for many years. 
It should be a criminal offence to do any of the proposed intentions in public place anywhere, Anti social behavior has achieved a new 

level and its long overdue.        
A careful and considerate approach would be needed is establishing medicinal use, or using this to target people on circumstantial 

evidence. 
Consideration of potential to simply move the problem or create new issues. The removal of alcohol from individuals making their way 
into the centre of town for a night out has created issues for residents on the edge of the alcohol free zone - through noise cans and 

bottles being thrown in bins, use of resident bins for disposal, and a pocket of congregation through PCSO interaction and use of bin.  
Smoking should also be banned in public parks and similar amenities. 

I have noticed an increasing number of people consuming substances of this nature around South Street, Cathedral Yard and most 
noticeably around 118 Sidwell Street. It is unnerving and intimidating to walk passed and also creates a very poor impression of Exeter 

city. I commend the decision to address this matter in a fair an reasonable way.   
The power to take away any substance if the person has reasonable grounds to BELIEVE that the person INTENDS to use the 

substance within an area? What would constitute as reasonable grounds in this instance? This is far too vague and could easily be 
abused 

This needs to be bought in as standard. I have a business in west street at the bottom of stepcote hill and am frequently witness to 
drug taking in all forms.  

It should only relate to illegal substances  
Nothing further to add. 

Who would enforce this? 
Excellent idea, the PCSO's know more about their 'patch' and those in it so they need more powers to deal with it on the spot. 

The zone should cover the University area too. 
if this proposal is accepted, i would expect, wrongly, it to be used on the local youths / homeless / lower social classes only  

It should not include alcohol 
Include firemen doctors ambulancemen nurses security guards soldiers airmen sailors in uniform 
Its important that our inner city streets are a "safe" place to be and these proposals support that. 

This would be welcome and is overdue 
As long as it applies to well dressed and well spoken people as well as the homeless. 

People should be banned from all areas of our lovely city.they are a blight on the universe!! 
It'd be better to refer people to support agencies rather than fine them.  

It does not stipulate clearly that if a person is not causing a problem then it shall be permisable to consume alcohol. 
If the alchohol is also limited in the pubs and clubs available to others or a space is made that is ok to drink in 

Extend the are up through St James to the University. 
Not sure why "given to an animal as a medicinal remedy" is an exclusion, this defence is typically used for legal highs.  

I Don't believe the authorised persons outlined are qualified or equipped to distinguish what may constitiute an intoxicating substance 
on site. 

Neither the Council or the Police have enough staff to deal with this  
Apart from CCTV operators who from the Council will be working late into the night 

to enforce this ? 
I agree with  

a) they are found to be ingesting, inhaling, injecting, smoking or otherwise using intoxicating substances; or 
all the other regulations seem like harassment. 

Late summer onwards has seen a big increase in all antisocial behaviour, esp. encampments & rubbish from Station Road Exwick, 
down to Exe Bridges, any chance of extending PSPO? 

Disagree as written.  
 

Before requiring a person to surrender what is, in truth, their property to an official, the official should be required to give a warning to 
the effect that the person either desists from the activity or withdraws from the area. 

 
That, and reasonable grounds should be less vague. 

People with nothing most likely need something to get through the day. When they they don't have a there own home funded by their 
rich parents or have fallen on hard times. A polite word to say find somewhere more appropriate or out of the way seems more useful. 

I would not accept that ECC employees have any authority 
This does not address the root causes behind the addiction and homelessness - money would be better spent on these issues. 

This is a particular problem in some parks. 
also a high number of Big Issue sellers, some of which are agressive and sometimes intoxicated. 

Presumably the City Council, Police etc are also working on the causes of binge drinking and anti-social behaviour... perhaps 
something could be done re licensing laws, limiting the size of pubs, ensuring people at risk aren't served, education in schools and the 

prevailing culture, making the University and College responsible for the behaviour of students, etc. 
The limited geographical stipulations of this Proposal risk pushing such undesirable behaviours out from the City Centre into residential 

areas of the City. I believe the proposal should encompass the whole city, not just the city centre. 

Page 85



I assume that this will cover ALL persons who are ingesting alcohol in the designated area and not just homeless people as i have 
witnessed students walking down through the City Centre openly swigging out of cans and bottles. 

Though can we be cautions and use common sense as I have real concerns that his may drive the use of these substance to a place 
which isn't monitored, isn't safe and therefore makes it dangerous for the people undertaking the activity. Also; this should not be done 

in a way that embarreses the person. I would like to see follow up activity and support if the person is of "concern" even if this is just 
literate about support groups or about the gdangers of legal highs. 

Although I hope that information will be given to the person about where theyq can get help to address their substance use - mainly 
RISE in Exeter. I also wonder if fining someone who may not be able to afford it will help the situation? Surely this could put them 

further intpbdebt or poverty. Is there a different way to deter people? 
In general this sounds a good idea, but what about people who live in the city centre. I liked to have a glass of wine in the grassed area 

in princesshay next to the flat I lived in.  

The one problem I see is enforcing this. The City Centre is a threatening place at night and it is hard to imagine that our hard pressed 
police could cover all eventualities 

Is it actually an offence to be in possession of a legal high? Will it include alcohol? What about cigarettes? 
It is required to curb drinking in st thomas pleasure grounds 

Seems perfectly sensible 
This basically gives anyone with "authority" the right to search everyone and anyone for any reason. Although the sentiment behind 

this is spot on, the last part about suspected use within an area doesnt sound right. 

It is no job for a council officer to make these subjective judgements. 
Existing laws have historically been used in control of this type of behaviour. These proposals  will have the effect of removing civil 
and legal protections from people who most need them. The people you are targeting are most likely to be badly educated, leading 

chaotic unstructured lives without support and much hope for improvement. 
You have no right to take other people's property.  There are already enough laws in place to cover nuisance, drunk and disorderly etc 

and these can be used correctly when necessary. 

Laws already exist both regarding behaviour and the possession of illegal substances.  This proposal is an encroachment on personal 
freedom, unnecessary given current laws, too broad and open to abuse. 

If what people are doing is not illegal I do not think it is for local authorities to decide what to remove from citizens going about their 
business.  If illegal activity or crime is taking place then the police should of course deal with that 

This sort of power is quite draconian and I do not believe it should be available to PCSO's or, worse still Council Officers, who lack 
training, experience, the ability or inclination to use discretion in such matters. There are far too many 'jobsworths' around as it is and 

we don't need more interfering in people's lives in an insensitive manner. This power should be restricted to Sworn Police Officers only. 

These issues are already within the remit of the police and require no further embellishment. To do so is merely a draconian example 
of greater revenue creation and are of no benefit to the public at large. 

The issue should not be possession of intoxicants such as alcohol, but whether there is disorderly behaviour. No action without harmful 
effect on others should be punishable. 

It oppresses the powerless 
The poor and vulnerable must be empowered not oppressed. We should only look down on people if we're helping them up 

We can stop and confiscate because we think someone intend to use something?  
Self medication is OK if you're on the sofa at home. If you're out on the street, it isn't? Deal with the root of the issue, not the leaf. 

I hope tp see this proposal applied without discrimination, and not used to target only the homeless. Having witnessed an attack on a 
homeless woman by a drunken woman of means (yes police were notified) , I believe the police have a responsibility to protect 

vulnerable homeless people from intoxicated members of the public. 
Does this include cigarettes/alcohol- clarity would be helpful here.  

Move along not confiscate. Often people's troubles are enough without having their escape taken too 
As long as this is used proportionately and at discretion then it would be fine. However the police in general are abusive and mean to 

the homeless population and I feel like this wpuld be used as a way of victimising them. 

no definition of 'authorised person', police need to be properly trained not substituted for mall cops 
This is a gross infringement of personal liberty. 

A "tot" of whisky for example, can be warming to the body and soul, and I can imagine that a homeless person would be helped by this, 
for example.   What I do find unacceptable, is the state of the City's pub clientele after they have been drinking and particularly when 
one is trying to walk along the pavement, only to find it blocked by people who are outside for their smoking habit, swearing, blatantly 

drunk and badly behaved. 
I think the biggest nuisance in Exeter (apart from real estate speculation) is alcohol and drunk people in the streets at night. I 

understand we live in a University city but, even though I live quite far from the bars, I still get people shouting their lungs out in the 
middle of the night at my window.  

This proposal has the wrong focus. it is not the 'substance' that is the problem, it is consequent behaviour. There are already sufficient 
powers to deal with this. 

Who is an authorised person.   What training will they receive?  
The wording is far too loose. Who is to decide if a person intends to use a substance, including alcohol?  My guess is that I ( middle 
class professional ) won't have my alcohol taken off me as I walk home,  but a rough sleeper will. This seems very unfair as you are 

making judgements that may not be correct.  
 

I agree with (a), but (b) and (c) are open to abuse and harassment of certain types of person. 
Alcohol is a drug. A recreational drug the same as heroin cannabis cocaine ecstacy etc etc. The hypocrisy of the powers that be 

astounds me. 

But please don't use this without good reason that the person may cause nuisance. For example street entertainment such as morris 
dancing outside a pub shouldn't disallow the audience from drinking alcohol in moderation  

I think only illegal substances should be removed by authorities. Otherwise I will expect an authority to knock on my door and liberate 
me of my Saturday night glass of wine. If you would prefer these people to consume alcohol indoors, give them a place to sleep. 

Page 86



 

This is in humane, I am a labour supporter and I can't believe a labour council would be thinking of doing this. You should be spending 
resources on supporting these people. 

Drinking alcohol is not illegal and does not necessarily lead to antisocial behaviour, and as such I do not believe it is fair to criminalise 
the drinking of alcohol. Breaking dependence on alcohol and drugs is a difficult and painful process, and simply removing drugs from 

people will not solve the problem of addiction. 
A total waste of police time and resources.  Would only support such a proposal if the person(s) were engaging in anti-social 

behaviour such as violence, intimidating behaviour, verbal abuse etc.   

I am also aware that alcoholism is incredibly hard to conquer and these people should be treated with compassion and given 
appropriate support. 

We all have the right of choice confiscation should only be an option where an individuals behaviour is offensive and affecting others. 
No, this proposal should not procede. These are vunerable people afected. 

It is totally inappropriate to even contemplate that and Exeter City Council Officer should be authorized to act in this manner.  
 

The Police already have powers to act no further powers are required 
Public spaces are for everyone. If you are enjoying a peaceful drink or other experience why should it be a problem? And who will 

govern what the "authorised people" count as "reason to believe" someone is planning to use a substance in public? Also, why would 
cigarettes and vapourisers be exempt? Passive smoking is always harmful to health. Being in a public space with someone who has 

had a drink is not. 
open to misuse, and criminalisation of vulnerable individuals. 

This seems like a good idea as long as it is carried out reasonably!  
Make this clear to all people entering the area. 

As long as it is when there is a specific problem being dealt with and is proven to work to reduce ant social behaviour ., it should be 
trial led first. 

Existing laws are already in place, this is non necessary.  
What would be considered "reasonable grounds" in terms of section C? The way this reads it sounds as if an authorised person would 

be able to confiscate sealed alcohol containers with no evidence of wrong doing, other than that they suspect the alcohol might be 
consumed within the city centre. 

 
This seems heavy handed and potentially ripe for abuse, as well as flying in the face of the legal principle of "innocent until proven 

guilty". 
Draconian criminalisation is not a solution to social problems and ultimately leases to further problems and demands on the public 

purse. Humane and supportive initiatives are more effective, not to mention more respectful. 

Too draconian. 
Too broad a definition. 

Overly prescriptive and controlling.  
Can we also use common sense as well !! (It doesn't cost anything)  

I think this is utterly disgusting and degrading.. But what i have not read it gives Exeter council the right to remove and destroy the 
homeless belongings. Perhaps it would be better to open drop in centres.. And the imposing of fines of up to £1000 on people that 

have basiclly nothing seems utter stupid. 

The powers are open to abuse and what is proposed is actually the theft of legal substances by the authorities. The proposed powers 
are quasi-judicial and should not fall within the remit of police, P.C.S.Os or Council Officials. The powers would illegally circumvent 
judicial due process and be, effectively, a form of Martial Law. The proposal is extremely problematic in terms of civil liberties and 

would be vulnerable to judicial review which may well find the Council to have breached both English Criminal Law and International 
Law, such the Convention on Human Rights.  

This is simply common sense.  Alcoholics / drug addicts in town can be threatening & aggressive.  It is long overdue that the beggars 
on the High Street are moved on.  The problem has been growing the longer it has been ignored.  They stay there as this is where 

they can raise the largest amount of funds for perpetuating the cycle. 
The actions of a some anti-social individuals should not impact on society as a whole. The anti-social behaviour should be dealt with as 

it happens. Blanket bans are not a good way of dealing with specific issues.  

It's too broad-sweeping.  Reasonable to remove intoxicants if a person is intoxicated, but not more than that 
This will not tackle alcoholism or their addictions and may drive them to use in more dangerous and secluded areas. Why not focus on 

promoting rehabilitation as well? Just taking it away will not solve the problem 

This should be unnecessary - the Police can do it all. 
the proposal to give a fine to people with no money is ludicrous, the proposal to take away their bedding and possessions is out right 
inhumane and cruel, I expect to see a better attitude from a labour council. These are desperate human beings that need treatment 

and help .They're not vermin,  they're human like you and me. 
If the intoxicating substances may be consumed legally then they must never be confiscated. If possession of them is illegal the police 

can deal with the matter.  

I would like the geographic area to be extended to include THornton HIll, West Ave and the three cut de sacs off THornton HIll. I would 
like this feedback to be considered for all questions 

I believe that the powers the Police already posses are adequate to deal with this behaviour, they already have the ability to stop and 
search. I am concerned that this may lead to criminalisation of vulnerable people with substance abuse or mental health issues. 

What about having a picnic in a park with a glass of prosecco? If people are drunk and disorderly, they can be arrested for that. If they 
are in possession of illegal drugs, they csn be arrested for that. 

That seems perfectly reasonable 
Deal with ALL anti social behavior whenever and where ever it occurs, using the police's existing powers. 

Page 87



 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have 'reasonable grounds' to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn't drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
If use of substances is associated with criminal acts, existing public order legislation is adequate to deal with this. Further powers are 

not needed. 

I agree. The use of legal highs on the street is a concern to me and I find the behaviour of people obviously intoxicated by substances 
that drastically alter brain function and inhibit logic and reasoning to be intimidating. I have seen this on an almost daily basis and have 
seen women with small children and elderly people choosing to avoid entering the pedestrian subway in Coombe Street because of a 
group of people who camp down there every day. These vulnerable pedestrians have been seen trying to cross Western Way rather 
than use the subway. I am also in contact with some young vulnerable people (through my job role) who have recently begun to use 
legal highs and have suffered terrible side effects from them. Their open use on the streets starts to create a desensitisation to the 

irrational and unpredictable behaviour that these products produce.  
It is reasonable  

Living in St David's the open drug use and drug dealing is blatant.  We no longer attend events at The Corn Exchange because of the 
groups of drug users/vagrants in front of the Hospice Care charity shop who are intimidating, filthy, often with dogs, and they 
completely undermine what should be a 'cultural' and social event when one leaves and has to pass them - with trepidation. 

St David's church is a magnet for vagrants - we have to pass them sitting in full view 'shooting up'.  This is absolutely unacceptable in 
close proximity to family homes with children.  Some of the main drug dealing/drug using goes on in recognisable places e.g. Bury 

Meadow Park, on the corner of Dinham Road very close to St David's Primary School, in our other green space e.g. St Bartholomew's 
cemetery.   Any additional authority/powers given to the council and police to address this will be most welcome. 

Open drug abuse, shooting up in the street - if you dare look at them, you are faced with hostile, abusive language.  Syringes and 
needles are in our parks and verges which puts residents and staff at risk.  And the amount of broken glass from bottle all over the 

streets is unacceptable and huge risk to dogs and children.  One is almost on top it before you realise it - particularly along the 
footpath along to the Quay.  My vet bills for injured pedigree dogs from all this broken glass is unacceptable, let alone the distress to 

the animals. 
BUT only if applied equitably to all citizens.  I am concerned that people sleeping rough will be unfairly targeted.  

I do however wonder where homeless people are to go when they want an alcoholic drink that they have purchased legally. 
The police, and only the police, should be allowed to ask them to move on and if they do move on, that should be the end of the 

matter. 

Unless the person or a group of persons is committing a public order offence, they should not be subject to criminal prosecution, 
penalty fine or what, in effect, amounts to nothing more than the enactment of a policy of social conservatism designed to inflict 
punishment on those in our society least able to afford them, resulting in their suffering further from a sense of (real) isolation, 

exclusion and abandonment.  
The inclusion of buskers in this Public Spaces Protection Order would seem to be little more than camouflage designed to distract the 

true intention of a policy of discrimination.  
Will this cover those that put alcohol in a different container (e.g. Cola bottle) oldest trick in the book! 

This should be under a public nuisance basis not fee to be applied under the personal powers and unsubstantiated judgement of an 
authorised person.  As written this allows rights over people without any justification of nuisance or danger to people as themselves or 

others. 
Exeter has a reputation for tolerance and balance. Making it illegal to consume alcohol is basically a taxation on the poorest members 

of society. Council officials are not people who should be able to make enforcement decisions. Inappropriate behaviour by those 
people can be punished to the extent of the law. Using illegal narcotics in public is already a crime, as is disorderly conduct. There 

does seem to be a question as to whether accidentally breathing car or bus fumes, incense in churches and weird crystal shops,  will 
be made illegal by this blanket operation.  

 
The ban seems to say that people who live in the area, (or have to sleep in the area, due to there in access to housing) should not be 

able to have access to legal drugs.  This is not a nice thing to do to people. Please help people with drug and alcohol abuse problems, 
don't criminalise them, or hide them. They need love, tolerance and respect in order to overcome their challenges. Most people with 

drug and alcohol problems have problems related to sexual or physical abuse as a child. This is an endeavour to further punish those 
people (very ineffectively I might add - the punishment is a fine - that they cannot and therefore will not pay).  

This is a fair proposal. No one ever needs to use an intoxicating substance, except in medical instances that are already listed as an 
exception. As such there is no valid reason for a person to be breaching this order. 

I think this would be a good proposal if it were only applicable if the individual carrying the intoxicating substance was behaving in an 
antisocial manner that was likely to bring harm to someone else. The substances are within the law and so should otherwise be 

allowed to be used.  
People may be homeless, but I do not agree with the destruction of personal property! I think its disgusting that the government think 
this is ok!! They are humans and some of the stuff they have is all they own in the world!! If you do this , this will cause more crimes , 

unless the homeless are actually committing crime where they sleep, they should just bw left alone! I'm appalled  
So we can't have a nice bottle of wine by the Quay on a warm evening anymore? What utter nonsense. 
This should be enforced against all people, especially students who often disregard this as anti-social 

Page 88



The council should provide some form of suggestion/referral for rehabilitative services if people who have substances seized from 
them are seen to be suffering an addiction. At least they should be encouraged to seek help rather than just taking things and further 

damaging the mental health of those suffering.  
Otherwise, I don't think people who are not being drunk and disorderly have any reason to have alcohol confiscated, for example if they 

are attending a dinner party and deem it polite to take with them a bottle of wine, and would rather not pay for a taxi. 
I understand the logic behind the proposal but it seems a little extreme. Why should cigarettes be allowed, which harm others around 

them, yet alcohol, which is only inducing harm to yourself, be confiscated? 
 
 
  

The 2nd and 3rd points need a clear test, and limited exemption for alcohol. i.e. only if the container is open is intent to use 
established, and there should be regions in which drinking (but not public drunkenness) should be allowed (i.e. beer with a picnic in a 

public park).  
Yes but this needs to be extended to the fringes of the city centre - the end of Sidwell Street and Old Tiverton Rd in particular 

Huge, huge problem in Exeter. Bad for residents. Bad for visitors  Bad for the people concerned. 
Drugs openly visible on our streets and in our parks most days. 

I do not think an out of sight out of mind approach is the answer.  People will not stop using these substances, they will just not be 
seen by the public and therefore are unlikely to be able to get help.  I am not bothered by people smoking and drinking in the street 

myself. 
This means any self organised activity in groups with responsible adults who might want to share a bottle of wine in the park, 

Rougemont gardens etc. as part of a picnic for instance is banned. It puts city centre space into the hands of business not people. 

I am not convinced that the possession of a legal substance or its ingestion ought in itself to be grounds for a new order 
How will you deal with this problem if it results in people going outside the designated Order area and behaving in the same way? 

For some people, public spaces are their homes, so what do we intend to do with the people if we don't allow them to drink/smoke, eat 
etc in their homes? 

I agree with the proposal on condition that that anyone who is homeless and using alcohol or legal highs in public places who is 
apprehended should be offered help, not fined.  

1. why is tobacco exempt? Drunken behaviour doesn't effect me or annoy me nearly as much as cigarette smoke, which makes me 
wheezy, feel ill, and need my inhaler.  

2. Drug use is much less noticeable than the abuse of alcohol.  
3. I suspect that this law will be used to harass homeless people more than it will be used to curtail the problem drinking of students 

and young people in local pubs.  
4. If there is a growing problem with alcohol abuse and/or drug use and/or homelessness, there are more effective and compassionate 

ways to address those problems than to outright ban their use in public spaces. 
5. Being a public space, I would expect people to use that space as they see fit. I have no right to insist on other people using that 

space in particular ways.  
yes - broadly - but I am concerned that it could lead to victimisation of a very vulnerable group of people (i.e. drug-users and 

alcoholics), and that there seems to be little recourse if the person who becomes subject to a PSPO fine believes that they are being 
unfairly treated. 

How would an appeal against the fine be made, who to and how would an abuse of powers be recognised and restitution made? 
Perfectly reasonable 

Only as good as the enforcement of the Proposal. Will there be prioritisation of resources to cover? Currently resources are prioritised 
in the city centre which has pushed the ASB issues out to the centre fringes and our neighbourhood St David's has been hard hit. 

The Officer must have a compassionate nature and be fully trained in how to offer positive guidance to the perpetrator;  not a 
plain...'Move On'. 

This gives 'authorised persons'  the right to make a decision which could lead to discrimination and racial profiling.  
I differentiate between homed rowdy drunks and the homeless. I tried to send comments to community.safety@exeter.gov.uk (the 

listed contact) but the email was rejected. 
I have put these in the comments box at question 3. Please read them. 

 
I understand that refusal to comply with these prohibitions can result in a fixed fine or a charge of criminality. This is not spelt out in this 

consultation. If it is the case and it was included it would very much affect opinions.  
I think 'legal high's' are very dangerous and this power is needed, I have seen members of the homeless openly smoking them in 

Sidwell Street and have seen the results of their behavior afterwards including being unpredictable and violent.  

I do not believe that criminalising homeless people is a solution to their predicament. I believe there is already a ban on drinking in 
public in the city centre and as the use of any other intoxicating substances is already illegal,this legislation is not needed for that 

purpose. While begging can be a nuisance, I find most beggars to be polite and non invasive and as stated above do not believe that 
criminalising them will be helpful. 

It's too draconian - a huge area, including several parks, where responsible people won't be able to drink on a summer's afternoon. 
I don't believe there is sufficient issue currently to warrant such drastic action. I would far rather public resources be spent on treatment 

for substance abuse issues as opposed to prohibition.  

Under point C, anyone could be stopped. How would an authorised person prove this.  
I do NOT agree with the removal of "legal highs".  
These are legal and therefore should be allowed. 

Instead of treating these people like criminals who are often a victim of traumatic life experiences why don't you help them. Instead of 
fining them when you know full well they can't pay why don't you offer treatment programmes or house them in the countless empty 

properties across the city.  
It does not address the social causes of anti-social behaviour and so will have no real or lasting effect. 

Should the Police be doing this already? 

Page 89



Will the officer have the power to seize substances that they believe are going to be shared with others? 
 

Under what circumstances will the seizure actually be required?   What behaviour has to have been exhibited or is believed to be 
imminent to require the seizure at all? 

yes we do it is a good idea. suggest you use professional agents to work in conjunction with the Police and PCSO Officers. Agents 
such as Devon Investigations have years of experience in this field 

Substance abuse is typically caused by low quality of life. These people will not be helped by having their coping mechanisms 
confiscated. If you want to solve the problem, give them treatment instead[1]. 

 
[1] http://ps.psychiatryonline.org/doi/full/10.1176/ps.51.1.116 

This proposal must be understood to apply to University Students and every person on the streets/ public open space covered. 
 

It must not be used primarily as a tool against homeless/rough sleepers. 

No further comments 
If they are not hurting anyone leave them alone. 

This would be a seriously improper step to take, an infringement of ordinary people's property rights and of their rights of free 
association and assembly, and it would also be a dispiriting and worrying indicator of a massive deficit of social responsibility on the 

part of Council officers and members. It would be completely disproportionate to the actual level of incidence of such activities, it would 
put far too much power   completely inappropriate power   in the hands of city council officers, and it would seriously undermine trust 
and confidence between Devon & Cornwall Police and many of the disadvantaged people who may well need, in their situation, to look 

to local police for protection and redress against theft and mugging, common assault (including verbal abuse), sexual assault, actual 
and grievous bodily harm, and much more. 

This will negatively affect the most vulnerable people in our society. These people need help rather than being victimised and 
persecuted.  

The acts of persecution and discrimination of the minority and vulnerable groups are abhorrent and comparable to some of the 
measures introduced by the Nazi Party before the Second World War. 

Mahatma Ghandi said "A nation's greatness is measured by how it treats its weakest members." Based on this quote, if these 
proposals are introduced, this Nation would be quite distant from greatness. 

I believe the police have sufficient powers at their deposal now and these powers which the Council also wish to give to council 
employees is concerning and for such un-trained people - open to abuse of authority.  These powers are also rather vague and could 
be used against everyone - even a few orderly people have a picnic and bottle of wine together, no such powers as exist are sufficient 
and should remain in the sole hands of police officers - i.e. who are trained in such situations, additional powers are an unwarranted 
interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. Homeless people, who no doubt would be the most likely set of people to be 

targeted by these proposed measured, should be assisted, support for homes and hostels should be a priority of the council - as 
servants of the community. I would by far prefer to see councils and the police focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is 

having a detrimental impact on the local community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which 
applies to every person, even if their behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person. 

Yes I agree that we don't want bad behaviour as a result of drug/drink, but in my experience there has been no more of a problem with 
'homeless' than the rest of society. We should be careful not to demonise people because they are homeless, they are people, just as 

you and I, and should be treated with respect and helped. 
I dont agree with this because the police already have these powers and I do not think it appropriate for an Exeter City Council Officer 

to do this, especially as it may endanger them. 

I am against anyone except a bon fide police officer having any powers as described above. Even then I have concerns about the 
individual judgement police officers would need to exercise 

These powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as homeless or 
vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person facing 

enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council officers to 
target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance within the 

PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the person 
wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. Also there 
is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained lawfully 

and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse.  
I think that this proposal could be abused and to make the homeless population of Exeter, many of whom have drug or alcohol 

dependencies,  fearful of police or PCSOs. It would be a shame if this has the consequence of either i) forcing people away from the 
city centre, where most of the city's provisions are, or ii) worsening relationships with police.  

Should be limited to illegal substances  
These powers can be used against the general population not just the group(s) you are targeting. 

Police officers can enforce the law as necessary. 

Persons acting in an anti-social manner should of course be dealt with appropriately. But to prosecute someone drinking a glass of 
wine or a can of beer? That is police state gone mad. 

Regardless of actual intent or reason, this gives unbounded authority to confiscate goods. You already confiscate enough in taxes. 
Exemptions are inadequate and should include legal intoxicating substances legally obtained and for later home, business or other 

legitimate use 

The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better for the council and the police to focus upon 
known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local community. These known individuals could be 
targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any 

person.  
The Police have existing powers to control persons who are actually using these substances in such a way as to adversely affect 

others. This proposal would widen the authorisation to Council Officers and make subjective suspicion sufficient grounds for action.  
Neither of these are necessary and could be actually detrimental. 

Page 90



This places too much power in the hands of the individual law maker. 
Surely existing law can deal with public nuisance caused by individuals.  

This carries the risk of giving unbridled power to the kind of people seen in the recent G4S scandal  the very people who may well be 
employed by the council.   

I would trust the Police, and possibly the CSO, to be impartial but not a civil servent from the Council Offices.    The Police are 
trained.   YOU are not. 

Unwise blanket prohibition. 
Existing laws allow police intervention already. Often, all the homeless can do to get through their day is drink or drugs. Removing 

them alone is useless . 

There are already laws Re: these issues which cover all citizens so there is no need, in my view, to impose further restrictions on 
homeless people. You cannot drink etc., at home if you have no home. 

Whilst  seemingly effective in theory, in reality, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and 
marginalised persons, such as homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could 

reasonably object to a person facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this 
measure, in contrast allows council officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that 

they will use an intoxicating substance within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened 
bottles containing alcohol, even if the person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the 
personal freedoms of individuals. Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating 

substance has not been obtained lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to 
potential misuse. It would be better for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a 
detrimental impact on the local community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to 

every person, even if their behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
I feel the measures are too heavy handed and extensive and could lead to the persecution of vulnerable people e.g assuming the 

intention of antisocial behaviour and implied rights to stop and search people based on this assumption. 
Powers to address antisocial behaviour that is occuring where this isn't already covered by law are apt and reasonable where there is 
clear outlining of what constitutes this where it involves, threat, offence or nuisance. I believe this proposal goes way beyond that and 

is unreasonable. 
I do not agree as this could affect 'ordinary people' (ie; non vagrants) who may be out for the evening and are innocently carrying a 

drink from one place to another and are then stopped midway by police when they are merely harmlessly consuming a drink while on 
the move. 

Taking someone's property should only be used in rare and exceptional circumstances, such as an illegal substance or if the person is 
dangerous to others. 

People should be offered a referral to substance misuse services. 
I don't agree with taking action against people who someone thinks May do something wrong. 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
Why should cigarette smokers not be covered by this same measure? 

These powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of wine for an impromptu Summer picnic on the Green.  
However, these powers might commonly be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as homeless or vulnerably 

housed persons, or people with mental health problems.  Efforts need to be made to help such people and treat them with 
understanding and compassion, rather than prosecuting them, which will simply be counter-productive and very unhelpful for their 

prospects and future life.  The proposal is potentially insensitive and is too general - action needs to be targeted at any person whose 
behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others. It would be better for the Council and the police to focus upon known 

individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local community. 
Abuse of civil liberty 

This proposal  criminalises ordinary citizens behaving responsibly, but drinking in public. 
The proposal is too woolly, lacking adequate definition of what constitutes 'reasonable grounds'.  Such blanket power is open to 

misuse. 

These people are vulnerable at risk and the last thing they need is prosecution as oppose to help and our compassion 
You cannot crimnalise people for the above. Possibly remove the substances form the people and sign post them to the relevant 

services  

I am appalled that a Labour council is considering putting a policy in place which is legalises the abuse of the poorest and most 
vulnerable people in our society. These people need our help. They are not criminals. 

There are plenty of laws already in place to deal with aggressive or violent behaviour. Possessing and using alcohol and so called 
"legal highs" are not criminal offences in this country and to make them subject to sanctions in this manner is reminiscent of the 

policies put in place in Germany under the Nazis. 
Existing laws regarding antisocial behaviour are in place and should be used to focus attention on those individuals who are causing 

problems within a neighbourhood.  I find this vague, all-encompassing proposal to seize legitimately purchased items from any 
individual based on assumptions rather than offences unwarranted and unnecessary. 

Handing authority to unqualified individuals to confiscate property of people just because they think they might consume in a public 
space is completely unjustified. Even if an individual does drink or smoke in a public space they are not necessarily causing any harm 

to the community (persons or spaces). 

Page 91



It further penalises, harasses and intimidates the most needy and vulnerable people in society. 
Legislation already exists to deal with drunk and disorderly CONDUCT 

Rough sleepers have a tough enough time as it is without further harassment. Harass the rich not the poor. 
Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 

the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 
homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
Being homeless and on the streets is not a crime, it is a tragedy. Having been homeless myslef I know that often the only way to 

survive is to get drunk or high . Giving a homeless person a criminal record will only further harm their possibility of making a return to 
useful, independent living. They need help, not punishment. Once interest rates begin to rise more people will find they are unable to 
pay their mortgage, and will find out just how poor services to stop homelessness are, just how easy it is to 'fall through the cracks'. 
Other European countries have provided safe spaces for people who may be drug users etc, without criminalising them. It would be 

much better for Exeter to look towards this kind of solution, rather than criminalising people who are already the most disadvantaged in 
our city. 

"other public space where the public have access without payment" means anywhere in Britain that isn't a private space.  This seems 
like drastic overkill.  And is it possible for anyone to know that someone "intends" to use substances in a public space?  Going on 

what's written in Proposal 1, it's entirely subjective. 
Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 

the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 
homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
I feel these are draconian measures, which create a 'them' and 'us' culture. I speak as an ex teacher  and educational adviser. This 

policy seems like a sledge hammer to crack a nut. It puts the most vulnerable in our society at greater risk.  
I am surprised and disappointed to see that our only Labour controlled council in the South West has come up with such an I'll thought 

through policy to tackle a small percentage of anti social behaviour. 
Improved investment in social care and job opportunities would help. 

WHAT IF I CARRY A BOTTLE  IN MY DISABILITY SCOOTER  WHEN GOING HOME. THROUGH THE PSPO AREA? 
This is not a coherent or just policy and is likely to move the problem around i.e. to parks and other parts of the town/city. Perhaps, this 

is not an issue for the council because the main concern, judging by the associated map, is that the town centre needs to be 'kept 
clean'. Any perceived anti-social behaviour would be bad for business. 

Intoxicating substances necessarily includes alcohol but criminalising their use is not the solution. if you want to be radical with good 
urban governance then consider the unthinkable and move to limit the availability of excessive purchasing of alcohol. This will mean 

targeting first the number of businesses/people who profit from selling alcohol (legal drug) locally in bars, bistros and restaurants. Take 
issue with the manufacturers themselves who relentless push ever cheaper alcohol into the market place. 

If you are genuinely concerned about citizens welfare, set up education programmes in schools and social centres. 
This could border on harassment.  Officers carrying this out would have to verify that the person accused was actually proposing to do 

what was suspected. 

This is not dealing with the problem it is sweeping it under the carpet. The impact will be to marginalise addicts, the homeless and 
beggers even more. We should be giving them support and love and not punishing them 

These are legal substances 
It seems to me that you are looking for problems where none exist 

Draconian - guilty without trial 
Some people need alcohol or tobacco to relieve their misery.  It's only worth considering if they are threatening.  This should not be 

criminalized. 

People have the right to choose. It's not their fault others get so offended by it. 
Surely action should be taken only if the person is breaking the law, causing an affray or similar or causing a public nuisance  - this 

action is a job for the police who are trained to deal with these types of situations. 

Why are you demonizing these people What community support are you providingi 
Better to address the real problem of homelessness. What are you trying to achieve? It's going to take a very big rug to sweep this 

problem away. 

Police already have the power to remove people from the area for antisocial behaviour or breaching the peace. More police and better 
upholding of the intoxication laws would cover this. It is an offence to serve alcohol to someone who is intoxicated. This is not upheld 

and should be before stronger measures about simply holding alcohol are put in place. 
draconian & controlling..they need help..not criminalising 

Page 92



Because there is a lack of support in terms of addiction and mental health and trauma services to tackle the reasons behind that 
persons use of harmful substances.The order is around others may feel about it not supporting the supposed perpetrator.For example I 

know of people with addiction problems who receive no support in relation to trauma problems related to childhood sexual abuse. 
'Reasonable grounds' must in no circumstances be used as an excuse for harassment. 

instead of spending money on repressive unhelpful actions, spend public money on provision so people are not forced to be on the 
streets. alcohol and other substances are used to lower body temperature and enable the homeless person to survive. have 

compassion rather than punish these people. 
People have enough stress as it is, just leave people be. 

Should only be applied if the person is causing problems, not just "for the sake of it." I am aware of people who smoke substances - 
they pose no risk or nuisance. You can drink in moderation, without getting drunk. 

This makes no sense, as tobacco is also a harmful substance.  
I object to the seeking of additional powers where the council already has remedies under current legislation. The impact would be to 

criminalise the inadequate and vulnerable. This is not the response of a civilised city and reflects how far from it's core values the 
current Labour party has moved. 

It's all down to the free will of the individual what they put into their bodies; equally, there are more than enough empty buildings in and 
around Exeter that could house these individuals, and at no extra cost to the local authority. Give these people a roof over their heads - 

give them back their self-esteem -- treat them as the human beings they are and perhaps they'll not require to resort to intoxicating 
substances to kill the pain and suffering they endure on a daily basis. Namaste.  

Open discrimination against anyone who the authorities wish to believe is homeless and sleeping rough. No proof needed. 
I only partially agree, it seems in order to confiscate the intoxicating substances only if they are actively consuming them, by whatever 

means, in a public place and are likely to cause nuisance to others by doing so. 
It is most certainly not OK to search people merely on suspicion that they might be carrying such substances. This could lead to 

unnecessary harassment of innocent people or even vulnerable people who have no intention of causing a public nuisance despite 
their possible addictive habits.   

It is so restrictive and can be used to bully vulnerable people.  If they are using substances inappropriately then the reason for this 
needs to be addressed.  It is a social matter and not a matter for the police. 

People can he allowed to drink one minute and not the next, just because they were now deemed to be near to a group of antisocial 
behavours. Walk out of an offlicense with a bottle intending to take it home as a christmas present, but if there is an antisocial group 

outside being deslt with it will be for the shopper to prove they were not part of the group and not be confiscated. It will drive legal high 
users into pub premises, where these new rules dont apply.  

In respect of all the proposals there are already powers available to the Police to arrest or move on individuals drunk, using drugs, 
harassing people for money, and behaving in a criminal or anti social way.  

 
If Exeter CC impose a restricted area those involved will find near by places to sleep or meet in other parts of the city. Most homeless 

people will have no means of paying any fines, as an alternative might receive a short prison sentence and then be back on the streets 
again. 

 
Those who frequent the city centre are not there by lifestyle choice. They essentially suffer from a range of addictions, chronic mental 
health issues or behaviours contributed to by various traumas earlier in their life. A more effective and certainly more compassionate 
approach, especially for a Labour led Council, is to help provide alternative accommodation for those on the streets and support to 
access appropriate services. Is Exeter CC content to be counted as a City that discriminates against the disadvantaged and most 

vulnerable members of society. 
1 c 'reasonable grounds' needs to be defined. 

This should only be actioned if the person or persons is creating a nuisance. 
these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as homeless or 

vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person facing 
enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council officers to 
target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance within the 

PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the person 
wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. Also there 
is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained lawfully 
and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better for the 

council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local community. 
These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their behaviour is having 

no detrimental impact on any person.  
Support from social and community services are needed. This should not fall on the police. I am absolutely appalled that those sitting 
comfortable in their positions at work would remotely consider these proposals. I have always said what a forward thinking council we 

had but now I am not so sure! Shame on you! 
1.  As  so often happens this legitimates the antisocial behaviour of some people  [ the in crowd ] while castigating the behaviour of 

others [ the out crowd]. Cigarettes are just as obnoxious as canabis or legal highs. 
2.  Relations with the police have been getting worse for years. I have observed 75 of them.  This will do nothing to improve them and 

will bring PCSOs and council staff into the the same opprobrium.  
As a Labour Council you should be ashamed of even thinking about introducing such draconian powers! As with other (e.g. RIPA) 
powers, I have no doubt that mission creep with inevitably lead to unfairly targeting vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals.  
This will allow legal purchases to be confiscated even if they are not opened. Doesn't existing legislation cover this already? 

Page 93



Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
I find the proposal unbelievable. I can only assume the Council wants to remove a 'certain type' of person from the city centre. Even if 

that was a desirable goal this is not the way to go about it. The Council should be tackling the root causes of the problem. having a 
drink in a public space should be something the Council should be encouraging. Or is the aim to stop people having a drink with their 

picnic on Cathedral Green? This Proposal will cause more problems than is solves. 
While I can accept the idea that a Police Constable should have this power, I am wholly opposed to the idea of giving such powers to 

any Council Officer or PCSO. 

Personally, I would prefer that only fully qualified police officers would be able to utilise these sorts of powers, although I had 
understood that they already possessed these to some degree. Certainly, extend their powers over alcohol and 'legal highs,' although I 

find this a worrying trend for councils to be dealing with and would much rather have national rulings to classify these as harmful or 
even illegal substances if the goal is truly to eliminate their use.  

Additionally, there must presumably be some form of paperwork or accountability for the taking of otherwise perfectly legal materials 
from individuals - I fail to see how this could be upheld as legal or even effective if any authorised person could confiscate these 

materials without having to catalogue and store them in some form of evidence locker? Even from the considerations of the layman, 
who would like to make sure that the confiscated spirits and legal highs aren't merely being taken for the personal consumption of your 

authorised individuals. 
Adequate restrictions already exist. 
This appears to be a blanket ban. 

There should be no harm in relaxing in public space with a moderate amount of alcohol. 
Drunkenness, offensive behaviour and illegal drugs are a different matter, and these indeed should be dealt with. 

Care must be taken not to create a society where there are too many rules. 
Great care must be taken in giving powers to deal with this. The fewer the better, but where people need to be protected there must be 

laws to allow this. 
it is the authorities in Exeter who should be criminilized for allowing people to suffer so much 

This proposal can very easy target those who are homeless who may drink alcohol to keep warm during the cold winter months. I 
believe existing regulation regarding public drinking is already sufficient enough to deal with the problem of public drinking. 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
The law as it stand should be used to control this. If not, mind your own business 

I would agree however I fear this gives rights for violent action toward anyone in possession when confiscating. I would also suggest 
that instead of just confiscation people in possession are encouraged (or by law) to go to a support group for said substance 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
C) is too arbitrary 

The police are already within their rights to confiscate substances and or alcohol of people, there is no need for a new law. Or to have 
members of staff of the council (not trained by the police) acting as police-attempting to confiscate items from intoxicated people, this is 

unacceptable. 
There are too many problems associated with this proposal. It could be applied unfairly to people who have legally purchased alcohol 
for their own legal use. There is also a question over "reasonable grounds" for taking action. This is open to too wide an interpretation. 

Legal substances should only be taken if there is clear anti-social behaviour in progress. Simply being homeless does not constitute 
anti-social behaviour! 

Page 94



If a person has been to the pub, then picked up a bottle of wine on the way home, then decides to sit/rest in a public area before going 
home. Does this mean they could have their goods confiscated? How can an officer clearly determine the difference if a person is not 
caught in the act itself? This is reliant on the perception and predication of an event that may not hapoen. No law should be upheld on 

this bases. Are we not innocent until proven guilty? Prediction of an event should not be allowed and infringes on our civil liberties.  
good idea the city centre and park and open spaces needs sorting out and fast before it gets out of control. 

If a person is in possession of a legal substance, then that is their business.  If they are behaving in a disruptive manner then current 
legislation could be implemented.  If substances that are currently legal need, in the opinion of the Council, need to be made illegal, 

then the Council should lobby the government. 
These people need homes. We can ingest things in private but the homeless live hopelessly and society should help them. 

I feel that this would lead to particular groups being targeted unfairly - i very much doubt that it would be enforced in all cases, with the 
homeless being particularly targeted. In theory I have no issue with illegal substances being removed from persons, but I am wary of 

the clause that allows an official to remove property on the ground of their own presumption on who will or will not consume the 
substances in the area. 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
A homeless person may have substance and alcohol abuse issues but they have to live within the same society as the rest of us. I do 

agree that there must be control of these issues in order to ensure that the other homeless people and the public are kept safe. 

This is open to misuse of authority by both police and council officers! How can they read somebody's mind as to whether or not they 
intend to use the substance or not?! Anybody, at any time of day or night could be carrying alcohol around with them, maybe for a 

birthday gift to a friend, for a dinner party they intend to have later, to consume later IN THEIR OWN HOME...for a multitude of 
reasons. Just because a council or police officer thinks a member of the public looks like they will consume the alcohol, they could 

have it confiscated and given a £1000 fine?! Absolutely ludicrous! 
I assume this would apply to the general public not just to the home less people.Not happy with council staff getting involved with 

making decisions on whom to in force the law. 
 

There should be no further curtilage of responsible use of recreational drugs, which includes alcohol and tobacco, nor discrimination 
between them.   

This can and will be abused though, and will be used to remove Vulnerable people from the city centre into housing estates instead of 
giving them the assistance they need 

c) the authorised person has reasonable grounds to believe that such person is using or intends to use the intoxicating substance 
within the said area. 

 
I think this needs to be better defined. What are the reasonable grounds?  

 
Who is this going to predominantly affect? - the media are saying that this is being pushed toward removing homeless people from the 
area and these points seem to be carefully worded to avoid alluding to that. It would be nice to know who the projected targets of this 

initiative will be. 
 

Personally i am against this, as it is over the top. I have never experienced any anti-social behaviour in Exeter City centre. 
The proposal is too broad and depends too heavily on the subjective impression of individuals. This broad proposal lends itself to 
discriminatory application as to apply universally would require much more resource than the council or the police have available. 

It's an erosion of liberty and the council have no right throwing their weight about. If you don't like drugs, the police should have done 
their job in the first place by stoping the drugs entering your towns and cities in the first place. Focus on that and start sacking police 

officers who fail to curb drug supply to the UK. Spend money on providing PLENTY of clean, safe public toilets, that are free to use so 
that people don't have to urinate in the street. Perhaps if you provided it, you wouldn't have this hassle so much. As for. Drinking and 

smoking in the street... Well, you were the ones who banned smoking in the pubs, so where else are they going to do it?  
I am confused about the intention of this proposal. As far as I am aware, there is already an order relating to alcohol covering Exeter 
city centre, whereby police officers can confiscate alcohol being consumed outside of licensed premises should they see the need. 

Therefore this measure is already in place. Illegal drugs are illegal. Therefore police officers can and will confiscate illegal drugs 
whenever they discover somebody in possession of them. Therefore this measure is also already in place. Legal highs are not illegal, 
and therefore to allow confiscation of these substances in public places, when they are not confiscated from people in their homes, is 
to disproportionately target people who do not have private spaces in which to use these substances. If aggressive, violent or other 

criminal behaviour is occurring, the police can and will deal with those offences in themselves, but possession or use of a legal 
substance should not be grounds for confiscation of property. Most importantly I am very concerned with the suggestion of granting 

powers of confiscation to an 'Exeter City Council Officer'. There is no mention in your FAQs of who these officers would be. I suspect 
since you don't stipulate that they would be employees of private security firms which I strongly object to, however even if they are 

council employees I do not agree with non-police officers being given powers of confiscation in public places 
Such a regulation. Containing as it does, clause 3 opens up the possibility of harassment and searching of any individual whom an 

officer seems to be worthy of search. This can result in the victimisation of people who live outdoor lives, do not dress conventionally 
and/or behave in ways with which officers might be unfamiliar, e.g. People from non European cultures, people with mental health 

issues, disabled people particularly those living with autism or Tourette's.  

Page 95



This proposal could well be used to target vulnerable and/or homeless people - giving far too broad a power to Council Officers.  
Council Officers do not have the same extensive training as either Police Constables, or Police Community Support Officers.  Both 

Police Constables and Police Community Support Officers are more likely to have contact with people around the city and more skills 
to deal with them.  Additionally, it is too broad in that (c) suggests the authorised officer only needs to have 'reasonable grounds' that 

the person is using or intending using. 
"the authorised person has reasonable grounds to believe that such person is using or intends to use the intoxicating substance within 

the said area." : gives excessive discretion to the relevant person enforcing the PSBO. Almost certainly liable to bring within the 
criminal justice system vulnerable individuals who are best kept OUT of it.  

if an existing law is in place then only a POliceman is under oath to protect the people and uphold the law    who are  Police 
Community Support Officer or Exeter City Council Officer, to interfere with me as a freeman and U K subject  

How will the authorised person know if it is for intended use? This ruling is open to misinterpretation by the authorised person and 
could lead to victimisation. 

Firstly, there has been to my knowledge no evidence submitted to objectively justify the proposed new powers from organisations who 
look to help and support the homeless and those who may also be homeless and have mental health difficulties. 

 
Secondly, there appears to have been no evidence to demonstrate that existing powers are insufficient. 

 
Thirdly, as a general comment encompassing all the Proposals, it is clear that there is already legislation that could be used ; that no 

objective evidence appears to have been submitted to justify any of the Proposals and that the Council currently has a Homeless 
Strategy document out for consultation. This document if nothing else, should be dealt with before any attempt to introduce new 

powers 
 

The following is a "lift" from the "Keep Streets Live Campaign" 
 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems.  
 

Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to 
others, this measure, in contrast allows council officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to 
believe that they will use an intoxicating substance within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased 

and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted 
interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 

 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. 
 

It would be better for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact 
on the local community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if 

their behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
  

I dont agree with extanding these powers to council officers, i feel current laws around this behaviour are sufficient 
what qualufications do "authorised persons" have to judge intent? Surely the very exoressiin "legal highs"  mean no legal offence is 

committed by their use. 

Needs to be applied reasonably and not in a blanket or discriminatory fashion 
All needles, sharps and hard drugs should be confiscated but alcohol and soft drugs such as marijuana are used by a large portion of 

society; particularly alcohol.  
If this proposal of a blanket ban on the homeless using intoxicating substances is designed to clamp down on anti social behavior the 

council should consider a ban of alcohol sold in pubs and clubs as these establishments result in a greater magnitude of antisocial 
behavior than that of the homeless drinking on the street.  

The separation between the homeless and revelers frequenting licenced establishments is is quite simply, the homeless lack the funds 
to drink inside these establishments.  

I believe this proposal is an attack on the social class that is the homeless.   
The authority should consider the reason behind an individual using intoxicating products when dealing with them and do their utmost 

to resolve the core issue, often use of such products has a very deep and painful cause. 

These powers could easily and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as homeless or 
vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. This measure allows council officers to target people solely on the 
basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance within the PSPO area. This power 

would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the person wasn t drinking the alcohol 
at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. Also there is no clear mechanism for 
an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal 

purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better for the council and the police to 
focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local community. These known individuals 
could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their behaviour is having no detrimental impact on 

anyone. 
I agree with every aspect except alcohol - should be handled at officers' discretion (i.e. if they are drinking AND being antisocial/ 

aggressive, not just drinking) 

If the substances are illegal Police Officers and PCSO swould be able to deal with this without this additional power. 
There are enough existing powers already to stop problem drug taking and alcohol abuse. There must be room for discretion where 

people are enjoying the odd drink outside 

Page 96



 

There are laws relating to illegal substances, and byelaws about areas of the City wherein drinking is controlled or banned. This is 
sufficient to control a perceived problem, and automatic confiscation from a targeted group such is this is draconian and liable to cause 

more disturbance, subterfuge and hostility  
I agree in theory but I do believe a central area should be designated for homeless people to meet up and drink etc . They live very 

solitary lives and need human interaction too. If it is kept to one area with seating and perhaps some shelter they will be easy to 
control/police and yet they will be treated as human beings. 

The scope of this proposal is far too wide and open to misuse. Technically, anyone could have legally-bought alcohol confiscated at 
any time simply on the belief of a council officer 

Yes, BUT point c) should be carried out with leniency, e.g. in the way police etc interpret 'reasonable grounds' for asking someone to 
surrender drinks (alcohol etc) - ONLY if the drink has been opened and the person is in a place where the public are walking by/ sitting 

very close to them. They should be allowed to keep unopened drinks if they agree to put it out of public sight. 
This is just hysteria promoted by the press. If people are misbehaving, they can be dealt with by existing laws. The 'legal high' that 

causes most problem is alcohol.  

If it's possible to legally catch people in the act of using substances 
I cannot see how this is a manageable use of public resources. Who would this target? There are lots of different people in our society 

who possess intoxicating substances so surely all of them would need to be reproached not just the most vulnerable. 

These measures will involve searching people and it will be the homeless who will be subject to this and not other people in the 
community 

This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the person wasn t drinking 
the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. Also there is no clear 

mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained lawfully and for a 
lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. 

It could well be wrongly applied, for instance in the case of a police officer wanting to control or intimidate someone or 
misunderstanding the situation. It is too wide a power for the few cases where real public nuisance is occurring. 

NO 
 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
This is over-intrusive in people's lives. 

This is too broad and could apply to a eg bottle of alcohol that is unopened and gives too much power to the council. 
They should be left alone.Essentially the council intends to criminalise homeless people. 

I feel this will target the most vulnerable people rather than the general public. However anyone that is behaving in a manner that is 
likely to harm someone else should be dealt with appropriately and someone likely to harm themselves be given support also to ensure 

they do not have mental health issues etc and support is what they need not sanctions 
Trying to take alcohol away from impoverished alcoholics is a recipe for disaster, I can't believe it is seriously being proposed that 

"council officers" (ie low-waged, briefly-trained, and with unclear mechanisms of accountability for misuse of this power) are going to be 
authorised / asked to do this. it is about the most provocative action I can think of to inflict upon people who are addicted to intoxicating 

substances. It will lead to dangerous situations, and is an open invitation for the target individuals to get themselves in more serious 
trouble by resisting. If alcohol causes antisocial behaviour, or if illegal drugs are being used, then the police need to deal with it under 

existing legislation. 
Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 

the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 
homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
I am not at all persuaded that these draconian powers are necessary. 

If they are not causing anyone distress then I don't see it as a problem.  This is victimising homeless people - just because someone 
doesn't have a nice warm home doesn't mean they shouldn't be able to enjoy a drink. 

Too vague parameters for the 'authorised person' - making an assumption that they might drink! There are already powers in place to 
deal with antisocial behaviour, this is too heavy handed and not dealing with the root cause of the problem - why are the people 

behaving this way in the first place? 

Page 97



As a resident of the city, and someone who is regularly in the city centre both in daytime and sometimes at night, I find the powers that 
are being proposed excessive.  Whilst there are individuals whom the authorities may have to confront about their behaviour it is 

totally unnecessary in my opinion that anyone who has alcohol in their possession can be challenged and have items removed.  The 
accompanying assessment to this questionnaire makes comment on assistance to the most vulnerable who are 'on the street' and 
have a substance abuse problem, improvement and appropriate resources to give this assistance is what is crucial.  The money 

involved in implementing the proposed changes could be much better spent in supporting those who are 'on the street'. 
As stated, the power granted to the police and other officials is insufficiently specific and could be used to seize legally purchased 

alcohol even where it is not currently being consumed. The criterion of 'reasonable grounds to believe that such person [...] intends to 
use the intoxicating substance within the said area' is open to interpretation and as such is likely to be applied mainly to homeless 

people whether they are causing problems or not. 
The current alcohol free zone is used to confiscate alcohol from anyone drinking within the zone whether rowdy or not except when 

outside and of pricey wine bars. Is this just an extension of that order which also stop people who are unable to afford and expensive 
pubs from using these areas. 

NO 
 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
Many people who are homeless have mental health issues including alcoholism. There are already notices prohibiting drinking in 
certain areas of all cities. This is unnecessary and will mean that vulnerable people will be the people harassed. We need to have 

proper mental health support in our country and find ways to tackle young people taking legal highs not just banning them in public as if 
its enough to do 'out of sight, out of mind'. 

There is already enough legislation to cover anti social behaviour if it arises.  IT seems to me that this has the risk of officials taking 
pre-emptive action.  All of us are innocent until the courts proves otherwise. 

The scope of the powers is too broad. Persons carrying an unopened container of a substance that they acquired legally should not be 
molested in any way. Rather, authorised persons should concentrate upon those who are behaving badly, whether or not they are 
drinking at the time: this would include the many people who leave pubs and clubs in an intoxicated state and make trouble on the 

streets. 
I don't see why people should be criminalised for personal use of these substances, as long as they aren't bothering anyone else. 

People with drug problems should be helped rather than punished.  

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
If the police don't feel it is necessary to make it an offence to not give up whatever substance is here considered, then they know it is 
unreasonable.  They do have the right to arrest if unacceptable behaviour occurs as a result, which should be enough.  'Reasonable 
grounds' is a subjective consideration, one on which the police have considerable training and experience to make a judgement but 
which an Exeter City Council Officer may not.  Can we be sure that 'reasonable grounds' will not be affected by appearance which 

may put vulnerable people at unnecessary risk? 
Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 

the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 
homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
This is a serious coordinated attack on homeless people sleeping rough across Exeter. A person is at rock bottom when their 

homeless it seems Exeter City Council is promoting the kicking of these people when they are down.  

Homeless people should be liable under the same laws as everyone else, not subject to special conditions which infringe their liberties. 

Page 98



The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better for the council and the police to focus upon 
known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local community. These known individuals could be 
targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any 

person. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the person wasn t 
drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. Also there is no 

clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained lawfully and for 
a lawful, medicinal purpose. 

I can foresee circumstances whereby unopened bottles of alcohol is taken from rough sleepers, and believe this would be a breach of 
their personal freedom.  

A draconian response to a perceived issue regarding the public image of Exeter city centre. Legislation already exists to cope with 
individuals behaving in a harmful way to themselves and others. This proposal, which centres on preemptive action, will inevitably lead 

to targeting of vulnerable people who don't 'look' respectable. The lack of any proper means of regulating the behaviour of the 
'authorised' persons is also very worrying. 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area.The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better for the council and the 
police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local community. These known 

individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their behaviour is having no 
detrimental impact on any person. 

This could easily be misapplied to any person who has bought a bottle of wine or beer for a drink in the park or green as part of a 
picnic. 

I  consider it is not the business of government to tell people what to consume or where to consume it and I find the increasing 
tendency of government to try to exercise control in this area offensive and depressing.  When I find an area where a council has put 

up signs saying  alcohol consumption is controlled, I avoid the area. I certainly don't chose to shop there.  I've taken to doing my 
Christmas shopping in places in Germany where people wander round with their wine in their hand.  I like to feel I'm in a free country 

The careless disposal of drink containers (cans and bottles) should also be taken into consideration. 
These powers could be used against innocent people, who may have a bottle  of wine on a picnic. 

This is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. These powers will most probably be used to target 
vulnerable people such as homeless or people with mental health problems. 

Provides power to remove possessions based on suspicion they might be used inappropriately,  without evidence or proof they will be 
misused. Homeless people shouldn't be discriminated against, or the assumption made that they must be criminals. 

Leave people alone  
This legislation would be indiscriminate, would affect the most vulnerable and would end up being discredited like the 'sus' laws. It 
would also lead to disruptive behaviour if what the suspect was carrying legally purchased. There are already laws to apprehend 

people who are being disorderly and disruptive.  
It's the persons choice what they put in their body, so long as they don't hurt any one else. Rules like this cause more reaction and 

therefore harm as they feel threatened.  Most of our common foodstuffs (aswell as other things) are full of chemicals that harm 
(stimulate and depress) the nervous system, but no one talks about this, and this is through lack of choice. Cigarettes and vaporisers 

are some of the worst 'legal highs' too. So this proposal is hypocritical and backwards.  
I would agree if it were only for those drunk and disorderly. 

Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 
the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 

homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  
Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 

the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 
homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person. 
The proposal is draconian and is likely to result in the targeting of vulnerable people. I am quite sure that if I purchase a bottle of wine 

and carry it through an area covered by a PSPO, I would not be asked to surrender it. I am equally sure that if I were unfortunate 
enough to be homeless, or suffering from a mental impairment, I would be. There is no law against purchasing alcohol and there is 
already legislation to cover drunken or antisocial behaviour that causes offence to others. We don't need this, and the courts don't 

need to be swamped with cases of people unable to pay fixed penalty notices. 

Page 99



I believe that "c) the authorised person has reasonable grounds to believe that such person is using or intends to use the intoxicating 
substance within the said area." Is open to abuse by authorized persons who are prejudiced against certain people for what ever 

reason. It will make it quite easy for such a person, to negatively discriminate against someone based purely on nothing more than a 
negative bias. An individual may be carrying an unopened intoxicating substance to be consumed at home. An authorized person who 

is prejudiced against certain groups or individuals, could easily say that they believed that a certain individual was intending to 
consume their intoxicating substance, when in fact that was not the case. 

It is unreasonable that substances may be taken if officers believe there is an intent to take them even if unopened and the person is 
not causing a disturbance.  

Powers already exist to remove substances from people who are having a detrimental impact on other people and the local amenity. 
Removing any substance which is not in use is theft and a massive infringement on civil liberties. 

The potential misuse of this power is too great especially when dealing with vulnerable people. 
There are very few facilities for those with addictions..often the street is the only option. Young vulnerable people are told to stay away 

from Gabriel House as abuse is common...the street is the only option.  
I believe that there are already laws in place that deal with these concerns  

I feel this would become a confrontational and rather lazy response to people who are already on the fringe of society.  I'm sure there 
are individuals "known" for their drinking/drug problems, surely the money would be better spent addressing their 

housing/social/addiction problems.   
I am not confident that these powers will not be mis-used to target the homeless and/or vulnerably housed, and those with mental 
health problems. Absolutely, people harassing others, or otherwise causing distress and alarm, should face enforcement action. 

However, this measure would allow council officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe 
they will use an intoxicating substance within the PSPO area. People carrying legally purchased, unopened, containers of alcohol can 

have their property seized, even when they aren t drinking at the time. This is an unwanted and inappropriate interference with 
individuals  personal freedom. This is a blanket power that sounds suspiciously like an attempt to justify targeting our most vulnerable 

members of society. 
I have seen Exeter City Council enforcement Officers in the past ignore street littering and walking away from the person littering, 

because they are frightened of any confrontation. Useless 

An unwarranted interference with personal freedoms. The police already have adequate powers to deal with criminal behaviour...if and 
when it IS criminal. 

We are talking about human beings who are vulnerable and need support and care.  We all do what we can to survive and i, at times, 
have a drink to help me feel better.  These human beings have to be somewhere.  If you can provide a suitable place for them - great.  

If not - you can't just sweep them aside and pretend there isn't a real problem.  LABOUR - REALLY!? 
Yes. The Homeless obviously do not have homes, so have they have little choice but to consume their preferred intoxicants out of 
doors. Sometimes a drop of alcohol or similar is the only comfort in a cold & harsh world. I bet all you guys have a drink at home. 

These guys have no home. Have a heart & do not be so selfish!!! 
I disagree with the second part about "intent". Who is to decide what another persons intent is? So a person has just bought a bottle of 
wine to share with their partner at dinner, but a police officer, PCSO or council officer can confiscate it on the basis of their assumption 
of intent. Sadly none of those are above being prejudiced towards other based simply on appearance, ethnicity or social status, so this 

is highly likely to be used to criminalise the homeless, young people and other minority groups  
Whilst these powers could in theory apply to a young couple who had bought a bottle of Prosecco for an impromptu summer picnic on 

the green, these powers could easily be and will most probably be used to target vulnerable and marginalised persons, such as 
homeless or vulnerably housed persons, or people with mental health problems. Whilst no one could reasonably object to a person 
facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this measure, in contrast allows council 

officers to target people solely on the basis that they have  reasonable grounds  to believe that they will use an intoxicating substance 
within the PSPO area. This power would allow officers to seize legally purchased and unopened bottles containing alcohol, even if the 

person wasn t drinking the alcohol at the time. As such, it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals. 
Also there is no clear mechanism for an officer to establish beyond doubt that a so-called intoxicating substance has not been obtained 

lawfully and for a lawful, medicinal purpose. The PSPO creates a blanket power which is open to potential misuse. It would be better 
for the council and the police to focus upon known individuals whose actual behaviour is having a detrimental impact on the local 
community. These known individuals could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to every person, even if their 

behaviour is having no detrimental impact on any person.  

All you will be doing is to displace the problem (If it is such a problem), elsewhere. Look at the supply of the intoxications of any kind 
first, then you might begin to get it right. 

the authorities already have sufficient powers 
Try living on the streets without using some sort of intoxicating substance. Enforcing a ban will not help homeless people, it will only 

serve to  further ostricise them from society.  

It is not clear to me why such additional powers should be required, given that existing legislation on drunk and disorderly behaviour 
already empowers police to act against any person behaving in a threatening or antisocial fashion under the influence of alcohol or 

other intoxicants, and controlled substances are illegal anyway. In effect, the proposal simply criminalises the consumption of alcohol 
by the kinds of people who would be unlikely to be permitted to enter or remain in licensed premeses, i.e. the homeless and the very 

poor, even when used to no disruptive effect. 
I feel the area considered should be extended to include all of Flower Pot playing fields as there is a significant problem in this area 

already which will only get worse if a clamp down is put in place elsewhere.   

I agree if the individual is consuming the substance and refuses to give it up. Beyond that, I feel this proposal is simply targeting 
vulnerable people who have not, until they have started consuming, yet committed a crime.  

 
The statement "the authorised person has reasonable grounds to believe..." opens this proposal up to abuse. Ultimately it would be the 

individual's word against the "authorised person" which is only going to end one way and the individual is unlikely to be able to pay a 
fine or fight the case. 

I have witnessed antisocial behaviour by a group of vagrants in sidwell st and support any measures to prevent it. 

Page 100



It seems a bit much... I mean these people don't have much to help them cope with whatever bagage they carry, and prohibiting does 
not seem like the best option, as they are just going to do it elsewhere. 

It feels very broad; if someone is creating a large, genuine nuisance then I would say it is fair to take any intoxicant they have, but 
otherwise I don't believe it is fair to take someone's possessions so easily. 

Street-based alcohol consumption and drug use are a real community safety concern. Members of the public can find the behaviours 
associated with street-based consumption distressing, intimidating, or threatening; and the visibility of such behaviour can have a 
negative impact on fear of crime, and can also affect the perception of the city's day and nighttime economies. Added to that, the 

biohazard waste and litter associated with street-based use can pose public health challenges. 
However, as is so often the case, the powers afforded to enforcement services are not themselves the concern - but rather how those 

powers are interpreted and applied in practice. Evidence demonstrates that enforcement in addressing street-based anti-social 
behaviour from people with complex and multiple needs is only effective when integrated with a comprehensive, multi-agency support 

package. (Johnsen & Fitzpatrick, 2008; Johnsen, Fitzpatrick and Watts, 2014.)  
We would therefore offer our support in the granting of these powers providing that there was a commitment to defining a coherent, 

accessible, city-wide, multi-agency support package (a so-called "exit offer" for those seeking to leave a street-attached lifestyle) and a 
corresponding robust and assertive escalating process of enforcement, where the "exit offer" is re-emphasised at every stage of 

enforcement. These parallel, but integrated systems, should be co-designed by enforcement and support services, and form part of a 
city-wide, evidence-based approach to which all services are asked to "sign-up" to. 

This design process needs to be cognizant of potential perverse outcomes and unintended consequences of any actions - and prepare 
and design mitigating and contingency responses to minimise these effects. For instance, a "clampdown" on visible street-based 

drinking and drug use in the city centre might have the effect of displacing this activity to more "hidden" parts of the city. While this 
outcome might have a positive effect in improving the public's sense of safety, reducing the "gravitational pull" of street-based 
communities to other vulnerable people, and disrupting some drug markets; there may be increased risks of alcohol poisoning, 

overdose and drug-related death as users are more isolated, and less visible. As part of the design of both the support offer and the 
enforcement process, such consequences need to be identified and mitigated. 

Devon & Somerset FRS support the adoption of the PSPO for the area shown on the map. 
I not wish to be stopped if I am carrying a bottle of wine under these proposals as drafted, a police officer could legally seize  wine 

purchased and unopened. Here there is a blanket power which is open to abuse 

It seems to me that police already have sufficient power to deal with antisocial behaviour caused by drink, drug taking etc. Extending 
this power to lesser trained council officers could result in abuses and confuses an already sensitive area of policing. 

I totally and utterly disagree with the PSPO in its entirety. This is an assault on homeless folk, who need support not discrimination. 
Beds are not available for all homeless people, and the beds that are available end up accommodating revolving door cases, as many 
individuals are evicted from hostel accommodation due to lack of support for other issues (substance misuse, mental health issues). 

The fact that Exeter city council is considering implementing a PSPO disgusts me. I thought I lived in a caring city, not one that 
discriminates against some of the most vulnerable individuals within out society. 

This is not a good or well thought out way to deal with street drinking/drug taking. Alot of these people are vulnerable & need help & 
support. This is a very complex issue & this proposal will not deal with it.  

I agree with the proposal but feel only uniformed officers should be authorised. 
But I fail to understand what this adds to powers police already have to seize drugs 

I agree to an extent, but do not think there should be a total ban on drinking alcohol, only if behaviour is causing anti social behaviour. I 
do not think council officers should be given the power to confiscate. 

Support for self-medicating and homeless or displaced people must be considered.  The Equalities Impact Assessment is good on this 
but we know 'locally available services' are in short supply, which is why sleeping rough has become visible again. 

This infringes the rights of ordinary sensible people to go about their enjoyment of public spaces, for instance having a picnic in the 
park with a glass of wine or beer. 

This proposal is too loose in it's language and could in fact infringe on Human Rights. 
Addiction is a big problem however confiscation will not solve it. A demand for these items will remain and could lead to increased 

crime if they are forcebly removed.  

I do not agree that authorised persons have the right to confiscate substances if they are legal, and believe that if this were to come 
into law, would be discriminately used against the homeless population, or those who the person of authority suspects is homeless.  

These measures are draconian and arguably  violate human rights legislation  
I think people should be allowed to drink in public. However, confiscating intoxicating substances is much better than arresting people. 

Its threatening to already vulnerable groups 
Those who are most likely to be targeted by Proposal 1 are those who are homeless and have very few possessions. With insufficient 
support from the council, while these substances are illegal, they are constitute one of the few possession of value for these people. 

This should be taken into account when confiscating the substances.  
This is just going to victimise homeless people and will not help them at all. 

It his will be open to interpretation by police officers who are not qualified to know about medications, substance replacement products 
and the like. 

The main problem with the Proposal is the "if considered to be in possession". This puts too much stress on the judgement of officers 
which might themselves make nustake based on appearance of someone, and breaching privacy. 

A policy of confiscation that does not provide the individual user with support for their addiction or usage is ultimately meaningless and 
will result in more direct harm to the individual. Furthermore, the consequences of confiscation without any provision of support to the 

individual will most likely result in an escalation of begging and street crime. 
I personally find it more unpleasant someone smoking than i find someone having a drink on the street. When smoke is blown over you 

as you walk past this is disgusting and happens frequently.  

So from the outset the homeless people dont actually do anything particularly disruptive, and most of them drink or whatever in town 
that doesn't have much in the way of residential buildings so even if it gets a bit loud or whatever it's not really disturbing anyone. 

 
For Proposal 1, it is absolutely ridiculous that you think you have any right to take away the recreational activities of people who 

already have a shit life. It's like "oh i know your life is difficult, and this is one way you can actually have fun and a relief from that, but 
what if i just took that from you." Absolutely abhorrent.  

Page 101



 

I do not see how this will benefit the city centre and it will most likely result in people being pushed out and doing these same things in 
other, less safe places in the city.  

People using drink or drugs in public places is a real community safety concern and can be distressing to other members of the public.  
It can have a negative impact on people's perception of the City as a safe place to visit or live.  Waste and litter, in particular drug 

related litter is a public health concern.  However there is an issue in how these powers are interpreted and put into practice.  In order 
to be truly effective with people with complex drug, alcohol, mental health or other issues, there must be a comprehensive multi- 

agency response to individuals.  As Exeter CVS has put it, a comprehensive "exit offer". 
 

Having looked at the map, there may be an unintended consequence of the large area proposed for the PSPO and people will be 
dispersed into other more  hidden areas with consequent impacts particularly upon women or the most vulnerable in this cohort. 

It is much better if the police have the power to nip issues in the bud, rather than have to wait for an offence to be committed before 
they can take any action.  

Is this person harming others? 
If the substances are directly leading to anti-social behaviour, I agree with this. However, people should be allowed to be in possession 

of drink and drink in public places if behaviour is reasonable. 

It is unfair to assume someone may take a substance. How can this judgement be regulated amongst the police. It leaves authorities 
with an unfair portion of power which is based on what somebody looks like 

I am concerned about how these powers can be used against people simply for carrying alcohol, even if a) they are not consuming it, 
and b) their behaviour is not causing alarm, harassment and distress, as defined in existing legislation (Public Order Act 1986). I'm not 

sure how enforcement personnel are supposed to ascertain whether people possessing alcohol have the intention of consuming it 
within the defined area. It may also be difficult for individuals to prove that substances are for medicinal use, even if this truly is the 
case. Therefore these powers are too broad and open to misuse. I think legal powers should focus on the behaviours of individual 

people rather than broadly defining those who possess alcohol as being antisocial within the zone. 
I understand the need to prevent anti-social behavour, but are there not adequate laws existing already to deal with this? This proposal 

seems to give excessive power to officials. 

Sections b) and c) are too much open to interpretation. What is the definition of "reasonable grounds"? They sound like a catch-all 
devised to justify action merely on the say so of individual officers who, in the absence of any actual evidence that an offence had 

been/was being committed, can simply say that they thought an offence was going to be committed at some point in the future. 
Prevention might be better than cure but official intervention should nonetheless be based on the reality of a situation, not on an 

individual officer's imagined perception. 
It would be too easy to abuse the right to remove intoxicating substances that are being carried through a designated area without 

intent to consume them within that area. 

I can understand the concern. It can be concerning to see a group of people getting drunk or taking substances. 
 

However the proposal is incredibly subjective and therefore inevitably open to misuse. It is likely to disadvantage the young, the poor 
and the non-white.  

 
It is putting the PC, PCSO or Council worker at great risk of even unwitting misuse of their powers and it is ridiculous to suggest that 

we do not all have our own internal biases, however progressive we think we might be. 
This is a pointless measure if anyone is committing antisocial behaviour or is drunk and disorderly there are current laws to deal with 
those issues under the public order act or being drunk and disorderly I assume these measures are for people who are minding here 
own business Taking alcohol lawfully purchased is an attack on the vine tables personal freedom and is just bring done yo socially 

cleanse the streets  if someone is an alcoholic and has there alcohol taken without any medical support this is known to be detrimental 
to health and even fatal Anyone knows hat yo help vulnerable homeless people trust is required clearly this will be eroded by such 

draconian measures making it much harder to help the homeless  
Why criminalise people who are vulnerable and homeless  

The duty of the community (including the city council) is to protect all citizens. Instead of criminalising this behaviour, we should be 
finding solutions rather than moving the problem deeper and deeper underground.  

If you were homeless wouldn't you want to have something to drink?  
Have some compassion - I don't believe drugs should be allowed. But for alcohol most people can consume within the premise of their 

own home - for some the streets are their home. Try to see something from their point of view and not a privileged one.  
Why are we not addressing the causes? 

When you can't afford somewhere to stay, alcohol or other drugs are a rational method of dealing with cold temperatures.  
 

Also, people within the NHS I've talked to suggest that people often turn to alcohol to self-medicate in instances of mild or undiagnosed 
schizophrenia. It seems likely that this would be the case with many rough sleepers. You wouldn't take away their medication if it was 

prescribed - why do it when they've escaped the help of the health service?  
This is infringing on civil rights and freedom of speech.  

No details are provided in the proposals or FAQs as to why the proposals will deter alcohol and substance abuse more than the 
existing laws. Officers will apparently have the power to confiscate alcohol off any person at all who is carrying. Whether they do so or 
not will, it appears be at the discretion of the officer in question, leaving it wide open to abuse.  No reason is provided for such a wide 

ranging power to deal with a problem that is already against the law. No examples are given to demonstrate the inadequacy of the 
existing laws. As such this proposal appears to be completely unnecessary. 

Page 102



Many homeless people are alcohol dependent, removing alcohol from them could result in them suffering a fatal seizure. 
Threat of confiscation of alcohol from homeless people is likely to lead to incidences of aggressive behaviour. 

 
I suggest the provision of safe sleeping provision - this could be  a marquee with toilets, where people can drink alcohol if they wish to, 

as we who are securely housed can do. 
 

Many people view the PSPO as a city centre cleansing, implementing it is likely to push those who wish to be able to drink to the edges 
of the PSPO area, which will impact unequally on residential areas in Exeter. 

 
Briston have implemented a PSPO, purely to manage the use of legal highs, and I suggest this option be considered. 

This disproportionately affects homeless people and seems like you are attempting to legally target these people rather than help 
them. 

The litter left by drinkers and drug takers represents a hazard to my children and my dogs. Behaviour of those injesting substances can 
appear threatening and unpredictable and makes the city centre and no go area for us as a family in the evening.  

These proposals disproportionately affect the homeless and will not solve the problem of alcohol and drug taking, but make it more 
difficult to spot. 

 Currently the authorised persons are the police force.  This activity is already illegal and does not require any other agency to provide 
protection for the public.  Is this part of a gradual attempt to privatize law the law enforcement function?   Serious crime of this nature 

should be the sole preserve of the police authority. 
This proposal would exclusively apply to people who would not be breaking any national laws. All this would achieve is making the 
poorer people - the equality analysis form accepts this would target the economically disadvantaged - surrender what little comforts 

they have to those in power simply because it's discomforting to those in power. 
It will make the streets safer, eg less drunken and disorderly behaviour  

Good idea 
Proposal 1 is disgusting  

barbaric 
this will be aimed at homeless people. High street is a drink free zone but I have never had an open bear taken off of me yet, and yet 

homeless people do all the time. There is no way to implement this without it being unproportianley targeting homeless 

About time! 
What about late night drunkenness by nice middle class students, residents and soldiers, who are contributing to the 'night-time 

economy'? Will they be targeted too? 

You should buy them off the homeless people so that they can afford to buy food or lodging. 
If the person taking illegal substances (their status as such is questionable anyway - legalise, regulate and tax substances if you want 
to control 'illegal' drug dealing and consumption) is homeless, what good is a fine going to do if they fail to comply? They're probably 

freezing cold and have managed to get something that they believe will get them through the night. Why does the council or any body 
of national or local law enforcement have a say in the free adult choice of an individual? Have you ever been in their circumstances? 

I'm referring to:  
"£100 or the person could find themselves prosecuted. A breach is a criminal offence and there is a maximum penalty of a £1,000."  

 
It's ridiculous to fine people for taking drugs, publicly or privately. Give them help and support, not drive them further into debt and likely 

further into their drug addiction.  
Substances with the capacity to stimulate or depress the central nervous system could be anything 

Legal highs are just that, legal. You should not be extending this to include legal intoxications  
I agree that substances should not be consumed publicly and therefore should be surrendered. I do not agree with fines. 

Extremely rational proposal. 
Why do people think animals are here to benefit our selfish needs? 

So an ECC employeee is going to have the power to remove alcohol? What next? It definately should not be a judgement call for them 
or a PCSO 

Police already have the powers to address this issue. Legal highs will be made illegal in the next few months anyway so Police will also 
be able to deal with that.  

I don't actually believe that drinking in the street is of itself so bad a thing that people's possessions (bottle, can etc) should be removed 
from them.  I can't see how this will encourage anyone who has a problem with alcohol or drugs to engage with the available services. 

It will probably only lead to a worsening of trust between them and the police / council.  In my experience the most intimidating and 
offensive  drunk people are usually the ones who come out of clubs and pubs, where they have paid for the privilege to get inebriated 

(and for the use of a toilet!), who will be exempt from the PSPO.  I have never knowingly come across let alone been bothered by 
someone who has been taking legal highs, but I can't see that confiscating these substances can be anything but a token gesture. The 
main problem is that manufacturers of such drugs are making them and selling them, and that they are always changing the "recipes" 

to get round the law.   
 

If a person commits an act of public nuisance or affray as a result of being inebriated, there are already laws in existence to deal with 
those offences. Being drunk in public is not against the law. 

Allow them to get help no fined 
This could make legal and legitimate purchase of alcohol incredibly difficult for anyone that these "authorised personnel" decide they 

don't like the look of 

There are plenty of powers that already deal with this.  
No 

Police offers should not be given the power to decide whether someone is intending to consume a substance such as alcohol that they 
have legally bought and confiscate it from them 

What are you the Gestapo? 

Page 103



 

If we are allowed to digest intoxicating substances then what right do we have to take that away from others. We are faced with as 
much danger of students digesting these intoxicating substances than we are with everybody else.  

Say for example the Police stopped somebody carrying a large amount of alcohol to a private party. Under proposal 1, all the Police 
would need to do to confiscate all this person's alcohol is say that they believed the individual intended to consume the alcohol in a 

public place. This is an unverifiable and arbitrary judgement, for which the Police cannot be brought to account. 
The Police already have powers to do this. This extension of these existing powers seems to be an attempt to cleanse the city centre 
of Exeter of anyone who is poor and homeless. It is dealing with the symptom rather than the causes of poverty. It criminalises and 

stigmatises the homeless - I can't imagine that these powers will be used against hen or stag parties.   
Surely all these measures are enforceable at the moment.   I think you should be helping these most vulnerable people to overcome 
their problems. and if there are not enough professional agencies available to do this then put the blame where it should be with this 

Tory Government . 
Inhumane 

Take from the poor and give to the rich that made them poor in the first place 
It is dangerous and uneccessary to give Police powers to council officers. Furthermore, the proposed powers go way beyond Police 

powers as normally understood in the UK or any other civilised country. To allow confiscation of property without a publicly scrutinised  
judicial authority, because an "authorised person has reasonable grounds to believe" something, is contrary to the  UN Declaration on 

Human Rights and the UK Human Rights Act, so is clearly illegal. 
These things may get them through the day, how about you look at how you can help them instead of stopping them doing the only 

thing they can do to help themselves  

This seems to be an excessively draconian interference in civil liberties given that there is no stipulation that any harm or offence is 
required to justify the confiscation of legal substances. While it would be reasonable to assume that this power would not be abused 

there is not enough protection to ensure that it would be used ONLY to respond to public unrest (which is already possible under 
existing laws) 

I would like to see that anyone effected by or convicted under Proposal 1 is given ample attention by the authorities to ensure that they 
receive adequate support from a programme or charity that will work with them to overcome addictions to these prohibited substances. 

People can use intoxicating substances if they pay rent or from a bar.  People with no private space should have the same rights on 
personal liberty. 

Persecuting, destitute and homeless people 
See comments and questions in accompanying letter. 

This proposal must be universal - applying to all citizens if appropriate and not just the homeless. 
This is cruel and inhuman.  People with housing, sheleter, can smoke, drink etc.  Where else can they have some life. 

Yes and no it entirely depends upon the circumstances.  If the person involved in causing a public nuisance and does not appear to be 
destitute.  Yes, the substance should be surrendered.  If the person involved appears to be destitute - they are in need of help. 

There are many aspects of modern society that offend so why pick on alcohol and other intoxicating substances.  They're usually used 
by people who are 'outside society' for one reason or another and used by them as a prop.  Confiscating these things and criminalising 

behaviour is not helpful. 
Whilst no one could object to a person facing enforcement action if their behaviour causes alarm, harassment or distress to others, this 

measure, in contrast allows a council officer to target someone solely on thebasis that they think that they will use an 'intoxicating 
substance' within the PSPO area.  This power woud allow officials to take away an unopened bottle containing alcohol, even if the 
person wsn't drinking at the time.  it is an unwarranted interference with the personal freedoms of individuals.  It creates a blanket 
power which is open to misuse.  It would be better for the council and the police to focus upon people whose actual behaviour is 

having a detrimental impact on the local community.  These people could be targeted rather than a blanket power which applies to 
every person, even if their behaviour is offending no one. 

Only if this behaviour is likely to cause offence. 
Criminalisation of the homeless. 

If not, more crime. 
I think this proposal is a stupid and bad idea. 

Some people don't drink and want to sit in the dry. 
It will cause all sorts of problems for both the homeless and the council. 

This will only make a bigger problem for both the council and the homeless. 
I reckon some places on this area could be designated ok to drink. 

Kids shouldn't have to see it. 
This will only make a bigger problem for both the council and the homeless. 

I'm concerned that it disadvantages the homeless. 
You shouldn't be taking the little bit you have to satisfy your own needs. 

Will you be applying this to students? 
Leave the homeless alone. 

It is really silly to fine a homeless person on the spot. 
The measures set out in this proposal are excessive. 

No 
This will just cause many problems as taking a homeless persons belongings off them is like someone walking up to you and taking 

your home off you. 

It's disgusting that you expect homeless people to find a place or get fined £100. 
It's disgusting. 

Utterly unbelievable. 
Disgusting no respect for the homeless. 

Page 104



 

The proposal is as much about protecting and restricting the market as it is about the control of people's behaviour within a given 
space.  This includes their economic behaviour.  Surely the greater concern should be about the non-taxing paying multinational 

companies peddling overpriced tooth decay, obesity and diabetes to the people of Exeter, or to The Head Shops and their suppliers 
who openly sell unregulated synthetic poisons from Exeter High Street.  Corporate distribution and profiteering from the sale of sugar 

and drugs seem like a much greater anti societal issue than any individual consumng any substance anywhere.  And of course if these 
profiteering tax dodgers did pay the correct level of tax in this country there would be more accommodation available.  The council 

should pursue illegal trading on its high streets and not simply fine the hmeless for being homeless. 

Page 105



 
 

PSPO Consultation 
Responses to Restriction 2 

01/06/16 

Comments Proposal 2 

This proposal in my opinion has been long overdue, the powers to prevent begging and drinking in a public place have been available 
to enforce for many years. 

It should be a criminal offence to do any of the proposed intentions in public place anywhere, Anti social behavior has achieved a new 
level and its long overdue.        

Public toilets are closing. What are desperate meant to do? 

Taunton have a pop up night time urinal that has proved successful in providing a solution rather than simply banning 

Amenities - such as public toilets - should be provided to reduce this. This includes toilets that are open later and in busy street areas 
to allow people to have an alternative. Additionally, getting agreement from high street restaurants / bars that they are happy for people 

to "pop in and use the bathroom" would be helpful to know it's acceptable alternative.  

Should exempt small children under the age of 5. 

This proposal is only acceptable if there are sufficient open toilet facilities available in the evening and late into the night and early 
morning. 

Please install more public toilets. You can't beat Mother Nature. 

Nothing wrong with having a wee in a bush if you're caught short! 

Sometimes you gotta pee 

Allowance for anyone who offends,but has a medical reason for doing so. 

Surely this is already against the law? 

Where can late night revellers go to the loo, there are no options then urinate in the street, why not have some 24hr toilets like you see 
in other large cities, even if there is a charge 

Sufficient toilet facilities must be made available, the current trend seems to close the public toilets. 

as before 

The zone should cover the University area too. 

i fear this rule would only apply, wrongly, to homeless - police would smile and wave on people of my social status.  

Must be facilities to use available 

Exclude children in need 

On grounds of hygiene and decency how could anyone object.  

Welcomed 

There are not enough public conveniences open; particularly at night. 

People will always urinate but there are limits to where they can go to once the public conveniences are closed?!! 

If the areas can be patrolled in the  evenings, that's when most incidents occur.  

Stop shutting public conviences. 

I agree that people should not urinate willey nilley, but you don't say what you are going to do about it. On that basis I disagree. By 
definition, now most public loos or demolished or expensive, what are these people (homeless = no home, no bathroom) supposed to 

do? You need to work at the problem at source 

This is of course a great idea if you have free publc toilets or urinals portoloos available for the homeless.but not if there is no 
alternative gotta go somewhere  

Extend the are up through St James to the University. 

I agree, except for on beaches where sometimes there are not many options. It should be allowed if the person takes themselves away 
from public view. Also there is a problem with public toilets not being open in the evening so where are you supposed to urinate. Pubs 

etc do not let you in without buying a drink and often all public toilets are shut. This is not fare. 

If someone needs to urinate discreetly on a beach at midnight or behind a bush in a park it doesn't bother me.  

No public facilities after 6pm so where can you urinate and why are late night venues like McDonalds allowed to trade without having 
their toilets available to their customers. Will you also fine the taxi drivers from the Sidwell St Rank who regularly urinate in the alley 

leading to the bus station? 

Again huge probs. along riverside. 

Provide 24 hour toilets case solved. You can ban something when there us no alternative that sounds heartless. 

Provide public toilets at nighttime for the use of everybody who may need them, such as the French pop up toilets. 

Are there any temporary toilets for those leaving clubs etc who may have drunk a "few" beers? We all know that when you want to go 
you have to! 

But build more public toilets 

Many of the public toilets have been closed or require money to use. How can you implement this without providing more facilities? 

My approval is on the basis that adequate facilities are provided for thebusebof the public at all hours. At present I'm not aware of any 
public toilets open late at night, and presumably this is the most likely time for the offences to occur. Do you think people really want to 
just urinatebin public for fun ( in most normal cases) or do you think it is done through inability to find suitable facilities? If you provide 

those facilities, I'm sure the problem with dry up ( if you'll excuse the pun) 

But please make sure toilets are open longer in the evenings for the use of the public. There's a real problem when toilets are needed 
and not available in the evening. 

See comment on 1.  

Whilst I agree with this proposal, night time toilet provision in the city is appalling. Address this problem and it Amy not be necessary to 
enact this proposal. 

This needs to be extended to cover leaving cups, bottles etc used as urinal, and needs to be extended to defecating, in any public 
place! 

Page 106



Public urination is disgusting. pure and simple. But, if you are homeless and the Council facilities are closed and you are unable to go 
into a public house to use the facilities, what do you do? Again, i feel as though this is just targeting the homeless. i'm sure many have 

witnessed other sectors of society doing this, I know I have 

But, please ensure adequate facilities. Some of us have small bladders! But on a more serious note, some rough sleepers do not have 
a choice where to "go to the loo", particuarly at night. Can more facilities be made available for these people? 

The urinating is also a health hazard  

As long as public tolets are opened in the night  

Catch them at it is the dilemma 

I assume there will be massive investment in public toilets that are open 24 hrs...especially on all public beaches? 

Seems perfectly sensible 

Even though this is disgusting - there are NO toilets available (as far as I know) outside of commercial premises after a certain time. 
Where are the homeless meant to go if they need the toilet? 

Are there any public facilities which are open 24 hours a day? I am particularly thinking of those who are homeless and have no other 
appropriate option for reliving themselves.  

I wonder whether there are sufficient public toilets available in the city centre.  There used to be some behind Dingles, but I think they 
were closed for that open cafe.  Were they replaced?   

Whilst I agree in principle that urinating in the street is wrong, the reason people do it is because there are not enough places to urinate 
or they are not aware of the places where they can do it, especially at night. Will the council spend more money putting up signs and 

provide more OPEN facilities throught the area? If not then I don't support this proposal. 

If public toilets are not available, then what are people - especially the elderly, the homeless and peoplewith bladder problems meant to 
do?  Make sure clean public facilities are available 24/7 in all areas before you criminalise natural functions. 

Nothing to fault on this one. Disgusting to walk in some places to find the smell unbearable. 

This could only be reasonable if suitable alternatives are available at all times. 

I have urinary problems resulting from prostate cancer. I have needed to pee in public though not too publically so far but including 
public park areas.  

Some effort also needs to be made to ensure adequate public toilets. 

I would have liked a third possibility of 'Unsure' as an answer.  Is this not covered by existing laws/by-laws?  Would this be applied 
universally, or to target the homeless (for example, what about a child who needs to urinate urgently)?  I believe that the real purpose 
of this proposal is to criminalise the homeless and for that reason I do not support it.  I do agree that urinating in public is in essence 

unacceptable, but believe this to be covered by existing laws.  Prosecution should be subject to the process of law, not PSPOs. 

Yes I agree it is antisocial to urinate in public.  This should only breach an order if the person urinating has access to public 
conveniences within a reasonable distance.  Public conveniences have been closing for many years now - what I would ask the 

council is one to do in such circumstances? 

If all establishments that must provide toilet facilities must make those facilities available free of charge to non-customers. 

It is already an offence to urinate in a public place and we do not need another pointless and unnecessary law. Again, only Sworn 
Police Officers should be allowed to deal with such matters, not some jumped-up Council 'jobsworth' with an attitude problem and 

probably corruptly incentivised. 

Is the council planning to spend the generated revenue on building new free public conveniences to replace the ones which have been 
demolished in order to create this situation in the first place? 

Homeless people have no choice but to do this. Provision of public toilets would be a good idea. 

sometimes potty training kids cant make it to a toilet!  We mustn't criminalise them! 

Where there are not public facilities, what can you expect homeless people to do? 

Too often toilets are closed. If you really need to go you really need to go  pubs so.  Dogs seem to be aloud to urinate anywhere 

how about opening more public toilets, night time urinals etc solve the problem at source 

Since there are not enough public free toilets available this is unreasonable. It would be the right decision if free public toilets were 
available. 

Are there any public toilets in the City open for 24 hours?   I do not think that there can be many men who have not been "taken short" 
at some time in their lives, and have had to use somewhere out of sight, as in a hidden space in a park.   In addition, as in other 

european countries, people are entitled to go in to any bar and use the toilet if they need to without being a customer.   Can you see 
this happening here?   How many publicans will gladly allow the poor homeless to come in and use their facilities? 

I obviously don't want people urinating in the streets but the question for me is: are there enough public toilets? Exeter also needs 
more public fountains. 

As there are no public facilities available for many hours of the day; those in bars and restaurants are often for customers only. The 
need to urinate is not always controllable and cannot be legislated. 

I would agree if the Council had reviewed the amount and location of toilets available to the public and was prepared to invest in further 
toilets if there is insufficient to meet people's needs. These facilities need to be well sign-posted so even a stranger to Exeter can find 

their way to a toilet when needed. 

Provide more public toilets 

can more of these temporary urinals/toilet be provided because if you're living on the streets where do you go? 

Public toilets are often closed very early. What are people supposed to do in these circumstances? 

However I think providing adequate places to toilet for the homeless that are accessible 24 hours per day, should be a pre requisite of 
the clause being included. 

not enough provision is provided for public urination after a certain time and until this changes I cant support this  

Do you have public toilets open 24 hours a day? I doubt it. What do you expect people to do? 

While broadly this is an acceptable policy, if used mainly to criminalise homelessness I find myself having to disagree with its 
implementation. Certainly if there are no public toilets available I disapprove of criminalising the act. 

We just need to ensure that appropriate facilities are readily available and well signed. 

Tell this to dogs cats and all the other creatures that regularly urinate defecate on our streets. Provide more toilets!! 

No, the proposal should not procede. 

The police already have powers to act in this matter they do not use the powers they have. 

Page 107



More public toilets are needed so they don't have to use public places 

More public toilets should be made available - not just urinals for men. 

I would agree with it if accessible, free, 24-hour toilets are available. For people sleeping rough they may have no choice. 

There are far too few public toilets for people to use 24 hours a day.  If a person is urinating in a quiet, respectful and modest fashion 
and not causing offence or a health hazard because there are no toilets available then to my mind this should be considered 

acceptable. 

Sometimes you're just caught short; there are very few public toilets. 

This would be an entirely sensible measure if the council provided more clearly signposted 24hr public toilets. 

I do not support urinating in the street. However education from an early age is the way as well as sufficient sanitary provisions suitable 
for the current 24 hour culture. 

I am surprised that this is not already an offence. Incidences like this might be reduced if there were free public toilet facilities in the city 
centre, I am not aware of any. 

Surely there are already sufficient laws and powers to control this. 
Where there is a demonstrable problem, try installing more toilets or using splash-back paint before resorting to legal measures. 

This is a hard one because there aren't enough public loos. When I take my three year old grand daughter out and she needs to go ,we 
have to stop in the street and discreetly hold her to have wee. Will this mean I could be fined ? 

This proposal assumes that anyone who needs to go has access to a toilet within a short distance, and that s/he has money with which 
to pay for it if required. 

This becomes a challenging issue as an increasing number of public conveniences are shut down. 

These proposals will criminalise homeless people who do not have access to toilets,especially at night when any public toilets are likely 
to be locked. 

I would agree with the proposal if I could be satisfied that the Council provides adequate, and safe, public toilets which are open and 
patrolled on a 24 hour basis. As I can not be sure that this is the case, and it is very unlikely to be the case, it must, therefore, be 

possible for the homeless to urinate, discretely, in public when they have no other option available. I do not see what they are 
supposed to do otherwise. This is not a practical proposal.  

Who put in the exemption. Seriously stating the obvious.  Someone is clearly getting paid on number of words.  Try sticking with what 
is actually intelligent and relevant please. 

 
Funnily enough you are missing out Pregnant women who are caught short and need to use a police officers helmet to urinate - 

perfectly legal in public. 

I will be glad to see this proposal introduced as and when the police etc become responsible for enforcing dog owners to stop their 
animals messing and urinating in the streets - much more of a nuisance in my book. 

Without access to a good number of public toilets, this can be difficult - especially with toddlers.  Not a major issue in Exeter, to my 
knowledge.... 

There are not enough public toilets in Exeter, I have incontinence following a childbirth injury nine years ago and I often have to find a 
bush in a park when there's I alternative.  If there's nowhere to go, how can you make a necessary bodily function illegal? 

This is already an offence. You don't need it. 

At night public conveniences are often locked and rough sleepers and others have little choice but to urinate in a public place after 
public conveniences have closed  

This would only be at all practical if you had an abundance of free 24 hour public bathrooms.  

More publc toilets should be made available. All of us can be caught short on occasions, and those on water tablets find it hard to go 
far from home as the open public toilets are very few and far between. As a former irritable bowel syndrome sufferer, the first thing I 

needed to do in any town or village I visited, was locate the toilets. Sadly, these are minimal in number now. 

While l agree with this proposal, l would expect it to be supported by the provision of public toilets which can be accessed 24 hours per 
day. You make the assumption that anybody wishing to use toilet facilities will be using pubs or restaurants. This is not the case as 

there are many rough sleepers within Exeter who would not be able to do so. Without an amendment to this proposal, l could not fully 
support it. 

Whilst I do not like seeing people urinate in the street, individuals would not engage in this behaviour is sufficient free public toilets 
were available 24 hours a day. Therefore the better proposal would be to invest in additional public toilet facilities free at point of use 

for all, rather than criminalising those who end up having no choice (or are caught unavoidably short!). 

Most of he city centre toilets are closed at night, even ones for disabled people. if this is sorted out people will stop urinating in the 
streets etc. 

more public toilets should be made available or better signage towards them and have them open later or 24/7 if possible 

Afe there sufficient open and usable publicly accessible facilities so that people cannot be caught out? Including incontinent people or 
small children? You can only criminalise this if the person in question had the reasonable option to use a public facility and this was 

open and usable. 

No. You lock public toilets far too early.   If a person is caught short and takes reasonable steps to avoid leaving a mess or causing 
offence there is no victim here. 

This is too wide ranging.  Small children often need to urinate at time which could be classed as inconvenient.  If an area is chosen 
which is out of the public eye and where the urine will be soaked into the ground I can't see a problem.  Discretion is required on the 

part of the person in authority 

Whilst public urination is unpleasant, the lack of adequate public toilet provision is a problem that confronts homeless and vulnerably 
housed persons most acutely. For someone who lacks a secure abode and is sleeping on the streets, it can be difficult to find a safe 

and private place to use the toilet, particularly throughout the night. It is hard to see how issuing spot fines to destitute persons is going 
to make a meaningful impact on the issue of public urination. There would need to be exemptions made for vulnerable people for this 
measure not to have an adverse impact on the most vulnerable members of society, in the absence of those exemptions, and with a 

lack of evidence of adequate provision of public toilets, particularly throughout the night, I cannot agree with this proposal. 

There should be exemptions for medical conditions and "emergencies"  - e.g: some older men, and the very young, are sometimes 
overtaken - and where the person has gone to some trouble to secure privacy. Someone taken short should be able to dive into 

bushes or behind walls and relieve themselves. Common sense says so, but officials are sometimes lacking. 

Page 108



In practice, given the limited number and opening times of public toilets, this is likely to have a disproportionate and unfair impact on 
the homeless. The inclusion of 'any road, footway, beach or other area to which the public have access without payment' is a very wide 

scope, and includes instances where no public nuisance would necessarily be caused. 

Perhaps some more public toilets would alleviate this problem?  

The yes is qualified by a requirement that urinals must also exist within a reasonable distance.   
 

 In France  have seen ( only practical for men I think) large blow moulded polythene 'urinals' at public events. 

What about very small children? Sometimes there is simply no time to get to a toilet! 

I work in the town centre and start work at 6am every day. Walking to work through Exeter high street at that time is scary because of 
the amount of drug users and drunks roaming around at that time of the morning. I have to walk through the alley way next to house of 

fraiser to get to work, I am often confronted by people ther urinating, not only is it disgusting and smelly but I also feel very 
uncomfortable and unsafe. I'm a young woman in full time work and feel that this would really be a step forward if these actions could 
actually be dealt with rather than these people being able to get away with behaving This way and ruining the city centre for the rest of 

Exeter.  

With so many other cultures coming into our society unsociable things like this are becoming almost normal to some people; this trend 
must be reversed in order to keep our dignity and respect for proper behaviour as we know it in our country. 

It is easy for an office worker to consider such a thing. I work outside, even though my Industry is covered by hundreds of rules and 
regulations, the provision of toilet facility's seems easily omitted. I am often, as a last resort, found peeing in the bushes. My Doctor 

tells me I am doing myself damage holding it in too long. My son holds it in all day and is greeted by a "No operatives past this point" 
sign on the door, on his return to central office.  

A group of vagrants openly urinating on the cathedral school door leading to Cathedral Green in mid afternoon is just revolving.  Quite 
unacceptable.  The narrow footpath along our garden is casually used as a urinal by vagrants and youths which makes a disgusting 

mess. 

They do this with no regard for the general publics and even in front of children.  Dreadful. 

I am ticking 'no' because not sure whether  Section 329 of the Highways Act 1980 makes provision for FREE toilets.  Not acceptable 
that people sleeping rough must pay 20 or 30p.  Also, too many toilets are too often closed (e.g., Buddle Lane and Cowick Street) 

I don't like people urinating in public - but there is a totally inadequate provision of free-of-charge public toilets open 24/7 in central 
Exeter, and this issue needs to be addressed first.  

My only concern is that those sleeping rough should have access to toilet facilities overnight - there should be at least one public/free 
facility in the city centre that is open 24 hours.  

common decency prevents people urinating on the street. There is no need for a special law about it. 
To help with this, all the toilets in Exeter city centre should be free to use. 

If we as a community find this to be unacceptable, then a specific by-should be proposed, debated and passed. i would be in favour of 
such a by-law should it include exemptions for instances where the act is not in public view, e.g. not in a play area in the presence of 

minors, an area not frequented by pedestrian or motor traffic. 

This should be under a public nuisance basis not fee to be applied for no reason.  There should be no victimisation given closure of 
public toilets and for people on the street at night.  They need help not criminalisation. 

If there are no public toilets open, and no access is available for the people. I agree with this proposal where public toilets are OPEN 
and within 10 minutes walk of the person's location. Otherwise you are punishing people who haven't got a nice plumbed in toilet. 

Which is mean spirited at best, or nasty at worst. Are homeless people supposed to not pee from 7pm-7am? 

This is a fair proposal. There are free toilet facilities within Exeter and so long as they exist there is no reason for people to have to 
publically urinate. 

Although I agree with this on one level, we must consider the homeless who may not have the means to enter an area that can only be 
accessed using payment and they should not be punished for a bodily function. Furthermore I have never considered public urination 

to be a considerable problem in Exeter and so I think that the benefits of this proposal would not outweight the consequences that 
would be most felt by the more vulnerable citizens of our community. 

I hope discretion will be used in situations where a small child or person with a medical condition have "been caught short". 

I only agree with this if there is provision for homeless people to urinate somewhere. Provide them with some safe and nearby facilities 
(not to mention the shoppers). 

Don't charge for public toilets. If someone cannot afford 20p to use the toilet, it leaves them with no choice but to relieve themself 
elsewhere. 

there should be some kind of 24 hr public loo which may prevent the problem of urinating in eg the Mary Arches carpark. 
What have the homeless folk to say about this? 

What if you are pregnant and have no access to a public toilet? What if you suffer incontinence and would rather not urinate yourself 
through your clothing. 

If you do not include behind a tree and discreetly within the phrasing of this proposal, then I agree that street urination is not 
acceptable. However, what about those that are homeless? What if they have nowhere else to go? What if there are no shelters 

available and no public toilets open at night? Or they do not have the cash to pay to use a bathroom? 

You might want to build more public toilets, and keep existing toilets open at night (possibly with a pay barrier to prevent abuse). 

This is only fair if there are public toilets open at all times. Are there? 

There are many spaces that these people SHOULD be allowed to use. The beach and the riverside being just two.  

Not urinating on a beach or park seems a little over the top! It might be more appropriate to restrict it during busy times.  

Old Tiverton Road and Sidwell Street should be included in this proposal 

Some medical conditions lead to the urgent need to use the toilet, and difficulties with bladder control are common in old age. If the 
City Council is not prepared to make free facilities available within the designated area, this could lead to penalty orders being given to 

respectable citizens who had no intention to offend, and may already be deeply embarrassed, but had no physical choice. The 
explanation given in the FAQs that people could "go before leaving" shows no understanding of the relevant biology. 

Sometimes when walking in the countryside on public footpaths it becomes necessary to urinate discreetly.   This should be included 
in the exemption.  

If public toilets are provided then that would be fine.  

Page 109



This is far too sweeping. Where are homeless and impoverished people supposed to go to urinate? I do not believe pubs and clubs will 
provide them with access. If there are concerns about this then the City Council should make permanent all-night provision. 

it would be good to have a website we can upload photos of people doing this onto 

The council will need to ensure there are enough public toilets available to be able to enforce this 

While I strongly support this proposal in principle, it is hypocritical to introduce it without making sure that there are safe, clean public 
toilets available in the city centre on a 24-hour basis.  I entirely agree about the need for pubs and clubs to make such facilities 

available to their customers - and for their customers to use them - but unless and until there is proper provision for those who end up 
sleeping rough on the streets (and who certainly are not customers of the pubs and clubs), this proposal is untenable, because for 

those people there are no realistic alternatives. 

On condition that improvements in the provision of public toilets is much improved, and in the case of young children sometimes there 
is no option but to use a public space. 

Make more FREE public toilets available and then people wouldn't urinate in the street.  

If there are no public urinals available then it is unfair to fine people (particularly rough sleepers) for relieving themselves.  

Absolutely.  We know the problem about the shortage of public toilets but there ARE toilets in the city centre so there is no excuse 
really. 

Only as good as the enforcement of the Proposal. Will there be prioritisation of resources to cover? Currently resources are prioritised 
in the city centre which has pushed the ASB issues out to the centre fringes and our neighbourhood St David's has been hard hit. 

Ditto Prop. 1 

The council should ensure adequate toilet facilities are available. 
Please see my comments at question 3. 

The area should be expanded to include the flowerpot recreation fields and the fields that run beside the flood prevention scheme. 

At times when there may be particular predictable problems (e.g. freshers week) some work with interested parties (e.g. Student Guild) 
to pay for temporary toilet blocks in strategic positions be explored. For ongoing issues with vulnerable groups, look for some form of 

solution with agencies involved and those vulnerable groups. 

There aren't any temporary urinals that I am aware of. If they are provided and then not used there may be a case for the above. Until 
such time however, I am not in favour.  

This is targeting homeless people and I'm not in agreement. I agree that people out drinking should be urinating in the street, but for 
people whose home it is, I have no problem.  

I would agree if there were adequate public toilets available. 

Any homeless person needs to urinate. If the council insist on closing public toilets at night then where exactly do you expect them to 
urinate? Are they suppose hold on for over 12 hours before they can use the toilet.  

Needs to be clear will not effect cildren where there are no public loos. 

This proposal will needlessly and unfairly effect Exeter's homeless community. In the FAQ sheet it is stated that there is "little excuse" 
for publicly urinating as "all drinking establishments have toilets for use by patrons." Rough sleepers are unlikely to be able to use or 
afford these establishments and so will find themselves without anywhere to go since public toilets are locked during the night. The 

venues are also unlikely to be open all night so there will be a large window where Exeter's homeless community will not be provided 
for. The claims of the  FAQ sheet make clear that the effect of this proposal on Exeter's homeless has not been considered. While I 
would rather people didn't urinate on the street, given that homeless people have no other choice I am strongly opposed to punishing 

them for acting out of necessity. If this order were come into place then it would have to be in conjunction with public toilets being made 
available throughout the night. 

Is this to include the St. Thomas area? 

make the urinator clean up the mess afterwards 

Public conveniences must be made available all night in affected areas. 

yes, its all needs cleaning up and currently gives a bad impression to visitors and can be dangerous to children and mothers if the 
offenders are in the parks and open spaces. and certainly gives a very bad immage of Exeter 

If a person does not have a home of their own, and no public toilets are open, then what are they supposed to do? Pubs, clubs etc. 
don't like homeless people coming in to use their toilets, and they aren't open all night either. 

Again this proposal must clearly apply to all persons urinating in a street or public open space. By far in most cases urinating is done 
by clubers on weekend nights. 

Provide public conveniences for people to use and the problem will mostly go away.  

Council officers and police have better things to do with their time.  Or should have.  

This will negatively affect the most vulnerable people in our society. These people need help rather than being victimised and 
persecuted.  

The acts of persecution and discrimination of the minority and vulnerable groups are abhorrent and comparable to some of the 
measures introduced by the Nazi Party before the Second World War. 

Mahatma Ghandi said "A nation's greatness is measured by how it treats its weakest members." Based on this quote, if these 
proposals are introduced, this Nation would be quite distant from greatness. 

I most certainly do not agree with this! As a 48 year old woman I am constantly appalled by the closure of public toilets and the lack of 
such facilities, for the homeless this is an even worse situation - at least I can ask a restaurant politely to use their facilities - sometimes 

I have been refused, they are never going to say yes to a poor homeless person!  Further there is perfectly adequate existing 
legislation that can be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

If we were to help the homeless, and make sure they were safe, and had their needs met, which includes access to a toilet, that is the 
answer, we really can't keep demonising them. They are no different to us, except they have no home to go to. We wouldn't treat a dog 

like this, we would make sure it had shelter.  

I am an elderly 70 yr old lady who has had to discreetly pee when necessary in public. Pee is sterile and every human has to pee. 
There is also a lack of public amenities 

There is no need for these by laws. Police need to use the powers they already have. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

Page 110



Existing legislation should be enough, what about people without access to suitable toilets, for example during the night when no public 
toilets or venues are open? 

Existing legislation adequate  

We live in a diverse country with varying customs; I am used to urination in the street as I've lived and holidayed in France like many of 
us. 

Circumstances alter cases. A small child caught short - could it be prosecuted, or its parent? 

Whilst I think such practises as urinating in the street as disgusting, what facilities does the council provide for people in the city centre 
during the night? All the toilets are locked. I suspect a lot of pub-goers and homeless people will be damaging their bladders... 

There is no provision for people with medical conditions, desperate to urinate and when no public or e.g. shopp convenience is nearby 
or is cl;osed. Provided discretion is used and no exhibitionism is involved there are legitimate reasons why some people may need to 

urinate in a public place 

Homeless people may not have access to lavatory facilities and must not be further penalised for their unfortunate circumstance. 
Antiscocial behavior of say, intoxicated youths, are already covered under other policing measures, 

Whilst no-one wishes to see others urinating in public places, there are sufficient numbers of homeless people on Exeter's 'streets' that 
there will be times (especially at night) when they will not have any access to public toilet facilities.  This proposal would effectively 

criminalise them for their homelessness.  Not a good idea! 

Again I thought laws existed to deal with this sort of nuisance and what happens to people "caught short" late at night when the public 
toilets are all shut?  

Again too easily abused to unreasonably target those most at risk and mentally ill.  Existing legislation is adequate. 

Supposing the homeless are urinating (or indeed defacating) because they are ill?   Are there Public Conveniences that are free of 
charge in Exeter?   If not, why not? 

Homeless ;people may have 'emergencies' 

Stop closing public toilets. 

How many public urinals have been closed? Who will be empowered to look for urinating people, for heavens sake. 

What else are people supposed to do when public toilets are closed? 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

Mostly agree, but, under current wording, this would include a homeless person who has no access to toilet facilties urinating in an out 
of sight bush or waste area. Consequently, I feel that the extent of this proposal is unreasonable. 

I do not agree, as many 'ordinary people' (ie; non vagrants) often find themselves desparately in need of a toilet when there are none 
nearby, and this could criminalise them unessesarily if stopped by police.  

Provide public toilets 

Most men have been caught short at some point and have had to urinate in public and doubtless some women, most children also.  
So this makes most people's actions illegal.  I understand the limitation in retail areas, but more free public toilets should be provided. 

There are insufficient facilities available at night, and even the bus-station conveniences close early/mid evening.  A person may be 
'caught short' quite innocently and some because of age or a medical issue. 

There need to be free facilities for homeless people to urinate otherwise they have no options 

There needs to be more public toilets with 24/7 access. Anyone can get 'caught short' especially if they have a medical condition. 

Adequate powers exist for this purpose. Council could/should ensure that people have safe places to urinate, particularly at night 

Everyone would agree that public urination is antisocial and deeply objectionable, however local authorities should be obliged to 
provide adequate facilities for the public, which unfortunately, is one of many public amenities that seem to be disappearing. Our 

society in the 21st century should be evolving positively, not regressing.  

only if open public toilets are available 

Isn't this already an offence? 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

What about rough sleepers? I would go along with this measure if all publicly accessible businesses were also obliged to allow anyone 
to use their lavatories  

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people, such as the homeless, who do not have access to public toilet 
facilities, especially during the night-time hours.  Again, to prosecute these vulnerable people in such circumstances would show no 
understanding and would be completely counter-productive as regards their situation.  Existing legislation can adequately be used 

against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

unless it is an emergency for the person 

The city council keeps closing public toilets and reducing opening times, whilst in the town centre charging has been introduced. 
Recently members of my family have become disabled in a way which requires regular trips to the toilet, which aren't available thanks 

to council policies. 

We need to provide more public toilets open twenty four seven and make sure it's non payment operated. In the 19th century there 
were public baths places to get clean. If we are going to act in a dracoion manner then reestablish these as oppose to criminalising 

people. 
P 

I don't agree with the proposal although I agree that urinating in the street s not right. There isn't an abundance of public toilets are 
there- also people who are homeless cannot afford to pay to us a public convenience 

I am appalled that a Labour council is considering putting a policy in place which is legalises the abuse of the poorest and most 
vulnerable people in our society. These people need our help. They are not criminals. 

There are plenty of laws already in place to deal with aggressive or violent behaviour. Urinating is not a criminal offence in this country 
and to make it subject to sanctions in this manner is reminiscent of the policies put in place in Germany under the Nazis. 

What if somebody with a bladder disorder has to urinate. That would be embarrassing enough without being fined in addition to this. 
Again handing powers to unqualified individuals is dangerous. 

Page 111



The FAQ mentions that rough sleepers are not targeted yet states that public toilets are not available at night and states that patrons of 
pubs etc can use those facilities before they leave the venue. Exactly what does Exeter council expect those on the streets to do? 
They can't afford to use the establishments yet there are no available toilets. I understand the issues of public toilets being used in 

inappropriate ways at night however facilities need to be provided otherwise the homeless are effectively being criminalised for natural 
bodily functions. 

Provide Dutch style urinals. 

Exeter needs more public toilets available 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

The provission of toilets in the city is not adequate during evening and night time hours and bars are sometimes reluctant to allow 
people to use theirs, urinating in the street is disgusting, but so is poverty and heavy fines just place people in hardship. Not everyone 

who might need a toilet but not be able to find one would be of antisocial character or intoxicated. I think this is not the right way to 
solve this problem 

With Councils having income from national government cut, public toilets are seen as an easy target for savings.  

Yes but only if this is going to apply to people who populate Exeter's pubs and clubs on Friday / Saturday nights. But there are no 
public toilets in Exeter after 7pm - soagain this is probably a better solution. 

What if someone is desperate and they've done their best to find a discreet place to pee like behind some bushes in a park?  Hardly a 
criminal act, is it?  Overkill again.   

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

This is likely to make life more difficult for the homeless of Exeter. Where is the compassionate of the council leaders? Please think 
again. 

I am assuming that there are public toilets in sufficient numbers that are open 24/7 -- is this true?  Otherwise, where can a homeless 
person pee? 

WHERE DO YOU "GO" when the toilets are shut? 

Of course, one part of the equation is the provision of clean and accessible public facilities. 

I believe it is already against the law, but doesn't seem to be being enforced, judging by the condition of such places as Parliament 
Street. 

There are not enough public urinals. Spend a bit of money and put up a few pissoirs. Stop being so coy about a bodily function. 

Yes if there is adequate provision of free toilet facilities on a 24 x 7 x 365 basis in the immediate vicinity. 

Is this really a problem in Exeter. In my experience it is not. 

But I note that the council provides urinals at new year to allow toilet facilities to the antisocial rich. 

Only agree if the council provide appropriate official facilities 

Aren't there already public disorder laws to control this?  Why make it a specific crimiinal offense? 

Yes in general but not sure why it has to be a law most people are discreet and anyone else can be ignored its a bodily function and 
really we don.t need to be controlled like this. 

All acts of "making use of the facilities" should be done in their respective designated areas i.e. Public toilets. I also think that all 
outdoor public toilets should be open at all times, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.  

There are too few public toilets these days and I have often been in a city I don't know well with no alternative but to find somewhere 
quiet and pee on the front tyre of my vehicle (legal when driving is your job) but I would prefer a public loo 

 You have closed down many  public toilets what do you expect 

Have you made sufficient provisions for widespread toilets available 24 hours per day, or have you closed down many public toilets 
during the last few years.  If the latter, then criminalising a function that sometimes can not be avoided is wholly unfair. 

The law must already cover this! Anyone who does this is in need of help; not persecution! 

This is already covered under the Public Order Act as it could cause offence to the public or damage to property. Police currently have 
the power to deal with this on any street.  

Unless public toilets are opened as an alternative this proposal should be dismissed. Whilst I do object to people urinating in door ways 
and other street places, I would consider behind a bush acceptable in the absence of public conveniences. 

provide public loos that are open! 

It is implicit in this specification that 'street' could not refer to a beach or e.g. a public-access coastal or moorland footpath, since neither 
of these exist in the city centre.  It would be inappropriate to prohibit people from relieving themselves discreetly in either of those two 
environments. [I would ask also that the spellchecker applied to surveys such as this one use UK English rather than US 'English' - I 

find it invidious that 'centre' is flagged as a misspelling of 'center' for a survey re a UK city.] 

as i said previously if you help by providing some provision then people will not need to urinate in the streets. 

I agree with this statement as it's a disgusting and destructive way of behaviour to the community. 

Please provide enough public toilets and maintain them, could employ a homeless person to do that? 

I object to the seeking of additional powers where the council already has remedies under current legislation. 

If this is introduced access at least to public toilets should be available 

If there are open public conveniences available. 

However, use of a public toilet must be available 24/7... 

Perhaps people would not if there were adequate public toilets? 

Would have thought this offence was amply covered by other laws. Also what about pregnant females? 

 But it would be TOTALLY WRONG TO IMPLEMENT THIS if a person is homeless and therefore has no private access to sanitary 
facilities, is being discreet and not urinating in a public  hard surfaced area such a street, car park etc  IF THERE ARE NO PUBLIC 

TOILETS OPEN AND ACCESSIBLE FOR THEM TO USE 

Again.  Why is the person urinating.  Are they vulnerable?  Do they have a toilet to go to?  We need to find out why and address 
that, not prosecute them. 

Actually the students are the main culprits here.  They have no excuse.  But anyway, using the law to bully people is not the way. 

Page 112



The exemption only includes temporary toilets, therefore permanent toilets are not exempt. There must be some provision for going to 
the toilet when in public places, toilets should not be locked at night. Presumably defacating in public is not antisocial, you would have 
to prove the person was also urinating at the same time. What about people urinating into a receptical or pad, would that also attract a 

fine? 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

Isn't that the law anyway? How about stopping all the drunks urinating in the streets. The homeless are a tiny tiny percentage of this 
problem.... 

the council has been saving money by closing toilets for years.  Now you reap the reward.  It is not fair to expect people to walk a 
quarter mile to a public toilet and then to pay for the privilege. 

As with RIPA 'mission creep', these powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet 
facilities, especially during the nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave 

inappropriately, including public urination. 

What happens when a homeless person needs the toilet when public facilities are unavailable? For example in the early hours of the 
morning? 

 
I'm not sure the policy makes have really thought this through from the perspective of a homeless person. 

There are no public toilets in Exeter which do not cost money to use. It is completely unfair to expect homeless people to pay money to 
use the toilet when they cannot even make enough to eat. Set up a public toilet that doesn't cost money to use (which should be a 

thing anyway) and then homeless people will have somewhere safe and sanitary to perform their very basic bodily functions.  
Where on earth do you expect them to do it otherwise.  

I cannot agree to this proposal because the council is closing public toilets and when nature needs to go there should be adequate 
public provision within the city areas. Damage to health can be caused by attempting to stifle the need to urinate.  Expecting business 

to allow the public to use staff toilets is unreasonable and poses among other things a security risk 

Again, existing legislation could cover this. Homeless people will be adversely affected  

Most of the public toilets in the city centre and not available without a charge, which I think, frankly, is absurd. Whether you are 
homeless or not, members of the public, especially those who are struggling to pay to feed themselves, should not be taxed for 

relieving themselves. Reprimanding those who are urinating in the street, most likely because they are choosing not to spend their 
money on using public toilets, but rather to find food or shelter, is frankly disgusting, as well as waste of police and community officer's 

time and energy.  

In exceptional cases some people have no choice but to urinate in a 'public place' where they are desperate and there is no immediate 
public urinal facility. In such cases it would be vital for absolute discretion well away from public view. 

Nobody is keen to see people urinating in the street. Even those doing it would probably prefer an alternative. A civilized society 
provides the means for people to relieve themselves (at no direct cost). It doesn't chase around after them issuing fines. 

Some people drink the stuff, what's the harm? Otherwise, the dreadful and unsanitary condition of some of the public toilets in Exeter 
(the mens' toilets next to the public library for instance), and particularly those in areas with drug problems are so horrible or worrisome 

to use that I can completely understand if parents for instance would prefer to let their children urinate against their car tyre before 
leaving town.  

 
Before passing this law, I think it would at least be fair to access how accessible some areas' public toilets are after around ten or 

eleven at night, as many of the public toilets are sealed off from public access (e.g. the Guildhall toilets) without nearby alternatives; I 
fail to see how making people urinate themselves rather than break the law could be a step forward.  

Adequate restrictions already exist and legal penalties are available. 

If people need to go, better in an open space than a hidden passage or doorway where the rain does not wash it away so it stinks and 
goes on stinking.  Sometimes there is no alternative nearby.   

Only if adequate facilities are provided 

where are the destitute supposed to go 

This proposal I believe is largely targeted towards homeless people who often don't have access to a public toilet especially during the 
night. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

Potty training children occasionally need to urinate in public spaces. It is also something that dogs do so commonly, it seems strange 
to make this a criminal offence. 

he law as it stands should be used.. Otherwise, mind your own business or ask parliament to change the law. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

Are we sure people without a home have access to public urinals? 

A beach, or park or rest area are NOT streets-and should not be treated as such. There are adequate laws in place regarding indecent 
exposure. If someone is caught short on a walk in the countryside they shouldn't be treated as a criminal or have it suggested the 

behaviour is similar to a drunk person urinating I the street.  

There are existing laws covering this and it could be used to target vulnerable people who may not have access to facilities. Not 
needed. 

Should only be enforced if there is an open public toilet within, say, 500 meters. 

Yes in theory. However, a homeless person does not have access to facilities 24/7 

yes good idea 

As public conveniences are in ever shortening supply, it is quite possible that any individual could be 'caught short'.  While the idea 
behind this proposal is understandable, it could be misused. 

When there are public toilets available you may do this. 

I agree with this, but i think the provision of public, free toilets should be addressed and increased, including facilities available at 
nighttime. If there are no publicly available facilities it is unfair to penalise someone who is urinating in a public open space simply 

because it is the only place available to them. 

Page 113



The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

I do agree. However the Council should ensure portable toilets are provided and maintained within a reasonable distance so that they 
can be used, thus eliminating the need for anyone to urinate in the street or any open public space. 

If people need to go and are discrete and relatively hygienic about it, it seems rational that they should be able to go. Obviously not on 
the high street, but in a field, on the side of a road or down an alleyway is reasonable enough. 

How many times have you held your child over a grate, at the side of the road, behind a tree in a park when they can't hold it 
anymore?! Are you going to give children a criminal conviction?! There's not enough public toilets as it is, many have been closed 
down and what about the poorest in our society who don't have a home with a toilet and can't nip into shopping centre toilets etc at 

night? What, exactly, are they supposed to do?!  

I would if the council provided free toi 

Consideration needs to be taken into account for the homeless, where are they supposed to go when they need to.  If no public 
conveniences are within easy reach for instance. 

Homeless people have no where to go at night. 

Laws already exsists for this I understand. 

The agument about 'going before you leave' is fine, but discriminates against the homeless who do not have this option, and makes it 
an offence to be 'caught short' for any reason.  The existing laws on indecent exposure are adequate.  The 'mess' of public urination 

is insignificant compared to that caused by disgarded food and vomit. 

Urinating in public should not be allowed by the person doing the said urinating should be allowed to finish without any harassment or 
physical contact being made. The removal should take place after the urinating has finished 

There needs to be specific account taken for medical conditions (for example pregnancy) and disability. The council should also 
consider appropriate provision of public facilities. 

Provide more free toilets! There ain't enough obviously.  

I assume pregant women will be exempt as this is a national acient law that has never been recinded 

Invest in outdoor urinals for the weekend like the ones they have in Bristol and other cities.  

Where else can people urinate if they find themselves having to sleep rough? If the council could provide 24 hour conveniences where 
and when they are needed this would make sense, but rough sleepers are faced with locked toilets through the night. Where are they 

supposed to relieve themselves? 

It is likely that this would be used to target rough sleepers who have no access to public toilets, especially at night.  Presumably the 
Public Order Act 1986 could be used where urinating in public was judged to cause Alarm, Harrassment or Distress to other members 

of the public.  There are also no details as to who would be the enforcing officers. 

No detail of enforcement given or suggested. Therefore it is not possible to comment further. Is the matter dealt with by a fixed penalty. 
Does the authorised person wait for the urination to cease before acting. Very poorly drafted. 

no there already laws in place regarding this offence that can controlled by a policeman  

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. 

 
Crucially there appears to be no objective evidence submitted by the Council to suggest that existing legislation cannot adequately be 

used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

inadequate provision of toilets make this impossible to enforce. 

I think that the number of public toilets, open 24 hours, should be increased in order for people suffering from homelessness to have a 
place to safely and easily urinate without breaking this prohibition.  

This is sensible provided that there is adequate toilet provision which is available and safe to use at the times when people mioght 
otherwise urinate in public 

I would agree if access to toilets are available within a reasonable distance.  

As long as those who are living on the streets have facilities that are easy to acces and always open to them. 

Existing legislation can already adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including urinating in public.  

Seems sensible, though keeping public toilets open would surely help? 

If the urination involves indecent exposure than i agree it should be discouraged, but if someone does not have access to a private 
facility to relieve themselves i dont see how they have any other option but to use a public space (unless you expect people to soil 

themselves). 

So where is a homeless person to go,- especially at night. Providing this is discrete I would want to leave the law as it stands 

But again there are sufficient laws to control this behaviour, and it is a issue of enforcement not new high-profile bandstanding 

Please make sure there are more public loos open at all times...the worst offenders in my opinion are the drunks coming out of clubs 
and pubs...it is disgusting and totally uncalled for. They should be fined a lot more. 

I broadly agree with this as urinating in the street is not pleasant, however, if this is to be implemented the City Council must ensure 
that they provide enough public toilets which are kept clean and safe to use (and open). 

It is not always possible to find a public toilet. I propose the council provide more public toilets before this proposal is brought in. 

Is this not covered by existing public nuisance laws? 

Yes, BUT a 'first offence' warning should be given to those urinating in a semi-public place (e.g. behind a building/ somewhere not 
clearly an 'open' area), and police etc should allow the discreet use of bushes etc where no toilets are available (especially at night)   

and more free public toilets should be provided. 

Sometimes it is unavoidable and is better than urinating down oneself.  

Wouldn't the application of any PSPO would be too late, after the event? 

If the council has not provided public conveniences in the near vicinity then discrete urination must be expected. 

If you provided adequate public conveniences, people wouldn't pee in public. The fact is that in our country there are people that have 
mental health problems, no job or prospect of one, no benefits, addiction problems and no home. Rather than make this country a fit 

place to live in and supply the much needed services, you just want to criminalise the most unfortunate and vulnerable. I suppose 
nothing but these peoples deaths would please you.  

Page 114



It may be the case that some people have no option if they are homeless or if they have a medical problem or illness that means they 
can't get to a toilet in time. There should be some clear exceptions in this case and I hope that the police will use some discretion. 

There are rough sleepers around the city centre who genuinely do not have access to toilet facilties at night.  Criminalising a basic 
human function is unjust. 

This would be too much control over our public spaces and our natural needs. There are hardly any public toilets in the centre of 
Exeter to make this viable. 

Any person , as long as toilets are open/available 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable, disabled or ill people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, 
especially during the night. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public 

urination. 

Again, this is too wide a power, which takes no account of circumstances. It will target the homeless, the mentally ill and vulnerable. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

Providing there are open public facilities ( toilets ) available in close proximity to said parks. 

I do broadly agree with this but would expect a lenient approach to be taken if, for example, a pregnant woman was caught completely 
short and went behind a bush or something like that. Also, it is incumbent on the Council to provide public conveniences so that people 

can go to the lavatory when they need to. 

Should be allowed to urinate unless there are public toilets within half a mile and providing urination does not take place in gardens of 
private residents.   

This is already covered in existing law 

I agree that urinating in a public place should be discouraged. 

Not free toilet facilities in Exeter open 24 hours a day 

I agree that urinating in certain public spaces is totally unacceptable and it is worthwhile trying to find ways to prevent it. However, 
criminalising anyone who has a wee behind a bush, or finds some other innocuous place but then gets caught, is utterly draconian and 

against natural justice. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

I am not at all persuaded that these draconian powers are necessary 

This is really difficult - if there are no free public toilets open in an area, what are people supposed to do ?  This should only be 
enforced in areas where there are toilets freely available. I would prefer the ruling to be that people cannot urinate, defecate or vomit 

on the pavement or against any building.    

The council should provide adequate public toilets 24 hours a day if they want to stop people urinating everywhere.  Again victimising 
homeless people. 

If someone has no other place to urinate, it makes no sense that they should be punished for doing so as it is a natural human 
requirement. 

Suitable toilet facilities must be provided 

it is a human right to expel body fluids and waste products.  whilst polite society governs that we should use bathroom facilities, public 
toilets are few and far between and locked at night.  Many homeless people are very respectful and will urinate or defecate in a 

discrete area in an emergency only.  What would you do in the middle of the night if you were not able to find any public toilets.  I 
agree with people being stopped from urinating in the streets - as can be seen by revelers on nights out.  It is the homeless that have 

no choice that I can understand their need to urinate in a park, for instance.  

This seems to be targeting the most vulnerable - how many homeless people have access to a working toilet 24 hours a day? 

Access to appropriate toilet provision is extremely poor in the city centre at night time.  What are those who are forced to be on the 
street supposed to do?  Urine-soaked doorways to shops are undoubtedly unpleasant but so is the need to use those doorways as 

your shelter for a night. 

In the absence of sufficient provision of public toilets which are free and open at all times homeless people often have no option other 
than public urination. Where this is a problem legislation exists which can be used to deal with it. 

I would agree with this if public toilets were open during the evening. There is also people that have medical issues that makes 
urinating a rush job. There should be a clause in this legislation to be exempt people that have made a reasonable attempt to conceal 

themselves from view and are not damaging property e.g. behind a bush. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

Not all of the public toilets in Exeter are free, so especially for the homeless finding a place to relieve themselves can be a trouble. It is 
unfair to ask them to use up, what might be the only money they have, on using the public toilets, when they could be using to feed 

themselves. Providing more free public toilets with the special blue lighting would help.  

The problem with this is that most of the people you will 'target' so to speak are the homeless - they have no other place to urinate, 
what do you expect them to do? I think obviously urinating in a street is not ideal or sanitary, but these people simply probably will not 
have the money to pay to use a public loo. If they have any money things that they will prioritise will be food and water, not toilets. This 

is an issue that must be handled with care - different circumstances merit different responses: urinating in the high street, bad; 
urinating in a bush, less bad, etcetera. 

What are people supposed to do when all the public toilets are closed at night? I sympathize with businesses who don't want people 
urinating in doorways but what can you do when you are homeless. Don't make this an offence that homeless people cannot avoid! 
Also if this does go through, are these 'Exeter City  Employees going to get training in dealing with vulnerable people in stresses 

situations? 

Providing there are ample public toilets available 

When I had small children and I was halfway around a supermarket, there was nowhere to take my daughter.  I ended up leaving the 
trolley by the checkout and taking her round to the back of a building in the car park. We found a drain, so that it would not contaminate 

anything else, but I don't know what else a mother could do in this situation. 

There is legislation in place if someone is offending the public through their behaviour.  If the City Council is aware that some people 
are unable to access public toilets - perhaps it need to review the accessibility of hygienic, pleasant to use public toilets in busy areas. 

Page 115



This is really not a serious matter, and can be dealt with under existing laws relating to causing a public nuisance and/or indecent 
exposure. The proposed new provisions would cause disproportionate harm to vulnerable people. 

I agree that people shouldn't urinate in public if they can avoid it, however homeless people often don't have a choice.  

While in principle I agree that public urination is wrong and problematic, there is already adequate legislation designed to deal with this 
issue and extra enforcement is not necessary. I also think that the city needs better provision of toilet facilities that can operate later in 
the evening, even if not all night. This will not just be pertinent for homeless people who are limited in choice of facilities, but also to the 
wider city, especially as the growing restaurant and nightlife culture of Exeter emerges. Consequently, I think this part of the PSPO is 

meaningless currently. 

Your faqs site those leaving pubs or other social venues, making the point that they could use the facilities offered on the premises, but 
make no mention of those living on the streets who do not have access to these facilities or public conveniences especially at night.  

Existing legislation is adequate against inappropriate behaviour which includes urinating in public places. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

This is a serious coordinated attack on homeless people sleeping rough across Exeter. A person is at rock bottom when their 
homeless it seems Exeter City Council is promoting the kicking of these people when they are down.  

The heading for this section should read "not urinate or defecate ....." 

But only so long as public toilets are available. People with homes to go to can wait to get home!  What do we expect homeless 
people to do if they need to go to the toilet and there are no public facilities open? 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

In the FAQs it states that there are toilets in pubs, cinemas, restaurants so people have the opportunity to go to the toilet before 
leaving. What about rough sleepers who may well be denied entry to these establishments? 

Draconian response that seems to have been drafted as a means of catching out vulnerable and homeless people, especially during 
the night. Existing legislation is already sufficient for dealing with serious cases of public exposure/urination. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

During hours when toilet facilities are closed, especially the very few public toilets which do close at specific early times,there can 
sometimes be no choice, especially for homeless people, or someone just caught ' short ' at an inconvenient time. 

Unnecessary ; sufficient powers already exist 

This targets not only vulnerable homeless people but also the elderly who sometimes cannot reach a public toilet in time. 

I have no problem with people urinating in the street.  dogs and cats do it all the time and I don't see any reason why people shouldn't 
. If the council wants to provide facilities why not permanently open free urinals like they have in France.  those I see in Britain have 

inadequate opening hours and excessive charges 

Unless public toilets will be made open and available 24/7 free of charge then I do not agree with a proposal that harms the vulnerable 
who may have no access to toilets.  

Where should people without access to toilets go throughout the night? 

Vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities especially at night time would be targeted. The existing legislation 
can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately. including public urination. 

If it is during the day when public toilets are open and available, then yes it would be acceptable but where homeless people cannot 
access public toilets and have made attempts to find somewhere private I can see that this may be the only option. You can't punish 

people for needing to urinate in public when you have closed available conveniences. 

Existing powers already cover this, it also discriminates against people who don't have access to their own toilet, or are penalised by 
public loos being closed at night.  

Public toilets are not always available. Have a more relaxed attitude as the French  

This should only be considered if there are sufficient public facilities available. Toilets should be provided at all times for those who 
have no home. Existing laws can be used for those displaying inappropriate behaviour. 

As public lavatories are sometimes locked it would be wrong to prohibit urinating during periods when they are locked 

The fact that you have to pay for most public toilets marginalizes people who can't afford it, especially homeless people - where do you 
expect them to go when nature calls?! It's natural, and who are you to criminalize this? Public toilets should be free! This would solve 

the problem!  

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

I might agree with this if councils were not closing public facilities, or closing them at night. You can't have it both ways! 

However more public conveniences at night must be provided. I have been refused entry to use a toilet at an establishment simply 
because I was not a customer. There are times when you have to go, times when you are no longer able to hold it. Without access to a 

public lavatory, or if being refused access to an establishment so as to use their lavatory, what option does any one person have? 

There are already laws in place to prevent this 

If there were public facilities readily available in safe location at all times at  no cost this may be acceptable, but that is not the case. 
This would also have detrimental impact on families as small children sometimes need to urinate at short notice and urinating in the 

street may be the only option. 

we do not have enough public facilities for the homeless 

I think this is already an offence .  

clearly no one wants to see someone urinating publicly but are there adequate public toilets open in the evenings/night when the bulk 
of drinking takes place?  Is this yet another easy/lazy way to deal with people who may well have housing/mental health/social 

difficulties. 

It would be too easy to use these powers to target vulnerable people lacking access to public toilet facilities, especially overnight. 
There is already adequate legislation in place to respond to those behaving inappropriately, including public urination. 

Public toilets need to be open so that street homeless have somewhere other than the street to urinate. 

At least one facility in Exeter must be kept open for an appropriate amount of time.i.e. 24 Hours 

Page 116



It is the council's intention to close all toilets to save money. Even though I would not use the public toilets due to the dirty state and 
stench of smell. Plus of all the anti-social behaviour going on in them, the cleaners turn a blind eye, again because they do not like 

confrontation. 

I've lost track of the number of occasions I've been 'caught short' only to find no public convenience...or closed/out of order signs. What 
about tiny children. The police already have powers to deal with criminal behaviour 

Provide necessary alternatives.  Human beings need to function.  What do you propose they do? 

Again, with no home to call their won, what are they supposed to do. If you don't like it, give them a home!!!! 

That would be fine if the council provided sufficient, safe and clean public toilet facilities, but they don't. So again the vulnerable groups 
will be most likely targeted by this clause. plus there is already effective legislation in place concerning public decency to tackle any 

problem with urinating in public. 

The powers could too easily be used to target vulnerable people who do not have access to public toilet facilities, especially during the 
nighttime hours. Existing legislation can adequately be used against persons who behave inappropriately, including public urination. 

Urinating, defecating and sexual activities in public places, has been going on as long as I can remember and probably long before 
that. It is part of life which only offends a small minority. 

With the closure of public toilets, there is no where for those who have no home to go 

Yes, always allowing that sufficient provision of public toilet facilities has been made. Otherwise, it simply gives authorities another way 
to penalise homeless people for the 'offence' of being homeless. 

Please take note of my previous comments. 

Surely measures to help avoid the problem would be preferable to this measure? Introducing public urinals (like those seen in London) 
would seem an obvious alternative. 

They may have no other place to do so. Even public toilets you may have to pay for.  

if it is in a allywy it's not such a problem, but on main roads it is. 

Public urination (and defecation) in the street has a clear impact on public perceptions of the city, and on its public health - and should 
be discouraged. 

 
That said, the City Council and others (retailers, premises that function in the nighttime economy) have a clear responsibility to ensure 

that an adequate number of toilets are available and accessible to the public in order that any enforcement action might be deemed 
reasonable. This is particularly important for those members of the public that might have medical conditions.  

DSFRS supports this measure. 

While the public toilets are locked at 7pmthroughout the city this is unenforceable and would fall if challenged in court  

Again, urinating in public is already covered in detail under  Section 5  of the Public Order Act, 1986. The act is very fair in that it does 
not criminalise those who have no choice but to urinate in public spaces, yet it robustly prohibits antisocial urination - particularly where 

other options are available. The broader terms of  this proposal are unfair. It is absolutely abhorrent that the failure of Exeter City 
Council to provide sufficient public toilet facilities in the city centre should result in the criminalisation of citizens. 

There are inadequate public toilets as it is, and those that exist are locked in the evenings nights and early mornings.  A homeless 
person cannot easily go into a hotel or pub or cafe and ask to use their facilities and in any event they are not available at all times.  

This proposal is cruel unnatural and oppressive. The problem is not limited to the homeless.  Even the most respectable people 
occasionally have to use a bush or tree. 

I ask where you expect street homeless individuals to go to the toilet when the public toilets are closed? This appears to be aimed at 
street homeless individuals who do not have access to a toilet. 

How many fines are you going to hand out to pub goers on a weekend? The last person I saw urinating in the street was a middle aged 
man in a suit.  

Again I'm not sure what this adds to laws that already exist especially given that Exeter is not awash with free public WCs that a 
homeless person might be able to use. 

Adequate provision for homeless people needs to be made available, somehow. 

Unless there are public toilets readily available 24/7 we should not persecute the homeless for needing to urinate. 

Sometimes its 3am and you really need to pee 

I would agree with this if the council could provide a viable alternative to people who need to urinate (which is a basic bodily function), 
such as having 24/7 public toilets available in strategic locations, with no cost at point - of - use. 

It is not a matter for enforcement - it's a matter of providing free, open toilet facilities for the public to use 24/7. 

This would be a reasonable suggestion if there were more public urination facilities available in Exeter. 

The idea that the public have to enter a private establishment or an area where one only has access by paying, to urinate, really strikes 
me as draconian and out of touch with the reality of living in a city.  

Where are homeless people meant to go? 

Keep public toilets open at night. 

Those without a home in Exeter have no where else to urinate! This is a proposal that will criminalise a biological function of the 
homeless! Provision must be made for them before this proposal is implemented. 

This is just going to victimise homeless people and will not help them at all. 

Homeless people have no access to toilets after the public toilets close. This action will criminalise them for needing to urinate.  

This could be a valid Proposal if there were more public urinals, but for someone who doesn't have the option to go home there is 
effectively no place to urinate.  

The absolute lack of public space urinal and toilet provision makes this proposal a tad ridiculous, if there was the provision of public 
space toilets then certainly a measure to encourage usage would make sense, however the abscence of an alternative option means 

street micturation is an inescapable reality. 

There are no public toilets in Exeter open at night, so where do the homeless go? Especially with the closing / cut of funding towards 
their services. 

I don't believe that criminalising this further will help to change the homelessness problem in Exeter. Our city need an abstinence 
based recovery program for drug users found using the public toilets which should be available 24/7.  

Until 24 hour public toilets are avaliable this is an impossibility  

Page 117



This should be discouraged but is not helped by the fact that all public toilets are closed overnight and hence not accessible to the 
public, including those with medical conditions.  The City Council has a responsibility to ensure that adequate facilities are available so 

that any enforcement is seen as reasonable. 

Not when there are no toilets open 24 hours in the city centre 

Yea that's stinky. 

Either late night public toilets should be opened, or bars should be required by law to allow the public to use their toilets without 
needing to be a patron of the establishment. The reason some of the homeless urinate on the street is because they can't afford to buy 

a drink to use the toilet. 

I believe exemptions should be taken for the homeless who have no alternative unless the council actually do more to find housing and 
facilities for the large amount of homeless people on the street 

There are less bureaucratic, more effective methods of dealing with this issue. More can be done by the council to provide public toilet 
facilities in the defined area that are open for longer hours, which would be a long-term, sustainable solution that improves quality of 

life for all. In particular spots where public urination commonly occurs, hydrophobic paint can be used alongside signage as an 
effective deterrent that requires minimal bureaucracy. Lastly, the possibility that vulnerable populations who do not have adequate 

access to toilet facilities could be fined for urinating in public is cruel and will simply worsen their situation, exacerbating the problem.  

Need for enough public urinals to be provided. Hours of opening increased. Cleanliness and adequate provision of toilet paper, hand 
driers, etc. 

As long as the area is somewhat secluded then I think it is unreasonable to expect homeless people to urinate in private 
establishments or be given a fine, especially when public toilets are locked at night. 

The Police already have powers to deal with this and in particular the homeless community are likely to have no alternatives. If the 
'offender' is intoxicated, then the Police can already deal with the offender under s.5 Public Order provisions. 

 
An immediate on the spot fine and failure to pay meaning a criminal offence feels like an overreaction. 

Hugely discriminatory towards the homeless who have to go somewhere which is fine as long as reasonably discreet. 

The council have closed public toilets they are closed at night and no restaurant or pub will allow rough sleepers in what do you do if 
you are homeless and have nowhere to Ho can't believe you would want up criminalise tough sleepers in this way it is not a lifestyle 

choice but a poverty choice  

If we are not able to provide accommodation for our homeless, we should at least offer basic facilities so they don't have to urinate in 
the street. Give them a toilet and somewhere to wash.  

The council lock public toilets after a certain time. Where else are the homeless supposed to urinate, you cannot control a body clock 
like that. Dictating whether a person can urinate only goes to subjugate them further. I believe they should not do it on the main high 

street and maybe go to a back road for privacy but I firmly disagree with this proposal.  

Provide more 'free' public toilets and this will cease to be a problem. 

There is no point implementing this proposal unless the council are also prepared to improve access to public toilet facilities 24 hours a 
day.  It would be far simpler to prevent the need for proposals such as this, by improving existing public toilet facilities, than to track 

down and punish every violator of this proposal, who is violating the proposal simply due to a lack of facilities.  

No because if someone really needs to urinate they can't help it, I think if someone goes down a back alley or into a bush it should be 
acceptable.  

If you're sleeping rough, you do rely on public conveniences. Yet often they're closed at night, or just closed. For example, on Tuesday 
February 16th I went to go urinate in the toilets next to Wat Tyler house - but the gents was closed with no explanation. Over the past 

month I would say 90% of male council-run public conveniences I've tried to urinate in - admittedly many not in Exeter - have been 
closed. Where else are people going to do their business?   

Again, no explanation is provided in the FAQs as to why this is necessary, when there are laws in place to deal with this. Where is the 
problem with the existing laws that cover this? 

Homeless people don't have homes in which to urinate privately, and so many indoor spaces are now corporately owned/commercial 
that their urinating options are severely limited.  Of course urination in public is not particularly pleasant, but nor is being homeless.  

This policy will limit homeless people's ability to carry out basic bodily functions without coercive interference.  That's repressive 
government interference that I won't tolerate, even though it doesn't affect me personally.  

Only works if there are free public toilets available. 

I agree that pubic urination is wrong but more should be done to provide for the homeless at night when there are no public bathrooms 
at all, you cannot expect to stop everyone from urinating in public spaces without giving them a proper alternative. A lot of homeless 

people cant stay in hostels and will not be welcomed in some stores so more public 24 hour bathrooms should be considered 

Homeless people need to urinate, and will do so on the street unless there is alternative provision. Suggesting that they could use 
restaurant or bar facilities is disingenuous, since homeless people are unlikely to be able to afford or be welcomed into restaurants and 

bars.  
 

Brixton have provided "pop up" urinals which is an option which can be considered, Provison of public toilets, open through the night, 
or camping style toilets alongside a safe sleeping marquee area are other possibilities.  

This once again disproportionately affects homeless people, not everyone has the luxury of a home with a toilet and once shops have 
closed the places to urinate drop drastically.  

But please provide public lavatories. There is a distinct lack of them! 

We have a real problem with vagrants using the area behind our garden as a toilet. My family are prevented from enjoying city life 
partly because of this. If the council want to promote city living they must act and bring in this PSPO no matter what the mis-informed 

do-gooders say! 

As said before, these proposals disproportionately affect the homeless and will not get rid of homelessness, but make it more difficult 
to spot. 

Where exactly do you expect them to do their business? 

i don't think there is enough access to public toilets for those who are homeless or have limited access to toilet facilities. Something 
needs to be done about this in order to implement proposal 2. 

 Since when was this practice not an offence under existing legislation?   The suggestion that currently urinating in the street is 
acceptable is ridiculous.   Opening of public toilets after 19.00 hrs would be a constructive way to alleviate the problem. 

Page 118



The FAQ section explains how there is "no excuse" for not urinating in pubs or such establishments before leaving when public toilets 
are shut. Unfortunately this order would target exclusively those who can't afford to be in pubs - it's currently winter so it's clear why 

drinking in pubs is preferable. And yet the victims of this order are those who can't. 

There are bigger problems in society, no need to concern yourself with making the lives of homeless people even harder. 

authoritarian 

The question appears to be unfair - if you are homeless and have no other options then where else can you urinate? People shouldn't 
urniate in the street - but they shouldn't be forced to either.  

again - students and drinkers piss in the street all the time. This will just target the homeless 

Again, what about midnight peeing by marines, residents & students? And what if a person has nowhere else to pee? 

There are public toilets available; however, they are only used as a last resort by myself due to the condition I often find them in. 

I agree with the principle, but there are insufficient public toilets available or open during the night.  

This is already illegal under Public Order Act, 1986 amirite? 

If the urination is discrete, homeless people don't have the same access to toilets as many of the public do, if the toilets charge, are 
you expecting them to pick between paying to urinate or their next meal?  

Only agree if they are public toilets within a sufficient distance.  

Where should homeless people go to the bathroom? Public toilets are not open at night. Fining homeless people for going to the 
bathroom is immoral. There must be an alternative for them if this is going to be put in place. 

Seems very logical for public hygiene and cleanliness. 

Is never enough public toilets at night. Should be more open 24/7 before we can even consider this proposal.  

To date, I have found at least 3 public toilets in Exeter closed since Xmas. Where are people supposed to go? You need to sort out 
public access to toilets first 

Make public toilets free, 20p a use doesn't really pay for cleaning them, but it can prevent people from peeing in the street, and don't 
lock them up at night 

Nobody wants to see anyone urinate in the streets but this is already handled by the police. It also isn't just a 'homeless' issue and is 
actually more relevant to the huge numbers of students that leave a disgusting mess every night of the week on the way home from the 

clubs. More public toilets needed!  

Exeter Council are about to make it effectively illegal to be homeless in Exeter by imposing £1000 fines for begging and giving the 
authorities permission to confiscate and destroy homeless people's bedding and personal property. Not only is this inefficient as it does 

not target the reasons why people are homeless in the first place or why they can't get off the streets once they are, it also explicitly 
victimises poor and mentally ill people. 

Its disgusring to see people urinate in the street 

Of course no-one would say that urinating in the street is a pleasant thing to witness and it can cause a bad smell. However, I would 
not condone a PSPO that effectively outlaws anyone who gets caught short and pees behind a bush.  I believe that there are no public 
toilets available in Exeter at night.  It is not enough for the council to say that there are plenty of facilities in pubs and clubs available to 

patrons - if you are penniless and look even slightly shabby, you are certainly not going to be allowed into such an establishment to 
use a toilet. 

If you close public toilets in the evening what do you expect to happen 

Late night travellers to and from the bus station often have no other choice than to run to a secluded alleyway or bush to urinate before 
continuing their journey as there are no public facilities open beyond seven o'clock in the evening  

There are existing powers that already cover this. How about addressing the lack of public toilets? 

I would agree with it if there were access to more public toilets that are open until a reasonable time (unlike the majority of public toilets 
which are currently locked in the evenings). 

No 

More public toilets need to be made available as an alternative to being forced to urinate in public places 

Facilities MUST be made available to the homeless and under privileged.  To make it a crime for a homeless person to urinate in a 
public open space without offering clear plans for an alternative is frankly despicable.   

Vulnerable people do not want to Urinate in a public street but are left with no option when the public toilets CHARGE to use them and 
are not made welcome in other places with facilities.  Make public toilets FREE to use instead. 

Homeless people may not have enough change to use a public toilet, it is not fair to persecute them for public urination. Mentally ill 
people may not understand that excretion in public is in appropriate, and thus should not be persecuted. Children are often caught 

short and may need to discreetly urinate in a public (if concealed) place; again, it is absurd to persecute children for this. 

How about free public toilets...or even composting ones on some green land near city centre which could be built as part of a volunteer 
organised community programme. 

The Council do not have open any 24 hour toilets. If they did open a 24 hour toilet in the city centre this would be a reasonable 
proposition. The police do have powers regarding this already. Again this will be used against the homeless.  

Terribly biased the way it is worded.     What about  supplying facilities such as public toilets being open late.  If not, where are 
people supposed to urinate? 

Build more public Loo's  

This is not the solution. The solution is to provide public toilets. Even the ancient Romans did that. 

Where are they supposed to pee??!?! If they don't have a home I'm quite sure they won't have a toilet !! 

This requirement would only be reasonable if there was adequate provision of (open) public toilets. Urinating in the street may well be 
unpleasant and undesirable but I can imagine situations in which it would be unavoidable and the (discretionary) imposition of a £100 

fine seems disproportionate and open to abuse (or to selective enforcement) 

Adequate: free open public toilets open 24 hours are needed and the right to use private business premises; i.e. shops toilets if 
needed. 

Persecuting, destitute and homeless people 

See comments and questions in accompanying letter. 

Does council provide practical altenatives? 

Again - the proposal should apply to all but is there adequate provision of urinals/public toilets - this matter needs immediate attention. 

Where else can they carry out this human basic function. 

Page 119



 

Answered yes and no.  Exactly the same criteria as question 1.  If the person is destitute/homeless finding a loo at night is not easy. 
At 68 with a weak bladder I struggle when shopping! 

Yes providing you include all the mainly young people who go out during the week and at weekends to get 'hammered'.  I don't 
support it if you just target homeless people who have nowhere to go. 

This must not be introduced while all public conveniences are locked at 7pm.  They should be available until at least midnight. 

However the majority of public conveniences are closed. 

No 

Keep toilets open!!! 

If they left the public conveniences open later at night they wouldn't have people urinating int public open spaces and the street. 

I am an alcoholic, very strong addict  ?  I had to drink or I had withdrawal. 

It's dirty and there are public toilets around.  But when the public toilets are shut, where are you supposed to go? 

Where do you expect people to urinate? 

You close public toilets where are people supposed to urinate. 

Will you be doing this to students? 

Leave the homeless alone. 

This prohibition is too vague, and what purpose does it serve?  When I was a student in the 80's people got arrested for unrinating in 
Sidwell Street on the way back from the pub.  That kind of bylaw remains.  So why the need to bring this in?  What's wrong with 

watering the flowers and trees in the park? 

No 

But as long as they are out the way that's fine - but to stop them doing it keep the public conveniences open. 

Leave some public toilets open for them. 

Leave a loo open at night with security. 

It its a park fine. 

I agree with the proposal but what do you expect when people have drank 15 pints of cheap lager and there are no public convenience 
available. 

Page 120



 
 

PSPO Consultation 
Responses to Restriction 3 

01/06/16 

Comments Proposal 3 

I feel it's important to be able to offer an alternative to street sleepers not just to move them on, as this will only push the problem 
outside the city centre and not resolve it. Although I do understand that it is not necessarily ECC's responsibility to be offering these 

additional support services.  

Proposal 3 does nothing to solve the causes of homelessness and only demonises the homeless community. It will waste public 
money on enforcing this law.  

This proposal in my opinion has been long overdue, the powers to prevent begging and drinking in a public place have been available 
to enforce for many years. 

It should be a criminal offence to do any of the proposed intentions in public place anywhere, Anti social behavior has achieved a new 
level and its long overdue.        

There needs to be safe spaces for day storage of belongings for rough sleepers, where do they clear they belongings to? This 
measure will realistically only move rough sleepers to other parts of the city. In effectively moving the 'problem' to places that are less 
busy could intensify the level of potential fear felt by some individuals, and become a more dispersed issue unable to manage both in 

terms of response and prevention measures.  

I don't think it's fair to remove rough sleepers from one of the most sheltered, amenable areas to rough sleep in the City. Where are 
you expecting them to go? The City Centre has large, flat, rain-sheltered areas that are better for rough sleeping than anywhere else. 

Moving rough sleepers into residential areas of the City or the parks/fields surrounding is not beneficial for local people or the 
individuals who are sleeping rough. I don't think they should be moved without an alternative place for them to go. I appreciate that you 
are trying to make the City Centre safer for most people, but the City has a homeless problem, and moving people out will not help it, 

just dissipate it so it's less visible. If people are sleeping rough, I'd much rather they were under some rain cover in the City Centre then 
more exposed to the elements in a muddy, dark field. There are not the same "shared spaces" in residential areas as there is in the 

City Centre.  

This must only be enforced provided alternative temporary shelter is available at the time. 

Whilst I do not wish those without homes to be any more persecuted than they already might be maintaining public space is 
paramount. I would however prefer that those having to take shelter "from the elements" are given alternative means of 

accommodation rather having their possessions taking from them.  

"include materials used for shelter against the elements, weather or ground" 
This is ridiculous. We have homeless people living on Exeter's streets, many suffering from mental health problems and addiction, and 
confiscating what few possessions they have left leaving them open to the elements is frankly disgusting. No moral person could agree 

with this. 

Leave homeless people alone! If you don't like them on the streets then give them a space to live!  

I think the council should be spending money, preventing and helping those on the streets. Not making it illegal for them to be there.  

The future date or time should be within a matter of a few hours. 

I am concerned that, although facilities are available to those sleeping rough, these are insufficient in number and other factors may 
prevent access.  If rough sleepers have their sleeping paraphernalia removed, they are placed in an even worse and more vulnerable 

position as a result. 

nothig further to add. 

This is shocking and absolutely appalling. You are basically banning homeless people from the area. This is an absolute abomination 
of your role as a council. As a council you may not have a legal responsibility to help these peolel, but surely you have morals - this 
suggestion suggests not. I feel you should be ashamed and I hope all the charities pick up on this and challenge you, as it is rightly 

deserved!!! 

I disagree with removing bedding and belongings. Often the streets can be someones "home" and therefore all they've got.  
 

Since I moved here in May, I have never seen bedding etc in the street,therefore is it a real issue? I'm not sure I'd have an issue even if 
I did see it in the street. 

 
If someone has no where to go and very little to their name and you take this away, how do you expect them to survive? At some point 

it will fall back to the state, most likely via mental health issues.  
 

You can't just get rid, they are humans too, just like you and I and our family and friends.  

On the condition that provision for shelter be made for homeless persons found doing this in the area. 

I think that homelessness needs to be treated with great sensitivity, and there needs to be flexibility in dealing with removal of tents 
etc.,  Depending on siting them. 

feel sorry for the homeless, difficult if there is nowhere else to go especially in winter 

The zone should cover the University area too. 

disgrace to penalise the underclass - this would just push this problem out of city centre.  

Every effort should be made to encourage rough sleepers into homeless shelters (e.g.: Gabriel or Esther house) instead of demonising 
them. St Petrocks for meals and advice should be made available to them. 

It does worry me that some people have reached a stage that they feel they have to "street sleep". This measure may only move them 
onto somewhere else but I feel the proposal is right. 

This is overdue and wecome 

If a homeless person is using the area it seems counter-productive and uncharitable to confiscate bedding. A 'move on' order should 
be sufficient. 

Page 121



 

The term 'to the satisfaction of an authorised person' is too subjective. What is meant by satisfaction and who are the  authorised 
people? The disposal of a homeless persons belongings for any reason is not going to help anyone. When someone only has a very 
few possessions destroying them because they are unsightly is overkill. There must be a way of removing them to another place for 

collection.  

If someone is homeless, then taking away what little shelter they have seems in human 

Why throw away their bedding? 

This would criminalise the needy and the vulnerable. Completely unacceptable. 

This is a truely sick way of dealing with the sad issue of homelessness in the city. It is a disgrace anyone would think it is okay to take 
from people who have almost nothing. Stealing there only source of warmth will kill people in the winter.  

You may as well just strip them. You said it yourself "shelter against the elements". These people,like all of us, are doing the best they 
can. Just because it offends some people,doesn't mean this is the solution.  

This seems to be aimed simply at making it illegal to be homeless. Yes, there are many cases where accommodation is available and 
has been refused, but this is not all cases; there are many cases where the alternatives to sleeping rough are frightening and 

unsuitable, or where people with other issues have simply slipped thought the net. Surely the answer is not to simply sweep these 
people out of sight, but to proactively seek solutions.  

Make safe place to camp or sleep. Make an inside area available for rough sleepers this is unfair we have seen cut after cut for this 
sector make empty homes available. 

The homeless population should be cared for not persecuted. 

I'm aware of rough sleepers camping in the city. There should be a requirement that the this proposal is subject to there being a 
nuisance to others 

To remove bedding or shelter from anyone desperate and unfortunate enough to be using it outdoors in a city area is an act far below 
what most would consider acceptable human behaviour. 

Again who is going to remove the items as the Council do not have night workers and the Police do not have the manpower 

What these 'homeless people need is a home. We all need a home. The people who are homeless have ended up in this situation, 
often for reasons beyond their control and under ordinary circumstances would not choose to sleep in a door way. These people will 

die of exposure if they have no bedding and cover and that will be the fault of Exeter City Council. There is proportionally large 
homeless population in Exeter and I have always felt that they had a chance in this city. No you are planning to take away any chance 

they have, this is inhumane and you should be ashamed of yourselves. 

Ditto 

I thin there needs to be a large degree of discretions exercised when using these powers. If people move away from doors early in the 
morning there can be little harm done. 

This is an insane proposal. You want to take away bedding from the homeless? What planet do you live on? 

The Council should consider finding a suitable place for the homeless to erect their tents etc. if no other suitable accommodation, 
permanent or temporary can be found for them. 

No I do not agree with this proposal as this will target and affect homeless people.  If their sleeping kit etc is confiscated what will they 
do the next night? Work with the homeless should focus on getting them off the streets into temp accommodation and if this isn't 

possible the some sort of locker system to allow people who are homeless to keep their stuff safe during the day.  

Agree because it is unsettling and intimidating to see people camped out in the street or shop doorways etc but on the other hand I am 
concerned that someone trying to sleep at night who couldn't get into a safe house will be forced to move on.  "There but for the grace 

of God, go I " comes to mind.  However I see it is only for a specified limited area, so yes, I agree with Proposal 3. 

Oh so you have nowhere to live how about we make this worse for you?by stealing all your property and letting you die in the cold 
while we have meetings in the warm and live in our nice houses and look down on you, If you agree with this scenario take a good look 

at yourself and imagine if the tables were turned, what would you do? 

If the council provided somewhere safe for the people to go they would not be on the streets, perhaps even having somewhere to 
move them to, like an area with a toilet and shower and access to shelter. Treating people like garbage will make the city such a 

horrible place to live.  

As the weather gets colder it is crucial that vulnerable homeless people are able to stay warm.  

Just hope these people will have somewhere  warm and dry to go to and are helped if they have mental health probs. 

How many people will have to freeze to death before you admit you are wrong 

That is a disgusting proposal to attack the wrak, shame on you. 

If you are you remove things like this then an area should be designated for the homeless to sleep, be it a field of what ever. To deny 
them this much inhumane  

How can you take away peoples basic needs of warmth and shelter without providing proper facilities to prevent the need for sleeping 
rough? This is inhumane. 

Again, how many are there because they want to be and how many because they are desperate. I'd prefer to see something 
constructive than destructive being introduced. 

This will hopefully encourage those affected to accept services. It will also benefit businesses.  

I hope that the main focus would be getting people who are sleeping rough the right support, particularly those will mental health 
issues. 

To remove bedding or shelter from anyone desperate enough to be using it outdoors in a city area is well below what most would 
consider acceptable human behaviour. 

Removing homeless people from the streets in the defined area(s) does not solve the wider problem of homelessness in the city. I 
would only agree with this proposal if suitable alternative arrangements were made for those sleeping rough. 

I am concerned that the limited geographical restrictions to the proposal will just push out these undesirable behaviours to other parts 
of the city not covered by the proposal. The proposal should cover the entire city. 

I actually have no words. 

Page 122



Please please please don't do this to some of the most vulnerable people in our society. Driving them out of the city centre means that 
they are at more danger from people, the weather and each other. Can we not find a more humane, creative way to help them. How 
about designated "secure" areas? Or, more funding for St Petrocks/ YMCA? Although i understand some of these people may have 

refused accommodation, some of them also have multi layered issues that require time and patience to resolve. 
 

Although, on occassion I have felt unnerved walking through the city centre at night, because of the volume of rough sleepers, my 
empathy and compassion lies with them as it is not safe, it is lonely, it is traumatic. Without seeing these people homelessness it is 

hidden, people don't realise the effects the austerity cuts are having, people can be blinkered again. 
 

I urge you to participate in the Sleep Easy run by the YMCA before you make these decisions, spend a night sleeping rough, talk to 
people who have slept rough and gain a better understanding. 

 
Additionally, the potential fines to be imposed are a waste of time, these people are homeless, they won't be able to, in general, afford 
them and then there is the cost, for the council/ taxpayer, of going to court to collect money, which, just isn't there. It may even be in 

the winter months that some people flout these rules, just to get arrested to have a warm, safe bed for the night, or to be sent to prison 
for the same reason. 

I worry that already vulnerable people will be treated badly by this proposal. To just move someone on doesn't help their situation. 
Again people should be given information about where they can get help. I also wonder if fining someone who may not be able to 

afford it will help the situation? Surely this could put them further intpbdebt or poverty. Is there a different way to deter people?  

With the devastation of support networks and the situation facing more and more people to blithely destroy a person`s shelter is 
criminal. Involve community groups such as SHOT and St Petrocks before disenfranchising people and causing distrust. 

I don't think this proposal is appropriate, given the high amount of homeless people in Exeter. I think that this proposal could only go 
ahead if the authorised person removing such bedding will provide shelter for the person involved.  These people need help, and for 

you to come along and take away the precious few belongings they have is disgraceful.  

Do you think that by moving the problem along, the problem goes away? Due to my work, I walk through the city centre at night 
relatively regularly and have never got trouble from a member of our homeless community. This is a combination of needless 

scaremongering and a vain desire from the council to prettify 'Brand Exeter'.  

This is a disgraceful proposal. What do you suppose will happen to these rough sleepers once they have been moved on and their 
bedding has been confiscated? You will just be displacing the problem to neighboring areas and potentially be putting lives at risk in 

cold weather. How about a creative solution to help those sleeping rough, instead of criminalising them?  

This proposal will not solve any issues of homelessness in Exeter. It will just move it out of the centre, and demonise those who are 
homeless and thus in need of the council's help.  

 
Exeter City Council should be ashamed of its conduct in even requesting this proposal.  

Anyone using an improvised shelter in a public space is not doing so through choice. To move them on or remove their means of 
shelter is to penalise disadvantaged individuals and, if multiple move-on demands result in a police record, fuel the cyclical trap of 

homelessness. Distinction must be drawn between career begging and genuine homelessness.  

This is clearly targeted at the homeless. Taking from those people who have nothing is heartless and inhumane. I fail to see how 
making the homeless sleep without a sleeping bag and directly on concrete will help reduce anti-social behaviour. These are human 

begings. 

I am horrified at the proposal to remove the meagre possessions that those who are unfortunate enough to be homeless may have. To 
remove these items is in itself wrong on both a human and moral and in my mind would amount to theft. Removing cardboard and 

tents and sleeping bags does not solve the problem of homelessness. Yes- it may reduce your annual night-count statistics but it will 
not reduce, solve or eliminate the problem. Having worked for a homeless charity and witnessed hostels close, I would recommend 

putting the effort into establishiing a night shelter. This is not an ok proposal.  

I don't think it's appropriate to find people packing up their camping gear in shop doorways at 9.00 am.  The area looks like a gypsy 
camp and makes the city centre look run-down.  Is there a more appropriate, more secure place for homeless people to shelter? 

I disagree with this proposal because the homeless have nowhere else to go and the council are not providing an alternative. If this is 
enforced then they will gravitate to industrial units on Marsh Barton or residential areas. There is no way that they can afford £100 fine 

so they will end up in court. Homelessness is not a lifestyle choice and criminalising them will only make their situation worse. 

I do not agree with items being removed without the consent of their owner.  

Ownership of property is a human right, therefore to remove such articles without the consent of their owner, which has nothing to do 
with the landowner, is a breach of human rights and amounts to theft.  Provide places for people to sleep without fear of being stolen 

from - the police are there to serve the whole community, not just those with money. 

The right to move people sleeping rough is fine. But not to confiscate someones portable home. Put yourselves in their shoes, I know I 
would be very angry is someone came and stole the only possessions I had. Asking people to move outside the area is a good idea 

though but maybe the money spent on policing this could go towards helping the homeless who have to sleep rough instead. 

It is no job for a council officer to make these subjective judgements. This criminalises homelessness. It is not a crime it is called 
poverty. 

Again this can only be justified if alternatives are available and I really don't believe it is fair to be taking away personal possessions 
from the poorest and most vulnerable. 

This appears to be vindictive treatment of the most vulnerable. The employment of Community Education Workers to guide and assist 
these people would have long term value and would be applauded 

I am deeply concerned (especially when reading this in winter, and in the run-up to Christmas) about a proposal that 'An authorised 
person may   confiscate and dispose of materials used for shelter against the elements, weather or ground.' by some of the most 

vulnerable people in our society 

Yes, it's fine to ask people to move on but taking their possessions is theft.  Extrapolate that and consider  when police ask crowds to 
move on at football matches. accidents etc, imagine them then starting to take possessions from people for not doing what they are 

told.   

On private property, I would agree, but on public property, this is an inhumane and short-sighted proposal which does nothing to 
resolve the underlying problem. 

Page 123



Yes - in a time of unprecedented homelessness (a problem likely to get worse when housing benefit removed from young people) to 
remove protection from the elements  without providing alternative shelter is tantamount to contributing to the deaths of some of these 

unfortunate people.  What kind of society are we when we feel it is okay to propose such draconian measures against vulnerable 
people 

This sounds like an attack on the homeless; the poorest and often most vulnerable people in our society - a sad reflection on the 
policies of Cameron's government. It's draconian and should be opposed by all right thinking compassionate human beings. 

This sort of power is quite draconian and I do not believe it should be available to PCSO's or, worse still Council Officers, who lack 
training, experience, the ability or inclination to use discretion in such matters. There are far too many 'jobsworths' around as it is and 

we don't need more interfering in people's lives in an insensitive manner. This power should be restricted to Sworn Police Officers only 
and only used if adequate, suitable accommodation is available and the person concerned has refused that accommodation. Nearly 

every homeless person is homeless, due to the inability or unwillingness of a Council to house them. That same council should not be 
penalising them for something that is often the fault of that council in the first place; it should be providing them with a home, not 

criminalising them and then stealing their possessions! 

Wouldn't it make more sense to offer the homeless somewhere to live rather than punishing them by steeling their only means of 
shelter? Or are their subsequent deaths from exposure of no concern to you? 

This proposal is too open to abuse. 

Many vagrants use sleeping bags for wamth.  They will freeze without it, they cant help needing it. They're not hurting anyone. This 
proposal oppresses the powerless 

I find it unpleasant to see discarded bedding just left in door ways. This bedding has often been provided by outside agencies to help. I 
have no problem with the proposal if someone refuses to remove items. 

Could consideration be given to providing lockers to enable rough sleepers to have somewhere to store bedding during the day? 

Keeping and destroying the possessions of indigent people is theft 

Provide shelter, don't discriminate. Ask the government to provide additional funding for shelter accommodation. Where do you go 
when you're homeless and destitute?  

 
Empathy!  

It is unfair to penalise desperate people. Nobody creates a shelter in the street unless they are desperate, and to remove it is 
unthinkably cruel.  

This will impact homeless people- if you take away the bedding of a homeless person in winter and they have nowhere to go they may 
freeze to death. Homeless people aren't on the streets by choice.  

Being asked to move all your belongings that essentially constitute your home could be traumatic, if the person doesn't do it in the 
specified time the belongings should be kept in storge to be colkected, not destroyed or disposed of. 

I would agree if a suitable alternative was provided 

Shameful. Victimising homeless people and confiscating or destroying their possessions is not the way forward in any civilised society. 

This is a discriminatory measure targeted at the homeless population of Exeter. The city council has no moral grounds to both refuse to 
house or provide safe camping grounds, lockers etc (all things proposed by homeless persons) for homeless people and also to steal 
their possessions when they sleep wherever they are able. Trying to make homeless people invisible to the electorate is not a way to 

solve the problem of homelessness, and driving them out of the city centre makes it more difficult for them to access vital support 
services. 

It is inhumane to take away a person's bedding. 

THIS IS A CRUEL AND HORRIFIC PROPOSAL. PLEASE DON'T DO THIS. 
There was a similar proposal in Oxford that was defeated, a city with a massive homeless proboem. These people are HUMAN 

BEINGS already victims of biting government cuts - why take away their bedding? The winter is just getting colder - this is so so cruel! 
In Oxford two homeless people recently died unexpectedly, and making life that bit harder for the homeless does shorten their lives! 

The average age of desth is 47. I IMPLORE YOU not to implement this. 

Ashamed to be part of a country that wishes to do this to the homeles. 
HEARTLESS! 

taking away bedding from rough sleepers could be a death sentence in winter time, have you no humanity? 

Homeless people obviously need some form of shelter and so it should not be removed. 

A homeless person may have to visit a nearby toilet and, therefore, might, quite understandably, leave their worldy belongings nearby 
whilst they are gone.   They should be allowed to move from their position without carting all with them, for fear of someone taking 

away even their meagre belongings, Shame on you! 

I doubt that anyone sleeping in the street in Exeter does it for pleasure. This proposal is immoral and shows very little humanity. If this 
is a Proposition from a supposedly Labour-lead Council, I don't want to imagine what the Conservatives have in mind.  

The homeless need help, not having their few possessions and means of keeping warm and dry removed and destroyed. 

People do not sleep in public places because it is fun. Exeter City Council is failing to address this problem and seeking to blame 
individuals for its failure. 

Without help they will just move up the road. Punitive measures won't some the problem just shift it.  

No-one sleeps rough on the streets by choice, homelessness is a sign of poverty not anti-social behaviour. These people should be 
helped and supported rather than fined and criminalised. 

It is wrong to deprive people of basic shelter and items to keep them warm. Consequence will be either more deaths from 
hyperthermia, or theft/begging to obtain replacements 

How wretched you are treating people like vermin! YOU are supposed to provide social housing for people not let them live on the 
streets. Yes I know you have problems with beggars and homeless people who are on drugs but this draconian response in inhumane. 

With all the money you get paid cant you come up with a more compassionate answer? 

I've never seen this as a problem - homeless people need somewhere to try and be safe and warm at night and until Exeter can 
provide them with proper accommodation we shouldn't move them on. There is a huge homeless population in Exeter and this should 

not be hidden from the public 

If a person is homeless, removal/destruction of bedding etc. would be very cruel and could put the person's life in danger. 

I think you should only be allowed to dispose of someone's belonging with their permission or give them the chance to move their stuff.. 

Page 124



I think this is outrageous. Exeter is not a lovely garden for the middle classes to sip wine in undisturbed by the riff raff! It is a city with 
diverse populations and complex issues.  Hiding the paraphernalia of the homeless from public view has not solved the problem of 
homelessness. I suggest that more attention be paid to the root of the problems rather than putting the emphasis on the individuals 
already suffering from having no where to live and multiple unaddressed issues. This should rouse our human compassion, not our 

contempt. 

Again not enough is provided by the council to ensure that everyone has a warm and safe place to live and till that happens you should 
not be given the right to take and dispose of vital resources.  

This policy would inevitably end up criminalising homeless people. The problem of homelessness is growing, and people in this 
situation should be helped, not considered an inconvenience or an aesthetic problem. It would be better to try to find people housing or 
increase the number of homeless shelters - or prevent people being made homeless before they are (and these ideas are uneducated 

and v likely better responses have been thought out by homeless charities), rather than criminalising homelessness. 

Proposal 3 is an abomination.  Thanks to our current government we have a huge increase in homeless people in the city with no 
support, shelter, treatment etc.  The idea of removing their only belongings is quite frankly dispicable.  Have we made a return to the 
Victorian era?  Sort out the cause, do not punish people from being in a position many are only a couple of pay cheques away from.  

My concern is that this power could cause extreme hardship, especially during winter months, to people who are unable to provide for 
themselves in any other appropriate way. My understanding is that the majority of people do not CHOOSE to sleep rough - their needs 

are generally much more complex. 

You have no right to remove confiscate property and I would not support this. There is plenty of trash in our city anyhow which you fail 
to control. 

No, the proposal should not procede. It shoudl be a criminal offence fro a persons propoerty to be stolen or taken forcefully from them. 

This could very easily be abused. These are potentially very vulnerable people what protections would there be in place to protect 
them? Who would be their advocate? 

WHere are they supposed to store their belongings? 

This would be terrible for people sleeping rough. They are already at increased risk of assault and theft and have nowhere safe or 
protected to go or store their belongings which are necessary to survive especially in winter. It is terrifying that anyone would want to 
introduce a law stating that people who have almost nothing could be legally robbed of their basic necessities simply because they 
dared to not have a house to put them in. Many people sleep rough because of traumatic life experiences including active military 
service, abuse, and losing their job and partner. People who are vulnerable deserve increased protection - NOT to be treated like 

second class citizens, NOT to have fewer rights than other people, NOT to experience this kind of discrimination. 

does not recognise the complexities of the homeless isssue, or peoples right to make a protest. The proposal effectively gives the right 
to take away someones home, possessions and source of protection and shelter. The council needs to be looking at the root causes of 
why people are sleeping out rather than penalising them for their vulnerable, lack of a home, money or a job. Many of these people will 
be particularly vulnerable to mental health, addiction and familial problems, The police should not be given powers to stigmatise them 

further and make them more vulnerable. 

It would be indefensible to leave people living on the streets with no shelter, bedding or means of keeping warm.  Living on the street 
is already frightening enough, to have one's few personal possessions at risk from those who should be helping protect them would be 

harrowing.  I can't believe that councillors find this acceptable. 

Too harsh a treatment, homeless people are real people ,and would not be sleeping rough if they had the ability to be in a safe 
accomodation. Sometimes the street may be much safer than a hostel place. Rather than treating them as criminals its important to 

treat them with dignity 

What a horrifically inhumane proposal. If someone is reduced to sleeping on the streets, how can you possibly take away what little 
comfort they have? What do you think they'll do if you take it away? These people have no options - if they had anywhere else to go, 
do you think they'd choose a sleeping bag in a doorway, or a cardboard box on the street? On a cold night these belongings could be 
the only thing between them and death. The council should be investing to provide long-term support and emergency accommodation 

for all those who need, not clearing people away because you think they're an eyesore. Absolutely disgusting that you are even 
considering this.  

We shouldn't be criminalising rough sleepers - homeless people need support, not punishment. Confiscating their bedding and 
belongings is inhumane and would leave them vulnerable, especially in these cold winter months. The homeless are people too, and 

have just as much value as anyone else, so they should be treated as such. 

Perhaps if there were sufficient beds for the homeless then they wouldn't be forced into making sleeping areas.  Perhaps the people 
proposing such action should try sleeping rough for a few nights during wet wintry weather before thinking that this could be a good 

idea! 

Where do you expect these people to go? They aren't doing this with the intention of causing antisocial behaviour, they have no other 
choice. 

It should only be done where an alternative safe place to sleep is already available - for example a local shelter. I understand many 
rough sleepers find shelters and hostel dangerous environments (particularly women) with by  te authorities 

I do not believe that the City or other agencies have sufficient resources at their disposal to provide adequate shelter for those in need. 
Financial constraints are like to increase the need and reduce the provision. Fixed penalties on those without ability to pay will need to 

..............? 

It is not appropriate to confiscate the belongings of people sleeping rough. 

There is a significant homeless population in Exeter and to move these people on is to mask this problem 

Inhumane to do this  

Yes people will freeze to death. What s the purpose of this. How is this hurting of affecting others.  

I believe this could be used to harass homeless people and I find that to be completely unacceptable and unfair.  

Homeless people are still primarily people. Being homeless must be bad enough, they shouldn't be persecuted further by having their 
bedding and shelter confiscated! 

 
Obviously there are some locations in which it would be clearly problematic for someone to set up a shelter, but this measure would 

feel less draconian if there were areas which were designated as being "homeless friendly" at night. 

Page 125



National and local government policy has directly contributed to an increase in homelessness. Most homeless people do not choose 
this way of life. Penalising them rather than changing the inequalities in society is inhumane and ineffective, rendering already 

vulnerable people to increased risk of harm, ill health and death. 

It can't come soon enough. The authorities currently seem impotent when it comes to moving on people encamping in the city centre. I 
believe the only reason they are in that part of the city is to harass and exploit the generosity of the residents of Exeter. 

You need to HELP homeless people, not criminalise them. 
If they can't afford a roof over their heads they cannot afford a £1000 fine so you'll end up putting them in jail for non-payment. 

Absolute madness. 

How on earth is it helpful to remove the bedding and possessions of homeless people? This is cruel and stupid. 

You must not deprive vulnerable people of their possessions. 

These people should be properly housed, and definitely not have their bedding and possessions stolen. 

If bedding is causing an obstruction, it should be possible for the authorised person to move it, but to destroy it is not acceptable.  The 
most vulnerable members of our society who do not have the option of a safe roof over their heads need to be protected from the 

elements, and will only be forced to beg to replace any possessions which are destroyed. 

No one has any 'right' to deprive anyone of basic shelter, especially if that is all they have to protect themselves 

Rough sleepers have limited possessions and limited resourses to replace loses. This feels draconian and would have a high impact 
on the individual, there must be other more humane methodology. 

Homeless people need somewhere to sleep. Removing their belongings leaves them vulnerable especially during the winter. Unless 
you are proposing to open a 24-hour shelter then your proposals are barbaric. 

Sleeping rough is not a choice ...these people are very vulnerable...for whatever reason they have found it necessary to sleep on the 
streets. Many have significant mental health problems....or in the case of young people ..may be the victims of abuse and seeking 

refuge from further harm. A significant number of homeless people are ex servicemen with depression or PTSD and without access to 
support after discharge from the services .How can society turn its back on these citizens ...don't tidy up our lovely city without 

humanity..... 

The confiscation of legal property proposed should not be possible without a court order. Without such a court order confiscation is 
theft, and any official involved should be prosecuted for theft. The proposal is not in accordance with English Law and due process. 
The proposal will be vulnerable to judicial review as it seeks to circumvent due process and give quasi judicial powers to agents not 

qualified to hold such powers.  
 

Regardless of the legal problems, this proposal is inhumane and probably constitutes a breach of the Human Rights Act and the 1951 
Convention relating to the protection of people from persecution by agents of the State. The proposal is cruel, spiteful and not worthy of 

a civilized society.  

There should be a no tolerance approach from the outset.  Not just the morning clear up.  Half of the alcoholics and drug addicts have 
already made a start by 08:30, making it very difficult to get these people moving so shops can open. 

There needs to be designated areas where they can sleep. Taking their bedding is just a nasty idea that leaves a bad taste in the 
mouth.   

Ultimately it's the charities that would end up being pressed harder, as they would have to keep handing out the bedding that had been 
taken. 

Communal sleeping areas would be a better idea, taking these people away from the High Street in the first place.  

Until some alternatives are offered to those sleeping on the streets we should not be demonising the homeless. 

I ABSOLUTELY disagree with this.  If you want to sort out homelessness, so people are not on the streets, then there are much better 
ways of doing this.  Just moving people on doesn't help anyone.  You would be victimising the most vulnerable people in our society 

by doing this. 

This could endanger rough sleepers 

You want to remove homeless people's ability to keep warm?  Do you have any morals at all? 

Bedding and belongings should never be taken. This serves no purpose other than to make these people more vulnerable (particularly 
in the winter!) and unhappy - more likely to substance abuse or seek shelter where unsafe. Where do u propose they go? Perhaps 

focus on working charities to contribute to getting them off the streets. You can't criminalise for something that is often not a choice, for 
something they are not enjoying, for something they don't even want to be doing. 

It'sunkind and uncaring and makes no provision to improve the situation of the person using the temporary shelter / bed. 

Taking homeless people's cardboard boxes, sleeping bags or other cover during January will result in the council being seen as very 
cruel and inhumane.  Can you not set up a rough sleepers unit instead? 

Removing the bedding & other possessions of a rough sleeper could mean they freeze to death. 

looking at this from a nice warm office or house makes perfect sense, to keep towns and public places neat and tidy.  However, we 
are not dealing with tins of beans that can just be moved along, we are dealing with people, who are not in a nice warm office or house, 

and are trying to keep warm and make the most of a miserable existence.  I would challenge the people proposing this to spend a 
week outside with nothing to shelter them from the weather, and then ask the question again, and see if they still want to carry on with 

this proposal 

That essentially means throwing away the few possessions a homeless person has. That's terrible.  

This seems a very cruel way of dealing with homeless people. Such action must at thye very least be accompanied by a bed for the 
night and assistance towards housing. And any such possessions must be returned to the people concerned rather than confiscated. I 

have always thought that Exeter City Council was compassionate comparted with some others but this - on its own -  is positively 
haertless.   

The person carrying out this act should be able to refer the individual(s) to an overnight shelter or other accommodation, before 
removing their sleeping items. We could otherwise see an increase in the number of people sleeping rough, dying from hypothermia or 

similar. 
 

More money should go to assist such temp accomm hostels before the Proposal is brought in. 

This unfairly targets the homeless and people with mental health problems. This group of people are already vulnerable and 
disadvantaged. Seeking to remove their possessions and potential criminalise them is not only immoral, it is also a contravention of 

The Human Rights Act.   

Page 126



Forcibly moving homeless people on is cruel when those individuals have no where to stay. To forcibly remove a homeless person's 
bedding, especially in winter months, could be handing down a death sentence. This is measure is totally disproportionate and grossly 
unfair to those who have no other options but to sleep rough. You can't solve the issue of homelessness by criminalising and moving 

people on, this merely causes unnecessary suffering and effectively legitimises the council turning a blind eye under the banner of 
"gentrifying" the city centre. 

it seems aimed at the homeless. 

this proposal does not take into account the woefully inadequate temporary and more permanent emergency and social housing 
facilities in the Exeter area. To take the bedding and shelter of a homeless person when there is little emergency provision, or suitable 

accessible mental health care is not appropriate. I do not like to see rough sleepers, but until proper funded, staffed and properly 
available shelter and subsequent housing is put in place, often the most vulnerable in our society have no other choice. 

Most of the people who sleep on the streets have a complex array of mental and psychological issues. Sweeping them off the streets 
will not make that go away, rather it deepens the issue, and is more likely to drive people to crime in order to survive. I do not agree 

with this proposal as it stands, and I feel it can be addressed in more suitable and stable ways. 

more support for the homeless may need to occur or better information for them to receive help 

Ensure that all homeless people have somewhere safe to stay,  and this won't be necessary. Incidentally, I did send an email to Percy 
Prowsw and his colleague a year or two ago, asking what the city is doing to help homeless people. I never received a reply. I fully 

agree that there should be no homeless people sleeping rough, so please make sure that no one is forced to do so. 

I cannot condone such brutal, cruel treatment of people who have already hit rock bottom. The council would be stealing what little 
protection the homeless have. It's barbaric. 

This is an awful and cruel way to treat HUMAN BEINGS that have nothing else. 

You should never deprive any persons of their rightful property. 
 

You should be able to move a person on only if you are providing them access to an alternative location/accommodation. 

This is difficult because yes I agree there are other places to sleep and I am unsure why people choose shop doorways but this is thier 
bedding and they need it to keep warm and that is really important.  Also due to relationships it might be difficult to sleep in one of the 

safe sleeps 

Removing the property of the homeless, especially bedding, and especially during the winter, could increase the risk of homeless 
people dying.  

 
You may argue 'there are services in place for the homeless', but obviously if the services were available and effective, then the 

homeless person would not be sleeping on the street in the first place.  
 

No, this is the wrong way to resolve this issue. Instead get the people off the streets and into housing and employment. That is the real 
solution. This is just criminalising the poorest and most vulnerable. 

This will clearly target homeless people, and appears to be some sort of attempt to socially cleanse the city centre. 

Stop criminalise homelessness. Give them  somewhere to store their stuff as well as providing hostel accomodation. Oxford council 
tried to do this But wa's kicked as being unlawful. Please help them not crimalise them. 

Homelessness is not illegal and should not be treated as such. We don't yet live in a police state but with this kind of act we are 
sleepwalking into one. 

Given our current situation re housing it would be damaging to those who sleep rough if they are constantly moved on.  Lets work 
together against the government proposals which are going to make the situation worse rather penalise those affected. 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with 
'anti-social behaviour'. It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don't comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time of 

rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues instead of creating a new criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

The idea of taking, especially, the bedding from someone who is already destitute enough to be sleeping thus is unconscionable. 

Confiscation or forced removal of bedding serves only to make life harder for those who are already in a difficult position, sleeping on 
the streets or in public places. The Council should be ashamed of putting forward such an anti-social and inhumane proposal. 

Shelters should be provided for the homeless so they do not have to sleep rough. 

This proposition is way too general. 

The wording of this proposal isn't succinct enough. This opens it up to a wide range of interpretation and could include many differing 
scenarios. The taking of belongings and/or sleeping bags is unnecessary. If a person or persons have been moved on and have 

packed up their belongings, I see no justification for confiscating them. This proposal could be open to mis-use and abuse, is 
unnecessarily punitive and will not produce any positive outcome other than causing personal distress and resulting physical harm 

(hyperthermia) to individuals who have human rights that we as a society should be trying to help protect.  

The yes is qualified by the need that there has to be places where sleeping bags can be put.   Otherwise they will be carrying the 
clutter round in bags or shopping trolleys which achieves almost nothing 

This could have fatal consequences to those thus deprived of shelter. 

I am often approached on my way to work and am made to feel intimidated if I don't give money.  
One man actually called me a "cunt" because I refused to give him money. I definitely agree with the proposal 

Shelter for the homeless has to be addressed, although with the current financial climate and extra immigration that is becoming 
increasingly difficult but that doesn't mean we can let our country and culture decline. 

Page 127



  I agreed with proposal 3 with a condition that the persons sleeping roughly be placed somewhere they could sleep ( npt precinct nor 
prison) - temporarily with a program for them to attend to in order to be of good community standing once more. It is a big condition but 

this is needed as part of true rehabilitation. 

I think this is entirely unreasonable.  This is a vulnerable and marginalised group who need support.  They have nowhere else to 
sleep, and will die if they have no means to keep warm.  Deal with the behaviours and support resolution of the conditions, but do not 

penalise them for possessing basic need equipment. 

I'm hoping the proposal isn't complete. Having spent some time homeless, bedding and cardboard are like real estate and hard to 
come by. Sleeping out of sight is fraught with danger, sleeping without insulation also. Serious assistance is needed, not serious 

crippling. 

This proposal effectively criminalises poverty and prioritises the needs of the most secure in society over the needs of the most 
vulnerable, hardly a civilised response to the problem of homelessness and rough sleeping. Punitive measures such as this play to the 

prejudiced crowd and do nothing to tackle to root causes of the problem or provide alternative solutions. Instead of attacking and 
further harassing this vulnerable section of our society we should be investing in temporary shelters, outreach and support groups etc. 

in order to assist people to get their lives in a back on track in a constructive and compassionate manner.       

Wholeheartedly agree that refusal to remove often filthy, infested bedding is unacceptable and should not be left to shop-keepers or 
residents.  Anyone walking down the High Street/Fore Street to Exbridges in the morning must be horrified by the mess and the extent 

of the vagrancy.   
NOTE:  People signing petitions against this are often people who live away from the City Centre, have no real experience of this 

problem day after day, and have misinterpreted the purpose of the Order. 

Absolutely agree.  In the parks the encampments are disgusting and a risk to wildlife, children and visitors.  And with Exeter returning 
to Britain in Bloom, how can judges possibly be taken into parks and green spaces which are filthy with vagrants sleeping out? 

It's just too easy to ask people to 'move on' when there is such limited, decent hostel accommodation in Exeter.  I speak with several 
rough sleepers who find the hostel accommodation worse than sleeping rough.  This is just dreadful.   Can we not do better as a city?

I believe that fining people is completely the wrong answer to this problem. Of course we don't want to have to step over other people's 
bedding. But where are they supposed to store it while they are out looking for work? Some more humane provision needs to be made. 

I ahve put 'no' because I am concerned thatbthisd could be interpreted too widely. The phrase 'encampment' suggests multiple users, 
but the propoisal would seem to apply to a sinlge rough sleeper, and while I would support action is this person refused to clear away 
their materials, this should be applied sensitively. The confiscation of their property should only be applied in extreme circumstances, 

and should only apply to itesm that can ONLY be used for bedding - it should not be used to confiscate core clothing whcih would 
effectively prevent them living outdoors at all. 

I can understand that if someone is camping in a shop doorway and it is time to open the shop, they should move on and the police 
should have the authority to move them. Their possession, if they are removed, should not be destroyed but should be kept for a few 

weeks in a safe place. A safe place from which it would be easy for the owners to retreive their property. 

If we are talking about a rough sleeper who is taking advantage of a portico, doorway, or heated vent in a public place (after business 
hours), then no as they are not impacting negatively on a commercial exercise. As for small communities popping up, this is not likely 
in an area such as the one proposed and current laws, by-laws, etc. relating to this type of community (travellers) are already in place 

and being used. 

I once had the care of an open area belonging to local housing in the city centre. Most  mornings I collected blankets and sleeping 
bags left by folk who had slept in the park, but who never took their bottles, rubbish and bedding with them each day. I disposed of 

them in rubbish bins. It seems there is an endless fresh supply available! There has to be a better way! 

This criminalizes rough sleeping. These people have nothing and you are only going to make things worse. Whilst it is horrible to have 
to move people who are aggressive it is the aggression that should be criminalized and subject to the order not the persons 

possessions. 

This should be under a public nuisance basis not fee to be applied under the personal powers and unsubstantiated judgement of an 
authorised person.  People have a human right to shelter and undisturbed sleep so if safe alternatives are not offered/provided, if it is 

not in a particuarly sensitive area with other alternative places around then it should be allowed.  

Taking peoples only shelter may cause deaths. Those deaths would be on the consciences of the people who approve this. I couldn't 
take being the person who caused the death of a person who had nothing. I wouldn't wish that burden on the police officer, or council 
worker. That officer who could then be reasonably be accused of manslaughter. It's not nice for them, and not nice for the homeless 

person. 

An "unauthorised bivouac, bedding or equipment formed in a street" is quite clearly a description of the blankets and sleeping bags 
used by homeless people, who have no option but to be sleeping outside. I strongly disagree that we should be criminalising people 

forced into rough sleeping rather than helping them off the streets. I lived in the center of Exeter for three years and regularly 
encountered rough sleepers - I never felt at risk from them, and nor did I find them a nuisance or public menace. As a full time student I 

was well aware of how easy it is for innocent people to be forced into that lifestyle. It is also disgraceful for any authority to consider 
confiscating the few belongings these people have, rather than offering them a home or shelter to prevent them from having to breach 

proposal 3. 

Whilst I can see potential benefits in the other proposals I feel that this is truly an inhumane action. It would severely impact on the 
lives of the homeless who have no other option but to sleep in the streets. As a young women who frequently has to walk through town 

at night I have never once felt threatened by these people or felt they were a nuisance in any way. To deprive them of their bedding 
and a place to sleep would be cruel and callous. By taking away their bedding and moving them they will not just disappear and no 

longer be a 'problem'. These are real human beings who deserve to be treated as such and with kindness and compassion, as they are 
in a desperate situation and need the councils help rather than being swept under the carpet and out of sight. They are sleeping on the 

streets because they have nowhere else to go.  

This seems to be specifically aimed at homeless people/rough sleepers and find the proposal deeply concerning. We should be trying 
to help and support these people not criminalising them. I thought better of exeter than to have a NIMBY attitude to social issues. 

So you're planning to confiscate all bedding and protection from the cold and wet from the homeless? If that's the case, shame on you. 
You'll be directly contributing to their deaths. 

If they haven't got a home, where else can they go? More often than not, they are victims of circumstance and should not be punished 
for something they can do little to help. 

What recommendations have the homeless made. Other cities have tried to do this and have abandoned the idea. 

Page 128



This is appalling. I am struggling to believe that this is a genuine proposal - where is your humanity? Instead of helping the homeless, 
you're punishing them and making it even harder for them to survive. Instead of worrying about image, Exeter should be doing more 

about improving the wellbeing of its citizens. 
 

I'm lucky enough to be able to go home to warmth and shelter every night of the year. A lot of people aren't. If they can find a sleeping 
bag then why on earth should that be taken away from them? If you're going to do that then you obviously need to provide a 

replacement shelter, more centres for the homeless. Do you think people choose to lie in the doorways of shops as their preferred 
residence? No. They have nowhere else. And shop fronts provide shelter when there are alcoves - imagine if you had to sleep outside 

in the freezing winter months, with nothing but a duvet - oh wait, they wouldn't even have that if these proposals go through. 
 

'Including shelter from the elements?'...so you're confiscating raincoats and umbrellas now? To take from people who already have 
nothing the one thing they absolutely need is truly cruelty. Especially from the council, who should be doing everything in their power to 

HELP, not punish !! 
 

Also, you have a bug on this survey to do with the free text answer boxes - report it to the software provider.(KeyPoint, apparently - just 
seen the bottom of the screen). 

Abolishing bedding and personal belongings makes you more a criminal than what you are trying to claim is a criminal offence! No, 
thats poverty. 

We have a homeless problem, the solutions to this are complicated and costly. criminalizing the homeless is not one of them. Taking 
the meager possessions they have will not improve the situation, but will just lead to more extreme behavior among the existing 

homeless population.  

Too widely drawn.  No protection for inappropriate enforcement - certainly not implicit that it has anything to do with doorways or 
conflicts with access 

This is cruelty to homeless people. What if that is all they have to give them shelter? Are you going to provide them with some other 
form of shelter if you clear their tents etc away? Are you thinking of these people as clutter to be cleared away? Or human beings with 

problems? 

I do not believe this is necessary as it is specifically targeting an fining the homeless, the most vulnerable in society. A law should not 
be created that targets the homeless. This problem in Exeter City Centre should be tackled though rehabilitation and temporary or 

semi-permenant accomodation to help them re-enter society. 

I don't think confiscating the shelters made by the homeless is really the correct way to tackle the problem. Effort should be focused 
with providing an alternative means of shelter for those living in the streets and open public places. Shelter is a fundamental human 
right and authorised personnel may find themselves morally conflicted when instigating the removal of a homeless person's shelter. 

Rather than simply removing homeless people or those 'sleeping rough' on the streets of Exeter City Centre, there should be in place a 
support service made freely available to such individuals or groups. Eliminating the visible signs of homelessness is not a cure for the 
problem. A structured means of support needs to be offered without discrimination to help ease the causes of this widespread social 

problem. 

Underpasses in Exeter are an absolute "no go" area in Exeter. Always dance with the traffic rather than enter such an uncomfortable 
environment. Rough sleeping and drug taking. 

No second Night Out policy? Some of the faces are so well known to me as a resident including rough sleeper in our garden whose 
face I recognised as a regular beggar. 

Many of us do feel sympathy for a section of the homeless and not sure how to help other than via St Petroc's or Big Issue. There is a 
section who just do not want to be helped 

As phrased this is too drastic, as it authorises almost immediate destruction of what may be the sole means of keeping a vulnerable 
person warm, without the responsibility to ensure their safety. As it applies only to the designated area, it risks spreading such rough 

sleeping out to eg peripheral shopping areas, suburban parks etc, which have less oversight by police etc and so where the public will 
be, or feel, more at risk. 

Sometimes in sheer desperation I believe people should be allowed to set up a temporary structure.   The word temporary should be 
defined so as to ensure that places do not become unauthorised encampments over an extended period of time. 

This would be a violation of the rights of HOMELESS people who might require shelter.  I think so.  This is a shameless proposition 
and I do not support it. 

This is an enforced 'clean up' of the city centre from homeless people. A form of banishing what is considered unsightly to the edges 
without addressing the problem. Many homeless people sleep in view of surveillance cameras so that they don't fall victim to violence. 

I am concerned about depriving people of their personal possessions. I appreciate that it is not pleasant for shop staff to find people 
sleeping in shop doorways but the remedy should not be to take away what they own. 

If these are homeless people they must be given immediate practical help at the time they are told to remove their bedding, etc. Again, 
what will happen if the designated Order area just pushes the problem further out in the city? 

confiscation is a bit much - where are they going to sleep next. this should be linked to a referral process where they are given a bed 
for the night. 

Again, some people live on the streets, therefore, what are they supposed to do with their bedding? 

I don't agree with taking bedding and shelter from those who need it. 

Once again, I would be very happy not to see people camping out in the streets of Exeter - but given that there is no adequate shelter 
provision in the city for those unfortunate enough to be homeless, this proposal is simply hypocritical. 

If that person is causing a problem to other people then they would need to be apprehended for that. Is there safe storage for people 
who are homeless and using a tent or similar? 

Clearing away a homeless person's belongings does not solve the problem of homelessness. It is heartless, cruel and uncivilized. 
Homelessness is on the rise; perhaps the council should consider a long-term plan with how to deal with this issue including supporting 

safe houses and night shelters.  
In addition, and a comment which could apply to all the suggestions so far, criminalising homelessness and associated behaviour is a 
waste of police time and money. They are already suffering severe and significant financial cuts. Either they wont be able to enforce 

these new rules, in which case they should not be passed or they will divert resources from actual criminal behaviour. 

Rough sleepers have difficult and chaotic lives at the best of times; we should not do anything to make those lives more difficult. 
The same comments made above about restitution if someone is being victimised apply. 

Page 129



there are some persons who have temporary tenants  hidden in the city  but they have NO WHERE to go  no cover to protect them 
from elements  

The problem is not 'the homeless.' The problem is homelessness. 

Sad but necessary.  Can homeless charities and agencies not offer work harder to address this?  If there is such fondness for 
allowing the homeless to sleep on porches outside the churches and use the churchyard as a toilet, they why not take the homeless 

INDOORS, if that is the Christian thing to do? 

Only as good as the enforcement of the Proposal. Will there be prioritisation of resources to cover? Currently resources are prioritised 
in the city centre which has pushed the ASB issues out to the centre fringes and our neighbourhood St David's has been hard hit. 

Ditto Prop 1 

This is demonising homeless people with the intention of making the issue invisible. Instead, the Council should be tackling the 
reasons for homelessness, and putting their resources into helping people, rather than treating them as criminals.  

A most objectionable proposal. Below are the comments I tried to send by email. 
Dear Sirs, 

I have the following comments to make regarding the PSPO. I have read the council documents dealing with the matter. 
 

1. I have no problem with the proposed restrictions on homed drunks, rowdies and nuisances. In fact I support them. 
 

2. I have serious difficulties when the council proposes to apply these same restrictions to homeless persons. They include some of the 
most inadequate members at the bottom of our society with the least capacity to pay fines or renew possessions. Among them are ex 
military and others who have fallen on hard times as well as young people with poor life chances. I understand that the homeless can 
be difficult and cause nuisance. I also know that the Councils intention is to apply the sanctions considerately and that they do support 

the homeless in other ways. 
However, since the order makes it clear that homeless are subject to its penalties, it lays the Council open to the charge of being harsh 

beyond reasonableness, and this from a Labour controlled council. 
 

You should be aware that several other city councils have been forced to withdraw PSPOs because of public objections and petitions. 
Exeter Council have now been attacked in the Western Morning News. While the attack may be unfair or biased it is the simple fact 

that the actions proposed are easily seen as bullying the weakest that produce such resentment in many people. 
My forecast is that if Council proceeds they are likely to be forced to withdraw. 

 
3. On the practical side. 

3.1. I suggest you rephrase the order so that no fines are applied to the homeless (or only applied to the homed), and that if property is 
removed it is returned to the homeless person or made available for collection elsewhere at a convenient place. 

The excuse that it is difficult to do this is not good enough. The Council have authority and assets,. The homeless have nothing. 
If the terms of the law (which I have not studied) prevent you doing this then I recommend the Council find an alternative to PSPO to 

deal with the problems. 
 

3.2. Would it be possible to establish a (protected) `camp site' as an alternative to doorways. 
 

4. While urinating in public spaces is very unpleasant I think the council are on weak ground when so many public facilities are closed. 
It is not good enough to say use a private facility, especially at night, unless you can get such places to put notices outside saying 

`please use our loos'. We don't have the continental culture yet. 
(As someone who suffered an enlarged prostate for several years I am only too aware of how desperate you can get when a strong, 
sudden urge hits you. Some public toilets were already closed at that time and I missed them very much. On one occasion I had to 

leave a queue in the city and just made it to a shop loo). 
 

5. The PSPO title gives a negative image. I suspect it is laid down in the law and cannot be changed. If the name can be changed it 
could help, a name concentrating on unruly behaviour. Better still, segregate the homed and homeless in the order so as to just deal 

with non homeless people causing trouble. Then deal with homeless by other means. 
 

Lastly, a sort of apology. I do not think the Council means to be hard hearted and I am obviously not aware of all that goes on behind 
the scenes, so please excuse me if I have traduced you. 

 
Yours sincerely, 

M J Bowden. CEng. MIMechE 
24 Wrefords Drive, 

Exeter. 
EX4 5AU 

When I walk into work through the city in the early morning I think the way the High Street and Sidwell Street looks is disgusting. The 
amount of litter, blankets and detritus in shop doorways seems to have increased over the last 6 months. I pitty the poor shop keepers 

who have to clear it up, or if it's the council my tax should be spent on other things.  

As before, the are is too small and must be expanded to include the flowerpot and fields that run beside the flood prevention  

see comments to No 1 

Where are you going to move the rough sleepers too, after confiscating what little they have? 

Rather than just 'signposting', in other words push the problem elsewhere (outside the zone, where they may be less visible, and more 
vulnerable), work with the agencies (nice if they worked together on this and shared funding) in providing more direct assistance where 

possible. Additionally, ensure that there is adequate ongoing monitoring to ensure the mitgations put in place are effective, and any 
unforeseen outcome from the order effectively dealt with. 

This is the most objectionable of all. Homelessness is getting worse in the city and a better strategy from supporting individuals is 
required over a draconian attempt to hide the problem. 

It gives no clear reason for why someone who be asked to move. Again targeting homeless people when we should be helping them. 
It's a very Victorian way of looking at the situation.  

Page 130

rn006793
Highlight

rn006793_1
Highlight



Unless there is somewhere for all homeless people to stay, this is a travesty. Asking people to clear up after themselves is one thing 
but stealing their sleeping equipment is disgraceful, especially during the winter. 

This is their only means of keeping dry and maybe warm. People already struggle to come by this type of equipment as it is. 
Removing this equipment away from the owner will only add to their depressive circumstances and will possibly lead to more deaths on 

the streets of Exeter that should not already be happening. 

This could cause great hardship to homeless people and it shouldbe possible for homeless people to be able to reclaim any 
possessions or they can be left without shelter , clothes, etc. 

My first concern is the term "authorised person." By the definition provided this will presumably empower shop owners or managers as 
well as police and council workers. I am aware that the police offer people the chance to reclaim confiscated property within a week, 

however it is not clear whether business owners will also be made to do this. Presumably they will not, and so rough sleepers are likely 
to find what little they have arbitrarily taken from them. Additionally, there are completely valid reasons why homeless people might 

want to avoid the police, and so would be unable to reclaim their property. It is understood that the vast majority "missing persons" are  
thought to be homeless or sleeping rough. People categorised as such are often on the run from domestic violence, abusive families or 

other dangerous circumstances. People in this situation are naturally wary of institutions such as the police who might recognise or 
report them, and so are unlikely to reclaim their property even if this option is hypothetically available to them. Homeless people often 

also have problems with identification and official documentation, and so might not be able to prove that the property is their's. As such 
even if this proposal is implemented humanely, much upheaval and disturbance will be caused to society's most vulnerable, and so the 

proposal as a whole should be scrapped. Homelessness should instead be addressed as an issue in its own right, as opposed to 
attempts to limit its effects on other people. 

 
Something in the FAQs sheet that I take deep objection to is the assertion that "many people choose not to access [the support that is 
made available to them]." Within the context of the paragraph in question, it is directly used to justify the claim that rough sleepers are 
not being targeted. The assumption, then, is that rough sleepers aren't being targeted because they have other options available, and 

are choosing not to take them. In this sense sleeping rough is portrayed as more of a choice than a necessity, and so punishing people 
for behaviour surrounding it is seemingly justified. However this completely disregards the many valid reasons people have for 

choosing not to stay in a shelter, hostel, or other temporary accommodation made available. People can be trying to avoid specific 
individuals who have harassed or intimidated them in the past, people recovering from addictions can be trying to avoid other users so 

as to avoid relapsing, hostels often don't have secure facilities for personal belongings and so theft can be commonplace. Hostels 
(such as Gabriel house) can have time limits for staying, and so people can be unable to return for the meantime. Some hostels won't 
allow pets. Most accommodation prohibits alcohol and drug use, and so people with addictions are excluded. Some accommodation 
costs money - and many rough sleepers are undocumented and so can't claim benefits. Communal living entails the loss of privacy 
and personal space. People can form strong social ties to their peers and so might not want to leave their friends out on the streets, 

and finally, many rough sleepers form a deep rooted psychological aversion to living in one place or in a structured environment. 
Aversions like this can be extremely hard to get over, and people often need professional help in order to do so. As such, the fact that 
"other options" are hypothetically available does not mean anything in real terms, and so cannot be used to justify the claim that rough 
sleepers aren't being targeted. Sleeping rough is the only real option for many people, and so a proposal that gives sweeping powers 

to "any person with an interest in the land in question" to turf a rough sleeper out at any given moment will lead to horrendous 
disturbance to Exeter's homeless community, and essentially punishes people for doing something that they are forced to do out of 

necessity.  

Yes, it is essential that homeless people have options provided to have emergency  accommodation provided. No equipment should 
be removed that results in a homeless person immediately sleeping rough. 

I work with homeless and vulnerably housed people in Exeter through the Cathedral. I am absolutely shocked that the council is 
proposing to take away bedding and shelter. I do not support this proposal in any way. In a civilised society we are responsible for 

weaker and vulnerable people. High rents and benefit delays do not help. I emplore the council to re-think this proposal. 

This is a problem of homelessness. People cannot just have their bedding/shelter removed from them. Quite a few people sleep in the 
St David's church doorways/churchyard. You cannot just turf these  - people or anyone else out on to the streets. This seems a harsh 

anti- homelessness measure akin to Tory measures 

This is not a humane way to treat homeless PEOPLE ! 

I hope "street" includes shop door ways/entrances. 
 

Will these people be given details of help that they can get with their situation? 

I hesitated a long while before failing to give a preferecne. I cannot support this measure without knowing more, but I do realise that 
improved controls are necessary.  I fear for the consequences if alternative accommodation is not readily available and/or the 

measure is insensitively applied.  Has Exeter enough sleeping places for those who would be displaced?  Will rough sleepers be 
treated with respect, given sufficient warning and not deprived of their possessions when there is no suitable alternative 

accommodation available? 
Of course, there is always the likelihood that rough sleepers will simply move to areas not covered by the PSPO.  The city centre may 

be 'cleansed' but won't the problem simply move to areas that are currently not affected? 

yes you also need to consider using Prof Agents such as Devon Investigations Ltd who have full knowledge of how to deal with these 
matters in conjunction with the Police.It would not be advisable to use your own staff including Community Patrol as they are not Police 

Trained and lack the knowledge to deal with such matters and soon than later there would be a good change these guys would be 
assaulted. 

Rough sleepers must be offered the support and accommodation they need, simply to move them out to another area is not 
acceptable. 

Moving the problem to where it is less visible doesn't solve it. 

For this proposal to be used the city Council and other partner agencies must ensure that adequate arrangements or in place so that 
rough sleeper/ homeless don't have to resort to encampments. 

Not all homeless people choose to be. People are made homeless for many and varied reasons. Unless enough shelters are provided 
for people to go and sleep in at night, and leave their belongings during the day, I do not see it would be reasonable for them to have to 

clear their tents or bedding if they literally have nowhere else to go. 

Give decent shelter to people and you wont have a problem. 

Page 131



 

Please let Exeter be known as a place with some compassion for homeless people.  

As I said above under proposal 1, this whole approach involves downright theft or mugging by a council officer or police officer, 
committed, for no adequate reason and without reasonable excuse, against very vulnerable members of the public   who are not 

where they are out of choice, and who often have no money to replace the items it is proposed to steal from them. It is outrageous that 
any such proposal should have received any backing from even the most irresponsible Council officer, or from even the most 

ill-informed and inexperienced elected member. 

This will negatively affect the most vulnerable people in our society. These people need help rather than being victimised and 
persecuted.  

The acts of persecution and discrimination of the minority and vulnerable groups are abhorrent and comparable to some of the 
measures introduced by the Nazi Party before the Second World War. 

Mahatma Ghandi said "A nation's greatness is measured by how it treats its weakest members." Based on this quote, if these 
proposals are introduced, this Nation would be quite distant from greatness. 

There is a very worrying proposal:   
It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 

measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 
immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 

confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 
moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

People do not chose to be homeless and on the streets.  If the City Council is not providing  adequate and safe facilities for  such 
distressed citizens  then it is inhumane to take anything at all away from such vulnerable people.  

 
Many homeless people are mentally ill. Emotionally challenged.  Desperate cold and hungry.their only protection at night...and often in 
the day, is the equipment and artifacts that will keep them warm. No one in their right mind would chose to remove the only things they 

have to make life at all tolerable.  
 

I consider the move by Exeter City Council to be against the Human Rights Act. It is against Christian principles.   Homelessness is a 
massive problem which the council would earn huge accolades for if the set an example to the rest of the country by tackling this in a 

new an innovative manner rather than by disgusting acts of cruelty.  
 

We're we to see this happening outside of the UK  we would immediately be condemning it. 

And how do you propose these people will keep warm, give them shelter, that's the answer. It is tantamount to stealing to take their 
possessions away, we are the lucky ones who have homes to go to, more possessions than we need, are well educated and come 

from privileged backgrounds. People who have no homes need our help. 

This is a most cruel and vindictive response to those fellow human beings who have less than us. The idea that these actions would be 
carried out on behalf of Exeter City ( a city I love and have lived near all my life) authorities is absolutely abhorrent. It is particularly 

disgusting that I heard about it at Christmas. Exeter certainly knows how to honour the Christmas spirit with its 'no room at the inn'. It 
has brought shame on our city and those who proposed it. 

It is inhuman to remove articles that keep homeless people alive, especially in cold weather, when they have nowhere else to go. 

This is persecution of the most vulnerable and disenfranchised in our society. I want the council to provide more accommodation and 
support for tough sleepers. 

The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  anti-social 
behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of having to 

sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the power to 
destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time of rising 

homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. 

You are lumping different groups under the same umbrella, there is a massive difference to being homeless, and antisocial behaviour! 

I disagree with this in the strongest terms, particularly the threat of a fine. I would like to add my voice to the thousands who signed the 
keep streets live campaign. I cannot agree with the criminalisation of a vulnerable group of people's last resort. In addition to this, 
public spaces are indeed that: Public. They should be free for people to use for informal gatherings, including, but not limited to, 

busking.  

Page 132



3. Clear away and remove from this area without delay (to the satisfaction of an authorised person) any unauthorised bivouac, bedding 
or equipment formed in a street together with any associated paraphernalia, when requested to do so by an authorised person and if 

that person fails to clear away and remove as directed an authorised person may then or on a future date or time confiscate and 
dispose of any unauthorised bivouac, bedding or encampment found within this area with or without the permission of its owner. 

 
For these purposes, bivouac, bedding and encampment mean any portable shelter used for camping or outdoor sleeping, and include 

materials used for shelter against the elements, weather or ground. 
 

For this purpose  unauthorised  means without the express written consent of any owner (or any person having control over or an 
interest in the land in question). 

 
Q3. 

 
Do you agree with Proposal 3? 

 
No 

 
It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 

measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 
immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 

confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 
moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

In effect, you are stealing the belongings of impoverished people. Aren't you ashamed? 
Provided them with housing and shelter and then their belongings won't be on the street. 

vulnerable homeless people are not choosing to "cause a public nuisance" and moving them on is inhumane 

Does the local authority provide accommodation for homeless people? If not, where can a homeless person sleep? 

This proposal is clearly targeted at 'sanitizing' public spaces of the most vulnerable members of the public. This is a clear infringement 
of individual rights. A public space is a public space, to be used how the public deem fit. It is not for a council or other authority to 
dictate how a public space is to be used and it is not right for members of that public to be discriminated against to pander to the 

sensibilities of those who prefer not to face reality. This proposal is absolutely disgusting from a humanitarian point of view. 

Very few people choose to sleep out in the open if there is the option of temporary shelter indoors ie a bed on the floor of a friend's 
house or a place in a 'Shelter' for the night. 

If you clear away their bedding you may be taking the only possessions they have and their only means of keeping warm 

In the case of a homeless person dependent upon such shelter, this is unhelpful and inhuman. Adequate provision must be made for 
that person's protection and for protecting what possessiosn they have, including a bivouac or similar. The enactment of the proposal 

could lead to suffering and actual harm. 

ABSOLUTLY ASTONISHING to see that mesaures like this could even be considered!! This is highly immoral and ethically 
reprehensible that a Labour-led local authority , or indeed any at all, could even be considering implementing these draconinan 

measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 
immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 

confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 
moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

There was no mention of whether the bedding etc. is being used by a homless person or not. 

This proposal again effectively criminalises homelessness.  If inadequate provision is made for homeless people, what choices do 
they have but to provide some form of shelter for themselves? To deprive them of these meagre resources whilst not providing proper 

accommodation simply makes their situation more desperate AND criminalises them.  It does not provide any solution to the 
underlying problem of homelessness. 

If people are unfortunate enough through financial misfortune or mental health to be obliged to sleep rough it seems inhumane to take 
away their means of shelter. 

I would have thought a Labour Council would focus on support and providing more affordable housing. 

This is draconian and completely contrary to what I would expect from a Labour council.  I am frankly staggered it is even being 
contemplated.  Vulnerable people will be at risk of being bullied and criiminalised by over powerful  "council employees" or G4S type 

equivalents. NO! .  Better to spend tiime and energy addressing associated housing issues.  

This , imo is a form of theft and bullying?   They are homeless.  They have nowhere to keep what meagre belongings they have. 

This would potentially compound the problems of a vulnerable person 

Page 133



We need to support homeless people not throw them off the streets when they have nowhere else to go. 

A homeless person should be allowed to sleep rough, and should not have their bedding/shelter interfered with. 

I now make a point of giving money to `beggars` since this mean spirited proposal. 

If a place/ places are provided for the homeless where they can put up their tents etc., then there will be no need for them to be 
everywhere. Since social housing is limited and private rent barely affordable  perhaps these are the issues that need to be urgently 

addressed. If there was enough to go around then there would be no issue of homelessness except as a lifestyle choice. 

There aren't places available for people to store their possessions 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

I think that this is appalling. It seems to be saying that being in a wretched, vulnerable state of homeless rough sleeping, a vulnerable 
individual will be punished by law if they have any sort of improvised shelter at any time, including during the night. This proposal 

seems to be completely lacking in intelligence and compassion.  

The homeless have a hard enough life as it is without officials making life even harder for them! 

Absolutely not!  You cannot take away a persons only means of protection, their possessions.  This is social cleansing. 

If they are to be moved on with their items they should be directed to another safe place where they can go - there needs to be 
somewhere for these people to settle themselves and their things - they do not have the luxury of their own property or land to go to 

Help the homeless! Don't criminalise vulnerable people. Throwing away their bedding is not helping!!! 

Leaves vulnerable, and sometimes unwell, people who are street homeless vulnerable to insensitive behaviour and loss of belongings. 
The council will be well aware of the issues that lead people to resist or refuse entry to temp accommodation, and should direct funding 
at working with those people to support any illness, and to find acceptable alternative safe places to stay/rest. Criminalising someone 

for wanting to sleep in a shop doorway where they are sheltered from weather and perhaps feel safe, seems almost inhuman.  

I disagree with this proposal as it deals with a symptom and not the cause of a deeply harrowing and traumatizing situation that can 
afflict many people, namely, homelessness. To criminalise an individual who is already a victim of this predicament is indefensible.  

The focus should be on finding a solution for those who are forced to sleep outside in all weathers, even if it's just a homeless shelter, 
not being concerned with the aesthetics of unsightly attempts by homeless people to have the bare minimum of comfort and dignity.  

unless a long term shelter is provided 

A bsolutely unacceptable! Trying to create brave new world? What is happening with our humanity and compassion that someone can 
propose to confiscate the few possessions of a homeless person and fine them £100. Both things  horrified me. 

I feel it is extremely unfair to punish people in this fashion when they are down on their luck. Taking away someone's protection against 
the elements is not only grossly unfair it is also dangerous. 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

What extra provisions will be made for homeless people? 

In Sidmouth recently, two homeless people have died sleeping rough - that is a tragedy - it might be said that they have been let down 
by Society.  This provision allows for bedding material to be confiscated - how would that affect the survival chances of a homeless 

person?  That this proposal has even been put forward is incredible, and the Council should be ashamed.  We need proactive 
provisions to help homeless people - not an unnecessary sledgehammer to make their situation more desperate.  The local authority 
should urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and treatment for those suffering from 

addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to marginalise the vulnerable and the 
destitute. 

These people are amongst the poorest in the community. To take their possessions, particularly those required to provide warmth and 
shelter and dispose of them is an appalling condemnation of the council and its authoritarian approach to these issues. What kind of 
Labour Party behaves like this and demonstrates such Victorian indifference to the poor? If the. Council finds it necessary to remove 

people's property, then provision should be made to reclaim the property at a later point. 

Until we have housing for all, at  affordable  prices then this is idea is not just or caring for the needy and vunerable people who are 
out in cold damp weather whose equipment is already taken from them. 

  

The proposal itself is not right and is dehumanising people. There has to be a better way of dealing with people who are different - for 
whatever reason- that this proposal. It is ridiculous to fine people who already don't have any moneyc 

Page 134



 

I am appalled that a Labour council is considering putting a policy in place which is legalises the abuse of the poorest and most 
vulnerable people in our society. These people need our help. They are not criminals. 

There are plenty of laws already in place to deal with aggressive or violent behaviour. Sleeping rough is not a criminal offence in this 
country and to make them subject to sanctions in this manner is reminiscent of the policies put in place in Germany under the Nazis. 

This is literally taking away their entire livelihood. Disgusting. 

It's disgusting to consider doing this to people who should be helped, not harmed. 

To victimise and criminalise homelessness is frankly wrong and inhumane. Whilst I am not overly fond of the sight of "associated 
paraphernalia" on the streets, I would much rather see this than know that a vulnerable, homeless person has potentially had their 
meagre possessions and limited shelter confiscated. These proposals are all wrong. The problem is not the debris/defecations of 

homeless people but the fact that people are being made homeless or continue to be homeless. 

Homelessness is a hugely damaging problem I'm our society and you are seeking to criminalise people who have nowhere sleep 
instead of helping them. I find the idea that you have even suggested this to be utterly preposterous and inhuman. 

Confiscating the limited possessions of someone on the street is cruel and unjust.  

Homelessness sadly seems to be on the increase, unless the council provides suitable and adequate alternative accommodation, for 
those living on the streets, then the homeless should be allowed to keep their possessions and tents !! 

Again, it makes those at the bottom of the social pile unwanted. 

People who sleep rough rarely do so by choice.  Confiscating their belongings is a wholly unreasonable response.  In fact, it is the 
kind of response that I would associate with Nazi Germany. 

This is Elizabethan Poor Law  

What if the person is homeless and has nowhere else to put their belongings? This appears to be an inexcusable attack on the 
innocent and vulnerable, unacceptable behaviour in a civilised and democratic society, and merely a disgraceful cover for failure of the 

Council's duty to house such people. 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

Rather than victimisating individuals that have no fixed accommodation and pushing them further out into the suburbs, it would be a 
better idea to tack the homelessness problem in Exeter. It is very likely that these individuals will not have money to pay any fines 

which in turn I guess may lead to their arrest and ultimately prison if they can not pay. Plus if all their belongings have been confiscated 
then how are they going to cope with being homeless. With the varied British weather and no shelter this in turn could lead to great 

levels of illness and therefore hospital admission to an already under pressure NHS service. I think the proposal needs a large amount 
of work to develop a worthwhile solution to help the homeless population and protect the local residents. 

This would place very vunerable people at risk of serious harm, this is cruel and injust these are the people the city council should be 
supporting most. this is irresponsible and compassionless 

Until there is adequate available housing this will further punish those who already have nothing. 

For rough sleepers, confiscating and destroying their shelter / bedding is an act of discrimination. If the problem upsets the traders, 
who are largely wealthy national chains, then perhaps they could contribute to adequate supported housing so that there are no rough 
sleepers. The police already have powers to move people on and this is enough - to then destroy their few possessions, should be a 

criminal act in itself. 

It is appalling that you would take away what little the person has to survive. Find them a place to stay 

What provision is being made for unfortunate people who find themselves homeless?  What is this, Russia?! 

In the spirit of law, a punishment acts as a deterrant, where the criminal and potential criminal chose not to commit further crime.  
Homelessness comes about through a complex set of circumstances beyond a persons' control - the mechanism of punishment as a 

deterrant therefore fails. 
 

Among the circumstances that lead to Homelessness are government cuts to local authorities and welfare. Not only is it hypocritical to 
outlaw the consequences of these policies, confiscations will not make them dissapear.  

 
If the local authority really does not want homeless bedding in public spaces, it should take the issue to those responsible in 

government, rather than its victims, and provide alternative, safe places for homeless people to sleep. That punitive measures were 
considered before these represents a disturbing lack of humanity from those we trust to represent us. 

Page 135



It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

I find this idea of removing sleeping bags and personal possessions of individuals who have fallen on hard times, truly awful. The 
concept of a £1000 fine,seems inhumane and distressing. Let us be better than this. 

If these items belong to a homeless person and constitute their possessions and protection from the weather then these items should 
not be removed as it may leave the person at the mercy of the elements and at medical risk. 

"Without delay" would I hope he interpreted humanely; many people, when newly awakened, take time to process life.  As it is worded, 
this part of the proposal is far too likely to be enacted inhumanly, and a person's entirei life could be disposed of. 

Do you want to have to pick up dead people ? 

Proposal 3 is not acceptable unless adequate provision is made to provide off-street shelter for the individual as an alternative to 'rough 
sleeping'.  

Again, an unjust policy targeting the most vulnerable in society and potentially criminalising them. The result will be (as with so many 
other 'solutions' that target the end result) is that it simply moves the problem to someone else's back yard. 

I strongly disapprove of measures taken against street people, whether they are classed as a 'nuisance' or not.  Their lives are 
unimaginably hard, and should not be made harder.  People don't live like this from choice. 

This is so cruel! Where are the homeless meant to go? The council should be providing them with a place to camp, this is heartless I 
am shocked at such a suggestion. 

More provision of hostels and shelters and offering practical advice to the homeless is a step in the right direction Your proposal is just 
to keep moving them along and pretending there isn't a problem .Not all homeless people expected at sometime in their life expected 

to be sleeping rough . 

This is not paraphenalia it is the only belongings of some very poor people.  

This is Completely wrong 

I very much doubt people would be sleeping in this area by choice. Provide adequate guaranteed hostel places or a safe and warm 
place for them to sleep as an alternative. 

No need for these measures. 
Who are the authorised persons?  

Sounds petty, nasty and authoritarian to me. Not at all in keeping with the sort of city I want to live in. 

I frankly do not believe the assertion that living on the street is a life choice for any but a very small minority of so called offenders.  

A means to further restrict protest - stop being so draconian 

This is too draconian and while not stopping homelessness it will merely increase the misery. 

Some people of necessity find themselves homeless and have no choice but to try and find shelter. We need to ask ourselves if it 
offends us and therefore makes us uncomfortable when we should perhaps say this could be my child, brother or sister who may have 

made some unwise decisions in life or through no fault of their own finds themselves on the streets. Very few people sleep on the 
streets through choice  after all would you. There but for 'fortune' go you or I.  

Absolutely not. No one should ever be fined for sleeping outside, but rather should be helped. 

Rather than taking away the only things keeping a homeless person alive in the winter months, why not build more housing, or 
shelters, or at least somewhere warm and dry. 

They will die on the street without shelter 

Have you made proper provision for rough sleepers that does not stigmatise them?  If not, then this prposal seems heavy-handed. 

Well that's great! Let's take away their bedding. Why not just authorise a firing squad and have done with it!  
 

What safety nets are in place for these people? Disgraceful proposal. 
 

ADDRESS THE PROBLEM! This is not a solution. It's a veneer, a transparent diabolical and cosmetic fix proposed by 'politicians'.  
 

Let's bully the less fortunate; let's drive them out of sight, and then take credit for cleaning up the streets of Exeter. This is a cynical 
outrageous proposal backed by the comfortable middle class. Wake up! There's a problem here. 

Homelessness seems to be quite a problem in Exeter, which is noticeable on Sidwell street and on the main high street through town. 
While I understand that some people may be threatened by the presence of homeless people, or find it distressing, I think that they 

should be allowed to 'camp' in shop doorways etc. If you want to take away this opportunity then serious alternatives need to be 
offered to these people. The problem of homelessness will not be solved by such a measure.  

Police already have the power to move on any individual who is causing offence or distress to any member of the public. If someone is 
concerned that they may encounter difficulty gaining access to their property,  they can call the police for assistance. Extra powers are 

not requires to confiscate an individual's property/belongings.  

provide housing or shelter. 

Public officials should act within the law. They should try to help disadvantaged people where possible. Removing bedding and means 
of shelter where no alternative  is available is barbaric.  

bivouacs may be moment of public demonstrations. This is a too ambiguous proposal that may be misused in a political way. 

This is punitive.It does not deal with the causes around homelessness.It makes perpetrators out of victims.With cuts around support for 
people in this position to then do this to them is awful and cruel.This should be obvious. 

Page 136



There are increasing numbers of people who, as a direct result of draconian and inequitable government policies, are left with no home 
or other shelter in which to sleep.  It is totally wrong that such people should be punished for failure in government policy to collect 

taxes from large corporations such as Amazon, Boots , Google etc on profits acquired in this country, resulting in inadequate funds to 
meet the needs of such people. 

If the person concerned is homeless and has nowhere else to go to shelter from the elements then to deprive them of their bedding or 
protection from the elements would be detrimental to their health and welfare. 

 we are on this planet together, we need to share resources of air,water, land and shelter, its a human right, its only since 
industrialisation that man has tried to impose his rules on his fellow man. in natural law we are all the same and have the same rights. 

so no its not ok to take away someones only form of shelter or bedding. 

Fly-tipping is bad for the area and shows a bad example to kids. 

They are homeless - this is their only shelter - support them, don't harass them. Secondly, provide places where they can go which are 
open to them and not a controlling restrictive barrier to them. Some of the homeless are mentally disturbed and can not cope with the 

rat race - don't persecute them, help them. 

This is disgusting. Do you think that when you take away a person's ability to stay warm that they automatically have somewhere else 
to stay warm/sleep? Where is the logic in this? Whoever wrote this should be ashamed of the sheer laziness and lack of compassion 

behind this proposal. 

This is an illogical and inhumane proposal, that will endanger those most vulnerable in our society. The issue of homelessness in 
Exeter is one that urgently needs to be addressed, but this is entirely the wrong way to go about it. 

I feel that people in this position need to be offered an alternative shelter. Where are they supposed tio go? How can they pay a fine if 
they have no means of support? They will only move out of the designated area and probably move to more residential areas causing 

distress to local,people. 

The bedding, shelter etc. is someone's property and should not be confiscated from its owner.  

A direct targeting of the vulnerable, where a serious obstruction of a public area happens the law already provides redress.  

Don't believe situation is as straightforward as this and although no doubt Police can and do use discretion and common sense in 
individual cases this may be limited by introduction andstrict enforcement 

I am unable to agree to this proposal. If the authorised personnel are approaching those on the street with humanity and offering a safe 
viable alternative, a place offering guidance, and non judgemental help, without condition, then there would be less likelihood of a 

breakdown in communication. The threat of losing personal belongings is something our homeless should never endure.  
 

A person being told to move on invariably questions where they should go, and there should be a viable place of safety offered as a 
solution. 

Give them a roof over their heads - it ain't rocket science. The biggest crime here is that unused buildings remain empty which could 
house these individuals, free. A public place is just that, public space; and any member of the public, whomever they shall be, is 

entitled to utilize that place and erect anything that will give them shelter from the elements; particularly if the local authority ignores 
their obvious plight - it appears to me that the local authority are neglecting their care of duty to those in need -- this is a human rights 

issue and an indictment of local authority malfeasance.  

They have no other place to go, so this is completely stupid. 

These draconian and authoritarian measures do not have public support. 

Legalised theft, these sleeping/living materials actually are the property of someone, should not be seized without a Judge's express 
consent or a search and seize warrant.  

These type ofsuggested  laws are a strong reminder of pre WW2 Nazi anti Jewish laws in Germany. For Jews substitute homeless, 
vulnerable and the mentally ill. 

Has Exeter CC never thought of opening and operating a proper homeless persons hostel near the City center somewhere? Could not 
a charity be found to run such a place. Put 0.25p on the council tax, more than pay for it! 

But they still need somewhere to go that they can legally access and feel safe, so you can only implement this one if you have taken 
steps to ensure that these vulnerable people have an alternative place to move to. 

If somebody has nothing else then the law should say that you have to provide them a clean dry place to sleep before removing what 
little they have. 

Unecessary. 

Rough sleepers need to be offered an alternative and as a civilised society we need to ensure that an suitable alternative (close to 
Exeter centre) is available 

The vast majority of rough sleepers are not doing it from choice: the council should be looking to help these unfortunates, not 
criminalise them! 

This would appear to just be away to persecute and confiscate what little shelter and life support materials vulnerable and homeless 
people have. 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

Words fail me at the thought of informing it. 

Page 137



This is aimed directly at the homeless.  There is nothing in the proposal that could not be done under existing legislation [ I speak as 
an ex lightweight camper ]  These people need help. The idea of fining people who already have little or nothing and in many cases 

lack the ability to control what they do get is ludicrous. And as for taking what little they do have and destroying it; well we certainly are 
not a christian country any more. 

It is disgusting to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian measures. This 
measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not immediately 
remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to confiscate and 
destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being moved on. The 
extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  anti-social 

behaviour .  
 

As a Labour-run local authority you should be taking steps urgently to address the provision of housing places for those who are 
inadequately housed and treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence 

which will be used to marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 
 

Shame on you! 

Homless should be allowed a warning and to be able to identify said belongjngs to then be able to pick up from the station. If it carries 
on then dispose of items. 

Homeless people are vulnerable and need support, not to be penalised for the few possessions and forms of shelter they can find. 

I strongly disagree with this, again this has not been thought through from the perspective of a homeless person.  
 

For example, when temperatures drop below zero one needs as much weather protection as one can muster to survive. To have a 
authorised person take your survival away for due to how they perceive it looks is barbaric. This is nothing shore of destroying 

someones home. Albeit a temporary shelter or a sleeping bag. 
 

People are rendered homeless for many different reasons, what ever the reason is they have a right to a home. This proposal could 
lead to someones demise the following night. 

Homeless people need shelter from the weather and cold!!!!! If you provided them somewhere to sleep safely and securely they 
wouldn't have to have their own shelters. 

 
Everyone has the basic human right to shelter.  

 
I have never witnessed any homeless person leaving their shelter up during the day or in any way/to any inconvenience of other 

people, so why is this a problem. 
 

I see this as entirely unnecessary and unfair demonisation of homeless people who have no other option. 

Due to the lack of adequate provision for the homeless in the Exeter area this proposal amount s to authorisation of Bully-boy tactics 
instead of solving the problem. 

Again, homeless people will be adversely affected. 

These people are desperate and do not 'choose' to sleep rough in the streets. They are in need of urgent help and it is the duty of local 
authorities to give that help. It is ironic that a labour led council is taking this attitude to criminalise those who sleep rough. The council 

proposal is an ill thought out act of tyranny! 

If people are choosing the sleep rough then that is their choice. Of course, for some it will be less of a choice -- in which case the 
greater 'crime' is being committed by the council for not providing what is required. Why are some people choosing to sleep rough? 

Turning them into criminals is ridiculous and the Council should be ashamed of themselves. 

It is an excessively oppressive measure to deal with a very minor situation. It does nothing to address the roots of the problem and will 
merely allow the council to make a cheap cosmetic fix. 

I think it unfair to remove from homeless people the few items they do have - the enforcing of this order would cause undue distress. 
Perhaps these people could be directed to a more non-public safe area 

Confiscation and disposal seems unnecessarily draconian in nature - whilst I agree that council officers and police should have the 
powers necessary to clear public access ways, without alternatives I fear the humanitarian implications of depriving people of what 

might be their only means of warmth and therefore survival outside in the elements.  

Totally unnecessary victimisation of homeless people.  Concentration should be on provision of shelter and assistance. 

This is the clearing away of homeless people. 
I believe Medicine hat in Canada has no homeless people, so this is the way things should go: 

http://www.cbc.ca/radio/asithappens/as-it-happens-thursday-edition-1.3074402/medicine-hat-becomes-the-first-city-in-canada-to-elimin
ate-homelessness-1.3074742 

 
People are generally on the streets through terrible misfortune. They need the most help of all. 

This proposal seems unnecessarily draconian, as those items are likely to be the ONLY shelter and bedding a homeless person has. 
Removing the few possessions they have in this sense will add to the misery of being on the street rather than solving a problem. I 

would suggest that working with local organisations to provide more facilities for homeless persons to store their bedding etc during the 
day would be a better step than just removing those possessions.   

The homeless need to sleep somewhere.  If bedding is causing an obstruction, officers may be authorised to move it, but only so far 
as is necessary for clear passage.  They should never be allowed to destroy the little property that rough sleepers possess.  That 

would be legalised bullying and theft. 

You should not take away peoples personal items especially items such as bedding without which a person could come to serious 
harm even death especially in cold. 

This proposal is only targeted towards homeless people who already have to face so many hardships whilst living on the streets. Often 
the only possession homeless people have is bedding and if this is removed this will put their health at risk especially during the cold 

nights. 

Page 138



It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

I agree to them being given a chance to remove but I also think you should enable them to have a place of safety to go to in order to 
get out of the cold. Exeter should make sufficient provision for homeless people to go somewhere warm and dry to sleep in. There are 

too many rough sleepers, can a public building or a church be made available for this?  

Do not pick on those who are less fortunate than you who may have no choivces. 

I feel that homelessness needs a solution, and that there are circumstances where, in an emergency, someone may have no other 
option but to put up unauthorised shelter. This may have to remain up for the duration of the emergency. On private land, this may be 

taken up with the police and law should be adhered to. On public land, this should be a case of supporting the individual in finding 
alternative and suitable shelter, before any dismantling of emergency shelter is considered. 

I feel that to deprive anyone of their only possessions and effectively the shelter that forms part of their basic needs is not acceptable.  
I don't feel there are enough resources to successfully support these people back into settled accommodation despite the fact that 

Council says advice is available We will always have entrenched homeless for whatever reasons so depriving them of a basic human 
right to shelter does not sit comfortably with me. 

This equipment and bedding is a human right to have access to. We have so many homeless people with no place to go. They must 
use their bedding on the street because that is the only place to sleep. Tents are usually kept in a discreet area anyway. It would be 

wrong to dispose of someone's personal belongings without permission especially considering that may be their only belongings. This 
equipment may be the difference between life and death during the winter and it's unreasonable to expect people not to have these 

items. A better alternative to criminalisation is to provide multiple shelter spaces and simply ask people to go there instead of in 
doorways. 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

Perhaps make more of an attempt to help the desperate 

Yes, the proposal is abhorrent.  
 
 

 The Council wishes to hear the views of everyone who may be affected by the proposed Order if introduced by the 22 January 2016 - 
these views will be considered before any decision is made on the proposed Order by full Council in February 2016. 

 
EVERYONE?? so the homeless people that this proposal aims to persecute, won't be affected? They are homeless and as such have 

no way of filling in this online questionnaire, as you know. 

Absolutely not. It is disgusting that a Labour led Council would contemplate this! targeting the vulnerable and confiscating and 
destroying their only shelter and means of comfort not to mention potentially criminalising the person. No! no! no! 

This proposal is completely unacceptable. Homeless people should have an absolute right to protect themselves from the elements. 

A bullying tactic! This act makes it a criminal offence to be homeless. A vulnerable person is left even more vulnerable. This proposal is 
not a solution but just shifts the problem. A person is caught sleeping in a shop doorway sheltering from the cold. Their wares are 
removed if the person does not comply. Leaving the person even more vulnerable and at risk. This person could then suffer from 

hypothermia then requiring hospitalisation . The result of this is more cost and leaving other sectors to take responsibility. Thus the 
problem has simply been shifted. 

yes good idea, you need to use authorised agents ie devon investigations to assist with this task and commuinity patrol does not have 
the experience to undertake such tasks and they are not POLICE TRAINED 

Some homeless people have nowhere else to go and need their bedding. 

A person's bivouac should only be removed or confiscated if the authorised person can lead the 'offender' to a place of safety and 
shelter. 

If there is no provision for alternative sleeping arrangements, then it is unreasonable to ask someone to move their bedding. You will 
simply shift the problem from one spot to another. This needs more consideration. 

Give these people a safe place to live - no one wants to live in danger on the street. 

I think it is unjust to remove bedding from those who have no other option but to sleep on the street - taking away their shelter and 
bedding could lead to severe health repercussions!  

Page 139



 

The Council should increase its support and funding for organisations dedicated to helping and rehabilitating those less well off and 
vulnerable in our City. 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

If a person is in a properly provided area to camp there should be no need to have them removed. Due to the current climate of 
austerity many people are finding themselves at their lowest ebb and are no longer able to find or afford suitable housing.  

Utterly disgusting; if people have nowhere to sleep, it's not their fault and destroying what little they have is immoral and inhumane. 
Either leave them alone or provide more free shelters, and stop paying your top bosses hundreds of thousands a year. 

"For these purposes, bivouac, bedding and encampment mean any portable shelter used for camping or outdoor sleeping, and include 
materials used for shelter against the elements, weather or ground." 

What about the HOMELESS?????? Provide them with shelter not take materials off them that protect them from the elements!! On 
who's head will it be when people start dying? Homeless people are already vulnerable, to move them on to a potentially less safe 

place could put them in grave danger, to destroy their bedding and protection from the elements could cause them to literally freeze to 
death!! What is wrong with you people? Don't you realise that you will always get some "jobsworth" who's new found powers will go to 
their head? Somebody with no regard for other people's plights, care for their safety, interested in their well being? It seems to me that 
the council itself has no regard for those most vulnerable in its area so why would you expect its employees to be any different? HELP 

THE HOMELESS NOT CRIMINALISE THEM!!!! 

Where are these people going to go? This is only acceptable of there are enough beds (or similar) available to homeless people within 
a reasonable distance, and openly available (ie without unreasonable restrictions regarding the person in need of the bed) 

The council could help to provide over night accommodation for the people sleeping rough. 

Let's not loose sight of the fact that these people are destitute and not persecute the down trodden just because it looks untidy.  How 
about being human and taking them to sheltered accommodation instead of treating them as if the don't matter?  Human life still ought 

to mean more money REGARDLESS! 

You would take away a person only belongings if that is there bed, only means of shelter. Too cruel. 

If a person is homeless, more often than not through no fault of their own, taking their only form of shelter and warmth because they do 
not move on at your request is bordering on the barbaric! 

This criminalises people who, in the main are sleeping rough by no fault or choice of their own.  There are many reasons why people 
may find themselves sleeping in the street but to attempt to remove them by criminalising the practice will only make their predicament 
worse.  The CAUSES of their rough sleeping must be addressed - this, and only this, will allow them to escape the street.  This order 

would significantly increase the risks to one of the most vulnerable groups in society.   

The police and council have a duty of care towards the persons within the city. Proposal 3 shows no compassion or respect for 
homeless people and is a way for the council to push 'the homeless issue' out of the city instead of dealing with it in a compassionate 

and sensible manor. Complete lack of duty of care and a disgusting proposal 

The removal of someone's shelter is simply callous. Forcing someone who is already on the street to move on their temporary bed for 
the night, simply to protect a business's clear entrance way (mainly when that business isn't even open) is unbelievable.  

to paraphrase point 3, you are removing their only shelter and leaving them completely open to the elements. 

Moving a rough sleeper on is bullying. The council should bring forward an obligation on itself to provide appropriate shelter otherwise 
they are pushing vulnerable people into vulnerable places. This is immoral and dangerous. 

Provide suitable accommodation then! Don't stop people's housing benefit for stupid reasons. If people had a home to go to and you 
did your job, rather than gatekeep all of our resources for a select minority, then perhaps you wouldn't be dreaming up such evil laws 

today. You'll just create more "criminals" to line your own greedy, self righteous, theiving pockets.  

  

In your FAQs there is a lot of explanation about how this proposal is being made because of employees trying to open premises in the 
morning. However, there is a serious gap between this explanation and the wording of the actual proposal. If you grant these powers, 

they will inevitably be used far more widely than you have described. If an employee is trying to open a premises and they are 
experiencing intimidating behaviour they are well within their rights to contact the police and the individual involved can be dealt with by 

the normal criminal justice process. It is absolutely unnecessary and discriminatory to grant these powers in a blanket manner, 
including all rough sleepers whether or not they are causing problems. 

So many people now have no accommodation. Rough sleepers rarely do so out of choice. These people are the visible result of the 
failure of our community's responsibility to vulnerable people. They are sleeping rough because, as they have faced difficulties in their 
lives, they fallen through the 'safety netting'. It is no solution to move them on and ship them out so that they become someone else's 

problem.  

I find it very disturbing that Exeter City Council is willing to  target the most vulnerable people in our city, potentially criminalising them 
as well as imposing a fine between £100-£1000.  Not to mention that they are unlikely to be able to pay.  This cannot be a good use 

of resources.  I also find it distasteful that you are considering using council officers in this way.  I would suggest that the Council 
takes a lead from other cities, as well as Shelter into using resources to house people.   

http://england.shelter.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0008/145853/GP_Briefing_Housing_First.pdf 

Page 140



I understand the undesirability of shop doorways being occupied by rough sleepers. However, there is no suggestion within the PSBO 
proposals that there are reasons why such activity takes place. The rough sleeper community know full well what services are 

available. They are usually full or have a policy of not overnighting people with dependency issues. This would be the most 
discriminatory power available under this proposal and indicates an unwillingness to acknowledge the reality of a lack of 

comprehensive support services for such vulnerable people. Existing PCSOs do a good job of engagement with this sector. Who would 
be proud to be seen to remove bedding etc especially in wet and cold conditions? 

Why ? why ? who thought of this God forgive them I won't you bullying bastards who gave you the right to say which part of gods earth  
someone can be  

This amounts to persecution of the homeless.  
They have enough problems without having what little they have being taken away from them. Allowing the 'authorised person' to 

remove "materials used for shelter against the elements, weather or ground.'" is inhumane. 

The Exeter City Council currently has a homelessness policy strategy out for consultation. There are clearly weaknesses that the 
Council has identified in that document in relation to cooperation between authorities and organisations and in relation to lack of 
training, not to mention resources. These issues and all the other issues in that document demonstrate that much work is being 

identified as requiring urgent and carefully considered actions. These comments are pertinent to each and every proposal in this PSPO 
consultation. It is not appropriate to have the PSPO consultation ending before the Homelessness Consultation. 

 
Notwithstanding my opposition to this proposal, the wording is clearly gives wide powers and there are not the safeguards. There 

appears to be no objective evidence for the changes and I am left wondering whether some of the "push" for this has come from the 
business community in Exeter. 

 
For example, the powers being proposed appear to mean that if a homeless person has left their belongings temporarily - perhaps to 

use the toilet - they could return to find their belongings gone. The proposal makes no allowance for safeguards, for example, 
belongings are found with no one present. No confiscation should take place for at least one hour and if belongings are moved, then 

arrangements must be made so that the belongings can be re-used. 
 

The following is a "lift" from the Keep Streets Live comment: 
 

The current proposal It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and 
authoritarian measures.  

 
This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not immediately 

remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to confiscate and 
destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being moved on.  

 
The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  anti-social 

behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of having to 
sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the power to 
destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time of rising 

homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city.  

 
The local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 

treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 
marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

It is our duty not to exclude or criminalise people who may have to sleep on the streets, but to try to help. They are vulnerable peoples, 
suffering and struggling to survive. We should be spending funds addressing the root of the issue and ways to provide help, rather than 

criminalising those people. 

The dont feel the idea of the council having the power to confiscate and dispose of the belongings of our most vulnerable citizens is a 
very humane or helpful proposal. 

cruel, demeaning and contemptuous of basic human dignity 

I am astounded that this is a proposed prohibition. It will target homeless people and give the "authorised person" the power to 
confiscate and dispose of what little possessions these homeless people own (in their attempt to shelter themselves from the weather). 

This seems to be a callous attempt to remove the troubling sight of homeless people from the streets, without doing anything 
constructive to help the homeless people themselves. It is not a solution to the problem of homelessness, it is an effort to deny that the 

problem exists, to remove the evidence of it so others, people with homes, can feel better as they walk through Exeter. 

It could be used to target/harrass homeless people. There are many reasons why homeless people live on the street. For many, the 
problem is an absence of suitable alternative accommodation or that they they do not feel safe in the accommodation made available. 
Any attempt to manage homelessness in this way needs to be justified on a case-by-case basis in consultation with social workers and 
local charities, making sure that a truly suitable alternative (suitable to the homeless person) has been found. Otherwise, this amounts 

to destruction of the life of an already vulnerable person. 

Again this is an attack on a social class.  Rather than addressing the problem, these people have no where except the streets to live, 
someone has decided that they make the place look untidy so they should be removed so those of us fortunate enough to visit the city 

center for pleasure or business do not have to see them.  The homeless should be helped, not simply removed. 

I am concerned that this proposal will hit the most vulnerable members of our community. 

This is a disgusting proposal. This outlines the unreasonable taking of a persons warmth, shelter, food and safety. This would leave an 
individual or group, who already have very little, with absolutely nothing. Seeing how so many are living on the streets with no clear 
future that doesn't involve sleeping rough, to take away the very means they are using to survive is something so cruel and inhuman 

that I'm shocked it could even be considered an 'act of justice under the law'. Why take away a mans rod when he struggles every day 
to provide enough fish to live off, and give nothing in return? Cruelty, appeasing of the 'higher being' and all that tosh. 

Page 141



It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures! This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000, for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket,  when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their scant personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a 

time of rising homelessness, it is an utter disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that 
criminalise the most vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public 

spaces of the city. The local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are 
inadequately housed, and treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence 

which will be used to marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

It is effectively criminalising homelessness, moving the problem on rather than helping to tackle the deeper social issues 

If the bivouac is owned by a person who has the facilities to store it privately i agree that they should asked and then compelled to 
remove it, but if a person does not have access to to this then it seems completely unreasonable to suggest to them they should be 

stpring it privately. Any confiscation made in this circumstance would be theft. That such an oppression as this is even being 
considered is truely shocking. 

Many people sleeping rough have nowhere safe to go - taking there stuff could mean they die of exposure. Also it is dehumanising to 
take away the only possessions they have in the world. No one starts out planning to be homeless. We need more safe decent hostel 
accommodation and help to get homeless people the right help - many are in the grips of addictions which they cannot beat on their 
own. Fining them is pointless - they have no money to pay with. Turning them into criminals just pushes them further out of society 

This is an attempt to put the homeless persons out of view. 

A resounding NO! To take away the few possessions a homeless, vulnerable person owns is criminal .People will die of cold if bedding 
and shelter is taken from them. Shame on you to even think about it,- provide more shelters for the homeless if you don't like them " 

littering" the streets! 

The Police and City Council already have powers to move people on. Without the provision of alternative, affordable accommodation 
and assistance this measure just become confiscation for its own sake. The individuals are well known and many have significant 
social and personal problems which need to be addressed. I have no difficulty with a proposal that would empower Authorities to 

dismantle the bivouac/tent or whatever which could be claimed back from Council Officers with the allied and assertive support being 
offered. Taking away possessions from people who are already disadvantaged,  desperate and ill-supported is both uncaring and 

unproductive. 

Wouldn't it be great if there was more shelter accommodation available so this was not  required. Any illigal immigrants should be 
removed, detained and returned to a centre. 

Proposal 3 appears to be entirely targeted at homeless people and is discriminatory and unfair. If someone is already so 
disadvantaged as to be homeless then I cannot see how removing and disposing of their bedding and few possessions can help 

anyone. 
It would be better for the council to spend its resources in trying to help and support those who are homeless rather than trying to 

demonize them and make their lives even harder. In very cold weather disposing of someone's bedding in this way could leave them 
vulnerable to hypothermia or even death and is grossly irresponsible. 

Homeless people should not be stripped of a place they deem safe in which to sleep. Human beings deserve the very basic right to 
warmth, to take away a homeless persons blankets etc must in any decent society be illegal. It is definitely immoral.  

there should be reasonable provisions made to those being asked to move, eg. suitable and safe alternative shelter 

People are rarely homeless by choice. Arbitrarily depriving homeless people of warmth and shelter is petty and mean 

NO   this is too strict. In Winter they might depend on such things for survival, and need some of it for warmth during the day. Also, if 
they have no place to keep their bedding etc during the day, surely it is simpler to let them keep it with them rather than organise 

somewhere with lockers, or a manned storage place. Of course they might get abusive if prevented from sitting in any public area with 
their belongings. That is provocative and makes them feel totally pushed out of sight and worthless. On this point, I strongly agree with 
KSL's campaign and their view that:  The local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those 
who are inadequately housed and treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal 

offence which will be used to marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute.  

It is completely unacceptable to remove a person's belongings and themselves from the street if it is the only place they have to.  They 
should not have to suffer more than they already do. A more responsible scheme would be to find them work/affordable housing.  

A sweeping power that could be used to stop all kinds of legitimate artistic events, or protests, that add colour, interest, and variety to 
our streets, even before they have had a chance to prove themselves inoffensive. 

Provide shelters for the homeless so they have somewhere to sleep so they don'yt have to sleep on pavements 

People sleeping in the street may be there for no fault of their own. Merely ignorance or incompetence or fear of something. By all 
means try to find them an indoor place to sleep but this should not be mandatory. You do not know what problems the person is facing 

without a full investigation. Understanding is required before mandatory removal. 

There are not enough homes for people and those that exist are much too expensive for homeless folk. If you want to criminalise 
homelessness, you then have the responsibility to provide homes. 

You just see these people as filth - but something made them that way - childhood, poor education, abuse or being sent to Iraq or 
Afghanistan  as a soldier - all areas where local and national government is lacking. These problems are yours but you don't take 

responsibility - you just want to abuse them more which will make more problems.  

Yes, through the action of removing the temporary shelter one is not solving the long term problem of poverty and substance abuse.  
New shelters will be constructed by those in need.  I think this approach is an immediate solution for property owners and not a long 

term solution for people in desperate need of help. 

I don't think it's black and white. I would not want to leave a homeless person without security or bedding or to be separated from what 
little they possess.  

Such acts can only lead to more anti social behaviour and extreme stress.  
Being able to remove them to a store someshere and making sure the person knows where to collect their belongings would be the 

ideal solution.  

Page 142



I think this is basically criminalising desperate and vulnerable people who might need that bedding to survive in the winter. I completely 
disagree with this. 

From my professional context, I know that the implication in the PSPO FAQ that everyone who rough sleeps in the city centre does so 
through choice is simply not true..  There is a significant shortage of appropriate first-stage accommodation locally, particularly for 

those with high support needs.  Driving this issue 'out of sight' because rough sleeping paraphenalia is inconvenient for local 
businesses merely conceals the real issues at stake and creates a pretext for not addressing them.   

 
In practice, I strongly suspect (again from my professional context) that the PSPO will: 

 
a) simply increase the pressure on local support services to repeatedly re-issue items such as sleeping bags, which is an incredible 

waste of resources 
 

b) drive rough-sleepers further away from the city centre and deter them from accessing the centrally-located support services that they 
need  

 
This is completely morally unacceptable 

This will make homeless peoples lives significantly harder and risk their health as you will be removing the means of keeping warm and 
dry. this is removing the first need of any one to have shelter from the elements 

Where do you expect homeless people to go? This is an unfair, inhumane proposal. The centre of a city is vital for homeless people to 
survive. Their network and support system is in the centre and to keep moving them on will lead to more stress and animosity. It would 

be more considerate and compassionate to offer a solution than just blindly trying to eradicate this perceived 'problem'.  

Harassment 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure gives the council the power to confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on 
the basis that they had the temerity to object to being moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority 

wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less 
safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential 
bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders 
that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular 

should be considering measures that criminalise the most vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a 
misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of 

housing places for those who are inadequately housed and treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues. I do 
not want to live in a place where vulnerable people are criminalized in this way and certainly won t be voting labour if this is what a 

Labour Council stands for! 

Living on the streets is not a lifestyle choice. The very few possessions people have are precious to them and mostly needed to keep 
them as warm and comfortable as is possible in such conditions. It is possible.  This proposal lacks the compassion and humanity for 
those who love on the streets which the council ought to display. They are citizens of Exeter too so perhaps you are you trying to hide 
them from public view so,that the issue of homelessness, which is growing, becomes something we no longer think about? No, do not 

remove bedding, bivouacs etc.  
 
 

I agree with this proposal  - but would hope that should a homeless person be asked to pack up during the night time - they could be 
signposted to somewhere suitable to sleep.  

You are in effect making the homeless criminals. You would be taking away from them the pathetic possessions they still have and 
making their lives far worse. NOT something a council - especially a Labour council - should be.  Far better to treat them with 

consideration of their needs and provide legal shelter. 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

Making life even more difficult for those without any form of permanent shelter is unnecessary and quite frankly draconian. Especially 
when said Local Authorities are making it even harder for people to access their housing registers. This part should be removed from 

the measures . 

You can remove bedding from a homeless person This is wrong on every level since if their bedding is taken and disposed of how 
would they be able to obtain more.  

For goodness sake! Homeless people own hardly anything and you want to confiscate and discard the few possessions they do have! 
If there are homeless people, this is because you are not providing  enough temporary and permanent housing for them so this is your 

fault, as a Council, not theirs. 

This would be theft. 

The Council should work with organisations supporting the homeless to provide suitable safe accommodation and allow people to have 
a roof over their head. A greater proportion of Council taxes should go towards support services for the homeless. 

This is very unfair on homeless people and effectively criminalises them for existing and needing to sleep somewhere. 

Page 143



 

How are people supposed to manage an already tenuous existence when this council is building homes for super-rich students and not 
affordable homes for local people. 

This is disgraceful and could lead to fatalities especially in this cold weather. The council should have enough shelters for all homeless 
people 24 hours a day to rest and eat. This is beyond humanity and the main point I have against these proposals. These homeless 

people are human beings who are at the lowest point in their lives, such actions are totally unacceptable 

This cannot be the right response to the recent rise in homelessness. If a group of young white males were to pace around Exeter in 
mid-winter, taking homeless peoples' bags and shelters away from them, it would rightly be labelled as a rise of unacceptable fascism 

bordering on the murderous. Can a Labour council seriously consider authorising its officers to do the same thing? I am also very 
concerned about this proposal being misused to prevent overnight protests or pickets of any sort. 

I am extremely concerned about this. 
 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

I am not at all persuaded that these draconian powers are necessary 

This is open to abuse. Again, it depends on whether an alternative is available. If there is no safe place to rest, are we not just moving 
the problem along to someone else's area? 

 People have a right to warm safe shelter and seeing as the council aren't providing that it is only fair that people try and protect 
themselves from the elements as best they can.  Would you rather these people die from hypothermia? 

It is ridiculous that homelessness should be disregarded in such a way and that the victim of homelessness should be placed in an 
even harder situation than before 

It is a basic human right to have shelter. As ECC does not provide emergency accommodation this should be regarded as theft. 

Don't take away people's personal items without consent.  Work with them, speak with them, help them....don't basically STEAL their 
belongings 

I think this is shocking, you are denying the person any hope of warmth or dignity by taking away what little they have. How about 
providing blankets, bedding, more safe places for people to stay? 

This is excessive and cruel, and I would question whether it is not even breaking the law to confiscate a person's property in this way.  
Those who are on the streets have so little already.  wonder how the councillors and businesses making this proposal would feel if 
they had such possessions removed from their use in the appalling weather, both rain and cold, that we have experienced recently.  
There is little evidence of people using these items in the daytime and if there is no appropriate shelter provided elsewhere at night 
how are the homeless supposed to survive?  As the accompanying notes acknowledge, many of those who are 'on the street' are 

people with accompanying difficulties who need proper support and shelter not potentially subjective enforcement of new laws.  The 
police are at least properly trained to work with those who may cause a nuisance, are the 'council officials' trained to such a degree, or 

may their prejudices, and targets, adversely influence the manner in which they work? 

Granting police and council officers the power to order a homeless person to remove their bedding and possessions effectively 
criminalizes people for acting in a way to which they have no alternative. The solution to the tragedy that people are compelled to sleep 
rough is to implement more effective housing provision and treatment for addiction or mental health problems where this is a problem. 

It is no solution to hide the problem by forcing people to move out of view or face unpayable fines.  

Do you have the same rights with travellers caravans. Do you not realise that these tents are these peoples only shelter from the 
elements. I guess that none of you would relise a winter night in the open with or without a tent. 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

Page 144



If you have need of a "bivouac, bedding and encampment... any portable shelter used for camping or outdoor sleeping, and... materials 
used for shelter against the elements, weather or ground," 

then the chances are that you are homeless and the possessions that you have around you are likely to be the only things that you 
own in this world. It should not, nor ever be, within the power of the local authorities to destroy what few possessions these people 

have. Because they are people regardless of their situation and should be treated with respect and dignity, irregardless of the way their 
living arrangements make you feel when you walk past them on the street. Destroying what few possessions they have in this world is 

barbaric, disrespectful and inhumane. Added to this the fact that it will do nothing to solve the actual problem of homelessness. The 
only thing this proposal will achieve will be to remove the supposed 'eyesore' these possessions present to the rest of society, so that 

everyone else can continue on in their comfortable little bubble and ignore the malignant problem that homelessness is within our 
society. 

These possessions, though they may appear like 'junk' to people fortunate enough to be able to afford better things, are all that these 
people have. The council has no right to take them away if they are not posing a danger, just like they have no right to take away 

someone's pushchair, for example, if they left it parked outside a shop. Belongings like blankets etcetera may take the homeless ages 
to obtain, and will probably have been given out of charity. They are essential to their comfort and well-being; taking away their 

belongings will do nothing but spark a divide and resentment on both sides, which is not the solution to the problem. The people you 
are considering 'targeting' need human compassion, not soul-less legislation. 

Shocking proposal. Charities and churches will simply re-issue bedding, tents etc 

I think it would be absurdly unjust to take away the already scarce belongings and properties owned by the people living hard and 
testing lives on the streets, providing they are attempting to better their situations and truly have no other place to go. 

People who are homeless have very few possessions-are you going to take away the little they have? If you were out on a cold night, 
you would try and find a bit of shelter somewhere. I know having spent only a week homeless in London when I was young (I'm now 

67)-it was frightening, extremely cold, you were all the time waiting to be moved on-but to where?   
I am appalled that a Labour Council could even be contemplating these actions. Maybe if it were Conservative it wouldn't surprise me 

but as a Labour member, I can hardly credit this inhumanity! 

In many cases these possessions are literally all these people have - how inhumane it would be to strip them of what little they cling to. 

Callous, dangerous for the victim and appears to involve Exeter City Council engaging in theft of personal property as the Supreme 
Court shall prove against you. Additionally, if this is to be used to harass and discriminate against street artists and music performers 

(buskers) then absolutely not and may you hang your philistine heads in shame.  

Don't take the few possessions  these people have away from them 

Many homeless people are given bedding and they have nowhere to store it.  Some provision must be made whereby their 
possessions can be stored safely for them. 

This proposal frightens me the most of all.  The shocking increase in the number of street sleepers is a symptom of a society breaking 
down.  I judge the decency of a community by the way it treats its lost and vulnerable citizens.  Criminalising street sleepers re 

focusses attention from the cause (our appalling attitude to the vulnerable) towards the "symptom" (the rough sleepers).  This is a 
complex problem requiring complex - not scapegoating - solutions.  How difficult can it be to get into dialogue with street sleepers to 
find a solution which suits everyone?  How about spending the money apparently budgeted for policing, paperwork and imprisoning 
people, on building discreet lockers for the homeless where they can safely leave their bedding  - and then get on with their lives. 
Damp bedding is a health problem.  No bedding at all  will encourage the spread of T.B. - once - but no longer - eradicated from 

British streets.  Has anyone making these proposals calculated the cost to the NHS of the exacerbation of respiratory diseases and 
premature deaths? A sceptic would wonder whether premature deaths is what the City Council is hoping for.  - would solve one 

problem! 

This is inhumane and unacceptable, since homeless people have no-where else to go. Often their shelters and bedding is all that 
protects them from freezing to death. 

I don't see how a homeless person can clear away bedding, shelters, etc when they have nowhere to store their belongings.  

I have several key concerns about this. Firstly, the ability to confiscate possessions with or without the owner's permission is a 
particularly damaging concept, especially since the people using bivouac and other such materials are already very materially poor. 

There is also a civil liberties issue here and I believe this could be challenged in court as has been done successfully with the 
metropolitan police in London. Secondly, the question is, why do you need to remove these items? The only reason I can perceive is 
aesthetic, because it does indeed make places look untidy. However that isn't justification for legislation that results in some kind of 

enforcement. Aesthetic policy usually focuses on adding something to improve an environment, rather than removing people. This in 
itself is a danger of gentrification and social cleansing. Thirdly, though very much connected to my second point, I object to the concept 
of moving homeless away from spaces as it creates a culture whereby hiding poverty is treated as a means of dealing with it. This then 
begs the question of where the homeless would go. I suspect that, rather than going to a shelter, where many of them may not actually 

want to go, they will move to areas on the periphery of the PSPO zone, creating the same issue, just in different spaces.  

What?  Confiscate bedding and belongings if someone who has nowhere else to go is sleeping rough? Fine them if they don't want to 
move, someone who has very few possessions any way?  Have you provided somewhere else, sympathetic to their needs, for all of 

them to go?  Where in the 'designated area' are these street camps? 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

Page 145



This is a serious coordinated attack on homeless people sleeping rough across Exeter. A person is at rock bottom when their 
homeless it seems Exeter City Council is promoting the kicking of these people when they are down.  

Some storage arrangement should be made available to rough sleepers so they can leave their bedding etc secure during the daytime.  
It is definitely not fair to confiscate possessions without recourse. 

To remove the bedding and other shelter from homeless people  is unspeakable. It takes work to gather bedding. Do we want to take 
away the very small amount of comfort such people have managed to get hold of and thus leave them to be even colder and more 

vulnerable when night comes? Better the council provides facilities for storing bedding etc and thus really looks after the homeless of 
Exeter. 

I oppose measures being taken against homeless people and the confiscation or destruction of their few possessions. We should show 
compassion for people in these circumstances and provide services  for their welfare. 

Rough sleepers may need to be moved and given help but NOT CRIMINALISED and not covered by the same Order that includes 
urinating and drug taking in public places. Including the homeless in this way is a shocking indictment of the Council's attitude towards 

them. 

It would be far more worthwhile, considerate and effective if the "offenders" were directed to a place where they could safely and 
legally camp or bed down. Confiscation, should be an extreme last resort and must be temporary. 

The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  anti-social 
behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of having to 

sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the power to 
destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time of rising 

homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

I find this disgusting. It puts at risk people who are already highly vulnerable and shows a profound lack of compassion. 

This is a reprehensible and vindictive proposal, aimed at destroying the possessions, privacy and self-esteem of those who have least 
in society. Shameful. And shame on you councillors for proposing it when you all have nice, comfortable homes to go back to every 

night. 

It is highly distressing to see any authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian measures. This 
measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not immediately 
remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to confiscate and 
destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being moved on. The 
extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  anti-social 
behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of having to 

sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the power to 
destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time of rising 

homelessness it is a disgrace that any council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most vulnerable 
members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The local 

authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and treatment for 
those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to marginalise the 

vulnerable and the destitute. Having worked professionally with homeless people and having narrowly escaped homelessness myself I 
think this proposal is disgusting and strips the most vulnerable desperate members of our society of hope and dignity and marginalises 

them yet further when they are in most need. how will criminalising them help?  

Again unnecessary  

This is a draconian measure showing total insensitivity to any one who may be sleeping rough for a night or indeed homeless.  
More resources could be put into providing more housing for those who are inadequately housed and treatment for those with mental 

health and addiction problems. Rather than treating homelessness as a crime resources need to be put into finding and addressing the 
causes. 

If people find themselves on the street at night they should be able to surround themselves with anything they are able to find to 
increase their comfort.  I wouldn't wish to do anything to make this person's situation worse and I am deeply shocked that any council 
should be so lacking in compassion.   A council exists to serve the interests of ALL the people its area and it shouldn't imagine it can 

do that by coercing people into adopting the systems it has dreamt up  

I find it an appalling attitude to take to some of the most vulnerable people in society.  

To take their property and dispose of it is heartless and uncivilised. They are vulnerable in some way and need support. To fine and 
criminalise is impractical and a waste of resources. These people have hardly a thousand pennies let alone a thousand pounds. 

Usually these people have mental health/physical health needs that would be exacerbated by this bullying action.  

Council/police must be vigilant to "nip in the bud" unauthorised camp sites before they become advertised on social media and grow 
uncontrollably. 

Actions should be taken to increase shelter for vulnerable people on the streets, and not to remove it! Have some heart! 

I am concerned that a labour led council are considering these measures, homeless people have no choice but to sleep rough, 
shortage of housing is creating more people to become homeless. It will cause highly vulnerable people to be less safe and to face 

criminal sanctions purely because they have no choice and nowhere else to go but to sleep rough. This is a disgrace that a Labour led 
council should consider criminalising the most vulnerable members of society.  It would certainly be better to solve these issues if the 

local authority urgently addressed provisions for housing places for those who are inadequately housed and treatment for those 
suffering from addiction and/or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used against the most 

vulnerable and destitute. 

Are you seriously advocating confiscating and destroying the only comfort or 'home' these people have? How unbelievably callous and 
cruel. I cannot believe this is even an option NO NO NO. Don't be so heartless.  

Anyone who removes bedding from a homeless person in winter is recklessly endangering the life of the homeless person,  they 
should be prosecuted for this not given power to do it legally. At best it's theft, at worst manslaughter, either way we have laws to 

prevent these crimes, not facilitate them. 

Just making people victims of the council whim disgusting!! 

Page 146



It is most distressing to think that the possessions of the most vulnerable and unfortunate could be confiscated and criminalised. It is 
ridiculous to fine these people who have no resources. The council should be providing more housing and support for those suffering 

from addiction and mental health problems. 

Sometimes there is no alternative to bedding down. 

How cold must your heart be! It's the most ridiculous thing I've ever heard! Who are you to have the 'authority' to take away someones 
belongings whom are surviving and sleeping on the earth, which was made for all? It's absurd! How are they supposed to keep warm 

and survive? They're marginalized and isolated enough without all this nonsense! 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

I find it incredible that you are proposing to remove bedding from people who have nowhere to sleep other than in the open. Again, this 
will target the most vulnerable people in our society, those whom we should be treating compassionately. 'Tidying' them away will not 

solve the problem. 

I believe that this proposal does nothing other than victimize the poorest and most vulnerable in our city. I think it will do nothing, but 
cause a rough sleeper to feel alienated, outcatst and hated by a society that ought to be helping. It is bad enough that people find 

themselves destitute here in the UK without resorting to bullying. 

This is targeting vulnerable people who do not have access to this consolation process as they are homeless.   

This proposal could have a lethal impact on homeless people. Confiscation (also known as theft) of someones homely possessions is 
so morally wrong it is astounding it has been considered an option in a civilized society. 

Homelessness should be dealt with in a compassionate way. taking and destroying the little the homeless have will not solve the 
problem 

No one lives on the street by choice ,would you ? .taking away there shelter only makes their situation worse . I think it would help if 
you put yourself into their shoes for a moment and consider the help you would need to get back on your feet .  

This is a serious breach of individual rights.  A person who has lost virtually everything in their life, has almost nothing left which they 
can call their own.  Once their bedding or shelter has been taken, has the problem of their rough sleeping been resolved?  clearly not.  

Forcefully removing the only source of night time warmth does NOT provide accommodation for the forthcoming night.  How are the 
most dispossessed members of society supposed to acquire  another sleeping bag,blanket or covering. 

This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000, for a homeless person to not 
immediately remove their sleeping bag or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer. It gives the council the power to 

confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 
moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. The local 
authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and treatment for 

those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to marginalise the 
vulnerable and the destitute. 

This discriminates against street homeless as it removes the very few possessions they might have and need. It seems to me that it is 
an underhand way of targetting homeless people and it is completely unacceptable.  

I don't think that removing a homeless person's few possessions is the right thing to do. Also unless there are shelters or hostels that 
these people can be taken to I think that it is wrong to ask them to move. This proposition does not treat the problem, it just moves it 

somewhere else. 

It is incumbent on the authorities to ensure that the people who need these items has somewhere safe to store them during the day.  
Just simply telling them to remove them is not acceptable.  

I am very alarmed that this proposal was ever suggested.  The council seems to think that it can just sweep what it deems to be 
anti-social behaviour away and in the process it will sweep away the most  vulnerable and powerless members of our community.  Is 

this really what we have come to? 

The street sweepers are prepared to move bedding, because their Managers inform them not to in case they sue the council because 
its personal belongings. Also the council has no where to keep rough sleepers bedding, tents and so on. 

Page 147



 

A Labour Council...A LABOUR COUNCIL...seeks to conflate destitution with anti-social behaviour. Shameful.  

I could not disagree more with your proposal.  Again - human beings with human needs.  You just want to ignore their plight and 
make them criminals in their vulnerability.  I am ashamed to hear how you plan to act. 

A homeless person is supposed to exist without bedding or other protection from the elements. Get real!!! 

Taking the bedding of a rough sleeper is an act of cruelty. 
 

Again this will target the homeless and criminalise them for simply not having a place to live. Where is a homeless person supposed to 
keep their shelter? 

It is highly distressing to see a Labour-led local authority even considering implementing these ill-thought out and authoritarian 
measures. This measure would make it a summary criminal offence, punishable by a fine of up to £1000 for a homeless person to not 

immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when ordered to do so by a council officer, and gives the council the power to 
confiscate and destroy the bedding and possessions of homeless people on the basis that they had the temerity to object to being 

moved on. The extension of summary powers such as this to the local authority wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with  
anti-social behaviour . It will cause highly vulnerable people to become less safe and to face criminal sanctions purely on account of 

having to sleep rough. It means vulnerable people will be subject to potential bullying at the hands of council officers who will have the 
power to destroy their personal possessions if they don t comply with orders that might be unreasonable and misconstrued. At a time 

of rising homelessness it is a disgrace that a Labour-led council in particular should be considering measures that criminalise the most 
vulnerable members of society and make their lives more difficult in a misguided attempt to sanitise the public spaces of the city. The 

local authority would do better to urgently address the provision of housing places for those who are inadequately housed and 
treatment for those suffering from addiction or mental health issues, instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to 

marginalise the vulnerable and the destitute. 

You cannot destroy another persons property without a court order. And look at the problems that will create. 

The most disadvantaged people will be worse than homeless.  

People become homeless, usually through unfortunate circumstances, they need some means of surviving. Removing their shelters is 
only likely to lead to more illness/death and more pressure on the NHS.  

For homeless people in extreme weather, collecting blankets and constructing improvised shelters can be a matter of life and death, 
and their loss can have drastic consequences for their physical wellbeing. As such, they should be removed only in the most extreme 
cases, although it may sometimes be necessary for them to be relocated. An unsightly blanket in a corner is a small price to pay for 

someone not freezing to death. 

As already stated I do feel very strongly that the area should be extended to take into account the fact that there is already a significant 
problem in the Flower Pot area, and people ((especially women) using the area for lawful pursuits such as dog walking, football etc 

already feel threatened. 

This is an outrageous proposal. What is it you expect homeless individuals to do? I do not know the other measures you may have 
previously introduced to help the homeless but I still fail to see how this proposal can be justified. I'm ashamed to be a resident of a 

City that considers this sort of action. 

That may be their only protection from elements or their only comfort. They should be allowed to keep it.  

This is clearly attacking rough sleepers whose only possessions are usually a sleeping bag or something to sleep on and some warm 
clothes. They may have nowhere else to go, and to confiscate these most valuable possessions to me seems ridiculous and I am very 

strongly against it. 

Page 148



 

This question is perhaps the most sensitive and contentious in the proposals. Exeter CVS is in principle in support of these powers, but 
(as with proposal 1) with the caveat that it would be the interpretation and application of these powers that would be the real issue; and 

secondly that the city first establishes a comprehensive support package (including access to appropriate accommodation) for those 
seeking an exit from street-based living.  

 
Our starting point is one of social justice. Homelessness and rough sleeping is not desirable for the individual, for the community, or for 

society as a whole. It is important that we do not romanticise street-based lifestyles, or collude with or sustain behaviours that keep 
people vulnerable and away from pathways to recovery. 

 
The evidence that rough sleeping is detrimental to the health and wellbeing of n individual is overwhelming. The average life 

expectancy of a male rough sleeper in the UK is just 47 - the figure is even lower for women at 43. Just over one-third of all death 
among rough-sleepers is drug-related and rough sleepers are over 9 times more likely to commit suicide than the general population. 

Over 80% of people who begin rough sleeping start using at least one new drug within 6 months in order to cope (Crisis, 2011.) 
Homelessness kills - and it is to be discouraged. 

 
Exeter's official street count in 2014 gave the city the unenviable position of having the highest rate of rough sleeping per head of 

population in England outside of London. Although the official street count in 2015 showed a modest drop, services working with the 
street homeless in the city see this as not necessarily being accurate as the count was held on a night of heavy rain, and with the city 

centre unusually busy for the switching-on of the Christmas lights. 
 

Exeter City Council is to be applauded for its Sleep Safe campaign over the winter months of 2015-16, which opened up 22 beds of 
emergency accommodation. However, the open, dormitory-style accommodation on offer was not universally appealing - particularly 

for those who feel most vulnerable. As a result, the assertive homelessness outreach team reported some rough sleepers preferring to 
"take their chances" on the street rather than go into accommodation they deemed to be riskier due to the presence and behaviour of 

certain other members of the street community. 
 

In our view - and we believe the evidence shows - enforcement can have a positive impact on outcomes for individuals and the 
community as a whole, but only if it is integrated with a comprehensive package of support, including access to appropriate housing 
options (Johnsen & Fitzpatrick, 2008.) Without that, enforcement action would be purely punitive, ineffective and counter-productive. 

Furthermore, it would be unethical.  
 

Commenting on the ineffectiveness of enforcement interventions elsewhere in Europe, Doherty et al (2008) notes that homeless 
people they tracked in their study were "squeezed" out of public spaces without any compensatory support - and often were forced into 

a binary choice between increasingly displaced rough sleeping sites and inadequate and chaotic sheltered accommodation where 
harsh disciplinary regimes and fear of assault, harassment or theft are common. Such actions exacerbate rather than alleviate the 

problem. 
 

So, debris and biohazard waste associated with rough sleeping and street-based anti-social behaviour are a very real concern for 
public health, community safety and the local economy - but are caused by social justice challenges made manifest in the lives of 

vulnerable people with complex and multiple needs. As a city, we must first be confident that we have in place an accessible, 
integrated, multi-agency package of support - sufficient to meet the needs of anyone seeking an exit from street living - and including 

access to affordable and appropriate models of accommodation with parallel support to address other issues (mental health, substance 
misuse, offending, basic lifeskills etc.) Then - and only then - should enforcement action using these powers be considered ethical.  

 
As with our answer in question 1, we believe these powers need to be contextualised within the co-design and development of two 

parallel and integrated strategies: one for comprehensive support, and one for compassionate, but robust enforcement.  

As a city centre resident living near Bartholmew cemetery & the Catacombs the situation of rough sleepers has become much worse 
over the last couple of years. I've lost count of how many times myself & my partner have contacted the council, over the summer it 

was every few days, I must point out though that on each occasion it has been dealt with very efficiently. Pretty much daily we see drug 
dealing & taking, discarded needles, human faeces , smashed glass, antisocial & aggressive behaviour , aggressive dogs, general 

mess & so on. 

DSFRS responds to a number of small fires involving card board bedding within the PSPO proposed area and welcomes the removal 
of these encampments from the shop fronts and covered areas as they pose a greater risk of fire spread to heritage, residential and 

commercial buildings. 

Rough sleeping and homelessness is a large and national problem. It is difficult to see what is to be achieved by this proposal except 
to harm the homeless and just move the problem around. Move it around enough times and it will be back where it started. This is just 

mean minded  

The police already have sufficient power to deal with this too. Proposal 3 would place new pressures and responsibility on council and 
other authorised parties, resulting in abuses and placing undue pressure on local support services already struggling to deal with 

Exeter's homelessness problem. The city centre is a space for all Exeter's residents and I personally find the desired cleansing this 
proposal implies quite chilling. 

This proposal is completely unreasonable unless the City Council first provides unlimited free overnight accommodation for homeless 
people.  So far as I am aware the City Council has no such plans and in the circumstances should not entertain the proposal. 

Sort out the problem of homelessness don't punish it's victims. 

Why would you deprive street homeless individuals of the only shelter they have been able to acquire? This proposal is cruel. 

People who sleep on our streets are some of the most vulnerable in our society. We should be doing all that we can to help them. 
Taking away or even threatening to take away their bedding & shelter is just plain wrong. Exeter has a big problem with homelessness 

but this is not how to deal with it, there people need compassion. 

You cannot bring in this sort of "clearance" without also having a plan for better hostel provision for the homeless 

Page 149



I think it is disgusting to remove bedding or tents from people who are homeless. Exeter should be providing more availability in 
hostels. Yes they have safe sleep beds in the winter, but not enough spaces.Much money is spent through our taxes/ housing benefits 

, funding places in privatised band b's , taking a high top up charge off residents and then evicting them, when finding them 
intentionally homeless! How are these people meant to survive on the street, private landlords will not take those with problems ? 

There should be more projects , particularly for those with mental health issues. It seems that the intention is to persecute people when 
they are at their lowest point.  

can a area be made avalibale for rough slepers to store thier bedding during the day 

This is horrible. People who do not have homes should not have their bedding taken away from them.  

Homelessness is bad enough without having one's few comforts and possessions removed without prior warning. 

I believe taking away people's bedding is inhumane and I am disgusted that a Council would ever consider it 

We need to protect the homeless, not make their lives harder. 

What provision is being made as an alternative to house homeless people? 

If someone is rough sleeping it doesn't help them to have their belongings removed - they need emergency accommodation. It is not a 
crime to be homeless. 

There is a failure by Exeter city council to provide adequate shelter to the homeless. Removing shelters people are forced to erect 
themselves strips them of a basic human need and endangers lives. Furthermore this action will only force those living in the street to 

relocate to residential areas which will be more problematic.  

Live and let live; dudes who need to do this are barely living as it is. 

This could kill homeless people who require such materials on cold nights and obviously have nowhere to store them.  

Proposal 3 is disgusting 

This legislation will only exacerbate the problems of the homeless. People living on the street is not a problem that is going to go away 
just by asking them to 'move on' and confiscating their items needed for survival in this environment. It will probably only cause such 

persons to become more desperate. 

This is particularly problematic. Essentially this would be institutionalised theft from the very poorest members of society. You may not 
like that the capitalist system you espouse has created homelessness for many, but trying to make the problem invisible is beyond 

despicable.  

I feel that this will cause great distress and difficulty to the large homeless population in Exeter. It will further discriminate against them 
in their already difficult situation - criminalising their behaviour and the safe space they have attempted to construct for themself rather 

than offering them help and safe shelter.  

This will directly effect the homeless, some of the most vulnerable members of society who also are unlikely to have the means to 
speak out against these measures themselves. Rather than punishing these people, perhaps you could take measures to help them 

such as by providing more homeless shelters and provisions. 

This is a disgusting attack on homeless people, it makes life harder for them instead of helping the situation at all. 

a society has a responsiblity to protect those most vunerable not fine them for being at a disadvantage 

Why are you trying to criminalise homelessness? If people have no alternative, why are you removing their bedding from the only place 
they can go? How is that humanely justifiable?  

Help the homeless. 

Those who are homeless do not choose to sleep where they do, if they actually had a place to go, they'd go there. taking away their 
only protection from the elements is morally wrong. 

These are some of the few possessions the homeless have. There is no where else for them to go and to confiscate their bedding is 
inhumane - how are they expected to get through the night? This proposal is nothing short of ridiculous. Provide a shelter for these 

people. It's the only humane solution if people dislike seeing homeless people on the streets. 

This is just going to victimise homeless people and will not help them at all. 

Where are homeless people going to find shelter after an authorised person has taken away their only form of shelter. Life is hard 
enough when you are homeless, please don't confiscate homeless people's few belongings. 

Is there another option for someone sleeping rough? 

Firstly, has it been considered that "materials used for shelter against the elements etc" includes clothes? As it stands your proposal 
reads very much like Exeter city council would like to strip the homeless of their very humanity. For shame! This is singularly the most 
offensive and disgusting proposal I have ever had to read. Not only do you wish to subject the city's most vulnerable citizens (their lack 

of franchise does not mean that they cease to be citizens of this nation, they are very much still citizens) to state of existence that is 
akin, if not worse than a refugee camp, but the council is actually proposing to terrorise them. This is outrageous, have you been 

getting policy pointers from Israel? Did the council wake up one day and decide that what Exeter really needed was its very own West 
Bank?  

Condemns the homeless. 

These are horrible, horrible rules that will only allow the council to take homeless people out of the sight of 'regular' citizens, instead of 
actually trying to solve homelessness. 

I don't believe that criminalising this further will help to change the homelessness problem in Exeter. Our city needs an abstinence 
based recovery program for drug users and to fix its housing issue so that this sort of violent legislation isn't deemed required. 

Exeter has a lot of homeless people - how does confiscating their only bedding possesions help the situation? This is very short sited 
and does not actually solve and problem, just looks to try to hide to problem so that people cant see it on the street. If anything, 

homeless people being on the street provides them with better safety than if they were moved on as they can be in groups and there is 
street lighting. By all means, remove drugs and drug taking accessories but ethically there is something very wrong with removing the 

last things that people have and not offering a safe alternative.  

How can you actually justify this. They literally have nothing else, and you want to just get rid of the bare minimum they have? On top 
of that just being horrendous, their bedding is not harming anyone at all. How can you actually be considering this? 

This is barbaric, why is the council targetting attacks at the homeless and most vulnerable? This helps no one.  

Proposal 3 simply further victimises the homeless, the enforcement of it would be deeply immoral as all it does is further harms a very 
vulnerable part of society. It would do absolutely no good but quite a lot of harm.  

This is clearly formulated to criminalise Exeter's large homeless community and will do nothing but force them into other parts of the 
city. The council should instead reconsider and focus on improving services to the homeless rather than criminalisation. These people 

live in Exeter just like the rest of us and deserve just as much of a voice. 

Page 150



 

They don't choose to live like this, and they shouldn't have to cower out of sight to make the city look nicer or in order not to offend our 
eyesight. Since when did being poor become a crime ? 

If the council does not want homeless people in the city centre I would suggest they make provision for these people by opening empty 
shops or providing suitable help and housing rather than just taking their belongings and moving them out of sight. 

Agreed reluctantly on the proviso that there is an integrate package of support available for those who want to move from being on the 
streets which is a particular problem for women.  Rough sleeping is detrimental to the health and well-being of an individual leading to 

reduced life expectancy and higher suicide rates.  The support package will only be effective if there is sufficient affordable and 
appropriate accommodation with accompanying support for other issues such as mental health, substance misuse, offending, life skills 

etc.  Where people have lived in challenging circumstances, often for years, they will need help and support to learn the necessary 
skills to maintain their accommodation. 

We do not feel safe at night walking in some areas where there are rough sleepers, and they need to be dealt with humanely. 

There are some homeless people who do not qualify for shelter places or other housing. They should be helped, not penalised!  

rough sleepers do not usually choose to sleep rough.  The council should provide lockers so people have somewhere safe to store 
their stuff. And laundry services so they can dry wet bedding.  I know that there are not enough beds in the city for all rough sleepers. 

ECC should provide a night shelter for homeless peoplel waiting to go into hostels or looking for a private landlord. 

An absolutely disgusting contempt for the homeless is shown here; the proposal doesn't stop at asking them to move on, it specifically 
says to steal their bedding and anything that can 'provide shelter from the elements'. In this weather. If I ever heard of an unofficial, 

sanctioned death sentence, this is it. 

Not all of the homeless have access to overnight accommodation, or they may have reasons not to go. No one chooses to be 
homeless for fun. These people have had tough lives and have nowhere to go. It is cruel to take the few meager possessions of people 

who have nothing just because their presence is inconvenient or uncomfortable. It may be said that this law will only allow for the 
removal of someone staying in a public place if they exhibit anti-social behaviour but this law will easily make it so that the homeless 

will be kicked out of the public eye just because their presence makes people feel uncomfortable or for mental illness-related 
behaviour, which is rarely intended to be violent. The Council should instead be implementing more funds programmes and 

educational workshops on job applications for the homeless if they want them off the street. 

It's a disgusting suggestion to rob what little some people for the aesthetics of the streets. Solve the problem of why they are there not 
why you have to walk past the occasional sleeping bag 

It is disgusting that the council is considering the possibility of making the most vulnerable members of the Exeter community subject to 
fines and seizures/destruction of their possessions, simply for 'being' in public space. Such measures should only be used against 

people who have the intention to cause harassment, alarm or distress to members of the public - simply having bedding/equipment in 
public space does not fulfil any of these criteria. If people are complaining about seeing such equipment in public space, its is purely an 

aesthetic issue and the council should not cede to such subjective concerns. If the council wants to reduce the presence of such 
equipment in public spaces, taxpayers money would be much better spent on improving housing and services for the homeless. 

These materials are used to protect the homeless from the elements. If adequate affordable housing was available, the need to build a 
shelter would not arise. 

This activity is driven by necessity, survival.  
Any action to reduce or destroy these make-shift shelters undermines basic human rights. 

If no safe places are provided by this rich city for these poverty sticken people, shame on it!  

Seems to be a complete overreaction by ECC deliberately designed to push the problem of homelessness out of sight and create a 
totally fake image that the problem does not exist. It is another manifestation of the trend to dehumanise the most vulnerable in our 
society and is deeply shocking from a supposedly Labour council. The priority of enhancing economic prosperity by these means 

rather than by addressing the actual problems associated with homelessness is unworthy and ultimately self-defeating. People should 
come first - and yes, the homeless amongst us are people too. 

The NHS is already under enough stress attempting to provide healthcare services without also having to provide care for homeless 
individuals who are suffering from exposure due to having their bedding removed. 

I understand that the intention is to only do this to "uncooperative" homeless or rough sleepers.  I understand that the public may feel 
threatened by dirty or smelly or odd looking people. However, they are people and part of our community whether we like it or not. 

 
Even the most cooperative of person may have had a rough night or be ill or otherwise feel aggrieved. Perhaps they've been handled 

badly or the request made aggressively..? 
 

Issuing on the spot fines to the poorest in society and then criminalising them for non-payment (which is likely to be impossible for 
them to pay) is just hopeless. 

 
Taking away their bedding is an act of heartless bullying which as a society we should not condone or encourage. These people need 

understanding support and protection, not criminalisation or putting them at risk of death by exposure. 

Proposal three disgusts me, you should be ashamed this is even being proposed. How dare a proposal be set out to take from the 
most vulnerable in society? 

Whoever proposed this should be ashamed to be fair 

Someone could die in the cold who really is going to take a homeless persons bedding yo Allison them to be cold they will have Ho Ho 
somewhere we should concentrate on helping them not punishing them who will be to be blame when s homeless person dies  

If shelter were to be taken away, would alternate shelter be provided? Where are they expected to go? 

Absolutely horrendous. You cannot take away the few possessions someone owns, and the means for them to sleep and remain 
warm, unless we (the community) have a alternative for them.  

How can you possibly uproot somebody and confiscate their bedding. That is stealing... you might not have realised. Where are the 
homeless supposed to sleep if they cant afford a hostel for the night. This is plain cruel and vilifying the homeless will not help the 

problem. Aim to rehabilitate the homeless not criminalise them.  

Provide more shelter for the homeless!!!! 

Page 151



 

This proposal is quite frankly shocking and disgusting.  No one chooses to erect a temporary shelter on the street by choice.  No one 
decides to sleep on the street by choice.  By propsoing to remove the bedding and shelter of these individuals, the council are making 
it clear that the survival and wellbeing of these unfortunate people who are forced, by whatever circumstances, to spend their nights on 
the streets, do not even make it onto their list of priorities.  To take away what little these people have is inhuman.  To even propose 

such a thing speaks volumes about the disgraceful attitudes of those elected to represent us as citizens, and protect our best interests.  
What kind of world do we live in, if our elected representatives would rather punish the most vulnerable members of our society to 

make a statement about how 'tough' and 'decisive' they can be, than invest in rehabilitation and education schemes, or even homeless 
shelters to actually tackle this problem at its very roots? 

Yes, this is such a big problem in Exeter, I have often been intimidated by these people following me, or throwing insults at me.  

These are people's possessions. You wouldn't like it if someone came to your house and threw away your things. It's hardly fair, when 
these people don't even have a home, to threaten to dispose of their belongings. Rather than use the force of the law to move them 

away from being in places you disapprove of, why not offer them somewhere they'd prefer to be?  

This is barbaric behaviour, we have more people who are homeless than ever and your intention is to make them suffer more than 
ever. You should be trying to help these people not persecute them. I am horrified to think you could do such a thing. 

Again, no explanations are given as to why existing laws relating to this are inadequate. Again it hands huge power to officers without 
defining the circumstances under which they will be used. Since this particular proposal is directed squarely at the homeless it seems 
particularly callous. It is highly unlikely that they would be able to afford an on the spot fine, thus adding debt and a criminal record to 

their problems. I do not understand how a Labour Council could even consider such a shameful idea. 

Yes of course I do.  This blatantly targets homeless people, without any commitment to accompanying efforts to address the causes of 
homelessness.  If you give them homes, then sure, take blankets etc. off the streets for all I care, but while you make no significant 

effort to address the problem at its root, proposal 3 simply airbrushes the problem, and makes the town centre more aesthetically 
pleasing for the more privileged members of your city.   

What about homeless people who don't have anywhere else to put their things, because they are homeless. How can you justify taking 
away a homeless person's bedding or any other objects they are using as 'protection from the elements'?! It's nonsensical and frankly 

inhumane.  

It's inhumane to remove the bedding, it will literally kill people. We need to protect the most vulnerable, not cause them further harm. 

This is social cleansing aimed to directly target the homeless; I think it's utterly contemptible.  

Some people have no other choice but to sleep on the streets. To make that harder for them when they are already in a vulnerable 
position is barbaric. 

This proposal does absolutely nothing to stop the issues you've raised such as shopkeepers not being able to get in or having to deal 
with litter (which I think is a small issue compared to homelessness anyway) Most homeless people will move when asked and litter is 
a problem around the city centre not just in doorways of shops. Threatening an already vulnerable group with a fine they wont be able 

to afford is merely stigmatising a group of people the City Council should be trying to help. This comment isn't just a protest but a 
suggestion that more help should be given to accommodate the homeless as there are only a few hostels available that sometimes 

require a fee, Exeter has such a large population of people who have to sleep rough this proposal will only exacerbate an already large 
issue and do nothing to help the public awareness and empathy for those in need 

if this measure is to go forward then the council should provide an adequate place for homeless people to sleep every night without 
charging them like the hostel does 

Confiscation of their bedding is likely to lead to loss of trust in establishment figures, anger, and paranoia; in short impact negatively 
the mental state of people who already may have significant mental health problems.  

 
I suggest the provision of safe daytime storage. These facilities could be publicised, and transport offered if needed. Tea, toast, and 

signposting to other services could be provided where these lockers were situated. 
 

I understand that business owners and staff do not want discarded cardboard or bedding in the doorways of their premises, and may 
feel intimidated by homeless people being asleep in the doorway when they arrive for work. It is reasonable that bedding be stored 

away before 8.00a.m. 
 

I suggest a prerequsisite for any PSPO needs to be education about the issues homeless people face,  
and underlying conditions which may lead to behaviours which are unusual, or which others find alarming, and a request for respect for 

people in our society who lack status, safe accommodation and financial security. 
 

Blatantly targeting homeless people now, not even trying to be subtle. 

Humans need shelter to survive, finding shelter and reducing exposure comes before finding water in survival guides.  This is an 
ill-thought-out proposal in an attempt to improve the image of the city without regard for the welfare of those already at a disadvantage. 

Should be done with compassion but quickly.  

This proposal is disgraceful to come from a council that should protect its inhabitants, not punish the homeless for existing. If this 
proposal were to be put in place, I would reconsider voting Labour for the Exeter Council elections. 

You're specifically targeting the homeless. Yes you can remove the visual indicators of the problem of homelessness but you are not 
providing a solution just removing the problem from the public's view. This is so cruel. 

It is unfair to take from people what little they already have.  

This unfairly targets the homeless population of Exeter and will make their already unpleasant lives much more difficult. Consider 
finding an alternative, more humane method of relieving Exeter's homeless population of their need to sleep on the streets. Designated 

homeless shelters are a relatively cheap and humanitarian answer to the issue, and at the bare minimum can even simply take the 
form of an abandoned building that is refurbished for the purpose of sleeping in only. 

Page 152



 Provision of a storage facility is a more positive response to the problem.  Where are these people supposed to sleep?  There is 
inadequate provision of suitable accommodation and this is a major contributor to increased homelessness.   Permanent, affordable 
accommodation is needed for low wage earners and insecure housing tenure can mean such persons can be forced unto the streets. 
Penalizing destitution is intolerable in a caring community.  Punitive measures are not a solution to a real social issue.   The vagrant 

lifestyle in many cases is not a choice but a necessity in the current political climate of victimizing the poor and disadvantaged by public 
expenditure cuts.   Blaming people for their own misfortune lacks compassion.   The back story of these people needs a more caring 

response.  

Taking away the few possessions of people who can't afford anything more and fining them a thousand pounds is not a sensible way of 
achieving anything except more poverty, more starvation and ultimately more suffering. 

What kind of thick twats are you? You're trying to kill these people are you expect normal people to stand by you? 

THIS IS NOT GOING TO SOLVE THE PROBLEM OF HOMELESSNESS- THESE PEOPLE DO NOT CHOOSE TO BE HERE AND 
THEY HAVE A DIFFICULT ENOUGH TIME AS IT IS- HELP TACKLE THE ROOT OF THE PROBLEM RATHER THAN DISPLACE 

PEOPLE WHO HAVE LESS OPPORTUNITIES 

Proposal 3 appears to be targeted at the homeless community; removing bedding will lead to increased discomfort, poor health, and 
potential fatalities. Other proposals target the drunk and the disgusting (ie prohibition of public intoxication and urination), this targets 

the vulnerable and fails to acknowledge the homeless as a group in need of much help from the state.  
Also how convienient this proposal occurs as summer approaches, so homeless people freeze to death on the council's conscience 

As stated if homeless are blocking fire exit etc,they should be asked to leave 

I am genuinely disgusted by the proposal to remove homeless people's bedding. It is not a real issue in society, yet it is to many 
homeless people an essential possession. I'd much prefer to see bedding on the streets and living homeless people than finding them 

dead from exposure, which is what this would provoke.  

Do Homeless people have a choice in where they sleep and whos land they are sheltering on? I say if they are not doing any harm and 
are away from specific property they can keep their shelter (their home), all of their paraphanalia and everything else you wish to take 
from their possession. Otherwise that would be victimising the poorest of the community, unless, you were willing to give them specific 

land for them to live on which would bypass this new proposal.   

who do you people think you are? I mean jesus christ almighty remove people's bedding? What are you going to achieve? You people 
are sick and twisted 

Provide alternatives, you can't "confiscate" people's only means of keeping warm in winter - being homeless shouldn't be made illegal. 

It's a disgusting idea to take away a person's only belongings.  

Where the hell are they supposed to take it? they are homeless! you are saying clear out the only bed you have, even though it aint a 
bed 

Where will they move on to? My concern is the Council are just shifting the problem to the outskirts of town/planned proposed areas. 

Needs a solution- where will these people go? You can't just push the problem into different areas.  

What gives you the right to take away a fellow humans bedding. Help them don't make their lives worse and pray on the vulnerable. 

You're seriously proposing to take away a homeless person's bedding? Have you been out in Exeter at night recently? 

If you were to remove their shelter or bedding, they would freeze to death and their blood would be on the hands of the counsellors  

Proposal three is inhumane and unnecessarily brutal.  
People with 'bedding' and 'paraphernalia' on the streets are not trying to take advantage of, or ruin, your beautiful streets. They have 

nowhere else to go. When will you get this in to your heads? How hard is it to understand? If you unlawfully (I am speaking by the 
obvious laws of human nature) take away their possessions, the only things they have left in the world, just because you are in a suit 
and have a council position so think that you have the right to do this to another human being, you are only going to cause uproar and 
rebellion. Provide for, assist, and advise these people on how they can get off the streets. Don't you dare take the pittance they have 

left away from them. You could cause suicides, deaths, more vandalism - Proposal 3 is provocative, demonising and inhumane.  

This is truly inhuman. Address the cause not a symptom.  

Homeless people are PEOPLE, not animals. If they've found a safe(ish) place to sleep for the night and you don't like that, pay for a 
night in a hostel for them.  

Removing what little proterty homeless people have is despicable. 

Those belongings are often all that they possess. 

Where are they going to sleep if you take their bedding? They're homeless because you failed them and now you want to take away 
anything they have left. Ridiculous. 

I think this proposal hasn't been thought about enough - the council is taking away homeless people's belongings and have they 
thought about where the homeless person might go after their possessions are removed from them? 

What do you propose homeless people do?! Disgusting. 

It seems unfair to remove someone's shelter if they are homeless, without providing an alternative.  

I completely believe taking a homeless persons bedding off themy is horrendous. I understand the homeless have alternatives, 
however when you are an addict you make decisions because of your addiction. He seems people need help not have heir lives made 

more challenging. 

This simply victimises the homeless and does not contribute to solving the issue of homelessness as it completely fails to tackle the 
causes of the issue  

These people have few possessions and nowhere else to go. They should be treated with respect and left alone if they are not harming 
anyone. Their presence or the presence of their belongings is not a threat to anyone.  

This is a sickening proposal, why would anybody wish for it to go forward? Why would anyone want to  cause unneeded suffering to 
others by taking away essentials. 

Removing bedding should be criminal. It takes ages to accumulate such items and they are not always affordable. Provide a facilty for 
stuff to be stored  

This is disgusting.  Homeless people are people just like you, they are simply less fortunate.  Do you honestly think it is acceptable to 
not bother trying to help the homeless and instead penalise them?  Do you really think that will solve anything?  Do you think that 

because you have more money and opportunities in life than them you have the right to destroy anything they have?  Do you think it is 
acceptable to treat the homeless as vermin, as a nuisance?  They are human beings.  If you would like to get them off the street, help 

them. 

It's disgusting, robbing the homeless of their bedding, how can this ever be approved!  

Page 153



They need somewhere to sleep, taking away their wtuff won'tbsuddenly make tgem find a job and buy a house 

Where do you expect homeless people to actually go? And how are they supposed to stay warm at night? You'll have more of a 
problem having to 'remove, clear away or dispose of' the bodies if you take away a homeless person's only way to stay warm without 

providing an alternative. 
This is a blatant attack on the homeless with no effort to address the underlying problems. 

This victimises those who are homeless and have no where else to go.  

This specifically targets those who sleep on the streets and are homeless. This is criminalising homelessness. How can you take away 
the bedding or shelter someone has on the street when that is the only place they will be able to stay?? 

I don't believe that that is going to solve the homeless problem in Exeter 

This is the most disgusting aspect of the PSPO, the councils don't or can't provide enough homes for people so to take away their 
shelter and bedding is outrageous. How many people will die of hyperthermia? To fine people to collect their belongings is insane, 

where is the money supposed to come from to pay for it?  

Exeter Council are about to make it effectively illegal to be homeless in Exeter by imposing £1000 fines for begging and giving the 
authorities permission to confiscate and destroy homeless people's bedding and personal property. Not only is this inefficient as it does 

not target the reasons why people are homeless in the first place or why they can't get off the streets once they are, it also explicitly 
victimises poor and mentally ill people. 

It is inhumane to remove someones bedding. Especially as this could lead to illness and death, particularly during winter. A more 
logical way to tackle this would be to not spend the money on people 'removing' such items but placing the money into housing etc. to 

deal with the problem of homeless people that is currently facing the city. 

This section appears to target the most vulnerable people in the community, the homeless. Taking a rough sleeper's bedding away 
from them seems to me an immoral, punitive action.  It is being presented as a benign deed intended to encourage rough sleepers off 
the streets for their own benefit, health and well-being, but I think this is disingenuous.  I believe that the truth is that the council wishes 

to remove homeless street sleepers from the City Centre because they offend the eye, look scruffy and traders believe that their 
presence will deter customers.  This section of the PSPO will lead to unpleasant scenes between police officers or PCSOs and street 

sleepers.  No-one is going to want to give up their bedding without complaint.  This will lead to a breach of the order, and a fixed 
penalty fine.  The homeless person will not be able to pay the fine, so they will end up in court and possibly in prison, all of which costs 
money and makes a poor person's life more, not less, messed up. Many rough sleepers have complex needs and problems.  Coercing 
them to engage with appropriate agencies rarely works, and this harsh approach will damage relations of trust that often exist between 
homeless people and the police / service providers.   I am not a Christian, but I do know the parable of the talents: "from him that hath 

not shall be taken away even that which he hath." (Matthew 25:29) 

What about homeless people who have no other means of warmth or shelter? Would they be therefore forced to sleep unprotected? 

How on earth is this acceptable to even raise this a something you want to do? do you care at all for your fellow man? or do you just 
want to watch the homeless suffer more whilst you sit back and give out £100 fines for people in more than a group of two who look 

"Intimidating"? Absolute bullshit. Be careful what you chose to make law, because this will not stand and people will get hurt over this. 
you will be killing homeless people 

This would make life impossible for rough sleepers 

There is an enormous housing crisis and too much extreme poverty. There will be people sleeping rough so long as there is a lack of 
affordable housing. Instead of criminalising those already down on their lack maybe we should be addressing the lack of affordable 

housing. 

No 

This is disgusting.  Shame on all those who outlined or support this proposal.  Do not criminalise poor circumstance.  As a member 
of the emergency services, who frequently deals with the homeless population, I believe I can speak in reasonable representation of 

the officers who may feel forced to impose this new law.  It is inhumane and will be a detriment not only to the health of the victims of 
this classist crime, but also to the officers who have no choice but to enact it.  Have you no soul? 

This is morally wrong, the idea of confiscating warm bedding from the homeless is barbarian  

I find this Q3 distasteful and totally NOT acceptable.  No one has the right to remove things from another human being which would 
keep them warm and alive. 

Why is it necessary to make the lives of homeless people even more miserable? This proposal is shameful. 

Rough sleepers, rather than being targeted in this way, should be provided with support instead. I don't think this proposal helps 
address the needs of the homeless. 

Homeless people, or vulnerable young people forced out of their homes sometimes have no choice but to sleep on the streets. these 
individuals need bedding and temporary shelter to survive the cold weather or they would die of hypothermia. I have never known a 

homeless person's bedding to obstruct a public right of way, ever. The homeless community in Exeter are, on the whole, pleasant and 
vulnerable people. Their council should be assisting them into sheltered accommodation, NOT confiscating their few meagre 

possessions. This is utterly absurd, and deeply inhumane! 

De-humanising 

This is a license for any homeless person to be moved on at any time if they have any sleeping equipment - it is not reasonable.  

It targets an already vulnerable population in a most unhelpful and discriminatory manner. 

Absolutely against such action.  Taking away -  what in some cases will be their only possessions - is an act of cruelty.   What about 
supplying some lockers or dry  facilities for such items to be stored in  

This proposal is discriminatory against vulnerable homeless people and should not go forward 

You can't confiscate someone's bedding when it's all they've got to sleep on. Life is already hard enough for them as it is. 

Take away the only things they have to keep them warm? More homeless that will die  

Taking property is stealing. It is wring and illegal. 

This stuff is keeping them alive. It's freezing at night  

It seems entirely inappropriate to make rough sleeping illegal when measures to provide for the needs of the very poor, disturbed or 
desperate are insufficient. Imposing fines on homeless people is pointless and uncivilised. As with the other measures listed here, the 
wording is so broad as to make this provision dangerously open to abuse in its implementation - no distinction made between people 

who are obliged to sleep outdoors and who try to minimise any offence this may cause and people who are deliberately antisocial. 

Page 154



 

Increasing the likelihood of taking away the little the homeless have is not going to help them, or the community at all. I would like to 
see further action with charities working with the homeless in Exeter, and an increase in spending on Exeter City Council initiatives to 

work with homeless people in order to house, teach and support them.  

The police and council should be looking out for people sleeping or having to live on the streets, devon's homeless should not have 
their situation made worse!!  

Free or low priced left luggage facilities in town centre are needed.  NOT theft of people without security of private tenancy. 

Persecuting, destitute and homeless people 

See comments and questions in accompanying letter. 

Council have no right to seize people's possessions. 

It is appalling to contemoplate removing the only protection/warmth belongin to a homelss person.  Is it LEGAL?  One has to ask - to 
remove a person's posessions without that person having any redress?  Compassion is required, not condemnation. 

It would in cruel, inhuman, whre else are they to sleep or lie down if bedding etc removed they would die of exposure to the elements.  
They face enough risk to health and life as it is now.  They have no money to replace these things that are humanly essential.  We 

would be ashamed to citizens of Exeter if this Dracowian PPPSP were to be implemented. 

No one should take over a public footpath/underpass for themselves. 

Find shelter for the person and their belongings - even if that includes a dog or cat.  They are in need of help. 

Instead of being punitive, provide people with somewhere to sleep or better still, to live. Taking away their few possessions is pathetic.  
Do you really think people want to live on the street cold and we, nowhere to wsh or give themselves what we take for granted?  It's 

NOT a lifestyle choice! 

This measure makes it a criminal offence if a homeless person does not immediately remove their sleeping bag, or blanket when 
ordered by a council officer.  It also gives the council the power to destroy the bedding and posessions of homeless people.  This 
extension of power to the council wrongly conflates destitution and lack of housing with 'anti-social behaviour'.  The act of sleeping 

rough due to the unavaiability of affordable housing must never be a crime.  The city Council would do better to provide housing 
places for those who are homelss. instead of creating a criminal offence which will be used to penalise the vulnerable and destitute. 

As in adverse weather conditions people would be at risk of hypothermia. 

But only if kept area clean 

Give them somewhere to live and doctors help.  Rehab getting better. 

Open more hostels. 

Taking someone's bedding off them is endangering lives, as if they have no bedding for the night, they can freeze - especially in the 
recent weather, depending on - Age/Health problems. 

If 'bedding' is taken from someone it may cause health problems depending on age/health. 

I respect people who sleep on the street. 

It causes more problems - everywhere I've seen people doss down, it's clean when they get up and go.  If you don't want to house 
anyone, why are you making the problem worse? 

If "bedding" is taken from someone it may cause "health problems" depending on - age/health. 

This is their homes - all the own, some are homeless for so many different reasons. 

Great idea, burn someone's bed?? 

There are no public toilets at night, sat that out  ? 

Leave the homeless alone. 

It is wrong to take away bedding people need their bedding to keep warm. 

This is the real stinker.  It's hard enough being homeless.  Too many people, who cause no trouble, already get evicted from shop 
doorways. 

No 

Taking bedding away from homeless people is risking people who are homeless (not by choice) freezing and ending up either dead or 
in hospital. 

Every homeless person should be given a sleeping bag.  People will die or become seriously ill. 

This is wrong, people could die from this. 

Have places where they are allowed. 

Over 40 individuals sleep rough in and around Exeter city centre at any one time.  Some suffer severe social exclusion and will not 
ever be offered accommodation by any RSL or LA.  Some have multiple unmet physical healthcare needs and complex mental health 
issues.  Some have no money or even adequate clothing.  Having worked in the area for a couple of years I know that when i took a 
sample of the last 100 people to exit the local direct access hostel on Smythen Street, only 4 moved into the independant living and 
secure accommodation ensured by having a tenancy rather than a licence agreement.  No second Night Out actually creates and 

perpetuates the rough sleeping isue as do the rules around intentionally and local connection.  For example, I have lived in a hostel for 
3 months, I get kicked out for some reason, I am intentionally homeless and not NSNO and not in priority wherever I go.  I leave and 
turn up elsewhere but cannot get reconnected becaue no one will offer me any accommodation back where I came from so what am I 
to do.  Destroying such people's last few remaining possessions  and means of shelter from the elements doesn't seem that just or 

fair or helpful or necessary.  Offer such people a secure safe place to live, a means to live, a means to contribute and and a little 
support and suspect some would take it.  Sort out the useless broken supported housing sytem in Exeter. 

Page 155



 
 

PSPO Consultation 
Responses to Restriction 4 

01/06/16 

Comments Proposal 4 

I applaud the action being taken by ECC as it doesn't reflect well on a city which is 'up and coming'  

This proposal in my opinion has been long overdue, the powers to prevent begging and drinking in a public place have been available 
to enforce for many years. 

It should be a criminal offence to do any of the proposed intentions in public place anywhere, Anti social behavior has achieved a new 
level and its long overdue.        

Criminalising, marginalizing and stigmatizing poverty isn't the answer. 

How will this be implemented? How will it be enforced?  

If they are not causing an obstruction and ask politely then how can this is not anti-social behaviour.  If we do ban begging then should 
we not also ban chuggers in the high street? 

This is WELL over due, begging is a significant problem in the city center I have witnessed aggressive begging on more than one 
occasion and believe it should be considered anti-social behavior. 

"impliedly requested by conduct" 
Does this include people with signs asking for money? I think the consequences of banning such behaviour need to be considered. 

People in this position need support and if the State refuses to offer it then who else have they to turn to but the public? If you 
criminalise that as well where next will these people turn? Such proposals could easily lead to an increase in crimes such as theft 

How does this apply to charity fundraising?  

Sometimes you gotta eat and those that are supposed to protect and care for all people regardless of where they live chose to 
criminalise being poor.  

How else will you support the homeless population in your borough? With the budget constraints, I imagine it will be nothing. Removing 
homeless people from an area does not address the issue - it just exacerbates it and moves itself. I'm shocked and appalled that you 

are even considering this...!  

I only disagree with aggressive begging.  

There are a lot of beggars in the high street and surrounding area 

Some people who are homeless rely on whatever small handouts they may receive 

I assume this proposal will apply to the increasing numbers of charity collectors employing aggressive tactics to get people to hand 
over bank details  on the high street too? 

The zone should cover the University area too. 

Can you stop Chuggers (Charity Muggers) forcing people to sign up with a charity on the streets as well. 
 

I agree, I find it intimidating when someone asks me for some 'spare change for a coffee" when I can see by their demeanour they 
probably want to score. (I used to work in a drug treatment charity) 

I contribute to charity but prefer to do it by direct debit etc.  Unsure about who is and who is not a genuine beggar I dont give to them 
mainly because I worry they will spend that donation on drugs. They can also be threatening so I agree with the proposal.   

you might include those people who try and stop you on the street and make you donate to a charity 

This is fine as long as it also applies to charity collectors etc 

These beggars are a blight on the community n should be dissuaded from begging in any part of the country. They do not need to beg! 
They only use the money for drugs or drink.?!!! 

Does this  include charity collectors   

This makes homeless people and the buskers and street performers that make Exeter a nice place to live criminals. Proposal 4 is vile. 

What about registered charity collectors who may not have the landowners permission but are lawfully collecting for charity? 

If people are threatening, use the law against them, not bye laws. We already have the means 

It sounds good in theory, but how will you distinguish between, for example, a busker and a beggar? 

Before that happens get more help for people ie rhab and mental health services . 

Extend the are up through St James to the University. 

This is not a serious problem in Exeter like it is in other cities. People who have little should be allowed to ask for help if they do so 
politely. The answer no is always an option and almost always the answer they get.  

I find myself being requested money by unsolicited sources on a daily basis via advertising and businesses in general society - if these 
activiiies are also to be banned , i would agree 

There are currently laws that are available to cover this but even with CCTV evidence the Police are reluctant to deal with this 
effectively 

People sit quietly on the street and ask for money, the public choose to give or not give. The public have the right to be charitable if 
they want. If begging was aggressive I would see it as an issue but I have lived in Exeter for 16 years and never felt that this was an 

issue.  
The issue is with the government and a system that doesn't look after its most vulnerable. Often these people have ended up in this 

situation because of poverty or mental illness or other problematic family situations and now you want to persecute them even more. I 
guess you are trying to clean the streets of Exeter so that the, shoppers with disposable income are not distracted from their mission of 

spending money on things that they probably don't need. Either give these people a home and an income to support them at a 
reasonable standard of living, or allow them to find their own ways to survive  - stop persecuting them. 

I think people should be able to beg. Although I agree it is very uncomfortable and may be intimidating at times, I thin resources could 
be spent educating the general public on how to deal with beggars 

There has been a lot of work done on this to change the culture.  While I 'aggressive' and organised being is intimidating I am 
concerned that this regulation will penalise unwitting people beghing etc. It's not clear also how this will affect those collecting fit 

charity, especially local charities rather than the 'professional' charity collectors.  

Page 156



Because the ambit is too wide, and would encompass charitable collections as well as begging; and in particular because no distinction 
is made between pressuring people into giving money or being a nuisance whilst doing so, and merely asking. 

And licenced chuggers (charity muggers) are ok were they get paid 7 pounds an hour to flog a different charity every week and lie to 
your face about how they care? 

 
At least begging helps someone directly  (even if for it us for and bottle of cider it heaven forbid food) 

Is it a crime to ask for help? These people need to eat, clothe themselves, get places, to do this you need money. Again, if proper help 
was given they would not be in this situation, it's going to cost you as much money to try to 'remove them' as it would to help them. 

Openly approaching pedestrians for change should be discouraged, but homeless people who are sat down asking for change are less 
intimidating.  

As an employee working in the car parks, our customers advise us that they overhear police in the High St tell people begging to move 
into the multi story car parks.  In Mary Arches car park begging is nearly out of control as is drug abuse.  Customers are always 

complaining with every reason to.  We do not currently have any tools to use with this problem only to ask them to move and if they 
don't there is nothing further we can do and it is a lottery if the police turn up at all. 

Get rid of the charity muggers first please authorised or not they are far more annoying. 

These people are in need. It should not be illegal to ask for help. 

I live in the city centre and in the evenings it is rare to walk around without encountering beggars. It is a very sad situation but some are 
drunk or high. Others refuse offers of water or food. Some can be quite intimidating. This proposal may encourage some to seek 

services and encourage people to give to homeless charities rather than to the homeless community directly.  

Homeless, Big Issue sellers, bona fide charitable collectors fine, chuggers not fine. 

I am concerned that the limited geographical restrictions to the proposal will just push out these undesirable behaviours to other parts 
of the city not covered by the proposal. The proposal should cover the entire city. 

I have witnessed tourist alighting from coaches being asked for money. not a great introduction to the city. 

Again, this needs to be carefully considered. HOw do we help these people rather than penalise them? Rather than just movng them 
on they need to be given support to help them help themselves. Easier said than done, i know. We need to reduce the causes of 

begging not just the symptoms. 

I also wonder if fining someone who may not be able to afford it will help the situation? Surely this could put them further intpbdebt or 
poverty. Is there a different way to deter people? 

Your definition here is vague to say the least, but I believe our homeless community have a right to request support from those less 
fortunate than them. This shouldn't be done in a 'hard-sell' way and other than on one occasion, I have never seen it. I have never 

seen threats used or violence inferred. This is another inhumane example of Exeter's vain attempts to gentrify itself. 

This proposal should include approaches from charity "ambassadors" collecting subscription donations. 

Once again, another anti-homeless policy. There are a few beggars who are overly aggressive but most are not. And they will not stop. 
So you will be criminalising vulnerable people.  

Yes. It is unpleasant to see people with no home being in the degrading position of having to ask strangers for change. But, with no 
home, they can get no support, JSA, Disability Living Allowance or access to the majority of support services to change their situation. 

Not pleasant but they have no alternative. Criminalising it does not solve it.  

This is called begging, and I thought was illegal.  Has this law, or bye-law, been rescinded? 

This is very vaguely worded, you could equally apply this to someone collecting for a charity. "impliedly requested by conduct" - what 
does this mean? Does standing on a street corner imply this? Does sitting down on the street imply this? I thought the council already 

had measures to stop begging. Again crimilaising this activity doesn't help the homeless. 

I've never felt pressurised by the people who beg in Exeter.  I work on Sidwell Street and there are often people begging there and it 
doesn't bother me.  I think the public should be able to choose if they wish to give money to people begging rather than making it an 

offence to do so.  

This is sometimes the only way people have of feeding themselves or their children.  Aren't you ashamed that the UK is treating 
people like this? 

Everyone has the right to say no to these people, its a simple answer and does not beed to be policed. Maybe when some of the tiny 
percentage of homeless become aggressive or verbally abusive should anything be done. The majority of the time its a simple yes or 

no answer. But again the money used to police this could go towards the people who are having to beg for money for food. 

Totally unenforceable. Busking is an unregulated activity and by legal precident does not constitute begging.  

I do not condone begging, but a bye-law banning it cannot be right without something being offered to help those with no source of 
income out of that position? 

People have a right to beg and those approached are, like the rest of us capable of saying "no" without the assistance of these orders 

I feel that this should be restricted to repeated or aggressive requests 

I would say yes on the proviso that it applies to ALL people asking, unsolicited for money including, including chuggers etc. I think it's 
fine for people to stand there with their signs saying what the are about what why they want money but nobody at all should approach 

members of the public begging for money whether as individuals or as representatives of large companies.  

Laws already exist regarding threatening or abusive behaviour.  I have no problem with someone asking me for something as long as I 
am free to respond as I wish, including not engaging with them. 

As stated about bedding - should we then let people starve???? 

Another attack on the poorest and most vulnerable in society. No care or compassion here. 

It is already an offence to beg in the street; we do not need another pointless and unnecessary law; the existing law should be 
enforced! 

I would prefer to live in a society where such requests were not even necessary. Do we live in a society where there is no hunger, 
poverty, homelessness etc? No we do not. Prohibiting such things does not negate the issue of their presence.  

You have no right to stop people begging. Only if they are harassing or intimidating others and occasioning complaints should they be 
stopped. 

This Proposal oppresses the powerless 

I have lost count when going to church early on a Sunday morning how often I'm asked for money, the most so far is five times. I 
always refuse but on one occasion was followed to a cash machine and felt intimidated so didn't get out the cash I needed. 

Criminalising polite begging so poverty becomes less visible just makes it easier for us to become more callous about the poor 

Page 157



Criminalize begging. Excellent idea, perhaps we can lock up the majority of those working for "institutions" in the city first. 

Does proposal 4 apply to poppy sellers? So called "chuggers"? Barring harassment, I don't see why people should not be allowed to 
request money. 

Where else can homeless people get money? They will starve wothout.  

Passive begging is acceptable. Sat with a sign for example. Asking verbally is not.  This should equally apply to canvassers  

The fact that begging makes those of us who have no need to beg uncomfortable is not good ethical grounds to ban it. 

Begging may sometimes feed a habit of course but: 
1) taking away begging as an income source forces people to turn to more desparate means 

2) can you really blame someone for turning to drugs/alcohol in such desparate circumstances? 
3) the 'your kidness can kill' campaigns to stop people donating to beggars don't actually result in people donating to homeless 

charities in different ways so homeless people still need it as an income source 
4) not all beggars are just alcoholics - it is a legitimate income source e.g. to pay the £25 a week for a night shelter 

wHY DONT YOU STUPID PEOPLE COME INTO THE REAL WORLD IF YOU DARE. Begging was going on before the days of 
Dickens ~ leave these people only 

don't be ridiculous 

A [person without money obviously needs help so should be able to ask for financial help. 

What a terrible world we live in when we should each be afraid to ask for some help when we most need it, and how arrogant that we 
should decide to whom we are allowed to show some charity and those we should shun!   Would a hungry child not be allowed to 

beg?  Again shame on you. 

Similar to sleeping in the streets, I don't think that anyone begging in the streets is doing it for pleasure. If people don't want to give, 
they don't have to, but you cannot ban people for trying to survive.  

There is already sufficient legislation to deal with this. 

Begging would not occur if we lived in an unoppressive society. Exeter City Council is colluding with such oppression by adopting 
pinitive measures. 

A polite request for help from someone in need should not be criminalised.  An offer of help should not land someone in trouble.    

The proposal does not distinguish between quiet polite requests and aggressive begging.  

Does this cover charities asking for money. It looks like it does 

Every member of the public has the right to say no, if they are not being aggressive it should be our decision whether to give or not, not 
anyone elses 

This would prevent busking, charity collections etc. 

What else should they do for money? Consider reassessing the way benefits are delivered. 

the homeless community in Exeter are often very respectful and have in my near 30 years never caused me any problems or concern. 
If you can provide a network to support these people whereby money is collected and distributed evenly amongst them then I can 

support this cause.  

Disgusting 

Simply asking for change is not illegal, and can be someone's only method of finding income. 

See comment for proposal 3.   

I agree with this proposal as it constitutes harassment and can be quite upsetting 

The proposal should not procede. 

This could have a direct impact on a number of activities. 
 

Buskers, Morris dancers, Street performances of all types. 

How can you prosecute someone for implying something? That is not concrete enough to be an offence. 

Human beings asking  each other for assistance should not be a crime. 
Any aggressive approaches, or harrassment, is unacceptable. 

if a person's benefits have been sanctioned or stopped how are homeless and vulnerable people meant to survive, if you take away 
this avenue of revenue you will see an impact in petty crime 

Can this please apply to the excessive number of charity collectors and their buckets and pamphlets. A blight on our city. 

Although I understand that on occasion begging can be aggressive, the vast majority of the time the homeless and begging cause no 
'antisocial' problems. 

 
Again, banning begging is not the solution - please support the homeless people in our communities rather than condemning them. 

 
We shouldn't be trying to deal with homelessness by making people disappear by forcing them off the streets, they are people who 

should be helped by society, not ignored. 

Demanding money with menaces should nto be allowed.  In other circumstances there are always the words 'Sorry, no' 

They wouldn't be doing it if they had another option. 

I thought there were already laws about begging, why are they not being used? 

These people are desperate and have the right to ask for help, including asking for money. 

Asking or using a sign is not offensive as long as there is no threat or attempt at physical aggression 

I have no specific views on this.  

I don't much like begging, and generally don't give to beggars. However in this time, where a person with mental health problems could 
easily find themselves without any income, or state benefits, one has to ask how people in this situation are supposed to afford to eat? 
My concern would be that if you criminalise, and strictly police begging, you may just be pushing the homeless towards theft, or other 

more serious crimes, in order to feed themselves. 

People have to live. If they feel they need to ask for money to survive who are we to judge them? There but for the grace of any higher 
power go you or I. It is unchristian to criminalise people's needs often brought about through no fault of their own. 

Page 158



 

I am regularly harassed for money in the city centre, and this has got gradually worse over the past 6 years that I have lived in this 
area. This must be particularly intimidating for older people or those with young children. There are often people soliciting for money 

near bank cash machines which again can be particularly aggressive and intimidating. 

Somebody begging for money will not be able to pay any fine you impose without even more begging. 

You are restricting freedoms that punish too broad a range of people. 

This would only move begging into other areas. 

I think a distinction needs to be made between passive and aggressive begging, i.e. sitting quietly  with a hat or approaching 
passers-by. 

I agree but PLEASDE DON'T criminalise members of the general public who are happy and willing to freely give money, food or a hot 
drink to anyone, 

The term  "impliedly requested by conduct" feels too open to misinterpretation.  

Begging is not a criminal act. Homeless people need a source of income. People can decide for themselves whether they wish to 
donate any money. 

Allow individuals to make choices about whether to respond to requests for charity....do we really need a nanny state? 
There have always been poor people reliant on the generosity of others. . If you prevent the public presence of poverty you create an 

illusion that there is no poverty and this allows society to distance itself from the reality and from taking responsibility to tackle the 
underlying issues 

The State should provide adequate protection and food for the homeless. People should not have to beg. I don't think people do 'need' 
to beg in this Country, yet...  

 
Begging can be distressing and can make people violent. It should not be allowed.  

Begging is illegal.  This has been an issue for years, with the police occasionally taking a tough stance but this soon drops, as their 
resources dwindle, so they have to target their policing to more serious issues. 

Why are we proposing criminalising the poor and homeless?  

People don't beg for fun - they are desperate  

Clearly they should not be in peoples gardens or private land but public spaces are less harmful. Why not open up some abandoned 
buildings for a homeless charity to manage? Furthermore the use of written forms, like requested for the homeless to feedback on this, 

is not fair as many are likely to have poor literacy skills. Try talking to them to give them a chance? 

It's begging. It is an offence. No need to duplicate. 

Cash from begging all to often goes into the hands of the organiser, not the beggar. 

Does this include Big Issue sellers? I do hope not! 

Provided they aren't menacing, people should be able to ask. 

many times I see people on the streets, who are courteous, polite and good humoured.  If I choose to give my money to them, what 
has that to do with anyone else.  Again, please be aware some of these people are living on very little.  I understand that some are 

taking advantage, and yes should be stopped, but how do you know who is in genuine need and who is not? 
we cannot just throw the baby out with the bath water and treat everyone the same, again, let the people suggesting this try living in 
the streets for a week or so.  Perhaps they could come up with some more inventive options than to just put in a blanket decision for 

everyone. 

Again, terrible. Take a long hard look at yourself. 

This again unfairly targets the homeless, asylum seekers and people with mental health problems. Often these people have been 
unable to work and denied benefits. Rather than criminalisation, it would be more beneficial to operate a system in which people could 
engage in meaningful activity which would allow them to earn money. Being homeless or having to sleep rough is not a lifestyle choice 

for the majority of people. 
 

 http://centrepoint.org.uk/ 

If someone has no money why would criminalising them make for a better society? We would be punishing people for ending up on 
hard times. If some people are begging for the "wrong" reasons then equally some are literally that desperate and they don't deserve 

our wrath. 

If people want to beg for money it's fine by me. 

Repeat what you did last year regarding giving money to charities instead. A couple of secure collection boxes at either end of the high 
street might work well. 

Again this is hard, if people genuinely need money thats different.  My experience is that most people are begging to buy drugs or 
alcohol.  I wish people would give food or hot drinks. 

 
On another note I am very concerned about the lack of appropriate substance misuse services for this group.  I know they are hard to 

engage but that doesnt mean we shouldnt try, they need to see workers regularly, assertive outreach, to take the time to build 
relationships.  As they dont turn up to appts then they dont get seen, this really isnt good enough and has to change 

Page 159



 

Begging, when undertaken due to extreme poverty/homelessness, and without any threatening behaviour, is, in my opinion, an 
essential lifeline.  

 
To say to someone living on the streets it's illegal to beg for money is very unethical. It threatens to make the homeless suspicious of 

authority figures, put them into debt (written off if you're bankrupt, but not homeless?) and means that the poor cannot save to get 
themselves out of poverty, or even just to eat.  

 
Furthermore unemployment/homelessness is a complete waste of someone's potential and deprives the government of much needed 

income and council tax.  
 

So again, instead of criminalising the poor for asking for help, the council should approach the homeless with one clear message - 'you 
are not going to have to sleep on the streets a moment longer. Come with me to get a warm meal, clean clothes and shelter.' Then 

later... 'here is a long term home for you and help getting a job'.  
 

Once a person is in work again, the help can gradually be reduced and they can stand on their own feet again.  
 

That surely should be the objective. 

This again clearly targets homeless people.  

See previous comment 

Although I understand that it can be annoying to be asked for money in the street, it is not done aggressively and, again, we are taking 
away the chance of someone less fortunate than ourselves to find sustenance. 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate's court hearings and the mixing up of 
vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise 'unauthorised' busking because playing an instrument or singing on the street 
could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings enjoyment 

and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being directed 
towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial Behaviour 

legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. It is 
fundamentally misconceived. 

Is that intended to include the quite well-funded folk who ask me to support some charity? - or subscribe to some TV channel? - that is 
certainly soliciting money. Or is intended to apply only to the already poor and disadvantaged? 

Sitting with a hat, or even saying: Got any change? is an irritation, but it is in my experience totally non-violent and non-threatening. 
More aggressive approaches certainly should be discouraged. I have experienced them only from the more well-heeled elements. 

The reference to requests 'impliedly requested by conduct' is overly broad, and could include cases where no request is in fact 
intended, or where no nuisance or discomfort to the public results from the request. The requirement for permission from owners or 

others with an interest in land is an unwelcome privatisation of public space - in a vibrant, welcoming and open city, activities such as 
busking and street theatre should be welcomed as traditional uses of public open space, and not hemmed in by licenses and permits. 

People don't have to give if they don't want to.  As long as they are polite when asking and do not get stroppy if people don't give them 
anything. 

Although we are all pestered by beggars sometimes, the majority of them are not aggressive, confrontational or a nuisance. There are 
so many reasons for people asking for money on our streets - I find paid charity collectors much more intimidating sometimes than 

beggars. To pass this ruling would surely put an end to charity collections, buskers ( who have long been commended for giving the 
city centre atmosphere and character) and  Big Issue vendors.  

Some beggars are genuinely homeless, possession-less, hungry and cold. Some beggars are professional and masquerading as 
homeless. There are already laws in place to deal with the type of beggar who accosts people. Proposal 4 will not alleviate the problem 

of fraudulent beggars but will adversely affect many people who have a genuine need to ask for money.  

Poverty is not a crime and if there is nothing else they will beg.     

To remove the right to ask for help is indefensible. 

This happens to me daily on my walk to work 

I understand that some people coming into our country are led to believe begging is not only tolerated but condoned, obviously this is 
wrong. 

Again, for that the person be given to an institution that helps them to be on their feet again. 

We need to find better ways of raising money and systems to address their needs, rather than leaving individuals to  have to beg. 

I've been homeless but have never begged for money, but I've stolen a lot. I am aware of organised crime in this area, but sometimes 
they just want the money to get home. 

Again this measure is clearly designed to place the needs of landowners and business owners over the needs of those in our city who 
are currently experiencing extreme hardship. I refer you to me my previous comments.   

Page 160



From time to time the council has put up signs to discourage people from giving to people begging - there has been a place for cash 
donations to be made and these donations we assume are managed by the council/agencies.   

On one occasion a thick-set middle-aged man sitting on the corner of our street asked me firmly for money.  I said WHY?  He said 
because he hadn't any money for food.  I said WHY?  He said he hadn't got a job.  I said WHY?  He then screamed abuse at me 

calling unrepeatable names.  But it was interesting to see that he had absolutely no defense for his begging - there are jobs.  He was 
fit and able.  Begging was his life-style choice - not mine.   

The behaviour can often be very aggressive which as a woman I find very intimidating.  There are charities and agencies who provide 
lots of help and we as volunteers contribute our time and money - but having demands made of one =- particularly in e.g. a car park or 

in a one-2-one situation - is scary. 

Yes, I do agree that begging is problematic. It can be intimidating for pedestrians, even if not intended as such.  

I cannot agree with a proposal to criminalise begging. Only begging in a specifically aggressive manner should be against the law. 

again I have mixed feelings - given our current welfare/service cutbacks, there may not be public services available to help people in 
genuiine need at short notice, and provided people only ask for money in a polite manner, I would not wish to make this illegal. If the 

current law prevents aggressive/intimidatory begging, as I beleive it does, then I am not sure this extra power is needed, though i 
appreciate the argument that it is better to deal with it through this power ratehr than through a criminal prosecution. 

Many beggars are drug addicts. To prevent them from begging will only drive them to a life of crime. 
Begging should be allowed but the police should be allowed to move the beggar on if necessary. 

 
Busking should not be classified as begging. A good musician offers his art and the public voluntarily pay for it.   

 
Someone who cannot play very well will not make much, if any, money so we can say that to an extent the quality of music in busking 

is self-regulatory. 
 

A beggar with a tin whistle is not a busker, is not a genuine musician. Let us not confuse the two. 

People have the right to say 'no' when a request is made, as is their right. I am not somebody who gives to those who solicit in public. I 
have lived in cities and countries where this activity/problem is much more rife and obvious. Exeter does not have this 'problem'. 

 I never give money because it will be spent on drugs and drink, and I do not want to keep the rich drug barons rich! I would buy food/ 
milk if required.  

Allow more licenced  street vendors to improve the vibrancy of the local high street. Remove unlicensed beggars. 

Again this should only be under a wider public nuisance basis not fee to be applied under the personal powers and unsubstantiated 
judgement of an authorised person or from the complaints of just a few people.  People have a natural right to a way of living that is 
not a nuisance to the vast proportion of others who can feel sorry for someone without the resources to live.  Many of these people 

have mental health difficulties, nowhere to live and need help not sanctions .  

I would start with bright-house. Who make unwarranted requests for 99/9% APR money advertised without said APR on local busses. I 
don't like being begged at, but I don't see any aggressive begging.  

Like proposal 3, this seems to be targeted at homeless or otherwise impoverished people who in many cases have little choice but to 
ask for handouts on the streets. I would agree that people who are identified as scammers, collecting for a charity without permission, 
or being overly forceful in attempting to persuade others to give money should be considered in breach of a PSPO order and would 

support a proposal to this effect. However I am concerned that in its current form proposal 4 could be used to disproportionately target 
rough sleepers. 

Whilst there are individuals who beg on the streets, I have never felt pressured or threatened by them and if I say I don't have any 
spare change they don't become threatening, but rather wish me a good day. Criminalising this behaviour will only increase the poverty 

and desperation of these people, who need our help. 

I take this to mean begging. Again completely the wrong attitude to take with this issue. I don't particularly like being approached by 
strangers for money but if this were to be illegal, i fear other crimes such as shop lifting will increase. 

So the homeless can't even ask for help? Help that myself, and many others, are happy to give when we're able. They are not a 
nuisance, and this isn't an issue in Exeter that needs dealing with. 

If they don't have a job or any money, how else can it be expected for them to raise the 20p they need to use the toilet? 

I don't like the term `perpetrator`. I do like the council advice not to give money to beggars. 

I will give money to a homeless person if I feel them to be genuine, for example people not begging, people sleeping outside at night - 
not those outside of clubs and beside cashpoints at peak 'going out' times.  

 
If this is made illegal, I think that those begging who are not homeless will be deterred and those genuinely homeless will actually 

receive more help. They do not need to ask. 

I would support this, especially if it's applied to chuggers (people collecting for charity), street vendors, shop assistants etc.  

Too widely drawn, could very easily be applied to valid street collection which the police don't have time to authorise and seem to have 
abandoned the process in many towns.  Certainly any 'valid' busker standing in the street has 'impliedly requested by conduct' 

otherwise why would they be there.  Poorly drafted and too general.  We should not accept that these widely drawn provisions will 
always be neatly and tidily applied only to the situations where some sort of consensus applies to suggest there is nuisance. 

Same comments as 3.1. Beggers should not be specifically targeted by fines which they obviously cannot pay. They shoud be helped 
through rehabiliation and retraining as well as temporary or semi-permenant accomodation to get them off the streets. 

Refer to my answer in proposal 3. 

See Q3.1 

Same old, same old faces. Regular beggars. 
Like that the library has introduced suspended coffee scheme, more of these would be helpful.  A section of the troublesome 

community have no wish to be helped, are rude and abusive and very intimidating.  

I do find begging annoying, though rarely threatening, and think it should be discouraged. I rarely experience it in Exeter, but would not 
want it to reach the level in European tourist cities. However, this needs to be seen against a context in which benefit sanctions & other 

harsh national policies mean that some people are left at times with no legal access to money. I would hope the policy will be 
implemented in a sensible way, as a basis for warning people and engaging them with support rather than just as enforcement, piling 

up unpayable fines.  

Page 161



 

I am not bothered by this, if I have money I give it to someone who needs it. 

Who defines what is intimidating, harassing, alarming or causing of distress? These are very subjective experiences. 

Provision already exists to control street begging and I do not see why additional measures are needed 

get rid of poverty - then you can ask people to stop begging! 

This is too unclear for me to respond with a yes or no. If someone is actively being a nuisance to others when begging then this needs 
to be addressed, but if someone is out on the street, homeless and desperate and harmless, they need help, not to be treated as a 

criminal. 

1. how can this rule be enforced? How can you fine someone with nothing £100? Where are they going to get that money from?  
2. It is immoral to criminalise poverty. 

3. Homelessness and poverty are growing rapidly. Criminalising them does not solve them. Perhaps the public should be confronted 
with these very real problems.  

I'm particularly concerned that these orders have a direct affect on rough-sleepers; these are a very disadvantaged group that we 
should be trying to ameliorate their day to day life not adding more obstacles. 

Also how would a rough-sleeper pay these fines? 

Is it possible to differentiate between 'begging' and 'aggressive begging' or threatening behaviour? 

Young people are easy prey.  I was:  youth in a panic rushed up to me and said he urgently need £x to get to Tiverton because his 
car had broken down.  I was in a hurry and helped the young man. 

 
A month or so later, the same youth approached me (I was formally dressed for an engagement so he didn't recognise me) tried the 

same trick.  I expressed great shock and pity for his broken down car - where was it?  I could have a look as my husband was a 
mechanic.  No said the lad, he just needed to get home as it was his father's car.  No problem, sez I.  I am with the AA.  I  have my 
card in my handbag.  I'll call them now.  What's the car registration number?   Needless to say all I got in response was 'F... off, you 

old bitch'.  Charming.  I called the police, and trailed the youth along Queen Street, up into Northernhay Gardens (where he turned his 
jacket inside out to define the description given to the police).  I rang in the changes...  They may have caught up with him - but if not, 

I hope that my quiet persistence which exposed him might make him think twice next time. 

We have a lot of issues with begging in the street - maybe as we have a lot of hostels and drug dealers have also particularly targetted 
our area. Again my comments re resources to enforce the proposal are necessary. 

Ditto  Prop  1 

As for the previous question, this is demonising people who are homeless or struggling financially with the intention of making the issue 
invisible. Instead, the Council should be tackling the reasons for homelessness and poverty, and putting their resources into helping 

people, rather than treating them as criminals. This attempt to sweep people under the carpet to hide the problem is shameful. 

I am regularly asked for money whilst walking through town. From High Street to Sidwell Street I counted 7 times last week. Some of 
the homeless are aggressive and actually come up to your face. It makes me feel unsafe and I actually cross the road to avoid them. 

As with the rough sleeping, begging seems to have become much worst in the last 6-9months. 

Expand the area. 

see comments to No1 

I would have said yes to this one - expect that by "implied" it would seem to include buskers as well as beggars and I do not think 
busking should be banned, 

Also awareness campaign, even an authorised street collection, so that those that wish to help deal with the issues and problems, 
rather than ignore and sweep away to other parts of the city, can do so, in a way that is as effective as reasonably possible - people 

aren't always intimidated into giving money, some wish to and why not direct this in a better direction. 

See comments for Q3 

People will need to get in order to pay the fines you want to impose. If we invest more time, money and resources into helping 
homeless and poor people, we will see a decline in begging! 

If a person asking for money is doing so, they probably have a reason. This is the issue that needs dealing with. 

This is sometimes the only way that people on the streets can afford to eat. Because they have NO Fixed Abode it means that they 
usually can't get benefits paid to them.Most of the help that was given to them has disappeared due to lack of funding, so how else are 

they going to support themselves? 

gain, can be a bit heavy handed - what does "implied" mean and could effect buskers who add to the urban scene. 

Page 162



The stated aim of this proposal is, according to the FAQs sheet and other associated documents, to "deter begging." As such, the very 
aim of this proposal is fundamentally flawed, making it immoral but also unworkable. This is because begging is not something you can 

deter someone out of. The deterrence argument is based on the assumption that an action is voluntary, that a person has a choice 
over doing it, and so you can scare them out of it by making increasing the penalties for doing so. Begging, however, is more or less 

the definition of an act that is caused by necessity. Every social commentator under the sun, save for the most extreme Social 
Darwinists, will concede that begging is something people do because they have to, not because they want to. As such the idea of 
deterring someone from begging is just as absurd as deterring someone from being poor - you can't scare someone out of either. If 

someone is begging in order to feed themselves, or to buy clothes, or to afford a hostel, then the threat of a fine is going to be 
completely meaningless to them when compared with their imminent material concerns. The unfortunate reality is that people must beg 

in order to survive. Even if we accept for a moment the deeply cynical idea that people sometimes beg in order to buy drink or drugs, 
then we will still come to the same conclusion that fines are meaningless. For somebody suffering with a serious addiction, fulfilling that 
addiction becomes a very real necessity, both psychologically and physically - as missing a fix can have massive health impacts, and 
even kill someone, who is addicted to a substance. If someone is chemically addicted to something, then fulfilling that addiction is just 

as much a biological necessity as eating or drinking is. As such the threat of a fine will have absolutely not impact on someone begging 
to fulfill an addiction. 

 
It is also noted in the FAQs sheet that one thing the proposal specifically seeks to deter is "aggressive begging." However the points 

raised in my previous paragraph are just as valid for this form of begging. If somebody has a begging strategy that they believe delivers 
better results, then regardless of how steep the penalty is, they will continue to do it because they believe its more effective and 

fulfilling their material needs. If you need £3 for a meal, and you think that being more upfront in your approach is more likely to get you 
that money, then you'll do it regardless of the hypothetical consequences. 

 
My final point is not so much a criticism of the proposal, but more of the appalling worded FAQs sheet - which I really think needs to be 

reviewed. In this sheet it is suggested that one of the problems with begging is that is can cause a shop to lose trade. This is deeply 
worrying.  

 
I don't know what it says about our society when we consider homelessness not as an appalling reminder of the failings of our society, 
and as an ill which should blight the consciences of all of us who have warm homes to go to, but rather in terms of its negative impact 

on business. Politics is often seen as the process of ameliorating two opposing interests, however the right of a homeless man or 
woman to feed themselves is surely of incomprehensibly more significance than the right of a business to make a profit for its 

shareholders. Who needs that pound in your pocket more? The CEO of Boots? Or the homeless man sitting outside it? It is morally 
reprehensible to be considering homelessness in terms of its impact on the most affluent. Homelessness should be dealt with as an 
issue in its own right and any inconvenience it causes to the rest of society should act as an intensive for us to make it a thing of the 

past - not brushed aside with only its superficial effects on the rest of society being seen as problem. 

I think you have to be pretty desperate to ask strangers for money. I would like to see a proper safety net for those in dire need. If 
someone asks me for money I give it and feel grateful that neither myself or family members are in that position. 

are we going to have more publicity about the fact that some beggars are not really in need to try to put people off giving them money? 

Again, I found this difficult to decide on, knowing that there are some people in desperate need who often have personal and (mental) 
health problems.  If begging becomes impossible will such people really receive the help they need?  Also, there is always the 

likelihood that beggers will simply move to areas not covered by the PSPO.  The city centre may be 'cleansed' but won't the problem 
simply move to areas that are currently not affected? 

yes a good idea. It is worth considering giving powers to Authorised Agents. 

I would agree if the council provided food and permanent shelter to anyone who needed it so that begging was unnecessary. 

The City Council must flag this problem up nationally so that rough sleepers/ homeless people have adequate funds for day to day 
needs. In other words every effort must be made to prevent people from bouncing in and out of basic benefits. 

If there were enough soup kitchens or places for homeless people to go to be able to get a meal, whether hot or cold, whether free or 
at a reduced rate, then they should not need to beg. It is up to the local council, or charitable organisations, to provide adequate places 

for homeless people to be able to go and sleep or eat. 

If I want to give money I will, if I don't I wont. 

I was born in Heavitree and have lived continuously in or near Exeter for the last quarter of a century. This is simply not an issue here. 
Yes, I have often encountered beggars, but I have never been harassed by one in any meaningful sens eof the word. Simply asking for 

money is not harassment. The proposed remedy would make the City Council an object of anger and contempt, and since this is my 
own Citry Council I am very eager that this should not happen. Exeter City Council has in the past shown a kind of open malice 

towards homeless people, asylum-seekers and refugees, but I had thought those bad attitudes had long since disappeared. Apparently 
I was wrong. This is dismaying. 

This will negatively affect the most vulnerable people in our society. These people need help rather than being victimised and 
persecuted.  

The acts of persecution and discrimination of the minority and vulnerable groups are abhorrent and comparable to some of the 
measures introduced by the Nazi Party before the Second World War. 

Mahatma Ghandi said "A nation's greatness is measured by how it treats its weakest members." Based on this quote, if these 
proposals are introduced, this Nation would be quite distant from greatness. 

Yes - The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in order to obtain food. 
The proposal is worded in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any issues to any other person, could 
face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no meaningful way change their 

behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal record which would cause them 
to be more marginalised and isolated from society. I do believe this is a very un-Christian thing for a council to be proposing and again 

is very worrying - spiralling these poor people into further debt and despair!  And I rather like to hear buskers on our streets - 
especially if their quite good - I think these proposals are going too far and trying to turn the city into a sanitised barren wasteland!  

I am shocked at what a cruel world we live in. You are proposing to turn on our most vulnerable. I haven't got much money, but was 
happy to give £1 (yes, just £1) to someone who had nothing. 

Page 163



Its not hard to say no if you do not want to give money or as most people do walk by. The real problem is that Exeter does not want to 
face up to the fact that the poor will always be with us. The citizens of Exeter deserve the choice to give or not to give. Not to have 

these people airbrushed out of sight. Like the Jews. 

Begging for money might well be the homeless persons only means of  buying food. 

Vagrancy laws cover this.  

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. 

How do expect homeless people to get money to eat? Do you want them to steal, or starve? 

I'm tired of filling out this form, but don't let that lessen the impact of my disappointment in this council for bringing forward legislation 
which targets the most vulnerable.  

 
Regardless of the fact that there is some consensus that giving money to people who are begging is not a very effective way to help 
people who are homeless, the use of these powers would result in increased impediments, e.g. a criminal record or a fine, to people 

who, let's not forget, have already been reduced to begging. Plus the ability to intimidate using the threat of these powers could lead to 
emotional abuse. 

Unless you are going to include all people, such as charity workers and people selling things this is grossly unfair and seeks to 
criminalise the homeless  

Use the law, if appropriate, but many people wish to donate to homeless people because they recognise their poverty and distress. 
Provide outreach workers to work with homeless people to enable them to be supported both now and in their housing. 

It can be done because it has been done. 

i am wary about the concept of implied request for money and fear it may be open to interpretation and so be used to harass 
vulnerable people 

Does this apply to charities? Or to children asking for donations for their Guy before 5 November? 

I'll agree to this proposal when it also applies to shop-owners and Council Tax bailiffs. 

I know under the vagrancy act it is illegal to 'beg', but what choice do they have? There but for the grace of god go we all! The vast 
majority of homeless people are ex-service personnel. If we looked after them better on discharge they would not be driven to take 

such drastic action. People with Mental Health issues are often driven onto 'the streets', as are many men due to marriage breakdown 
or loss of job. Before you judge them, put yourself in their position for a moment and ask yourself what you would do. The possibility is 

just around the corner for so many people. 

Should contain an exemption for busking, whether musical or theatrical, unless the person(s) is/are threatening or clearly under the 
influence of some substance and might thereby represent a danger to themself or others 

The police already have adequate powers to deal with begging under the Vagrancy Act.  Once again, it is wrong to extend these 
powers to Council officials, who could simply notify the police if begging was deemed to be against the public interest.  This proposal 
would also effectively outlaw busking, where performers often invite passers-by to make a donation, without any aggression or duress. 

I thought this was dealt with by existing law. Again too much power could be placed in the hands of potentially untrained individuals. 

Again this affects those most vulnerable and is heavy handed an open to abuse.  Use exisitng legislation.  

If they do not have an address, they cannot claim social welfare.   Unless the council advocates theft/burglary, I fail to see how they 
get any money with which to feed themselves 

Another all embracing idea which in fact has already solutions in place relating to public order 

If homeless people are claiming benefits then i agree they should not be asking people for money. If they have no access to benefits, 
on the other hand, "Spare a bit of change love" is not really intimidating.The giving of alms to the poor has always been part of British 

history and it doesn't hurt those that have to be challenged to help those that have not. If people begging on the street is an 
embarrasment, and it should be, then deal with the root causes instead of further punishing already marginalised people. Anyone of us 

could find ourselves in that situation and the line is getting finer. 

Begging is inevitable when benefits payments are refused or take weeks to process. Everyone has the right to eat and drink. 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

Any person, whether vagrant or just 'ordinary persons' should have the right to merely 'ask' another person for something. And that 
other person can always simply say "no" to the request, so it is not a problem to merely ask. 

Page 164



 

Distinguish between professional beggars that have accommodation and benefit and those whose only means of survival is begging. 

As long as they are not asking in a confrontational or threatening manner and obstructing people from going about their usual business 
they should be allowed to merely enquire 

Sometimes people have no choice. As long as they are not harassing others for money, there is no harm done. 

Most homeless people now are unable to claim any benefits as their situation often prevents them from "actively seeking work". How 
can one adequately attend interviews, present oneself smartly dressed and washed if they have nowhere to live and bathe?  

These people have nothing! Would you rather they just left town and quietly died? It seems like this is a problem you would rather not 
have to address in any kind of humane fashion.  

Up to members of the public to decide, not the law. I like giving money to buskers, they add to the atmosphere of the city centre , which 
is so uniform, characterless and bland without them. And i am always struck by the fact that homeless people with all their problems 

still find it in them to give you a "god bless " or a "have a nice day " even when you do not give them anything. 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

I am not confident this will not simply persecute people who are already seriously in need of more help 

I have absolutely no objection to giving money to a homeless person or other vulnerable person who asks for money, and I am sure 
that many people feel the same.  Speak to the person, and you find that they are typically normal people who have fallen on hard 
times and unfortunate circumstances.  This proposed provision aims to criminalise such people - it is completely misguided.  The 

Council and the Police should use existing legislation to focus purely on the small minority of people who combine begging with 
genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour.  For homeless and other vulnerable people, the Council should liaise with relevant 

charities to increase help to such people, instead of imposing (unrealistic) fines on them for doing what they need to do to survive. 

the definition is too wide 

Why should we be allowed of the hook for our failure to address problems in our society? 

I am appalled that a Labour council is considering putting a policy in place which is legalises the abuse of the poorest and most 
vulnerable people in our society. These people need our help. They are not criminals. 

There are plenty of laws already in place to deal with aggressive or violent behaviour. Begging or "appearing to beg" is not a criminal 
offence in this country and to make them subject to sanctions in this manner is reminiscent of the policies put in place in Germany 

under the Nazis. 

For some it's their only source of income and as long as I'm not being harassed I have no problem with asking for change. 

Again, this is victimising and criminalising some of the most vulnerable people on the fringes of our society. I cannot imagine how 
demeaning it must be to have to beg for money. This is not a lawless get-rich-quick scheme, this is predominantly a last resort for a few 

pounds and pence to eat and survive. I am fully in support of people being allowed to beg in a time of need. 

You are trying to ban a form of human interaction. Asking for money is not a crime. You can say no. This proposal is utterly absurd. 

Being asked for money from a homeless person is no more distressing than being harassed by charity fund-raisers on the street who 
are can be much more intimidating and forceful albeit it with a veneer of cheer. 

Why did we fight two world wars to free us from oppression when our own authorities serve it up? 

Again, people rarely beg through choice.  I do not want to live in a society which criminalises people who are destitute. 

Some people are easily frightened and the proposal is too vague 

Page 165



 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

I don't believe criminalizing begging solves the problems of addiction and other antisocial problems and I believe it will increase street 
crime. I believe Exeter should concentrate on antisocial behaviour that relates to a genuine risk of harm to the public, and that it should 
focus on behaviour which is dangerous intimidating or threatening. Some beggars can be indimidating and aggressive but most I have 

encountered have been polite and courteous, There is a greater problem with aggressive behavior among those residents of Exeter 
who have enough money to get very drunk in the pubs and clubs and then be abusive and intimidating late at night in large groups, 

these people who do that are not beggars. 
 

Sometimes buskers and street performers have little skill others can enliven some areas, anyone who believes that they have a skill 
have a right to perform to entertain the public and should be allowed to ask for something in return for the entertainment. There more 
resources put in to drug and alcohol treatment, this would mean that street performance would be of a higher quality as those who are 

just performing to support addictions would feel less need to do so 

Only aggresive begging needs to be an offence. When you are desperate you need help, not punishment. 

I think it is very presumtious of Exeter City Council to tell me that I cannot choose whether, or not, I give money to people who are 
efectively begging. I work pay taxes, council tax etc and will spend my money how I choose. 

Does this include busking, for example?  Is that to made a crime now?  For christ's sake, who wrote this lot?  If someone's begging 
and you don't want to give them money, ignore them.  If they are hassling people, then it's a different matter, but this proposal says 

nothing about that. 

A disgusting lack of humanity demonstrated in this proposal. Think what would drive a person to degrade themself in that manner - 
absolute desperation. 

 
Begging is not a choice, and punishing it will achieve nothing other than to cause vulnerable people greater suffering. 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

Many talented artists have developed their musical and creative talents by having busking opportunities.  We need spaces for our 
creative to develop their abilities. Busking can add positively to the character of Exeter. 

Please err on the side of caution. Gifted individuals don't all have the best start in life. All need the space to find their own roads to 
success. 

Unless aggression is used or implied then such people would seem not to be harming anyone. 

If I want to give money or goods to someone, that's my choice.  If someone else chooses not to, that's theirs.  "Implicit" begging is far 
too difficult to enforce and, again, leaves the homeless open to mistreatment. 

Page 166



 

The proposal, as it stands, is vague and either, unenforceable or open to misinterpretation (how would you describe 'implied by 
conduct'?). You could end up with many spurious accusations! No doubt a homeless person, not speaking, sitting quietly but with a 

cardboard sign saying 'Homeless' is exactly the person fitting this description. 
Again, it's a prohibition policy aimed from a gun barrel pointing firmly downwards at the poor, marginalised and vulnerable in society. 
Even if the target are sophisticated charlatans, this convenient blunderbuss approach ensures the poor are caught in the blast. What, 
really are you trying to do here? If people are being relieved of their money illegally then its either theft or fraud and there are laws to 

deal with that. If people are being asked for money by someone who has none or very little, there will be an uncomfortable moment for 
both of them. The person being asked to donate still has a choice to give or not but, please, don't criminalise the one making the 

request. 

If someone needs money, I give it.  I have never had any trouble from 'beggars' - it doesn't help to call them 'perpetrators' - and have 
found them very polite.  Begging doesn't bring in much money, and none of us would like to do it. 

If you can't sign on because you don't have an address what are you meant to do? Starve?  

I personally see nothing wrong in street entertainment whilst I am strolling around a City or town ,I think it adds character to a place 
providing the public aren't getting hassled to give money .And nothing obscene is happening or no swearing is taking place  

 Most people dont like overt begging but the wording of this proposal seems to outlaw things such as busking or other entertainments. 

Plenty of other people asking for money (chuggers). Are they also to be banned? 

Begging is possibly a  minor inconvenience to some. I manage to live with the knowledge that there are many people worse off than 
me. I do what I can to help if I want. 

 Whoever is proposing these measures is finding problems where they don't exist. 

Requests must clearly not be menacing but for many people this is their only short term hope of survival. 
 

Since there is no option to comment on proposal 4 I must simply answer NO 

People are free to give or not give money as they see ft - treat your public as adults 

Some people need to beg.  It's up to the passer-by to give or to refuse, not the Police. 

People do not have to give money and most homeless people are so grateful for any kindness shown and especially if something like 
sandwiches or a hot drink is brought for them. And if they are con men or women we have still shown kindness after all Jesus who had 
no home once he started travelling said if you show kindness to the least important you do it for me. We cannot hope to have a greater 

goal then that. Only eternity will show people's true heart. 

This is already the job of the police who have training for such instances. 

 They will starve. Some of them are already. 

I don't like to see beggars on the streets of this country. I feel intimidated and embarrassed. Why are they begging? What do you 
propose to do with these people; no money, no home ... arrest them? fine them? gaol them? Then what ... yes they'll end up back on 

the streets in the same hopeless situation. 
 

WHY ARE THEY ON THE STREETS? 

Again, homelessness will not be solved by implementing this proposal. For many homeless people this is the only way that they are 
able to collect together enough money for a decent meal, or a night in a shelter. 

I feel people have the right to ask for help from others. I'm sure that is a freedom provided to us in this country.  We also have the right 
to say no to that request. Harrassment or offensive behaviour, whether through the course of requesting money, drinking, sleeping or 

urinating are all covered under the public order act and police have powers to prevent these behaviours. 

taking away peoples freedoms & controlling them by using fear tactics is negative & not at all enlightening 

if the request is not creating any abuse or molest anyone there is nothing wrong with it. 

'Perpetrator' is a loaded word that clearly implies wrongdoing.  The wrong in such circumstances is arguably in government policy 
rather than in the one that has to beg in order to survive - policy that rewards incompetence in the banking sector and similar areas by 
giving them vast amounts of money that should properly be used to meet the needs of those who have been so badly served by that 

incompetence. 

Although begging is not an ideal situation it has been carried out since biblical times and should not be classed as antisocial behaviour 
unless it falls into category 5 which in my experience in Exeter it never has. If proper support and accommodation was provided the 
majority of homeless people would no longer need to beg and I am sure if they had the choice they would prefer not to carry out this 

activity as it is demeaning for them. 

how else can they survive in a money economy.? 

People who beg have the right to in a world that should be able to help and protect it's people, if someone is on the street, then the 
people and the planet has failed them, they haven't failed us and they should not be criminalised for this. 

If not done aggressively, whilst in this 1st world country there should be no poverty, I'm happy to give to people in need (and do so), 
why should this be outlawed?  

Your proposals contradict themselves and show that there is no genuine interest on behalf of the municipality to SOLVE these 
problems. You don't want people sleeping on the street. If you criminalize some people's ability to gather money, where do you think 

they will be forced to sleep? The stupidity behind these questions is astounding. 

This should be a right of people in need, who have no other way of gaining money for food and shelter. It has no harmful effect on 
anyone. 

Although it is distressing to see people begging, how else can they get money? Sadly, any money received is often used for alcohol,or 
drugs! It is a social problem that needs a deeper solution, 

For the moment I think people should have the right to ask for change. (I am worried that a "yes" to this could potentially be used to 
ban busking, and as buskers are working for their money I see nothing wrong with that.) 

However, any member of the public is entitled, by free will, to offer money if they so choose. 

Page 167



Scenario 1. A person (with a home) is trying to catch the bus. He is 20p short, so he asks the person stood next to him for that money. 
Either the person gives him/her 20p, or he doesn't. Either way, this IS ALLOWED. 

 
Scenario 3. A person (without a home) is trying to buy a sandwich in Tesco. He/she is 10p short. He asks someone for the change, 

and they either do or don't give it to him. Just because the person doesn't have a home, why should they be treated differently? We're 
all humans, and no one wants to be homeless. If people with homes don't like homeless people, why don't they try it themselves? I'm 

sure they will help homeless people then.  

These draconian and authoritarian measures do not have public support. 

This Government seem to take a lot of pleasure in stopping the benefits of as many people for practically no reason, especially the 
mentally ill and more vulnerable. Often these people do not know about or cannot use Food Banks and begging is the only alternative 
left. I help certain vulnerable street people with as much as I can afford, not only with cash but sometimes with food or clothes from a 

charity shop - just wish I could do more but as an OAP it is not easy. 
 In a civilised society we should be helping the less fortunate, not walking away and ignoring the problem and passing draconian laws 

to try and make it all dissapear. All that will really happen is that the problem will just move somewhere else. Then what? Forcibly intern 
these poor people somewhere? Send them all to the Isle of Wight or somewhere? 

But it should be fine for them to make passive requests for food, non alcoholic drink and other items such as toiletries, by e,g, a sign 
placed near where they are resting. 

Better that than starve.  The homeless people in Exeter are generally polite.  Those of us lucky enough to be OK need to know about 
those that are not.  Then we should take collective responsibility.  You seem to want to just hide them from us.  I guess this is 

because the commerce of this town is more important than the souls of the people living here. 

It should include charity collections, and additionally not be allowed even if the owner of the property consents.  

there is already provision in the law for police to deal with begging and vagrancy without giving further powers to council officials. 
In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 

manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

they get little money as it is, if you don't want to give, you ignore it! I have never felt intimidated to give money in Exeter or London 
even. 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way.  

 
Shame on you! 

People should be freely allowed to ask people for help even if that includes money. 

See previous comment. 

Being homeless does not make them a 'perpetrator'. 
 

Money has been past on this was for thousand's of years, again it might be the difference between life and death. Should a homeless 
person receive a sandwich or a hot drink would they still be a 'perpetrator'? 

 
I find reading this proposal extremely upsetting, never mind the fact that it may become a reality. One can only imagine that Exeter City 

Council have no conscience what so ever. 

These people are unable to provide themselves with food and shelter. The least we can do is allow them to ask people for any change 
out of the goodness of their heart and allow other human beings to demonstrate their charitable and kind spirit by sparing change to 

help those around them. 
 

I have NEVER been aggressively or obstructively asked for money, all those who ask are polite and kind and I have absolutely no 
issue with this, nor should anyone else.  

This proposal has been used in other areas to intimidate and stop Buskers and street entertainers from performing. Exeter council tries 
to portray the city as being a centre of culture. This law flies in the face of that principle. Wording is far to ambiguous. 

Existing legislation? 

If those who have been driven to ask for money in public are not allowed to do so, they will be forced to engage in other, most likely 
criminal behaviour, in order to support themselves. The vast majority of those who ask for money in public in the city centre do so 
politely, are never threatening or intimidating, and do not pose a threat to other members of the public. As members of the public 
themselves, the council should be putting all their energies into supporting those who are begging into finding more positive and 

contributory roles in the community, rather than criminalising them. This will only exacerbate the problem.  

Page 168



 

This is also badly thought out. Criminalising busking is a violation of freedom of expression. Responsible buskers do not have their 
music too loud so as to stress neighbouring businesses and shoppers. Providing street music gives a cultural feel and character to a 

town/city. Furthermore buskers do not 'harass' members of the public for money. If people choose to give money, that is their individual 
choice. Buskers appreciate the point of view of the public. This proposal is therefore flawed and points to an attitude of prejudice by 

Exeter City Council. 

Who is to say what begging is allowed? The city centre is littered with adverts, asking us to spend our money (and creating a 
consumerist culture). I would rather these were outlawed as they do far greater damage. 

 
People do not have to give. And if someone is harassing someone else then that is already covered by proper legislation. I try to teach 
my children that someone begging is a wonderful opportunity for them to help. The council needs to look into it in more detail. In some 
cultures the most revered members of society carry a bowl and ask for alms. We had a similar position in this country with monks. Do 

we want people to go without? 

It is not a crime to be poor and homeless any more than it is too be offended by the sight of poor people. 

I agree with these proposals, especially if they can be extended to some car park operators within Exeter city limits who regularly extort 
consumers through combative and speculative ticket fines. 

Legal remedies already exist.  I am happy to be approached for such purposes. 

Firstly you are preventing homeless people (that society should house) from earning any money to help them get off their feet. 
 

Secondly you would deter street buskers from performing. 
These often add tremendously to the atmosphere of a city 

I understand why this measure is being included, but again it appears to be criminalising behaviour which is mostly driven by necessity 
and desperation. People may not like seeing others begging and may dismiss it as being a 'lifestyle choice', but it reflects a very real 

problem in our city. Criminalising this behaviour won't solve the problem, it will just move it somewhere else.  

Aggressive begging should not be allowed, but sitting with a hat or equivalent harms no-one. If the destitute cannot beg, they may 
instead be forced to resort to stealing: not only would they get criminal records making it harder for them to survive legally in the future, 

but the immediate  legal and possibly prison process would add a disproportionate cost to the public purse. 

how are they supposed to eat - will the councillors feed them 

The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in order to obtain food and 
shelter.  

It is necessarily the fault of the person that they are so impoverished. Show some compassion please. 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

Use the law as it stands or leave them alone. 

Individuals should be allowed the right to be present for financial or food gain, whether implied or direct. Passers-by have the right to 
deny giving anything. This presence should not be allowed to include intimidating, aggressive, or harassing behaviour. 

While constantly being asked for change is annoying, what would you do in that situation? Perhaps the best way to target this is to 
make sure everyone asking for money has authorisation such as selling papers etc. 

Page 169



In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

Most of the people I see begging look like they need help 

Not clear or specific enough and could criminalise anyone including buskers. 

Why are you so determined to be nasty to these unfortunate people? 

How does a person pay a fine if they are having to beg in the first place? Do they beg further to pay it or even commit theft ? How can 
the fine be upheld? This proposal seems to again be targeted at vulnerable people who need help not to be victimised.  

If done in a polite manner it should not be criminalised.  

If the requests for money are threatening or intimidating, the current legislation should cover this point. 

"impliedly requested by conduct" is too vague and would be open to abuse. 

These people have no income - first give them an income then you may stop begging. 

I see no issue with people on the streets asking for money, personally in Exeter I have found those living on the streets to be very 
polite in their requests. These people need our help, not to be cut off from the generosity of people who may wish to help them by 

giving them a few pounds. 

most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly 
vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that 
even a person who was sat down, without causing any issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court 

action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine 
that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from 

society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute 
persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to 

council officials which could see a large number of fixed penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise 
in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police 
should focus purely on the small minority of people who combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and 

use existing legislation to target those individuals rather than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

Begging I do not agree with. 

Oh my god, this is getting even worse! Just when I thought the council couldn't stoop any lower they are going to criminalise somebody 
who is down and out begging for money! Apart from the few and far between con artists, human beings generally don't BEG unless 
they NEED TO! And what's more, they will be criminalised if the "officer" believes or chooses to believe that they "look like" they are 

begging because they are "impliedly requesting by conduct" 
If the general public don't like them begging or want to give them any money then they will just walk on past as the majority of people 
do anyway. It's just the council who will criminalise somebody for sitting in a public place looking down on their look because they are 

asking for money?! 

You can choose to ignore beggars, if you so desire. There are many people out there who do help, and want to help, and in general 
the beggars can't choose to not need the money they are asking for. 

How about the people selling the mags for the homeless 

You realise they are asking for money because they are desperate and have nothing right? 

It may be the persons only means of getting money for food. 

Due to the manner in which our society operates, some of our most vulnerable members have no option but to beg.  For as long as I 
have the right to refuse to give to a beggar, people MUST have the right to beg. 

If you looked after homeless people they would not be begging! This will also affect those homeless busking. Another failer in the 
councils duty of care! 

This is a personal choice, and not something that should be governed by an Authority. Members of the public are free to say no if they 
do not want to give, but taking away the option of asking only makes a homeless person's situation harder. 

Begging is unpleasant and I would rather not see it happening. However to outlaw beggers is to add to their problems and not solve 
anything. 

Page 170



 

The council makes unsolicited and unwanted requests for money all the time, but the difference between the council and the homeless, 
is that you've already got pocketfuls of money with a nice big house and 2 holidays a year. The homeless have to beg, because when 

they apply for their right to claim benefit or a home to live in, they are short changed, denied access and sanctioned for breathing out of 
time.  

As per my comments about the other proposals, any person asking for money in a manner that constitutes a criminal offence can 
already be dealt with by the police. Those of us who are privileged enough to have homes and jobs do not have the right to be 

protected from the needs of less fortunate fellow human beings. If people are uncomfortable seeing people begging, there is a good 
reason for that. And criminalising begging is clearly not the solution to the problem. 

Firstly this outlaws busking which enriches the cultural life of our communities  
 

Secondly people who 'beg' for money are doing do out if delegation. The 'career beggar' is a myth. Whilst it may be true that many 
people begging on the street are substance dependent, many are not. If our community can find no ongoing solutions for destitution, it 
makes no sense to criminalise those whose only faults are that they can if access conventional income streams, often for reasons of 

mental or physical ill health, disability etc.  

The Vagrancy Act 1824 already gives Police the power to prosecute people for begging.  Whilst there may some genuine instances of 
aggressive and/or unpleasant begging - why can't the Police use the existing legislation instead of bringing in further powers and using 

addition resources. 

Existing powers adequate. Under the proposed regime, what would the new powers involve and intend? 

not unless it is going to include council tax charge or what ever you call  it if I received an unsolicited request for  that 

Again, persecution of those with little or nothing. 

There does not appear to be any evidence which would justify the introduction of these powers. If such evidence exists it should be 
produced as part of the preamble to the Councils' consultation document. Is there a massive outcry sufficient to mean new powers are 

needed? 
 

The following is a "lift" from the Keep Streets Live campaign: 
 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 

order to obtain food and shelter.  
 

The proposal is worded in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any issues to any other person, could 
face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no meaningful way change their 

behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal record which would cause them 
to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the 

police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public interest. Instead of giving an 
enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed penalty notices given to people 

with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up of vulnerable people in the 
criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who combine begging with 
genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather than creating a new 

criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street.  

 
It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 

rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. It is fundamentally misconceived. 

this is already covered by the vagrancy act i dont feel an extension of this is necessary 

is a busker making an implied request fir money? how about charity collectors who are blatantly asking for money. 
People proposing legal changes like this should know better than to use words like "impliedly". Learn English before putting yourself in 

judgement of others. 

I can fully understand the desire to prohibit aggressive requests for money. However, I think that the phrasing of this prohibition is too 
broad, particularly with the "impliedly requested by conduct" aspect. This point relies too heavily on the subjectivity of the authorised 
person, and could be used to target and punish anyone who is merely sat on the street. Also, until a truly sustainable and successful 

solution to helping vulnerable and homeless people in Exeter exists, I do not believe they have many options for surviving which 
extend beyond begging.  

Again  this needs to be handled sensitively to avoid criminalising or harming vulnerable individuals 

I do not like being asked for money by anyone, be it the homeless or charity workers but if i don't want to hand over money I won't; 
simple.  

It is only a problem if someone is using aggressive or hard sales pitch pestering tactics; which is more commonly the tactic of a charity 
worker not the homeless.  

Same comment as with Proposal 3. Begging/busking have been part of society since the beginning of civilization, and will continue to 
be so until a proper social contract is found that allows for full support or integration of the most vulnerable. Under current housing 
policy, and in the current economic climate, more people are likely to find themselves destitute or homeless. Criminalizing begging 

(which is generally a symptom rather than a cause), and trying to sweep the problem under the carpet, is no solution. 

So this says that these people cannot ask for help? Whoever wrote these proposals makes me sick. 

Page 171



 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is worded in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour as they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal record 
which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 1824 
Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 

interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 
penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking, as playing an instrument or singing on the street 
could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings enjoyment 

and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being directed 
towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial Behaviour 

legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. It is 
fundamentally misconceived. 

People who ask for money, whether casually or by begging, more often than not directly need it for food and water. They're not in the 
same category as buskers 

Although i appreciate that repeated requests can be experienced as annoying, unless the person doing the requesting is attempting to 
intimidate/compel the one being requested i fail to see how this could be considered an act worthy of sanction. Being an inconvenience 

doesnt make you a criminal and, quite frankly, such attempts to hide the realities of poverty in this country would be sinister. 

There is already adequate legislation to stop aggressive begging, vulnerable people begging discretely should be allowed. 
 

Busking gives entertainment, a good atmosphere, and a chance for musicians to earn a little cash,- let them be. 

Begging is annoying and saddening, but the City must recognise that a) it is not an easy option for many destitute persons b) it can be 
reduced if residents refuse to give cash - but have the capacity and knowledge to direct to relevant food/shelter/advice facilities c) it is 
an international problem, and there is very little evidence that such legal action either suppresses it or builds the safer community to 

which we all aspire. This proposal focuses on the symptoms of inequality, fear and annoyance not the causes of social disintegration. 
As a regular visitor and previous resident of the city, I am appalled at the divisiveness that this is creating. Seeing poor, substance 

dependent, homeless and often mentally ill people without supports is so much more distressing than being approached by beggers 

Exeter is a richer place for all its buskers and I would be extremely angry and extremely sad if you removed them. No one forces you to 
give them money. Exeter would become soulless and nondescript if there were no buskers...what about free licences for set pitches? 

As long as there is no harrassment or threat then I believe that people have the right to ask for money, just as those asked have the 
right to refuse. 

How else are homeless people supposed to get food and drink? 

Do not existing public order laws cover begging? Just an additional way of criminalising the poor 

No. This is too strict. I don't mind being asked once for money, or seeing buskers on the streets, or hats etc left out for coins, and I 
believe a clear distinction should be made between 'unobtrusive begging' and pressuring people in a way that causes distress to the 

public. 

It can be very difficult for a homeless person to find employment and sometimes this is the only method of earning money to purchase 
food/drinks.  

As a Christian and a good person I wouldn't want anyone to go hungry when I have cash to spare. 

1. see my answer to 3. The person conceded may have no other way to obtain food and drink 
 

2. I lived many years in London, saw such people very very frequently. They were invariably polite, never in any way aggressive, more 
likely very passive. You'll have to solve the whole problem of homelessness before you do this. 

This proposal will outlaw busking which s usually a delight. And if you don't agree, walk on! Although people should not be allowed to 
directly approach and ask for money as the can be disturbing for people. 

How can this be realistically enforced?  I don't want my tax money being spent on this approach. 

This again makes it a criminal offence for the homeless to ask for help and money. Provided people are not aggressive or intimidating I 
have no problem . In fact 'authorised'  and paid charity representatives can be a lot more persistent and ask for a lot more money than 
a homeless person asking for a little change! They even knock on doors of the vulnerable and elderly but apparently this is ok, while a 

starving cold hungry person is a criminal? I really can't support that. 

I have no issue with requesting money as long as it is not done aggressively or threateningly.  

This is a basic human right to ask for help from other humans. Where do you draw the line? If I was stranded in the middle of nowhere 
and had just been mugged and I needed to ask a fellow human being for money then this proposal would prevent me from doing so. It 

is unrealistic to try and control people asking other people for money - how would busking work? Would that fall under the same 
heading. If these proposals were to be followed through they should then be applied to all in society not just homeless people which is 

who these proposals seem to be victimising. 

If someone doesn't want to give money they can ignore them. I have never been intimidated by such people in the street 

Page 172



 

This will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and manifestly unjust way. The vast majority 
of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in order to obtain food and shelter. The 

proposal is worded in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any issues to any other person, could face a 
criminal fine and a court action which would be costly and would in no meaningful way change their behaviour just make them more 

marginalised and isolated from society. Begging is already illegal under the 1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to 
seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public interest.  

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

I have no problem with people playing musical instruments or doing anything entertaining to raise money. People who simply sit on the 
pavement with the hand out, or a container in front of them, are doing no harm and are unthreatening. This may be their only 

opportunity to raise our awareness of the fact that they need a hot drink, some food or something basic which we take for granted. No, 
I have no wish to see this proposal implemented.  

There are already legal ways of dealing with aggressive beggars.  If people busk or beg, it is because they are desperate for money. 
How does it make the council look, creating criminals of such people? And busking is lively and creative, and welcome on our streets.  

Yes, deal with anti-social behaviour, but not by demonising the poor. 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

This could lead to a great deal of misunderstanding with the words impliedly by conduct  being included. What about street musicians 
there is nothing wrong with that also there are people who do just sit and hope that someone may give them something to tide them 

over.  
Let us not get like some South American countries where  people/children just being around whoa re poor have nowhere to makes 

others uncomfortable and leads to dreadful measures. 
Let us look to other ways of resolving the issues of homelessness and being on the streets. 

I can understand that beggars can be a real nuisance however what if a individual finds themselves with no money i.e have been 
robbed and have no way of getting back home unless someone helps them  

I try never to walk past beggars, unless I am running for a train. I talk to them and give them at least enough for a bed for the night. Are 
you human? Are you humane? Do you have any religious or philosophical belief? What are you doing to help rather than punish other 

human beings who happen to have fallen on hard times?  

This is already covered by existing laws against begging 

I have not noticed 'aggressive' begging in Exeter. 

I am quite happy to give food or clothes to people in need or money were appropriate and if they do not make the fact clear then we 
could not help people- This is not a nanny state individuals can decide if they want to give money or not. Obviously actual aggressive 
physical stopping of people would not be appropriate. This would stop charity workers who work on the streets of Exeter also asking 

people to sign up for paying money to them and actually in some cases the same charities that help homeless people 

Criminalising begging is a BIG step to take and shouldn't be slipped in surreptitiously with the rest of these proposals. All civilized 
human societies have their beggars, and to try to sweep ours under the carpet is to deny our own reality, and to deny the majority of us 
the opportunity to show compassion. Powers already exist to deal with aggressive begging, and it is surely not tenable for a Christian 

country/city to declare non-aggressive begging as morally wrong and deserving of punishment. Also, it is hard to establish any 
substantive difference between begging and 'collecting' on behalf of charity; also begging and busking/street performance. On balance 

there is a huge moral maze around this specific proposal and it deserves a much wider debate than slipping it into these proposals. 

Page 173



 

n common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

I am not at all persuaded that these draconian powers are necessary 

Yes it is appalling that some members of this society don't have enough money to survive, whilst others have too much and pollute 
everyones air with their big houses and big guzzly cars.  I am never offended by people who ask for spare change, only saddened that 

other well off people shun and ignore this plea for help. 

It is an individual's choice if they wish to give their money. You have no right over what someone does with their money and punishing 
those who beg by fining them is incredibly ironic 

Please help these people by providing much more support. There needs to be more hostels to help get them back on their feet.   A life 
on the streets must be unbearable and I can understand why these folks beg and often spend the money on drink or drugs.  It is an 

awful existence.   

I think it is a basic right to be able to beg - people do not have to give. If you take that right away then you're denying the beggar and 
the giver an opportunity to experience humanity. 

Those forced to beg are most often at their wits end to survive.  A launch into govt. handling of benefits to young people is not 
appropriate here, but there can be many reasons why an individual is forced to this level of humiliation.  Ludicrous penalties which 

cannot be paid, and the time such prosecutions will take, add to the ridiculousness of many aspects of these overall proposals. 

As with Proposal 3, this proposal would criminalize behaviour which is the only available option for many vulnerable people. The 
provision that a request for money could be "impliedly requested by conduct" is, again, problematically open to interpretation and liable 
to be interpreted in a way that makes virtually any action of a homeless person, such as sitting on the pavement, an implied request. 

There is also a risk that buskers could be construed as making "unsolicited and/or unauthorised request(s) for money", "impliedly 
requested by conduct". 

Q5 (Sorry) I have was under British law you have the presumption of innocent until proven guilty. How can anyone see into the future 
to tell if someone is the future to see if someone is going to commit a crime. No crime no offence. 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

The problem with this proposal is the wording. I agree that being hounded for money is not pleasant, but so long as it is not aggressive 
then I accept it, as it is the only way that some people manage to survive in this world when they have nothing and no-one else. 

Specifically the wording "whether expressly requested or IMPLIEDLY requested by conduct" is too ambiguous and leaves too much up 
to the judgement of the individual 'authority'. What does "impliedly requested by conduct" even mean? This is a very open and 

subjective phrase that is too open to interpretation and violation, which could result in some people being unfairly punished because of 
either a misunderstanding, miscommunication, or a deliberate 'misunderstanding' between themselves and the 'authorities'. 

People asking for money is not an issue if they are not aggressive about it. Do we stop people collecting for charity in the streets? No. 
There is little difference. In fact, 'authorised' charity collectors can often be more of a disturbance than the homeless population, who 

rely on our kindness to, quite frankly, survive. Everyone has free speech. Everyone. 

There is sufficient legislation currently to deal with this already 

Page 174



I have no objection to someone in desperate situations asking me for money. In fact, I willingly give people money, food or what I 
can-just as I am doing for refugees abroad. Are we going to be less humane to our own citizens in the UK. 

Does this also included people who are busking? When we visit countries on holiday we all like to hear buskers-but it's not OK in our 
cities. What souless places they will become! 

As difficult as it is when asked for money, I think it has to be recognised just how desperate a situation one must be in to do that in the 
first place - I very much doubt people are doing it by choice. 

You are criminalising destitution. 

As far as I am aware, begging is already illegal.  I don't understand what this extra rule would do.  Some members of the public are 
willing to give money and other things to needy strangers. 

It has actually happened to me that I had run out of change for a ticket machine and another person in the queue gave me 10p freely.  
I cannot remember if I actually asked them or not, but I have a feeling that I looked as if I was going to ask them and they pre-empted 

me. 

This is unrealistic.  These people are not going to get written consent!  Some (many ) of these people do not know how or are unable 
to claim benefits (No fixed abode is rarely accepted, people need addresses to receive money; young people are expected to live at 

home - so those traumatised youngsters where home has been a living hell are supposed to remain there rather than escape to live on 
the streets.  Rarely does anyone chose to live on the streets. Have some compassion - the street dwellers need as much help as they 

can get - however many times they reject it. 

It is a basic human right to communicate with fellow-citizens and to ask for help. Of course, it is also a right to say 'no'. The idea that 
the state should interfere with such conversations is not tolerable. Of course, there are existing laws that prohibit begging that it 

aggressive or threatening: these laws work well, and I have not detected any kind of problem in Exeter. 

As I have mentioned before, I don't agree with criminalising vulnerable and homeless people. I also don't see how you can apply this to 
beggars and not charity collectors, as they can be just as intimidating if not more so.  

There is already legislation dealing with the means by which people collect money in public spaces, so this is wholly unnecessary. 
Additionally, this is another example of hiding poverty and trying to resolve a problem by moving it. 

The public are perfectly able to say 'no' to someone begging, or to ignore them as most do.  The police already have powers under 
present legislation to prosecute if necessary.  This is just more unnecessary powers to Council Officials. 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 

street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 
enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

This is a serious coordinated attack on homeless people sleeping rough across Exeter. A person is at rock bottom when their 
homeless it seems Exeter City Council is promoting the kicking of these people when they are down.  

The heading to this section could usefully add, after "requests for money" "or other benefits". 

People are begging because they are in need. Until city councils can provide better for the homeless we shouldn't stop them. 

Bi Issue sellers are working legally. 

The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in order to obtain food and 
shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any issues to any other person, 
could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no meaningful way change 

their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal record which would cause 
them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 1824 Vagrancy Act which 

gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public interest. Instead of giving 
an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed penalty notices given to 

people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up of vulnerable people in 
the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who combine begging with 

genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather than creating a new 
criminal offence. 

 
This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 

street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 
enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

A few people may find begging a nuisance, but the greater need is with the poor and those who are forced to beg in order to survive. 

Begging has been going on since time immemorial, the reason being that some people don't have any money. Councillors should be 
aware that, in the current circumstances and under the current government, there are many more reasons why this could be the case 

now. Aggressive behaviour by beggars can be dealt with via existing means; otherwise, there is nothing wrong with the activity of 
begging itself. 

Page 175



 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 Also just because someone does not have a house to put their possessions in does not give you the right to take them away. 

 
This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 

street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 
enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

Too widely drawn ; unnecessary 

There is already in place the Vagrancy Act of 1824 to deal with persons who are a real public nuisance.  
 

Busking might also be construed as begging and yet the music adds to the culture and interest of the city. 

I welcome the opportunity to give directly to beggars.  I have given up donating to most "charities " as they seem to spend money on 
overpaid executives and fundraisers who persist in sending me mail shots with useless coaster, book marks etc.  I have often given 

money to beggars who sit outside churches in other countries.  I am not at all intimidated, but I think it is the right thing to do 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

It is already illegal to beg under the 1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police enough powers to prosecute persons for begging if it is 
deemed to be within the public's interest. These new measures as currently worded would also criminalise 'unauthorised' busking, 

playing an instrument or singing on the street could be construed as an implied request for money. I find this absolutely unacceptable, 
destroying a cultural activity which brings enjoyment and colour to the general public. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of 
Antisocial Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10  rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human 

Rights Act 

it should be less vague. If someone has a sign that is fine. Approaching strangers is wrong. But seriously if you don't like 
homelessness, do something about the causes not the victims.  

These people are vulnerable, not criminal. 

There are already adequate laws for the police to prosecute people who are begging aggressively. It would be wrong to delegate these 
powers to council officials. It would be easy to construe from the suggesting wording that anyone sitting on the pavements was 

impliedly begging. Also those who are busking could be caught by this proposal, even if their presence is considered an enhancement 
of the city environment. It is a waste of time and money to fine those who have so little money they are reduced to begging. 

No one is ever forced to give money it's up to the person asked to decide whether to give or not, but not wrong to ask for money 

Why is asking a problem, what do you expect them to do - just quietly die? The homelessness problem is perpetuated through 
ignorance, so this proposal will cushion ignorance further, and so the problem has been swept under the carpet and not been dealt 

with while you bask in a bubble! This proposal only serves to keep those in power with tighter administrative control.  

Page 176



In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

Most people who beg do so because they have no other means of obtaining money, usually because of homelessness and/or mental 
health problems. Furthermore, this would allow officials to prevent busking and other forms of street entertainment, such as pavement 

art, since that could be construed as implicitly asking for money.  

Those that "beg" in Exeter do so politely. I do not see this as a problem other than it is a sad state that some people have found 
themselves in such a position that they have resorted to begging to get by. I would prefer that desperate individuals "beg" rather than 

turn to other illigal means to survive. I do not see any justification for anyone feeling intimidated by someone politely "begging". 
Obviously if an individual "begs" and is abusive when doing so, then that individual need to be delt with accordingly. 

Again, targeting vulnerable people. Begging is already illegal under the 1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to 
seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public interest. 

The authorities already have powers to deal with aggressive and threatening requests for money. 

I believe the good people of Exeter or any other town should be allowed to help who they wish to without interference. After all if you 
found yourself in this position I'm sure you would be grateful for any help you could get .  

This proposal is far too broad and not adequately considered. 
Buskers generally entertain and bring pleasure to people... when a group gather to watch clever street entertainers does an officer 

really have to close them down or does that officer make an arbitrary judgement about which entertainers can continue? 
Art in public spaces while not to everyone's taste, frequently shows skill and has considerable value as a means of social commentary 
(Banksy etc???).  As for straightforward begging, criminalisation, fines etc are going to be a totally counter-productive measure. Those 
reduced to street begging need to be supported to be able to address the housing/financial/social/mental health problems  that have 

landed them on the street. 

Just like proposal 3, this will disproportionately and unjustly impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society. The vast 
majority of people who beg do it in order to obtain food and shelter because they have no other choices. The proposal is worded in 

such a way that even a person who was sitting down, without causing any issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up 
to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no meaningful way change their behaviour because they 

would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal record which would cause them to be more marginalised 
and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to 

seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new 
delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them 

and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the throwing the already-vulnerable people into the criminal justice 
system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who combine begging with genuinely aggressive 

and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals instead of creating a new criminal offence. 

it is better to beg than steal. Let individuals decide if they want to be generous or not 

I have no problem with begging but I do have a problem with a council that is treating vulnerable people in this way.  

Page 177



Begging is some peoples only way of gaining income.  Whilst I agree it is difficult for a passersby we have to make sue these 
individuals are catered for appropriately.  

I am equally alarmed with this proposal. 

The police already have powers to deal with vagrancy... 

From choice - I am happy to support people who 'their but for the grace - go I"  It is my money and right to give where I choose.  Have 
you thought about how they are feeling - ever? 

Where does one get authorized to ask for money when needed? It takes a lot of humility to have to ask. Please give freely. Any one of 
you could end up in this position in this sick austerity society our leaders have created for us. 

Intimidating behaviour asking for money is one thing, being in need is another.  I don't object to someone in need asking for help. 

ww do not need legislation to "protect" us from people begging. We can all simply say no, or just ignore the request 

In common with proposal 3, proposal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnerable members of society in a disproportionate and 
manifestly unjust way. The vast majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and often destitute and are reduced to begging in 
order to obtain food and shelter. The proposal is world in such a way that even a person who was sat down, without causing any 

issues to any other person, could face a criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no 
meaningful way change their behaviour because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal 
record which would cause them to be more marginalised and isolated from society. Additionally begging is already illegal under the 

1824 Vagrancy Act which gives the police ample powers to seek to prosecute persons for begging if it was deemed to be in the public 
interest. Instead of giving an enormous range of new delegated powers to council officials which could see a large number of fixed 

penalty notices given to people with no ability to pay them and a resultant rise in costly magistrate s court hearings and the mixing up 
of vulnerable people in the criminal justice system, the council and the police should focus purely on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target those individuals rather 

than creating a new criminal offence. 
 

This measure as currently worded would also criminalise  unauthorised  busking because playing an instrument or singing on the 
street could be construed as an implied request for money. This is an absurd outcome, conflating a cultural activity which brings 

enjoyment and colour to the public spaces of a city, with a criminal, antisocial activity. It would lead to scarce public resources being 
directed towards the prosecution of people playing music on the street. It is contrary to Home Office advice on the use of Antisocial 

Behaviour legislation and is also likely to be an infringement of Article 10 rights to Freedom of Expression under the Human Rights Act. 
It is fundamentally misconceived. 

If the benefits system was fair and adequate, why would anyone want to beg steal or borrow. 
Problems that create those sort of activities, need to be addressed. 

The authorities already have sufficient powers 

They need some way of surviving, in modern society this requires money.  

People have a right to request charity when in conditions of genuine need. Should they do so in a threatening or harassing manner, 
they may be dealt with under existing legislation on public order. A blanket ban would be completely inappropriate. 

To repeat myself.....this is also an outrageous proposal. What is it you expect homeless individuals to do? I do not know the other 
measures you may have previously introduced to help the homeless but I still fail to see how this proposal can be justified. I'm 

ashamed to be a resident of a City that considers this sort of action. 

Yes. I witnessed aggressive begging outside lloyds bank where an oriental man was pressured for money whilst using the cash point. 

Asking may bring them to the attention of passers-by and ensure at least some kindness from someone, whether it be money or offer 
of a drink/food etc.  

That's just stupid! how are they going to survive then????  

Again, for many people this is their only source of income, through no fault of their own, and most people have absolutely no issue with 
this. It is disgusting that homeless people are being penalised for a situation they can often not control, and this measure will not do 

anything at all to help their situation. 

At the risk of repeating ourselves, the powers to intervene to prevent begging are potentially useful - however, the context of their 
application will be key. As mentioned before, we favour the option for enforcement as part of a much wider, integrated strategy of 

comprehensive, accessible support parallel to robust, escalating compassionate enforcement - with support offered at every stage. 
 

Again, this issue is emotive and contentious - partly because people see giving to people begging as an act of charity or mercy, 
believing that they are helping someone who is totally destitute with no other means of support. 

 
In actual fact, national studies (and local case studies) show that most persistent beggars are actually in accommodation - and that the 
main driver for begging activity is not the need to raise resources for subsistence, but to fund alcohol and / or drug use. Furthermore, 

evidence shows that there is a correlation between the amount of money earned through begging activity and the level of drugs / 
alcohol consumed. The more that is earned, the more drugs or alcohol are consumed. (Fitzpatrick & Kennedy, 2000) It can therefore 

be argued that begging is highly problematic because it is so potentially damaging to those engaged in it. At best, self-destructive 
habits can escalate, and at worse the risk of overdose and drug / alcohol-related death becomes more acute. 

 
The city-wide "support package" that we therefore advocate must include a range of support interventions, but in the case of begging, 

rapid and supported access to drug and alcohol treatment (and particularly substitute prescribing) becomes particularly important. 
 

As with the section on street drinking / drug use, enforcement services and support providers must also anticipate and plan for 
unintended consequences. For instance, enforcement action taken against visible, static begging (individuals sat outside shops, or 

next to ATMs etc asking for money) can lead to individuals instead engaging in the less-visible ambulant begging, whereby they walk 
around and approach people to ask for money. This latter form of begging may be experienced by some people as more "aggressive", 

intimidating or threatening than static begging. 

I get asked every day for money it becomes quite stressful when constantly asked , especially when you get abusive language back 
just for saying no. 

DSFRS believes soliciting for money impacts on the overall safety of the public and the  reputation of Exeter as a safe city. 

The money requested may for a  desperate need. Better to ask  than be in a desperate plight 

Out of sight, out of mind. Despicable. 

Page 178



If someone is in need they should feel able to ask a fellow human being for help. 

Why would we attempt to prevent any individuals from approaching others for help and assistance? If I am ever in trouble I hope I can 
approach my fellow human beings for some help. 

Maybe we should ask ourselves why people are begging on our streets and deal with that issue rather than criminalising the beggars 

A friend of mine felt pity for an alleged cold and hungry begger and purchased a hot pasty for him,only to be told what to do with it -he 
onlywanted money!. 

The majority of begging is irritating but harmless. Just say no. Aggressive begging should be dealt with but there needs to be 
differentiation 

People who have very little should not be punished for asking people for money.  

Destitution is not an anti-social activity, it allows some people to give directly to those few who find themselves with extremely limited 
options. 

I think its a good reminder that some people need help and support 

The Police already have powers to move on people who are begging - a new Order is not necessary but more Police on the ground 
may be. 

It's easy to argue that the folks who do this genuinely need the money, but the reality is many who engage in the practice are 
exceedingly assertive. 

All ready a crime as per the Vagrancy act of 1824, just not enforced. 

Again this penalises the homeless and desperate.  

Sounds like cracking down on poor homeless people. 

It strikes me that this proposal is only to protect the 'non-homeless' public from possible offence caused by the site of begging. As a 
member of the public who regularly walks past people begging for money in Exeter, I can confirm I am neither offended or frightened 
by this and it is my choice whether or not to give some change to whoever it may be. Sometimes I buy somebody a cup of tea instead 
of giving them change, and this is something I probably wouldn't do if they weren't sitting there asking for money. Nobody is forced to 

give anything, so this proposal is unnecessary.  

Many of Exeter's homeless population rely upon begging to support themselves. In an ideal world this obviously wouldn't be necessary, 
but for the time being I feel that criminalising their behaviour rather than taking steps to offer help and practical support that means 

begging is no longer necessary for them is unhelpful and unkind. 

Again, this will directly effect the homeless, some of the most vulnerable members of society who also are unlikely to have the means 
to speak out against these measures themselves. Rather than punishing these people, perhaps you could take measures to help them 

such as by providing more homeless shelters and provisions. 

This is another disgusting attack on homeless people, such proposals would rather see them starve than damage Exeter's 'image'. 
These are real people, they need our help not our harrasment.  

If support isn't going to be given to homeless people who require it, why are you trying to limit the last means they have of getting 
money/food/etc? Are you trying to marginalise them into such a small amount of space they will stop existing?  

Help the homeless 

There is realistically no other way for these people to raise money to feed themselves each day. While it disturbs shoppers on the high 
street, requests are generally unobtrusive. Those making the requests for money face no choice and are not proud to sustain 

themselves this way. Provide food and shelter for these people or face responsibility for their ill health.   

This is just going to victimise homeless people and will not help them at all. 

Why should people not ask others for assistance if they need it? It is at the discretion of the person asked whether or not they offer 
assistance. 

This would obviously not exclude busking 

A person without a home does not have an address, ergo they cannot have a bank account. It is unlikely they have a job or any means 
of receiving state benefits, how then do they feed themselves? Even those who have tried to find work through charitable institutions 

such as the big issue appear to be victimised by this proposal, the method of selling the product they are selling is by nature 
unsolicited. Come to think of it, any street vendor vocally advertising their wares would presumably be covered by this proposal, 

commerce requires cash.  

Many people are happy to help out and at most, someone begging might make you uncomfortable.  

This only seeks to destroy one of the only ways homeless people can sustain themselves. it is evil. 

I don't believe that criminalising this further will help to change the homelessness problem in Exeter. Our city needs an abstinence 
based recovery program for drug users and to fix its housing issue so that this sort of violent legislation isn't deemed required. 

Again, this is not harmful. This entire thing is pointless because it's addressing a nonexistent problem. 

Again another policy targetted at the most vulnerable that wont change anything, it'll just mean we're fining people who have no money 

Proposal 4, again, simply further victimises the homeless. 

People should have the right to beg for any reason, whether they're homeless or not. What other options are the council providing for 
people forced to beg? If there is no alternative, then how exactly is this going to help anybody? 

People can also politely say no and give them a hello recognising their existence. 

Similar to comments in other questions - will need to be applies carefully. 

Absolutely, there is plenty of help and benefits available and nobody needs to beg in Exeter other than to get money to spend on drugs 
or alcohol. 

Some homeless people are not entitled to benefits of any sort, therefore the only way they can get money to buy food is to ask for it 
from members of the public. Until the government or local council supply people with food then I do not see what alternative these 

people have. 

people beg or busk for many reasons. It can take more than two monthes to get a script for methadone or subutex .... and people have 
to jump through too many hoops to please RISE.  If help was more easily available people wouldn't need to beg.   

 
I like buskers ... they cheer up the high street. 

In this instance, I assume the council would only give 'permission' to wealthy street performers and charities that spend 80% of 
donations on staffing costs, marketing, advertising etc, rather than a man already starving on the streets looking for money for food and 

drink. I would like to repeat my sentiment from Q3.1 and say that to even propose this is disgusting. 

Page 179



Didn't really understand it, ambiguously written. 

If the homeless are not able to ask for money, they will die of starvation. Simple as that. They may use the money for things other than 
food and shelter, but we cannot make that judgement for them. It is much harder than people think for someone in this situation to get 

a job.  
 

This law will also affect busking. The public love Exeter's buskers and if they want to give money for this entertainment, it should be the 
choice of the individual. Busking helps the economy of Exeter, because street entertainment draws people to the centre's shops. 

Existing legislation already exists to tackle beggars who cause harassment, alarm and distress to people in public spaces (Public 
Order Act 1986). If none of these negative effects are being caused, then it is completely unreasonable to sanction these vulnerable 
members of the Exeter community. Issuing penalty notices to people who do not have the money to pay them would not only cause 
unnecessary hardship to beggars themselves, but is also a ludicrous waste of council resources at a time when local government 
budgets are already extremely limited. The council should instead let the existing legislation cover any problems that do arise, and 

focus on providing better services for impoverished people in Exeter - for example, by giving more support to local charity networks. 

Out of sight, out of mind?  
This whole set of proposals seems intended to sweep under the carpet the fact that Exeter City cannot or will not acknowldge the fact 

that it is failing these mostly young people, and is trying to hide the problem of homelessness.   

Aggressive begging is already an offence. Will this be applied to charity workers soliciting donations? To my friend asking me to lend 
him £1 for his bus home? No  - we all know that this is again targeting only the most vulnerable victims of the current economic 

austerity. 

But asking for anything else should be okay; for food, or shelter, or help.  

I (I suppose, like many people) do not find beggars to be particularly pleasant. I appreciate that the Council may feel that they are 
under a duty to protect me from this unpleasantness. 

 
However, I think that the Council's duty is in fact greatest to those in greatest need and should be concentrating on support for those 

who are in such a dire need that they need to beg in the street. Fines to beggars and then criminalisation them for when they can't pay 
(which will be inevitable, surely) is a waste of public money and completely unhelpful to both the individual concerned and the wider 

society. 
 

I prefer my City to be welcoming and supportive, and if I suffer the trivial inconvenience of being asked for money when I get my lunch 
in the City, I am very much more than willing to pay that price.  

There are laws under the vagrancy laws against begging now what is the point of finding people who are do desperate they are 
begging just do they can beg again yo pay the fine ridiculous  

This is already criminal behaviour (begging).  

If the society we live in didn't cause homelessness and poverty stricken people I would see no reason for begging. But the fact that 
these people have no roof over their head, no guaranteed food I must say I think it is ridiculous you want to criminalise begging. 
Perhaps take a look at the reason there are people on the street rather than vilifying the already marginalised and subjugated.  

How are homeless people meant to eat? If the council intends to enforce this proposal, they should be equally prepared to invest in 
soup kitchens to feed the homeless and free sheltered accommodation.  Somehow, given the disgusting ideas proposed here, I doubt 

any such measures will even be considered.  

They sit by cash machines, sometimes often right in front of it, so you cant use it, and follow you. Just the other day someone was 
robbed at a cash machine. 

 
It's extremely intimidating and frightening, and has no place in Exeter 

A few weeks back, I spoke to a man who was asking for money, who said he had just been thrown out of sheltered housing on Oxford 
Street. He was clearly confused but the story he told was a distressing one. He said that he had woken up with his wrists slit, and didn't 

know how it had happened. He suggested that someone might have done it to him. He had the bandages, looking quite clean at this 
point, to show it. However, he said that the incident had caused him to be thrown out of the house he had been staying it - presumably 
because they thought he was lying, or did it to himself. Regardless of the ins and outs of the story, if there is any grain of truth to it, it 
makes perfect sense for him to be asking for money in preparation for the evening ahead. In that instance, I gave him a little. Mostly I 

do not give people money - I typically try to buy people food - but I am not offended by them asking.  
 

On this note, I hope you're consulting with St Petrock's homeless charity on this. However, the individual I describe here was 
dismissive of the help they offer - saying it was way too hard to access. That's a disappointment to me. Perhaps the council and St 

Petrock's can work together to improve the support they give rough sleepers. 

While I agree with the proposal, my friend asking me for ten pounds seems to fall into this category of "soliciting money without written 
consent" so maybe amend the wording? And exercise a little common sense and responsibility about this one and we should all get 

along fine 

What else are these people supposed to do when the council won't help them?! 

Again there is no explanation as to why this is necessary, nor is there any explanation as to what an  implied  request for money in 
fact is. This seems unacceptably vague. There are already laws against this, why is this necessary? 

People beg because they have no alternative.  I can't imagine it's a particularly lucrative practice, and it's hardly an enjoyable way of 
passing the time.  People do it because they have to; for one reason or another they are in dire straits, and criminalising begging will 

only exacerbate the problem.  You can't punish people out of poverty.  As long as they are not behaving in an intimidating or 
threatening way, and money is offered consensually, I can't see any reason to involve law enforcement. 

People do not chose to beg on the streets, they do it because they literally have no other choice. If I was on the street, cold and 
hungry, I would get desperate and I would sacrifice all the dignity I had and I would also ask strangers for money. This is what these 

people have to do and I don't believe anyone who says that is not what they would also do in the situation. If they don't ask, they don't 
get, it's that simple, and when it literally becomes a case of life and death, you can not take away their only opportunity to ask for a little 

salvation.  

Again, a blatant attack on the homeless. If the council aren't prepared to help them, at least let them ask for help from the public. I am 
always happy to give to people, as is everyone I know. 

It's not causing any great harm to people. You shouldn't silence people.  

Page 180



I don't believe the fact it makes some people uncomfortable is a good enough reason to stop people getting money that might mean 
they don't go hungry that day. The convenience of people more privileged shouldn't be at the expense of vulnerable people. 

if you provide them with food and necessities so they don't have to beg then go on with this proposal..... 

I am aware that current DWP policy leaves some people destitute, and that sanctions are applled disproportionately on people with 
mental health problems. 

 
I am familiar with the argument that any money given will "be spent on drink or drugs". This is what many people in our country choose 

to do, in their own homes, to ameliorate worries about their situation, deal with the pain of their lives, or just to feel better. 
 

This legislation would impact on buskers. The suggestion that buskers could audition for pitches, as happens with Princesshay, would 
exclude some vulnerable people from the opportunity to busk. 

 
I have often been asked "to spare a bit of change" but I have not found this intimidating. Having been without money or a phone on my 
own in London on one occasion (following theft) I experienced what it is like to have no money, in a city where you see people able to 

buy drinks, food. The feeling of extreme vulnerability will stay with me.  
 

I find it sad that people need to beg, I would be gravely concerned if a hungry, thirsty person was prevented from asking a fellow 
human being help. 

Once again an attack on the homeless community rather than an attempt to help.   

We are frequently abused by aggressive beggars and would welcome action to clear these people from the street. Big Issue sellers are 
not properly monitored and can be a big problem too. This scheme while well intentioned seems to keep people trapped in a cycle 

rather than assisting them to break out. 

See previous comments. This proposal has no basis or justification. 

Who is that harming? If they are begging, it's freedom of speech and their choice. to you and i it may be degrading, it's not like they 
don't feel degraded, they just neeed to. 

Again you are specifically targeting the homeless and less fortunate. Some use begging as a last resort and it is up to the individual to 
choose whether they wish to give money or not to those less advantaged. You suggest no alternative solution for those who have to 

ask for money. 

Begging, if unaggressive, does not bother me.  

Again this will make the living situation of Exeter's homeless unnecessarily more difficult. If the charity and goodwill of Exeter's 
population is all the homeless have to maintain themselves, it would be unforgivably cruel to deny them of this source of income. 

 Talented buskers can provide enhancement to street life.  Begging with menaces is already outlined e.g. harassment at ATMs .  
Passive begging by desperate people is merely a sign of the times we live in.  This is merely an attempt to remove the problems of our 

society out of the public gaze ie out of sight is out of mind.     

Begging is the only way some people can survive. The FAQs argue that this is important because it makes people feel 
"uncomfortable". I would argue that starvation and homelessness are a little worse than "uncomfortable". 

How else are you, as a human being, going to find money for a place to sleep or a bit of food to warm you up? you've already proposed 
that you're going to take away their bedding and possessions so what're they going to do? How have you been allowed to even put this 

in the public domain? 

Again, targets the homeless; fails to recognise the fault of state systems that so many people end up on the streets through no fault of 
their own, with no way of obtaining income except through begging  

Begging is not offensive, I happily give to people who ask me for my spare change on a regular basis. There is no pressure to give to 
homeless people if they ask for money - it is their prerogative. People should be given the right to decide whether they want to give 

money to homeless people directly or not - it is not the council's decision. Stop making the lives of some of the most vulnerable people 
in society more difficult than they already are.  

Again, victimising the homeless, for what purpose? What is their other method of gaining financial support? They should be allowed to 
passively beg (aggressive begging and getting in the face of the public is another matter) and it should then be up to every passing 

pedestrian as to whether they deserve money or not.  

So you can't even ask for money now? This is much more to do with facism than democracy  

How else are homeless people going to get any money?  

I don't care about being asked for money - and you won't stop the middle classed kids playing violins to ask for money so why will you 
stop the homeless? 

How do you 'implicitly' request money? Oh, right, you decide that by making assumptions about people who 'look homeless'. 

This might actually encourage me back into the city centre 

As a busking musician, I'd starve without such rights. 

I can choose whether or not to give to a beggar or a busker 

I often feel guilty when I am asked for change and have none, but when I have some to spare, I am happy to give it to a homeless 
person in need if they provide a good reason for asking. 

I understand the principle, but before this can be put in place, I believe there needs to be increased provision for homeless people 
around Exeter - otherwise this will only make their lives worse than they already are.  

Proposal 4 is also inhumane. People are not making 'unlawful requests for money' because they're cheeky or want an extra beer at the 
pub. Why would you spend your time risking arrest for a few quid if you weren't at the peak of desperation? Like I said, help, assist, 
provide for these people so that they can make their way back into society as functioning, contributing adults. The government takes 

ridiculous amounts of our money. Why are you complaining when one weather-beaten old woman asks you for 20p?  

No one wants to be a beggar. They're not doing it for fun. If they're truly desperate and asking for money then it gives people the 
opportunity to do some right by them - buy them a sandwich, a hot drink, or a bit of spare change. What difference does it make to 

you? As long as they're not being aggressive, I don't see a problem with it; unless you have any other solutions and can house people 
in empty homes.  

People don't choose to beg. Often people have to raise money to spend a night in a hostel and begging/busking is the only way for 
them to do so. To ban begging and move beggars away doesn't solve any problem. 

Page 181



I was shocked to see a homeless man begging being arrested and treated with contempt. They only ask for change, that's not harmful 
to anyone. 

If people choose to give money that is there choice.  

Well this is just ridiculous!  Sometimes people need to ask for money, what's wrong with that? I once asked someone for a pound at a 
supermarket in exchange for 80p for a trolley. Will that now be a crime? You cannot stop people from asking for money!!! 

Again this victimises the homeless 

If they aren't aggressive or threatening there is no harm in them asking. Individuals can decide whether they wish to help them but they 
should have the right to ask.  

This is a real annoyance in Exeter centre. 

Nobody should have a problem with those in need asking for help. We are all humans and should be willing to help each other out. 
This proposal cannot go forward. 

I personally do not mind begging. It is my choice  how I respond. Having worked at CAB I am well aware of why someone may have 
no money and I think everyone should have access to some hard cash- not vouchers or anything similar 

This is also disgusting.  Homeless people need money to live - if you are selfish enough to not give them any, if you walk past them 
and feel annoyed by them asking for a tiny percentage of your excessive disposable income and you then do your best to ignore them, 
then you are a despicable human being.  More, you are trying to make it illegal for them to ask in the first place!  Will that ease your 

conscience, to remove the awkwardness you feel in denying them the means to live? 

How do you expect the homeless to buy food/space in a hostel?  

Its ok to ask politely, if its annoying to see then solve tge problem, don't just cover your eyes 

If I want to give my money to a stranger I should be allowed to do so, and if a person cannot afford to eat then why stop them calling on 
the publics generosity. 

You cannot simply try to hide the unattractive reality of begging. Everything should be done to try and help beggars get off the streets. 
This proposal will add to their problems and victimise them further in the eyes of society. 

I am yet to see anything that would increase the social mobility of the people affected by these proposals. 

I do not believe this is going to solve the homeless problem in Exeter 

 Lots of homeless people cannot claim benefits, they have to eat and the majority are not aggressive, unless the council is prepared to 
help these individuals they should not criminalise them. These people are just trying to survive. 

Exeter Council are about to make it effectively illegal to be homeless in Exeter by imposing £1000 fines for begging and giving the 
authorities permission to confiscate and destroy homeless people's bedding and personal property. Not only is this inefficient as it does 

not target the reasons why people are homeless in the first place or why they can't get off the streets once they are, it also explicitly 
victimises poor and mentally ill people. 

Im always being approached by people asking for money 

Someone who is begging clearly is in need. As long as they accept people's refusals and do not physically harass people it is fine. 
Much like if a charity worker stands on a street corner holding a bucket. It seems that just because they are wearing a banded top and 
appear more 'together' their request for money is fine. It is exactly the same for the needy and to stop them directly asking for money 

will result in them finding other ways to get the money. 

 I have never come across anyone aggressively begging in Exeter.  I have often seen people asking for money to help them out, and I 
am not so naive that I don't realise that sometimes the beggar may spend the money I donate on alcohol or drugs, but they might 

equally use it to buy food or to pay for a place to sleep.  It's not for me to guess whether a person is going to use the money in a way I 
approve of.  Poverty is not a crime and nor is addiction.  I do not subscribe to a culture in which one is encouraged to turn away from 

those who have fallen on hard times, and pretend they do not exist. 

People need to eat 

How are homeless beggars supposed to be able to get to a hostel without the four pounds required to stay the night, which would 
become more necessary under proposal 3 

There are already laws that deal withthis. Why is the City Council so obsessed with criminalising the hoemless? 

No 

The vast majority of the homeless people in Exeter are polite when asking for change and do not push it if you decline them. It does 
not bother me going about my business on the occasions this occurs. 

That's just fucking stupid 

Again, being homeless is a public health concern, not a crime.  To debase these people with the further stigmatism of being criminals 
only serves to iterate the stance that those of lower economic circumstances are 'undesirables' in this society.   

 
They deserve our help, not to be criminalised.      

"oi mate got a spare 50p?" 
"Nah I'm calling the police" 

Is ECC trying to 'exterminate' the most vulnerable human beings in our society? because that what it sounds like 

Not all beggars want money for drugs or alcohol, some just want a place to stay and a hot meal and I am often happy to help when I 
can.  

I believe it to be harmful to those who are excused from an area because of the guilty effect they cause on those passing by. They 
have as much right to a piece of earth as anyone else. This has become an act of selfish progression that we must face ourselves 

rather than push through into a policy.  

Homeless people occasionally have no other choice but to ask for a little change. The council must impliment measures to target the 
causes of people having to beg for money, rather than persecute those begging. 

have compassion 

This criminalises both begging and also busking.  

I have never witnessed any aggressive begging at any time and therefore no-one need feel intimidated to give if they don't want to.   

How else are they supposed to eat and stay warm  

Begging is already illegal under the 200 year old Vagrancy Act. That Act should have been repealed long ago. It is certainly 
unecessary to pass another law to do the same thing. 

As with other provisions in this proposal, this MIGHT, possibly be justifiable if we could be CERTAIN that adequate provisions are in 
place to ensure that noone is left in a situation in which they are forced to rely on help from others. I don't think we are there yet. 

Page 182



 

People sometimes need change to live off of, I can't see the government helping them. 

Crimilising all donation giving sounds (in public space). Ethically wrong.  Also every advert and shop window is implied request/offer to 
buy - give money which I can see from a public space. 

Persecuting, destitute and homeless  

See comments and questions in accompanying letter. 

This proposal  ?  the common term "begging".  I agree only if the LAW does not allow "begging". 

We do not wnt to see them criminalised and given a criminal record.  This is cruel.  The unfortunate people are suffering in this 
society which denies benefits and jobs, housing, whilst in a land of plenty for some rather many. 

Not welcome even if it is authorised - hate begging. 

Ticked yes and no.  Same criteria.  I would far rather pop coins to someone who is sitting on a pavement in oblivious need of help, 
than be accosted by someone collecting for a charity. 

We're all big enough and old enough to make our own decisions as to whether we give money to people or not.  The use of the word 
perpetrator says it all.  These people need to be helped NOT demonised. 

In common with propsal 3, propsoal 4 will impact the poorest and most vulnearble members of society in a manifestly unjust way.  The 
majority of people who beg are highly vulnerable and destitute and are recuced to begging in order to obtain food and shelter.  The 

proposal is worded in such a way that a person who was sat down, without causing any issues to any other person, could face a 
criminal fine of up to £1000 and a court action which would, in itself, be costly and would in no meaningful way change their behaviour 
because they would now have a fine that they could not possibly pay, as well as a criminal record which which would cause them to be 
more marginalised and isolated from society.  Begging is already illegal and the police have power to to seek to prosecute people for 

begging if it was deemed to be in the public interest.  The council and the police should focus on the small minority of people who 
combine begging with genuinely aggressive and intimidating behaviour and use existing legislation to target them rather than creating 
a new criminal offence.  As currently worded it would criminalise busking because playing an instrument or singing on the street can 
be construed as an implied request for money.  This is absurd.  It conflates a cultural activity which brings enjoyment and colour to 

the public spaces of a city, wth a crminal, antisocial activity.  It would mean scarce public resources being directed towards the 
prosecution of people playing music on the street.  It is an infringement of Article 10 rights to Fredom of Expression under the Human 

Rights Act.  It is fundamentally wrong. 

For some people this is a last resort and have no other means of sustaining a living.  Do you just expect them to starve?  

Provided that there is a clear definition between busking and begging. 

Should not be taking homeles people stuff. 

Give them help. 

Most homeless people want to get our of the hideous weather. 

Most people, if it's raining just want to sit down out of the rain - especially people with dogs.  Not everyone is begging they just want 
shelter 

Not all folks in doorways/arches are begging some just wanting shelter. 

I think they don't doing nothing wrong for other pepe so why they won't do this. 

People sat with an empty hat, not saying anything isn't wrong.  Pestering people is wrong and shouldn't happen. 

Not all folks i doorways/arches are begging some just want shelter. 

At times these people need funds due to circumstance. 

? 

Stop attacking the homeless. 

Leave the homeless alone. 

This is really mean.  Why not try to help these people rather than criminalising them? 

No 

Most people who beg, don't actually ask for money, people who do shouldn't get in trouble as people are obviously desperate, 
PEOPLE NEED HELP. 

If someone wishes to donate and help that's their choice and should not be hassled for doing it. 

They have to eat. 

Need to be registered homeless Big Issue ok 

The welfare state is in crisis following the recent overhaul of the benefits system.  Individuals on JSA are routinely sanctioned for 
infractions of the rules placing them in severe financial hardship.  Others on ESA have to wait months if not years to be called for their 
work capability assessment.  Some individuals have had to wait over 2 years to receive their full entitlements despite a GP providing 
sicknotes all throughout this time and guidelines for assessment stating 13 weeks.  Over 2500 peole have died having been found fit 
for work following their medical assessment.  Why is the local authority not highlighting the plight of the people of Exeter affected by 

this problem? 

Page 183



 
 

PSPO Consultation 
Responses to Restriction 5 and 6 

01/06/16 

Proposal 5 and 6 

I am particularly concerned about the Cathedral Green area. My youngest daughter attends the school and does feel unsafe when 
crossing the green between classrooms 

This proposal in my opinion has been long overdue, the powers to prevent begging and drinking in a public place have been available 
to enforce for many years. 

It should be a criminal offence to do any of the proposed intentions in public place anywhere, Anti social behavior has achieved a new 
level and its long overdue.        

Surely we have enough laws already. 

These need careful consideration for how they are delivered in practice. Where are the resources to deal with groups and ensure 
actions are stuck to? How to determine whether groups are intimidating?  

This is very vague. I am worried that this will be used as a way to target specific groups of people (e.g. street homeless) that people 
are prejudiced against, as opposed to any group that may be perpetrating this behavior. Will groups of students or sports fans be 

subject to the same enforcement? I appreciate the need to keep the City Centre safe and protect people, but I think unless people are 
being actually overtly aggressive / harmful, there shouldn't be any requirement to enforce on them. I fully support the need to address 
concerns about aggressive groups within the City Centre intimidating people, but I think the wording of this is too vague and could be 
used as a means of social control that is beyond what is required for the City. People have the right to enjoy themselves in the City 

Centre and act as they wish, as long as it doesn't cause harm to others. The wording "likely to result in any member of the public being 
intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed" doesn't even require someone to be upset by it to enforce upon. I think it's heavy handed 

and too controlling. People have a right to congregate, and it's only a matter of opinion (according to this) what is to be perceived as 
intimidation.  

I think if the wording was clearer and less vague I would be more positive about the Proposal.  

Saying yes to Q 5 takes care of proposal 4. 

All this is well and good but how you are going to enforce any of it remains to be seen as the relevant authorities cant cope with what 
they have to do at the moment 

This (if enforced) will significantly improve public safety in the city center and in time improve the confidence of the general public to 
walk freely. 

Proposal 5 is horrendously vague and could easily be abused. After reading these proposals I am disappointed that the Council 
believes this is the best way to tackle anti-social behaviour. Maybe if the Council directed their resources to HELPING people who live 

on the street instead of labelling them as CRIMINALS then society would improve. I sincerely hope you reconsider these proposals. 

Why should it not be immediately in every case?  

Although I appreciate that groups of people may appear intimidating to certain others, this is largely a question of perception.  It is not 
acceptable that people may be "moved on" without some objective means of demonstrating that they ARE causing distress or alarm 

and/or that they are engaged in wrong doing. 

Dont know what city centre relates to. Exe bridges/Leisure centre area shoild be considered to come under all the proposals.  

I feel five is highly subjective and would be difficult to control. Who will decide who is truely intimidating. This to me could be at high risk 
of validating segregation and promoting prejudice behaviour.  

 
I feel you are wishing to turn the streets into a souless void. Removing homeless people and those behaviours you dislike is like some 
weird twisted police state. As a city council you should be promoting inclusion and support for the more vulnerable. I'm disgusted by 

these proposals and genuinely sickened by your vision for this space - it is somewhere I would very much like to avoid.  

I agree if antin social behaviour is involved. 
 

I disagree if the group are sleeping quietly.  

To apply to antisocial behaviour, as opposed to homeless people occupying a space 

definitely, they can be threatening to persons, and not a role model for the younger generation. 

The zone should cover the University area too. 

It is too vague a statement  

NO 

Again as long as it is applied equally and not just to the homeless. There is as much antisocial behaviour from the housed and 
employed people in the city centre as the homeless.  

You might also wish to address the city wide antisocial actions of cyclists on pavements. This is a serious problem in Cowick St with 
the elderly and children regularly put at risk by, supposedly responsible, adults cycling on the pavement. This behaviour I have not 

seen from the homless. 

Anyone who breaches these rules should be prosecuted n banned from all areas! They should definately be charged with vagrancy n 
removed from society! 

This is entirely subjective, and could be misused against peaceful political protestors.  

People get alarmed by anything, especially if they are bigoted. This is incredibly vague and will strongly affect Exeter in a negative 
manner, affect the legal right to protest, and generally allow for police harassment of innocents. This is unacceptable. 

The law already covers this area of offending and is not required in this order. 

We already have the means within the law to deal with intimidation and violent behaviour. As as for upset and distress - have you been 
into Exeter on Thursday/Friday/Saturday night with hoards of drunks marauding around? They won't be dealt with.why not? Because 

they are university students having fun. 
Deal with homelessness at source, but do not begin impowering 'nameless council officials with such powers. If Exeter council 

sanitizes the city much more it really will be for the wealthy only 

Page 184



I would have assumed that 5 was part of the law anyway. 6 sounds good in theory, but there is the problem that it leaves an awful lot to 
the "authorised officer," which is a slippery slope toward arbitrary enforcement of the law. For example, I think it is a safe bet that a 

group of drunken students and a group of drunken people that are obviously homeless will probably not receive the same treatment. 
So while I give it cautious support, I would want to see proper safeguards and training in place for the officers.   

If a group is harrasing not just hanging out together. 

Extend the are up through St James to the University. 

This is fare as long as it is used justly.  

I have a general comment about the area covered by the proposals. The area should include the area around the university which can 
be a focus of unruly behaviour in otherwise quiet residential areas. 

As long as this is not abused by authorities to disperse legitimate peaceful demonstration 

Again cost and resources who do u expect to deal with this. The council used to have a brilliant team called Community Patrol. But 
even they finished at midnight before they were scrapped. Only way is to increase CCTV coverage then prosecute using that as 

evidence 

I dont understand these proposals, people can be alarmed by the way people dress, or if someone is having a fit or had turrets, or by a 
group of young people drunk on a night out. I would agree that action should be taken when people are purposefully bullying or 

intimidating directly, or as a group are creating havoc with outrageous behaviour  - however the line hould be carefully drawn and the 
rules specific  - otherwise you risk arresting/harassing innocent people and people having a good time.  

Yes, please extend PSPO! 

You're going to get the police to quieten the streets of drunk loud people around the top of Fore Street? Or are you just going to make 
life harder for the homeless? 

How can an  individual disperse? They are effectively bring banned from an area. The are already laws which deal with this whether 
it's drunken behaviour or larger public gatherings. It is not clear what the purpose of this is and how such behavior is defined and 

against whose standards its determined. Will it affect people who are organising campaigns that often happen in the city centre, is it 
designed to make the homeless move on or intended to stop drinks making a scene? I think it'll fail on all these fronts. Proper policing 

is required not in enforceable bylaws 

Is this just banning free speech? Also this would ban busking or street entertainment because someone is always offended by what 
other people do.  

Further to my previous comments I would like to add that I walk throug the city regularly at all times of night and day and regularly 
witness more antisocial behaviour from the public and students, especially students in the evening, than from any o the homeless 
community. In fact I regularly see homeless people picking up litter, helping people out and telling students  off for urinating in the 

street!  Perhaps Exeter university can help the council financially and socially by trying to curb the attitude of the student community, 
for it is them above anyone who is causing these problems you are trying to solve!  

Communication between officers and homeless people is important, and should be conducted in a reasonable way, without 
heavy-handed approach, to encourage homeless people to share the town space in a peaceful way.   

and to think I voted Labour, I am ashamed of my local council 

By such time is a little vague 

No one should ever feel they are being threatened whether homeless or not. Homeless people act this way because they are driven by 
desperation. Dispersal orders will not stop it from happening, it is a waste of time and money. More should be done to prevent people 

ending up in such desperate need in the first plane. None of these actions are likely to resolve the situation, they will just make it worse 

Again, very broad power. How does this conflict for instance with a right to protest? It's very easy to say someone feels intimidated, 
who will judge whether there is in fact any form of intimidation? 

Although I agree with the proposal I think it will be very difficult to enforce, particularly if no additional police support is to be offered. 
The safety of those enforcing this proposal should also be borne in mind. It may not be safe for a single individual to confront a group 

of people in breach of Proposal 5.  

The Police nationally need to look at how they operate at peaceful demos against war and environmental destruction. They are just as 
guilty of 5. 

I am concerned that the limited geographical restrictions to the proposal will just push out these undesirable behaviours to other parts 
of the city not covered by the proposal. The proposal should cover the entire city. 

I feel this could be a bit of a grey area as what some may consider high spirits others will consider as intimidation. 
 

I have to say that your opening statement regarding this proposed legislation states that it will cover all persons committing these acts, 
but, after reading all the proposals, it just seems to me that it is the homeless who are being targeted. I am guessing that the student 
population will be exempt because of 'all they bring to the city'. The city bends over backwards to provide student digs with nice new 
blocks of flats - when are you going to actually do something positive with regard to providing digs for the homeless and the people 

who have lived here all their lives? The homeless can stay in hostels - are you aware of how much these places cost? How do they get 
the money? they have to beg! it's a vicious circle. 

I broadly agree with this as long as it's applied to everyone from groups of students through to poorer people and kids. THe dispersal 
order in Wonford worked well, but it did displace some of the trouble to other areas. 

I am not assured by your FAQ that all these powers will not just be used to target the homeless in the city centres.  Resources are 
already stretched so that ASB is not dealt with at weekends - see the number of men coming out of the pubs on Fore Street and 

urinating.   How will a homeless person or a begger pay a FPN? Will the court process cost us even more and to what end?   

Why do we allow busking and music playing in the High Street? Also there seems 
no control on the volume that the music is played. The volume should be seen 

as a disturbance. 
These musicians can portray a detrimental image for an up and coming city. 

This would really make life so  much more tolerable in the City at night. Groups are always more threatening than individuals 

Disperse where precisely?  

A small quibble about the use of the word distressed. I feel it could be dropped without losing any strength in the prohibition.  

groups of young teenagers do behave un-sociably and so these rules are required 

Page 185



The definitions of Proposals 5 and 6 are far too broad and ambiguous, being liable for interpretation and abuse by "authorised" 
persons.  

Surely this is already law? 

I agree with these in principle but hope that what constitutes intimidating behaviour is given a framework. As an example, a group of 5 
homeless men may be intimidating To some, but I would hope the same response would be given to a group of well educated but 

drunk rugby "Lads" or a group of business men or a night out. Different people are intimidating by different things. As a woman walking 
on her own and being cat called by a group of men, would they be expected to leave the area too?  

There is one other point I'd like to make, not related to the six questions posed here.  I find it intimidating to walk through the city 
centre at night.  There are crowds of youngsters running around, shouting and behaving badly, who have obviously been drinking.  
I've been in Exeter at night with friends, returning from the theatre, and been ashamed.  It's almost like a sub-culture that emerges 
after dark and is deeply unpleasant and a bit frightening.  Even the police seem to accept the situation and keep their heads down. 

The police already have powers to disperse crowds and deal with anti-social behaviour. I'm not sure that this rule is required other than 
to be a means to collect fines from people. 

 
NOTE: I'd also like to complain that the email address on the feedback form itself doesn't work. 

Does this proposal apply to police stealing sleeping-bags and other property from the homeless, or to police acting as agents 
provocateurs in marches, public meetings or demonstrations?  If not, then I cannot agree with such a proposal. 

This seems aimed at a specific age group and different people can be intimidated by different things. Ie. Teenagers in hoodies or large 
social groups (also under 25's). This kind of by-law would be open to abuse by certain parties who dont like the look of certain people 

or groups. 

Total stupidity! This requires so many subjective judgements by people unqualified to make them. Try taking a case under this 
proposal to court and you will end up looking very foolish. 

These proposals are simply aimed at disadvantaged people who choose to behave in unconventional ways. They do not assist in 
solving the problems and as such will either cause the same problem elsewhere or cause longer term problem related to mental health 

and suicide. The underprivileged need support not peanalisation if you genuinely want to help 

I oppose this introduction   because PSPO's are too widely drawn, with vague definitions of what can be criminalised and carry 
disproportionately punitive sanctions against the vulnerable and those doing harmless street entertainment such as busking. 

I would agree with proposal 5 it was worded differently, i'e that the people were harassing members of the public.  Members of the 
public might feel intimidated by all sorts of things, unknown to those who are the 'intimidators'!  For example some people are just 

intimidated by large crowds, traffic wardens or even the police.  Do you suggest then asking these large crowds, be they in the 
supermarket, shopping mall etc to move on and they steal their possessions of they don't do so?  You need to get the wording right 

Q5: Too broad and subjective.  I may feel intimidated by two people wearing certain types of clothing.  Does that mean they have 
committed an offence?  And "likely to result in..."?  Who is to judge that?  I find this truly concerning.  Again, laws already exist to 

cover threatening and abusive behaviour and require a court to judge this. 

If two or or more people are breaking the law then that is a matter for the police.  Freedom of association and moving around the 
queens highway is a long established right in the uk - who are you to remove this and for whose benefit.   If the law is being broken 

then I reiterate this is for the law enforcement agencies 

Too ambiguous; could be interpreted in any number of ways and goes against human rights to be allowed freedom of association.  

Proposal 5:This is already covered by Section 5 of the Public Order Act, so is pointless and unnecessary. The existing law should be 
enforced before you start making new law! Proposal 6: should be enacted, but should be restricted to Sworn Police Officers only; This 
sort of power is quite draconian and I do not believe it should be available to PCSO's or, worse still Council Officers, who lack training, 
experience, the ability or inclination to use discretion in such matters. There are far too many 'jobsworths' around as it is and we don't 

need more interfering in people's lives in an insensitive manner. This power should be restricted to Sworn Police Officers only. 

There are already provisions given to the Police to deal with this issue. 
Further embellishment is not required. 

Council workers are not Police Constables and should never be given the same authority. Under any circumstances. 

5 is not needed as there are already harassment laws.  These proposals oppresses and demonizes the powerless. 

Unfortunately these individuals tend to hang around in groups in certain areas. By St. Georges Hall or by the Hospicecare shop. It 
seems to be worse since the change of  Gabriel House to the new organisaion. 

We are abandoning 'breach of the peace' in favour of stopping any gathering that causes just one person, anybody, alarm. I am quite 
alarmed that councillors have gathered and discussed this - should I call the police?  

Two homeless people sat together, minding their own business. Who are they offending? This is so woolly it's untrue. 

I have never been harassed by a homeless person in Exeter, but I have seen homeless people attacked, more than once, by groups of 
drunken revellers.  

I hope that these proposals be in-acted to protect everyone, and not used to penalise vulnerable individuals with mental health needs. 

Isn't this already the case 

I expect to see this proposal enforced vigorously against the large gangs of drunk men who roam around Exeter of an evening. I am far 
more frequently threatened, including being the victim of misogynistic and homophobic abuse, by drunk men than I am ever bothered 

in any way by homeless people of either sex. 

Hopelessly vague. This could simply be used by the police to disperse harmless people gathered on the street. It should be much more 
specific if you want to have this rule. 

too looseley worded, therefore open to abuse 

When people behave in a threatening manner to other people without provocation then the intimidators should be removed. 

How does one quantify behaviour which may seem unacceptable to some and perfectly ordinary to others?   As I said in my previous 
comments, drunk clientele gathering outside public houses to smoke can be guilty of displaying behaviour which is unacceptable and 

they are not necessarily dispersed. 
 

Homelessness is not a crime! 

I think these two questions are quite strange. I am disagreeing with them just because I am not sure of what are they supposed to 
bring: Isn't it already forbidden to intimidate or harass people? Of course, I don't want anyone to feel harassed or intimidated, but I think 

that the police already has all the legal backup required to do this job.  

Page 186



Proposal 5 is so vaguely worded it could apply to any behaviour that someone might deem "offensive" and therefore be applied totally 
arbitrarily. 

There is an intrinsic human right of assembly. The criteria for this proposal are subjective and therefore open to abuse. 

This matter is already covered legally. Exeter City Council employees do not need the power to enforce this; there is no need for this 
order. 

The entire policy contravenes the rights of the most vulnerable & impoverished group of people. Social cleansing is what to expect 
from Tory council not Labour. Where have your values gone when this repressive piece of garbage gets considered  Shame on 

Exeter..shame on Labour party... 

These actions are surely criminal already.   Why write new laws directed at a particular group when the laws already exist. 

RIDICULOUS. One person may be offended , harrassed etc etc by actions of another whilst hundreds arent. Depends on individuals 
sesitivity etc. GET A LIFE and do something worthwhile for Exeters people instead of harrassing vulnerable homeless people 

There is no question anywhere about the proposed fines - this is not practical as the majority of the people concerned do not have 
spare money and non-payment could criminalise them which will make their lives even worse and will not solve any of the problems 

they and we have 

Bit of street cleansing is it?  
 

Why not turn the resources required to police these people towards organisations who are trying to help solve the problems? 

This is a really important issue but isnt this already covered by law? Protecting against intimidation is much like protecting someone 
from opinion.  

I agree that all people should be free to go about their day or night free from intimidation and threatening behaviour but how can you 
possibly police this without having a constant police presence on every street? I would really like to know how the council intends to do 

this 

The phrasing is vague and could be taken in a variety of ways from people doing genuinely harassing/victimising/distressing things to 
people simply being offended at the existence of others. While taking action to prevent harassment, victimisation, and cruelty is 

important, guidelines need to be clear to avoid gross misuse. 

Please define what you mean by behaviour that could be considered intimidating etc - I would be concerned that your idea of 
intimidation is a homeless person asking for some lose change given the other proposals.  

Homeless people have to sleep somewhere and need help rather than being punished x 

This is sensible 

No, the proposal should not procede. By all means assist and proactivly help vunerable individuals but they should not be persecuted 
under the law for being disatvantaged. We know all too well individuals have fallen on hard times mostly due to government removal of 

benifits which is completely unacceptable. 

Again the police have authority to act in this area. 
 

 I do not believe the people of Exeter will have the confidence in the impartiality of any Council Officer.  
  

Much of Exeter is becoming private - for commercial use only - this has been to the serious detriment of public events and social 
cohesion. These proposals will only make things worse. 

 
  

Again the definitions are too vague - there should be specifics given of "distressing" etc. behaviour so that this rule cannot be 
misinterpreted. 

Don't  clear our urban streets of people , they are there sometimes to make money , sleep in place they feel safer and to get help  

They are so vague. Who decides what is intimidating and who regulates what people could reasonably claim to be intimidated by? I am 
concerned this would just become a legal excuse for discrimination. For example young people, people wearing hooded jumpers, black 

and minority ethnic people, or people from Eastern Europe, could be stopped from peacefully meeting in the streets if enough 
"in-group" by standers claimed to be intimidated. 

this is too broad and again open to misuse 

there are already laws in place to deal with breaches of peace and so on, this is too vague.  who is to make the judgement?  It means 
that people who behave in erratic ways end up being harrassed and criminalised. 

People have to be dealt with dignity, and in a helpful manner. It is difficult to assess what is intimidating behaviour , so consideration 
has to be made with both parties 

I agree with the proposals, as long as 'intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed' are genuine. Please do not use this as an excuse 
to persecute the homeless. 

Please interpret these terms reasonably and with humanity and compassion. 
 

Thank you. 

These are entirely dependant upon interpretation.  What may alarm me as a little old lady will be completely different to what will alarm 
a young person.  People who are mentally ill or indeed handicapped can often behave in slightly 'peculiar' ways. 

 
These are the steps towards a police state where  'big brother' is not only watching you but judging your every action without looking 

at human beings with problems who are without the mental and physical resources to deal with the situation they are in. 
 

Please do not mistake my answers as someone who believes that alcohol and drug taking should be freely allowed.  Indeed I hate 
loathe and detest those who sell drugs, particularly legal highs to vulnerable people. I equally abhor the problems associated with 

alcohol abuse and dependency.  
 

But these suggestions from the council come at it from completly the wrong angle.   
 

Address the problems  - educate and offer assistance - do not punish the victims. 

It is important that people can feel safe on the streets of Exeter but groups should be educated and dispersal of actually intimidating 
groups will be ineffectual and this will only serve to ruin people trying to have fun. 

Page 187



 

There is serious risk to 'freedom of association', one of my human rights, by heavy handed application of this prohibition. There is no 
clear explanation in FAQ about the Authority's statement 'safeguards to ensure'. 

safety for all is paramount. i.e. this includes safety of homeless people and rough sleepers. 

As long as the benchmark is reasonably robust and reasonable not at the level of imagined offence to the overly sensitive. There must 
be a reasonable belief of intimidation or proven harassment that would stand up in court and services to support people with nowhere 

to go not nimbyism. 

I do not support this as the definition of  "any member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed" is unclear.  
For instance, I personally get quite upset when I see people driving 4x4 motor vehicles ('Chelsea Tractors') in town centres, despite 

this being perfectly legal.  Would it be fair if I reported my alarm and distress about this situation and expected the vehicle to be 
'dispersed'? Probably not.   

I would expect these proposals to be a way for homophobes, racists, religious nuts and other such bigots to harass ordinary people. It 
is 'overkill' and encourages intolerance.  

Proposal 5 seems reasonable enough on the face of it but, once again, the wording presented is worryingly woolly. 
 

There are some very thin skinned and easily distressed &/or offended people in society, and this proposal would appear to potentially 
pander to them at the expense of the freedoms of other members of society. 

I do not condone intimidating behaviour. This is not a matter for law. It behaves all of us to treat others with respect and kindness. 

Groups of people soliciting for money in a coordinated way are particularly intimidating, more so than individuals that solicit money. 
There is sometimes an implied threat that failure to comply with a request for money could resort in unwanted consequences from the 

'gang' or group. 

This is surely covered by existing laws and doesn't need yet another by-law to be enacted. 

I think there is already sufficient legislation to stop people being a nuisance. 5 and 6 would give the police unnecessary powers which 
they could use against the unfortunate. 

VERY few people are a 'threat' to others or likely to behave in an intimidating way (or what is perceived to be) and there are enough 
powers already to deal with such individuals 

Too much of the Antisocial Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 

Will these proposals be used to police student and group drinking behaviour?  These are far more intimidating than the homeless 
community that these measures appear to be focused at 

Intimidation or the threat of violence is never acceptable  

Proposal 5 is far too vague - it could mean literally any sort of behavior. The fact that it is too vague makes proposal 6 unreasonable 
and open to abuse.  

Public Order Act - Maggies answer to Raves.  Not really a question of agreeing, it's simply a matter of using the law.  This survey is 
on the whole pretty useless as everything except for taking peoples bedding already has provision within the law.   

I really hope no money has been spent on this ridiculous waste of time.  Just use the law and get on with it please. 

"intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour" - these are such subjective terms. Are a group of young people with 
nowhere else to go likely to fall foul of this proposal? I fear so. Deal with the problems if and when they arise. Act on a complaint - don't 

use a sledgehammer to crack a nut. 

Surely, the police do this anyway?  I do think large groups of people should be dispersed if they are threatening to others.... but only if 
they are genuinely hassling, and aren't just getting on with their business. 

This is anti-democratic as it could be used to prevent legitimate protest 

This is a blanket ban on 'undesirables' as interpreted by others.  Good laws need to be specific and understandable, not just a charter 
for unfair and illegal discrimination. 

I agree large groups if homeless people are intimidating and more likely to cause actual anti social behaviour 

These are just rubbish! The legislation already exists to prevent just such behaviour. 

A bit too draconian with the existing wording.  It gives the police the right to disperse a bus queue, 

This is totally subjective.  Who says what's distressing? 

the definition of harassment, intimidation, distress or alarm is very woolly and open to interpretation. 
Does this mean anyone doing anything that someone else doesn't like, approve of, or in their opinion causes them distress or alarm.  
this is far to vague and needs to be thought through, we are in danged of using a sledge hammer to crack a nut, and loosing freedom 

of speech, and shutting down anyone with any opinion that does not comply with people making up the rules. 

This could be used to stop peaceful protest. There is nowhere on this consultation regarding busking. It should be allowed, it adds to 
the vibrancy of an area. 

I support this so long as it is enforced equitably - eg to move on religious preachers who make outrageous statements such as to 
cause alarm and distress.   

This again breeches the Human Rights Act and is in contravention of  freedom of association. My concern is that these proposals are 
very open to individual interpretation and could be used to stop free association and the right to free speech or peaceful protest. Once 

again they seem to be criminalising individuals who do not fit within the enforcing officers ideas of social norms. 
These proposals are based directly on Conservative Party ideology and have no place in Exeter.  

Proposals 5 and 6 are ludicrous. You would criminalise pretty much the entire student population of Exeter!!! I don't want to live in a 
sanitised fake version of Exeter, it is a safe city already and this measure, whilst intended to deal with "vagrants", is ripe for mis-use. It 

could also be used to forcibly stop our right to free protest. 

I don't understand what 5 and 6 are about. 

Page 188



I do agree with these proposals in general, in order to facilitate the police to keep the peace. However, these powers can be applied in 
a way that limits public free speech, peaceful dissent, and peaceful expression. To use such powers in this way may make for a more 
peaceful city centre, but at great cost to a democratic society.. Care must be taken in the writing of this proposal to ensure it does not 

step over the boundaries of public freedom to peacefully assembly, for to do so takes us away from a free society and moves us 
towards a more Fascist society. It is through small steps taken unwisely that such a transformation occurs. 

I love Exeter and I enjoy shopping and visiting within the city, but I would not wish such minor inconveniences to be legislated against 
to the point of loss of the freedom that we hold so dear in our society. A mature and patient balance must be achieved: all parts of 

society, from the most productive to the most vulnerable and also the most annoying aspects, make us a whole community, and not a 
divided one.  

There are already offences around harassment, inciting hatred etc. These laws are incredibly vague and open to interpretation. Would 
you be allowed to say boo to a goose? 

Such judgements would be far too subjective. Bored kids messing around could be sent on their way; it would be all too easy to make 
judgements against people's behaviour based on prejudice.  

'shall when ordered to do so'  Do what exactly?? You haven't stated any request?? 
 

If a Police constable believes it necessary yes. 

Again difficult but some people are very unwell mentally due to being on the street so can be intimidating.  I really wish we could 
section people if they are mentally unwell and are using.  even if it was a 2 week section just to give people a chance to feel ok come 

down of the drugs.  If they go out and use again thats up to them, but they have been given a window of opportunity 

This can be very easily twisted and interpreted to target all sorts of things - for example, a group of students leaving a pub after a few 
drinks and being a bit loud may be interpreted as having the possibility of intimidating someone. This proposal leaves open the option 

for people to be criminalised for essentially being a bit annoying. It is ridiculously authoritarian.  

Are you seriously trying to ban public demonstration? That is what this will do. What a ridiculous set of proposals. 

This is far too wide a  proposal. Some people will be intimidated by actions and behaviours that another will deem normal behaviour.  
Again discretion is required. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. The police already have adequate powers, including the power to issue 48 hour dispersal notices to those suspected 

of anti-social behaviour, and have no need of this summary PSPO power which would extend the power to criminalise people to 
'authorised officers' on the basis that they have a' reasonable belief' IS LIKELY to result in ANY member of the public being intimidated, 

harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and nebulous and has the effect of extending summary 
powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers undertake before becoming officers of the law. This 

proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely because they take a subjective view that their 
behaviour 'is likely' to cause distress to 'any' person. This is bad lawmaking and can be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of 

association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and the people they are paid to serve and protect. The 
police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Discretion needed, obviously. Lively lads and/or lasses are going to be lively. 

The reference to conduct which 'is likely to result in any member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by 
that behaviour' is overly broad, and places a prohibition on activities which do not in fact intimidate, harass, alarm or distress anyone, 

but which are considered 'likely' to result in this. 'Ordering' groups (i.e. anything more than an individual) to disperse has the potential to 
cause harm to those who are ordered around in this fashion: it is better that we look out for one another, and deliberately seeking to 

isolate those who may be in a group for their own safety is an antisocial act. 

"A manner that (...) is likely to result in any member of the public being intimidated" is way too vague. 

Proposal 5 and 6 are totally unnecessary as laws already exist to deal with people who threaten violent and aggressive behaviour 
and/or perpetrate such behaviour. These proposals are wide open to 'interpretation' as to being misused and abused due to the 

definition of actual intimidation or perceived intimidation. The wording of the proposal would allow anybody at all to determine whether 
the behaviour of a group of people is intimidating in general terms, rather than an individual being able to prove actual intimidation to 

themselves. This proposal is wide open to misuse as it could be used by anyone to disrupt and disband public groupings such as trade 
union strikes, protest gatherings and marches, peaceful demonstrations and public vigils. I believe the adoption of this proposal would 

be a contravention of human rights and freedom of speech.  

a)  I believe there are existing regulations to control the threatening behaviour that I would wish to have addressed.    The wording is 
too loose and too subjective. 

Too vague. This could very easily be used to discriminate against the most vulnerable members of our society. 

This is quite simply disrespectful behaviour to another human being which in a civilised society is intolerable and those who practice it 
must learn that bullying will not be considered acceptable in any way. 

As long as the authorities are acting with just cause- only taking action when there is really the threat of intimidation, bullying, etc. 

In parts it is reasonable, alarmed? I was alarmed to see Abu Hamza sat blocking Finchley High Street, preaching his hatred many 
years ago, unchallenged by the law on my way home to Devon,one Friday night, other occupants of the vehicle where raging at full 

volume. My granny would be alarmed to see a Gay Pride march, how are we going to quantify it? 

Everyone has the right to be protected from harassment and intimidation. I am assuming this will be used to tackle the large groups of 
hammered students who maraud around the city at night making life unpleasant for the rest of us?   

the intimidating behaviour of vagrants, drug-users, others means that times when we can feel safe and actually enjoy the amenities of 
our city are restricted.   That in itself limits the rights of residents/visitors and if the city continues to push for a high value night-time 
economy, it must include diners, those who simply want to walk, have a drink and enjoy being in the city.    If the additional powers 

help this, they are to be greatly welcomed. 

~En masse with their dogs -= and many do have dogs - forces je to turn back and try to find another route. Often their dogs are not 
under control and rush out to attack my small pet dogs which they seem to find amusing.  Their dog faeces is never picked by them;  
they form groups which are barriers in the city centre;  I am frequently 'shoulder-charged' deliberately and have been pushed into the 

road. Unacceptable as I am a rates and tax payer - and OAP! 

Yes, BUT must be applied equitably to all citizens.  Again, I am concerned that rough sleepers will be targeted.   

Page 189



 

Exeter City Centre is lovely and very safe in the daytime. At night it is not and most of these issues, apart from the begging takes place 
mostly in the evening. I do not come into the city centre in the evening - especially not Sidwell Street, Fore Street, South Street and 

parts of the high street due to fear of violence/feeling uncomfortable. I used to live in Manchester and these orders worked really well 
as long as they are managed well by the Police and PCSOs so I'm in support. Thanks 

I would agree with tihs as measure against groups of drunk or homeless people, but my concern is that this could be used to prevent 
individuals or groups protesting or expressing an opinion legitimately on public matters, since anyone can decide that they find such 

behavious offensive and this is too much discretionary power in official hands. It would need to be much mroe tightly defined for me to 
support it, to ensure it could not be misused. 

The police already have authority to disperse groups of people who are being a nuisance. There is no need for additional rules and 
regulations. 

 
In any case, if this undesirable law regulation is adopted, it should definitely not include buskers. 

Again if no Public Order Offence is being committed. The term ' feeling vulnerable and intimidated' is conveniently vague as to serve 
the interests of those who are 'experiencing' these feelings. These words are also subjective and can be easily manipulated and used 
by those in our community who would take advantage of such a proposal to rid their street, neighbourhood, etc., of persons they feel 

uncomfortable having in their community, especially for reasons which have nothing to do with public safety. 
 

This following comment relates to all the questions. 
 I have compassion for those living in the ways we are discussing here. My conviction is that but for the grace of God there go I. I am 

certain that if any of us had had the childhood and life events these dear people have experienced, it is probable we would be no 
different to them.   

The Solution 
 Improved mental health services, increased residential drug rehabilitation facilities, improved orphan child care in our society, 

provision of parenting skills to all new parents, and finally post traumatic stress treatment for soldiers returning from war zones, would 
reduce homelessness by 90% if not totally.    Thank you for asking. 

If Q5 was only on the basis of harassed or intimidated it would be correct for any individual.  The words alarmed or distressed should 
only apply to a wider section of society as individuals will get alarmed or distressed by different things which the majority will think is 

acceptable such as a demonstration on a specific issue.  The powers suggested go too far as worded. 

I only agree with 5 and 6 in that THEY ARE ALREADY ILLEGAL. Harrassment and Intimidation has been illegal for hundreds of years. 
Harassing people in large groups is likewise illegal. If a granny doesn't like the smell of a group of homeless people however. Or finds 

them alarming. That is not a reason to move people on. It's a very broad description. 

These proposals are perfectly fair. No matter what the context no one should have the right to act in an intimidating or violent manner. 

I agree with these proposals as I find harassment is fairly frequent, particularly as a young woman. However I think that a clear 
definition of what is considered harassment must be drawn up, so that this power cannot be misused in any way. 

I hope you target those who harass homeless people particularly when fueled by alcohol and peer pressure. 

Depends very much on your definition 'likely to', doesn't it? Are we employing thought police now? 

I think that it is too open to abuse. 

"Not behave either individually or in a group of two or more people in a manner that has resulted or is likely to result in any member of 
the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour."  

- is this not already harassment ?? Which is already a law, which can get you 6 months imprisonment - Protection from Harassment 
Act 1997.  

Crime and Disorder Act 1998 also deals with prejudiced harassment more specifically. 
Yes, of course people harrassing others should be ordered not to ?! I find it concerning that this needs to be enforced considering the 

protection we already supposedly have as citizens of the crown under the law of England and Wales. 
 

The Domestic Violence, Crime and Victims Act 2004 also deals with the idea of fear of violence i.e. the victim's subjective reaction to 
the situation. 

It would be nice if this was used to break up the large groups of squaddies, rugby players, and toffs who roam around at 2am shouting 
and leering. However it's going to be used to break up peaceful protests. I still support it because I haven't really cared about an issue 

since June 2012, but you might want to include exemptions for protests.  

What counts as harrassing / intimidating behaviour? This is highly subjective and open to abuse. I imagine that two or more wealthy 
well-dressed drunk people being noisy will not be subject to this law. This is unfair.  

Both of these proposals are already set down in law and can be acted upon. But the language of these two propsals could be used to 
supplement section 3 and 4, considering begging as a violent or intimidating behaviour. This lanuage of this proposal is dangerous as it 

is open to interpretation and intimidation of vulnerable groups within society, and is not required under the current legal framework. 

This will be difficult to enforce and behaviour such as that described will be difficult to objectively judge. Temporary dispersal of groups 
is not going to keep them from reforming groups. 

The right to make an organised, non-aggressive, political protest should NOT be eliminated. This is a democracy and our forefathers 
gave their lives to allow us to continue to have freedom of speech. Protesting is a human right in a democratic society. 

Police don't seem bothered at present. Drunk/druggies have exposed themselves to my kids before on Sidwell Street and have 
vomited in front of me - no police action at all. 

Young drinkers and graffiti criminals cause huge amount of issues. 
Exeter awash with drugs everywhere you turn.  

Page 190



 

The wording of this is sweeping. "... any member of the public being .... distressed" There is no qualification for this to be "reasonable", 
so technically, any behaviour that can be proven to distress a single person - however unusual their sensitivities - can be banned. For 

example, someone who has been bitten by a dog in the past might be distressed by the sight two dog walkers accompanied by 4 dogs, 
even if they were well behaved. More seriously, this type of provision could have been used in the past to disperse gay people who 

held hands on the street, mixed race families playing in the park, groups of wheelchair users out shopping. It could now lead to calls for 
groups of Muslim girls wearing veils or Christians on prayer walks being banned. The addition of "is likely to.." compounds this, leaving 

it open to the authorised officer's personal conception of what others object to. The blanket "in such a manner" is ridiculous - strictly 
speaking someone could be ordered to depart walking backwards with their hands up! Assurances in the covering notes that this is not 

the intention are useless = once the power is in place it can be used in future in ways that those proposing it now may not intend.  

I think this is far too sweeping and ignores my rights to speak out and demonstrate on matters which harass, alarm or distress me. 

People must be told clearly why they are being asked to 'move on' so there can be no accusations of unfair picking on individuals or 
groups. 

This is unenforceable, unless it specifically targets certain individuals - I can feel harassed/distressed by the police, bad music, people I 
don't like, shops... it is entirely subjective and likely to be abused to get rid of the poor and powerless.  For any of these measures, 

imposing a fine on someone who has no money is tantamount to imprisoning them directly - they have no way of paying or they would 
not be on the street - it will increase overcrowding in prisons and does not tackle the reasons behind homelessness. 

What does specified mean? This needs clarification. 

Could this be used to prevent people from gathering in groups to protest or demonstrate? Does this mean that football fans could not 
travel to or from a match in groups?  How do you decide if a member of the public could potentially feel intimidated or distressed? The 

wording is too fluffy and leaves far too much space for misuse.   
Overall these regulations will not solve the problems they are supposed to address, they will be difficult or impossible to enforce, there 

are more sensible, effective and civilized alternatives, they divert resources from the police and are generally nonsense .  

Concerns about victimisation and restitution as discussed above. 

We have a lot of issues with small groups of people hanging around waiting for a drug delivery. These proposals will help with 
dispersing these groups. 

Ditto Prop 1 
 

I repeat,  all Officers taking on this role should take the view that they are trying to be helpful, in firm friendly manner. 
This will be a difficult task,,,,,,,they should be paid extra!! 

With concerns. This needs to be monitored to ensure this does not lead to instances of discrimination or racial profiling. In addition, the 
voice of the person who is feeling intimidated needs to be listened to clearly and fairly. 

I moved to Exeter City because it used to be a welcoming place. I am now put off walking though parts of the town centre because of 
the begging, drunken and anti social behavior of the vagrants. Anything that gives the Council or the Police powers to sort the problem 

out would be welcomed by me. 

Please expand the area to include the flowerpot and recreation fields next to the flood prevention as far as Exwick. 

Of course I think individuals or groups who are genuinely threatening should be discouraged, dispersed or somehow stopped. But I 
worry that this power could be misused, to impinge on rights of free assembly and to demonstrate. Surely the police already have 

powers to deal with intimidating individuals or groups. Why are additional powers required? 

So long as this is not abused, or targetting younger people who need a space away from home and may be louder than the realise - 
again monitroing in place, and that this is targeted at those causing a real problem, not those who just need a quiet bit of friendly 

direction. 

Though I agree with the sentiment behind Q5 and Q6, I believe provision is already made for such behaviour under existing public 
order offences. I am therefore not in agreement.  

Again, some timid people will be intimidated by any homeless person or group. This is not reasonable and places all 'blame' on the 
most vulnerable in our society at the moment! 

If, and only if, a person or group have actually intimitaded someone, should they be asked to stop/disperse. 

The previous operation of dispersal orders has resulted sometimes in more harm than good. could be very heavy handed as some 
people who see a grouop of young people seem to think they are menacing. 

The proposals are incredibly vague and it does not take any great stretch of the imagination to see them being used to infringe some of 
the most basic civil rights that keep our democracy functioning. Large protests can be intimidating or alarming, someone exercising 

their right to free speech can sometimes be intimidating (even when it is not inciting hatred or amounting to assault). Furthermore this 
proposal does not require anyone to report being offender, it just stipulates behaviour that could be construed as intimidating or 

distressing. As such it gives the authorities the power to stop any action they deem to, on the basis that it could be "distressing" to 
members of the public. T-shirt slogans can cause people distress, loud music from shops and events can cause distress, seeing a 

clown can cause distress to someone with Coulrophobia (a fear of clowns). "Causing distress" is not a good basis for legislation as it 
can be interpreted to mean basically anything and so can be used arbitrarily. I don't know what the proposals are aimed at stopping but 

they can be interpreted so broadly that they could essentially be used to stop anything. As such these proposals have to be seen as 
the most sinister in a proposed Order that I am on the whole appalled by. 

Does this include St Thomas? 

Encourage people not to be embarrased about reporting harrassment and this possible prevention work. 

At the present time certain parts of the City Centre and Parks and Open Spaces are occupied by undesirable people and it needs to be 
sorted out by Prof People such as Devon Investigations who have had vast year of experience in this field. The Streets of Exeter need 

to be cleaned up and fast before it gets out of control and people get hurt . It is no good using such people as Community Patrol as 
they do not have the experience and again are not Police Trained.   

Don't we already have ASBOs and the Public Order Act 1986 for dealing with this sort of behaviour? 

Page 191



 

The dispersal proposal must be used in every case of behavior which meets the criteria laid down in this PSPO. It MUST be used for 
reported incidents involving transient noise in the early hours in residential streets frequented by University Students. 

 
The area covered by this PSPO must cover all sections of streets and open spaces habitually used by University Students. 

 
Arrangements must be in place such that the PSPO will be used without fear or favour against one segment of society over another. in 

other words research the option of empowering senior university Estate Patrol Staff at the same level as City Council Staff. Will 
uniformned Special Constables be empowered? 

Members of the public have a right not to be harassed on the street whilst going about their business. 

Everyone has the right to feel safe but fining people who have nothing is counter productive .  

It is far too vaguely worded to make legal sense, and so is very unsafe, and will make anyone who attempts to enforce it very 
vulnerable indeed, legally speaking. It is over 70 years since the UK legislature abandoned the idea of trying to prevent people from 

looking as though they might some time or one day commit a criminal act, because it proved impossible to reconcile this kind of 
acting-on-suspicion with any judicial process that the Courts were able to recognise as securely evidence-based, and rooted in real 
sound jurisprudence. By adopting this approach the Council will simply open the doors widely to complainants asking the Courts to 

award civil damages   which will have to come out of my rates. After all the dismaying developments on stop-and-search (etc.) over 
the last 20 years it chills my heart to see Exeter City Council going down the same route towards discrimination and 

officially-sanctioned harassment of innocent individuals. The fact is that any such provision will inevitably be applied almost exclusively 
against harmless groups of young people, harmless groups of older people and homeless people,  and harmless people who are 
visibly either BME or from a religious minority. That's what's been happening with stop-and-search and ethnic profiling, and I am 
dismayed to think Exeter City Council is stepping back to the worst days of the 1930s, and the almost comically obsessive and 

repressive home secretaryship of William Joynson-Hicks! 

This will negatively affect the most vulnerable people in our society. These people need help rather than being victimised and 
persecuted.  

The acts of persecution and discrimination of the minority and vulnerable groups are abhorrent and comparable to some of the 
measures introduced by the Nazi Party before the Second World War. 

Mahatma Ghandi said "A nation's greatness is measured by how it treats its weakest members." Based on this quote, if these 
proposals are introduced, this Nation would be quite distant from greatness. 

As previously stated, there currently exists sufficient laws (Public Order Act 1986 & Section 35  dispersal notices) to deal with such 
criminal behaviour where it threatens others or makes others feel harassed etc. The councils proposals are too broad and have no safe 

guards for mis-use, and finally it is unnecessary. The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad law-making and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 
These proposals are all far to "1984" in thought and origin, please tackle the source of the problem - why in our rich and beautiful 

country are there still areas of wealthy cities such as Exeter - which resemble more a Dickension novel ?  We seem to be reverting to 
the bad old days and these proposals emphasis this all too clearly.  

Thank you for giving me the opportunity  to comment on your proposals.  

I would hope that proposals 5 and 6 would apply to anyone, why are we targeting the homeless, the most vulnerable in our society. 
Where pray do you think they will go, they can't just disappear, as I am sure you would like them to. I think the council should face up 
to their responsibilities and make sure these vulnerable unlucky people are safe from harm and have food and shelter, that's the least 
we should offer. I am outraged and saddened by all these hard-hearted proposals when we live in such a rich country, there should be 

no homeless. I just hope the people who have devised these proposals never find themselves or their families in such a situation 
themselves. 

The Police already have these powers 

Such actions require a level of personal judgement that could be easily abused. Again there are already laws in place that should be 
applied in circumstances where the "peace" is being disturbed.  

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. 

There is  vast difference to how the general public may feel intimidated from one person to another, 

There are already existing powers that can adequately serve the function of tackling anti-social behaviour and it is right that these be 
exercise by police officers rather than individuals with less training, particularly in this subjective area. There is no need for any 

extension to these powers.  
 

Thanks for taking the time to read my responses.  

Page 192



Use the law, there are sufficient powers on the statute book. 
I am a former police officer and a worker with homeless people, hence my comments are backed by experience. I am also a former 

Labour party member, so I am shocked that the party I used to work for is promoting these inhumane and authoritarian policies against 
the most vulnerable members of British society who are suffering from both physical health and mental health difficulties. 

Good quality care and support are what people need, in housing that enables their health needs to be met. At present, you are 
condemning them to an early death as most homeless men and women die in their forties. Compassion and empathy must be your 

watchwords. 
Yours sincerely, 

Chris Rees 

i don;t agree with moving people on because they MIGHT distress or alarm a member of the public, we are all "members of the public" 
and some individuals can be extremely intolerant, such people should not be able to prevent groups of people meeting each other if 

they are causing no harm. I am myself a retired GP and a grandmother and I feel some of these proposed laws are likely to 
discriminate against young people and the vulnerable. I am supportive of efforts to keep the streets safe but feel that the current laws 

against being found drunk and disorderly are probably sufficient. 

This is highly ambiguous and subjective and would be very likely to spoil my next pub crawl. 

Groups of people are often seen by individuals as intimidating so for their own sake it is better to be on a 'pitch' as an individual. 
However, there is safety in numbers regarding being on the streets overnight and I do not think people should be moved on if they 

have not put  themselves in a place which is dangerous  to them or others. This surely does not breach Prohibition 5 as it shouldn't be 
perceived as intimidating. 

I agree, but would urge caution and clear definition of behaviors meeting the threshold for being considered intimidating etc 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is unnecessary.  

Once again, the police already have adequate powers to maintain public order.  To extend these powers to Council officials who do 
not have the necessary extensive training and experience to deal with these situations would be potentially dangerous.  Making 
Council officials into a secondary 'police force' is not the way to tackle this problem or any of the others dealt with by this survey. 

Again this is covered by existing law. 

The proposals are altogether unnecessary and will create yet further divisions in our already increasingly unequal and uncaring 
society. Please not from a LABOUR council. We have enough lawas without adding this very broad measure which does not have 

sufficent checks and baances in it,.  PLEASE DO NOT PROCEED. 

If the homeless are cold, hungry and have nowhere to go for such basic needs as urination, or defecation with no hope of any money, 
they are bound to be a tad miffed (understatement) and frustrated.   Once you have found homes for all homeless people, I suggest 
you stop this form of ethnic cleansing, and do what you, as civil servents are supposed to do - SERVE your public, and especially the 

most vulnerable within society.   I can't think of any group more vulnerable than the homeless.   Stop punishing them and start 
assiting them 

No allowance is shown, in these words, for people who have mental health issues 

This proposal is ambiguous and can be used to stop proper demonstrations which protect our rights. 

Who will be an `authorised officer`? Police should deal and certainly, such power should not be vested in anyone else - too much 
scope for personnel with power problems. 

Surely this is already covered by existing laws? 

This would give licence to the ignorant, uncaring and those intimidated by media scare stories to harass those homeless for no fault of 
their own, 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

These seem to be too general and open to interpretation. Intimidating, aggresive and/or offensive behaviour can be dealt with under 
law and reasonable regulation supporting this is fine. However, the pre-emptive assumption of this behaviour (and to whom this then 
applies) is not fine, nor is the vague wording about what causes or might cause (some) people distress or alarm mixed in with specific 

reference to what's actually aggresive and antisocial behaviour, as if they're the same thing. 

Groups of people are not necessarily a problem. Also, the entire general public often go out in groups from time to time. 

5 and 6 are too open to misinterpretation or to abuse. The normal law should be able to deal with problems of this kind - it does not 
need an extra prohibition for homeless people  

They should not be dealt with violently if possible, it is more likely to spark further confrontation and resent 

I agree that no-one should be intimidated or accosted by anyone, however, there are already adequate laws to deal with such 
situations, and I don't see the need for further legislation by local authorities. Once again, it seems homeless people are being treated 
like criminals, as if they have a choice in their lifestyle and find their circumstances beneficial. People rarely choose to be homeless, 

and anyone who has ever experienced such hardship (as I have many years ago) would never begin to countenance these proposals. 
These are human beings!, not vermin that need to be expunged. They should be helped so they don't have to beg, and not suffer 

further victimisation. This problem will never be solved whilst homeless human beings are treated like refuse to be cleared from the 
streets out of sight and mind. 

A society that treats its most vulnerable in such a fashion is demonstrating a far more antisocial attitude that is shameful, deeply 
abhorrent and indefensible to anyone that considers themselves civilised.  

Page 193



Proposal 5 has a far too wide definition and anything can come under it so no i do not agree. It needs tightening up, e.g. Anyone using 
abusive language or threatening verbal or physical behaviour. ( which personally i have not experienced from homeless people only 

very occasionally a drunk, and i live in the city centre!) 
 

Do not agree with proposal 6 as that implies agreeing with proposal 5, which in its present form i totally disagree with 

Isn't this already an offence? 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Agree, so long as the definition if alarmed and distressed is carefully considered such that it doesn't simply result in further persecution 
of already seriously troubled people such as the homeless 

My understanding is that it is already a criminal offence, under the Public Order Act 1986, to behave in a manner which causes alarm, 
harassment and distress to other people. I also understand that there are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are 
engaging in antisocial behaviour, including Section 35 dispersal notices, which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 

hours. Thus, the PSPO proposal appears to be unnecessary - it is also too broad, and does not have enough safeguards.  The 
existing legislation should be used, and should be applied by trained Police Officers, to target genuine examples of antisocial 

behaviour. 

They constitute too much harassment of people 

A dispersal time should be specified, however I think this Provisioner's can already be met from within existing legislation. 

Such behaviour is already covered under the Public Order Act.  These proposals do not give adequate safeguards. 

We are supposed to be an example world wide and this proposal is in its way as fanatical as some of the ideas that IS and fanatical 
groups.- national front being one of them. We need to be focus in on the causes of Homelessness. Agreed not everyone wants to 

change but the majority of people Ho are on the streets is not their first choice 

I am appalled that a Labour council is considering putting a policy in place which is legalises the abuse of the poorest and most 
vulnerable people in our society. These people need our help. They are not criminals. 

There are plenty of laws already in place to deal with aggressive or violent behaviour. Begging or sleeping rough are not criminal 
offences in this country and to make them subject to sanctions in this manner is reminiscent of the policies put in place in Germany 

under the Nazis. 

Proposal 5 is too vague and subjective - what one person deems to be intimidating behaviour is entirely normal to another. 
Proposal 6 is discriminating to those who do not have a home to gather in. 

As mentioned before, there are laws in place that enable the authorities to tackle antisocial behaviour. This witch hunt against 
marginalised and vulnerable people is uncalled for. 

A designated officer being a council official? This is a public space for use by the public. Being in a group of two or more people does 
not mean that they are committing a crime. Giving these powers to people who will not have the required legal background, training 

and understanding is dangerous and should be avoided. 

Yes, so-called persons in authority, should not gather in groups of two or more and/or intimidate, harass, alarm or distress by their 
behaviour, any member of the public > 

I get this in my job anyway, so what's new? 

Who decides what constitutes intimidating, harassing, alarming or distressing behaviour?  If implemented, these broad powers would 
represent serious interference with basic liberties (speech, association) and could be used for highly questionable purposes.  I am 

totally opposed to these proposals. 

As long as this is ONLY  used when tough sleepers really are harassing or intimidating the public. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Who is to decide what is a breach. This is the same type of legislation that eventually led to the holocaust.. Millions died to stop this 
type of authoritarian rule. 

Again Police already have powers to deal with these situations and any additional legislation is not needed and a waste of public 
money. 

I have reservations; "distress" is subjective.  What if some old person is "distressed" by a couple of gay men or women kissing or 
holding hands?  Are they to be harassed?  "in such a manner as may be specified"?  What does this even mean?  "Leave the area 

on foot, by taxi, by hopping or on roller skates, I order you by the law."  Silly, I know, but clarification is needed.   
These proposals seem half thought out. 

Page 194



I take issue with the subjectivity of the person or persons being 'harrassed' or' intimidated'. I also feel that this proposal 
disproportionately targets young people, who are more likely to form large groups, without deliberately intimidating anyone.  

 
Effectively this proposal offers powers to deal with the fact that older people are unjustly intimidated by groups of young people. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

I believe this is  to be a heavy hsnded response, that is not necessary. 

This is far too general.  Furthermore, it could apply as much to ordinary rowdy citizens on a Friday night as to the homeless.  Surely 
existing legislation must cover this situation. 

who setsthe time limit? 

The terms as they stand (being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour) are all subjective and would be difficult 
to prove and could easily be misinterpreted in certain circumstances. Certain groups, mendaciously stereotyped could find themselves 

exposed to accusations of this nature and such a policy could easily used to justify wrongful targeting. 

I agree, with reservations.  My own experience of such gangs is that they have no interest in me and I am unlikely to come under 
attack, but others might find their behaviour intimidating, and, yes, they should be dispersed.  But there is no mention in this survey of 

what measures should be taken and how they should be implemented. 

the interpretation of this is too vague and subject to all manner of interpretation. It needs to be more clearly specified.  

None of the proposals seem unreasonable to me but reading in the media and online your proposals included charging the homeless 
of an offence therefore giving them a criminal record .If this is the case it is really going to help their case for the future .Regarding 

employment housing resulting in not being able to claim any benefits .Why don't you offer a little bit of charity and support ,Or is that 
too much to ask of Exeter  Thanks 

I believe that there are already laws that can deal with this sort of behaviour.  

As we don't yet live in a Police state, I would prefer to retain the freedom for all citizens rather than the vulnerable. Address the real 
issue instead of persecuting the vulnerable. 

Yet again, a totally unnecessary proposal.  
The police are already able to use such powers if necessary. 

It seems that you are proposing to allow powers that are aimed at intimidating, alarming, distressing and harassing members of the 
public by "authorised persons". 

Not a good idea, and a step towards authoritarianism.  

There is an implication that the supposed threat is a one way track but these poor, often sad, frequently ex military, people are on the 
receiving end of abuse from many. If they are unable to gather together they are almost certain to suffer abuse, especially the relatively 

few females. 

Again, guilty with no opportunity to prove innocence; open to abuse by the 'authorised' persons; able to prevent demonstrations etc etc 

"Not behave either individually or in a group of two or more people in a manner that has resulted or is likely to result in any member of 
the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour." 

 
I find a lot of the behavior of members of the public cause me to become alarmed or distressed.  Such as people flaunting their 

unnecessarily expensive possessions (clothes and electronic goods).   
I think that it is hard to define what is offensive to people because we all have different tastes and morals. 

I would find it very upsetting to see two or more council workers 'moving on' a homeless person just so that some rich member of the 
public was not 'offended'. 

 
 

(Also could the person who writes these surveys please make use of a spell check prior to publication).   

Another job for the police with better training. 

Provide a refuge for them and ask the churches to open their doors to them. Some of them are ex servicemen and some with mental 
health problems and you are treating them in a disgusting way 

Surely this is covered by common sense? And no doubt common law. 
 

 Exeter is a beautiful city. It's not paradise ... yet. 

I think it is very difficult to judge whether proposal 5 and 6 can be implemented in an objective way as different people have different 
perceptions. This could quite easily lead to demonisation and harassment of homeless people. 

These are covered under Section 5 of the public order act and are currently enforced daily. No next a powers are needed. 
 

Thank you for your time in reading my responses. 
Kind regards. 

If we assume that drunkenness at night is the cause of such gatherings, the the council need to take a more active role in preventing 
people getting drunk. If these people are not drunk asking them to move away should surely be enough. 

this is not a democracy..this is more like a totalitarian state. 

Again, this is a proposal that remind of fascist law of aggregation, and can be used politically. If a person commits a crime then is going 
to be prosecuted; if not, there is no reason why the point 5 and 6 should be enforced 

Page 195



To vague unclear and open to interpretation.Is this in relation to threat or danger or a means to move homeless people to somewhere 
else? 

Again we have heavily loaded language masquerading as sweet reasonableness. I would certainly be both alarmed and distressed at 
seeing e.g. a mother with two small children begging for food in a public place - but the suggestion that the response to such 

circumstances should be to drive those poor people away and insist that they hide their misfortune from those of us who are more 
fortunate is to my mind an inhumane and inhuman proposal, unworthy of any civilised human being. [Again, spellchecker wants 

'civilized' rather than 'civilised' - a further sad sign of the times.]  PLEASE apply principles based on humanity rather than faceless, 
heartless bureaucracy.  

This is only possible if people have homes to go to. Otherwise and dispersal of persons will just result in the problem being moved 
somewhere else, which is not  a solution to the problem! 

i'm sure you already have enough rules and regulations in place about these public order issues why do you need more ? 
as a labour council you should be ashamed of yourselves to be trying to implement these uncompassionate responses. 

People can intimidate and encroach others to do things by playing on other's weaknesses, then lies can be span and the wrong person 
gets blamed. Kids should be allowed to be free, and people should learn to love more and care for each other. This situation is best 

sorted out between the perpetrators and the victim. 

This could apply to any group of people, not just the homeless, the Police already have the authority to move people on who are 
causing a disturbance. Intimidatory behavior by any group of people should be dealt with by dispersal - IF it is not part of a democratic 

protest. We have the right to protest, the right to free speech. These proposals have the potential to be misused and should be 
opposed. This is not yet a Police state. 

Because there are already laws against this and, no matter how carefully these proposals are worded, they are simply meant to target 
and criminalize the poor and homeless. 

I find Proposals 5 and 6 worryingly vague, and am concerned that they could be used as an excuse to criminalise homeless groups 
when no real offence can be determined. 

"is likely to result in any member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour."  A disgraceful, 
'wolly', and so poorly defined action as to be derisable were it not to be found in your proposals. 

I have some concerns as to what may be described as intimidating etc and feel this could be manipulated by those who are seeking to 
have belongings confiscated However I have on one occasion felt intimidated by 1 of a group of just 3 and moved on swiftly myself 

Less mobile or elderly people may feel more vulnerable and this is not acceptable 

However, we are witnessing the subtle intimidation of these individuals and their human rights on a daily basis; thereupon, we can 
reasonably assert that Police and local authority covert intimidation is the main factor here, period.   

This is such an open ended law with no definition at all. What offends me might not offend you? Who decides? Where are they going to 
be "moved on" to? What happens if they all say "No" - going to lock them all up? How much does that cost? At least they get a bed and 

a meal. 
Has to be cheaper and better to run a proper homeless person's hostel, one that accepts all comers, not just those sent by DWP or 

whatever?  

Q5. Certainly in cases of intimidation and harassment. However what constitutes alarm and distress? Some people are way to easily 
offended and upset and would say the very presence of a homeless person or a few drunk people out having a good time is alarming. 

These people should be encouraged to stay home in the evening! 
Q6. Given the Prohibition 5 was rather woolly this is likewise the case too. If the public is genuinely being harassed or intimidated then 

merely dispersing the group causing the problem is likely only to be temporary and ineffective. 

The wording is too vague.  Harrassed or alarmed yes but distressed?  It can be very distressing to just see a group of young 
vulnerable people out in the cold with nothing.  I find that distressing every day.  But I don't want them to be dispersed just because 

their very presence distresses me.  
Again, a group of drunken students certainly should be dispersed. They are foul.  But I suspect this law is only to being brought in to 

make the lives of those most vulnerable, more difficult and less protected. 

When in a group who find themselves in a place where others are being antisocial have the right to complain to them about their 
behaviour. The bad behavers may be alarmed by being told to stop intimidationg the first group. When police arrive they wont know 

who started it. Dispersal for a set period of time means people who were picked on then have to separate and go in different directions. 
Their evening out and transport arrangements can be compromised just because they ran into a group of antisocial people and were 

deemed by police to also need dispersing on the tit for tat sayso of the antisocial group. 

Better definition of what may be a breach of the order needs to be defined. 

As long as the authorised officer knows the law and has been properly instructed in the execution of that law - i.e. a policeman. 

the wording of these proposals is far too subjective and open to individual interpretation. I sounds like it could mean that anyone in a 
group of 2 or more in public minding their own business and of no threat to anyone could be asked to disperse for no good reason. 
This sounds like the kind of power that only a police-state would suggest. There is already provision within the law for dealing with 

anti-social behaviour without trying to impose dispersal of anyone a council official or other individual may not "like the look of"! 
Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 

to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 
35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 

not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Again there is nothing here that could be not be done under existing legislation albeit with a little more effort.   
This comment applies to all the proposals.  There is a recurring theme here of " ordered by an authorised officer" which is a licence for 
opinionated bully boys to have a field day.  This order is a disgrace to Exeter.  Get rid of it immediately and give the money you would 

spend on enforcing it to somebody can actually do something about the problems on our street such as St Petrocs. 

Page 196



Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.   

My answer to this is a yes and no. Yes I think this should be extended to persons acting is this matter dispute their housing situation. 
No I don't agree that 3 homeless souls should be separated at a difficult time in their life. The problem with this is how the authorised 

officer interprets this part of the proposal. 

Please give a real and accurate definition of when this can take place and what exact behaviour is a breach of this. I feel this is very 
open to abuse by those individuals making a judgement in the situation, and very likely to be grounded in prejudice.  

These regulations could work if combined with a sanction-backed requirement that officers must not act in a way that discriminates 
against poor or destitute people who have no alternative way of meeting their needs, and that officers should be required to assist such 

people to find food, clothing and shelter. 
Without such requirements, it people on their uppers are placed at the mercy of officers, who may be prevented from exercising their 

compassionate consciences in such cases by the proposed regulations. 

Surely existing legislation covers this. It is distressing that a labour-led council should resort to such draconian measures. 

There are already laws in place to protect the public from harassment and intimidation which are well founded and correct. Proposal 6 
can extend this to campaigners and protesters carrying out peaceful activity which in no way harasses the public. It is about informing 
members of the public who are free to either ignore the campaigners or support them by their signing petitions etc. Again this is an ill 

thought out proposal largely based on totalitarian control. It is a form of tyranny! 

Proper legislation is already in place. This relies on a lot of judgements being made by the "authorised officer". This would spell the end 
of public protest, for one thing. And some people think we still live in a free country. More fool them. 

Such behaviour can already be addressed by the police. There is no need to empower mere council employees in a way more suited 
to a twentieth century dictatorship. 

This soinds too much like giving powers to the police to disrupt and disperse any group of people not to the Council's liking 

While I would certainly agree with proposal 6 otherwise, the broad language of proposal 5 makes it impossible to agree with the 
package overall. I can certainly imagine many legal problems arising from this provision without very clear and specific definitions of 

terms like alarmed or distressed, and while I can see the legal need to include "...has resulted..." into the wording of proposal 5, I worry 
that this would also require very clear boundaries before being desirable in an overall context. If the risks are losing the right to 

'assemble' in a 'group' with even one other person in case your overall appearance alarms people nearby, the law needs to be airtight, 
or more desirably, not exist. After all, these are public rights of way in a supposedly tolerant and respectful democracy, I should think 
that we can all reserve our right to be offended or distressed by groups of other people, otherwise we can no longer live in a pluralist 

democracy.  
 

Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to comment on some of your recent proposals, I hope that my comments may be helpful or 
constructive in some way, or at least an accurate representation of the concerns of someone who has lived on the outskirts of Exeter 

for some time. 
 

Otherwise, keep your heads up and hope you're all having a happy new year  

Quite unnecessary.  Legal remedies already exist to deal with unruly behaviour. 

This is extremely vague and is totally dependent on what others deem 'initimidating'. A group of teenagers just hanging out together 
could be seen as 'intimidating' by some and again this measure as worded appears to be unnecessarily criminalising people.  

The enforcement needs to be proportionate to the distress caused, carefully and if possible politely exercised. 

look after these poor people - do not bully them 

There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour.The police and council should use 
their existing powers to target genuine examples of antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Treating the homeless like criminals is grossly unfair and unkind. Often they cannot cope with the demands of living "normally" or have 
been let down by socialservcices, nhs or dwp in getting  support they need. I think that I would need alcohol or drugs to endeavour to 

survive on the streets. 
 

Please show them compassion. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Stop trying to victimise the poorest people. You should be ashamed of your proposals. 

Alarm, or distress is too subjective an experience to say that it should not be allowed that people cause this experience. 
However, it should not be allowed that persons, individually or collectively act in 'order to be' alarming or distressing, or, likewise, in a 

manner which the vast majority of people would consider to be alarming or distressing. 
 

If, with the amendment to Proposal 5, here above, an individual or collective group of individuals purposefully, or intentionally, behave 
in a manner likely to cause the vast majority of persons witness to it to be alarmed or distressed, then they should be cautioned and 

asked to disperse, as in Proposal 6. 

Page 197



Question 5 is worded in such a way that any group of 2 or more could be implied to be threatening this is a challenging situation and I 
think that this needs to be proved to be the case individuals perception of what is threatening or harassing varies enormously and I 

would not like to see this applied liberally without this being proved.  Officers with responsibility for this would need to apply it 
responsibly!! 

Again I think this is valid however we should also make it a requirement that whichever authorised officer orders the disperse he/she 
offers access to support groups or shelters so that people can stay together in a safer environment.  

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

We have existing laws for all this. 

There are already satisfactory laws in place to protect the public from genuinely intimidating scenarios-in which case the correct people 
to intervene are and always will be the police not a council worker or anyone pretending to police the public. 

The Public Order Act already covers this type of behaviour. This is just targeting a vulnerable group. 

Do we not have laws already that cover this? 

It is very important you use and authorised agents such as Devon Investigations ltd who are fully trained in such matters. It would be a 
bad idea to use such people as Community Patrol as they lack experianced in such matter and are NOT POLICE TRAINED and I 

could see offenders turning on Council Staff and the Coucil would be liable under health and safe regulations ect  

5 is too vague in its wording.  Likewise for 6.  There must be other laws that prevent threatening behaviour. 

This sounds like a public disorder offence, and should be dealt with accordingly.   

Proposal 5 is to vague and open to abuse. Anybody could claim to feel harrassed just because they don't like the look of a homeless 
person. 

Completely agree that everyone has a right to feel safe and free from harassment on the streets of Exeter! I think there would need to 
be a clear set of guidelines as to what counts as behaviour that requires dispersal - it may well be that people do not realise they are 
causing distress, and when addressed will change their behaviour. I would hate to see this proposal being targeted towards specific 

groups of society. If there is a real cause for dispersal, such as extreme distress caused by violence etc then the situation would need 
to be managed accordingly to protect those at risk. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

As long as the persons are not being intimidating and are going about their business in an orderly manner even if in a group they 
should not be bothered. 

So any street artist, busker etc could be asked to move on because some council jobsworth decides they are likely to distress 
somebody who won't like it??!!! They will move all the women and children who are enjoying themselves watching a juggler or dancer 

entertaining in the street?! Don't you realise that you are giving people authority to abuse and cause more trouble than they are 
supposedly  stopping or preventing?! I seriously believe the council needs to rethink its proposals, reword them, define them to 

specific cases, don't leave it open to human judgement. Of course stop a group of roudy drunks causing havoc on the streets, stop 
them urinating in shop doorways, stop people shooting drugs like heroin etc in public but DO NOT criminalise the homeless and 

innocent and harmless street artists, do not cause more distress to those already vulnerable. Put the time, effort and resources into 
helping them.....not this, for the sake of mankind, not this! 

Sounds like the council guy could also stop demostrations by other groups of people not in the interest 
 Of democracy . 

Care needs to be taken in ascertaining what the upset or intimidation entails as some people are overly sensitive and they may just be 
pleading for help from unsympathetic passers by that cannot appreciate the severity of the situation for the homeless. 

Laws for 5 already exsist I believe. 

Whilst I agree that no one should be  "intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by" the behaviour of others, that should be 
reactive, not proactive.  Currently if I feel intimidated or distressed by the behaviour of others I can seek the support or protection of 
the police who already have powers to provide the necessary assistance.  What 'might' or might not fall under this is too subjective 

and too much dependent upon the 'authorised officer' guessing how others may feel.  It is too easily abused. 
 

  This proposed order offers me, as a resident of central Exeter, any improvement in my environment, whilst it has a disproportionate 
negative impact on vulnerable groups. 

Teenagers outside Mcdonalds are the biggest issue, and always ignored by the police unless forced to act. They play football in the 
lower part of the high street without any intervention by police. They also pick on homeless people and get away with it, usually 

causing the homeless person to be arrested 

Page 198



 

Alarmed or distressed need better defining.  
 

What would the threshold for an officer taking action? Would this be if a police officer thinks that a member of public 'may' become 
alarmed or distressed, or when a member of public actually has become alarmed or distressed?  

 
On the face of it this sounds like a great idea, but I think this could quickly become overbearing if the threshold is set too low.  

I support this proposal as long as it is applied to all groups including charities and religious groups.  

The council cause alarm and distress all the time. So no, I don't agree with it.  

Its too broad and could be used to prevent all sorts of legitimate behavior 

Firstly, harassment and intimidating behaviour can already be dealt with by the police. 'Alarm' and 'distress' however are dangerously 
subjective. Would you arrest people taking part in a Pride march if there were other people present who were 'distressed' by it?  

Concerning proposal 6, dispersal powers have been shown to have several negative effects where they have been used on young 
people. It is an area of policy that blurs distinctions between civil and criminal processes, damages relations between the police and 
targeted groups, reducing inhibitions towards future illegal activity, brings non-offenders into contact with the criminal justice system 

which again increases the likelihood of offending in future, as well as putting dispersed individuals at greater risk of becoming victims of 
crime themselves by driving them out of well-lit, busy areas and into areas with less passive surveillance, and overall represents an 
unjustified attack on civil liberties. Please see Crawford, A. 'Criminalizing sociability through Anti-social Behaviour Legislation' for a 

detailed analysis: http://yjj.sagepub.com.libezproxy.open.ac.uk/content/9/1/5 

Who will define such behaviours? Personally I might feel harassed and intimidated by groups of young men or women wnjoying a 
boisterous night out on Cathedral Green. Does that mean that I can demand that every student group enjoying a night of youthful 

exuberance shall be moved on? Will the same regulations be applied to all groups? I believe proposals 5 and 6 open the possibility of 
groups who are from outdoor cultures, groups of people with mental health issues and individuals with nowhere to live being unfairly 
discriminated against. The whole of these proposals, taken singly snd together, seek to criminalise those who are already finding life 
difficult, who have already suffered real turmoil on their lives and who need compassionate understanding and practical help from our 
community. Instead, these proposals seek to impose unpayabke fines and to use the blunt tool of regulatory powers to solve complex 

problems that need well planned and funded interventions by a variety of agencies and individuals.  

As with the earlier proposals - this is far too broad.  What exactly is a behaviour that is 'likely to result in any member of the public 
being harassed, distressed etc.....'?  It is not clear who are the officials who would be enforcing this.  Are there not enough police to 

carry out such enforcement under existing legislation - eg. the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003?   

The weakness (and danger) of all the proposals - and 5 & 6 in particular - is the discretion given to 'authorised officers' (both PCSOs as 
well as 'council officers) to make judgements about 'likely' offences that may be committed. First, we are given no indication about who 
the council officers may be, what training they may have and the validity of their actions within the legal  and criminal justice system. 
Too many grey areas. It is also important to note that young people in particular often do gather in numbers that may offput passing 

members of the public, words and gestures may be used that intimidate and dispersing such may well make those young people either 
more vulnerable or merely displace the deemed potential offence to somewhere else. Bringing young people within the criminal justice 

system when other methods od dealing with problems is a sure recipe for trouble down the line.  

there are already laws in place to deal with this type of issue and a policeman to deal with it 

This is too vague. It would be too easy for someone to claim they felt intimidated, harassed etc simply to get the "undesirables" to 
move on. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours.  
 

The PSPO proposal is too broad and does not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need 
of this summary PSPO power which would extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have 

a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that 
behaviour. This wording is vague and nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the 
extensive training that police officers undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise 

a person, or group of people purely because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  
person. This is bad lawmaking and can be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship 

between local authority officers and the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing 
powers to target genuine examples of antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

this is too broad reaching.. to act in a manner that is likely to cause distress to a member of the public. simply being homeless, 
unwashed etc may cause distress or discomfort to the public. 

what behaviour might distress or intimidate "any member of the public" is entirely subjective. Personally i am distressed and intimidated 
by small children getting in my way, and by people with dubious claims to authority interfering with the lawful everyday conduct of free 

people 

The wording of Prohibition 5 is far too vague, and again relies too heavily upon the subjectivity of the authorised person. The members 
of the public are incredibly diverse, and so to attempt to restrict groups of people from causing ANY member of the public to feel 

intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed seems deeply infeasible.  

So long as common sense is applied.  

I'm conflicted about both of these. Intimidation is horrible, but there needs to be sensitivity to the right of assembly. It's not an easy call, 
and my vote could have gone either way in both cases. 

They have a right to remain where they are, but should not be a threat to the public. 

Page 199



 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power, which would 

extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief . This wording is 
vague and nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that 

police officers undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of 
people purely because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad 

lawmaking and can be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local 
authority officers and the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target 

genuine examples of antisocial behaviour. 

Needs to be more carefully defined but in principal this is okay 

Police already have powers to move people on if they are causing a nuisance 

I am concerned that this may be an attempt to restrict lawful protest and demonstration which may result in complaints being made by 
others who do not agree with the views expressed that they find such protest "intimidating, alarmiong or distressing". 

Yes ,- providing the mentally ill are not targeted,- but I understand there are already similar powers. 

There are already sufficient responses to unlawful or unruly behaviours. Further bylaws to control group behaviours could be used to 
significantly restrict human rights. A misrepresentation of such powers by the Authority could lead to challenge under those rights, 
which would be both costly and counter-productive. The level of problem in Exeter is far lower than in other big cities which have 

considered powers to address gang-style behaviour, which we are not dealing with here. Moreover, this has tended to make things 
worse as the Authorities appear oppressive and divisive.  We need more mature and less reactionary approach to the problems there 

have been. 

Is this going to apply to two or more people reading from the bible, protesting, meeting up with other music or football fans? This is a 
really nasty insidious rule to try and slip in. Clockwork Orange comes to Exeter...bloody outrageous....between these rules and the 

cameras everywhere we have no freedom to do what we want, providing it isn't bothering others, whatsoever. I have fond memories of 
crowds(aka gangs) of us as students enjoying picnics in Cathedral Close. This would be unlawful under your rules. Exeter you should 

be ashamed of yourselves this isn't the Ukraine or Moscow. In fact they probably wouldn't put up with this either. I am embarrassed  to 
call you my beloved city with this behaviour. 

With the proviso that this depends on how threatening is defined. I can see this being open to abuse if someone says they feel 
threatened by a group of homeless people simply sitting together talking, for example. 

I expect everyone to behave in a respectful manner to each other. Abusive, threatening behaviour is not acceptable and neither is 
dehumanisation, criminalisation or any action lacking empathy. 

Whether behaviour "is likely to result in any member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed" is subjective and 
hard to judge without the training given to police. Existing public order laws give the police authority to disperse people importuning 

others. 
In general, these proposals would give homeless people a criminal record and compound that by imposing fines  and leading to court 
costs they are unable to pay, making it even harder to find work to get off the street, thus prolonging their problems and doing nothing 

to solve the problem of homelessness. 

Yes, BUT the word  likely  should NOT be interpreted as  could be a chance they will cause trouble ! So if police etc are briefed to 
carry out these 2 proposals in a lenient, non-provocative way, they could help protect the public. 

This is a huge sweeping power that could be used very indiscriminately, and limit all kinds of possible street uses. 
Inoffensive small demonstrations could be stopped because of the fear (in advance of any incident) that some people may feel 

intimidated, thus seriously limiting free speech. 
Our streets could be seriously sanitised by this proposal. 

The comment  "being alarmed or distressed" means what ?...I would agree to anti social behaviour controls but not because people 
"are alarmed or distressed" at seeing homeless people sleeping rough because the council is not providing shelters. 

Much too generalised. 

All six points require a stronger police presence because a resistance to dispersal will result in an arrest but what if this activity 
happens to public when enforcement officers are not around?  How can the response to such anti-social behaviour be dealt with 

quickly?  This doesn't happen unless the enforcing officers witness it for themselves.  Whilst these points have good intentions they 
are merely an attempt to bring short term solutions to long term problems.  If one really cares about preventing anti-social behaviour 

then we need to invest money (long term) into dealing with the causes of it. 

I think some leeway must be given for people genuinely needing money in this austere time and if doing so discretely and politely this 
has to be acceptable. Not mada a criminal offence.  

I largely agree with the idea of this , if it is taken in the spirit of preventing really unpleasant anti-social behaviour but I am concerned 
that it could be misused to restrict peoples freedoms. It means that anyone who simply is a bit annoyed could be 'alarmed' or 

'distressed' and could used this law to stop a harmless gathering. It also could be used to prevent groups of homeless people sleeping 
together for safety. Unless they are genuinely intimidating to the public - not just a bit untidy around door ways - I absolutely disagree 

with it being used for this purpose. 

Proposal 5 leaves far too much open to interpretation, a misunderstanding, prejudice or over-reaction on the behalf of the person being 
'harassed' or 'intimidated'. 

As long as the time for dispersal given is reasonable 

If someone feels intimidated by a group then they can alert the police but this proposal has the potential to get out of hand. Everyone 
has different interpretations of intimidation and unless a group has actually done something illegal or hurtful to someone then there 

should be no reason to break that group up. Again if this proposal was to come in to play then it should be applied to all in society from 
sport fans to students on a pub crawl - these groups can be intimidating to some people.  

I would imagine that anyone seriously intimidating people is already being dealt with by the police. 

Page 200



 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour. The PSPO 
proposal is too broad and does not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this 
summary PSPO power which would extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  

reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that 
behaviour. This wording is vague and nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the 
extensive training that police officers undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise 

a person, or group of people purely because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  
person. This is bad lawmaking and can be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship 

between local authority officers and the people they are paid to serve and protect.  

This proposal wraps up reasonable street control with totally unreasonable restrictions on homeless people, whom Imhave invariably 
found to be courteous and respectful. Nomdoubt this is why it is framed so.  Yes, by all means stop people intimidating others or using 
substances likely to lead to such behaviour but do not attempt to include completely unreasonable and uncharitable proposals as part 

of this package. I will be ashamed of this council if it goes down this all inclusive route. 

There are already existing powers to deal with this kind of harassment. Such powers should be only used by those who are trained in 
their use, not by untrained 'officers', otherwise it could be seen as targetting groups purely on suspicion. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

I thought police officers already had the power to move on groups of people or ask them to disperse if there were any impending or 
other issues that they could foresee. I think that stating matters such as likely to offend could lead to many other issues where 

individuals could state they didnt like to see certain groups of people . Be very careful. 

This strikes me like something from past centuries when members of combinations and friendly societies (early trade unions) were 
transported to Australia for gathering together to discuss their poverty and suffering. Your approach is setting us back  200 years! 

Shame on you! 

This is covered by existing laws and should be the job of the police, not the council. 

I have not noticed people behaving in aggressive or threatening groups in Exeter. 

There are existing laws for disorder- This could be abused to just stop activity that councils do not what- ie  protesting outside a bank 
due to its poor practices etc etc-  

This power is far too widely worded and could be used against all sorts of people and activities that are currently legal. It is therefore a 
vast extension of power against us ordinary folk. This could be used against protests, pickets, flashmobs, parties, street performance, 

carol singers, charity collectors, groups of friends, students, schoolchildren, ramblers - there will always be someone intimidated, 
alarmed or distressed by a group, and whilst this is undesirable, we don't just restrict everybody's freedom to try and make sure that 
nobody ever gets alarmed about anything. Anyway, what exactly is wrong with existing powers available to the police in this respect? 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 
 

While it is clear that I have copied and pasted these responses, this is because they say it better than I could, and I'm disabled with a 
condition that means I can't concentrate to make my own clear responses. I hope this doesn't count against me. 

I am not at all persuaded that these draconian powers are necessary 

Yes, we must be fair about what people are doing and whether it is  aggressive or unpleasant. It is not enough for a member of the 
public to dislike another person's way of speaking or appearance. In recent months we've seen Sikhs accused of being "Muslim 
terrorists" because they were turbans and people told to leave public transport because people said they looked "shifty".  This is 

wrong. 

I will use this box to express my general disgust at these proposals.  I would expect it from Tories, but to think anyone could be so 
heartless and unsympathetic to those who are most vulnerable and have such difficulties and bad luck in their lives makes me 

ashamed to be regarded as the same species.  Where are homeless people meant to disperse to.  They can't just totally disappear, 
they need friends as much as, if not more than, other people.  SHAME ON YOU! 

There are already specific powers in place to deal with anti-social behaviour and again the parameters are too vague for the 
'authorised person' -acting on a 'hunch'!  

Page 201



There is already legislation in place that can be used to deal with such situations, or when the authorities are dealing with known 
individuals who cause difficulties.  The blanket nature of the wording means that those who are congregating in a quite unoffensive 

manner can be penalised.  The time and cost taking those who do not comply, and will not be able to pay the penalties which might be 
enforced, is a ludicrous waste of council funds and resources. 

 
Funds that will be used to enforce this legislation if it is passed can be far more sensibly and humanely used to support those who are 
most vulnerable on the streets.  Very few are there from choice, many have difficulties which need professional help not subjection to 
greater harassment and humiliation than they are already experiencing.  St Petrock's, Shilhay, and other street support bodies, do all 

they can within their limited resources.  It is trained support of this nature, and additional accommodation for the homeless, that is 
required. 

 
I trust that the Council will not carry through this proposed legislation and will instead channel appropriate funds to support those who 

are on the street.  It is extremely worrying and sad  that it is a Labour-dominated council that is making these proposals. 

Existing legislation already allows the police to disperse groups who are behaving anti-socially in the ways described in the Proposal; 
there is no need to extend such powers to other officials. Additionally,the reference to conduct 'likely' to result in intimidation, 

harassment, alarm or distress is insufficiently determinate and leaves too much discretion to individual officials who might apply it 
inappropriately. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Again this is very open to interpretation, some people are very easily distressed or intimidated, some are intimidated by large groups of 
people regardless of what that group is doing; specifically groups of young persons are often found intimidating, and so they could be 

asked to disperse without having actually behaved in a way that warrants them dispersing. Doing so will alienate these groups and 
possibly provoke them into subsequently behaving in a way that DOES warrant them being dispersed, all because they feel like they 

were unfairly asked to do so in the first place because someone didn't like that fact that they were hanging around in a group of friends. 

Although I do fundamentally agree, there needs to be a clear definition of what defines behaviour that makes people distressed.  

Plenty of public order etc legislation already in place to deal with 5 and 6. I agree with 5 but only through using current legislation 

I don't think this requires separate legislation and I think this has been included in order for this unfair order to get through. People are 
already not allowed to behave like this without the police being called if members of the public feel threatened 

Providing the group is engaging in the activities mentioned and not purely for just being in a group as, once again, this is in breach of 
the law.  

legislation already exists. Proper community policing, well lit streets, places people can go to keep warm, wash \ shower, wash clothes, 
eat, seek welfare right advice and psychiatric help is what is required. 

Again, this is not really a problem (apart from the issue of people leaving pubs when drunk and disorderly) and existing legislation 
provides the powers that are needed to deal with this issue. These proposed new powers are draconian and interfere with our civil 

liberties: I fear that the United Churches Easter Procession might seem intimidating to some people and so could be prohibited if this 
proposal becomes law. 

I think issues such as mental illness need to be taken into account when dealing with these situations.  

I agree that aggressive behaviour and harassment are wrong and should be dealt with by the law, however there is already legislation 
in place for this. Additionally, your wording is appallingly ambiguous. Define intimidation? Some people feel threatened purely by 

seeing someone they disagree with/dislike and while I trust that the police would not act were such instances to be reported, this would 
in turn create a culture of fear and distrust. I think for you to have any credibility with this document, you need to produce a more 

detailed PSPO that is much more specific about what it intends to achieve and how it can be feasibly implemented. In the instance of 5 
and 6, there is a huge grey area where you could have a group of people talking loudly or maybe what they're wearing looks 

threatening to some people, but in fact is in no way illegal. Purely the action of someone reporting it and then an officer having to 
investigate it would be divisive and could in fact make the accused group feel threatened. 

The police already have the power to target genuine examples of anti social behaviour.  Again those  words 'is likely' are used.  On 
whose say so is the likelihood?  These proposals which want to use Council Officials to do police work is giving those officials powers 
way beyond their training and making way for vigilante-ism, a situation which impinges greatly upon their relationship with the public. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Page 202



This is a serious coordinated attack on homeless people sleeping rough across Exeter. A person is at rock bottom when their 
homeless it seems Exeter City Council is promoting the kicking of these people when they are down.  

Again, this should be hand in hand with better provision for the homeless. This includes public education. 

There needs to be a tighter definition of the behaviours. Some people find groups made up of people different form themselves as 
intimidating even when they are doing nothing wrong. This is far too general and risks demonising the innocent. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Is this not already an offence? 

Entirely unnecessary proposal. Illegal behaviour can be dealt with under existing legislation. The proposed measures are badly defined 
and too widely drawn, with a clear potential to encourage 'authorised officers' to target groups of people who don't 'look' respectable. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers 

Too wide ; unnecessary; unenforceable : an absurd assault on basic liberties 

There are already powers in place to deal with persons who are causing antisocial behaviour.   the PSPO proposal is too wide ranging 
and does not have enough safeguards.   

The streets would be deserted if we followed this to its logical conclusion as twentieth century Britons seem to be distressed  and 
intimidated by more or less everything.  Personally I think  this is a nasty proposal that could all too easily be subverted  to suppress 
any kind of public  dissent  and I am vehemently opposed to it for this reason.  I really don't want to go into a city which has officials 

patrolling the streets doing this kind of this and if I hear the council has adopted this I won't be visiting your area again 

This and other anti social behaviour is particularly prevalent in Fore Street below South Street - especially in the late afternoon/evening 
to the extent that it is almost impossible to walk through the area without being approached or witnessing/hearing unpleasant antisocial 

behaviour. 
The sheer amount of litter left behind also needs to be addressed seriously. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary. There are existing 
powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including section 35 dispersal notices which can 
order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The police and council have no need for this summary PSPO which would 

extend the power to criminalise people to 'authorised officers' on the basis that they have a 'reasonable belief' that is likely to result in 
any member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This will ultimately change the 

relationship between local authority officers and the people they are paid to serve and protect. There are already existing powers the 
police and council should use to target genuine examples of antisocial behaviour. 

My main caveat with this proposal is how subjectively it may be interpreted. This could for example be used against a legitimate protest 
or picket. It could be brought against people who are already marginalised for a number of reasons. I'm concerned that we aren't just 
legislating against anyone who is a bit different, just because they make us uncomfortable. I can live with feeling a bit uncomfortable.  
What I can't live with is the concept of persecuting and tormenting those who already have so little just so those who already have so 

much aren't a little inconvenienced. 

Existing powers already cover actual intimidation, etc. There is no need to extend these powers further. 

Page 203



There is adequate legislation for the police or support officers to take action if a group of people are intimidating or harassing members 
of the public. Giving power to 'authorised' people to act if they think that any behaviour is likely to cause distress to anyone even if their 

has been no complaint. 

So intimidating, harassing, alarming and distressing homeless people (and people in general) doesn't come under this radar? This is 
hypocrisy!  

However, depending on the manner of the disturbance (either individually or in a group), warnings should be in place - the proposals 
are not clear about what type of behavior they deem intimidating, harassing alarming and/or distressing though, and possibly this 

would be abused. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

For goodness sake! There is existing legislation to cover the situations described in these proposals. Why not just use that?  

The Proposal 5's definition is to vague, and is again open to abuse by any prejudiced authorized individuals.  

There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 35  dispersal 
notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. 

Powers already exist to deal with these proposals. As well as the individual comments I would like to say that creating the PSPO would 
create extra work for already overloaded council officers, would demand extra training and stress for these officers and probably lead 

to extra financial expenditure by the Council in legal and compensatory costs for those adversely affected as a result of these ill 
considered proposals. 

people are often distressed by those different to themselves..homeless people are often distressing to others and this is again not a 
compassionate way of dealing with the issue or those less fortunate than others. 

No one should be allowed to intimidate another .  
However I don't agree that groups of people should be dispersed after all this is still a free country . 

Adequate measures already exist to deal with anti-social behaviour which intimidates, alarms, distresses or harasses.  
If viewed the other way round, what rights do the dispossessed subjects of these proposals have to deal with what could become 

heavy handed officials trying to enforce these measures... they will surely feel intimidated, harassed, distressed and alarmed when 
their sleeping bags are taken from them, or their alcohol forcibly removed etc. etc.   

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35 dispersal notices that order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. Besides being unnecessary, the PSPO proposal is 
too broad and does not have any safeguards. It gives police and council the power to criminalise people on the basis that they have  a 
reasonable belief  their behaviour IS LIKELY to result in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed 
by that behaviour. This is bad law-making and a direct attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between 
local authority officers and the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to 

target actual (rather than potential) examples of antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

I believe there is a fundamental problem with introducing further restrictions on behaviour in the city centre - it simply isn't needed and 
in the long term, will lead to a much more boring, lifeless place. The proposals target some of the most vulnerable people in society 

and represents an attempt to hide away a serious problem that should be tackled at its root. As a labour controlled council, I presume 
you are aware that the cuts being experienced have the greatest impact on these people.  

This is too vague and subjective and could be interpreted in any number of ways; if the individuals behave unlawfully then the police 
already has the power to stop them.  

Sections 30-36 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 (ASBA) gave police forces in England and Wales new powers to disperse groups 
of two or more people from areas where there is persistent anti-social behaviour.  This proposal is redundant 

This is already covered to my satisfaction by the Public Order Act. As well as being unnecesary, this new proposal is way too vague. 

As the management in the Parks & Open Spaces / Street Scene tell their staff, Exeter does not have any street issues with rough 
sleepers / anti-social behaviour in the toilets.  

The police already have powers to deal with CRIMINAL behaviour 

I live at the top end of Sidwell St where many homeless people spend their time.  I have never felt harassed and have had many 
interactions where I have found these homeless human beings to be courteous, grateful and respectful. 

Each individual case should be tried on its merits. Just because some busybody with a warm comfortable home is just a bit bothered 
by the antics of the homeless, let them be. Focus on something actually useful instead. Help them to get homes!!! 

Page 204



There are existing laws which allow police officers to act when someone's behaviour is intimidating to another, and to break up groups, 
there is no need for further local legisaltion 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harassment and Distress 
to other people. There are existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are causing antisocial behaviour, including Section 

35  dispersal notices which can order a person or persons to leave an area for 48 hours. The PSPO proposal is too broad and does 
not have enough safeguards. It is also unnecessary.  The police and council have no need of this summary PSPO power which would 
extend the power to criminalise people to  authorised officers  on the basis that they have a  reasonable belief  IS LIKELY to result 

in ANY member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour. This wording is vague and 
nebulous and has the effect of extending summary powers to persons without the benefit of the extensive training that police officers 
undertake before becoming officers of the law. This proposal would allow a person to criminalise a person, or group of people purely 

because they take a subjective view that their behaviour  is likely  to cause distress to  any  person. This is bad lawmaking and can 
be rightly construed as an attack on freedom of association. It will radically alter the relationship between local authority officers and 
the people they are paid to serve and protect. The police and council should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of 

antisocial behaviour using their existing powers. 

There are already measures in place to deal with harassment issues, don't try and over-ride those. 

There are already laws which cover these things. Further powers are not needed 

These are reasonable - although I am somewhat confused by their necessity, as they seem already to be covered by existing 
legislation on public order offences. But they must be interpreted with extreme caution, and I am very alarmed by the latitude implied 

by the phrase 'has resulted or is likely to result'... Who decides what behaviour is 'likely' to have such effects? This proposal must never 
translate into the simple gift of arbitrary power to order any person or people to disperse, simply because an 'authorised officer' feels 

that their behaviour is 'likely' to, at some point, distress some hypothetical passer-by: rather, it should be clearly defined as usable only 
in relation to behaviour which is clearly anti-social in nature.  

See previous comments. 

Anti-social behaviour is not tolerated amongst the public, so therefore it should not be acceptable for the homeless as well. Intimidating 
behaviour is what most people fear from the homeless.  

I agree with this proposal, however I think it should only be implemented in extreme cases. 

With all these powers, wherever possible workers from support services should be notified of the enforcement action so that as 
enforcement escalates, so the level of support available to assist someone to exit a street lifestyle intensifies. The clear definition of the 
support available in an accessible and coherent form will also alleviate many of the public concerns about the potential criminalisation 

or simple displacing of street-based anti-social behaviour.  
 

Policy-makers may wish to read the evaluation of Operation Dodger, a Sussex Police operation from 2005 which tackled street activity 
in Brighton, and remains an example of best practice, bringing together support, enforcement, and environmental and design changes. 

See http://www.popcenter.org/library/awards/goldstein/2005/05-15(F).pdf. 

When you have a large group it can be hugely intimidating, I've been scared myself sometimes & I'm more than capable of looking 
after myself but sometimes my daughter has to call me from the city centre as she is frightened to walk through the Bartholomew area 

or Fore St & I have to walk up & meet her. 

reducing anti social behavior at source also reduces deliberate fire setting in the community. 

There is no definition of an authorised officer. Are you thinking of using an employee of G4S? 

Once again, sufficient powers already exist for police to deal with situations and individuals they reasonably assess to be causing a risk 
to public order. Extending powers to include the far more vague terms used in Proposal 5, and extending enforcement powers to 

'authorised officers' is frankly Orwellian. Perhaps more time and energy should be spent dealing with the causes of homelessness in 
Exeter instead of the symptoms. 

In both places Proposal 6 should say REASONABLY specified. 

This takes away the right to demonstrate, and the right to gather as a group for social reasons. I hope homeless individuals are also to 
be considered members of the public, as I feel this proposal dehumanises sections of society - who are the 'public' and who are the 

'perpetrators'?  

 Who will decide what kind of behaviour is alarming, intimidating or distressing?   

I don't have issue with rowdy groups being sent their separate ways but the list of offences is open to broad interpretation and feeling 
of intimidation is very subjective.  

Once again this is persecution of those without any power or money. It is stupid and pointless. How do you define what causes distress 
and to who. Who decides?  

the on spot fines are ridiculous idea...this will only exacerbate and alienate further and persecute those who do not have the means to 
pay and will no doubt have their benefit cut and be criminalised as a result. It is senseless!!  

These proposals are vague.  

We all have a right to respect. 

We need to differentiate between the homeless (who are unable to not intimidate strangers when they're in groups) and actual 
anti-social behaviour by students, people who work or live locally, or tourists. Until then my response to these proposals will be a 

resounding no. 

It's all due to St. Petrock's.  St. Petrock's needs to restrict their offerings of meals to the homeless who agree to sleep either on its' 
premises or in other local accommodation offered to them. 

The wording of this is too vague and wide - ranging. Members of the public have a hugely varying tolerance (or intolerance) to different 
behaviours and the wording of this may result in people behaving in a way that most would find acceptable being moved on as a result 
of a complaint from an overly sensitive individual. Should football fans be allowed to congregate before a match? - some might find this 

intimidating. 

Again the Police already have the necessary powers to do this - if this is simply to give Council workers the right to move people on 
then this could be used to target groups deemed to be a 'nuisance" rather than dealt with as human beings.  Are Council workers to be 

the new alternative Police in Exeter? 

This applies as much to large groups of drinkers attending pubs/clubs as it does those of no fixed address. Hence it should be 
enforced on equally on large groups on "nights out"  

Page 205



 

Proposal 6 is quite sensible, but the factor it is based upon (Proposal 5) is far too ambiguous - any shmuck in a uniform could wave it 
about and accuse two 13-year-olds sitting quietly on a little-used set of stairs and sharing a pack of biscuits as being "distressing" 

because they are young and sitting in a potential passageway, and no questions would be asked. Needs some tightening up. 

These are so loosely worded that they would allow harassment of individuals on almost any basis. 

No 

Proposal 5 - Of course, behaving in a threatening or harassing manner is not acceptable and if such behaviour occurs or is suspected 
to occur, we all have the responsibility to step in and try and prevent this. However, I do not believe this is something that can be 

changed by legislating against it. I also vote against this proposal for the reason that it is far to vague as to what is considered 
'threatening or alarming' . For example, somebody holding a placard demonstrating against war or against a particular policy may be 

alarming to some people, but to legislate against this person would be counter to our values of the freedom to protest.  

The persons being oppressed in this manner are also members of the public. Therefore these measures are self defeating - since to 
implement them will cause distress to the these members of the public. 

Does begging count as threatening behaviour? This power should be used with caution and compassion. I disagree with Q6 because 
people should have the right to associate with who they want. 

this is way too vaugue and could be unfairly exploited 

Do not silence the public.  

These people are a disgrace to Exeter & must be removed. If they are happy to live in empty shop premises then the Council should 
provide them with similar accommodation on Marsh Barton or Sowton. 

I live in the City Centre & I am disgusted by the behaviour of these people. Why should I have to walk through or around their filth that 
is particularly prevelant at the top of Fore Street. Why should I be intimidated by their begging & abuse. The vast majority of these 

people are not in need but are just living off Society & those stupid enough to give them money.. Get rid of them & make Exeter City 
Centre a place where people can walk in peace & where visitors are not deterred from returning to the City. 

This is just going to victimise homeless people and will not help them at all. 

This is open to interpretation by said authorised officer. Homeless people group together for safety, and sometimes warmth. How do 
we propose to look after the homeless population? How do we think we can keep them safe? How can we prevent them from feeling 

intimidated, anxious and afraid?  

This is actually about safety 

What is stop this measure being used to quash legitimate protest? A couple of years ago a band of racist thugs came to town to have a 
march and air their odious views. This protest was counter protested by the English disco lovers; as much as I know that the intention 
was not to intimidate the fascists, there was certainly a great deal of tension on both sides at points. However much I disagree with the 
views that these various nationalist groups espoused, I am grateful to live in a country that allows people to express whatever opinion 

they wish and not be persecuted for it.  

Intimidation can be interpreted very loosely, and I personally know of police using this as an excuse against peaceful protests in 
Exeter. Peaceful as in, not causing anyone physical harm or damaging public property, simply vocal protests.  

Lumping together anti-social behaviour and homelessness is a dangerous game. 

Proposal 5 - very difficult to police, not always going to be obvious so yes while it is a lovely theory people can be intimidating without 
realizing it or doing anything overt.  

I literally find the children that gather outside McDonalds and KFC to be more disruptive and intimidating. This isn't a problem. 
 

To be honest this law just seems like an excuse to disrupt the homeless people when you can't find any other excuse. This entire 
consultation is awful and I cannot believe it was even suggested.  

I dont feel dispersal is neccesary, one must be aware they might be grouped for mental health or disability reasons. 

This proposal is extremely vague and thus open to abuse by both the public and authorities. You would need to define precisely what 
constitutes this sort of behaviour. Law enforcement should not be authorised to simply disperse a group of people just because one 

other people define them as 'intimidating'. 

Any enforcement action must be shared with other agencies so that support can be increased where necessary 

I have not agreed with this as it is too vague, it depends what sort of behaviour this is referring to. It could be very subjective and if 
more than one person are just talking together could that be interpreted as unruly behaviour? 

I would like to say yes but I can't trust that this wont be used against young people, ethnic minorities or homeless people.   just 
because they are young, foreign or homeless. 

"likely to result in harassment" - such vague terminology. Who would determine this, and how could you justify such a subjective 
stance? Particularly when "likely to" is not equivalent to actual offence. Proposal six is no better. Given that this is for 'individuals or 

groups of two or more', any 'authorised officer' could simply not like the way you're dressed, look, speak, act, or anything else to order 
you to move or stop talking to your friends. Would this also include teenagers out with their friends? Rowdy men sat outside pubs? This 

has far reaching implications, which if are not actually reached, only imply discrimination. 

Proposal 5: Should it be  "Not to behave either individually...." rather than "Not behave either individually...." 
 

Proposal 6: What's Prohibition 5? 

This should only apply to legitimate harassment or physical abuse, and never be applied to individuals feeling uncomfortable over the 
presence of another, such as asking for the dispersal of a beggar. 

I agree but how can such a judgement be reguky 

It is completely unnecessary and an utter waste of council resources to consider this proposal for regulation by a PSPO. The Public 
Order Act 1986 already gives local authorities the power to issue dispersal notices and other regulatory tools against those causing 

harassment, alarm or distress in public, and therefore wasting council time and money on adding another layer of bureaucracy in this 
particular zone is ridiculous. Not only this, but these new powers may also be enforced even where people's behaviour 'has the 
potential' to have a detrimental effect on quality of life. This hypothetical element of the regulations is too arbitrary and could be 

misused by enforcement officials.  

Laws already exist to deal with this. 

Page 206



So long as it is applied to students. But of course it won't be given the economic stranglehold that the university enjoys in Exeter. It is 
the poor behaviour of the mainly middle-class, privately-educated students that causes the most offence to Exeter residents and not 

that of the vulnerable homeless that this proposal is aimed at. It is the university which should be targeted by the council and made to 
take responsibility for the shocking anti-social behaviour of the student community.  

On the whole this proposal is a disgusting attempt to paper over the real problems caused by poverty and the austerity programme by 
attacking the victims of the current economic outrages and a blatant attempt at divide and rule by ECC as it aims to turn Exeter 

residents against the most vulnerable people living here.  

What is prohibition 5? Is that proposal 5? 

Proposal 5 is expressed in a hugely wide, subjective manner that I have the same in principle objections as previously. To put it 
another way, I consider it an important civil liberty that as long as I act within the law then I am permitted to do whatever I choose.  

 
To say again, the proposals are hugely far-reaching, contrary to the Human Rights Act in a number of respects and dress up the 
gentrified suggestion of keeping our city centre "decent" and "respectable" into a package of measures which are discriminatory, 

impossible to monitor, likely to bring the officers with these powers into conflict with those affected and which denigrate this City, rather 
than improve it. 

 
This is not simply sanitisation. Please think very carefully about the wider impact. 

I think it is an absolute disgrace that Exeter City is considering punishing homeless people in such a way. 

I don't see the point in fining people who are homeless. They have no money. criminalising them if they can't pay impacts on their 
ability to rehabilitate back into society and therefore the problem is self perpetuating.   

These are both covered adequately by law and need not be made the subject of a PSPO. 

This isn't North Korea  

That is an offence under the public order act now completely pointless to add to that legislation  

Since when did communal survival become a crime? 

Context please! 

I'm not in favour of people being harrassed, but isn't this all just a bit vague? Shouldn't there be provisions in the existing law to handle 
this situation?  

If someone is intimidated or distressed by something I do unintentionally, then honestly that's their problem. If it's intentional 
intimidation then obviously that's harassment, or behaving in a disorderly manner, which is already dealt with by the police. Cut down 

the wording to just "Harassed" because that's the only thing out of "intimidated, alarmed, harassed or distressed" that someone cannot 
do unintentionally. 

 
overall this seems to simply be making harassment warrant for police intervention. As I said, it already is 

Again this is infringing on civil rights. People have the right to freedom of speech you can't take that away you don't have the right 

There is no explanation as to what defines  alarm or distress  which is rather fundamental, and leaves the proposal appallingly vague 
where clarity is essential to ensure it is used effectively and proportionately. Again huge powers would being given to officers without 

an adequate explanation of when they will be used or why they are necessary to plug gaps in the existing law. 

Great policy - Exeter needs to protect its workers and residents 

I don't necessarily see why they have to disperse... But of course the intimidating behaviour should stop.  I think it would specifically 
be very useful to make explicit reference to street harassment (cat-calling, random and uninvited appraisals of appearance, sexualised 

insults, groping etc.) directed at women in this proposal.  From my experience, it is one of the most common yet accepted forms of 
intimidating behaviour on our streets.  I am concerned however, that proposal 5 may be utilised by police just to target any groups that 
they happen not to like (e.g. groups of people all from an ethnic minority) --- some work needs to be done to ensure that the proposal is 

not perverted in this manner. 

I think this needs to be judges on a case by case basis without an blanket solution, often with sympathy to those who are supposedly 
causing distress or being 'alarming' because in many cases they are doing no harm and people are easily scared.  

This could affect those with mental health problems, who should be protected and helped rather than punished. 

Where do you draw the line? Who chooses what is is intimidating and what is not? 

For homeless people, the street is their home, and the people they associate with can fulfill the role of "family" looking out for each 
other, supporting each other and providing company. Ordering them to disperse is denying them the right to a "family life". It is also 

likely to engender distrust in authority, and cause anger and paranoia which may increase the possibility of, and/or escalate aggressive 
behaviour. 

 
The criteria in point 5 are very broad. I find seeing people in fur coats distressing, but I do not expect them to be dispersed.  

 
This legislation would prevent peaceable protest and demonstations, if any of the public found them distressing or alarming. 

 
Implementing this PSPO does nothing to recognise the political and social factors underlying the rise in homelessness. I do not agree 
that it may lead to "positive outcomes" or "health benefits". If a homeless person is issued with a fixed penalty, they are unlikely to be 

able to pay it. The eventual consequences of this are likely to involve arrest and court proceedings. The financial cost of providing legal 
support would be high, albeit not coming out of Exeter City Council's budget. The social cost is likely to be homeless people feeling 

more excluded from society and that they have no stake or useful recognition within it.  
 

I applaud the provisions already in place in Exeter to support homeless people, and would welcome more resources for facilities that 
would impact positively on their mental and physical health. 

 
The PSPO is against labour values, and is unlikely to work. Much negative publicity has been generated by the proposals, and this 

impacts negatively on trust in the labour controlled city council. 

It is a vague enough proposal to be applied to many situations and proposals like this have been used to shut down peaceful protests. 
Furthermore, in light of the other proposals I assume this will be used as another way of perpetuating your abhorrent vendetta against 

the homeless community.  

"Has resulted in distress" I agree with. "Might result in distress" is dubious, non-specific, and liable to be abused 

Page 207



Threatening behaviour stops my 15 year old daughter from being able to walk safely to evening activities. The area around BHS is a 
real problem for her especially when the soup kitchen people are there encouraging assembly of those who exhibit antisocial 

behaviour. This well meaning activity which gathers an agressive group together stops families like ours from  being able to live the life 
we'd like to in the city centre. 

Laws against anti social behaviour are already in place. This descent into martial law is not necessary. Find another way to reduce the 
already low levels of crime in Exeter. 

Have there been many intimidating incidents? Cannot say I have ever witnessed any. You're supposing that they cannot hang around 
with their friends in case it is intimidating, ridiculous - they need protection from the public from intimidation, just as much as you seem 

to be suggesting that we do. 

How on earth can you go about defining intimidating/distressing behavior. You're essentially saying groups of homeless people cannot 
group together as they can be perceived as unnerving to some members of public. Male students on nights out are the biggest part of 

this problem, often displaying anti social and sexually explicit behavior.  

I worry that this will be very difficult to enforce and may be enforced unfairly or with bias towards certain people, particularly young 
people and people of colour. Though I agree in principle with the concept, it should be restructured and reworded in a way that is less 

general and provides more certain guidelines as to what sorts of behaviour and language should be tackled. 

  Surely this behaviour of public nuisance is not tolerated currently.   Obviously some persons sensitivity to groups of individuals 
varies considerably eg high spirited party revellers.    Most are quite harmless and the result of alcohol consumption which the night 

time economy encourages.  Some discretion has to be applied in these circumstances and most will comply with reasonable requests.  
Pubs and Clubs have some responsibility in this regard.   

 
Once again the designation of authorised officer suggests that current police activity is to be curtailed which is unacceptable.   

These proposals are too broadly worded. They are an incitement to abuse of power. They are valid propositions at their core but 
should be drastically reworded to prevent infringements on fundamental liberties. 

Essentially what you're saying in these two proposals is: 
 

- homeless people, stay away from each other. Do not converse or socialise because snobs don't like looking at you 
 

- if you do congregate, the police are going to tell you all to move away from one another and sit in silence on your own (without 
bedding or possessions because when the police are called they'll confiscate it) 

 
Truly disappointed that I've had to read this. Evil, evil stuff. 

Too vague, the policy is open to too much manipulation; what constitutes intimidation? I do not like to be intimidated, however would 
appreciate greater clarity of what is considered intimidation etc., to avoid this policy being exercised in a potentially bias way, eg a 

racist way  

Too many gangs hanging around making people feel intimidated or scared  

There are far larger issues in society that the council should concern themselves with - race relations, gender roles, child abuse to 
name a few. Concern yourself with issues that impact the society at large, and make decisions that will HELP people rather than 

making their lives more difficult.  

However the proposal is very subjective which must be accounted for, as different people will be intimidated by different behaviours; for 
example, a small group of teenagers, although not behaving inappropriately will be intimidating to some members of the public. 

Facism, don't 'order' them, ask them politely, or better yet, put more money into the education system and tackle the actual problem, 
instead of these pseduo facist proposals 

Recent reports about attempted sexual assault have really concerned me 

much like proposal 5 is well broad. police are intimdating and act in a group but they won't be told to move on. 
 

Drinkers in general are intimidating and act drunk so again this is aimed at homelessness.  

What does that actually mean? Also are you going to start arresting the packs of uni lads who maraud around chanting football chants? 

you're disgusting  

Again, will this not just push them out of the city centre & on to the outskirts of town, ie: Heavitree, Whipton where smaller groups of 
shops trade,& have regular / busy trading? 

People should have the right to dress and appear however they choose. No person or council can make a fitting decision on what is an 
appropriate way to appear.  

Yes, I'm against harassment in public. But does this measure target homelses people in particular? Why?  

No one likes to be intimidated, and I believe that these two aforementioned prohibitions should successfully counter such situations. 

I think they are difficult to define and should not be put in place without further detail in writing of what constitutes such behaviour.  

Because the definitions that you have provided are very open to interpretation this could impinge on freedom of speech and the right to 
peacefully protest.  

Needlessly vague and up open to the discretion of the 'authorised officer' 

Obviously if people are being genuinely disruptive and intimidating, that's fine.  

"is likely to result in any member of the public being intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed by that behaviour" - that is completely 
arbitrary, and anything dodgy is already covered by the public order act. So this seems unnecessary, and simply aims to isolate 

homeless people from their pals. 

This proposal should be the same for all persons causing intimidation to anyone else. This proposal does need to be fairly regulated 
however, and not just be used to disperse any group gathering. 

This is really vague, seems like you want a law that you can use against the homeless even when they're not doing anything. 

Well, none of those things are measurable so how could you know of someone committed that crime? Unfair on citizens and the 
people trying to enforce. 

What does "distressed" mean? This is vague and poorly worded, and could be applied to anything 

An extremely sensible proposal, in line with legislation and in the public interest. 

Page 208



 

With caution- depending on whether a correct judgement call has been made. Just being in a group in itself is not enough to say it is 
intimidating if, say, I would not be intimidated.  

"or is likely to result in any member of the public being intimidated"?!  Clearly some members of the public are like you.  That being 
so, some members of the public are likely to be prejudiced to the extent that they feel threatended by anybody homeless.  If three 
homeless people are standing and talking to one another, some people - like you, I assume - might perceive this as threatening.  If 

reported, these people would then be treated as criminals.  Are you now trying to take away the right for homeless people to associate 
with each other?  Do you have any idea what it is like to be homeless, lonely and desperate?  Do you really think these people would 
be sleeping on the streets if they had another choice?  Are you honestly saying that the solution to this social problem is to penalise 

the homeless rather than help them?  Take a step back for a moment and think.  Wouldn't it be far more beneficial to the homeless if 
a new homeless hostel was opened?  This would get people off the streets (which I think is your main goal)  and not criminalise them 

in the first place.  Your ignorant and narrow minded solution to this problem helps nobody. 

This is not the 3rd reich based on subjective discrimination.  

I agree intimidating in a group is bad but I know if this goes through it will just be used as justification to push homeless people around 
even when they aren't doing anything. I've walk past groups of them many times and they've never intomidated me, its your own 

prejudice of homeless people that makes you fear them 

Whats to stop a person simply saying they are distressed by a group of people doing othing wrong just to have them removed. There is 
no accountability.  

Police already have these powers. Anyone that votes for this Inhumane policy should be ashamed of themselves. Address the cause 
of the issues instead of criminalising some of the most vulnerable in our society.  

Exeter Council are about to make it effectively illegal to be homeless in Exeter by imposing £1000 fines for begging and giving the 
authorities permission to confiscate and destroy homeless people's bedding and personal property. Not only is this inefficient as it does 

not target the reasons why people are homeless in the first place or why they can't get off the streets once they are, it also explicitly 
victimises poor and mentally ill people. 

As long as 'intimidation' is taken seriously and is not just used as a group of people who are behaving normally but are intimidating 
because they are part of a group and someone is on their own.  

I believe that there already exist laws that relate to behaviour that causes offence, nuisance or intimidation to the public (Affray, Riot, 
Incitement to Racial Hatred, Harassment  etc) and these should apply to any number of people, even one person individually, and in 

any place, not just the City Centre. Such public disorder would be a matter for the police.  Therefore,  I don t understand why this 
prohibition is proposed if not to allow authorised persons to disperse anyone they take a dislike to, which I must oppose.   

 
In any case, I object to the notion of an "authorised person" being someone other than a Police Officer or a PCSO, such as a City 

Councillor.  
 

This clause also makes me fear that such dispersal will be used on political rallies, protests and demonstrations, which would be a 
violation of citizens' democratic and rights. 

 
Overall, the details of this PSPO make me believe that its aim is social cleansing: an attempt to brush away those who some would 

deem to be undesirable characters from the City Centre for the benefit of the commercial interests that appear to be given priority over 
the poor and vulnerable of our community.  Therefore, I oppose it, and would urge the Council to pursue other, more humane ways of 

dealing with disadvantaged people and difficult behaviour. 

Bullshit, You cannot tell people to leave an area because of how they look? This will only push race boundaries apart, and groups of 
people who identify and wear clothing/act such as punks will be punished for who they are? Stupid Stupid move, if this passes people 

will not stand for it 

People who dress in an alternative manner often face prejudice from the public and are accused of intimidation or threatening 
behaviour on a regular basis purely due to clothing and hair style choices 

When I was a youth in the 1970s I recall the way that young people, myself included, especially those who were black or looked a bit 
different were constantly moved on and harassed under the "sus laws" by the police. This played a huge part in stoking resentment 

that led to riots. Is that what we want to go back to? See: 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sus_law 

This is a comment about every proposal. It is fairly clear to me that every proposal here emerges from an anti-homeless agenda 
masquerading as innocuous directives against 'anti-social behaviour'. Of course nobody likes it when people urinate or defecate in 
public places; no sober person necessarily likes seeing other people drinking or using drugs in the street; no one on their way on 

shopping/business wants to be stopped by requests for money. Yet you would weaponise ingenuous responses like these in order to 
criminalise the lives of homeless people - who have little choice other than to beg, to urinate/defecate in public places, to use 

substances to help them endure living outside. The proposal that would effectively allow police to confiscate homeless people's 
possessions - literally all they have - shows this to be a sham veiling of an attack on the most vulnerable in society. This list of 

proposals so crudely defines anti-social through separate behaviours (though connected by the reality of living on the streets), but it is 
apparent that what is truly anti-social is the agenda behind this survey. 

All of these proposals are horrifyingly ignorant and dehumanising. Maybe the council should be investing in services and support for 
people without homes, with mental health and substance abuse issues. These proposals are shameful and will unquestionably 

penalise and persecute some of the most vulnerable in our community. The council should be ashamed of themselves for even putting 
these forward. 

No 

They seem somewhat vague. 

Page 209



 

Exeter council is failing to provide adequate provisions for youths to congregate or constructive activities for them to engage in.  Many 
of the activities available are aimed exclusively (by means of economic streaming) at those with more cash to throw away.   

 
We are left with a situation wherein those who have less money, or for whatever reason do not engage with the excessive lifestyles of 

today, are automatically viewed as pests, a problem.  They band together in efforts to find a community.  A family.  To then 
criminalise this will only cause further stigmatism, make it harder for people to find jobs, and likely increase the rate of homelessness.  

 
These homeless people, then being labelled as criminals simply for their unfortunate circumstances, will make them even harder to 

employ. 
 

I, along with many my registered emergency services colleagues, find four of the six points proposed to be borderline sadistic in 
nature.  I am disgusted.   

As a male young adult I am already stereotyped as a "thug" or "chav" by certain older people. I already get routinely searched while 
leaving shops incase I've stolen anything, it frightens me that if I was walking down exeter high street with a few friends the police 

could legally remove us from the area 

Vulnerable people need to stick together, what you are proposing is disgusting 
 

I do NOT consent to any proposed Statute or Act by Exeter City Council to cause harm or loss to another Human Being.  What ECC 
are proposing with this demonization of our vulnerable people is totally abhorrent and unacceptable.  Instead of doing your jobs 

properly of finding decent housing for everyone you intend to intimidate, humiliate, STEAL private property and harass & criminalise  
decent people who have found themselves in an awful situation, often at no fault of their own.  ECC should be ashamed of itself and 

should bring into question the mental health of the 'person' or 'persons' who proposed such psychopathic NAZI style policies. 

Punks look and sound intimidating but we aren't so the public may be intimidated by us though that is not our intention. Can you stop 
fucking targeting us? 

This proposal will give police officers too much discretionary power, it would be far too easy for them to abuse it. 

Proposal 5 is meaningless. How shall it be judged that a group of individuals are intimidating other individuals? How will the Police be 
briefed as to what constitutes this sort of behaviour? What is to say that members of the public could not simply claim that groups of 

people that they 'don't like the look of' are in breech of Proposal 5. All of these proposals perpetuate negative social judgements of the 
homeless, of groups of young people, of working class people. I am deeply disappointed in Exeter Council. 

Dehumanising and uncompassionate 

This gives carte blanche to the authorities to use these powers to move people on and out of the city centre - it states for 6 hours 
minimum. These powers could be used not just against the homeless but against any group of people - for example anybody 

protesting. The powers are so widely drawn as to give huge power to the authorities. The FAQs state that these powers will not be 
used against people protesting - but that is not what the order states. Being "alarmed or distressed" is very much in the eye of the 

beholder. Individual officers will be able to interpret these regulations and effectively it will mean that any attempt at protest will be only 
allowed if the authorities wish to enable it. Real fears of disorder etc are already covered by the law. This extension of power is 

draconian and not necessary.  

I was of the understanding that such restrictions as listed under 5 & 6 were in force currently so why we need a new Order to enforce 
what is already enforceable beats me. 

Who is going to be "an authorised officer" jobs worth bully's are what there going to be 

The Police and Courts already have ample powers to deal with intimidation and harassment. 

Again, this is MUCH too loosely specified - any lawful protest could be broken up just because 'any member of the public' might be 
distressed by it. As with other proposals here, the extremely loose wording means that 'authorised persons' will effectively be given the 
power to decide what THEY think is acceptable or unacceptable, when to impose a fine and when to look the other way and this is a 

very dangerous path. 

I find this propose intimidating, alarming and distressing and so the people proposing the PSPO should be removed in line with their 
opinions. 

Persecuting, destitute and homeless people 

See comments and questions in accompanying letter. 

As a visitor from overseas I have been apalled to see so many homeless people on the streets of Exeter.  These people need help 
and support.  They are instead being hounded.  It is not good enough.  Jim Lawson, 22 Trinity Court, Southerhay East. 

My comments concerning their proposals are that, in protecting the public from "unseemly" groups of people ie The Homeless - ther is 
no consideration of how to help the Homeless.  If a person has reached "Rock Bottom" they need help to get out of the pit - they are 
PEOPLE - like you and me - they are HUMAN BEINGS - PLEASE CONSIDER THEIR NEEDS.  Paula Lawson, 22 Trinity Court, 37 

Southernhay, Exeter. 

Homelessness has risen by 50% since 2010 under the current government.  We do not want privilege over the appearance of Exeter 
over it's CITIZENS well being.  We don't want rough sleepers to be seen as problem to be dealt with, as an inconvenience, as a threat 

rather than individual human beings.  We do not agree or want to see unfortuante people forced out of the city as has happened in 
Soviet Russia. 

As long as someone is genuinely being harassed.  I've often felt more intimidated by drunken, well fed youths.  The current 
governments policy on benefits, lack of funding for the NHS etc are causing major hardships across the country resulting in may more 
homeless and destitute people.  Many become depressed resulting in substance abuse.  I would far rather you increased my rates 

and helped them.  Yours Natasha Ogilvie, Rockbeare. 

Your wording is completeley over the top.  Intimidated, harassed, alarmed or distressed?  I don't think so.  Most of the time people 
with no home, no home, no money, no possessions, no self-worth are cowed and apologetic.  There's more harassment from football 

supporter!!! 

Page 210



 

Under the Public Order Act 1986 it is already a criminal offence to behave in a manner which causes Alarm, Harasment and Distress to 
other people.  These existing powers that can be used to disperse people who are casuing antisocial behaviour.  This proposal is too 
broad and does not have any safeguards.  The council have no need of this power which extends the power to criminalise people to 

'authorised officers' on the basis that they have a 'reasonable belief' IS LIKELY to result in ANY member of the public being intimidated, 
harassed, alarmed or distressed  by that behaviour.  This wording is vague and has the effect of extending summary powers to 

persons without the benefit of the training that police officers have to have.  This proposal would allow a council officer to criminalise a 
person, or group of people purely because they dislike their behaviour.  This is an attack of freedom of association.  The police and 

counil should use their existing powers to target genuine examples of antisocial behaviour. 

This will most likely target the homelss when in reality you should be looking at the anti behavoural problems of students. 

Give them help. 

I think it might work if used in the right manner and not used just to target the homeless. 

Depends on the group - if its only rough sleepers - that means they are only getting targeted - then it is only those and not town 
revellers that it will affect if used in a fair manner then it may work, but I think it is not going to be used in that way. 

Depends upon the group ie if only rough sleepers are targeted then it is only those and not town revellers that it will affect.  If used in a 
fair manner then it may work but I think it is not going to be used that way. 

It's too vague. 

It's a free world and you've got freedom of street.  If you're shouting at someone fair enough but if you're shouting to a mate down the 
road, how is that different from the police shouting "Stop"? 

Depends upon the "group" if only rough sleepers are targeted then it is only those and not town revelers that it will affect if used in a fair 
manner then it may work, but I think it is not going to be used that way. 

? 

I am homeless.  Walski 

Will this apply to students?? 

Finding me homeless ? 

Leave the homeless alone. 

Like (2), this is too vague, is unneccesary and there are long established laws that cover this. 

No 

Most people only cause anti-social behaviour are not just homeless, as most of the beggars in town are housed - there is only a select 
few who are actually homeless.  BUT - students and other peole who go out drinking cause anti-social behaviour to so IT'S NOT JUST 

HOMELESS PEOPLE!! 

They should be given a safe area to sleep and be around. 

They can't be sent home they aint got one. 

That's daft. 

Have some RESPECT for homeless. 

The right of assembly and association are basic human rights.  The nuisance rules weren't passed sometime and were thrown out by 
Parliament.  Now by using the local authority and words like intimidation, harassment and distress the same effect will be achieved 

and such legislation if passed will undoubtedly lead to its use to stop legitimate protests and demonstrations but perhaps that doesn't 
matter anymore....... 

Page 211



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



APPENDIX 2E 
 
 
 
Responses to Public Consultation (to be read in conjunction with FAQs, 
Appendix 1D) 
 
Introduction 
From the 1237 responses made during the formal consultation between November 
2015 and February 2016, a great number of comments and questions were raised. 
Many common issues arose and many of the questions are answered by the FAQs 
(Appendix 1D), so it is not the intention to replicate the answers given in the FAQs but 
to supplement them with further detail or additional answers to points not covered in 
the FAQs. 
 
The PSPO powers could be over-zealously applied, and misused 
The Council and the Police have committed to developing a joint protocol and training 
in respect of applying the PSPO if approved. This will seek a proportionate, reasonable 
and compassionate application of the PSPO powers. It will be the Police who will be 
predominantly using the PSPO powers on the ground, with the Council assisting more 
in a ‘back office’ capacity. Both Police and specialist council officers such as 
Environmental Health Officers, are trained and qualified to enforce legislation, and their 
actions are subject to scrutiny. In addition the use of the PSPO, if agreed by Full 
Council, will be monitored by both the Exeter Community Safety Partnership and by 
Members of Scrutiny Committee Place, to ensure the proper application of any PSPO. 
 
The PSPO powers do not go far enough 
The proposed PSPO has been framed in light of evidence of anti-social behaviour from 
the Police and Council records of incidents and intelligence. Whilst there may be other 
anti-social behaviours troubling people, the focus has been on persistent anti-social 
behaviour having a detrimental impact on communities. If further evidence arises of 
other problematical behaviour, then the Council can consider whether a PSPO would 
be necessary to deal with that. 
 
The area of the proposed PSPO is not wide enough 
The PSPO are has been framed in line with Police and Council intelligence and advice 
on responding to demand; the Council does not intend extending the PSPO at this 
stage. If there is evidence of persistent anti-social behaviour in areas outside the 
proposed PSPO area, then the Council would consider the merit of a PSPO to help 
control such ASB. 
   
Why are PSPO powers necessary for controlling ASB, when existing tools exist? 
There are existing powers in various guises that can be applied by the Council or 
Police to deal with the problematical ASBs found in the city centre area, but these are 
often cumbersome, non-specific, and/or blunt in their application – prosecution and 
resultant criminalisation often being the only escalation option. The new powers 
contained under a PSPO are extremely flexible in terms of the local authority’s (LA) 
ability to craft restrictions and prohibitions to manage different types of ASB and in a 
way that can include engendering changes in behaviour for the better, rather than just 
a threat of sanction. They can be confined to the locality suffering ASB, and be time-
limited. For example: 
 
Fixed Penalty Notices – these allow any offence to be discharged on payment of the 
penalty, thereby avoiding court action and a potential criminal record for the individual 
concerned. But further, the fixed penalty sum can be discounted (even down to zero) if 
set conditions are applied and followed, such as agreeing to an Acceptable Behaviour 
Contract [ABC] (in effect a signed promise to improve behaviour), or agreeing to 

Page 257



APPENDIX 2E 
 
 
access a support service such as Addiction Services. In conclusion FPNs can be used 
innovatively to foster improved behaviour, rather than penalise. This will give a 
positive/restorative pathway as an option to the punitive fixed penalty. 
 
How can someone with no money pay a fixed penalty? 
Someone’s ability to pay will vary according to their financial circumstances and can 
arise with all fixed penalty notices, such as those for littering or not picking up after a 
pet dog has fouled. By including an option to commit to an ABC rather than pay a 
penalty, it helps to address this situation where someone will struggle to pay a penalty. 
 
The fixed penalty notices are just a money making scheme for the Council. 
It is our intention that any income received from fixed penalties is ring fenced to the 
Community Safety Partnership to be spent on initiatives to reduce anti-social 
behaviour. 
 
The PSPO is a draconian power that will herald further controls on public 
spaces. 
Unlike certain existing powers that are ‘here to stay’, the PSPO is time limited to a 
maximum of three years before a process of renewal or termination.  However, this 
maximum period, or even constituent parts of the PSPO, can be further time-limited so 
that their effect can be measured in the short-term, and a decision made whether to 
continue. If the PSPO application proves beneficial then it can be renewed (with or 
without modifications) after the shorter time period (it could be viewed as a pilot 
period), but if the application of the powers is causing negative and unhelpful 
consequences then it can end sooner.  
 
Council Officers could modify and extend the PSPO 
Any modification of the PSPO can only be agreed by Full Council, and only where 
there is justification to do so. 
 
The proposed prohibitions and restrictions are targeted at the street homeless – 
why don’t you help them instead? 
The proposed PSPO are intended to deal with persistent anti-social behaviour that is 
having a detrimental impact on local communities, and is not targeted at any particular 
group such as the street community. 
 
Whilst the ‘statutory consultees’ such as the Police, DCC and PCC were largely in 
favour of all six of the prohibitions and restrictions, this was not reflected in the public 
consultation, with 2 (begging, encampments & confiscation of encampment materials) 
receiving 17%  and 26% support respectively, and the other 3 (intoxicating substances, 
urination and anti-social behaviour) receiving support from 44% to 48% of the 
representations. If one looks beyond the yes/no answer, the qualifications generally 
show concern about the application of the PSPO to members of the Street Community, 
(i.e. street homeless), and illustrate a lack of knowledge about the support services that 
already exist to assist the Street Community, as well as a misunderstanding about the 
need to draft terms that have legal force in a way that is enforceable on the ground 
(e.g. they appear black and white), but that may be subject to local protocol in the way 
they are applied (e.g. someone enjoying a picnic washed down with a 33cl bottle of 
beer on Cathedral Green, would not be deemed to be causing ASB and subject to 
intervention under the PSPO).  
The consultation results, however, do give scope to modify the proposed prohibitions 
and restrictions in light of the consultation feed-back, and that has been done. 
 
 

Page 258



APPENDIX 2E 
 
 
The Police already have powers to deal with taking intoxicating substances in a 
public space, begging, and urinating. 
 
Alcohol – this is already covered by a Designated Public Places Order (DPPO) 
brought in some years ago in 2005 because of problematical drinking by groups of 
street drinkers whose behaviour was perceived as upsetting and threatening by other 
users of public spaces, although the area is slightly smaller than the proposed PSPO. 
This is enforced by the Police and has been proportionately applied during the 11 
years it has been in force, significantly reducing the problem that Exeter used to have.  
 
It has also been successfully used during Freshers’ Week to discourage the practice of 
intoxicated students carrying bottles of wine and spirits to ‘swig’ on the street as they 
move from pub to club.  
 
Under the new legislation, the Council will have to sanction replacement of the DPPO 
with a PSPO by October 2017 or the DPPO will end. There is still be a need for such a 
restriction so will need a PSPO to cover anti-social alcohol consumption. 
 
Psychoactive Substances - Legal Highs 
In recent years this has become a major menace in many areas including Exeter. 
Psychoactive Substances (PS) are unpredictable in their effect, but are often mixed 
with hard drugs (heroin, cocaine, etc.) or alcohol. Intoxicated persons can become very 
aggressive, or very passive and vulnerable. Despite legislation to criminalise supply of 
PS’s in April this year, consumption remains legal, and supply has gone ‘underground’, 
and readily available over the internet from abroad. We still experience very 
problematical behaviour from people taking PS’s in public spaces in Exeter, and 
therefore need the PSPO to assist in managing this down. 
 
Begging & Aggressive Begging 
Begging is a real problem in Exeter city centre with most busy foot-fall locations having 
people begging along. In terms of attitudes to begging, society is probably equally 
divided, with altruistic givers and those who are uncomfortable with begging. There are 
incidents of aggressive begging or beggars purposely targeting car-park pay points or 
ATMs, together with high foot-fall areas outside the entrances of shops, etc. A worrying 
trend that has recently been discovered is that of coercive begging, where a controlling 
person is using vulnerable members of the Street Community to collect money for them 
by proxy through begging. 
 
However, there are aspects of begging that the public are generally unaware of – they 
are generally unaware of the support that beggars have access to, they are unaware 
that some have accommodation and lose that accommodation because they chose to 
beg in the lucrative night time economy, and they are unaware that for some recipients 
the donations they give are used to pay for a drug or alcohol addiction. Begging can 
help sustain a person’s existence on the streets and strengthen their street attachment, 
making it less likely that they will access support services and chose a pathway off the 
streets. For these reasons alone, giving money to people begging should be generally 
discouraged; instead it would be more beneficial to give food or a hot beverage and 
donate money to a recognised charity.  
 
The Police already have powers under the Vagrancy Act to prosecute someone for 
begging, but obtaining the evidence to satisfy the Act can be problematical, and the 
resource needed to commence enforcement proceedings can be a barrier. 
Furthermore, such action gives the beggar a criminal record. In terms of prioritisation of 

Page 259



APPENDIX 2E 
 
 
Police resources, dealing with begging will often be competing with higher policing 
priorities. 
 
There is a distinction between ‘passive begging’ (e.g. where someone is sat at a shop 
entrance collecting money from a hat), and someone who purposefully places 
themselves beside a pay-point or cash-point, where members of the public have to 
take out their money or bank cards in order to use the facility, or someone who 
proactively walks up to a person to demand money in an intimidating manner; these 
latter two examples may be described as ‘aggressive begging’ due to their intimidating 
nature and higher likelihood to cause fear, alarm or distress to a member of the public 
so approached. For this reason, the PSPO restrictions have been revised to only seek 
to control aggressive begging. 
 
 
The PSPO can be used to discourage aggressive begging in a more helpful way, for 
example a FPN can be issued retrospectively with the choice of paying the penalty or 
entering into an Acceptable Behaviour Contract (ABC) promising to desist from 
aggressive begging in parts of Exeter.  
 
Where else can someone urinate if public toilets are closed? 
Street urination is a problem that many businesses in the city centre complain about, 
when premises are urinated against during the night, necessitating a clean-up when 
staff open their premises in the morning. It happens a mainly in the night time economy 
when often intoxicated revellers neglect to visit the toilet before leaving at their last 
drinking establishment, and overtly relieve themselves in public on the way to the next 
establishment. 
 
The Police can deal with such incidences as disorderly conduct, or indecent exposure, 
but it is an activity that is often overlooked in favour of more pressing issues of disorder 
and assaults. There is also an Exeter byelaw (Good Rule and Governance Byelaw – 
Urinating or Defecating in any Street or Public Place made under S.235 of the Local 
Government Act 1972) that makes it offence to urinate or defecate in a public place; 
this is enforceable by Council officers, but would give the perpetrator a criminal record 
on conviction.  
 
The PSPO power, would allow the service of a FPN served retrospectively following a 
Police intervention, and could include an option for an ABC to help change future 
behaviour. 
 
The Council will be examining the potential to open a public toilet for night-time use in 
addition to the temporary urinals that are provided during busy night-times around 
Christmas and Freshers’ Week. 
 
Street Encampments 
There were many questions and comments regarding the proposed restriction on street 
encampments, and in response to the consultation that showed little support for this 
proposal, the restriction has been removed. Therefore, answers to these comments 
and questions have not been provided in this document. 
 
Anti-social behaviour from groups or individuals 
The rowdy or other anti-social behaviour of groups and individuals can escalate where 
it becomes unpleasant and threatening to other users of public spaces, both in the day 
time and night time; whilst intoxication may be part of this, it is not always so. The 
PSPO would give the ability for the Police to intervene and prevent an escalation of 

Page 260



APPENDIX 2E 
 
 
such behaviour, and issue a FPN containing an option of an ABC if the ASB continues 
or recurs. 
 
Dispersal 
The S.35 Dispersal Order that operated in the city centre lapsed some years ago. 
Dispersal is an effective tool for dealing dynamically with a group of people, or an 
individual, behaving in an anti-social way, and is a mechanism that the Police are well-
versed in using. The Dispersal Order powers have been replaced with provisions under 
the new Act, which allow someone to be directed to be dispersed from an area for up 
to 48 hours; failure to comply is a serious offence with a Level 4 fine and/or 3 months 
imprisonment. Although there is no need for pre-designation and publicity, before a 
direction to disperse can be given, an Inspector (or above) must authorise such; this 
can prove problematical when Police resources are stretched, e.g. a recent fair taking 
place over a weekend generated significant ASB from gangs of youths, and seeking 
authority on the night failed due to stretched resources, but was put into place on 
subsequent nights with good effect. The authorisation only lasts 48 hours, so is 
intended for reactive situations in smaller localities. 
Having the dispersal power as part of the PSPO would mirror the previous Dispersal 
Order, allowing proactive interventions as well as reacting to a developing issue, to ‘nip 
things in the bud’. The intention is to limit any dispersal period to 6 hours, which is 
normally sufficient to deal with an issue. Failure to comply can be dealt with by means 
of a FPN, rather than prosecution. 
 
Changes to Restriction and Prohibitions 
In response to the public consultation, the prohibitions and restrictions can all be 
altered to reflect concerns expressed about the potential implementation of the PSPO. 
This alterations will include: 

1. Periods of notice in issuing a direction to remove or surrender encampment 
material (in essence, following our current procedure for removing camping and 
bedding).  

2. The option of signing an Acceptable Behaviour Contract rather than a fee, when 
issued with a FPN. This can also include a promise to make positive actions, 
such as accessing Addiction Services (something that Lincoln have introduced). 

 
 
The PSPO is being used by the Council to cleanse public areas, isn’t it? 
PSPOs are a flexible tool to be used to combat ASB, not cleanse an area. They must 
replace existing Orders such as Designated Public Places Orders and Dog Control 
Orders by October 2017, so the Council will need to implement these in order to retain 
these controls.  
 
Any new Gating Order (to gate off a problematical lane running behind a terrace of 
houses for example) is now replaced with a PSPO (in effect a mini-PSPO). Now or in 
the future, there may well be circumstances where a more localised PSPO is needed 
to deal with specific ASB issues on a housing estate for example; the legislation allows 
for ‘slimmed down’ consultation and implementation where the PSPO is smaller in area 
and powers. 
 
It should not be forgotten that the PSPO power is for Councils to use wisely in 
managing down ASB that is causing a detrimental effect the quality of life of those in a 
locality, and that this ASB is persistent or continuing in nature. For those exposed to 
the ASB, their quality of life can be severely affected, and the Council together with the 
Police, has a responsibility to those people. 

Page 261



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

   

   

  
 

     

02-Jan-
15 

13:22:00 Begging Police Called Moved On   Gandy Street 

02-Jan-
15 

14:16:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending   Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

02-Jan-
15 

14:15:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending   High Street 

03-Jan-
15 

20:08:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made Male arrived on bike and several 
known users approach him and he 
takes them to alleyway and suspected 
dealing. Male was in possession of 
drugs and money. 

Smythen Street 

08-Jan-
15 

10:31:00 Drug related Police Called Not Found EBAC report that 3 males in the 
alleyway next to their shop were taking 
drugs. 

Fore Street 

08-Jan-
15 

12:00:00 Drug related Monitored Words of Advice   High Street 

09-Jan-
15 

15:00:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Report of an assault on a MOP by a 
female in a light coat. Saw a female 
with 2 males begging etc. in the 
alleyway from Bampfylde Street to 
Sidwell Street - PCSO's attended and 
security from shop who established 
that this was the offender 

Sidwell Street 

15-Jan-
15 

12:20:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called No complaints   Queen Street 

P
age 263



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16-Jan-
15 

18:04:00 Anti-Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Tall male black jacket and blue jeans 
with shorter male in light hoody and 
dark trousers. Taller male shouted 
abuse at staff and that he hated Exeter. 
Walked off towards City Centre 

Sidwell Street 

16-Jan-
15 

12:00:00 Domestic Dispute PCSO Called Words of Advice   High Street 

17-Jan-
15 

13:14:00 Anti-Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Male reported by member of staff saw 
him urinating and in the process 
exposing himself outside of their store. 

Sidwell Street 

17-Jan-
15 

12:30:00 Anti-Social Behaviour Police Called Known Offender Store reporting a group outside their 
store using foul language. Group 
moved off before Police attended 

Fore Street 

17-Jan-
15 

14:54:00 Drug related Police Called Not Found   Dix's Field 

18-Jan-
15 

11:16:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male next to The Ship. Seen receiving 
money from several people. 

Martins Lane 

18-Jan-
15 

10:03:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Arrest Made Male smashing bottles and pulling 
shelving down. Shop evacuated. 
Ambulance attended a male had cuts 
due to breaking the shop window 

South Street 

19-Jan-
15 

12:06:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made   Cathedral Yard 

20-Jan-
15 

08:41:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called S 30 Dispersal   Longbrook Street 

P
age 264



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

20-Jan-
15 

10:27:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On   Iron Bridge 

26-Jan-
15 

10:00:00 Begging Monitored Police Called   Martins Lane 

28-Jan-
15 

07:05:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Police Not Attending Individual causing problems outside the 
store 

High Street 

30-Jan-
15 

23:05:00 Vandalism / Damage Police Called Arrest Made Report about a male kicking cars. 
Kicked several wing mirrors. 

Smythen Street 

31-Jan-
15 

02:36:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints Female starts a fight and another male 
joins in. 

Fore Street 

31-Jan-
15 

03:04:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known Report of female knocked out. Just 
before incident some footage is seen of 
the female assaulting the male 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

02-Feb-
15 

08:15:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender   High Street 

02-Feb-
15 

15:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Male apparently been taking legal 
highs, causing problem.  

Smythen Street 

02-Feb-
15 

10:59:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering   Smythen Street 

02-Feb-
15 

12:45:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender   Paris Street 

02-Feb-
15 

11:51:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Security reporting drug use in their 
service area 

Paul Street 

03-Feb-
15 

12:18:00 Drink related Police Called Not Found   Paris Street 

03-Feb-
15 

08:50:00 Drink related Monitored Police Not Attending   Sidwell Street 

P
age 265



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

03-Feb-
15 

15:41:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Not Found "2  males reported by MOP as drug 
dealing in Richmond Road." males 
matching description seen briefly 
turning towards the rear of Co-op but 
not found by Police 

Queen Street 

04-Feb-
15 

08:07:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found 2 men acting oddly at the back of the 
RAMM 

Queen Street 

04-Feb-
15 

14:50:00 Drug related Monitored Not Found Store state they have a couple of males 
in the alley possibly dealing drugs. 

Fore Street 

08-Feb-
15 

09:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Ambulance Attended Saw male passing John Lewis - naked 
from waist down. Police attended, 
supplied him with some trousers. 
Ambulance attended as he had a cut to 
his head but main concern for his 
mental health 

Sidwell Street 

08-Feb-
15 

18:10:00 Criminal Damage Monitored Result not known Reporting 2 males chasing into the 
shop knocking over and damaging 
bottles of wine etc. 

Fore Street 

09-Feb-
15 

09:30:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering   Smythen Street 

09-Feb-
15 

18:35:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice 2 males involved in assault. Sidwell Street 

11-Feb-
15 

15:25:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On   Sidwell Street 

11-Feb-
15 

10:35:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering   Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

P
age 266



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

11-Feb-
15 

11:20:00 Drug related Monitored Police Called Male seen very unsteady on his feet - 
wandered off over Iron Bridge. Police 
attended and took male in car 

North Street 

11-Feb-
15 

11:15:00 Drug related Monitored Police Not Attending Male possibly on legal highs staggering 
around Princesshay. 

Bedford Street 

12-Feb-
15 

15:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

PCSO Called Moved On Female refusing to leave the premises 
and quiet aggressive 

Sidwell Street 

17-Feb-
15 

23:00:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Intel. Gathering Two males and a known female drug 
user seen in the alleyway, with several 
known drug users coming and going 
from the alley. Was stop checked but 
not taken back for a search. 

Gandy Street 

17-Feb-
15 

10:45:00 Drug related Police Called Ticket/Fine Issued 4 males seen drinking and smoking 
from a glass pipe. Was found with mall 
amount of herbal cannabis. 

George Street 

23-Feb-
15 

16:00:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Male and female fighting over a small 
puppy. 

Queen Street 

24-Feb-
15 

07:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Male shouting randomly in High Street High Street 

25-Feb-
15 

14:45:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male became aggressive and lunged at 
PCSO 

Cathedral Yard 

P
age 267



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

26-Feb-
15 

15:30:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Report of 2 males fighting by Cathedral 
School.2 seen walking towards 
Cathedral Yard possibly the same - 
monitored to High Street and Mary 
Arches car Park area 

Palace Gate 

27-Feb-
15 

12:10:00 Begging PCSO Called Police Not Attending 2 females begging  Sidwell Street 

27-Feb-
15 

08:22:00 Drink related Monitored Not Found Male being abusive to store Sidwell Street 

28-Feb-
15 

17:55:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male threatened manager of the store High Street 

03-Mar-
15 

17:50:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On   Cathedral Yard 

04-Mar-
15 

08:35:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored "all stores" alert made   High Street 

04-Mar-
15 

16:42:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Resolved Male refusing to leave the store. Sidwell Street 

05-Mar-
15 

17:51:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice   BOLO 

06-Mar-
15 

18:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Police Called Restaurant reported that 4 males in 
light grey tops were outside and had 
been in and out of their restaurant 
although they are banned. 

High Street 

06-Mar-
15 

15:15:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male and female begging Martins Lane 

12-Mar-
15 

12:50:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Intel. Gathering   Cathedral Yard 

P
age 268



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16-Mar-
15 

09:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On   High Street 

16-Mar-
15 

15:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

PCSO Called Result not known   High Street 

17-Mar-
15 

13:30:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Male refusing to leave the shop 
aggressive behaviour 

Sidwell Street 

22-Mar-
15 

09:38:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Report of an assault on a male - 
ambulance on scene. On reviewing 
footage a male pushes second male 
over in the road causing him to bang 
his head. 

Sidwell Street 

22-Mar-
15 

10:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made   Smythen Street 

24-Mar-
15 

11:42:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male begging next to the Ship inn Martins Lane 

24-Mar-
15 

13:10:00 Drink related Ambulance Called Ambulance Attended   Cowick Street 

24-Mar-
15 

09:00:00 Drug related Cleansing Informed Resolved   Bampfylde Street 

26-Mar-
15 

10:45:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On   Queen Street 

27-Mar-
15 

15:07:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Shouting at people from a bus stop opp 
college. 

Queen Street 

29-Mar-
15 

17:19:00 Drink related Police Called No offences Male refusing to leave after being 
denied sale of alcohol 

Queen Street 

31-Mar-
15 

11:00:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering   Red Lion Lane 

P
age 269



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

31-Mar-
15 

12:35:00 Drug related Police Called Known Offender Male injecting in the stairway. King William Street 
Car Park 

31-Mar-
15 

12:10:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints Saw a male approx. 13yrs punching and 
kicking a much older male. 

Smythen Street 

01-Apr-
15 

15:20:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male begging very aggressive to people 
passing him - 

High Street 

01-Apr-
15 

09:19:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending   High Street 

08-Apr-
15 

15:15:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender   High Street 

08-Apr-
15 

09:44:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On   Gandy Street 

08-Apr-
15 

11:19:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On   Sidwell Street 

08-Apr-
15 

12:26:00 Begging Police Called Moved On   Gandy Street 

08-Apr-
15 

12:40:00 Begging Police Called Moved On   Martins Lane 

08-Apr-
15 

12:40:00 Begging Police Called Moved On   Martins Lane 

10-Apr-
15 

15:30:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male stopped re criminal damage to 
display cabinets 

Fore Street 

11-Apr-
15 

08:05:00 Drug related Cleansing Informed Resolved Drug items discarded Smythen Street 

13-Apr-
15 

12:51:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender   Queen Street 

13-Apr-
15 

12:47:00 Drink related Monitored Not Found Concerned MOP reported drunk male Cathedral Yard 

P
age 270



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

14-Apr-
15 

09:30:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering Male conducted several circuits of City 
Centre on bike. Met a group  in Sidwell 
Street for a couple of minutes before 
cycling back to High Street 

Sidwell Street 

15-Apr-
15 

11:20:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made   Sidwell Street 

18-Apr-
15 

09:08:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On   Cathedral Yard 

19-Apr-
15 

10:40:00 Begging Police Called Moved On   Fore Street 

19-Apr-
15 

11:12:00 Begging Police Called Moved On   Fore Street 

19-Apr-
15 

22:00:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Intel. Gathering   High Street 

22-Apr-
15 

09:06:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation   South Street 

22-Apr-
15 

15:41:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Known Offender   Musgrave Row 

23-Apr-
15 

16:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Male seen with a wheelie bin tipped 
over, removing contents and stuffing 
some up his top. A MOP said he had a 
Stanley knife so Police attended and 
searched him. 

Cathedral Yard 

23-Apr-
15 

18:50:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored On-going observation Report by MOP of drug dealing. Coombe Street 

26-Apr-
15 

01:21:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male seen being aggressive to girl and 
kicking a car causing damage. 

George Street 

P
age 271



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

26-Apr-
15 

15:30:00 Drink related Monitored Arrest Made Male in drink on the green run from 
police 

Cathedral Yard 

26-Apr-
15 

16:05:00 Drink related Police Called Arrest Made Urinating Fore Street 

27-Apr-
15 

10:12:00 Begging Police Called Arrest Made   South Street 

27-Apr-
15 

17:30:00 Drink related PCSO Called Moved On Male moved on from door way of the 
shop. 

Queen Street 

28-Apr-
15 

14:50:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

PCSO Called Moved On Male in drink Fore Street 

03-May-
15 

22:52:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Two males in High Street - one male 
assaults the other. 

High Street 

07-May-
15 

11:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored "all stores" alert made Male and Female appeared to be under 
influence of drink or drugs. Male being 
abusive 

High Street 

10-May-
15 

09:37:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice   Sidwell Street 

10-May-
15 

12:20:00 Drug related Monitored Moved On Male appeared to be under the 
influence of drugs. 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

11-May-
15 

18:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Made Male causing a nuisance with females. Cathedral Yard 

12-May-
15 

14:15:00 Drink related Monitored Police Called People drinking alcohol Quay Hill 

13-May-
15 

22:26:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Police Not Attending Female urinating in Clark's shop 
doorway. 

High Street 

P
age 272



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
13-May-

15 
16:40:00 Causing Disturbance / 

Nuisance 
Monitored Arrest Made   Sidwell Street 

14-May-
15 

09:52:00 Drink related Police Called Police Called Male arrested - suspected drug dealing High Street 

14-May-
15 

17:31:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Police Called Possible drug taking Gandy Street 
Alleyway between High Street and 
Gandy Street - Police called. 

Gandy Street 

15-May-
15 

22:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Intel. Gathering Group of males urinating in the street 
outside White Hart Hotel 

South Street 

17-May-
15 

18:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Words of Advice Report of youths throwing missiles 
from a high wall near the Quay. 

Coombe Street 

21-May-
15 

15:45:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Not Found Female abusive to a member of staff - 
Standing outside premises. 

Sidwell Street 

22-May-
15 

00:40:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Intel. Gathering Approx. 15 people approx. a male who 
appears to be dealing drugs. Possibly 
cocaine as these people are seen to 
sniff it up their noses. 

Smythen Street 

23-May-
15 

02:10:00 Vandalism / Damage Ambulance Called Result not known Male punches window of Duke of York 
pub, smashing it and causes a massive 
laceration to his arm. Needed an 
ambulance for severe bleeding. 

York Road 

27-May-
15 

13:14:00 Drug related Monitored Words of Advice   St Thomas PG 

31-May-
15 

12:04:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Not Found   BOLO 

P
age 273



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
31-May-

15 
01:33:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Male seen throwing punches at 

another male. 
High Street 

04-Jun-
15 

13:26:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Resolved Group of 8 causing a nuisance Fore Street 

04-Jun-
15 

16:00:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male begging on the Cathedral Green. Cathedral Yard 

05-Jun-
15 

11:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

PCSO Called Words of Advice Male shouting in the street at taxi 
drivers. 

Sidwell Street 

05-Jun-
15 

23:25:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made Male dealing to a group of males. Market Street 

08-Jun-
15 

11:55:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Known Offender Suspected drug dealing. Cathedral Yard 

09-Jun-
15 

16:08:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Not Found   Sidwell Street 

10-Jun-
15 

15:03:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male approaching public asking for 
money  

Sidwell Street 

10-Jun-
15 

18:25:00 Begging PCSO Called Not Found   High Street 

10-Jun-
15 

14:00:00 Begging PCSO Called Words of Advice Persistently begging over a long period. Queen Street 

10-Jun-
15 

18:20:00 Drink related PCSO Called Resolved Group of people outside drinking 
alcohol not purchased from the pub, 
being abusive and refusing to leave. 

Fore Street 

11-Jun-
15 

11:40:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made   Cathedral Yard 

11-Jun- 13:10:00 Drug related Police Called Police Not Attending   Smythen Street 

P
age 274



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

15 

14-Jun-
15 

00:28:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Males and female fighting after they 
are removed from the premises. 

Little Queen Street 

16-Jun-
15 

14:14:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Arrest Made Male being racially abusive Little Castle Street 

17-Jun-
15 

20:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Male instore repeatedly abusive to 
staff. 

Fore Street 

18-Jun-
15 

17:05:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints   High Street 

19-Jun-
15 

03:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Male urinating against shop Sidwell Street 

19-Jun-
15 

23:51:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending Male begging Gandy Street 

20-Jun-
15 

02:56:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Two females causing problems. Mary Arches Street 

20-Jun-
15 

15:00:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On 2 males aggressively begging Bampfylde Street 

20-Jun-
15 

12:05:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice   Not listed refer to 
comments 

20-Jun-
15 

14:10:00 Drug related Cleansing Informed Resolved Drug items in the ladies toilets, called 
cleansing who will attend. 

Not listed refer to 
comments 

20-Jun-
15 

03:12:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made male assaulted  Mary Arches Street 

20-Jun-
15 

03:40:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Words of Advice Male and female fighting  High Street 

21-Jun- 10:40:00 Drink related Monitored Ambulance Attended   Cathedral Yard 

P
age 275



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

15 

21-Jun-
15 

07:45:00 Drink related Police Called Resolved Distressed female in drink police took 
woman home. 

Fore Street 

22-Jun-
15 

18:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Arrest Made   North Street 

24-Jun-
15 

15:25:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Male urinating in a doorway. North Street 

24-Jun-
15 

15:02:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Female begging. Gandy Street 

24-Jun-
15 

09:46:00 Begging PCSO Called No offences   Sidwell Street 

24-Jun-
15 

09:25:00 Begging PCSO Called Words of Advice Male persistently begging Sidwell Street 

24-Jun-
15 

08:36:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Male and female appeared in drink. Princesshay 

24-Jun-
15 

10:00:00 Drink related PCSO Called Known Offender   Cathedral Yard 

24-Jun-
15 

09:05:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On   Cathedral Yard 

24-Jun-
15 

14:29:00 Drink related Police Called Police Called 3 male drinking near the war memorial. 
Loads of empty cans lying around and 
seen drinking on camera 

Cathedral Yard 

24-Jun-
15 

09:12:00 Drug related Police Called Police Called Male and female use plastic bottles as 
bongs. 

Cathedral Yard 

24-Jun-
15 

09:40:00 Drug related Monitored On-going observation   Sidwell Street 

25-Jun-
15 

09:49:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender   Gandy Street 

P
age 276



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

25-Jun-
15 

16:49:00 Begging Monitored Result not known   Gandy Street 

25-Jun-
15 

00:01:00 Drug related Monitored Not Found   BOLO 

25-Jun-
15 

19:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made 2x males fighting.  Arrest made. Market Street 

26-Jun-
15 

00:46:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Observed 3 males scuffling in street 
monitored and had entry to pubs 
refused 

Fore Street 

26-Jun-
15 

10:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour PCSO Called Moved On Taking suspected drugs / legal highs Cathedral Yard 

26-Jun-
15 

00:36:00 Anti Social Behaviour Store Watch 
Informed 

Moved On Observed male leave pub and urinate 
in public. 

Fore Street 

26-Jun-
15 

02:50:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called S 30 Dispersal Observed fight Mary Arches Street 

26-Jun-
15 

22:11:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Arrest Made Male racially abusing shopkeeper Old Tiverton Road 

27-Jun-
15 

11:01:00 Anti Social Behaviour PCSO Called Moved On Males smoking a bong in Cathedral 
Yard 

Cathedral Yard 

27-Jun-
15 

01:21:00 Criminal Damage Monitored Not Found Male alleged to have smashed window 
monitored area not found 

George Street 

27-Jun-
15 

01:15:00 Drug related Police Called Ambulance Attended Male collapsed in car park police called 
ambulance attended male taken off 

Smythen Street 

27-Jun-
15 

09:27:00 Drug related PCSO Called S 30 Dispersal Male using a plastic bottle as a bong. Cathedral Yard 

27-Jun-
15 

02:30:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Suspected sexual assault Market Street 

P
age 277



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

27-Jun-
15 

23:58:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints   South Street 

27-Jun-
15 

01:10:00 Violence - Assault Monitored On-going observation   Mary Arches Street 

28-Jun-
15 

00:46:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Female assaulted Fore Street 

28-Jun-
15 

03:00:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made   Fore Street 

28-Jun-
15 

02:56:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On   Mary Arches Street 

01-Jul-15 16:50:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Male causing general nuisance in High 
Street. 

High Street 

01-Jul-15 01:55:00 Criminal Damage Police Called No offences Male seen kicking the cash machine Bedford Street 

01-Jul-15 02:15:00 Criminal Damage - 
Graffiti 

Police Called No offences Female seen conducting graffiti High Street 

01-Jul-15 19:10:00 Drink related Monitored On-going observation Male very drunk. Cathedral Yard 

01-Jul-15 02:30:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Observed an assault by a male on 
police officer.  

High Street 

02-Jul-15 10:42:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints Group arguing and drinking Cathedral Yard 

02-Jul-15 13:34:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints 2 males under the influence of legal 
highs. 

Cathedral Yard 

02-Jul-15 07:56:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Female drinking a can of larger. Market Street 

02-Jul-15 16:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Male shouting and swearing High Street 

02-Jul-15 12:09:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Words of Advice Female causing nuisance High Street 

02-Jul-15 15:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Words of Advice Male without clothes Smythen Street 

02-Jul-15 08:53:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering Male suspected dealing drugs Fore Street 

02-Jul-15 09:20:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering   North Street 

P
age 278



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
02-Jul-15 11:19:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Police Not Attending   High Street 

02-Jul-15 11:54:00 Drug related Monitored Ambulance Attended Male under the influence of legal highs. 
Taken by ambulance. 

Sidwell Street 

03-Jul-15 08:43:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Intel. Gathering Three males smoking a bong at the side 
of Thai Orchard. 

Cathedral Yard 

03-Jul-15 22:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On male ejected from pub for ASB 
monitored male stopped him getting in 
other premises 

South Street 

03-Jul-15 17:13:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints Two known drug users abusive to 
guards. 

High Street 

03-Jul-15 09:48:00 Begging Police Called S 30 Dispersal Male begging High Street 

03-Jul-15 20:40:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored On-going observation   BOLO 

03-Jul-15 23:10:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Known Offender   Gandy Street 

03-Jul-15 02:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Police Called Male in street bleeding from face. Mary Arches Street 

03-Jul-15 02:10:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Males fighting  Fore Street 

04-Jul-15 00:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Observed male very seemed in drink 
got aggressive with people monitored 
and got him refused from other 
premises 

Fore Street 

04-Jul-15 09:40:00 Drink related Monitored "all stores" alert made Male refused drink as already under 
the influence. 

Queen Street 

04-Jul-15 22:49:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed male attack another male 
after a female had already assaulted a 
female. 

Fore Street 

P
age 279



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
04-Jul-15 00:22:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Observed door staff holding onto a 

male he then broke free and tried to 
punch another male. 

Martins Lane 

04-Jul-15 02:35:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Obs fight in street  Market Street 

05-Jul-15 15:20:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored On-going observation Possible drug dealing Market Street 

05-Jul-15 03:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Observed males fighting and door staff 
trying to restrain male. 

Market Street 

05-Jul-15 03:15:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Observed two males and a female 
arguing getting very aggressive. 

Fore Street 

06-Jul-15 23:54:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Female in possession of drugs Mary Arches Street 

06-Jul-15 10:30:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On 2 males discovered injecting in stairwell 
of Guildhall Car Park. 

North Street 

06-Jul-15 10:00:00 Drug related Monitored Not Found Report of 4 males taking drugs in the 
toilets of St Thomas Pleasure Ground.  

St Thomas PG 

06-Jul-15 13:10:00 Drug related Monitored Police Called Monitored large group drinking  Cathedral Yard 

08-Jul-15 14:50:00 Drug related PCSO Called Moved On Possible drugs deal taking place High Street 

10-Jul-15 11:58:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Arrest Made Male arrested Queen Street 

10-Jul-15 08:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints Male throwing rubbish around. Gandy Street 

10-Jul-15 09:34:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints Group throwing rubbish around Cathedral Yard 

10-Jul-15 11:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No offences Male behaving erratically Fore Street 

10-Jul-15 10:25:00 Drug related Police Called Police Not Attending   North Street 

10-Jul-15 23:00:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice 3 females pushing and shoving each 
other getting aggressive 

High Street 

P
age 280



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
11-Jul-15 13:40:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Report of 2 males using a bong on the 

Green near St Martins Church 
Cathedral Yard 

11-Jul-15 22:40:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Observed male begging Sidwell Street 

11-Jul-15 01:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted in street  Mary Arches Street 

12-Jul-15 16:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints   High Street 

12-Jul-15 09:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Police Not Attending   High Street 

12-Jul-15 11:07:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Police Not Attending   High Street 

12-Jul-15 13:27:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male aggressively begging. High Street 

12-Jul-15 01:46:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Male causing problems  High Street 

12-Jul-15 10:41:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Police Called Suspected drug dealing taking place Guinea Street 

12-Jul-15 03:00:00 Vandalism / Damage Police Called Police Not Attending Observed male in a tutu carrying a 
large branch that had been broken off 
a tree in High Street 

High Street 

12-Jul-15 03:05:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Group of males squaring up to each 
other  

Fore Street 

12-Jul-15 01:48:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called No complaints Male being aggressive towards door 
staff 

Fore Street 

12-Jul-15 03:50:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Resolved Male detained  by door staff  Mary Arches Street 

13-Jul-15 08:59:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Breach of criminal behaviour order. Fore Street 

13-Jul-15 10:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Words of Advice Male begging and shouting at people Sidwell Street 

13-Jul-15 08:48:00 Drug related Monitored Intel. Gathering 3 persons injecting in public space. Guinea Street 

13-Jul-15 11:56:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored No offences male abusive to staff High Street 

P
age 281



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
13-Jul-15 08:00:00 Violence - Assault Monitored No complaints Male punched in the face  Cathedral Yard 

13-Jul-15 20:28:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Police Called Violence between a large group, 
involved a female in pink smashing a 
bottle and threatening another female. 

Cathedral Yard 

14-Jul-15 09:40:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored On-going observation   City Centre General 

14-Jul-15 00:19:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Not Found Couple arguing loudly in street  Iron Bridge 

16-Jul-15 16:21:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Words of Advice Male shouting about at the public and 
walking in the road. 

High Street 

16-Jul-15 13:50:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Police Called Male seen assaulting female Sidwell Street 

17-Jul-15 15:45:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male aggressively begging  High Street 

18-Jul-15 09:32:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Street drinkers Sidwell Street 

18-Jul-15 07:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints   High Street 

18-Jul-15 08:53:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No offences Male under the influence of drugs/legal 
high.  

High Street 

18-Jul-15 09:58:00 Begging Monitored On-going observation   Gandy Street 

18-Jul-15 21:14:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Group of youngsters causing 
disturbance in area 

Gandy Street 

18-Jul-15 02:12:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Male causing a disturbance Fore Street 

18-Jul-15 21:25:00 Drink related Monitored Resolved Male in drink got aggressive when 
refused entry to pub  

Gandy Street 

18-Jul-15 02:13:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Female arguing with door staff and 
getting abusive. 

Mary Arches Street 

18-Jul-15 00:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Large group fighting High Street 

P
age 282



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
19-Jul-15 00:02:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Male getting aggressive High Street 

19-Jul-15 21:40:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Intoxicated male causing nuisance to 
the public.   

Queen Street 

19-Jul-15 03:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fight in street Mary Arches Street 

19-Jul-15 01:35:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Taxi marshal called ref aggressive 
female trying to punch male 

Fore Street 

19-Jul-15 22:54:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Resolved Aggressive male Fore Street 

20-Jul-15 09:43:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Male was begging Sidwell Street 

20-Jul-15 08:50:00 Begging Monitored Words of Advice Report of begging by a male Fore Street 

21-Jul-15 15:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Known Offender Male being a nuisance and abusive to 
passers-by. 

Fore Street 

21-Jul-15 08:48:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male was begging High Street 

21-Jul-15 09:31:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male begging Martins Lane 

21-Jul-15 09:08:00 Begging Police Called Moved On   Sidwell Street 

21-Jul-15 11:53:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending Begging near cash point. Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

21-Jul-15 15:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Ambulance Attended Male causing problems to ambulance 
crew attending him due to drug 
overdose 

Castle Street 

21-Jul-15 12:48:00 Drink related Police Called Police Not Attending Male laid on pavement - appeared 
drunk or drugged, no shoes. 

High Street 

21-Jul-15 14:45:00 Drink related Monitored Result not known Report of a drunk male with a dog in 
distress. 

Sidwell Street 

21-Jul-15 12:15:00 Drug related Monitored Ambulance Attended Male collapsed on the green Cathedral Yard 

P
age 283



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
21-Jul-15 16:52:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Male reported as staggering around 

possible danger to himself.  
North Street 

21-Jul-15 09:50:00 Drug related Monitored Not Found Report of a male possibly passed out 
with drug paraphernalia near him 

High Street 

21-Jul-15 13:48:00 Drug related Police Called Police Not Attending   Guinea Street 

21-Jul-15 10:10:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Breach of Criminal Behaviour Order Fore Street 

22-Jul-15 15:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Anti-Social Behaviour Gandy Street 

22-Jul-15 01:11:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On 8x males fighting.   High Street 

23-Jul-15 11:50:00 Drink related Police Called Arrest Made 2 males drinking & urinating in the 
alleyway  

Sidwell Street 

23-Jul-15 09:45:00 Drink related PCSO Called Moved On Male in drink laid out on the pavement. Smythen Street 

23-Jul-15 10:45:00 Drink related Monitored Police Called Group drinking on the steps of the corn 
exchange. 

Market Street 

24-Jul-15 19:50:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On 4 men taking drugs/smoking  Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

25-Jul-15 04:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Arrest Made Female assault on Police Officer. South Street 

25-Jul-15 01:15:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Known male to deal class A. Stop 
checked and found in possession. 

Little Queen Street 

26-Jul-15 15:30:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male sat near cash machine begging Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

26-Jul-15 13:34:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male sat in shop doorway asking MOP 
for money. 

High Street 

26-Jul-15 12:55:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Male under influence of drugs Fore Street 

26-Jul-15 13:09:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Male staggering around. Cathedral Yard 

P
age 284



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
27-Jul-15 12:55:00 Causing Disturbance / 

Nuisance 
Monitored Known Offender Call advising that a male was 

approaching MOP and annoying them, 
possibly begging. 

Fore Street 

27-Jul-15 15:23:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Person Found Male and female, both in drink arguing BOLO 

27-Jul-15 10:21:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender   Cathedral Yard 

27-Jul-15 10:40:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Police Not Attending   Cathedral Yard 

27-Jul-15 17:10:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender 2 males heavily under the influence of 
drugs and drinking in the alleyway 

Sidwell Street 

27-Jul-15 02:37:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Group of 6 males in South St.  1x male 
on the floor. 

South Street 

27-Jul-15 09:42:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Advised that a male in their doorway 
was claiming that a second male in a 
white baseball cap was threatening 
him. 

Fore Street 

28-Jul-15 11:55:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Female drinking alcohol Cathedral Yard 

28-Jul-15 19:10:00 Drink related Police Called Resolved Collapsed male surrounded by a group Sidwell Street 

28-Jul-15 12:20:00 Drug related PCSO Called Concerned For Welfare Male on wall heavily under influence of 
drugs 

Cathedral Yard 

28-Jul-15 14:41:00 Drug related Monitored Intel. Gathering   Sidwell Street 

28-Jul-15 10:20:00 Drug related Monitored Intel. Gathering Group using a bong Cathedral Yard 

28-Jul-15 12:50:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Police Not Attending Assault on male Princesshay 

29-Jul-15 18:35:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male begging and drinking Cathedral Yard 

29-Jul-15 16:40:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Known Offender Male begging and being a general 
nuisance to passers by 

Sidwell Street 

29-Jul-15 17:32:00 Drink related Monitored Police Called Male in drink being a nuisance Sidwell Street 

P
age 285



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
29-Jul-15 12:22:00 Drink related Monitored Police Not Attending Male sat on a wall heavily under the 

influence of drugs. 
Cathedral Yard 

29-Jul-15 11:55:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering   Cathedral Yard 

29-Jul-15 17:52:00 Drug related Police Called Known Offender Group of males and females smoking a 
bong  

Cathedral Yard 

29-Jul-15 18:25:00 Drug related Monitored Police Not Attending 2  males smoking a bong  Cathedral Yard 

30-Jul-15 12:00:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made   George Street 

31-Jul-15 22:25:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made Males seen to approach a car them 
money is exchanged and item handed 
over.  

George Street 

01-Aug-
15 

10:52:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Intel. Gathering Male seen dealing legal highs George Street 

01-Aug-
15 

23:18:00 Drug related Police Called No offences Observed a female snort white powder. High Street 

02-Aug-
15 

01:20:00 Drug related Police Called No offences Males seen snorting a white powder. Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

02-Aug-
15 

02:25:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed a male assault another. Later 
male was arrested at the back of Boots. 

Musgrave Row 

02-Aug-
15 

01:36:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Male assaulted  High Street 

02-Aug-
15 

03:15:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed a female being very 
aggressive towards a male.  

Fore Street 

02-Aug-
15 

03:08:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed a fight between two males Mary Arches Street 

02-Aug-
15 

03:01:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed two females having a fight Fore Street 

P
age 286



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

03-Aug-
15 

11:01:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Male using a bottle as a bong Cathedral Yard 

03-Aug-
15 

13:03:00 Drug related Police Called Police Not Attending 2 males using tin foil to take drugs. Cathedral Yard 

04-Aug-
15 

10:12:00 Drink related Monitored Police Not Attending Group  drinking in public Cathedral Yard 

04-Aug-
15 

13:30:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Report of 2 people taking drugs by the 
side of the Cathedral. 

Cathedral Yard 

04-Aug-
15 

19:45:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Males aggressive towards  Police Cathedral Yard 

04-Aug-
15 

21:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Observed group of males squaring up 
to each other then fighting. 

Queen Street 

05-Aug-
15 

18:25:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male approaching public aggressively High Street 

05-Aug-
15 

11:30:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male near cashpoint Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

05-Aug-
15 

10:24:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male Martins Lane 

05-Aug-
15 

09:50:00 Drink related PCSO Called Words of Advice   Cathedral Yard 

05-Aug-
15 

11:40:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Known Offender   Sidwell Street 

06-Aug-
15 

15:10:00 Drink related PCSO Called Moved On Male  drinking from a bottle Sidwell Street 

06-Aug-
15 

08:52:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Police Called   Fore Street 

08-Aug-
15 

01:45:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed a group of males fighting High Street 

P
age 287



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

08-Aug-
15 

03:20:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Observed a group of males and females 
fighting at the taxi rank. 

Fore Street 

08-Aug-
15 

01:10:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Ticket/Fine Issued Observed 3 males being very aggressive 
towards another male. Then there was 
a fight.  

Mary Arches Street 

08-Aug-
15 

02:50:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Observed a group males in a 
threatening behaviour towards 2 males 
at the traffic light. 

South Street 

09-Aug-
15 

05:28:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Observed a male smash a window with 
a bottle and then with his hands.  

Smythen Street 

09-Aug-
15 

00:47:00 Drink related Police Called Not Found Observed 3 males snorting white 
powder. 

George Street 

09-Aug-
15 

01:35:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Words of Advice Observed a male head-butt and punch 
a male in his nose.  

Mary Arches Street 

09-Aug-
15 

00:56:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Words of Advice Male has been assaulted  Fore Street 

11-Aug-
15 

17:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Intel. Gathering Reported male with a bag full of gas 
canisters. Saw male with 2 females 
using the gas via a balloon. One female 
seen vomiting. 

Fore Street 

11-Aug-
15 

07:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Requested 2 males to be moved on 
from the pavement outside their store. 

High Street 

11-Aug-
15 

23:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Male causing disturbance Smythen Street 

11-Aug-
15 

15:54:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Known Offender   Sidwell Street 

P
age 288



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

11-Aug-
15 

16:58:00 Drug related Police Called Known Offender Male in blue/grey jacket and blue jeans 
seen constructing a bong. 

Cathedral Yard 

12-Aug-
15 

07:40:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On   Cathedral Yard 

12-Aug-
15 

16:53:00 Begging Monitored Words of Advice Female  Queen Street 

12-Aug-
15 

21:40:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Female causing problems Smythen Street 

12-Aug-
15 

06:05:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Not Made Observed group in cathedral yard 
passing needles and drugs around. 

Cathedral Yard 

12-Aug-
15 

09:15:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering   New North Road 

12-Aug-
15 

10:33:00 Drug related Monitored Intel. Gathering   Cathedral Yard 

12-Aug-
15 

09:25:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Female assaulted Bedford Street 

13-Aug-
15 

08:00:00 Drink related PCSO Called Not Found 2 males in the south stairwell level F - 1 
drinking. 

King William Street 
Car Park 

14-Aug-
15 

08:48:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Male agitated and in drink Fore Street 

14-Aug-
15 

07:40:00 Drink related Monitored On-going observation Male agitated and in drink Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

14-Aug-
15 

09:45:00 Drink related Monitored On-going observation Male agitated and in drink Sidwell Street 

15-Aug-
15 

07:04:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Group asked to move on became 
aggressive 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

P
age 289



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

15-Aug-
15 

20:57:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male in drink became aggressive when 
refused entry 

High Street 

16-Aug-
15 

11:13:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Ambulance Attended Male shouting and acting strange in the 
street. 

South Street 

16-Aug-
15 

00:18:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made Observed male passing around drugs Sidwell Street 

16-Aug-
15 

00:15:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Observed a male with 2 others snort 
white powder.  

Sidwell Street 

16-Aug-
15 

16:41:00 Drug related PCSO Called Moved On A group of 4/5 males seen with a bong 
on Cathedral Green.  

Cathedral Yard 

16-Aug-
15 

15:39:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Report from shop of a male injecting in 
the alleyway between Bailey St and 
High St. 

Bailey Street 

16-Aug-
15 

02:02:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed male assault another male 
punching him to head several times. 

Gandy Street 

16-Aug-
15 

02:45:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Observed larger group of males fighting 
on the street.  

Mary Arches Street 

16-Aug-
15 

03:00:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Police Not Attending Fighting Fore Street 

16-Aug-
15 

00:38:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Words of Advice Observed a group fighting.  Little Queen Street 

17-Aug-
15 

08:00:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male  High Street 

19-Aug-
15 

10:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Male shouting and gesturing Sidwell Street 

19-Aug-
15 

15:17:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Person Found Male abusive to staff BOLO 

P
age 290



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

19-Aug-
15 

20:40:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Report from Police  about fighting High Street 

20-Aug-
15 

17:41:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Male shouting etc. Fore Street 

20-Aug-
15 

21:52:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Drunk male instore abusive refusing to 
leave 

Queen Street 

20-Aug-
15 

22:25:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Police reported an assault in High St High Street 

20-Aug-
15 

22:03:00 Violence - Assault Monitored No offences Alleged assault Longbrook Street 

20-Aug-
15 

21:40:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Group squaring up to each other High Street 

21-Aug-
15 

07:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Male and female drinking and trying to 
obtain more alcohol 

High Street 

21-Aug-
15 

13:15:00 Begging Monitored Intel. Gathering Male in brown hooded top. Queen Street 

21-Aug-
15 

08:24:00 Begging Monitored On-going observation Male High Street 

21-Aug-
15 

15:10:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Male and female drinking in public Sidwell Street 

21-Aug-
15 

12:15:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering   Fore Street 

21-Aug-
15 

15:55:00 Drug related Monitored Not Found Report of 2 males taking drugs in the 
toilets at Bus Station. 

Paris Street 

21-Aug-
15 

16:38:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Ambulance Attended Police requested by ambulance crew 
who were trying to attend to an 
aggressive male 

Bartholomew Street 
East 

P
age 291



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

22-Aug-
15 

17:40:00 Begging Monitored Intel. Gathering Male  Martins Lane 

25-Aug-
15 

16:50:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male trying to fight with another 
unknown male. 

High Street 

25-Aug-
15 

16:07:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice 2 males trying to fight each other 
outside the store 

High Street 

26-Aug-
15 

18:45:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male causing criminal damage to utility 
box 

Fore Street 

26-Aug-
15 

04:06:00 Criminal Damage Monitored Arrest Made Male kicked the window, breaking it. Paris Street 

27-Aug-
15 

15:52:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On unknown male and female drinking Martins Lane 

27-Aug-
15 

15:20:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging North Street 

27-Aug-
15 

14:20:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Unknown male begging in car park North Street 

28-Aug-
15 

12:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On   Sidwell Street 

28-Aug-
15 

15:03:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Female under the influence of 
something. 

High Street 

29-Aug-
15 

12:40:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints Female under the influence High Street 

31-Aug-
15 

15:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Male causing disturbance High Street 

31-Aug-
15 

09:40:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called No complaints   Fore Street 

P
age 292



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

01-Sep-
15 

10:55:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Group shouting and being annoying to 
people on street 

Cathedral Yard 

01-Sep-
15 

08:01:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Males refusing to leave the car park. King William Street 
Car Park 

02-Sep-
15 

01:55:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No offences Female drags another female out a van 
then tries to assault her.  

North Street 

02-Sep-
15 

13:15:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known Assault Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

03-Sep-
15 

09:25:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Male causing problems in the High St. Goldsmith Street 

04-Sep-
15 

09:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Male causing problems Queen Street 

04-Sep-
15 

07:35:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Male causing problems Sidwell Street 

04-Sep-
15 

16:06:00 Drink related Monitored Intel. Gathering Male in possession of needles Catherine Street 

05-Sep-
15 

00:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Male causing problems Paris Street 

05-Sep-
15 

00:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Male being aggressive South Street 

05-Sep-
15 

12:10:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Male intoxicated Fore Street 

05-Sep-
15 

01:50:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male causing abusive behaviour Gandy Street 

06-Sep-
15 

16:07:00 Anti Social Behaviour PCSO Called Words of Advice Police had a report of 2 males shouting 
and swearing  

High Street 

07-Sep- 12:25:00 Drink related Monitored Police Not Attending Male was at the bottom of the steps Paris Street 

P
age 293



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

15 

07-Sep-
15 

11:15:00 Drug related PCSO Called Known Offender 3 males seen with a bong Cathedral Yard 

08-Sep-
15 

22:15:00 Drug related Police Called No complaints Males seen smoking from a bong. Cathedral Yard 

10-Sep-
15 

04:10:00 Vandalism / Damage Monitored On-going observation Smashed window South Street 

10-Sep-
15 

03:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known Female said she was robbed and 
assaulted. 

High Street 

12-Sep-
15 

09:18:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Male using drugs and possibly begging. Market Street 

12-Sep-
15 

13:40:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored No offences Two females shouting at a market 
trader 

South Street 

12-Sep-
15 

18:54:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Assault inside a licensed premises Longbrook Street 

13-Sep-
15 

13:35:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Report of youths on the roof  Guinea Street 

13-Sep-
15 

10:40:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Arrest Made Vehicle made off at speed from PCSO BOLO 

13-Sep-
15 

10:25:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Known Offender 4 males South Street 

13-Sep-
15 

17:45:00 Violence - Assault Monitored On-going observation Assault BOLO 

14-Sep-
15 

15:01:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Male reported for behaving oddly and 
in possession of uncapped needles. 

Cathedral Yard 

14-Sep-
15 

09:58:00 Drug related Monitored Not Found Male displaying odd behaviour and in 
possession of uncapped needles 

Catherine Street 

P
age 294



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

15-Sep-
15 

14:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour PCSO Called Words of Advice Best-One store reported a black female 
drinking and shouting through their 
door 

Sidwell Street 

15-Sep-
15 

21:15:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On 2 males being aggressive towards door 
staff  

New North Road 

15-Sep-
15 

08:10:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering Male dealing Smythen Street 

16-Sep-
15 

12:53:00 Drug related Police Called Ambulance Attended Male in gent’s toilet with needle in 
himself. Police arrived and they asked 
for ambulance. 

High Street 

17-Sep-
15 

10:27:00 Drug related PCSO Called Not Found Group suspected of taking drugs Northernhay Park 

17-Sep-
15 

11:20:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Ambulance Attended Male urinated The Quay 

18-Sep-
15 

11:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Not Made Male allegedly assaulting a security 
officer 

Northernhay Park 

19-Sep-
15 

02:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Result not known 2 males having a fight.  Mary Arches Street 

21-Sep-
15 

07:40:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Female seen using drugs, injecting. Dix's Field 

21-Sep-
15 

16:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Ticket/Fine Issued Female causing a disturbance South Street 

21-Sep-
15 

02:14:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Police Called Female seen aggressively trying to hit 
two males.  

High Street 

28-Sep-
15 

15:43:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Youths running across rooftops Fore Street 

29-Sep- 10:15:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging Martins Lane 

P
age 295



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

15 

29-Sep-
15 

15:06:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male begging Martins Lane 

29-Sep-
15 

11:35:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male begging Martins Lane 

29-Sep-
15 

11:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Male being a general nuisance and 
refusing to leave the store 

Sidwell Street 

29-Sep-
15 

16:25:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Male being aggressive Smythen Street 

29-Sep-
15 

12:10:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male smashed a window Summerland Street 

29-Sep-
15 

12:05:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Abusive male ejected, then returned 
shouting abuse 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

30-Sep-
15 

00:06:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male detained for punching door staff 
in face  

Mary Arches Street 

01-Oct-
15 

16:44:00 Begging Monitored No offences Female seen begging and taking 
money. 

High Street 

01-Oct-
15 

16:58:00 Begging Monitored Words of Advice Male spoken to for begging High Street 

01-Oct-
15 

08:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Group being abusive Cathedral Yard 

01-Oct-
15 

02:03:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male observed smashing windows Sidwell Street 

01-Oct-
15 

12:02:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Group using drugs Market Street 

02-Oct-
15 

04:10:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male being abusive and threatening 
staff. 

South Street 

P
age 296



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

03-Oct-
15 

18:25:00 Drug related Police Called Result not known Male giving himself drugs.  Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

03-Oct-
15 

02:40:00 Vandalism / Damage Monitored On-going observation Male punches restaurant window Queen Street 

03-Oct-
15 

02:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Police Called Female pushing male, male pushes 
female and two males with her attack 
him. 

High Street 

04-Oct-
15 

22:56:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Two male youths kicking rubbish 
around. Opening an emergency door 
on a bus and harassing the bus driver.  

High Street 

06-Oct-
15 

10:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints Report of two dogs fighting.  Fore Street 

06-Oct-
15 

12:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation   Cathedral Yard 

06-Oct-
15 

10:50:00 Begging Police Called Arrest Made Male Fore Street 

06-Oct-
15 

00:44:00 Vandalism / Damage Monitored Arrest Made Female smashed glass and damaged 
metal to the door.  Possibly attempting 
to break in. 

Sidwell Street 

06-Oct-
15 

13:30:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Male wanted for assault found and 
arrested. 

Commercial Road 

07-Oct-
15 

18:15:00 Drug related Monitored Result not known Report of drug taking in the stairwell of 
Car Park. 

Dix's Field 

08-Oct-
15 

18:24:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Altercation reported. Saw 2 males on 
the bench and another nearby who 
appeared to be shouting and pointing 
towards the 2. 

High Street 

P
age 297



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

08-Oct-
15 

12:18:00 Drink related Police Called Arrest Made Saw a male drinking alcohol from cans. 
Then seen in the shrubs urinating in 
view of passing public. 

Sidwell Street 

08-Oct-
15 

19:15:00 Drink related Monitored On-going observation Male in leather jacket heavily in drink. High Street 

08-Oct-
15 

19:10:00 Drink related Monitored Police Not Attending Male in drink staggering in the street. Sidwell Street 

08-Oct-
15 

17:55:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Not Found Drunk male in blue/white top abusive 
to staff. 

High Street 

09-Oct-
15 

17:08:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Female begging High Street 

09-Oct-
15 

21:36:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Resolved Observed group of males kicking off 
while being ejected from restaurant 

Cathedral Yard 

09-Oct-
15 

22:48:00 Drug related Monitored On-going observation   BOLO 

09-Oct-
15 

18:45:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Words of Advice Report by MOP of potential fight 
between a group of 3 males and a 
female. 

Sidwell Street 

09-Oct-
15 

12:25:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Known Offender Male being aggressive High Street 

11-Oct-
15 

04:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called On-going observation Group of males seen fighting.  South Street 

12-Oct-
15 

09:15:00 Criminal Damage Monitored Arrest Made Criminal damage to a window High Street 

12-Oct-
15 

15:20:00 Drink related Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted paramedic who was 
attending to him. 

Cathedral Yard 

12-Oct- 18:15:00 Drug related Monitored Moved On Males suspected of using drugs High Street 

P
age 298



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

15 

13-Oct-
15 

18:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Resolved Males causing issues High Street 

13-Oct-
15 

08:40:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called No complaints Male being abusive to staff Fore Street 

13-Oct-
15 

20:16:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fight between 2 females High Street 

14-Oct-
15 

22:49:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Not Made Male being abusive Mary Arches Street 

17-Oct-
15 

16:25:00 Anti Social Behaviour PCSO Called Moved On 10 - 15 youths general nuisance 
refusing to move on 

Waterbeer Street 

17-Oct-
15 

23:49:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Males being abusive Fore Street 

17-Oct-
15 

02:38:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed male punch kick and throw 
male to ground 

Fore Street 

17-Oct-
15 

23:20:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called S 30 Dispersal Male being aggressive Fore Street 

18-Oct-
15 

16:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Breach of dispersal order North Street 

18-Oct-
15 

21:01:00 Drug related Monitored No offences 3 people suspected of drug dealing Gandy Street 

18-Oct-
15 

04:45:00 Vandalism / Damage Police Called Arrest Made Observed three males graffiti tagging 
walls and vehicle 

Musgrave Row 

18-Oct-
15 

01:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed male assault another in 
street. 

Mary Arches Street 

18-Oct-
15 

04:10:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed fight High Street 

P
age 299



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

18-Oct-
15 

00:55:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Staff reported a customer had been 
threatened by another that he would 
be stabbed. 

Fore Street 

19-Oct-
15 

03:18:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male suspect of criminal damage and 
assault  

Queen Street 

19-Oct-
15 

00:54:00 Drug related Monitored Arrest Made Report of male injecting drugs Little Castle Street 

20-Oct-
15 

11:10:00 Drink related PCSO Called Moved On Female shouting Fore Street 

22-Oct-
15 

15:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Known Offender Male causing disturbance Northernhay Park 

22-Oct-
15 

15:15:00 Begging PCSO Called Words of Advice Male begging Queen Street 

22-Oct-
15 

15:02:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Words of Advice Male allegedly grabbed a younger male 
by the throat 

Sidwell Street 

23-Oct-
15 

23:57:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On 3 males causing problems Queen Street 

23-Oct-
15 

22:47:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Drunk male refused entry being very 
abusive 

Fore Street 

23-Oct-
15 

09:20:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Known Offender   Fore Street 

23-Oct-
15 

22:55:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On 3 males trying to start fight  High Street 

24-Oct-
15 

15:31:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging  King William Street 
Car Park 

24-Oct-
15 

21:29:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Group causing disturbance in store High Street 

P
age 300



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

24-Oct-
15 

15:30:00 Drug related Monitored No complaints Male under the influence of drugs. 
Walked up to Sidwell Street where he 
fell over an advertising board. 

High Street 

24-Oct-
15 

00:01:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Male being abusive and refusing to 
leave 

New North Road 

24-Oct-
15 

00:36:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made 3 males  causing problems High Street 

25-Oct-
15 

16:40:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made 3 males using drugs Cathedral Yard 

25-Oct-
15 

08:46:00 Drug related Monitored Intel. Gathering Group using drugs Sidwell Street 

25-Oct-
15 

12:40:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored No complaints Male seen to remonstrate with the Civil 
Enforcement Officer. 

Southernhay West 

25-Oct-
15 

00:01:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints Observed assault  Fore Street 

28-Oct-
15 

00:30:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Males injecting drugs in the car park. George Street 

29-Oct-
15 

00:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Female displaying erratic behaviour. 
Throwing rubbish around. 

High Street 

29-Oct-
15 

15:20:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Resolved Unknown couple arguing pushing & 
shoving each other. 

Princesshay 

29-Oct-
15 

15:55:00 Drink related Monitored Police Not Attending Group drinking and causing noise in the 
area. 

Musgrave Row 

30-Oct-
15 

10:42:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Bampfylde Street 

30-Oct-
15 

09:55:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending Male begging Fore Street 

P
age 301



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

30-Oct-
15 

19:25:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Report of male shouting. Sidwell Street 

30-Oct-
15 

09:52:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Known Offender Male and female being aggressive Cathedral Yard 

30-Oct-
15 

14:36:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Male heavily in drink Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

30-Oct-
15 

12:00:00 Drug related Monitored Intel. Gathering Males injecting Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

30-Oct-
15 

09:36:00 Drug related Monitored Police Not Attending MOP reported group openly injecting in 
Milk Street 

Fore Street 

30-Oct-
15 

10:39:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Male in drink  Princesshay 

30-Oct-
15 

19:04:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored No complaints Male shouted racist abuse. High Street 

30-Oct-
15 

22:15:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called S 30 Dispersal Drunk abusive male Fore Street 

31-Oct-
15 

12:20:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Fore Street 

31-Oct-
15 

15:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Made Female observed seen annoying MOP. Cathedral Yard 

31-Oct-
15 

05:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called No complaints Males causing disturbance High Street 

31-Oct-
15 

11:59:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Police Not Attending Female shouting loudly at male High Street 

31-Oct-
15 

12:13:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

PCSO Called Words of Advice Female shouting loudly at male High Street 

P
age 302



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

31-Oct-
15 

11:45:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Female wandering in front of traffic High Street 

31-Oct-
15 

00:53:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints Observed male hit female Fore Street 

31-Oct-
15 

04:40:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known Males fighting High Street 

31-Oct-
15 

05:45:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known Male assaulted Fore Street 

31-Oct-
15 

00:55:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Observed two males fighting  Fore Street 

31-Oct-
15 

18:44:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Report via MOP of fight  Martins Lane 

31-Oct-
15 

00:08:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male being aggressive Fore Street 

31-Oct-
15 

05:20:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Not Found 3 males instore threatening behaviour  High Street 

31-Oct-
15 

05:30:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called S 30 Dispersal 3 males instore threatening behaviour  High Street 

01-Nov-
15 

14:08:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Female Gandy Street 

01-Nov-
15 

16:15:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male Martins Lane 

01-Nov-
15 

17:14:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Male reportedly climbing building and 
possibly with a knife 

Western Way 

01-Nov-
15 

12:48:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Males smoking a bong Cathedral Yard 

P
age 303



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

02-Nov-
15 

21:42:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed male assault female male 
arrested 

Market Street 

03-Nov-
15 

01:26:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Male causing disturbance in South St South Street 

03-Nov-
15 

01:08:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made Male suspected of dealing drugs Mary Arches Street 

03-Nov-
15 

15:55:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Ambulance Attended Male causing problems in the 
restaurant 

Cathedral Yard 

03-Nov-
15 

18:00:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Resolved Male aggressive with the security guard 
and refused to leave the store. 

High Street 

04-Nov-
15 

21:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Call via EBAC about large number of 
youths who are banned from the 
premises refusing to leave and 
throwing stuff around. 

High Street 

04-Nov-
15 

22:40:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called No offences Suspected drug dealing Bartholomew Street 
West 

04-Nov-
15 

13:07:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Intel. Gathering Male punched another male South Street 

04-Nov-
15 

16:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Resolved Males fighting Cathedral Yard 

07-Nov-
15 

21:00:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Ambulance Attended Passed out male in office  South Street 

07-Nov-
15 

23:00:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Fight inside premises Mary Arches Street 

07-Nov-
15 

23:44:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male detained for threatening door 
staff. 

Mary Arches Street 

P
age 304



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

08-Nov-
15 

00:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male detained for assault on staff. Fore Street 

08-Nov-
15 

04:20:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed male punch door staff. High Street 

09-Nov-
15 

15:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation   Sidwell Street 

09-Nov-
15 

10:56:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made Suspected drug taking Cathedral Yard 

10-Nov-
15 

22:33:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Observed male causing disturbance Smythen Street 

11-Nov-
15 

04:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed two males assault another 
and take his rucksack 

High Street 

12-Nov-
15 

07:25:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Arrest Made Unknown Male being antisocial in store 
refused to leave when asked. 

Sidwell Street 

14-Nov-
15 

23:05:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Made Male detained for public order Gandy Street 

14-Nov-
15 

02:37:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male punches another male, male 
needs ambulance after collapsing. 
Offender runs off and is followed on 
CCTV into Southernhay and arrested. 

Musgrave Row 

14-Nov-
15 

02:25:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Observed large group of males fighting. Summerland Street 

14-Nov-
15 

02:10:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Observed a group of males fighting Mary Arches Street 

15-Nov-
15 

22:24:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Report of male climbing up large crane Verney Street 

15-Nov- 03:31:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Fight taking place High Street 

P
age 305



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

15 

15-Nov-
15 

03:20:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed group of males and females 
having an argument.  

Mary Arches Street 

15-Nov-
15 

03:22:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Police advised a possible fight Summerland Street 

16-Nov-
15 

03:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Male climbing building King William Street 

16-Nov-
15 

16:30:00 Drink related Monitored Police Not Attending Female in drink and causing general 
problems. 

Sidwell Street 

17-Nov-
15 

12:54:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Known Offender Male very agitated smashing a brick on 
a wall etc. 

Smythen Street 

17-Nov-
15 

11:48:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Female Gandy Street 

17-Nov-
15 

11:41:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male Martins Lane 

17-Nov-
15 

12:15:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Police Called Male dealing to 2 males towards 
Northernhay Gardens entrance. 

Northernhay Gate 

17-Nov-
15 

07:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known Member of their staff had been 
assaulted  

Fore Street 

18-Nov-
15 

09:38:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On   North Street 

18-Nov-
15 

07:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Female  High Street 

18-Nov-
15 

19:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Well known group of youths causing 
problems with a football and being a 
nuisance 

High Street 

P
age 306



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

18-Nov-
15 

15:00:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored "all stores" alert made Female behaving oddly and bumping 
into members of the public 

Princesshay 

19-Nov-
15 

14:45:00 Drink related Police Called Arrest Made Female arrested for breach of section 
30 

Fore Street 

20-Nov-
15 

23:11:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male threatening door staff to shoot 
them all. 

Fore Street 

21-Nov-
15 

19:08:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made   High Street 

21-Nov-
15 

03:26:00 Vandalism / Damage Police Called Result not known Male being aggressive and later head-
butted the window  

High Street 

21-Nov-
15 

00:05:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Report of a male assaulting a female.  Longbrook Street 

21-Nov-
15 

02:20:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Two males fighting. Fore Street 

22-Nov-
15 

03:05:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male kicked the window in. Martins Lane 

22-Nov-
15 

02:47:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Observed female throw a bottle at 
window 

Mary Arches Street 

22-Nov-
15 

19:43:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made Dealing legal highs and other 
substances 

Market Street 

22-Nov-
15 

00:48:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaults a female inside the 
premises and is detained by door staff. 

Little Queen Street 

22-Nov-
15 

00:10:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male is receiving CRP after being 
punched and falling hitting his head on 
the floor.  

South Street 

22-Nov-
15 

02:20:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Not Found Male has been assaulted  Summerland Street 

P
age 307



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

23-Nov-
15 

18:55:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging High Street 

23-Nov-
15 

18:50:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Group of youths, one on a white 
Raleigh bike "running amok" in the 
store 

Sidwell Street 

23-Nov-
15 

15:14:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Group suspected taking drugs Guinea Street 

23-Nov-
15 

19:00:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Female being aggressive Smythen Street 

23-Nov-
15 

16:35:00 Violence - Assault Monitored On-going observation Assault Castle Street 

23-Nov-
15 

13:12:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Known Offender Male being threatening Smythen Street 

24-Nov-
15 

14:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Drunk male sat outside of the white 
company drinking 

High Street 

24-Nov-
15 

07:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Police Called Group urinating against shop windows. High Street 

24-Nov-
15 

14:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Police Called Number of people in drink outside 
being abusive 

Sidwell Street 

24-Nov-
15 

07:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Police Not Attending Female being aggressive to MOP. High Street 

24-Nov-
15 

12:50:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male Martins Lane 

24-Nov-
15 

14:40:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male Queen Street 

24-Nov-
15 

14:45:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On Group of drinkers Sidwell Street 

P
age 308



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

24-Nov-
15 

12:58:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Not Found Staff reporting suspected male dealing John Street 

25-Nov-
15 

09:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Breech of section 30 urinating in the 
alleyway. 

Sidwell Street 

25-Nov-
15 

08:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On   Sidwell Street 

25-Nov-
15 

09:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored S 30 Dispersal   Sidwell Street 

25-Nov-
15 

18:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known   Cathedral Yard 

25-Nov-
15 

19:10:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found   Sidwell Street 

26-Nov-
15 

17:26:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Refusal to leave High Street 

26-Nov-
15 

18:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Result not known Report of people drug-taking in the 
underpass. 

Coombe Street 

26-Nov-
15 

13:10:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Known Offender Male causing problems Smythen Street 

27-Nov-
15 

23:26:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Made Male causing a disturbance Summerland Street 

27-Nov-
15 

23:50:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault Mary Arches Street 

28-Nov-
15 

19:10:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Police Called Altercation between 3 males  Fore Street 

29-Nov-
15 

16:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Group of 15 youths moved on from 
outside of the store. 

South Street 

P
age 309



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

29-Nov-
15 

09:53:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Refusing to leave High Street 

29-Nov-
15 

20:40:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male refusing to leave and being 
abusive 

Iron Bridge 

01-Dec-
15 

18:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Arrest Made   High Street 

01-Dec-
15 

09:52:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints Male refusing to leave. Sidwell Street 

01-Dec-
15 

17:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Person Found Female threatening to kill staff. Paris Street 

01-Dec-
15 

17:50:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Person Found   BOLO 

01-Dec-
15 

19:20:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Male taking drugs Cathedral Yard 

02-Dec-
15 

09:50:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male Martins Lane 

02-Dec-
15 

09:56:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male Martins Lane 

02-Dec-
15 

11:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Male causing disturbance Bampfylde Street 

02-Dec-
15 

12:15:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Male with drug paraphernalia. Cathedral Yard 

02-Dec-
15 

11:52:00 Drug related Police Called Police Not Attending Male smoking using a bong Cathedral Yard 

03-Dec-
15 

09:50:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Street drinker with bottle of wine. Sidwell Street 

03-Dec-
15 

11:16:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male High Street 

P
age 310



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

03-Dec-
15 

09:49:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On Drunk male drinking from a bottle.  High Street 

03-Dec-
15 

15:30:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Male being abusive towards a female South Street 

04-Dec-
15 

08:44:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging High Street 

04-Dec-
15 

23:42:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Group causing problems  High Street 

04-Dec-
15 

07:44:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On Male in drink and becoming aggressive Cathedral Yard 

04-Dec-
15 

11:32:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Known Offender Package exchanged for cash High Street 

04-Dec-
15 

13:25:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male fighting and spitting at security. High Street 

04-Dec-
15 

23:10:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Arrest Made 2 males fighting Paris Street 

04-Dec-
15 

17:50:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Group of males and females fighting  Fore Street 

05-Dec-
15 

03:40:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male damaged till High Street 

05-Dec-
15 

03:50:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault  High Street 

05-Dec-
15 

03:35:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted in street Summerland Street 

05-Dec-
15 

20:54:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fight in the middle of the road. New North Road 

05-Dec-
15 

21:04:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fight South Street 

P
age 311



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

06-Dec-
15 

01:20:00 Criminal Damage Police Called No offences Observed an angry female punch a 
window 

Summerland Street 

06-Dec-
15 

03:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No offences Observed a fight  Summerland Street 

06-Dec-
15 

02:50:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Police Called Door staff advised of a male being 
detained in the premises for a fight.  

Commercial Road 

06-Dec-
15 

04:55:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male detained by door staff o/s the 
premises on the floor. Male was 
ejected by door staff for being 
threatening. 

High Street 

08-Dec-
15 

09:30:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Words of Advice Male and female in a heated argument 
several calls by public to the police. 

Western Way 

08-Dec-
15 

22:25:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Police Called Male suspected dealing.  High Street 

08-Dec-
15 

11:55:00 Drug related Monitored Result not known Top stairwell drug taking going on. Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

09-Dec-
15 

11:51:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Not Found Male abusive to cleaner who said he 
had an uncapped needle in the 
stairwell. 

Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

10-Dec-
15 

14:10:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male seen accepting money from 
passers by  

Martins Lane 

11-Dec-
15 

16:52:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Group sat in milk street under the 
influence of "narcotics" 

Fore Street 

11-Dec-
15 

01:00:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Arrest Made Fight taking place Sidwell Street 

P
age 312



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

12-Dec-
15 

23:33:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault Gandy Street 

12-Dec-
15 

21:50:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted staff  Gandy Street 

13-Dec-
15 

03:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Observed two males punch and kick 
another then try to set his hair on fire. 

Fore Street 

13-Dec-
15 

02:16:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Fight  Sidwell Street 

15-Dec-
15 

19:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Police Called Male causing a disturbance towards a 
female not letting her leave him 

High Street 

15-Dec-
15 

16:35:00 Drink related Monitored On-going observation Male extremely drunk. Queen Street 

15-Dec-
15 

02:17:00 Violence - Assault Police Called On-going observation Assault Fore Street 

17-Dec-
15 

08:25:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints Rubbish being thrown on floor High Street 

17-Dec-
15 

08:32:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending 2 unknown males sat begging. Martins Lane 

17-Dec-
15 

00:44:00 Drink related Monitored Ambulance Attended Male collapsed drunk South Street 

18-Dec-
15 

17:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Security having problems with youths Cathedral Yard 

18-Dec-
15 

17:40:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Group of youths causing problems Paul Street 

18-Dec-
15 

21:46:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Ticket/Fine Issued Observed male throw bottle into street 
and smashed all over road. 

Guinea Street 

18-Dec-
15 

21:00:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Aggressive male kicking off called. Gandy Street 

P
age 313



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

20-Dec-
15 

15:03:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Males begging Martins Lane 

20-Dec-
15 

10:43:00 Begging Monitored Moved On 2 males begging at High Street end Martins Lane 

20-Dec-
15 

16:00:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Begging Martins Lane 

20-Dec-
15 

11:55:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Begging Gandy Street 

20-Dec-
15 

19:00:00 Drink related Monitored Concerned For Welfare Male in drink laid on the pavement by 
the bus stop 

Sidwell Street 

20-Dec-
15 

18:50:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Report of fighting Sidwell Street 

21-Dec-
15 

23:50:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Male being aggressive.  Fore Street 

22-Dec-
15 

11:30:00 Begging Police Called Police Called Male seen begging High Street 

22-Dec-
15 

12:19:00 Begging Police Called Police Called Male begging in Mary Arches Car Park.  Mary Arches Street 

22-Dec-
15 

12:36:00 Begging Monitored Police Called 2 males begging in Martins Lane.  Martins Lane 

22-Dec-
15 

00:55:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Not Found Male was hit in the face by another 
male with a glass.  

Fore Street 

22-Dec-
15 

00:25:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Result not known Male aggressive with door staff. Mary Arches Street 

23-Dec-
15 

21:34:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Report of a female fighting. Lots of 
people seen and arguing and fighting in 
doorway.  

High Street 

P
age 314



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

23-Dec-
15 

22:01:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known Observed 2 male head stamp a male 
several times on the floor. Also later 
stole the aggrieved wallet and then 
throw away the wallet after taking the 
money out.  

George Street 

24-Dec-
15 

00:40:00 Domestic Dispute Police Called Words of Advice Male & female arguing then male runs 
at female grabbing her aggressively. 

Sidwell Street 

25-Dec-
15 

12:55:00 Drink related Police Called Police Called Female in drink. Begging aggressively, 
in possession of cash. Urinating in 
public etc. 

Sidwell Street 

25-Dec-
15 

01:43:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Result not known Male found with facial injuries possibly 
assaulted 

Mary Arches Street 

26-Dec-
15 

17:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Intel. Gathering Group of 4 teens causing problems. 
Seen spitting on the window. Also seen 
opening the door of a taxi and running 
off. 

Queen Street 

26-Dec-
15 

12:52:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Male reported as shouting abuse - then 
report of him being assaulted and 
covered in blood. 

Fore Street 

26-Dec-
15 

12:02:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Known Offender Female begging  Sidwell Street 

26-Dec-
15 

16:08:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Not Found Report that male had been assaulted 
and males had knives. 

High Street 

27-Dec-
15 

18:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found Police asking us to spot group of 6 
youths who were pressing the 
emergency button on buses. 

High Street 

P
age 315



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

27-Dec-
15 

18:37:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Report of a group of 15 youths causing 
problems  

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

27-Dec-
15 

14:59:00 Begging Monitored Intel. Gathering Male begging - seen receiving cash 
from 8 MOP over a 20 minute period. 

Martins Lane 

27-Dec-
15 

15:56:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Police Called Report from store of a drunk male. 
Spotted him in Queen Street where he 
got into an altercation with a younger 
male. 

High Street 

28-Dec-
15 

17:26:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Police Called Anti-social youths. Numerous 
complaints. 

High Street 

28-Dec-
15 

10:35:00 Begging Police Called Moved On 2 people begging Martins Lane 

28-Dec-
15 

11:51:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Not Found Street drinkers causing problems Fore Street 

29-Dec-
15 

20:05:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Police Called On-going problem with the same 
youths causing problems inside and 
refusing to leave when asked.  

High Street 

30-Dec-
15 

14:18:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Result not known On-going problem with the same 
youths causing problems inside and 
refusing to leave when asked.  

North Street 

30-Dec-
15 

20:05:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Known Offender On-going problem with the same 
youths causing problems inside and 
refusing to leave when asked.  

High Street 

30-Dec-
15 

18:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On 2 females have been causing problems. 
Possible Criminal damage to fire 
extinguisher  

High Street 

P
age 316



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

31-Dec-
15 

16:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Made Male causing disturbance High Street 

31-Dec-
15 

23:15:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Female being abusive to street pastors 
who are trying to help her as she is very 
drunk 

South Street 

01-Jan-
16 

23:14:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Resolved Assault High Street 

01-Jan-
16 

02:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Resolved Firework let off in High Street High Street 

01-Jan-
16 

16:40:00 Drink related Police Called Resolved Female in drink Princesshay 

01-Jan-
16 

03:45:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Arrest Made Male being abusive Fore Street 

01-Jan-
16 

05:00:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Males pushing and shoving and 
possibly about to fight 

Fore Street 

01-Jan-
16 

05:44:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Male arguing and getting abusive with 
several different people. 

Fore Street 

01-Jan-
16 

06:08:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Moved On Male and female arguing male had a 
facial injury. Assault not seen prior 
unsure what had happened. 

Fore Street 

01-Jan-
16 

06:21:00 Violence - Assault Police Called On-going observation Males assault another male Fore Street 

01-Jan-
16 

03:26:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Large group of males fighting.  Sidwell Street 

P
age 317



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

01-Jan-
16 

05:00:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Police Called Male fighting another male and lashing 
out at door staff and other males and 
female. 

Fore Street 

01-Jan-
16 

04:40:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Observed a group of males having a 
fight. 

Fore Street 

02-Jan-
16 

14:28:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called On-going observation Group of youths causing problems Coombe Street 

02-Jan-
16 

11:38:00 Begging PCSO Called Police unable to attend Report of male begging for money High Street 

02-Jan-
16 

14:02:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Report of a group of 4 males 
attempting to take a staff members 
pedal cycle from the roof area 

Fore Street 

03-Jan-
16 

15:09:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male aggressively begging as he walked High Street 

04-Jan-
16 

15:45:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Female  begging Fore Street 

04-Jan-
16 

16:02:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Female begging Sidwell Street 

04-Jan-
16 

15:36:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending Male begging Martins Lane 

04-Jan-
16 

14:50:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending Male begging Martins Lane 

04-Jan-
16 

16:06:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Police Called Male being verbally abusive High Street 

04-Jan-
16 

15:48:00 Drug related Police Called Words of Advice Group smoking drugs Paul Street 

P
age 318



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

04-Jan-
16 

07:50:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Male reported for assaulting member 
of staff. 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

04-Jan-
16 

09:40:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Known Offender Group fighting Fore Street 

05-Jan-
16 

16:23:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male begging Sidwell Street 

05-Jan-
16 

07:52:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Known Offender Male and female fighting  High Street 

05-Jan-
16 

12:50:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Group causing disturbance Fore Street 

05-Jan-
16 

15:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Group causing disturbance Fore Street 

05-Jan-
16 

17:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Police Called Group causing disturbance Fore Street 

05-Jan-
16 

09:33:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Police Not Attending Male shouting  High Street 

07-Jan-
16 

11:45:00 Street Begging PCSO Called Result not known Male begging High Street 

09-Jan-
16 

21:35:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Male refusing to leave after being 
ejected. 

Gandy Street 

09-Jan-
16 

03:46:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Not Found A male kicked the door of shop South Street 

09-Jan-
16 

22:20:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Intel. Gathering Male seen dealing  High Street 

09-Jan-
16 

02:35:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Police Called Males pushing and shoving each other Fore Street 

09-Jan- 02:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Report of fighting in the area.  North Street 

P
age 319



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16 

09-Jan-
16 

01:30:00 Violence - Assault Monitored On-going observation Report of a male punched by another 
male.  

High Street 

09-Jan-
16 

03:00:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Males fighting Fore Street 

09-Jan-
16 

03:45:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Police Not Attending Observed males fighting at the junction 
of Fore St/South St/High St/North St. 
Pushing and shoving. 

South Street 

09-Jan-
16 

02:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Result not known Two males seen with tops off fighting.  Mary Arches Street 

10-Jan-
16 

18:06:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Report of youths obstructing the 
entrance to a block of flats  

Sidwell Street 

10-Jan-
16 

12:40:00 Begging Monitored Controllers please note Female seen begging whilst walking up 
High Street. 

High Street 

10-Jan-
16 

17:57:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Reporting male by the side of store 
asking passers-by for money 

Sidwell Street 

10-Jan-
16 

13:30:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male seen begging Martins Lane 

10-Jan-
16 

10:30:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Police Called MOP reported an assault on a female Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

11-Jan-
16 

10:20:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Male begging Martins Lane 

11-Jan-
16 

15:13:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Nuisance youths Queen Street 

11-Jan-
16 

14:09:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Male appears to be intoxicated High Street 

12-Jan- 14:14:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Female begging Gandy Street 

P
age 320



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16 

12-Jan-
16 

16:00:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Male causing criminal damage. High Street 

12-Jan-
16 

15:41:00 Drug related Monitored Police Not Attending Males in MACP with drugs Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

13-Jan-
16 

19:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On   High Street 

13-Jan-
16 

19:08:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Police Not Attending Reporting a group drinking and 
slumped in the car park. 

Coombe Street 

13-Jan-
16 

19:05:00 Drink related Monitored Police Called Report of female shouting abuse. High Street 

13-Jan-
16 

12:00:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Arrest Made Suspected drug dealing Bartholomew Street 
West 

13-Jan-
16 

13:04:00 Drug related Police Called Words of Advice MOP advised that male had a needle 
beside him 

High Street 

13-Jan-
16 

13:25:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Police Called Reports of fight taking place High Street 

14-Jan-
16 

09:30:00 Begging Police Called Resolved Male begging High Street 

15-Jan-
16 

22:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Problem with youths High Street 

16-Jan-
16 

00:25:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Male seen talking to a group of males 
in an aggressive manner and nearly 
started fighting. 

South Street 

16-Jan-
16 

00:35:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Not Made Mass brawl up to 20 fighting.  Fore Street 

P
age 321



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16-Jan-
16 

23:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Male removed from pub being 
aggressive starts arguing with his friend 
and they start fighting 

Gandy Street 

17-Jan-
16 

01:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Observed a male being pushed to the 
floor. Police attended and male moved 
on 

Fore Street 

17-Jan-
16 

01:10:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Call from door staff, male seen lying on 
the floor outside and another being 
aggressive with them.  

Fore Street 

17-Jan-
16 

02:10:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints Door staff reporting an assault outside 
the premises.  

High Street 

17-Jan-
16 

23:35:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Arrest Made Males fighting High Street 

17-Jan-
16 

02:10:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Males fighting Summerland Street 

17-Jan-
16 

01:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Words of Advice Observed a female punch a male in the 
face several times.  

Sidwell Street 

22-Jan-
16 

20:50:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Youths throwing things in the road and 
running into traffic. 

Paul Street 

22-Jan-
16 

20:35:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Words of Advice Report of a youth riding on the back of 
buses 

Sidwell Street 

22-Jan-
16 

08:30:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male begging Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

23-Jan-
16 

22:43:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Result not known Male hits a wing mirror off a moving 
car 

Sidwell Street 

P
age 322



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

23-Jan-
16 

23:40:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Aggressive male High Street 

23-Jan-
16 

22:30:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Abusive male Summerland Street 

23-Jan-
16 

19:45:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Male refusing to stop smoking on a bus 
and get off 

High Street 

23-Jan-
16 

02:10:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault Gandy Street 

24-Jan-
16 

19:48:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Police Called 2 males fighting Sidwell Street 

25-Jan-
16 

00:30:00 Drink related Monitored Ambulance Attended Drunk male falling all over the road. Fore Street 

25-Jan-
16 

01:00:00 Drink related Police Called Words of Advice Drunk student kicking shop windows 
and cars. 

High Street 

25-Jan-
16 

20:15:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Females being abusive Smythen Street 

26-Jan-
16 

15:25:00 Anti Social Behaviour Store Watch 
Informed 

Moved On Group of 4 who had been reported as 
causing problems. 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

26-Jan-
16 

16:45:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Martins Lane 

26-Jan-
16 

11:36:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Martins Lane 

26-Jan-
16 

11:36:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Female begging Gandy Street 

27-Jan-
16 

09:20:00 Begging Monitored Intel. Gathering Male begging Gandy Street 

27-Jan- 09:20:00 Begging Monitored Intel. Gathering Male begging Martins Lane 

P
age 323



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16 

28-Jan-
16 

12:29:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Sidwell Street 

28-Jan-
16 

16:10:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Library reporting 3 males with a dog - 
drinking and general ASB. 

Musgrave Row 

29-Jan-
16 

11:27:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Known Offender Lewis Barrier and Sam Henshaw in alley 
to Bus Station as yesterday. Joined by 
numerous others - drinking etc., 

Sidwell Street 

29-Jan-
16 

14:15:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Female approaching MOP for money High Street 

29-Jan-
16 

11:15:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Female begging Sidwell Street 

30-Jan-
16 

23:58:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Result not known Fight in progress Summerland Street 

31-Jan-
16 

00:11:00 Begging Police Called Arrest Made Male begging Gandy Street 

31-Jan-
16 

00:48:00 Drug related Police Called Police Called Observed 4 males snort white powder 
at the car park.  

George Street 

31-Jan-
16 

03:25:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Door staff advised of an assault in the 
premises. One door staff assaulted and 
the offender detained. 

Mary Arches Street 

31-Jan-
16 

03:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made 2 males with their tops off fighting in 
the middle of the road.  

South Street 

03-Feb-
16 

12:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called On-going observation Male s shouting and gesturing 
randomly. 

High Street 

P
age 324



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

03-Feb-
16 

13:29:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Reporting male slumped outside the 
store. 

Sidwell Street 

04-Feb-
16 

16:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Known Offender Youths causing problems Cathedral Yard 

04-Feb-
16 

17:21:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On X2 climbing railings on top level Coombe Street 

04-Feb-
16 

13:05:00 Drug related Monitored Not Found Report of people using drugs in the 
stairwell. 

Dix's Field 

05-Feb-
16 

18:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Intel. Gathering Group of youths causing problems South Street 

05-Feb-
16 

16:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Police Called Male causing problems Gandy Street 

05-Feb-
16 

21:38:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Not Found Male causing nuisance and kicking shop 
windows 

Bedford Street 

05-Feb-
16 

13:25:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Result not known Reporting 2 males behaving 
aggressively and refusing to leave the 
premises 

New North Road 

05-Feb-
16 

23:32:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Words of Advice Male causing problems  Queen Street 

05-Feb-
16 

21:45:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Resolved Observed male trying to drag female 
into car park  

Mary Arches Street 

05-Feb-
16 

22:06:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Staff called regarding male kicking off 
and making threats 

Queen Street 

06-Feb-
16 

21:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Female causing disturbance Smythen Street 

06-Feb-
16 

01:29:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault Mary Arches Street 

P
age 325



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

06-Feb-
16 

17:45:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Moved On Assault High Street 

06-Feb-
16 

21:10:00 Violence - Assault Monitored No offences Assault High Street 

06-Feb-
16 

02:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No offences Assault Queen Street 

06-Feb-
16 

01:39:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fight reported Sidwell Street 

07-Feb-
16 

03:38:00 Criminal Damage Monitored Arrest Made Police called regarding smashing noises 
on the quay. Monitored male smashing 
van windows at end of quay 

Quay Hill 

07-Feb-
16 

03:51:00 Drug related Police Called Resolved Staff seized large quantity of drugs Western Way 

07-Feb-
16 

00:17:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made 2 males who had been dispersed Mary Arches Street 

15-Feb-
16 

19:08:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Group refusing to leave High Street 

15-Feb-
16 

19:00:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Noticed 2 males at the jumping on the 
back of the bus 

High Street 

15-Feb-
16 

03:00:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male smashing windows Mary Arches Street 

16-Feb-
16 

09:35:00 Street Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging Sidwell Street 

17-Feb-
16 

12:40:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Not Found Male being aggressive Musgrave Row 

19-Feb-
16 

10:32:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On Female in drink shouting and being 
aggressive 

Cathedral Yard 

P
age 326



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

19-Feb-
16 

10:22:00 Drug related Monitored Moved On Report of people smoking a bong. Cathedral Yard 

19-Feb-
16 

15:30:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Words of Advice Female seen on cameras striking a 
male. 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

21-Feb-
16 

17:46:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Report of youths riding on buses. High Street 

21-Feb-
16 

20:10:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Ambulance Called Moved On Report from staff a male has pushed 
another male down the stars. Male is 
unconscious.  

Fore Street 

22-Feb-
16 

09:04:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Male begging Martins Lane 

22-Feb-
16 

15:10:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male begging Martins Lane 

22-Feb-
16 

15:25:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On Drunk refusing to leave when asked. King William Street 
Car Park 

22-Feb-
16 

02:10:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Pushing and shoving but when police 
arrive one male will not move on from 
the area and is abusive to police 

Fore Street 

24-Feb-
16 

23:05:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Result not known Incident of racial verbal abuse Fore Street 

25-Feb-
16 

13:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Female approached security regarding 
a male following her around shops in 
Exeter. 

High Street 

25-Feb-
16 

20:27:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made PCSO assaulted by a drunk male Sidwell Street 

P
age 327



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

26-Feb-
16 

23:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Observed a male getting very 
aggressive and trying to fight 3 males. 

High Street 

27-Feb-
16 

00:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Result not known Door staff requesting for officers to 
deal with a male detained for causing 
disturbance o/s the premises. 

Castle Street 

27-Feb-
16 

02:37:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Fight taking place High Street 

27-Feb-
16 

00:50:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Person Found Assault Fore Street 

28-Feb-
16 

16:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Group of youths causing a nuisance in 
various locations 

South Street 

28-Feb-
16 

19:10:00 Begging PCSO Called Words of Advice Female aggressively begging High Street 

28-Feb-
16 

12:47:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Known Offender Youth causing a disturbance High Street 

28-Feb-
16 

18:30:00 Criminal Damage Monitored On-going observation Group of males smashed a glass door. High Street 

28-Feb-
16 

12:56:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Male staggering towards High Street, 
open can of alcohol in his hand. 

Sidwell Street 

28-Feb-
16 

18:00:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Report of a group of males trying to 
help themselves to beer. Monitored 
brawling in Martins Lane - moved off 
towards South Street clearly in drink 

Martins Lane 

28-Feb-
16 

09:30:00 Drink related Police Called Police Called Report of 2 males drinking alcohol, 
being abusive to MOP and refusing to 
move. 

Sidwell Street 

P
age 328



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

28-Feb-
16 

17:46:00 Drink related Monitored Resolved Group of males in drink kicking a rugby 
ball amongst traffic. 

Fore Street 

28-Feb-
16 

10:25:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made A male accused another of assaulting 
him. 

Sidwell Street 

29-Feb-
16 

16:55:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Sidwell Street 

29-Feb-
16 

12:04:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Martins Lane 

29-Feb-
16 

11:50:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male begging High Street 

29-Feb-
16 

14:37:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male begging Gandy Street 

29-Feb-
16 

16:30:00 Drink related Police Called Known Offender Premises reporting drinkers refusing to 
leave. 

Sidwell Street 

01-Mar-
16 

13:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found Report of a male sniffing gas Paris Street 

01-Mar-
16 

12:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found Abusive males outside their shop. Fore Street 

01-Mar-
16 

09:36:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging High Street 

01-Mar-
16 

14:30:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging Martins Lane 

01-Mar-
16 

12:00:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male begging Martins Lane 

01-Mar-
16 

11:20:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Female seen aggressively begging - up 
and down High Street approaching 
MOP. 

High Street 

P
age 329



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

02-Mar-
16 

11:30:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Words of Advice Young couple arguing in the street 
female shouting and acting strange. 

Sidwell Street 

02-Mar-
16 

23:45:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called No complaints Male being abusive. Little Castle Street 

02-Mar-
16 

23:47:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male spits on door staff. Mary Arches Street 

04-Mar-
16 

11:45:00 Drink related Police Called No offences 3 males drinking in street and being 
aggressive to the public. 

Sidwell Street 

04-Mar-
16 

00:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Not Made Report of a male punching a female 
and splitting her lip.  

Little Castle Street 

05-Mar-
16 

14:35:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored for ASBAT 
Operation 

Police Called 4 males monitored shouting abuse High Street 

05-Mar-
16 

11:30:00 Drink related Monitored for ASBAT 
Operation 

Police Not Attending 2 males and female seen drinking in 
Sidwell Street.  

Sidwell Street 

05-Mar-
16 

22:50:00 Drink related Police Called Resolved Male and female seen drinking alcohol High Street 

05-Mar-
16 

21:59:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Resolved Report from a third party that three 
men walked off after one of them 
punched a delivery driver 

High Street 

06-Mar-
16 

01:06:00 Domestic Dispute Police Called No complaints Male seen on CCTV pushing a female 
very hard onto the floor. She left the 
area and mop tried to detain the male. 
He then started fighting with a mop.  

High Street 

06-Mar-
16 

02:01:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male seen to be aggressive and trying 
to start fights by intimidating people. 

Fore Street 

07-Mar- 11:00:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Not Found Male reported assault. Paris Street 

P
age 330



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16 

08-Mar-
16 

22:15:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called No offences Male being aggressive towards 
security. 

Paris Street 

09-Mar-
16 

21:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Words of Advice Group of youths being intimidating and 
urinating in public. 

High Street 

09-Mar-
16 

01:11:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called No offences Male being aggressive towards 
security. 

Paris Street 

12-Mar-
16 

21:50:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Ticket/Fine Issued Four males urinating and drinking. Queen Street 

12-Mar-
16 

09:59:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male begging High Street 

12-Mar-
16 

01:45:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Observed males fighting in the street. Fore Street 

12-Mar-
16 

03:40:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Observed group of males and females 
fighting. 

Fore Street 

12-Mar-
16 

21:48:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fighting Gandy Street 

12-Mar-
16 

21:45:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fighting Gandy Street 

13-Mar-
16 

01:15:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Male seen to be aggressive towards 
other males.  

High Street 

13-Mar-
16 

02:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Observed large group of males fighting 
in the middle of the street 

Queen Street 

16-Mar-
16 

16:58:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Report of drinking and being rowdy. Sidwell Street 

16-Mar-
16 

17:02:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Sidwell Street 

P
age 331



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16-Mar-
16 

11:32:00 Drug related Police Called Police Not Attending Unknown male seen using bong Cathedral Yard 

16-Mar-
16 

11:45:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints Report of female assaulting another High Street 

17-Mar-
16 

15:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Known Offender Group being aggressive Sidwell Street 

17-Mar-
16 

00:45:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault on door staff New North Road 

17-Mar-
16 

02:29:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Moved On Group of four males being aggressive 
to a female 

High Street 

17-Mar-
16 

00:09:00 Violence - Fighting Shop Squad Called Moved On  2 males fighting Sidwell Street 

19-Mar-
16 

15:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Resolved 4 males causing problems in the pub. Sidwell Street 

20-Mar-
16 

00:43:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Female glassed a male Little Queen Street 

20-Mar-
16 

04:50:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Male seen to purposely be aggressive 
with another male for no reason, then 
they started to fight. 

North Street 

20-Mar-
16 

01:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Male assaulted another male and was 
being restrained on the floor. 

Mary Arches Street 

20-Mar-
16 

03:32:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Fighting Fore Street 

20-Mar-
16 

01:40:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints 2 males arguing then started fighting. South Street 

20-Mar-
16 

00:40:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Fighting Sidwell Street 

21-Mar- 00:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Result not known Fighting Fore Street 

P
age 332



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16 

22-Mar-
16 

15:43:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Resolved Guard reported female he knew as a 
shoplifter refusing to leave the store. 

Sidwell Street 

22-Mar-
16 

14:49:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Saw group of youths using a bong. Northernhay Park 

22-Mar-
16 

13:07:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Police Not Attending Monitored group drinking  Sidwell Street 

23-Mar-
16 

03:40:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called No offences Police called up asking for assistance 
monitoring an aggressive male  

Paris Street 

23-Mar-
16 

01:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Not Made Aggressive males - Observed and fight 
occurred.  

Sidwell Street 

30-Mar-
16 

01:48:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Police Called Assault Gandy Street 

03-Apr-
16 

04:15:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Result not known Abusive behaviour dis Fore Street 

03-Apr-
16 

01:20:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Not Made Assistance with aggressive males inside 
refusing to leave. Security ejected 
males and became a fight between 
both.  

High Street 

03-Apr-
16 

01:40:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fighting  Fore Street 

03-Apr-
16 

23:25:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Ambulance Attended Threatening behaviour Sidwell Street 

05-Apr-
16 

10:15:00 Drink related PCSO Called Moved On Male drinking Cathedral Yard 

06-Apr-
16 

16:26:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Result not known Group of approximately 10 youths 
causing problems 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

P
age 333



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

06-Apr-
16 

10:15:00 Drink related PCSO Called Moved On Group  drinking on ramp to car park Guildhall Car Park 

06-Apr-
16 

11:25:00 Drug related Monitored Resolved Male with dog in  toilets taking drugs Catherine Street 

07-Apr-
16 

16:12:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Sidwell Street 

07-Apr-
16 

15:35:00 Begging PCSO Called PCSO Called Begging by cashpoint Queen Street 

08-Apr-
16 

09:30:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging Sidwell Street 

08-Apr-
16 

09:25:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging High Street 

08-Apr-
16 

15:34:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Group causing a disturbance High Street 

09-Apr-
16 

12:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Arrest Made Female shouting and being abusive Sidwell Street 

09-Apr-
16 

13:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Male being aggressive High Street 

11-Apr-
16 

19:53:00 Anti Social Behaviour PCSO Called No offences Group of youths climbing buildings and 
kicking ball about 

Cathedral Yard 

11-Apr-
16 

19:23:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Not Found Call from police about a male doing 
drugs in toilet and had then assaulted 
the manager.  

High Street 

12-Apr-
16 

17:49:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Resolved Abusive behaviour Castle Street 

12-Apr-
16 

02:05:00 Drink related Monitored Ambulance Attended Report of a male lying on the 
pavement. 

West Street 

P
age 334



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

12-Apr-
16 

17:47:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Words of Advice Abusive male High Street 

20-Apr-
16 

12:03:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging Queen Street 

20-Apr-
16 

12:18:00 Drink related Monitored Resolved Male in drink and taking drugs Cathedral Yard 

20-Apr-
16 

02:48:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Four males pushing and shoving each 
other.  

High Street 

20-Apr-
16 

00:00:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Result not known Two females fighting. Bartholomew Street 
West 

21-Apr-
16 

01:40:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made 3 males arrested after attacking three 
other males 

Fore Street 

27-Apr-
16 

19:57:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Intel. Gathering Male selling suspected legal highs High Street 

28-Apr-
16 

00:15:00 Criminal Damage - 
Graffiti 

Police Called Arrest Made Two males 'tagging' a door and a street 
sign.  

Smythen Street 

29-Apr-
16 

20:15:00 Vandalism / Damage Police Called Result not known Fight in progress Sidwell Street 

29-Apr-
16 

23:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Result not known Fight in progress Iron Bridge 

29-Apr-
16 

23:39:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Observed male being aggressive Fore Street 

30-Apr-
16 

00:29:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Group of males attacking one male in 
the middle of the street. One male 
arrested. 

Fore Street 

01-May-
16 

16:42:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Sidwell Street 

P
age 335



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
01-May-

16 
10:00:00 Drink related Monitored Police Called Group of  drinkers  Cathedral Yard 

01-May-
16 

07:30:00 Drink related Police Called Words of Advice Male in drink and cuts to his face 
appeared to be shouting abuse 

Smythen Street 

01-May-
16 

19:40:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Females arguing and fighting. High Street 

01-May-
16 

04:00:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male seen annoying MOP and trying to 
cause trouble with everyone.  

High Street 

01-May-
16 

11:00:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Words of Advice Report of male assaulting another Alphington Road 

01-May-
16 

02:05:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Threatening behaviour Fore Street 

02-May-
16 

14:27:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Bude Street 

02-May-
16 

11:49:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Sidwell Street 

02-May-
16 

12:57:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On 2  males kicking a football on the 
highway and amongst MOP 

High Street 

03-May-
16 

03:34:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male banging windows and shouting 
abuse at security guard. 

Paris Street 

04-May-
16 

07:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Male refused to move from shop 
doorway 

Paul Street 

04-May-
16 

10:00:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Intoxicated group refused to move on Sidwell Street 

05-May-
16 

15:24:00 Drink related Police Called Arrest Made Male in drink causing a general 
nuisance. 

Bedford Street 

P
age 336



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
05-May-

16 
21:09:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Police Called Observed an assault on the green. One 

female punching another in the face.  
Cathedral Yard 

07-May-
16 

22:46:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Observed male causing disturbance Sidwell Street 

08-May-
16 

10:25:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On Large group drinking and smoking a 
bong. 

Cathedral Yard 

09-May-
16 

08:56:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No complaints Male being aggressive with others Cathedral Yard 

09-May-
16 

18:32:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Female begging Fore Street 

09-May-
16 

11:42:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Begging Sidwell Street 

09-May-
16 

13:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Reporting a male who was abusive to 
female member of staff. 

Queen Street 

09-May-
16 

13:40:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Police Called Suspected drug dealing witnessed Gandy Street 

10-May-
16 

08:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Male drinking in a public place Cathedral Yard 

10-May-
16 

14:25:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Gandy Street 

10-May-
16 

20:35:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault Cathedral Yard 

10-May-
16 

09:05:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Words of Advice Males fighting High Street 

11-May-
16 

08:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Male being aggressive High Street 

11-May-
16 

08:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Result not known Male being aggressive Fore Street 

P
age 337



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
11-May-

16 
18:50:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Queen Street 

11-May-
16 

17:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored No complaints Reporting male shouting  High Street 

11-May-
16 

13:25:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Police Not Attending Male in green hoody under grey 
cardigan - behaving oddly and 
approaching MOP in intimidating 
manner. 

High Street 

11-May-
16 

09:00:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male shouting and swinging punches at 
other males. 

Paris Street 

12-May-
16 

10:30:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male begging High Street 

12-May-
16 

12:45:00 Drink related Ambulance Called Ambulance Attended Male staggering in front of buses etc. 
Fell over a bench and ambulance 
attended 

High Street 

13-May-
16 

14:09:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found People seen throwing things at a cyclist 
from a car. 

City Centre General 

15-May-
16 

20:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Males and females fighting High Street 

15-May-
16 

14:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Group of youths/drinkers causing anti-
social behaviour 

Cathedral Yard 

15-May-
16 

13:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Male causing problems.  Sidwell Street 

15-May-
16 

12:36:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male seen begging  Sidwell Street 

15-May-
16 

21:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Report of a male and female fighting Queen Street 

P
age 338



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
15-May-

16 
00:40:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Moved On Observed male and female arguing.  High Street 

15-May-
16 

01:10:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Moved On Observed a male and female having an 
argument 

Fore Street 

15-May-
16 

23:39:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Intel. Gathering Four males in doorway and then 
alleyway with drug users suspect 
dealing. 

High Street 

15-May-
16 

00:47:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On A group of male and females fighting 
by cash point. 

Castle Street 

15-May-
16 

03:45:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed large group of people 
fighting.  Police removed two 
aggressive females from the area. . 

High Street 

15-May-
16 

03:48:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On A male was getting very aggressive with 
the security. He was also trying to fight 
the security. Later he moved on. 

High Street 

15-May-
16 

02:41:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Observed an aggressive female trying 
to fight a male. She was constantly 
stopped by another male. 

Mary Arches Street 

17-May-
16 

10:37:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Group drinking alcohol in a public place Cathedral Yard 

17-May-
16 

09:35:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called On-going observation Group drinking alcohol in a public place Cathedral Yard 

18-May-
16 

13:35:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male aggressive begging High Street 

18-May-
16 

15:25:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Words of Advice Male attacking busker.  High Street 

P
age 339



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
20-May-

16 
13:35:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No offences Female getting aggressive Queen Street 

20-May-
16 

09:55:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Female begging Queen Street 

21-May-
16 

03:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted another male Bailey Street 

21-May-
16 

23:50:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known Door staff detained a male for assault. Fore Street 

21-May-
16 

21:23:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Males fighting Longbrook Street 

22-May-
16 

05:00:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Abusive behaviour Fore Street 

24-May-
16 

10:30:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Suspected drug taking in car park Lower Coombe 
Street 

24-May-
16 

14:35:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault Queen Street 

24-May-
16 

01:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male was knocked unconscious. 
Ambulance called. Offended detained. 

Mary Arches Street 

26-May-
16 

10:55:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Female begging Sidwell Street 

26-May-
16 

15:14:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Group using bong Cathedral Yard 

26-May-
16 

01:34:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault by male Little Castle Street 

27-May-
16 

13:49:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Female begging Gandy Street 

27-May-
16 

13:51:00 Drug related PCSO Called Moved On Group using a bong Cathedral Yard 

P
age 340



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
27-May-

16 
23:20:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On 3 males fighting in street Fore Street 

27-May-
16 

23:40:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Staff reported aggressive male refused 
entry at their premises 

Fore Street 

28-May-
16 

17:10:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging High Street 

28-May-
16 

17:21:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Shop requesting assistance with an 
abusive customer  

High Street 

28-May-
16 

15:50:00 Drink related Monitored Not Found Report of 3 males using drugs. Bear Street 

28-May-
16 

03:25:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Not Found Observed two males assault two 
females and another male. 

Fore Street 

28-May-
16 

00:33:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Words of Advice Report of fighting inside premises  Martins Lane 

29-May-
16 

23:16:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On 2 youths with a laser pointer on the 
roof of building 

Bampfylde Street 

29-May-
16 

19:00:00 Drug related PCSO Called Moved On Male and female smoking from a bong. Cathedral Yard 

29-May-
16 

03:32:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called No offences Large group of aggressive males 
refusing to leave. 

High Street 

29-May-
16 

01:50:00 Violence - Assault Monitored On-going observation 2 males assaulted. High Street 

29-May-
16 

03:53:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Result not known Assault Fore Street 

29-May-
16 

23:43:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Group of approx. 4 males fighting Queen Street 

31-May- 20:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called On-going observation Disorder and assault Cathedral Yard 

P
age 341



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16 

31-May-
16 

02:00:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Males drunk trying to fight anyone Queen Street 

01-Jun-
16 

02:33:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male kicked in the shop door glass.  High Street 

01-Jun-
16 

22:02:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male reporting he has been punched in 
the face by another male.  

Sidwell Street 

01-Jun-
16 

22:32:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Noticed males fighting, one male being 
kicked in the head whilst on the 
ground. 

Sidwell Street 

02-Jun-
16 

16:03:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Martins Lane 

02-Jun-
16 

15:33:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

02-Jun-
16 

10:16:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Arrest Made Male shouting and gesturing Queen Street 

02-Jun-
16 

18:58:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Male causing a disturbance High Street 

02-Jun-
16 

15:00:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Male causing a disturbance Market Street 

02-Jun-
16 

03:36:00 Criminal Damage - 
Graffiti 

Police Called Not Found Male seen writing on signage in car 
park.  

King William Street 
Car Park 

02-Jun-
16 

16:05:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Report of a  female  assaulting another 
female 

North Street 

02-Jun-
16 

23:25:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Arrest Made Threatening behaviour by male Paris Street 

P
age 342



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

03-Jun-
16 

12:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Male refusing to leave Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

03-Jun-
16 

23:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault Mary Arches Street 

03-Jun-
16 

12:35:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Not Found Males fighting Mary Arches Street 

03-Jun-
16 

18:15:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored No complaints Females fighting High Street 

04-Jun-
16 

04:05:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored No offences Male and female arguing.  Monitored 
until both parties calmed down. 

South Street 

04-Jun-
16 

23:56:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Observed two males and females using 
bong in car park stairwell 

Paris Street 

04-Jun-
16 

00:42:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Not Made Male refusing to leave and being 
abusive 

Queen Street 

04-Jun-
16 

00:45:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called S 30 Dispersal Male being violent Queen Street 

04-Jun-
16 

23:10:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice 2 abusive males in store South Street 

04-Jun-
16 

03:10:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Group fighting Quay Hill 

04-Jun-
16 

23:26:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Observed male and female fighting. Cathedral Yard 

04-Jun-
16 

04:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No offences 3x males and 2x females arguing and 
fighting.   

Fore Street 

04-Jun-
16 

04:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Words of Advice 2x females fighting High Street 

P
age 343



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

04-Jun-
16 

03:35:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male being threatening High Street 

05-Jun-
16 

02:05:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Ambulance Attended Assault Summerland Street 

05-Jun-
16 

04:50:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Ambulance Attended Male very aggressive in middle of road. New Bridge Street 

06-Jun-
16 

23:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Male and female fighting Cathedral Yard 

07-Jun-
16 

01:45:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male shouting and seen to throw a 
glass bottle at people 

Fore Street 

08-Jun-
16 

22:00:00 Domestic Dispute Police Called Resolved Report of a couple arguing in the area.  Stepcote Hill 

08-Jun-
16 

16:02:00 Drink related Police Called Resolved Male in drink refusing to leave the 
premises 

High Street 

08-Jun-
16 

21:22:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Police Not Attending Male being abusive Queen Street 

08-Jun-
16 

01:20:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No offences Male and female arguing then a group 
of females start attacking the male for 
no reason. 

Paul Street 

09-Jun-
16 

18:22:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Female Sidwell Street 

09-Jun-
16 

11:55:00 Drink related PCSO Called Moved On Group drinking  on benches South Street 

09-Jun-
16 

10:10:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Male and female drinking on Cathedral 
Green 

Cathedral Yard 

10-Jun-
16 

21:33:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Large group of males and females 
drinking  

Cathedral Yard 

P
age 344



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

10-Jun-
16 

21:35:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Made Male banging head against shop glass Sidwell Street 

11-Jun-
16 

10:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Youths refusing to leave. High Street 

11-Jun-
16 

15:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Youths refusing to leave. High Street 

11-Jun-
16 

00:59:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Male causing problems Fore Street 

11-Jun-
16 

12:20:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored On-going observation Group swapping legal highs Cathedral Yard 

11-Jun-
16 

11:20:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Male taking drugs in car park Paul Street 

11-Jun-
16 

12:48:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Not Found Female shouting and being aggressive 
towards youths 

Sidwell Street 

11-Jun-
16 

17:48:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored On-going observation Male shouting at female Sidwell Street 

11-Jun-
16 

15:30:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Assault Sidwell Street 

11-Jun-
16 

03:02:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Police Called Observed male punch another to 
ground 

High Street 

11-Jun-
16 

01:03:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Police Called Police found male who they say had 
been assaulted 

Cathedral Yard 

14-Jun-
16 

20:17:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made 3 males with known drug users seen to 
be passing something to each other, 
suspect drugs.  

Sidwell Street 

16-Jun-
16 

22:21:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice female fighting and arguing with 
people passing 

High Street 

P
age 345



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16-Jun-
16 

11:00:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Not Found Male causing criminal damage Castle Street 

16-Jun-
16 

14:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Unknown male restrained after fighting  High Street 

17-Jun-
16 

07:05:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found 2 teenage males jumping in front of 
buses in Fore St.  

Fore Street 

17-Jun-
16 

10:09:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male begging  Queen Street 

17-Jun-
16 

02:10:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Observed a group of males fighting Fore Street 

18-Jun-
16 

04:22:00 Violence - Assault Police Called On-going observation Females arguing initially. One of the 
female hits another and another one 
kicks her in the head. 

George Street 

19-Jun-
16 

15:00:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Report of 2 males squaring up to each 
other 

High Street 

21-Jun-
16 

23:49:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Female drunk and abusive  Western Way 

22-Jun-
16 

01:00:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored No offences 2 people refusing to leave on request Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

22-Jun-
16 

20:13:00 Criminal Damage Monitored Resolved Criminal Damage Longbrook Street 

22-Jun-
16 

02:09:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Female very aggressive door staff Gandy Street 

25-Jun-
16 

02:30:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called On-going observation Male on a bike throws a brick at 
security staff 

High Street 

P
age 346



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

25-Jun-
16 

00:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Males and females fighting. Male 
assaulted police as well. 

South Street 

26-Jun-
16 

01:15:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Arrest Made Fighting Summerland Street 

26-Jun-
16 

02:45:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored No offences 2 females fighting High Street 

27-Jun-
16 

17:14:00 Drug related Police Called Moved On Several males smoking bongs Cathedral Yard 

28-Jun-
16 

11:23:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Martins Lane 

28-Jun-
16 

12:00:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

28-Jun-
16 

14:50:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Words of Advice Suspected drug dealing Bailey Street 

29-Jun-
16 

13:10:00 Domestic Dispute Police Called Intel. Gathering Male and female shouting at each 
other 

Market Street 

29-Jun-
16 

10:55:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On 2 males abusive to staff. Sidwell Street 

30-Jun-
16 

21:28:00 Vandalism / Damage Monitored Not Found Report of car window smashed by a 
female. 

Northernhay Gate 

30-Jun-
16 

22:50:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Males outside spitting at bus standing 
in road and setting light to a flag 

Fore Street 

01-Jul-16 04:50:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Words of Advice Security assaulted by two males who 
were trying to steal from the park.  

Northernhay Park 

02-Jul-16 00:43:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice A male being aggressive to members of 
public and door staff. 

Castle Street 

P
age 347



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
02-Jul-16 00:40:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On 2 males fighting with another 2. 

Dispersed by the door staff. 
Mary Arches Street 

02-Jul-16 00:48:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Words of Advice Large group of males fighting in the 
middle of the street.  

High Street 

03-Jul-16 20:50:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Group  drinking and fighting Cathedral Yard 

03-Jul-16 03:20:00 Criminal Damage - 
Graffiti 

Police Called Details taken by police 2 males writing on the wall with marker 
pen.  

Martins Lane 

03-Jul-16 00:15:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made 3 males snorting a white powder 
stopped and found in possession. 

Fore Street 

03-Jul-16 03:05:00 Vandalism / Damage Police Called Arrest Made Female trying to smash up a parked 
car. Kicked wing mirror off. 

Market Street 

03-Jul-16 02:20:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Not Made Male seen to be attacking another 
male. 

Musgrave Row 

03-Jul-16 03:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No offences Male assaulting another male Market Street 

04-Jul-16 15:10:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found Report of ASB  Coombe Street 

04-Jul-16 13:35:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Begging by cash machine Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

04-Jul-16 15:18:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending Begging by cash machine Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

04-Jul-16 14:44:00 Drink related Police Called Words of Advice Male intoxicated High Street 

04-Jul-16 18:10:00 Urinating in public Monitored Not Found Report of a male urinating school York Road 

05-Jul-16 01:38:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Monitored aggressive males - one male 
pushes a female to the ground and 
starts a brawl involving 10-20 people. 
Male arrested. 

High Street 

P
age 348



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
05-Jul-16 13:55:00 Violence - Threatening 

Behaviour 
Police Called Known Offender Male acting in a threatening manner Cathedral Yard 

06-Jul-16 19:16:00 Anti Social Behaviour Assisted with Police 
Operation 

Arrest Made Female in breach of S35 High Street 

06-Jul-16 21:09:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Drunk, abusive male refusing to leave.  Bampfylde Street 

06-Jul-16 10:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On 3 males with alcohol causing problems  High Street 

06-Jul-16 19:35:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No offences Security reporting 2 aggressive, abusive 
males leaving their premises.  

South Street 

06-Jul-16 06:08:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Report of a female in drink causing 
problems 

Sidwell Street 

06-Jul-16 00:39:00 Urinating in public Monitored Police Not Attending Male urinating Little Queen Street 

06-Jul-16 22:33:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints Observed 2 males and a female assault 
one other 

Sidwell Street 

06-Jul-16 02:30:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Result not known Group of 4-5 males fighting  Sidwell Street 

07-Jul-16 12:00:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male begging near pay machine Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

07-Jul-16 11:40:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On 2 males threatening and refusing to 
move on 

Paris Street 

07-Jul-16 06:10:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Male in drink Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

07-Jul-16 13:15:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender 2 males using drugs in toilets Paris Street 

07-Jul-16 12:14:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Words of Advice Male and female fighting Cathedral Yard 

09-Jul-16 03:30:00 Criminal Damage Monitored Arrest Made Police attending to a criminal damage 
to the window of M & S. Nothing 
captured on our CCTV. 

High Street 

P
age 349



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
09-Jul-16 21:51:00 Drug related Police Called Result not known Male detained by door staff for 

swallowing 4 bags of white powder. 
Fore Street 

09-Jul-16 08:45:00 Urinating in public Monitored Resolved Report of male urinating in the street, 
male spoken too. 

South Street 

09-Jul-16 02:50:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Observed a female being very 
aggressive and abusive to the door 
staff and members of the public. 

High Street 

09-Jul-16 03:59:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Police advised that there was a fight 
and now the group is walking into 
town.  

Exe Bridge North 

09-Jul-16 02:55:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Resolved Observed a group of males fighting and 
possible assault. One male ended up 
with a bloody mouth and nose. 

Fore Street 

10-Jul-16 22:45:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called No complaints Female hitting a male Queen Street 

10-Jul-16 00:59:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted a taxi driver Fore Street 

10-Jul-16 01:27:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed a male trying to fight with 
two others  

South Street 

11-Jul-16 00:47:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Not Found 2 males assault a male and female. South Street 

12-Jul-16 12:57:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Begging near pay station Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

12-Jul-16 15:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Female provoking another female Sidwell Street 

13-Jul-16 16:33:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On 2 males refusing to leave Queen Street 

P
age 350



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
13-Jul-16 14:03:00 Causing Disturbance / 

Nuisance 
Monitored Words of Advice Female reported to be causing 

problems in the store 
Cathedral Yard 

14-Jul-16 10:12:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Queen Street 

14-Jul-16 20:45:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Begging Cathedral Yard 

14-Jul-16 21:00:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Youths on roof George Street 

14-Jul-16 01:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Female causing problems Fore Street 

14-Jul-16 20:15:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Youth causing problems High Street 

15-Jul-16 02:53:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Break in progress-Two youths on roof-
Youths found sitting on roof 

Bampfylde Street 

15-Jul-16 01:50:00 Drink related Ambulance Called Police Called Drunk male on floor High Street 

15-Jul-16 23:40:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called No offences Males fighting with each other one 
picks up cones and throws it at a coach. 
Walking in middle of the road causing 
cars to swerve. Very abusive to drivers. 

Queen Street 

15-Jul-16 21:20:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Report of males and female fighting. King William Street 
Car Park 

16-Jul-16 02:57:00 Vandalism / Damage Police Called Arrest Not Made Male head-butts a window and breaks 
the glass.  

Fore Street 

16-Jul-16 12:30:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Not Found Female is pushed into doorway. South Street 

16-Jul-16 03:27:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Not Found Report of a female assaulted.  George Street 

16-Jul-16 00:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known Report of a male lying in the street 
after being kicked in the head.  

Bailey Street 

20-Jul-16 19:15:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male aggressively begging High Street 

P
age 351



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 
20-Jul-16 11:50:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Male begging near pay machines Mary Arches Street 

20-Jul-16 18:45:00 Drug related Monitored No complaints Group with bong Cathedral Yard 

20-Jul-16 11:50:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted a female and ran off, 
followed with CCTV and arrested. 

Fore Street 

21-Jul-16 20:12:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Fighting Sidwell Street 

22-Jul-16 03:11:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Fight in road  Fore Street 

23-Jul-16 22:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Fighting  York Road 

24-Jul-16 02:35:00 Harassment Police Called Arrest Not Made Female harassed by male Summerland Street 

24-Jul-16 02:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fighting in progress Fore Street 

27-Jul-16 12:06:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On 2 females drinking in public space Paris Street 

28-Jul-16 13:39:00 Begging Monitored Words of Advice Male begging Sidwell Street 

29-Jul-16 09:02:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Female shouting Sidwell Street 

29-Jul-16 16:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Male shouting and screaming 
“everyone is going to die and you're all 
going to burn!" 

City Centre General 

01-Aug-
16 

10:00:00 Drug related Monitored Not Found Report of drug taking in car park Lower Coombe 
Street 

02-Aug-
16 

10:40:00 Begging PCSO Called Moved On Male begging Gandy Street 

02-Aug-
16 

08:35:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Resolved Male acting in threatening manner Cathedral Yard 

03-Aug-
16 

15:05:00 Criminal Damage Monitored Resolved Female damages goods in shop High Street 

03-Aug-
16 

01:45:00 Violence - Assault Police Called On-going observation Male assaults another male Queen Street 

04-Aug- 20:03:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Arrest Made Drunk, swearing and abusive male. Sidwell Street 

P
age 352



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16 

04-Aug-
16 

15:25:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Made Female causing a disturbance Sidwell Street 

04-Aug-
16 

16:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On 2 males using water pistols to spray 
people 

Gandy Street 

04-Aug-
16 

11:41:00 Drink related Ambulance Called Ambulance Attended Male intoxicated George Street 

04-Aug-
16 

14:00:00 Drink related PCSO Called Moved On People drinking in a group in alleyway Sidwell Street 

04-Aug-
16 

22:40:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Two males and female in drink. Female 
in the group seen to lash out over 
another female and stamp on her face.  

Sidwell Street 

05-Aug-
16 

10:25:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Male approaching MOP and seen 
receiving money. 

High Street 

06-Aug-
16 

10:51:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Known Offender Female begging and acting in an erratic 
manner 

High Street 

06-Aug-
16 

12:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Female acting in an erratic manner Fore Street 

06-Aug-
16 

22:39:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Male head-butted and threw female to 
the ground. She was knocked 
unconscious and injured her back. 
Footage was seized and male was 
arrested for ABH 

Sidwell Street 

06-Aug-
16 

14:30:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Words of Advice Males fighting South Street 

P
age 353



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

07-Aug-
16 

17:01:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Reporting a group of males who have 
climbed onto the roof of the Museum. 

Queen Street 

07-Aug-
16 

00:50:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Resolved Report of female in the road, male 
trying to restrain her and then the 
female attacking him with one of her 
stilettos.  

Summerland Street 

07-Aug-
16 

01:56:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male broke into female toilets and 
grabbed a female by the throat, was 
witnessed by three other patrons and 
security.  

Fore Street 

07-Aug-
16 

01:12:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Resolved Male assaulting another male Mary Arches Street 

07-Aug-
16 

01:31:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No offences Fighting Summerland Street 

08-Aug-
16 

10:37:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male begging Sidwell Street 

08-Aug-
16 

13:25:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Male causing disturbance Cathedral Yard 

08-Aug-
16 

13:33:00 Drink related Monitored On-going observation Group of drinkers on the wall in the 
alleyway 

Sidwell Street 

20-Aug-
16 

23:25:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Not Found Assault Martins Lane 

20-Aug-
16 

19:15:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Threatening behaviour Cathedral Yard 

21-Aug-
16 

16:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Female  being abusive to security High Street 

P
age 354



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

21-Aug-
16 

01:05:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Result not known Observed 3 males push a motorbike to 
the ground at the car park. 

Bampfylde Street 

21-Aug-
16 

03:40:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On 5 males having an altercation Mary Arches Street 

21-Aug-
16 

03:45:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made 2 males were fighting High Street 

21-Aug-
16 

03:15:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed 2 males dressed in the 118 
outfit having and altercation with 
another male 

Mary Arches Street 

21-Aug-
16 

00:40:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed 2 males and females arguing 
and then 1 gets assaulted.  

High Street 

21-Aug-
16 

14:50:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored S 30 Dispersal Report of fighting Cathedral Yard 

21-Aug-
16 

15:50:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Words of Advice Fighting Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

23-Aug-
16 

13:50:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Report of male causing problems Queen Street 

24-Aug-
16 

09:50:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Known Offender Male urinating Catherine Street 

24-Aug-
16 

13:55:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found Report of a male being abusive. Sidwell Street 

24-Aug-
16 

11:50:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Male shouting at a female  South Street 

24-Aug-
16 

08:35:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Group causing a nuisance and now 
refusing to leave the rear of their 
premises. 

Rougemont Gardens 

P
age 355



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

24-Aug-
16 

08:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Group causing a nuisance and now 
refusing to leave the rear of their 
premises. 

Queen Street 

24-Aug-
16 

13:40:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Report  of fighting New North Road 

26-Aug-
16 

23:30:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Male being abusive to door staff Commercial Road 

27-Aug-
16 

01:10:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Abusive behaviour by Male Market Square 

27-Aug-
16 

00:40:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Words of Advice Male punched another male. George Street 

27-Aug-
16 

13:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Female who has assaulted female door 
staff. 

St David’s Hill 

27-Aug-
16 

21:40:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Two females fighting Fore Street 

27-Aug-
16 

00:40:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed group of males having a 
disagreement. 

Musgrave Row 

27-Aug-
16 

00:10:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Girl alleged she has been punched. Fore Street 

28-Aug-
16 

21:46:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Police Not Attending Male using abusive language High Street 

28-Aug-
16 

00:30:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Result not known Report of a male bottled in the face.  Little Castle Street 

29-Aug-
16 

16:20:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Words of Advice Aggressive male Sidwell Street 

30-Aug-
16 

15:55:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male begging High Street 

P
age 356



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

30-Aug-
16 

16:15:00 Domestic Dispute Monitored Not Found Report of a male and female fighting Cathedral Yard 

30-Aug-
16 

16:30:00 Drug related Police Called Police Not Attending Group using a bong and drinking 
alcohol 

Cathedral Yard 

31-Aug-
16 

06:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored On-going observation Male being aggressive Cathedral Yard 

01-Sep-
16 

12:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Words of Advice Males being aggressive Cathedral Yard 

01-Sep-
16 

16:50:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Female begging Sidwell Street 

03-Sep-
16 

13:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Resolved Male shouting in the street Sidwell Street 

03-Sep-
16 

20:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Male being aggressive Fore Street 

03-Sep-
16 

03:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Result not known A group of males arguing, pushing and 
shoving another male. Later that one 
male was punched in the face and fell 
cold to the ground. 

High Street 

03-Sep-
16 

03:10:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Group of people attacking a male 
member of public.  

High Street 

04-Sep-
16 

02:55:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male kicked an office window Summerland Street 

04-Sep-
16 

02:00:00 Domestic Dispute Police Called Words of Advice Male aggressively grabbing the female 
repeatedly. 

South Street 

04-Sep-
16 

00:15:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted in a club. Fore Street 

05-Sep-
16 

17:05:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Result not known Man shouting and dancing South Street 

P
age 357



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

05-Sep-
16 

05:50:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On 2 males causing problems Sidwell Street 

05-Sep-
16 

22:50:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Observed a male throw a rock twice on 
a car window.  

Market Street 

05-Sep-
16 

18:10:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male caused criminal damage to doors Paris Street 

05-Sep-
16 

21:35:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Arrest Made A female running hysterically after a 
male. Then shortly after that they were 
fighting in front of 2 Police Officers. The 
male was arrested. 

Fore Street 

05-Sep-
16 

20:00:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Fight. Two arrested. Fore Street 

05-Sep-
16 

21:25:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Disorder High Street 

06-Sep-
16 

09:45:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Male refusing to move. Cathedral Yard 

06-Sep-
16 

18:15:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Female carrying foil, shouting and 
gesturing. 

High Street 

06-Sep-
16 

18:00:00 Begging Police Called Police Called Male approaching people to beg High Street 

06-Sep-
16 

17:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Male refusing to leave High Street 

07-Sep-
16 

18:43:00 Drug related Monitored On-going observation Report of a group using drugs on Level 
5 

Quay and Cathedral 
Car Park 

07-Sep-
16 

17:56:00 Drug related Police Called Police Not Attending Female smoking a bong and a male 
with a bottle of wine. 

Cathedral Yard 

P
age 358



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

08-Sep-
16 

23:00:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Fighting Castle Street 

13-Sep-
16 

22:42:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Observed a male selling drugs Longbrook Street 

14-Sep-
16 

15:47:00 Anti Social Behaviour PCSO Called Moved On Male sat on bench by the store drinking 
and shouting abuse at MOP. 

Sidwell Street 

14-Sep-
16 

23:30:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Males on a roof shining a laser into 
people, cars etc. 

Summerland Street 

14-Sep-
16 

11:36:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Known Offender Male and female acting in a 
threatening manner 

Paul Street 

15-Sep-
16 

13:20:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Gandy Street 

15-Sep-
16 

13:08:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending Male begging High Street 

16-Sep-
16 

09:19:00 Begging Monitored Police Not Attending Female and male begging High Street 

17-Sep-
16 

04:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Abusive female towards males High Street 

19-Sep-
16 

12:35:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault by male Pennsylvania road 

19-Sep-
16 

01:10:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Observed a male and female arguing 
and the male was biting another male's 
ear. Also the female was slapping the 
male. 

High Street 

20-Sep-
16 

22:50:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Aggressive male Summerland Street 

P
age 359



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

20-Sep-
16 

20:00:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Verbally aggressive male High Street 

20-Sep-
16 

06:35:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Resolved 2  females fighting Sidwell Street 

21-Sep-
16 

14:05:00 Drink related Monitored Result not known Group on bench being noisy. South Street 

21-Sep-
16 

02:23:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed a group of males who 
seemed angry and possibly after a 
fight.  

High Street 

22-Sep-
16 

21:40:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male being abusive High Street 

23-Sep-
16 

20:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Made Male detained for theft George Street 

24-Sep-
16 

13:52:00 Begging Monitored On-going observation Male and female begging Martins Lane 

24-Sep-
16 

12:50:00 Begging Police Called Police Not Attending Male begging Cathedral Yard 

24-Sep-
16 

15:30:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Police Not Attending Suspected use in toilets King William Street 

24-Sep-
16 

04:23:00 Violence - Assault Monitored No offences Female biting and hitting a male on the 
floor. No complaints. 

George Street 

24-Sep-
16 

03:15:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called S 30 Dispersal Females fighting Fore Street 

25-Sep-
16 

12:53:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Drunk male being abusive Sidwell Street 

25-Sep-
16 

11:24:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Words of Advice Male and female being abusive New Bridge Street 

P
age 360



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

27-Sep-
16 

22:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Three youths on the roof of shops Bampfylde Street 

29-Sep-
16 

21:00:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Female begging Fore Street 

29-Sep-
16 

21:27:00 Drug related Police Called Words of Advice Male sniffing drugs whilst in a car. 
Drugs all gone and car keys taken of 
him. 

George Street 

30-Sep-
16 

18:20:00 Begging Police Called Arrest Made Male approaching people in street to 
beg 

Cathedral Yard 

30-Sep-
16 

12:09:00 Begging Monitored Police Called Male begging High Street 

30-Sep-
16 

09:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Not Found Male using drugs in toilet and left 
uncapped hypodermic needle 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

30-Sep-
16 

11:50:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice Male and female causing a disturbance Southernhay West 

30-Sep-
16 

12:00:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Known Offender Male and female being abusive Fore Street 

30-Sep-
16 

01:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Males fighting Fore Street 

01-Oct-
16 

16:30:00 Drink related Monitored No complaints Male carrying a can of alcohol and had 
verbally abused a female. 

High Street 

01-Oct-
16 

14:48:00 Drug related Monitored Known Offender Report of a male and female on the top 
level using drugs 

Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

01-Oct-
16 

01:22:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Fight in street Fore Street 

04-Oct-
16 

00:35:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Observed group of males arguing and 
pushing 

Mary Arches Street 

P
age 361



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

05-Oct-
16 

11:02:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Female reported taking drugs in  
stairwell, 

Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

05-Oct-
16 

20:35:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Intoxicated female refused entry and 
then is abusive 

Little Queen Street 

06-Oct-
16 

18:30:00 Begging Police Called Result not known Female begging High Street 

07-Oct-
16 

22:18:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Male causing disturbance Fore Street 

07-Oct-
16 

22:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Male causing disturbance Fore Street 

07-Oct-
16 

23:30:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male seen jumping on car. One car roof 
top seemed damaged. 

George Street 

07-Oct-
16 

21:45:00 Domestic Dispute Police Called Result not known Male and female arguing but male 
grabs female and she is hitting him. 

Paris Street 

07-Oct-
16 

23:29:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaults door staff, Quay Hill 

07-Oct-
16 

23:51:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On 2 males fighting. High Street 

08-Oct-
16 

02:44:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Observed a group fighting. Summerland Street 

10-Oct-
16 

22:17:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Look out for a male dressed in a clown 
outfit and scaring MOP. 

High Street 

11-Oct-
16 

21:20:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Words of Advice Male causing criminal damage Sidwell Street 

P
age 362



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

12-Oct-
16 

01:06:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Words of Advice To look for a suspicious male whom 
seem to be angry and shouting. Police 
attended and later took him away back 
home. 

Sidwell Street 

12-Oct-
16 

14:05:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault Queen Street 

13-Oct-
16 

00:30:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Aggressive male removed and is trying 
to assault door staff. 

Commercial Road 

16-Oct-
16 

10:57:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

PCSO Called Words of Advice Male behaving erratically Queen Street 

16-Oct-
16 

00:55:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male causing disorder and is arrested 
for drunken disorderly 

South Street 

16-Oct-
16 

03:30:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male had punched the female in her 
face. 

Mary Arches Street 

16-Oct-
16 

03:05:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Result not known Police advised of an assault that 
happened on door staff 

Red Lion Lane 

16-Oct-
16 

02:45:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed a group of males pushing and 
shoving each other. Later moved on 

York Road 

16-Oct-
16 

02:58:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed an aggressive male causing 
disturbance and trying to fight 

Mary Arches Street 

16-Oct-
16 

00:50:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Words of Advice Observed a group of males fighting. 
Police attended and send them the 
separate ways. 

South Street 

17-Oct-
16 

08:43:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male involved in altercation with PCSO Queen Street 

P
age 363



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

18-Oct-
16 

08:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Not Found Female begging High Street 

18-Oct-
16 

09:46:00 Begging Police Called Result not known Begging Sidwell Street 

18-Oct-
16 

16:10:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male begging Martins Lane 

18-Oct-
16 

09:12:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Group seen injecting on level 6  Lower Coombe 
Street 

18-Oct-
16 

15:00:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found Report of 2 males fighting Smythen Street 

19-Oct-
16 

12:25:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found MOP reported 2 males shouting and 
being abusive 

High Street 

19-Oct-
16 

10:08:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male approaching MOP aggressively 
begging. 

High Street 

19-Oct-
16 

17:38:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Male causing criminal damage Cathedral Yard 

20-Oct-
16 

01:38:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Fighting Fore Street 

21-Oct-
16 

00:55:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored No complaints Male causing problems with Door staff Fore Street 

21-Oct-
16 

02:30:00 Drink related Police Called Arrest Made Male drunk and disorderly Sidwell Street 

22-Oct-
16 

16:23:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On 10 to 12 drinkers moved on by police Cathedral Yard 

22-Oct-
16 

16:50:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Male spoken too by police re his 
behaviour moved on 

Cathedral Yard 

24-Oct- 14:15:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Female begging Gandy Street 

P
age 364



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

16 

24-Oct-
16 

14:41:00 Begging Police Called Result not known Male begging Sidwell Street 

24-Oct-
16 

18:14:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Males seen urinating South Street 

24-Oct-
16 

10:00:00 Drug related Police Called Words of Advice Group taking drugs in car park Dix's Field 

24-Oct-
16 

02:13:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Not Found Assault High Street 

24-Oct-
16 

15:50:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male acting in threatening manner Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

25-Oct-
16 

12:55:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Female begging South Street 

25-Oct-
16 

09:05:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Male drinking in public place Cathedral Yard 

25-Oct-
16 

14:30:00 Drink related Monitored Words of Advice Report of a group of under-age 
drinkers. 

South Street 

29-Oct-
16 

18:20:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored S 30 Dispersal Male causing disturbance Cathedral Yard 

29-Oct-
16 

18:31:00 Drink related Police Called Arrest Made Intoxicated male causing problems Western Way 

29-Oct-
16 

03:23:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male was punched in his face.  High Street 

29-Oct-
16 

02:48:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Observed a group of males arguing High Street 

P
age 365



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

30-Oct-
16 

01:21:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Arrest Made Male breached the Fire Police cordon 
on High St. Was arrested for breach of 
Criminal Behaviour Order 

High Street 

30-Oct-
16 

02:24:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Observed Police trying to move on a 
disruptive male from the area. 

Little Queen Street 

30-Oct-
16 

02:21:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Arrest Made Observed very abusive male arrested 
by Police. He refused to leave the area 
after being told by Police to leave the 
area. 

Mary Arches Street 

30-Oct-
16 

01:45:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed a group of males fighting and 
the walked their separate ways. 

Fore Street 

31-Oct-
16 

22:50:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Words of Advice Male agitated when asked to leave, 
aggressive to staff and throwing debris 
at the doors.  

High Street 

31-Oct-
16 

21:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Arrest Made Male causing disturbance Market Street 

31-Oct-
16 

02:32:00 Drink related Monitored Arrest Made Three drunk, aggressive males trying to 
instigate fights. 

Fore Street 

01-Nov-
16 

16:10:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Female begging Sidwell Street 

02-Nov-
16 

10:48:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Males drinking in a public place High Street 

02-Nov-
16 

09:00:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On Group taking drugs in stairwell Dix's Field 

02-Nov-
16 

03:28:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Assault Musgrave Row 

P
age 366



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

04-Nov-
16 

14:35:00 Begging PCSO Called Intel. Gathering Male begging Cathedral Yard 

04-Nov-
16 

17:30:00 Drug related Monitored Arrest Made Request to monitor black male possible 
drug dealing - police attended male 
arrested outside Cam 7 beside CO OP 
Sidwell Street 

Sidwell Street 

04-Nov-
16 

23:18:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Resolved Male kicking off o/s pub male detained  Gandy Street 

04-Nov-
16 

23:15:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted two street pastors Sidwell Street 

04-Nov-
16 

09:15:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Result not known Report by a female of assault by a male Paris Street 

04-Nov-
16 

09:00:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Not Found MOP reported x2 fighting Market Street 

05-Nov-
16 

11:13:00 Drink related Police Called Arrest Made Male intoxicated High Street 

06-Nov-
16 

22:40:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called No offences 2 males refusing to move away causing 
problems 

Mary Arches Street 

06-Nov-
16 

00:50:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made Male seen dealing to several people. High Street 

07-Nov-
16 

15:02:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Resolved Male being abusive Sidwell Street 

08-Nov-
16 

10:15:00 Violence - Assault Monitored On-going observation Assault Bampfylde Street 

10-Nov-
16 

16:51:00 Begging Monitored No complaints Male begging Bailey Street 

10-Nov-
16 

09:35:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Criminal Damage High Street 

P
age 367



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

10-Nov-
16 

15:20:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Report of a female "being 
confrontational" - moved on before 
Police called 

High Street 

11-Nov-
16 

16:06:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Known Offender Reporting male begging outside and 
disrupting customers. 

Sidwell Street 

11-Nov-
16 

16:23:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Female begging High Street 

11-Nov-
16 

15:22:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Male refused to leave Queen Street 

11-Nov-
16 

11:14:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Males intoxicated refusing to move Sidwell Street 

11-Nov-
16 

12:15:00 Drink related Monitored Police Not Attending Males intoxicated refusing to move Sidwell Street 

11-Nov-
16 

22:00:00 Drug related Police Called Ambulance Attended Group taking drugs High Street 

11-Nov-
16 

22:00:00 Drug related Police Called Ambulance Attended Collapsed male possible overdose 
ambulance attended 

High Street 

11-Nov-
16 

12:47:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Known Offender Male became verbally abusive allegedly 
threatening  

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

11-Nov-
16 

20:18:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Males being abusive to staff and 
customers 

High Street 

12-Nov-
16 

16:38:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Group drinking in a public place Sidwell Street 

12-Nov-
16 

02:10:00 Drug related Police Called Resolved Male detained had been seen with 
quantity of drugs 

Queen Street 

12-Nov-
16 

12:32:00 Drug related Monitored Words of Advice Report of a male injecting Bampfylde Street 

P
age 368



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

12-Nov-
16 

01:25:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Door staff assaulted Gandy Street 

12-Nov-
16 

20:08:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called S 30 Dispersal Observed to males being threatening  Gandy Street 

13-Nov-
16 

21:20:00 Begging Monitored Moved On Male begging at cash point Queen Street 

13-Nov-
16 

21:56:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Arrest Made Male seen kicking doors/poles. Caused 
damage.  

Princesshay 

14-Nov-
16 

08:15:00 Begging Police Called Words of Advice Male aggressively begging Queen Street 

17-Nov-
16 

15:43:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Moved On Male in drink was refusing to leave. Cowick Street 

17-Nov-
16 

00:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Moved On Male being abusive to door staff after 
being asked to leave and wouldn't 
move on. 

New North Road 

17-Nov-
16 

12:05:00 Drink related Monitored Known Offender Group of drinkers being antisocial Sidwell Street 

18-Nov-
16 

16:13:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Moved On Group of drinkers being antisocial South Street 

18-Nov-
16 

10:06:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Police Not Attending Group of drinkers being antisocial South Street 

18-Nov-
16 

14:30:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Female begging High Street 

18-Nov-
16 

15:10:00 Drink related Ambulance Called Ambulance Attended Male laid on the pavement - 
ambulance attended male who was in 
drink 

Sidwell Street 

P
age 369



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

18-Nov-
16 

17:20:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Not Found Male possibly drunk threatening 
passers by  

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

19-Nov-
16 

12:10:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Group of drinkers in the alleyway Sidwell Street 

19-Nov-
16 

14:47:00 Drink related PCSO Called Moved On Male in front of Fire Exit refusing to 
move 

High Street 

20-Nov-
16 

17:40:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Known Offender Male urinated in full view of passers-by High Street 

20-Nov-
16 

18:00:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging in carpark High Street 

20-Nov-
16 

15:47:00 Begging PCSO Called Words of Advice Female begging Queen Street 

20-Nov-
16 

16:01:00 Begging PCSO Called Words of Advice Male begging Queen Street 

20-Nov-
16 

17:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Group causing a disturbance High Street 

20-Nov-
16 

00:28:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Door staff assaulted Gandy Street 

20-Nov-
16 

01:04:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Fighting  Queen Street 

21-Nov-
16 

06:00:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Words of Advice Report of 2 males fighting in 
Southernhay 

Southernhay West 

22-Nov-
16 

09:10:00 Drink related Monitored Police Called Drunk male seen Cathedral Yard 

23-Nov-
16 

17:04:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored No offences Large group of anti-social youths 
refusing to leave 

High Street 

P
age 370



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

23-Nov-
16 

23:00:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Words of Advice Report of people sitting in the roof of 
the church. Males and a female seen 
climbing over a gate from that location 
and police informed. 

Sidwell Street 

23-Nov-
16 

09:20:00 Drink related Monitored No offences Monitored a very intoxicated male  Cathedral Yard 

23-Nov-
16 

14:20:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Arrest Made Male verbally abusing female Sidwell Street 

24-Nov-
16 

14:45:00 Drug dealing suspected Police Called Arrest Made Male arrested  St David’s Hill 

24-Nov-
16 

02:09:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Made Males seen fighting Paris Street 

25-Nov-
16 

22:34:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Male getting abusive with door staff.  Fore Street 

26-Nov-
16 

00:32:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Female in distress as partner wants to 
take her home but seem to be refusing. 
This is causing a scene and members of 
public calling in as violence towards a 
female. 

High Street 

26-Nov-
16 

00:18:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Male detained by door staff in 
possession of large amount of drugs. 

Commercial Road 

26-Nov-
16 

23:15:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Abusive behaviour Fore Street 

26-Nov-
16 

01:50:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Males being abusive Fore Street 

26-Nov-
16 

22:12:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted door staff Queen Street 

P
age 371



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

26-Nov-
16 

23:05:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Male punched to the face.  Sidwell Street 

26-Nov-
16 

21:35:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Arrest Not Made Fighting  Mary Arches Street 

26-Nov-
16 

01:45:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Males squaring up to each other.  Fore Street 

26-Nov-
16 

23:46:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Male and female fighting Northernhay Street 

26-Nov-
16 

01:34:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Males having a fight. Mary Arches Street 

26-Nov-
16 

21:40:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Result not known Observed group fighting Mary Arches Street 

26-Nov-
16 

22:56:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Result not known Door staff called in for a male fighting 
in front of their door. 

Fore Street 

27-Nov-
16 

16:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour PCSO Called Moved On Group kicking ball into store front and 
in the alley way at the side causing 
problems to passers-by. 

Sidwell Street 

27-Nov-
16 

12:15:00 Drug related Cleansing Informed Resolved Report of a needle on the floor, called 
cleansing and has now been picked up 

High Street 

27-Nov-
16 

00:19:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints Male hitting female. Longbrook Street 

28-Nov-
16 

17:55:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Female being abusive High Street 

28-Nov-
16 

18:38:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called No offences Female being abusive Fore Street 

28-Nov-
16 

19:15:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Male abusive, asked to leave. Re-enters 
and bites a member of staff.  

Cathedral Yard 

P
age 372



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

29-Nov-
16 

15:55:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Group drinking in a public place South Street 

29-Nov-
16 

21:25:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Known Offender Males arguing High Street 

29-Nov-
16 

23:50:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Arrest Made Fighting  Market Street 

29-Nov-
16 

22:18:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No offences Females fighting High Street 

30-Nov-
16 

19:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Monitored Several areas covered in graffiti Queen Street 

30-Nov-
16 

20:40:00 Criminal Damage - 
Graffiti 

Police Called Arrest Made Observed male causing criminal 
damage 

Fore Street 

30-Nov-
16 

11:35:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Arrest Made Male using threatening behaviour Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

01-Dec-
16 

18:00:00 Harassment Monitored On-going observation Male harassing female High Street 

01-Dec-
16 

23:00:00 Urinating in public Police Called Words of Advice Male urinating Sidwell Street 

02-Dec-
16 

23:15:00 Drug related Police Called Arrest Made Male seen sniffing white powder with 
others.  

George Street 

02-Dec-
16 

00:40:00 Violence - Assault Monitored Arrest Made Male is punched to the floor Fore Street 

02-Dec-
16 

01:36:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted with a punch to his jaw.  Fore Street 

03-Dec-
16 

00:14:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Arrest Made Male and female fighting with the 
police. 

South Street 

P
age 373



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

03-Dec-
16 

15:30:00 Begging Monitored No complaints Beggar by cash machine Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

03-Dec-
16 

03:45:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Observed 5 males causing nuisance in 
the street 

BOLO 

03-Dec-
16 

15:48:00 Drink related Monitored Not Found Report of a drunk male  Cheeke Street 

03-Dec-
16 

21:35:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On Abusive female Fore Street 

03-Dec-
16 

01:30:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed 2 males fighting in the middle 
of the street. 

High Street 

03-Dec-
16 

00:30:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Observed 2 female fight against 2 other 
females. One received injuries in the 
face. 

High Street 

03-Dec-
16 

23:54:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Observed group fighting Quay Hill 

03-Dec-
16 

00:15:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Male and female using threatening 
behaviour 

South Street 

04-Dec-
16 

13:00:00 Begging Monitored Known Offender Male begging Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

04-Dec-
16 

22:25:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Arrest Made Threatening behaviour High Street 

05-Dec-
16 

10:52:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Moved On Male abusive when asked to leave King William Street 
Car Park 

05-Dec-
16 

15:00:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Known Offender Assault by male High Street 

P
age 374



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

06-Dec-
16 

06:54:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Result not known Number of drug users refusing to leave 
surrounded by uncapped needles 

Dix's Field 

06-Dec-
16 

18:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Not Made 2 males intoxicated and being abusive High Street 

06-Dec-
16 

02:27:00 Criminal Damage Police Called Ticket/Fine Issued Male ripped down Christmas 
decorations 

Princesshay 

06-Dec-
16 

11:00:00 Drink related Monitored Result not known Report of 5 males sitting on the bench 
drinking and causing ASB 

South Street 

06-Dec-
16 

03:58:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Fighting Smythen Street 

07-Dec-
16 

14:15:00 Begging Police Called Moved On Male begging Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

07-Dec-
16 

19:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Not Found Male being aggressive Sidwell Street 

08-Dec-
16 

03:31:00 Drug related Police Called Police Not Attending Male and female sniffing a white 
powder 

Paris Street 

09-Dec-
16 

01:40:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Police Called Arrest Made 5 or 6 intoxicated males causing issue 
at the premises. 

Fore Street 

09-Dec-
16 

18:00:00 Drink related Monitored No offences Male refusing to leave drunk and 
aggressive  

Market Street 

09-Dec-
16 

22:36:00 Violence - Abusive 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Male being aggressive towards security Market Street 

09-Dec-
16 

17:45:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No offences Group of females being abusive and 
aggressive to door staff 

Guildhall Shopping 
Centre 

09-Dec-
16 

22:48:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Words of Advice Report of a male refusing to leave  Martins Lane 

P
age 375



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

10-Dec-
16 

22:20:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Male causing a disturbance Smythen Street 

10-Dec-
16 

10:48:00 Drink related Monitored No offences Group drinking alcohol in a public place  Sidwell Street 

10-Dec-
16 

13:41:00 Drink related Police Called Not Found Observed two males assault another South Street 

10-Dec-
16 

00:51:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Males fighting Queen Street 

10-Dec-
16 

22:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fighting Fore Street 

10-Dec-
16 

01:50:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Fighting Fore Street 

10-Dec-
16 

02:55:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called No complaints Fighting  Quay Hill 

10-Dec-
16 

23:09:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Resolved Youths causing trouble then one 
assaulted the security guard 

Sidwell Street 

11-Dec-
16 

12:30:00 Begging Monitored for ASBAT 
Operation 

Known Offender Begging High Street 

11-Dec-
16 

11:26:00 Dog nuisance Cleansing Called Resolved Human faeces in street High Street 

11-Dec-
16 

10:00:00 Urinating in public Cleansing Informed Resolved Door staff detained a male for assault 
on door staff 

Gandy Street 

11-Dec-
16 

00:55:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Male assaulted  Little Queen Street 

11-Dec-
16 

00:24:00 Violence - Assault Police Called Arrest Made Males fighting Fore Street 

P
age 376



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

11-Dec-
16 

03:33:00 Violence - Assault Police Called No complaints 2 males fighting in the street Fore Street 

11-Dec-
16 

17:15:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Known Offender no complaints Sidwell Street 

11-Dec-
16 

03:40:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Group of males and females fighting Fore Street 

11-Dec-
16 

03:48:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fighting Fore Street 

11-Dec-
16 

00:59:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Obvs fight in the middle of the road 
near the traffic lights. 

Fore Street 

11-Dec-
16 

01:50:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fighting Fore Street 

11-Dec-
16 

00:47:00 Violence - Fighting Monitored Moved On Fighting High Street 

11-Dec-
16 

01:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called S 30 Dispersal Male causing disturbance and was 
threatening the MOP near the Odeon. 

Fore Street 

11-Dec-
16 

02:35:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Monitored Moved On 2 males causing problems inside the 
pub. Police attended and got them out. 

Sidwell Street 

12-Dec-
16 

12:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Arrest Made Male walked in front of a car and then 
gesture towards it. 

Queen Street 

12-Dec-
16 

11:40:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Intel. Gathering Group acting in an intimidating manner Longbrook Street 

12-Dec-
16 

13:33:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Result not known Male being abusive Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

12-Dec-
16 

11:15:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Words of Advice 2 males in premises causing general 
nuisance of themselves - monitored as 
they had moved on 

Sidwell Street 

P
age 377



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

12-Dec-
16 

07:06:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Moved On Female refusing to move High Street 

12-Dec-
16 

14:27:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Male intoxicated causing problems High Street 

12-Dec-
16 

11:05:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Group drinking alcohol on the bench 
nearby 

Sidwell Street 

12-Dec-
16 

14:45:00 Drink related Monitored Police Called Asking for assistance to move on 
youths asked to leave 

Cathedral Yard 

13-Dec-
16 

17:40:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Result not known Group acting in a threatening manner Cathedral Yard 

13-Dec-
16 

11:00:00 Anti Social Behaviour Police Called Result not known Female kept setting fire to rubbish Mary Arches Street 
Car park 

13-Dec-
16 

22:36:00 Arson Police Called Known Offender Male begging in car park Sidwell Street 

13-Dec-
16 

13:33:00 Begging Monitored Police Called Report of anti-social behaviour Mary Arches Street 

13-Dec-
16 

22:22:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored Not Found Group of youth’s drug-using. Fore Street 

14-Dec-
16 

22:25:00 Attempted Suicide Monitored On-going observation Female drunk and abusive Fore Street 

14-Dec-
16 

12:48:00 Drug dealing suspected Monitored Arrest Made Male throwing bottles at pub window Queen Street 

14-Dec-
16 

23:15:00 Violence - Threatening 
Behaviour 

Police Called Not Found Male causing disturbance Gandy Street 

15-Dec-
16 

18:05:00 Anti Social Behaviour Monitored Not Found Male begging High Street 

P
age 378



APPENDIX 3A 
 
CCTV Control Room Incidents 1 January 2015 – 16 December 2016 
 

Date Time Incident Type Action Taken Incident Result Comments Road 
 
 

 

15-Dec-
16 

11:15:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Male intoxicated High Street 

15-Dec-
16 

10:10:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

Monitored On-going observation Loud busking Paris Street 

15-Dec-
16 

18:30:00 Causing Disturbance / 
Nuisance 

PCSO Called Result not known Group drinking alcohol in a public place High Street 

15-Dec-
16 

13:29:00 Drink related Monitored Moved On Group drinking alcohol in a public place Sidwell Street 

15-Dec-
16 

14:30:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On Group drinking alcohol in a public place Bailey Street 

15-Dec-
16 

14:20:00 Drink related Police Called Moved On Group drinking alcohol in a public place South Street 

15-Dec-
16 

09:59:00 Drink related Monitored On-going observation Male seen urinating Sidwell Street 

15-Dec-
16 

10:15:00 Urinating in public Monitored On-going observation Males fighting Paris Street 

15-Dec-
16 

01:19:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Resolved Male seen running away after smashing 
door. 

Mary Arches Street 

16-Dec-
16 

01:17:00 Vandalism / Damage Police Called Arrest Made Group of males and females fighting. Mary Arches Street 

16-Dec-
16 

02:30:00 Violence - Fighting Police Called Moved On Fighting Little Castle Street 

P
age 379



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3B 
 

 
 
 
 
Exeter City Centre Neighbourhood Incidents (01-04-15 to 31-03-16) 
 
 

Closing Class 
Incidents - 

01/04/2015 to 
31/03/2016 

Incidents - 
01/04/2014 to 

31/03/2015 
# Change % Change 

Anti Social Behaviour 1449 1155 +294 +25.5% 

Public Safety 1752 1695 +57 +3.4% 

Crime Recorded 964 912 +52 +5.7% 

Crime Not Recorded 120 113 +7 +6.2% 

Administration 417 411 +6 +1.5% 

Transport 210 236 -26 -11.0% 

Total 4912 4522 +390 +8.6% 

     

     

ASB Closing Categories 
Incidents - 

01/04/2015 to 
31/03/2016 

Incidents - 
01/04/2014 to 

31/03/2015 
# Change % Change 

Nuisance Asb 1126 852 +274 +32.2% 

Environmental Asb 84 36 +48 +133.3% 

Personal Asb 239 267 -28 -10.5% 

Total 1449 1155 +294 +25.5% 

   

  
 

     

P
age 381



APPENDIX 3B 
 

ASB Closing Sub Class 
Incidents - 

01/04/2015 to 
31/03/2016 

Incidents - 
01/04/2014 to 

31/03/2015 
# Change % Change 

Rowdy/Inconsiderate Behaviour 1004 784 +220 +28.1% 

Street Drinking With Rowdy Or Nuisance 
Behaviour 136 92 +44 +47.8% 

Begging/Vagrancy 204 172 +32 +18.6% 

Littering/Drugs Paraphernalia 26 11 +15 +136.4% 

Trespass 5 1 +4 +400.0% 

Vehicle 14 11 +3 +27.3% 

Fireworks 2 0 +2 +200.0% 

Malicious/Nuisance Communication 9 8 +1 +12.5% 

- 1 0 +1 +100.0% 

Noise 2 4 -2 -50.0% 

Animal Problems 0 3 -3 -100.0% 

Street Drinking Only 5 10 -5 -50.0% 

Rowdy Nuisance Neighbours 41 59 -18 -30.5% 

Total 1449 1155 +294 +25.5% 

     Taken from Incident Report filtered on Exeter City Centre Neighbourhood from 01-04-15 to 31-03-16 
  

 

P
age 382



APPENDIX 3C 
 

Exeter City Centre Neighbourhood Incidents (01-04-16 to 25-10-2016) 
  

     

Closing Class 
Incidents - 

01/04/2016 to 
25/10/2016 

Incidents - 
01/04/2015 to 

25/10/2015 
# Change % Change 

Anti Social Behaviour 690 567 +123 +21.7% 

Public Safety 15 17 -2 -11.0% 

Crime Recorded 35 35 +0 +0.0% 

Crime Not Recorded 2 1 +1 +100.0% 

Administration 20 10 +10 +100.0% 

Transport 1 2 -1 -50.0% 

Total 763 632 +131 +20.7% 

     

     

ASB Closing Categories 
Incidents - 

01/04/2016 to 
25/10/2016 

Incidents - 
01/04/2015 to 

25/10/2015 
# Change % Change 

Nuisance Asb 554 445 +109 +24.5% 

Environmental Asb 33 37 -4 -10.0% 

Personal Asb 103 85 +18 +22.2% 

Total 690 567 +123 +21.7% 
  

P
age 383



APPENDIX 3C 
 

   

  
 

     

ASB Closing Sub Class 
Incidents - 

01/04/2016 to 
25/10/2016 

Incidents - 
01/04/2015 to 

25/10/2015 
# Change % Change 

Rowdy/Inconsiderate Behaviour 460 376 +84 22.3 

Street Drinking With Rowdy Or Nuisance 
Behaviour 89 52 +37 71.2 

Begging/Vagrancy 88 98 -10 -10.2 

Littering/Drugs Paraphernalia 11 8 +3 37.5 

Trespass 1 1 +0 0.0 

Vehicle 3 7 -4 -57.1 

Malicious/Nuisance Communication 5 5 +0 0.0 

Prostitution Related activity 1 0 +1   

Noise 1 0 +1   

Street Drinking Only 7 2 +5 250.0 

Rowdy Nuisance Neighbours 24 18 +6 33.3 

Total 690 567 +123 21.7 

     Taken from Incident Report filtered on Exeter City Centre Neighbourhood from 01-04-16 to 25-10-2016 
  

P
age 384



APPENDIX 3D 
 

Survey of City Centre Retailers – Impact of people drinking openly in public 
 
Retailers Surveyed: 35 
 
1.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Do you think drinking alcohol in public places (excluding licensed premises) is a problem in Exeter? 

 
 

 
 
3. Do you think being intoxicated openly in a public place is a problem in Exeter? 

 
 
 

 

Do you live in Exeter? 
Postcode 

Do you work in Exeter? 
Postcode 

EX4 IDG 1 EX4 IDG 2 
EX4 3BL 2 EX4 3AN 4 
EX4 3DS 1 EX4 3JW 3 

EX4 4BJ 1 EX3 3JB 1 
EX 2PQ 1 EX4 3JQ 1 
EX1 2SW 1 EX4 1AA 3 
EX4 3SA 1 EX4 3P2 1 
EX4 4JF 1 EX1 1GG 1 
EX4 3JQ 1 EX1 1GE 2 

EX4 2BB 1 EX1 1HB 2 
EX4 9DX 1 EX4 3EB 4 
EX8 4PB 1 EX4 3DU 1 
EX15 1NB 1 EX4 1EU 1 
EX4 1AA 1 EX1 1HB 1 
EX4 3AN 1 EX4 3DJ 2 
EX2 5NT 1 EX4 1GJ 1 

EX4 6DF 1 
  

EX4 6QZ 1 
  

EX1 3NX 1 
  

Yes 32 No 2 

Yes 35 No 0 

P
age 385



APPENDIX 3D 
 
4. If you believe that people drinking alcohol or being intoxicated in public is a problem in Exeter, please state the locations where you have seen 

this: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13

6

14

2

1 1

17

1 1

2

1

2

1 1 1

2

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

4.If you believe that people drinking alcohol or being intoxicated in public is a problem in Exeter, please 
state the locations where you have seen this:

P
age 386



APPENDIX 3D 
 
5. .If so what types of problems do you find most often? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
6. Where do you see people drinking alcohol in public places/being intoxicated and associated ASB taking place? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20

29
31

22

9

27

33

29

1 1 2 1 2
4

1 1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

5.If so what types of problems do you find most often?

32

27

11

17

10

4
2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

6.Where do you see people drinking alcohol in public places/being intoxicated and associated ASB taking place?

P
age 387



APPENDIX 3D 
 
7. How often do you see it 

 
 
 

 
8. When do you see it taking place? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9. Do people drinking alcohol in public places/being intoxicated & associated ASB ever prevent you from: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Every day 22 Few days 8 Mostly on the weekends 3 From time to time 4 

26

17

25

26

24

1

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

First thing in the morning

In the morning

In the afternoon

On the way home

In the evening/ at night

Varied times

8: When do you see it taking place? 

12

17

27

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Going out at perticular times

Going to particular places

Feeling safe while you are out

9.Do people drinking alcohol in public places/being intoxicated 

& associated ASB ever prevent you from:

P
age 388



APPENDIX 3D 
 
 
10. Do you feel people drinking in public places/being intoxicated & associated ASB has a bad influence on local businesses and public places? 
 

Yes 32 No 1 

 
 

11. If so please give details: 
 

 
 
 
 
12. Do you ever report this to authorities? 
 

 
 

 
 

15

1

1

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

3

1

1

1

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

Agressive behaviour stops people from visiting

Business premises damaged

Fore Street still seen as a rough part of the City

Drinking, screaming and smoking in Smythern St.

Unfriendly environment, people don't feel safe

Fear of broken windows

Sexual acts outside flats

Elderly people are scared

Stops visitors/residents going to areas

Cusotmers feel intimidated, Retail entrances are blocked

Urine stench

Sleepers leave a terrible mess

People sitting in doorways prevent from opening

Gatherings of groups

Property urinated on

Shoplifting

11: If so please give details:

Yes 22 No 7 

P
age 389



APPENDIX 3D 
 
 
13. What do you feel should be done to help prevent people from drinking alcohol openly in public places/being intoxicated & associated ASB from 

taking place? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28

31

30

30

30

31

31

27

18

25

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

The council should have PSPO/ban on drinking in all public places

PSPO/ban on associated ASB to include powers to control: Urinating

PSPO/ban on associated ASB to include powers to control: Intimidating groups

PSPO/ban on associated ASB to include powers to control: Begging

PSPO/ban on associated ASB to include powers to control: Leaving litter and mess

PSPO/ban on associated ASB to include powers to control: Taking other intoxications
including legal highs

Increase police presence to remove the drinkers from public places

Shops should not sell alcohol to street drinkers

Shops should avoid selling super strength alcohol products

Chronic drinkers and other addicts should be given more help

13. What do you feel should be done to help prevent people from drinking alcohol openly in public places/being 
intoxicated & associated ASB from taking place?

P
age 390



APPENDIX 3D 
 
 
14. Any Comments: 

• Get to the root why people behave this way and give them an alternative! 

• Exeter seems to be attracting more and more homeless people & drug addicts. Gabriel House being right in the city centre has a huge detrimental effect 

on the feel and look of the    City Centre, encouraging large groups of addicts to gather and deal. I witness this on a daily basis from my business premises 

on Fore St. I feel strongly about this issue, please   contact me if I can help any further, ****** 

• Over the last month the increase in homeless/begging and drunken individuals throughout the city centre has increased and to create a family friendly 

environment we need to reduce the impact that this has on families. 

• The GWRSA has regularly reported drinking and begging under the railway bridge. This only seems to be a short term solution where after a couple of 

days the same people are back doing the same thing. 

• I think Exeter is a great city however street drinking, begging and drug abuse really let it down. You constantly feel pestered and intimidated. Street 

drinkers should be banned from sitting next to ATM machines and asking for money. Legal highs should be banned! More power should be given to 

police/council to remove these people from public places. 

• Please look at the corner of Market St. and the top of Fore St. The fire exit of the charity shop under the Corn exchange seems to be a meeting point for 

well-known drinkers and drug users. Large groups gather blocking the retailer’s fire exit. It is intimidating to the passing public and of putting the retailer’s 

customers. 

• It's worrying how many people drink in the day in front of children out with their families 

• We have had a lot more problems during the last twelve months. The Problem seems to be getting worse and we have to carry gloves because we have 

found needles and rubbish that needs to be moved before we can enter our shop. We have also been threatened and had to call the police out on many 

occasions. Many of the homeless problems we have experienced have been drug related not just drink related. 

• I have seen drunken homeless in the morning rummaging in bin bags left outside restaurants on Fore St. I have had to deal with cleaning my shop 

doorway of drunk and high homeless who are aggressive - with very little police support. The stench of urine in areas of the city is disgusting. As a female, 

intoxicated people who frequently become violent or aggressive is extremely intimidating and upsetting. 

• The homeless issue is appalling. The smell that is left in our shop is disgusting. We are then left to clean up the rubbish, urine, excrement and anything 

else they leave behind. Having to open the shop early mornings it is also a growing concern as a young lone female having to move on 5+ males and their 

dogs by myself. I feel completely vulnerable and something needs to be done 

• The overall attitude of these people it that they wish to assert their "Rights" to do what they want all the time, predominantly not work, drink, take drugs, 

leave rubbish and mess for others to clean up. But if I were to assert my "Rights" to go to work, open my store for business, lead a normal, crime free life 

and feel safe I'm not able to do so due to their behaviour doesn't add up somehow. They want everything handed to them on a plate but don't want to 

give anything in return. 

• Customers have started voicing comments regarding this. This has certainly got worse the last few months. An increase in PCSO/ Police presence would 

help. On Thursday mornings there seems to be a bigger problem. Large groups gather from 6am. They are very antisocial and have tried to enter our store 

P
age 391



APPENDIX 3D 
 

while we unloaded delivery. It is very unintimidating an all-female team to unlock/lock the shop. Something needs to be done in order to preserve a good 

image of Exeter and promote trade in a friendly way to our visitors from overseas. 

• Homeless people are the worst problem at the moment. Police are having to move them on every morning that I come to work. Sometimes I am unable 

to get into work for over an hour I'm also left to deal with cleaning up their mess. Many shops are saying the same as us. The smell in my shop when I 

open is appalling. They smoke all night in the doorway making my luxury underwear smell. I am being left to clean up urine bottles, animal and human 

excrement. This itself is unacceptable. We've had to change refuse companies so that they collect in afternoons as city council collect service and road 

sweepers are unhelpful and we daily scrub/clean the entrance to our store. This is a huge issue that needs to be dealt with. 

• For us (******) the homeless issue is a major concern. They are in my doorway every night. If the police haven't moved them on, I am left to do it by 

myself. As a lone female it makes me feel very vulnerable. 

• It does appear to be the same individuals on a consistent basis. There is a clear link with drink/drugs and antisocial behaviour. The level of antisocial 

behaviour is daily business in Exeter. Many visitors will not return. 

• It can be intimidating. It puts people off shopping or visiting the city. 

• There is always a cause and this is everyone’s problem so we cannot just brush it under the carpet or make it some one else’s problem further out of the 

centre. 

• Why do the Exeter City Council keep opening the places for people with their type of problem and let them reside in the city centre? You know it’s going 

to end if drinking and drug taking in public, public nuisance situations, damage to property encourage these types into the city centre. You are the 

problem. Think of all the decent people as you clearly are NOT! 

• This behaviour is a symptom of a bigger problem. Social policy under the tories has diserendet and is now a public disgrace. How many of these men are 

ex-forces? More care   should be taken of people leaving the service. There is also a lifestyle that it acceptable in the southwest - crusty/anarchists need 

to be removed from public spaces 

• Dinking in the area such as Cathedral Green with visitors to the city unsavoury image for a cathedral city. 

• The council appears to have largely ignored this rapidly developing problem, to the extent where last year we felt it necessary to use local and national 

press coverage to get them    to take notice ... There is a lack of CCTV and police pressure on the streets of Exeter, and a distinct reticence in recognising 

these problems and the reports of people    affected. I can only assume this is due to a lack of funds. If you continue to ignore the problem and the lack of 

associated services we'll very soon end up with a ghetto or a "no go" area that people are afraid to pass through, due to ASB by drink and drug users. 

 

 

P
age 392



APPENDIX 3E 
 

Survey Responses from attendees of Open Public Meetings & Business Meeting, 

December 2016 

 

Introduction 

In order to gauge whether the revisions that followed the formal consultation to the proposed 

PSPO had the support of local residents and businesses within and around the proposed 

PSPO area, a series of four open public meetings were carried out in the evenings of 5th – 

8th December 2016.  

Attendees at the meetings were also encouraged to complete a survey form about any anti-

social behaviour that they may be experiencing in the locality, if they so wished. The results 

of that survey is presented below. 

Of the 105 residents and business attendees to the 4 meetings, 90 participated in 

completing a double-sided survey form. In a number of cases the second side of the form 

(relating to graphs 3, 4, and 5) was not completed, and it is likely that in a number of these 

the participant failed to realise that the form was double-sided (recorded as ‘did not answer’). 

Analysis 

Most of the 90 responses came from the meeting in St. David’s ward, which was the best 

attended meeting overall (Chart 1).  

Concern about anti-social behaviour 

From Chart 2 it can be seen that 92% or respondents were concerned about anti-social 

behaviour in public places in Exeter or their neighbourhood, indicating that this is a real issue 

for people. 

Types of anti-social behaviour found most often 

Chart 3 plots the types of anti-social behaviour that people find most often, with intoxication 

being most frequently stated (72 times), followed by drug litter (64), and anti-

social/intimidating groups (63). Over half of respondents (54) cited urinating in public, closely 

followed by aggressive/intimidating individuals (48). Just under half of respondents (40) felt 

that aggressive begging was a problem they come across. Overall this indicates that the 

problematical anti-social behaviours that the proposed PSPO seeks manage down have all 

been identified by a significant number of attendees at the meetings. 

Frequency of ASB 

In terms of the frequency that anti-social behaviour is experienced, Chart 4 shows that 64% 

saw it daily or every few days, i.e. relatively often. 17% saw it from time to time, with 8% 

seeing it at weekends. This indicates that people’s general experience of anti-social 

behaviour is not uncommon, but something that is seen quite often on a regular basis. 

Occurrence of anti-social behaviour 

Most people experienced anti-social behaviour at night-time or evening (67), with the 

afternoon (49) and morning (43) being the next most frequently times chosen. Less people 

cited the start of the day on the way to work/school (21), and the return home at the end of 

the day (28), as times that they saw anti-social behaviour. 

Impact of anti-social behaviour  

Page 393



APPENDIX 3E 
 

In terms of whether anti-social behaviour prevented people from going out, visiting places or 

feeling safe, a sizeable minority (38) did not feel that it prevented them, but the majority did 

feel that they were so prevented, with most feeling unsafe (44), and many prevented from 

visiting a particular place (31) or going out at a certain time (24). This shows that a majority 

of respondents were being negatively affected in some way by the anti-social behaviours 

taking place in their neighbourhood and/or Exeter. 

Conclusion 

The results from those 90 attendees who completed a survey form indicate that a majority of 

those local residents and businesses are experiencing anti-social behaviour in a variety of 

forms, that this is occurring on a regular basis at different times of the day, and that it is 

having a detrimental impact on them in terms of feeling safe or being deterred from going out 

at certain times of the day, or to certain places. 

 

 

 

 

23 

9 

31 

27 

1) Survey participants 

Riverside Guildhall St David's St Sidwell's 

Page 394



APPENDIX 3E 
 

 

 

 

 

 

83 

7 

2) Are you concerned about anti-social behaviour in Exeter 
or your neighbourhood? 

Concerned Not Concerned 

40 

64 

63 
48 

72 

54 
5 

3) Types of anti-social behaviour of concern 

Aggressive begging Drug litter, needles etc 

Intimidating/antisocial groups  Intimidating/antisocial individuals 

Intoxication - person or groups Urinating in public spaces 

Did not answer 

Page 395



APPENDIX 3E 
 

 

 

 

 

36 

22 

7 

15 

10 

4) How often do you see ASB? 

Every  day A few days during the week Mostly at weekends 

From time to time Did not answer 

21 

43 

49 28 

67 

12 

5) When do you see anti-social behaviour taking place? 

First thing in the morning/on way to school or work 

In the morning 

In the afternoon 

On the way home from school/work 

In the evening/at night 

Did not answer 

Page 396



APPENDIX 3E 
 

 

 

44 

24 31 

38 

6) Does anti-social behaviour prevent you from:  

Feeling safe while you are out Going out at particular times 

Going to particular places Did not answer 

Page 397



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4A 
 
 
Responses from Open Public Meetings in December 2016 
 
Members felt that it was particularly important to ascertain whether there was support 
for the revised proposals from those actually living and working in and adjacent to the 
proposed PSPO area, as it was they who were primarily experiencing any antisocial 
behaviour, and the proposed restrictions would apply to the public spaces within their 
community. It was also felt that a public meeting that allowed officers to explain the 
revisions and proposals, and answer questions to help clarify matters, would be a 
particularly effective way of relaying to residents and businesses how the proposed 
PSPO would operate in Exeter. 
 
In order to gauge whether the revisions that followed the formal consultation to the 
proposed PSPO had the support of local residents and businesses within and around 
the proposed PSPO area, a series of four open public meetings were carried out in 
the evenings of 5th – 8th December 2016.  
 
For residents, these meetings were held at accessible meeting places within St. 
Thomas, St. David’s, and St. James wards, whilst an open meeting for businesses 
was held at the Guildhall, High Street, in the city centre. 
 
Notification of these meetings was either by leaflet posted through letterboxes of 
residential properties, or for St. James ward, by an advert posted in the St. James 
community newsletter that was distributed to all residences in the ward. Around 100 
posters were also displayed in local notice boards, shops and other public places 
within the proposed PSPO area. In addition, local residents associations highlighted 
the meetings via their respective networks. A press release was also issued in the 
weeks leading up to the meetings, resulting in an Express and Echo article publishing 
the dates of meetings, and the Portfolio Holder for Place being interviewed for radio 
and television. 
 
In the case of the business meeting, this was notified to businesses through the 
offices of BID, EBAC, Chambers of Commerce and small business associations. 
 
The meetings took the format of a presentation outlining the legal parameters of 
PSPOs, the results of the formal consultation that had ended on February 29th 2016 
and the proposed revisions in response to that consultation. The presentation then 
focussed on the proposed restrictions to be put to Council in February 2017, and the 
audience were asked to indicate their support or otherwise by holding up a green or 
red card respectively (anyone wishing to abstain could do so by not holding up a 
card). The audience were encouraged to ask questions throughout the presentation, 
as well as at the end. 
 
The Assistant Director Environment gave the presentation and chaired the meeting, 
supported by the Environmental Health & Licensing Manager and Police (although 
the Police were unable to attend the meeting in St. James). A number of Ward 
Members and Portfolio Holders were also present for all meetings with the exception 
of St. David’s, and participated in the question and answer sessions. 
 
All open public meetings were well-attended with the exception of the business 
meeting that attracted fewer attendees; over 105 people attending (excluding officers 
and Members). In all meetings there was a robust discussion and healthy airing 
about the PSPO proposals; for example, how they would operate in terms of dealing 
with anti-social behaviour in the respective localities, whether they were needed in 
terms of existing powers, would they unfairly target certain communities such as the 
street attached, whether they would be used in a heavy-handed way by the Police, 

Page 399



Appendix 4A 
 
 
and whether they may inadvertently capture law-abiding citizens that had for 
example, just purchased a bottle of wine to take home. The presence of the Police 
was particularly useful in reassuring people that in practical terms this would assist 
the Police as an extra tool in dealing with problematical anti-social behaviour in a 
proportionate and measured way. 
  
Attendees at the meetings were also encouraged to complete a survey form about 
any anti-social behaviour that they may be experiencing in the locality, if they so 
wished. The results of that survey is presented below. 
 
Level of support for the revised restrictions 
In terms of the revised restrictions, the public attending the meetings showed their 
support or otherwise as follows. 
 
Restriction A (Intoxicants) 
 

Public Meeting Support Not support 

St. Thomas 27 0 

St. David’s 25 0 

St. James 15 8 

Businesses 10 0 

Total 77 8 

   
Restriction B (Urinating) 
 

Public Meeting Support Not support 

St. Thomas 27 0 

St. David’s 22 8 

St. James 14 11 

Businesses 10 0 

Total 73 19 

 
Restriction C (Aggressive Begging) 
 

Public Meeting Support Not support 

St. Thomas 27 0 

St. David’s 28 2 

St. James 10 10 

Businesses 10 0 

Total 75 12 

 
Restriction D (Antisocial individuals/groups) 
 

Public Meeting Support Not support 

St. Thomas 28 0 

St. David’s 33 2 

St. James 11 9 

Businesses 10 0 

Total 82 11 

 
Restriction E (Dispersal of antisocial groups) 
 

Public Meeting Support Not support 

Page 400



Appendix 4A 
 
 

St. Thomas 28 0 

St. David’s 31 2 

St. James 13 4 

Businesses 10 0 

Total 82 6 

 
Summary table of totals 
From the responses received at the meeting, it can be seen that there is a large 
majority (89%) of support from local residents and businesses for the revised 
restrictions being proposed.  
 

Proposed Restriction Support Not support 

A (Intoxicants) 77 91% 8 9% 

B (Urinating) 73 79% 19 21% 

C (Aggressive Begging) 75 86% 12 14% 

D (ASB Individuals/Groups) 82 88% 11 12% 

E (Dispersal of Groups) 82 93% 6 7% 

Total 389 89% 46 11% 

 
In addition, the audience at the St. Thomas meeting felt strongly that the proposed 
PSPO boundary within St. Thomas was too constrained and did not adequately cover 
the residential streets and open spaces immediately either side of Cowick Street that 
had been recently suffering from persistent antisocial behaviour. The audience were 
therefore asked whether they would be in support or otherwise of retaining the 
existing boundary and not to include those immediate areas, with the following result. 
 
Keeping to the proposed PSPO boundary in St. Thomas and not include 
adjacent streets and public spaces. 
 

Public Meeting Support Not support 

St. Thomas 0 28 

 

Page 401



This page is intentionally left blank



Final 

 

 

REPORT TO  
Date of Meeting: Scrutiny Place 12 January; Executive 14 February; Council 21 
February 2017 
Report of: Assistant Director Public Realm 
Title: Management of Exeter’s Waterways 
 
 Is this a Key Decision?  
 No 
  

 Is this an Executive or Council Function? 
  

 Council 
  

1 What is the report about? 
  

1.1 To progress a solution for the improved management of the Exe Estuary 
Harbour, canal and waterways and to address specific governance and 
management issues associated with the waterways. 
  

2 Recommendations:  
 
That Place Scrutiny Committee supports and Executive support and 
recommend to Council the approval of the following:- 

  
2.1 that work on a business case to transfer the Exeter Ship Canal to the Canal 

and River Trust ceases and that a Management Plan for the canal is 
developed in-house; 

  
2.2 
 
 

that officers be tasked to develop a business case to employ a Harbour 
Master or similar to deliver Port Marine Safety Code compliance, improve 
safety and improve operational management on the River Exe; 

  
2.3 that, in compliance with the Port Marine Safety Code,: 
  
2.3.1 the Service Manager Business and Commercial Operations be designated as 

the ‘Duty Holder’ in respect to the Port of Exeter and the Constitution be 
amended accordingly; 

  
2.3.2 an external competent body be engaged to fulfil the role of ‘Designated 

Person’ as defined by the Port Marine Safety Code to undertake competency 
and safety audits; 

  
2.4 
 
 

that a budget of £10,000 be identified from within existing resources to 
engage specialist marketing and business development expertise to support 
the preparation of a Marketing Plan for the Waterways and to deliver the 
additional income requirements.    

  
2.5 
 

that the Mooring Licence issued since 2013 be applied to all moorings in the 
Port of Exeter and that, where the licensee is unwilling to accept the new 
licence conditions, action be taken to remove the vessel from the Port; 

  
2.6 that only vessels deemed suitable at the Council’s absolute discretion be 

Page 403

Agenda Item 10



  

 

permitted into the canal, with responsibility to make such a determination be 
delegated to the relevant Service Manager; and   

  

2.7 where repairs are necessary or ‘off season’ maintenance is required, these 
activities be confined to the Eastern side of the Basin or the Boat Park (in 
Michael Browning Way) and this be cordoned off from public access.    

  
3 Reasons for the recommendations: 
  
3.1 To progress a solution for the management of the Exe Estuary Harbour, 

canal and waterways, to address specific governance and management 
issues associated with the waterways and to satisfy the requirements of the 
Port Marine Safety Code by defining a formal structure for the operation of a 
Statutory Port.     

  
4 What are the resource implications including non-financial resources. 
  
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 

Recognisable improvements to the management of the Exe Estuary Harbour, 
canal and waterways are hard to achieve within the current level of 
resources.  These are only sufficient to maintain the status quo and to deliver 
basic compliance with the Port Marine Safety Code.  However, these 
improvements and their resource requirements will be the subject of future 
reports. 
 
The cost of producing the Management Plan and the development of the new 
policies and practices as recommended in this report will be reflected mostly 
in terms of staff time.  Additional input in terms of legal advice and 
compliance work will also be required. 

  
5 
 
5.1 

Section 151 Officer comments: 
 
There are no additional financial implications for the Council contained within 
this report.  However, waterways income generation is built into the MTFP for 
2018/19 and will require some firm proposals to come forward during the next 
financial year.  

  
6 
 
6.1 

What are the legal aspects? 
 
None identified. 

  
7 
 
7.1 

Monitoring Officer’s comments: 
 
Complying with the recommendations set out in relation to the Port Marine 
Safety Code is clearly a priority.  However the issue regarding how we might 
make the waterway more profitable has been without resolution for very 
many years.  As a result the monitoring officer recommends that an officer 
working group to include legal services to look at this should be set up 
urgently.   

  
8 Waterways Management 
  
8.1 Members will be well aware that the desire to progress a solution for the 

management of the Exe Estuary Harbour, canal and waterways has been a 

Page 404



  

 

corporate objective for some time.   
  
8.2 In June 2014, the Council agreed that the proposed Harbour Revision Order, 

submitted to the Department for Transport in 2008, was not viable and a 
review of the options available for the future management of the waterways 
began. 

  
8.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.4 

In March 2015, Members agreed to establish a partnership of key 
stakeholders in Exeter’s waterways to help develop and deliver a Waterways 
Strategy.  Exeter Waterways Advisory Board was a very useful sounding 
board for change and the time, energy and passion of the volunteers was 
much appreciated, helping to bring some clarity to how Exeter’s waterways 
should be managed.  The Board was superseded as the most appropriate 
vehicle for stakeholder representation and lobbying on the waterways by the 
new independent Port User Group in September 2016. 
 
In September 2015, the Canal and River Trust was invited to work with the 
Council to explore the potential for joint future work.  Lengthy but productive 
discussions took place with the Trust about the support that they could 
offered the Council in managing its waterways.  It became clear that the 
Trust’s preferred option was permanent asset transfer of the Exeter Ship 
Canal, with significant upfront technical survey costs for the council and an 
estimated upfront dowry requirement of between £2m and £6m.   

  
8.5 In addition, in September 2015, the Maritime and Coastguard Agency 

undertook an audit of the Port of Exeter and in November 2015, Members 
agreed to work towards compliance with the Port Marine Safety Code.   

  
8.6 In February this year, Members agreed to apply to the Department for 

Transport for the power to make Harbour Directions and in September this 
year a Port User Group was established as a requirement of that process. 

  

8.7 While rather lengthy, this process has been invaluable in better 
understanding the issues, the needs of the stakeholders and the manner in 
which the management of the waterways might be improved.  Given that 
Members are keen for improved management of both the Estuary and the 
Canal, stakeholders are keen for the responsibility for the Canal to be 
retained by the Council and the Trust solution appeared to have a significant 
unbudgeted cost to it, the Council’s direction was reconsidered. In brief, it is 
now proposed to: 
 

 cease work on the business case for the transfer of the Exeter Ship 
Canal to the Canal and River Trust, and 

 develop a Management Plan for the Canal to include new approaches 
to abandoned boats, live-aboards, moorings, programmed 
maintenance and improvements in financial control, customer 
processes and systems, marketing and published information.   

 develop a business case to employ a Harbour Master or similar to 
deliver Port Marine Safety Code compliance, improve safety and 
improve operational management on the River Exe 

 
 

 Waterways Management Plan 

Page 405



  

 

 
 
8.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Management Plan will direct and prioritise improvements in the 
management of the Exe Estuary Harbour, canal and waterways and address 
specific governance and management issues associated with the waterways.  
It will be developed in house over the next few months and will be the subject 
of a future report.  The cost of producing the Management Plan and the 
development of the new policies and practices as recommended in this report 
will be reflected mostly in terms of staff time.   
 
 

  
 Port Marine Safety Code Compliance – Port Governance 
  

8.9 In September 2015, the Maritime and Coastguard Agency recommended that 
the Council: 
 
•      identify and appoint a Duty Holder who is accountable on behalf of the 

Harbour Authority for its compliance with the PMSC;  
 
•      appoint a Designated Person to provide the duty holder with 

independent assurance directly to the duty holder that the Marine Safety 
Management System is working effectively 

  
8.10 In order to continue to achieve practicable compliance with the Port Marine 

Safety Code, and to define a formal structure for the operation of a Statutory 
Port, the establishment of the Duty Holder and Designated Person needs to 
be recognised formally.  It is proposed that that the Service Manager 
Business and Commercial Operations be designated as the ‘Duty Holder’ in 
respect to the Port of Exeter. 

  
8.11 At present, the Council has no resource with the experience and 

independence necessary to fulfil the role of ‘Designated Person,’ as defined 
by the Port Marine Safety Code, to undertake competency and safety audits.  
As a result it is proposed that an external competent body is engaged to fulfil 
the role of ‘Designated Person’, funded from existing budgets.   

  
8.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

It is likely that operating the Port in compliance with the Port Marine Safety 
Code will generate additional costs.  Consultation with the Port users has 
given us a clear indication that their preferred solution to the improved 
management of the waterways is for the Council to appoint a Harbour 
Master.   This role would enable the Council to deliver Port Marine Safety 
Code compliance, improve safety and improve operational management on 
the River Exe.  The cost of providing a Harbour Master is estimated at 
£40,000 per annum, together with a capital funding of around £25,000 for the 
provision of a suitable boat.  A more detailed proposal will be brought forward 
from the Management Plan and a business case for this additional funding 
will be the subject of a future report. 
 
Income 
 

8.13 The task for the Medium Term Financial Strategy was to determine the 
scope, cost and feasibility of increasing the income budget by £110,000.  The 

Page 406



  

 

outcome of this is that there is scope for increasing the income budget by 
increasing the number of moorings on the canal with only nominal levels of 
investment needed.  However, the canal has lost business over the last two 
years and it is not feasible to reverse and improve that position without 
investing in marketing and promotion and not in time for the 2017/18 season.  
It is proposed that a budget of £10,000 be identified from within existing 
resources to engage specialist marketing, business development and 
promotional expertise to support the preparation of a Marketing Plan for the 
Waterways and to deliver the additional income requirements in 2018/19. 

  
 Vessels in Disrepair 
  
8.14 Members will be aware that there is a significant issue with vessels berthed 

within the Harbour that have fallen into disrepair or are close to it.  We have a 
legacy of problem vessels, particularly in the canal, and costs in the region of 
£15,000, together with associated management time, has been incurred in 
the last two years for their removal.  Improved controls on entry to the Port, 
berthing and removal from the Port are required to deal with these vessels.   

  
8.15 We need to limit access to the canal and basin in order to avoid potential 

problem vessels reaching the confines of the canal and basin. It is proposed 
to restrict access to the canal only to vessels that are deemed suitable at the 
Council’s absolute discretion, with responsibility to make such a 
determination be delegated to the relevant Service Manager.    

  
8.16 Berthing of vessels is regulated in the Port of Exeter by Mooring Licences but 

there are anomalies that make enforcing compliance problematic.  Most 
problematic are the vessels granted a Mooring Licence prior to 2013 that 
remain in the Harbour.  Prior to 2013, Mooring Licences issued by the 
Council had no expiry date.  Consequently, over many years, historic 
practices and perceived rights have become associated with what should be 
a simple licence to berth.  In 2013, the Mooring Licence was revised and is 
now time-limited.  Holders of this licence have a clear expectation of their 
tenure and the conditions under which they are permitted to remain within 
Port.   

  
8.17 It is proposed that the terms and conditions of the Mooring Licence issued 

from 2013 to new vessels entering the Port now be applied to pre-existing 
moorings and, where the licensee is unwilling to accept the new licence 
conditions, action be taken to remove the vessel for the Port of Exeter.  The 
termination of the remaining fifty two ‘historic’ licences and the introduction of 
the current licences throughout the Port will address this anomaly.  This may 
impact upon a small number of people who are living on their boats, which 
have not moved from the Port since 2013, if they refuse to accept the new 
Licence.  The issue of living on board on the canal will be addressed in the 
forthcoming Management Plan and will be the subject of a future report.  

  
 Repairs to vessels 
  
8.18 Clearly, repairs to vessels are required from time to time to make them ready 

for sea but in the Port of Exeter this has become confused with the practice 
of rebuilding vessels, sometimes over many years.   The Health and Safety 
Risk assessment highlights that the storing of timber, working off ladders etc. 

Page 407



  

 

is incompatible with the public access to the basin side.  In mitigation it is 
proposed that, where repairs are necessary or ‘off season’ maintenance is 
required, these activities will be confined to the eastern side of the Basin or 
the Boat Park (in Michael Browning Way) and will be cordoned off from public 
access.   The requirement to prevent pollution of the canal as a result of 
maintenance/ repair activities will limit the availability of space.  

  
9 How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 
  
9.1 The Corporate Plan seeks to provide services that customers need and 

reduce operating costs by redesigning services and managing our assets 
effectively. 

  
10 What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 
  
10.1 The recommendations seek to reduce the risk of non-compliance with the 

Port Marine Safety Code, the financial risk of liability for vessels in disrepair 
and the risk of environmental contamination of the waterway.  There is a 
small reputational risk as some of the management measures may be 
unpopular and may lead to negative media coverage. 

  
11 What is the impact of the decision on equality and diversity; health and 

wellbeing; safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults, 
community safety and the environment? 

  
11.1 These decisions will increase the effective management of the Port and 

enhance the safe enjoyment of the waterway amenity. 
  
  

 Sarah Ward 
 Assistant Director Public Realm 

  
  
 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

 Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

 None 
  
 Contact for enquires:  
 Democratic Services (Committees) 
 Room 2.3 

 01392 265275 
  

  
  
  

Page 408



Final 
 

 

REPORT TO:  Place Scrutiny Committee 
Date of Meeting: 12 January 2017 
 
REPORT TO:  Executive 
Date of Meeting: 14 February 2017 
 
Report of:   Victoria Hatfield, Economy & Enterprise Manager 
Title:  Exeter & the Heart of Devon, a shared economic strategy. 

A Collaborative Approach to Growth & Productivity 2017 - 
2020 

 
Is this a Key Decision?  
No  
 
Is this an Executive or Council Function?  
Executive 
 
1.  What is the report about?  
 
1.1  To inform members of the new shared Growth & Productivity Strategy, 

covering Exeter, East Devon, Mid Devon and Teignbridge.   
 
2.  Recommendation  
 
2.1  That Place Scrutiny Committee note and Executive support the Exeter & the 

Heart of Devon, a shared economic strategy. A Collaborative Approach to 
Growth & Productivity 2017 – 2020. 

 
2.2 To continue working in partnership with East Devon, Mid Devon and 

Teignbridge Local Authorities on common economic development objectives. 
 
2.3 To work in partnership with the proposed Greater Exeter Growth & 

Development Board to ensure consistency with vision, objectives and 
individual projects and initiatives. 

 
3.  Reasons for the recommendation  
 
3.1  To continue with joint working with neighbouring local authorities for the 

benefit of the Exeter economy, its residents, businesses and student 
population and to improve local outcomes by delivering specific joint projects 
across a recognised functional economic market area. 

 
3.2 The ‘travel to work’ area for Exeter has expanded significantly over the 

previous ten years, covering much of our neighbouring local authorities.  
Working in partnership is a mutually beneficial relationship for all concerned.  

 
3.3 To ensure work undertaken by the emerging Greater Exeter Growth & 

Development Board and the Economic Development teams of each for local 
authority work in parallel and to a common shared vision and goal.    

 
4.  What are the resource implications including non financial resources?  
 
4.1  The Growth & Productivity Strategy will be delivered and implemented using 

existing financial and personnel resources through the City Council’s Growth 
& Enterprise budget.  

Page 409

Agenda Item 11



Final 
 

 

 
5.  Section 151 Officer comments:  
 
5.1 There are no additional financial implications contained within this report. 
 
6.  What are the legal aspects?  
 
6.1 This report raises no issues from a legal standpoint.   
 
7.  Monitoring officer Comments:  
 
7.1 This report is in line with the Executive’s decision regarding the development 

of the Greater Exeter Growth and Development Board and will play an 
integral part in achieving this.  As such, it raises no issues for the Monitoring 
Officer. 

 
8.  Background  
 
8.1  The Economic Development Teams from Exeter, East Devon, Mid Devon and 

Teignbridge District Councils have been working collaboratively for just over 2 
years.  This has enabled a trusting and confidential relationship to emerge 
which has aided joint projects to be developed, which are mutually beneficial 
for the Exeter & the Heart of Devon area and each Local Authority within. 

 
8.2 As a result of joint working, the four Local Authorities have:  

 Expanding the Exeter Commercial Property Register to cover all four 
Local Authorities 

 Joint purchase of the Mint business database to gain business 
intelligence 

 Joint procurement of business support covering all four Local Authorities 

 Gained recognition of Exeter & the Heart of Devon as a Functional 
Economic Market Area 

 
8.3 The ‘travel to work’ area for Exeter has expanded considerably over the 

previous ten years, as shown in the illustration in Appendix 1 (data from the 
Office of National Statistics).  This indicates the significance of the Exeter 
economy on work delivered by neighbouring local authorities and its residents 
who work in Exeter.   

 
8.4 The table below highlights the resident population, the working age population 

and the number of residents who are economically active within Exeter & the 
Heart of Devon.  The total residential population of Exeter & the Heart of 
Devon is 473,700 and is broken down into a working age population of 
285,000 a resident population of 251,200 that are economically active.  
Approximately 45% of Exeter’s workforce commute daily into the city, which 
highlights the significance of partnership working. 

 

Page 410



Final 
 

 

 
 
8.5 A report was taken to Executive on 8 November 2016 proposing a Greater 

Exeter Growth & Development Board, which detailed a formal governance 
structure for the Exeter & the Heart of Devon functional economic market 
area.  The same report is being presented at Teignbridge and East Devon 
District Council, with Mid Devon being encouraged to join the formal 
collaborative approach.  Going forward work will continue in how this strategy 
fits in with the aspiration of the new Growth & Development Board with both 
meeting in the middle.  

 
 

Greater Exeter Growth & Development Board 
 
 
 

 
A single vision for our 
functional economic 
market area 

 
 
 

Exeter & the Heart of Devon, a shared economic 
Strategy.  A Collaborative Approach to Growth & 
Productivity 2017 - 2020 

 
9. Developing a Growth & Productivity Strategy  
 
9.1 East Devon District Council applied for funding to the Local Government 

Association Economic Growth Advisor Programme early 2016 and was 
successful in their application.  This enabled a Growth Advisor to be 
appointed to research and write a growth & productivity strategy for Exeter & 
the Heart of Devon.  The Growth Advisor was tasked to research and unpick 
a complex local, regional and national policy framework and to recommend a 
shared vision for Exeter & the Heart of Devon.  The shared strategy 

0 

20000 

40000 

60000 

80000 

100000 

120000 

140000 

160000 

Exeter East Devon Mid Devon Teignbridge 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

Resident Population Working age (16-64) population Economically Active 

Page 411



Final 
 

 

articulates shared ambitions to shape growth plans with a view of improving 
collaboration and maximising leverage.   

 
9.2 A wide ranging consultation exercise, across all four areas, was undertaken 

during the spring and summer of 2016 which included academia, Devon 
County Council, the LEP and business across the area.  This resulted in the 
Growth & Productivity Strategy being produced, as shown in Appendix 2.   
The overall priority for the strategy and each local authority is to:  

 Strengthen the sub-regional economy to secure sustainable growth 
through creating more, higher-value better paid-jobs. 

 
9.3 The attached strategy has not been prepared in isolation, it takes into account 

the government’s own ‘Plan for Growth’, the Heart of the SW LEP’s existing 
Strategic Economic Plan and the Productivity Plan which is currently in 
development, Devon County Council’s Strategy for Growth and the Exeter & 
The Heart of Devon Employment & Skills Board Skills Plan Evidence Base.  

 
9.4 As Exeter & the Heart of Devon we want to improve collaboration and to 

maximise leverage through joint working, which will:  

 Improve the productivity of the Exeter & the Heart of Devon economy 

 Attract and retain investment in high-value priority sectors 

 Support the creation of attractive jobs that increase our productivity 
and raise the wage profile  

 Ensure local skills meet the current and future needs of the local 
business landscape 

 Actively support sustainable regeneration in key growth towns and 
locations 

 Improve infrastructure across the functional economic market area 
 
9.5 Each local authority has an area of expertise, which will help deliver the 

strategy and its objectives, Exeter City Council will lead on Inward 
Investment, as shown in the table below. 

 

Economic 
initiative 

Exeter & the Heart of Devon 
wide joint projects and 
initiatives 

Lead local 
authority 

Business 
Transformation 

Retain and grow the business 
base providing the right 
conditions for business-led 
growth 

Mid Devon District 
Council 

Inward 
Investment 

Design and deliver a proactive 
and targeted approach to inward 
investment 

Exeter City Council 

Employment & 
Skills 

Transform skills from a growth 
barrier to a growth stimulus 

Teignbridge District 
Council 

Strategic 
Planning & 
Infrastructure 

Support the identification and 
delivery of strategic and 
deliverable employment sites.  
Pursue investment to deliver 
transport network and digital 
infrastructure 

East Devon District 
Council 

 

Page 412



Final 
 

 

9.6 Exeter City Council have been managing and developing inward investment 
activity for a number of years and will focus its attention on improving the 
following projects and initiatives to secure additional inward investment:  

 Development of business ambassadors to assist within inward 
investment activities 

 Improve the Exeter Key Employer programme 

 Further develop the Exeter Commercial Property Register 

 Proactive marketing of the area 

 Development of soft landing packages 

 Work with Exeter City Futures and Innovation Exeter on city wide 
transformational projects 

 Improve broadband infrastructure within the city and its business 
parks 

 
9.7 Work undertaken by the additional three local authorities, will play a direct 

impact on the success of the city, such as graduate retention, delivering 
employment land, investing in skills, Exeter Science Park, SkyPark and the 
emerging Enterprise Zone.  

 
10.  How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan?  
 
10.1 Joint work being delivered by the attached Growth & Productivity Strategy 

directly affects the following purposes of the City Council: 

 A stronger city 

 Provide great things for me to see and do 

 Help me run a successful business 

 Deliver good city development 
As work cuts across a number of Departments and Portfolio Holders within 
the City Council, joint working is imperative going forward.  

 
11.  What risks are there and how can they be reduced?  
 
11.1 No new resources or structural changes are being put forward to implement 

the attached strategy, only an assurance that each Local Authority continues 
to dedicate existing officer time and budget as and when required.  To ensure 
this continues, each respective Portfolio Holder and Leader has endorsed the 
attached Growth & Productivity Strategy.   

 
11.2 Going forward the Economic Development Officers of each Local Authority 

needs to ensure communication and collaborative working continues and that 
projects and initiatives are aligned with the proposed Greater Exeter Growth 
& Development Board, currently led by Innovation Exeter.  

 
12. What is the impact of the decision on equality and diversity; health and 

wellbeing; safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults; 
economy; safety and the environment?  

 
12.1 The Growth & Productivity Strategy ensures that all residents of, and 

businesses located in, Exeter, East Devon, Mid Devon and Teignbridge are 
able to access business support and advice to enable them to improve their 
employment and business opportunities.  

 
 
 

Page 413



Final 
 

 

13.  Are there any other options?  
 
13.1 There is the option of Exeter working in isolation, but due to the city being 

heavily reliant on our neighbouring local authorities for employees and supply 
chain development, it is necessary for the city work in partnership and to look 
outwards for the benefit of all.  

 
 
Victoria Hatfield, Economy & Enterprise Manager 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)  
Background papers used in compiling this report:-  
None 
 
Contact for enquires: Sharon Sissons, Democratic Services (Committees), Room 2.3, 
01392 265275 
  

Page 414



Final 
 

 

APPENDIX 1 – Exeter Travel to Work Area 
 
Exeter Travel to Work Area 2001 
 

 
 
 
 
Exeter Travel to Work Area 2011 
 

Page 415



Final 
 

 

Appendix 2 – Exeter & the Heart of Devon, a shared economic strategy. A 
Collaborative Approach to Growth & Productivity 2017 - 2020 
 
 
 

Page 416



Shared Economic Strategy 
2017–20
A collaborative approach to  
growth and productivity

Version 1
November 2016

Page 417



This EHOD Shared Economic Strategy sets out our 
collective growth ambitions, priorities and future 
approach that we will take over the next three years  
to support economic growth and development in  
the EHOD area.

This shared strategy sets out how our economic 
development teams are working together effectively 
on the areas where our respective council/corporate 
plans overlap. Our plan of action outlines a pragmatic 
programme of economic initiatives that will improve 
productivity and growth prospects and bring wider 
benefits to the area. 

At this stage, no new resources or structural 
changes are being put forward. This shared strategy 
does provide a framework for a step-change 
in partnership working, formalising roles and 
responsibilities in the shared ambition of economic 
growth and prosperity. What makes this shared 
strategy stand out is our focus on collaborative 
working which is delivering tangible outputs for our 
local authority areas beyond what we could each 
achieve in isolation.

Page 418



Page 5   Foreword

 8 Section 1 Realising our growth potential 

 10  2 Our shared strategy

 22  3 Policy alignment 

 26  4 Our growth ambition and strategic priorities

 31  5 Shared economic initiatives

 40  6 Implementation and delivery

 44 Appendix 1 EHOD economic indicators  

 45  2 EHOD inward investment  
    Memorandum of Understanding

 48  3 EHOD Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20: 
    synergy matrix

 49  4 Acronyms used in this document

 50  5 References for section 2

Page 419



Exeter International 
Airport is a key attractor 
to inward investors

4 Page 420



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 5

Foreword

We are pleased to present our Shared Economic Strategy for 
Exeter and Heart of Devon (EHOD), which sets out our growth 
ambition, priorities and approach that we will take to enable the 
growth of the regional economy. This is a joint agenda across 
the four councils that make up the EHOD sub-region, taking into 
account the different opportunities and challenges across our 
local authority areas of Exeter City, East Devon, Mid Devon and 
Teignbridge.

Creating a sustainable high-performing economy at a time  
of comparative uncertainty is at the heart of our shared strategy 
and action priorities. We have established priorities around 
increasing high-quality jobs, attracting and retaining investment, 
unlocking and enabling development as well as improving 
productivity, skills, qualifications and employability. This shared 
strategy sets out a shared vision and framework to steer the 
economic interventions of the councils and partner organisations. 
We cannot create jobs and wealth in isolation, but we can create 
the right environment for businesses to grow and flourish. 

Page 421



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–206

We will use this shared strategy to communicate to partners 
our ambitions and plans, with a view of improving collaboration 
and maximising leverage. This shared strategy will address the 
key themes of the Heart of the South West Local Enterprise 
Partnership (HOTSW LEP) Devolution Prospectus and support the 
delivery of the emerging Single Productivity Plan, maximising 
the effectiveness of the group’s work with the HOTSW LEP. It will 
complement the ambitions of the updated Devon Strategy for 

East Devon District Council

 
Cllr Paul Diviani 
Leader

 

 
Cllr Philip Skinner 
Economy PFH

Exeter City Council 

 

Cllr Pete Edwards 
Leader 

 
 

Cllr Rosie Denham 
Economy & Culture PFH

Foreword

Creating a  
sustainable 
high-performing 
economy at a time 
of comparative 
uncertainty is at  
the heart of our 
strategy and  
action priorities 

Page 422



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 7

Growth, shaping our conversations with Devon County Council 
(DCC) and our partners in supporting delivery of the wider regional 
growth programmes. It will also help better co-ordinate our 
collaboration with the business community to drive forward our 
economic growth plans.

The collaborative approach, which our respective Economic 
Development teams have developed, is strong in its pragmatism 
and representativeness. We have acted on efficiencies and are 
exploiting opportunities for shared sub-regional economic growth, 
whilst still delivering on our local economic priorities at district 
level. This incremental approach to economic partnership is 
de-risked. It enables the local delivery of individual Corporate 
Plan requirements and presents an optimal shared platform 
for the identification of robust and deliverable employment and 
infrastructure allocations through joint Strategic and Spatial 
Planning. 

This EHOD economic partnership and this shared strategy is 
endorsed by the Leader and Portfolio Holder (PFH) for each of the 
four EHOD authorities. We will continue to dedicate an economic 
development resource to ensure the EHOD partnership continues 
to deliver this shared strategy’s economic initiatives. 

Mid Devon District Council 

 

Cllr Clive Eginton 
Leader 

Cllr Richard Chesterton  
Deputy Leader 
Planning & Economic  
Regeneration PFH

Teignbridge District Council

 
Cllr Jeremy Christophers 
Leader
 

 
 
Cllr Doug Hellier-Laing  
Economy, Skills & Tourism PFH

Page 423



8

1 
Realising our  
growth potential

Page 424



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 9

Realising our growth potential

The area 

Our sub-region incorporates three overlapping functioning 
economic market areas (FEMAs) within the South West Region:

 • the ‘M5 Corridor’
 • ‘South Central’ part of the region
 • the ‘A303’, which includes parts of East Devon, adjacent to  
Exeter and Mid-Devon. 

We can also be described as a city-region, with Exeter at the  
core of an interdependent rural and coastal hinterland. 

The structure and strength of the economy of Exeter is a key 
regional driver for the EHOD economy and is recognised as the 
central economic hub by EHOD districts. Similarly, there is a 
shared recognition that Exeter’s housing and economic needs  
will increasingly be met beyond the borders of Exeter, within  
East Devon, Mid Devon and Teignbridge. 

Our sub-region incorporates 
three overlapping 
functioning economic  
market areas

Fig. 1: EHOD sub-region

Mid Devon 
District Council

Teignbridge 
District Council

East Devon 
District Council

Exeter  
City Council Sidmouth

Seaton

Honiton

Newton  
Abbot

Dawlish

Teignmouth

Ashburton

Bovey Tracey Exmouth

ExETEr Exeter and East Devon  
Enterprise Zone

Cranbrook

Cullompton

J27

J28

M5 
A30

A38

A377
A303

A35

A380

A361

J29
J30

Tiverton

Crediton
Axminster

©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
ri

gh
t a

nd
 d

at
ab

as
e 

ri
gh

ts
 2

01
6 

O
rd

na
nc

e 
S

ur
ve

y 
10

00
23

74
6

Page 425



10

2 
Our shared strategy

Page 426



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 11

Our shared strategy

The importance of Exeter and Heart of Devon (EHOD) as an 
economic hub and focus for growth within Devon is clear. The 
sub-region’s economy has recorded strong growth in recent years, 
outperforming the county and Heart of the South West LEP (HOTSW 
LEP) average on a number of indicators. We will build on our 
distinctive competitive and environmental advantages: 

 • World class research, education, and training organisations
 • Central location in the South West with good transport access by 
road, rail, and air
 • Outstanding strategically important employment sites and office 
locations 
 • Competitive consistently lower rents and rates to comparable  
sub-regions 
 • High quality of life, with rich cultural heritage and natural 
landscape and a variety of urban centres, thriving market towns 
and small communities

Whilst the local economy has shown itself to be relatively 
resilient through recent economic difficulties, the area faces 
a number of challenges. These need to be addressed in a 
coordinated and collaborative way if EHOD is to realise its growth 
potential. These include poor performance in terms of productivity, 
low average earnings and some skills deficiencies. The availability 
of high-end broadband capacity is an issue in a number of our 
business locations. A shared challenge is the lack of physically 
available and deliverable employment land to accommodate 
different levels of growth requirement – many in response to 
indigenous growth. 

More recently, the potential impact of a changed economic 
relationship with the European Single Market must also be 
considered in terms of how we might adapt our collaborative 
working, especially in our approach to encouraging inward 
investment. 

The EHOD shared strategy 
defines our joint growth 
ambitions and how we aim 
to increase competitiveness 
and improve productivity  
in the area

Page 427



Exeter +  Heart of Devon Economic  Partnership12

Our shared strategy

Exeter is EHOD’s 
economic hub

12 Page 428



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 13

Our shared strategy

See ‘shared  
economic  
initiatives’

The EHOD Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 defines our joint 
growth ambitions and how we aim to increase competitiveness 
and improve productivity in the area. This is a partnership agenda 
between four local authorities and represents a major opportunity 
to have a strong, shared voice for the region and make a step 
change in our collective efforts to drive the economic growth of the 
area. The focus is on inward investment and attracting new, quality 
jobs, as well as supporting and working with existing businesses to 
help them to grow. 

This shared strategy has not been prepared in isolation. It takes 
account of the Government’s own ‘Plan for Growth’, the HOTSW 
LEP’s Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and the developing Single 
Productivity Plan (SPP) for the area, together with the refreshed 
Devon Strategy for Growth and EHOD Skills Plan Evidence Base. 
We are already supporting delivery of a range of growth projects, 
including the major transformational £2bn Exeter and East Devon 
Growth Point, as well as the ground-breaking development of a 
new joint Greater Exeter Strategic Plan (GESP). We need to ensure 
we are working in synergy to develop these programmes further, 
maximising our promotion of inward investment to populate 
existing strategic employment areas, whilst informing the 
identification of future sites best suited to economic growth. 

As an area, we share many of the same aspirations and 
recognise that more can be achieved working together, particularly 
in an environment where resources are increasingly scarce. The 
assets, opportunities and level of collaboration and partnership 
working demonstrate that with the right strategy in place, EHOD 
has the potential to build its profile and competitive position in 
order to compete for investment, talent and high quality jobs. 
In this sense, this shared strategy is straightforward in its scope. 
It promotes a less fragmented, more collaborative working 
arrangement between our local authorities on the shared economic 
objectives articulated in our individual council/corporate plans.

We have identified these areas of economic overlap as: 

A Business Support and Transformation: we each share a 
commitment to supporting the success and development 
of businesses in our respective districts. It makes sense to 
work together, pooling resource to unlock value through joint 
contracting which also ensures consistent, high-quality support 
provision across our functioning economic geography. 

Page 429



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2014

Our shared strategy

B Joint approach to inward investment: companies don’t see local 
authority boundaries and our ED teams working to attract 
these businesses recognise this fact. We share a wish to see an 
increased number of skilled, well-paid jobs through successful 
inward investment. Whereas we would struggle to promote any 
single district, we can work together more effectively to market 
Exeter and the Heart of Devon and maximise the chance of 
successful investment.

C Strategic planning: employment land and infrastructure.  
We have responded as a partnership in becoming part of the 
formal planning structure to ensure the right employment 
opportunities and required infrastructure will be identified 
through our GESP. 

D Employment and skills: improved engagement working together 
in partnership with our EHOD Employment and Skills Board 
is crucial to create a world-class workforce and maintain our 
competitive position. Given the labour market challenges 
currently faced by EHOD, we will be more successful in 
promoting the area to high-value inward investors  
if we can tailor skills delivery to the future needs of these 
businesses.

 
As Economic Development teams, we will continue to deliver  
on our individual district level Economic Development Strategies 
and Service Plans, but where our work overlaps, it’s easy to 
demonstrate the added value of joint working to maximise 
efficiencies and avoid duplication and inconsistency. 

Where our work overlaps, 
it’s easy to demonstrate the 
added value of joint working

Page 430



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 15

Our shared strategy

Teignbridge District Council
 •	Delivering employment land
 •	Investing in skills
 •	Newton Abbot regeneration
 

Common economic development objectives
	•	Inward investment
 •	Strategic planning
 •	Employment and skills
 •	Business transformation

ThIS IS whAT ThE  
ShARED STRATEgy COVERS.

East Devon District Council
 •	Workspace
 •	Tourism
 •	Growth Point

Exeter City Council
 •	Graduate retention
 •	Innovation Exeter
 •	Exeter City Futures
 •	Digital/data-driven investment

Mid Devon District Council
 •	Incubation of emerging sectors
 •	Junction 27
 •	Broadband

Fig. 2: economic development work overlap

Page 431



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2016

Our shared strategy

Our challenges 
Our review of the socio-economic profile of the EHOD area has 
identified a number of opportunities and threats, which we need to 
address to strengthen the local economy. These have informed our 
economic initiatives (outlined later) and include:

Much can be missed if acting only on the opportunities available 
for us to grow our economy, without fully addressing some of 
our most pressing shared challenges. These too require further 
analysis to develop a shared understanding to enable an effective 
joint response. 

EHOD strengths and opportunities

 • Significant growth potential beyond the 
Enterprise Zone
 • Recognised as an opportunity area in 
HOTSW LEP’s current priorities 
 • Delivery focus on the Devolution 
Prospectus priorities
 • Met Office high Performance 
Computer 
 • Development of the knowledge 
economy
 • Tourism helping to promote inward 
investment and workforce relocation
 • Potential of Exeter City Futures to 
shape change
 • Quality of retail offer and environment 
(moors and coast) proves attractive 
to inward investors and in attracting a 
skilled workforce

EHOD threats and weaknesses

 • Ageing workforce and population 
 • Rural communities becoming more 
dormitory, increasing commuting and  
loss of sustainability
 • Lack of ability to bring forward 
employment land within a constrained 
timescale
 • Low number of JSA claimants (limited 
pool for new jobs)
 • Enterprise Zone can present challenges 
for existing EHOD employment sites
 • hinkley Point C could exacerbate skills 
shortages
 • South west sectors disproportionately 
reliant on trade with European Single 
Market
 • Quality of employment land, housing, 
retail and environment need to match 
expectations of aspirational sectors

We need to address  
opportunities and  
threats to strengthen  
the local economy

See  
appendix 3

Page 432



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 17

Our shared strategy

Our current challenges include:

 • Productivity gap: the area faces a widening ‘productivity gap’ 
compared with other parts of England. In relative terms, the North 
Devon economy has overtaken EHOD in terms of productivity 
growth1.

Evidence
 • Gross value added (GVA) per job is the most accurate measure 
of productivity. EHOD’s contribution to Devon’s total GVA has 
dropped from 65% in 2000 to 62% in 2014 1
 • North and South West Devon contribute considerably less to 
Devon’s overall GVA (38%). However, their annual GVA growth 
rate (2.76% and 2.49% respectively) is higher than EHOD’s at 
1.88% (2000 to 2014). In this way, they are gradually catching 
up to EHOD in terms of overall contribution to Devon’s total 
GVA.1
 • Devon’s productivity was 84% of the England average in 2000. 
This gap has widened to 80% (2014). 1

 • The sectoral composition of the economy: this is dominated by 
low-value, low-productivity jobs, which largely service the needs of 
the local population 

Evidence
 • The sectoral composition of the EHOD area is over-represented 
in ‘Public admin, education and health’ (33% compared a UK 
figure of 27%) along with ‘wholesale and retail’ (19% compared 
with 16% nationally). 2
 • To put this into context, in 2014 it was estimated an average of 
26% of jobs across the EHOD area paid below the recommended 
living wage. This equates to over 45,000 low-paid jobs across 
EHOD. 3

Page 433



ExETEr +  HEArT Of DEvOn EcOnOmic  PArTnErSHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2018

Our shared strategy

Axminster Tools actively  
invest in local economic 
growth and skills development.  
Their apprenticeship scheme 
has a 100% success rate.

Page 434



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExETEr +  HEArT Of DEvOn EcOnOmic  PArTnErSHiP 19

Our shared strategy

 • Earnings are lower than average: this is the case across most of the 
EHOD area and links to housing affordability and relative poverty

Evidence
 • Wages are broadly comparable across the EHOD area. By place of 
residence, they are lowest in Teignbridge (£440.80/week) and 
highest in East Devon (£498.90/week) 4
 • By place of work (not residence), wages are notably higher in 
Exeter (£536.50/week) than in the rest of EHOD (EHOD less 
Exeter £446.40/week) 4
 • Average EHOD wages (£20,491 pa) are still lower than both  
the South West (£21,283 pa) and England (£22,716 pa) average 4
 • EHOD has a higher house price ratio than the rest of England  
(9 × the average salary compared to 7.5 × nationally). 5 With 
higher house prices and lower than average wage levels, many 
young skilled workers move out of the area to pursue careers 
and more affordable housing.
 • For Exeter, the loss of employment premises to residential 
use is being compounded by the loss of sites to student 
accommodation

 • Our labour market is limited in size: low unemployment means 
a shortage of workers and shortage of skills required for our 
businesses to expand. This is exacerbated by demographic  
change with a loss of young adults and a growing proportion  
of retired people.

Evidence
 • Employment rates in all four EHOD authorities (82.2%) are 
higher than the South West (77.4%) and the UK (73.7 %) 6
 • The average overall unemployment rate across EHOD (3.2%)  
is lower than the South West (3.9%) and UK (5.1%) 6

Page 435



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2020

Our shared strategy

 • The proportion of economically active residents claiming 
Jobseeker’s Allowance (JSA) across EHOD is (0.8%) This is 
considerably lower than the UK JSA claimant rate (1.5%) and 
the South West average (1%). 7 At the time of writing, EHOD 
has just 2,200 JSA claimants 7 many of whom are longer term 
unemployed and have multiple barriers, limiting our labour 
market and presenting challenges for our growing businesses 
and major inward investment.
 • The 65+ age group is the only age group currently growing as  
a proportion of EHOD’s overall population 8
 • We face a potential drop in the net migration of younger 
workers following the UK decision to leave the EU. This could 
mean fewer employees available to all of our business sectors, 
including those supporting this ageing population.

 • Employment land supply: there is a lack of physically available and 
deliverable employment land to accommodate indigenous growth 
and inward investment opportunities 

Evidence
 • Exeter city has just six acres of currently available employment 
development land with only a further six hectares in the 
pipeline
 • Teignbridge, East Devon and Exeter have employment 
allocations adopted within their Local Plans which are 
challenged in terms of their deliverability 
 • Environmental, landscape and geographical constraints make 
it difficult to deliver economic growth outside of these allocated 
sites
 • The Growth Point employment sites are coming forward, but 
more slowly than anticipated
 • Infrastructure constraints remain with Junction 29 and 30 
of the M5 currently beyond capacity and A303, A30 and A358 
improvements planned

Page 436



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 21

Our shared strategy

 • Geographical location: our location in the South West and access 
to key economic markets is an important issue. We are working to 
improve our connectivity and infrastructure, particularly mobile 
and broadband. 

Evidence
 • Connecting Devon and Somerset (CDS) are set to achieve 90% 
of premises with access to superfast broadband by Dec 2016. 
The phase two programme is also aiming to connect tens of 
thousands more premises to NGA (next generation) broadband 
of 30Mbps or higher. Despite these advances, some of our more 
deeply rural settlements and employment sites may be left 
without sufficient broadband access.
 • Over the past 15 years Devon has seen an increase of 13% more 
traffic on major roads 9 
 • The Chancellor has committed to delivering at least £7.2bn of 
investment in transport in the south west and deliver a step 
change in digital connectivity (January 2015)
 • We are still facing serious challenges in our utilities capacity 
and the associated ability to bring new employment land 
forward. Investment in utilities infrastructure has waned 
in recent decades, particularly electricity and gas and major 
investment is required across the South West.

Our focus is to secure better jobs, a skilled labour market and a 
higher value business base. We need to collectively steer our own 
economic destiny and do so in a manner that creates sustainable 
opportunities, particularly for our talented young people and 
graduates.

We are working to 
improve our connectivity 
and infrastructure

Page 437



22

3 
Policy alignment 

Page 438



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 23

Policy alignment 

This EHOD Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 sits in a policy 
hierarchy that flows down from Central Government policies on 
employment, planning, business support, innovation, skills and 
learning and investment, through to sub-regional and local policies 
and strategies. Fig. 3 sets out the policy framework and defines the 
core role and function of this shared strategy.

We will ensure that the priorities contained within this shared 
strategy appropriately reflect those of the HOTSW LEP’s Devolution 
Prospectus, Strategic Economic Plan and Single Productivity 
Plan. We will also ensure that our work delivers on the relevant 
areas of the refreshed Devon Strategy for Growth, maximising our 
alignment with both current and emerging funding streams.

Equally important is that our own intimate knowledge and 
insight of our local, shared economic growth opportunities and 
unique delivery capabilities are reflected in these emerging works, 
as well as our own district level strategies. Only then will the 
region’s higher-level strategic ambition connect through to local 
economic resources and their commercially informed capacity  
to deliver. 

The Growth Point is a significant feature of the EHOD area,  
even more so as it will soon be located within an Enterprise Zone. 
This will create a step change in investment and job creation 
and an up-lift in funds available for increasing productivity and 
economic benefits across our wider economic area. It will also 
offer discounted rates to new businesses locating in the zone, 
simplified planning rules and other support, such as enhanced 
broadband provision.

  

This strategy has not been 
prepared in isolation. The four 
authorities have been mindful 
of the need to align the strategy 
with relevant policy and the 
LEP and Dcc growth plans, to 
ensure a strong, shared voice 
for the region.  

See appendix 3  
for more detail

Page 439



Our growth ambition and strategic priorities

Teignmouth’s Pavilions is an 
arts and community venue 
promoting sustainable 
economic growth, providing 
valuable employment

24 Exeter +  Heart of Devon Economic  Partnership24 Page 440



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 25

Our growth ambition and strategic priorities

Fig. 3: strategic fit

National plans 
Examples:
 • Plan for Growth  
(Mar 2011)
 • No Stone Unturned in 
Pursuit of Growth (2012)
 • National Planning Policy 
Framework
 • Supplementary Planning 
Guidance
 • Rigour and 
Responsiveness in Skills: 
National Skills Strategy
 • Awareness of Future  
Plans – Brexit Strategy; 
National Infrastructure 
Plan

Local statutory/ 
non-statutory plans
Examples:
 • Exeter and Heart of 
Devon Employment and 
Skills Board –  
Skills Evidence Base
 • Local Plans 
 • Supplementary Planning 
Documents
 • Local Transport Plan
 • Community Safety 
strategies
 • Employment and  
Skills Plan
 • Tourism and culture
 • Housing-related 
strategies and policies

EHOD shared  
economic strategy
Examples:
 • Integrated and shared  
growth vision
 • Identifies common 
themes
 • Aligns strategies and 
programmes
 • Informs and influences 
funding and resource 
allocations
 • Establishes actions 
plans and targets
 • Drives forward a 
programme of shared 
interventions

Regional strategies
Examples:
 • Heart of the South West  
Strategic Economic 
Plan & Emerging Single 
Productivity Plan
 • Devon Economic Growth 
Strategy (currently being 
refreshed)
 • Devon Economic 
Assessment
 • Exeter and East Devon 
Growth Point
 • European structural 
and Investment Fund 
(ESIF) strategy – ensuring 
delivery of key priorities

The shared strategy is aware of,  
is shaped by and has synergy  
with these influences:

Local authority
 • Corporate/Council  
and Service Plans:
 • Sets corporate 
objectives
 • Reports on performance 
of service
 • Identifies targets for 
services
 • Sets out means of 
achieving targets
 • Economic Development 
Strategies
 • Spatial and Masterplans
 • Community Plans
 • Neighbourhood Plans

Page 441



26

4 
Our growth ambition 
and strategic 
priorities

Page 442



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 27

Our growth ambition and strategic priorities

Our growth vision

Our ambition is to strengthen the EHOD economy to secure 
sustainable growth through creating more higher-value, 
better-paid jobs. We will provide an environment that creates 
opportunities for business growth that make a positive  
difference to people’s lives, with businesses that start, stay  
and invest in the area. 

The emphasis is on establishing EHOD as a leading knowledge 
economy and entrepreneurial region in the UK, building on 
our comparative advantages, specifically our innovation assets 
including the University of Exeter, the Met Office with its  
‘super computer’, the Science Park Centre and our growing 
knowledge sectors.

Our growth vision is that by 2040, EHOD will have been 
transformed to a leading business location, attracting more  
high-value investors and businesses through its diverse and  
skilled workforce, high-quality commercial sites, local services, 
and accessibility to transport links and strategic routes to the 
South West, UK, continental and global markets. 

This shared strategy focuses on agreed actions to help create 
the right business, employment and workforce environments – 
enabling the sub-region to realise its growth ambition.

Our purpose is to support the right conditions for growth and 
sustainable investment in the EHOD economy. We need to achieve 
SMART growth, using our resources for maximum impact and 
focusing on our growth sectors and clusters of activities. This will 
create high-value jobs and seek to improve the level at which our 
existing workforce is employed. 

We need to use this shared strategy to articulate our ambitions 
and plans to partners, with a view of improving collaboration and 
maximising leverage. This shared strategy will help shape our 
conversations with the HOTSW LEP in supporting delivery of the 
wider regional growth programmes and unlocking development 
funding.

The emphasis is on establishing 
EHOD as a leading knowledge 
economy and entrepreneurial 
region in the UK

Page 443



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2028

Our growth ambition and strategic priorities

Our purpose is to support the  
right conditions for growth 
and sustainable investment  
in the EHOD economy

Underlying principles 

Our growth priorities and activities are underpinned by a  
number of principles:

 • Partnership and collaboration: more than ever, delivery of this 
shared strategy will be about working in partnership to get the 
most from scarce resources. This will include formalising how 
EHOD works and establishing a new relationship with the private 
sector to drive forward our growth agenda. 

 • SMART growth: this shared strategy seeks to increase productivity 
without damaging the quality of life or the environment of the 
area. This more sustainable approach to development means 
driving economic growth through knowledge, innovation and 
creativity. 

 • Equality: social equality and ensuring that all residents benefit 
from growth will be at the heart of this shared strategy, articulated 
by ‘every individual matters’ in our EHOD Employment and Skills 
Plan & Evidence Base (2015)

 • Maximising financial incentives: a driver will be to maximise 
income from the various financial mechanisms introduced by 
central government to generate additional revenue for each 
council as core grant funding is reduced. Specifically the New 
Homes Bonus, Community Infrastructure Levy and business  
rates retention will be central. 

 • Understanding, monitoring and communicating trends: our plans 
and activities will be based on sound research and intelligence  
to support and monitor economic change 

Page 444



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 29

Our growth ambition and strategic priorities

EHOD overall priority 
Strengthen the sub-regional economy to secure  

sustainable growth through creating more  

higher-value, better-paid jobs

Business 
transformation 

Retain and grow the 
business base. Provide 

the conditions for 
business-led growth. 
Promoting innovation 

to maximise 
competitiveness.

We work together on  
four economic initiatives …

Employment 
and skills 

Transform skills from 
a growth barrier to a 

growth stimulus.

Inward  
investment 

Design and deliver a 
proactive and targeted 

approach to inward 
investment.

Strategic  
planning and 
infrastructure  

Support the 
identification and 

delivery of strategic and 
deliverable employment 
sites through strategic 

planning. Pursue 
investment to deliver 
transport and digital 

infrastructure.

Fig. 4: how we work together to achieve our overall priority

Cross-cutting theme: knowledge and innovation 

This is the successful generation and exploitation of new ideas. We 

aim to maximise our world-class research and knowledge strengths 

and assets by attracting significant investment, creating sustainable 

high quality employment, raising income levels and identifying the 

challenges that need to be addressed to raise innovation levels.  

Innovation will also shape how we work. As a partnership, we are 

committed to design, test and apply better solutions and interventions 

that meet the needs and opportunities of our local economy.

We have to be aware  
and proactive …

This means 
we can 
achieve … 

Page 445



30

Exeter Science Park,  
the South West’s home to  
science and technology

Page 446



Economic initiatives

31

5 
Shared economic 
initiatives

Page 447



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2032

Economic initiatives

A Business transformation 

This shared strategy will build on the strengths of our business 
base. Over the next three-year period, the focus will be on 
supporting the creation of new high-value businesses and jobs, as 
well as supporting the growth of our existing companies. Given 
proposed changes to the funding of core services through retained 
business rate revenue, local authorities now have an even more 
vested interest to promote and secure this growth. 

High levels of new business formation are an essential quality 
of a dynamic local economy. We recognise that achieving this 
increase in the business birth rate will be a long-term process. 
We need to build the foundations to foster the next generation of 
entrepreneurs, ensuring existing businesses have the right support 
to grow, innovate and become more competitive. 

Over 90% of the sub-regional economy consists of small and 
micro enterprises operating in niche sectors. If they are able to 
continue to innovate and diversify, they will remain successful and 
continue to grow. 

We have identified key industry sectors which will provide a 
focus for initial priority action: 

 • Professional scientific and technical services
 • Engineering
 • Big data and environmental futures
 • Digital economy
 • Leisure and tourism

Leisure and tourism is unlikely to reduce the productivity gap  
or develop the knowledge economy, but contribute significantly to 
the quality of life of people living in the EHOD area. This will play  
a strong role in encouraging skilled workers to stay in the area, 
and to relocate to EHOD from outside the area. 

We will concentrate on our existing and emerging competitive 
strengths within these industry sectors to ensure that the right mix 
of people, skills and technology is available to improve productivity, 
competitiveness and profitability.

Page 448



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 33

Economic initiatives

The four EHOD authorities have been working closely 
together to achieve positive tangible outcomes for our business 
communities. Our actions demonstrate that this collaborative 
approach to a more consistent and inclusive business support 
service is effective and provides far better value for money. 
Achievements include:

 • The development and procurement of a joint business support 
service for businesses in the EHOD area – ‘Business Boost’.  
This means that all businesses start-ups within EHOD are able 
to access the same high-quality service, simplifying the support 
landscape and increasing the value for money achieved in  
funding the service.
 • Joint procurement of business intelligence systems and sharing 
of business data. This enables economic development services 
to better understand the economic landscape, respond more 
effectively to incoming business enquiries, to identify business 
needs, and shape the best methods of meeting these needs.  
This will also enhance future collaborative project development.

We will continue to seek and engage with funding  
opportunities to deliver new business support services and  
to extend the longevity of our existing support provision. 

The four EHOD authorities have 
been working closely together 
to achieve positive tangible 
outcomes for our business 
communities

Page 449



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2034

Economic initiatives

PArTnErS’ AcTiOnS

 • Design and implement a comprehensive all-age entrepreneurship 
and enterprise programme to accelerate new business start-ups
 • Monitor and evaluate our jointly contracted Business Boost 
support programme to ensure the growth and expansion of a 
world-class business support network
 • Design and develop a series of cluster development programmes 
prioritising the sectors outlined above that show potential for 
growth and development
 • Encourage the commercialisation of the research and 
development capability of the University of Exeter
 • Design and implement an EHOD workspace strategy and action 
plan for thriving start-ups and move-on space for next stage 
growth
 • we will work with our partners across the EHOD region, 
committed to establishing the greater Exeter region as one of the 
UK’s leading knowledge economies, foremost in the areas of high 
performance computing, data analytics and environmental futures 
 • work to ensure the fast-tracking of all planning applications 
associated with employment growth within EHOD 
 • Remove a key barrier to growth by pushing for pre-application 
consultation fees to be removed for all small-scale applications 
associated with business growth 

B Inward investment 

Attracting inward investment is fundamental to achieving our 
growth ambitions for EHOD. We need to generate a more in-depth 
understanding and intelligence regarding our growth sectors and 
sharpen our focus on how we enable investment and growth in our 
priority sectors. 

Through joint initiatives, such as the Exeter and East Devon 
Growth Point and ExIST, EHOD continues to be an attractive 
location for inward investment, garnering 600 to 1,000 annual 
enquiries to expand or relocate within the area. Plans for a new 
Enterprise Zone at the Exeter and East Devon Growth Point will 
enhance the ability to attract investment into EHOD. However, we 
need to develop and implement a more effective enquiry-handling 
service to convert high-value, knowledge-based business enquiries 
into secured investment. 

Page 450



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 35

Economic initiatives

We will co-ordinate all activity relating to inward investment, 
drawing together all interests and activities to unite all involved 
behind one common vision and resource pool. The aim is to 
attract significant investment, create sustainable high quality 
employment, raise income levels and identify the challenges that 
need to be addressed to raise innovation levels, including retaining 
and attracting ambitious young people to the area. 

We will design and implement a proactive approach in the form 
of a new inward investment programme. We will focus on the core 
sectors we have identified as well as functions and geographies, 
which will be carefully researched. Activities will be prioritised to 
ensure best use of resources and effective marketing, building on 
combined investment appeal and an appropriate blend of media 
collateral. 

In addition we will, in partnership with the Department for 
International Trade (DIT, formerly UK Trade and Investment), the 
HOTSW LEP and DCC, re-shape our engagement with key employers 
through a consistent ‘key account management’ approach to 
proactively manage relationships with all strategically important 
businesses. 

PArTnErS’ AcTiOnS

 • work with DiT, the HOTSW LEP and partners in Devon County 
Council to promote and market the EHOD offer regionally, 
nationally and internationally
 • Develop and implement a proactive inward investment 
programme and ‘soft-landing package’ – consistent across all 
EHOD authorities. This will define our targeted inward investment 
sector priorities based on our existing strengths and national 
relevance.
 • Continue to develop the Commercial Property Register and EHOD 
crm system to strengthen information exchange, joint handling of 
enquiries, referrals and performance monitoring
 • Formalise a shared approach to ‘key account management’ to 
work with companies to retain and grow our key employers, which 
aligns with the strategic and global accounts managed by DiT
 • Monitor feedback and record any reduction in inward investment 
activity associated with the UK’s withdrawal from the European 
Union (EU)

Page 451



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2036

Economic initiatives

C Strategic planning and infrastructure 

Successful economies also need adequate infrastructure to provide 
the basis for smart economic growth, which is more resilient 
and adaptive to emerging markets. The quality of our economic 
infrastructure is of strategic importance to business growth. The 
reliability of transport networks – road, rail and air – the security 
and cost of energy, the resilience of water and waste services and 
the speed of broadband connections are all critical factors for 
business. 

The EHOD local authorities along with DCC have commenced 
work to align planning policy and development strategy through 
the production of a joint Greater Exeter Strategic Plan (GESP). This 
will guide change and development over the next 25 years. It is 
through this process that the EHOD partnership can support and 
guide the identification and delivery of suitable employment sites.

The process includes the production of a Housing and 
Economic Land Availability Assessment (HELAA) that will cover 
the whole of the EHOD area. This will be informed by an Economic 
Development Needs Assessment (EDNA) that has recently been 
commissioned. We will support the development of the EDNA 
through a robust analysis of the jobs and growth scenarios 
underpinning this work. 

Our EHOD partnership will also provide business intelligence 
to ensure that the HELAA methodology is sound in its approach 
to the identification and assessment of employment land. We 
will do this by ensuring that deliverability and viability underpin 
the identification of these strategic employment sites across the 
EHOD geography – directly informing more robust allocations 
within our respective Local Plans. We will then enable future 
growth by supporting and bringing forward investment in these 
key development sites through supporting indigenous business 
growth and promoting inward investment. 

Page 452



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 37

Economic initiatives

PArTnErS’ AcTiOnS

 • help ensure the HELAA methodology and pro-forma is robust and 
captures information to inform an assessment of the deliverability 
of land put forward for employment use 
 • EHOD ED Officers commit to ongoing attendance on the HELAA 
panel. This will help ensure that the delivery of housing across 
EHOD is balanced against the delivery of sufficient employment 
premises. In this way, we will be promoting the right mix of 
housing and employment land in the right locations to meet the 
needs of businesses now and in the future.
 • Engage with estates management functions in the EHOD local 
authorities to ensure land owned by local authorities is submitted 
to the process in the same way as any other site
 • To assist planning officers with the initial filtering of sites 
(assessing suitability and availability), pre-panel assessments and 
highlighting major transport needs 
 • Ensure the demand data collated by the Commercial Property 
Register informs both the identification of suitable employment 
sites through the GESP and supports the approval of planning 
applications for commercial use 
 • Directly inform scenario development in EDnA. Propose 
appropriate amendments to existing growth trajectory scenarios 
based on local employment step change interventions such as 
the Enterprise Zone.
 • EHOD will lead a broadband development event, bringing 
together all major developers and broadband providers to focus 
on maximising the delivery of superfast connectivity in all major 
construction projects across EHOD

D Employment and skills 

Enhancing and developing the skills of our adult workforce and 
young people entering the workforce is critical to enable economic 
growth. We need to match skills with jobs to ensure the diverse 
skills and employment needs of existing enterprises and potential 
investors are provided for, now and in the future. In addition, 
with such comparatively low levels of current unemployment, it 
is essential to engage and promote opportunities to heighten 

Page 453



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2038

Economic initiatives

individual aspirations and skills development within the existing 
workforce – improving work prospects, productivity and average 
earnings throughout the region. 

We need to respond to a much changed policy and programme 
environment for education and skills. Skills and employment will 
see further major reforms to achieve the government’s productivity 
and economic growth aims across the labour market. Specifically, 
the re-shaping and re-commissioning of post-16 education and 
the continuing emphasis on apprenticeships is designed to equip 
people with the skills that employers need to compete and grow. 

This is perhaps the most challenging of our priorities. However, 
we are fortunate that the EHOD Employment and Skills Board (ESb) 
has been established, whose overall mission is for a ‘local world-
class workforce where every individual matters’. Their priority 
areas are:

 • Improving impartial up-to-date Careers Education Information 
Advice and Guidance (CEIAG) through greater employer-education 
engagement
 • Linking local people to local job creation particularly in growing 
sectors with recruitment difficulties
 • Growing the number of apprenticeships, particularly well-paid 
higher-level and graduate-level apprenticeships
 • Addressing low levels of progression into higher education  
given EHOD’s strategy of knowledge intensive (KI) growth and  
the presence of a world-renowned university
 • Improving levels of graduate retention from the large pool of 
young talent which routinely leaves EHOD
 • Developing higher-level and technical skills to support ‘smart 
specialisation’

We need to forge a closer working relationship with the ESb  
to align activities and help promote more tangible outputs that 
meet the needs of business and our working residents. By working 
more closely with our employer-led EHOD ESb, the four district 
authorities can help ensure that stronger links with our education 
and skills providers are developed and maintained with this  
crucial group of major local businesses. 

Page 454



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 39

Economic initiatives

Through detailed analysis of our businesses, EDOs (economic 
development officers) and the ESb can identify and translate sector-
specific evidence of skills and training needs into detailed funding 
applications (where available). This is to enable tailored delivery, 
creating adaptations to local training and education provision 
based on up-to-date local economic intelligence. 

PArTnErS’ AcTiOnS

 • EHOD economic development teams will formalise a  
collaborative working relationship with the ESb as an  
employer-led independent organisation to help unlock  
potential and achieve the ESb stated aims 
 • To fulfil this obligation in the short term, EHOD economic 
development teams will demonstrate improved engagement  
with the ESb through EDO support and representation at  
ESb meetings
 • Employment and Skills will also become a standing item  
for review at monthly EHOD economic development team  
meetings with quarterly ESb representation
 • EHOD economic development teams will identify future skills 
needs within this shared strategy’s priority sectors (see A, 
business transformation) that show potential for growth and 
development and feed these into the ESb for response
 • In the medium term, EDOs will help identify and promote the 
skills needs of the current and future business base through 
comprehensive intelligence-driven research and business 
engagement to gather local economic and employment data 
 • Our EHOD ESb lead will develop an action plan which takes  
into account the new government employment and skills 
guidance and aligns with the devolution agenda
 • EHOD economic development teams will also work with the  
ESb to develop a balanced ESb representation to include  
greater engagement with Mid Devon and Teignbridge 
 • Support the development of higher level apprenticeship 
programmes for our key sectors

Page 455



40

6 
Implementation  
and delivery

Page 456



Implementation and delivery

41

EHOD promoting the development  
of skills required for high-value  
future employment

Page 457



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2042

Implementation and delivery 

Much has been achieved over the last 18 
months in terms of partnership action. 
The economic development teams 
will have a critical role to play to drive 
forward the growth agenda across the 
EHOD area. The roles, responsibilities 
and resources within the teams will 
need to be reviewed and agreed in 
light of the new priorities set out in 
the strategy. Collective functions will 
include:

 • Formalising the Shared Economic and 
Investment Strategy in consultation with 
the HOTSW LEP and business community
 • Ensuring effective alignment between 
decision making on transport and 
decisions on other areas of policy such 
as economic development and wider 
regeneration
 • Using EHOD economic intelligence and 
analysis as a basis for strategic planning, 
investment and coordinatio.
 • Coordinating inward investment activity 
through the development of a shared 
CRM system and a range of investment 
mechanisms 
 • Decision-making on the skills strategy 
and agenda across the EHOD area 

What we want to achieve

Our collaborative approach will focus  
on delivering actions that will: 

 • Improve the productivity of the EHOD 
economy
 • Attract and retain investment in 
knowledge and innovation sectors
 • Support the creation of high-value jobs 
that raise the wage profile
 • Work with planning teams to identify 
and enable employment provision and 
infrastructure to support economic 
growth
 • Ensure local skills meet the current 
and future needs of the EHOD business 
landscape

How this will be achieved

Through ongoing EHOD partnership 
engagement we will prepare business 
plans for each of the priorities 
highlighted in this shared strategy that 
will identify:

 • The principal activities that will be 
taken forward
 • Key targets and milestones
 • The resources required 

Page 458



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 43

Implementation and delivery

Who will lead within EHOD

Lead authority and partners taking 
forward the activities are:

 • Business support and transformation lead 
economic development team  
Mid Devon District Council

 • Joint approach to inward investment  
lead economic development team  
Exeter City Council 

 • Strategic planning: employment  
land and infrastructure  
lead economic development team  
East Devon District Council

 • Employment and skills  
lead economic development team  
Teignbridge District Council

Measuring progress

The partner actions we have outlined 
in delivering each of the four economic 
initiatives articulate our specific aims 
and commitments.
 
A business plan will be developed 
to encapsulate the actions for each 
common economic objective which  
will be subject to ongoing progress 
review at monthly EHOD meetings.

Beyond these partner actions, the  
wider strategic outcomes of our work 
are identified as:

 • Securing stakeholder and business 
agreement with this shared strategy
 • Formal adoption through our 
committee processes of this shared 
strategy by our four EHOD authorities
 • Recognition from the HOTSW LEP and 
DCC of the work EHOD are doing to 
actively deliver on the economic growth 
and productivity aims of their SEP, SPP, 
Devolution Prospectus and Strategy  
for Growth
 • Evidence-led tailoring of our Business 
Boost support programme 
 • An increase in inward investment 
enquiries, conversions and jobs created 
across the four districts
 • The growth of our existing business 
base with improved engagement 
through our ‘key employer programme’ 
 • The identification and eventual 
adoption of the most optimal 
employment sites across EHOD
 • To maximise synergies between 
employment and skills provision and 
local employer needs 

Making the case for growth will 
be crucial if EHOD is to benefit from 
external funding support. The focus 
will be on developing and bringing 
forward projects that will have major 
economic impact, improve productivity 
and bring wider benefit to the area. This 
shared strategy will also ensure parity of 
resource input by partner authorities in 
the overall delivery of our shared EHOD 
economic objectives.

See 
appendix 3

Page 459



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2044

Appendix 1 
EHOD economic indicators

1 Some percentages will not equal 100% due to rounding methods

2 too small to measure

  Teignbridge   East Devon   Exeter   Mid Devon   EHOD   South West   England 

Population              

Total population 128,826 138,141 127,308 79,510 473,785 5,413,094 63,258,400

Population under 16 16.2% 15.7% 15.4% 18.4% 16.4% 16.6% 20.1%

Population 16–64  58.2% 54.5% 69.0% 58.9% 60.1% 61.8% 62.1%

Population 65+  25.6% 29.8% 15.7% 22.7% 23.4% 21.6% 17.7%

Labour market               

Employment  98.4% 97.0% 95.6% 97.9% 97.2% 96.1% 95.0%

Economically inactive  9.3% 8.4% 10.2% 8.6% 9.1% 11.5% 11.8%

Unemployed  2.9% 2.8% 4.3% 2.8% 3.2% 3.9% 5.0%

Out of work benefits claimants  9.3% 8.4% 10.2% 8.6% 9.1% 10.4% 11.8%

Job density  0.71 0.81 1.20 0.77 0.87 0.86 0.82

Average wages               

Weekly wage by residence £440.80 £498.90 £478.10 £479.90 £474.43 £498.80 £527.70

Weekly wage by place of work £402.90 £466.70 £536.50 £469.70 £468.95 £492.80 527.7

Average annual wage £19,922 £21,235 £20,104 £20,703 £20,491.00 £21,283 22,716

Average house price £220,802 £250,048 £229,377 £210,267 £227,623.60 £212,878 £202,856

House price ratio 10.23 10.02 7.86 8.08 9.05 10 7.49

Enterprises              

Micro enterprises (0–9) 87.6% 89.1% 83.6% 91.8% 88.0% 88.7% 88.8%

Small enterprises (10–49) 10.6% 9.6% 13.4% 7.3% 10.2% 9.5% 9.2%

Medium enterprises (50–249) 1.6% 1.1% 2.2% 0.8% 1.4% 1.4% 1.6%

Large enterprises (250+) 0.2% 0.2% 0.8% 0.1% 0.3% 0.3% 0.4%

Skill levels 1               

No Qualification  5.50% 2  2 2 2 5.50% 8.60%

NVQ1 and equivalent  12.6% 7.2% 11.3% 8.8% 10.0% 13.2% 12.8%

NVQ2 and equivalent  18.2% 19.9% 18.6% 12.9% 17.4% 18.9% 18.1%

NVQ3 and equivalent 26.2% 18.0% 26.4% 37.1% 26.9% 21.0% 19.1%

NVQ4 and above 37.4% 54.9% 43.7% 41.2% 44.3% 40.9% 40.7%

Page 460



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 45

Appendix 2  
EHOD inward investment 
Memorandum of 
Understanding

Memorandum of Understanding ( MoU ) for the new collaborative 
delivery model for economic development for Exeter and the  
Heart of Devon (‘ehod’  ) from 3 November 2016 onwards

Introduction

This MoU outlines the guiding principles by which all the 
participating local authorities will co-operate and co-ordinate 
their support for the new service delivery model for economic 
development from 3 November 2016. 

The MoU is based on the local authorities working together in 
a transparent and collaborative way. It sets out the themes under 
which economic activities will take place, and identifies which  
local authority will be the lead partner in each activity:

 • Inward investment: Exeter City Council
 • Business transformation: Mid Devon District Council
 • Strategic planning and infrastructure: East Devon District Council
 • Employment and skills: Teignbridge District Council

The benefits of the MoU to all parties are the potential for 
economies of scale and provision of service, and the joint sharing 
of intelligence and resource. There is also the increased capacity 
for EHOD as a whole to be a more encouraging location for 
indigenous growth and inward investment within the sub-regional, 
regional and national context. It is also intended to ensure greater 
efficiency through optimising the use of collective resources such 
as sector intelligence and market understanding.

Page 461



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2046

Overarching principles 

The driver behind this approach to delivering economic 
development is the recognition that businesses do not operate 
within local authority boundaries. Instead the majority of their 
activities take place within functioning geographical areas. EHOD 
is a long established functioning economic geography, covering 
the local authority areas of Exeter, East Devon, Mid Devon and 
Teignbridge.

Within this setting, each of the four local authorities has 
strengths and weaknesses in the development and implementation 
of business focused activities. However, the local authorities  
have limited resource to support and grow economic activities, 
and must therefore be more innovative in the way that we work  
and explore opportunities to develop services in partnership  
to achieve success. By working in a more collaborative way, we  
can build upon the strengths of each authority, and mitigate 
areas of weakness, making the whole of the EHOD area more 
economically successful and resilient.

The participating local authorities will look for opportunities  
to align our business focused activities more closely and,  
where it becomes sensible to do so, the activity will be delivered 
in partnership. This process will create a low-risk method 
of combining activities, by ensuring that a decision to work 
collaboratively is only ever made when it is to the benefit of  
each local authority.

Each local authority will also develop a business plan for the 
EHOD area, focused on their recognised areas of expertise (see 
above themes). These business plans will support the aims and 
objectives of the EHOD Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20, and 
align with the key themes it seeks to address.

The business plans will be reviewed annually, and refreshed 
following the renewal of the EHOD Shared Economic Strategy 
2017–20 in 2020. This MoU will be formally reviewed annually.

Appendices

Page 462



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 47

Status

This MoU is not intended to be legally binding, and no legal 
obligations or legal rights shall arise between the parties from 
this MoU. The parties enter into the MoU intending to honour 
all their obligations. Nothing in this MoU is intended to, or shall 
be deemed to, establish any partnership or joint venture between 
the parties, constitute either party as the agent of the other party, 
nor authorise either of the parties to make or enter into any 
commitments for or on behalf of the other party.

Agreement

Based on the above principles and intended process, this MoU 
confirms the organisations stated have agreed on the delivery of 
EHOD services against the principles above.

Signed on 3 November, 2016 by:

 Cllr Paul Diviani 
 Leader, East Devon District Council

 Cllr Pete Edwards 
 Leader, Exeter City Council

 Cllr Clive Eginton 
 Leader, Mid Devon District Council

 Cllr Jeremy Christophers 
 Leader, Teignbridge District Council

Appendices

Page 463



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2048

Appendix 3  
EHOD Shared Economic Strategy 
2017–20: synergy matrix

Most important local economic strategies

EHOD economic initiatives

Heart of the South 
West Local Enterprise 
Partnership Devolution  
Proposal

Heart of the South 
West Local Enterprise 
Partnership Strategic  
Economic Plan

Devon County Council 
Strategy for Growth

Inward investment  
actions

 • Supporting the local  
supply chain needs of 
Hinkley Point C
 • Making the area more 
attractive to Inward 
Investment

 • Capitalising on our 
distinctive assets to create 
higher value growth and 
better jobs
 • By 2020 – improve up to 
the middle third of LEPs for 
innovation and knowledge 
economy indicators; middle 
third for higher value 
employment indicators

 • Priority action: a more 
productive economy 
and promotion of inward 
investment

Business  
transformation  
actions

 • Improved tax revenues  
from business growth
 • Contribute towards the 
pledged £4bn additional  
GvA towards the UK 
economy

 • Stimulating jobs and 
growth across the whole 
economy

 • Priority action:  
a thriving business 
community

Employment  
and skills  
actions

 • A highly-skilled highly-
productive labour market 
meeting businesses’ 
employment priorities
 • Contribute towards the 
163,000 new jobs
 • Raise wage levels above  
the national average
 • Increase apprenticeships  
by 400%

 • Maximise productivity  
and employment to  
benefit all sectors
 • By 2020, placed in 
middle third of LEPs for 
competitiveness, exporting 
and enterprise indicators
 • Top 15 LEPs for reducing 
youth unemployment
 • Reduce the gap with the 
average UK wage

 • Priority action: a workforce 
with the right skills and 
employment opportunities  
for the future

Strategic  
planning  
actions

 • Delivery of infrastructure 
that supports these 
ambitious plans
 • 179,000 more homes and 
accelerated delivery in  
major growth points

 • Creating the conditions  
for growth through 
infrastructure and services  
to underpin growth
 • Making transport 
infrastructure more resilient
 • 95% superfast  
broadband coverage
 • 10,000 new homes  
per year

 • Priority action: a well-
connected county with the 
road, rail, cycle networks, 
economic hubs, broadband 
and housing it needs

Page 464



Shared Economic Strategy 2017–20 | ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP 49

cEiAG Careers Education Information Advice and guidance
cDS Connecting Devon and Somerset
crm       Customer relationship management (system)
DiT          Department for International Trade
Dcc Devon County Council
DcLG     Department for Communities and Local government
Ecc  Exeter City Council
EDDc  East Devon District Council
EDO  Economic Development Officer
EDnA Economic Development Needs Assessment
EHOD Exeter and Heart of Devon (Economic Partnership)
ESb  Employment and Skills Board
ESif European Structural and Investment Funds
ExIST Exeter Initiative for Science and Technology
fEmA Functioning Economic Market Areas
GESP  greater Exeter Strategic Plan
GvA        gross Value Added
HELAA   Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment
HOTSW LEP  Heart of the South West Local Enterprise Partnership
JSA Jobeeker’s Allowance
mDDc  Mid Devon District Council
Mbps Megabits per second
nGA  Next generation (broadband)
OnS        Office for National Statistics
SEP Strategic Economic Plan
SmArT Specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and time-bound
SPP    Single Productivity Plan
TDc  Teignbridge District Council
UKTi UK Trade and Investment

Appendix 4 
Acronyms used in  
this document

Page 465



ExEtEr +  HEart of DEvon Economic  PartnErsHiP | Shared Economic Strategy 2017–2050

Appendix 5  
References for  
section 2

 1 SQW 
   June 2015
 2 OnS Business Register and Employment Survey 
   2015 
 3 OnS Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings 
   2014
 4 OnS Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings 
   2015
 5 housing Market Profile 
   July 2016
 6 OnS Annual Population Survey 
   2016
 7 DWP Benefit Claimants – working Age Client group 
   2016
 8 OnS Predictions Based on Census Data 
   2011
 9 Department of Transport 
   2015

Page 466



Page 467



Exeter + heart of Devon Economic Partnership members:

Printed on paper from sustainable sources Correct at time of production Ref. S0031
Page 468



Final 

 
REPORT TO:  PLACE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Date of Meeting:  12 January 2017 
Report of:   Economy & Enterprise Manager, Growth & Enterprise  
Title:    Unemployment in Exeter  
  
Is this a Key Decision?  
No 
  
Is this an Executive or Council Function?  
Executive.   
 
1. What is the report about? 
 
1.1 To update members on the levels of unemployment in Exeter, comparing the city with 

our neighbours and against regional and national trends.  
 
1.2 This report also provides an update on the support available to people who are 

currently unemployed in Exeter.  
 
2. Recommendations:  
 
2.1 That Members note and comment on the report and agree to a watching brief through 

an annual update on unemployment within the city, unless trends change.  
 
2.2 Work more closely with the Exeter & the Heart of Devon Employment & Skills Board 

and Innovation Exeter to increase skills levels, salary levels and productivity within the 
city. 

 
3. Reasons for the recommendation: 
 
3.1 That Members are made aware of any issues and trends regarding unemployment 

within the city and the impact this has on the city. 
 
3.2 Going forward, Members are aware of changes within the employment sector within 

and surrounding Exeter.  
 
4. What are the resource implications including non financial resources.   
 
4.1 There are no financial or significant personnel implications as a result of this report.  The 

Economy & Enterprise Manager keeps a monthly watching brief on unemployment levels 
within the city and the surrounding area, which are reported to SMT on a monthly basis. 

 
5. Section 151 Officer comments: 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications contained within this report. 
 
6. What are the legal aspects? 
 
6.1 None identified. 
 
7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 
 

Page 469

Agenda Item 12



  

7.1 This report is in line with the Executive’s decision regarding the development of the 
Greater Exeter Growth and Development Board and as such it raises no issue for the 
Monitoring Officer.  

 
8. Unemployment trends in Exeter  
 
8.1 Being long-term unemployed is damaging to an individual, their family and the 

community in which they live.  Research suggests that being unemployed affects 
mental and physical health, and holds back economic growth.  Older people who are 
out of work can find it more difficult to get a job and they are more likely than younger 
people to remain unemployed for longer.  The graph below shows the number of Job 
Seekers Allowance (JSA) claimants for Exeter & the Heart of Devon (EHOD) for 
October 2016.  The highest proportion of JSA claimants are within the 25 to 49 age 
bracket for all four local authority areas.  

 
As a percentage of the population who claim JSA, Exeter is joint top with Mid Devon: 

 Exeter – 1.0% 

 Mid Devon – 1.0% 

 Teignbridge – 0.9%  

 East Devon – 0.8% 
 

 
 

8.2 A comparison of Exeter against other locations, regionally and nationally can be seen 
in Appendix 1. 

 
8.3 The table below gives a breakdown of male and female JSA claimants for all four local 

authority areas for October 2016.  The number of JSA claimants for neighbouring local 
authorities have al risen in the previous 12 months.   

 Teignbridge: risen from 605 to 640 (5.79%) 

 Mid Devon: risen from 375 to 450 (20%) 

 East Devon: risen from 555 to 590 (6.31%) 

 Exeter: risen from 780 to 840 (7.69%)  
 

Page 470



  

 
 
8.4 The table below show the male and female breakdown of JSA claimants for Exeter for 

the previous 12 months. The number of JSA claimants in Exeter has risen by 60 in the 
previous 12 months, from 780 to 840, a rise of 7.69%.  Both male and female 
claimants have risen equally over this period of time.  The rise in the number of JSA 
Claimants in January and February is due to seasonal Christmas employment 
opportunities ceasing and people resigning after the Christmas period.  This reduced 
slightly April but didn’t manage to reach post-Christmas levels.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 471



  

8.5 The full range of out of work benefit claimants in Exeter has reduced by just over 23% 
comparing 2010 to 2016 and by just over 16% comparing 2013 to 2016.  Within 
neighbouring local authorities the number of main out of work benefits have also 
reduced, as shown in the graph and table below.  

 

 
 

 Comparing 2010 to 2016 Comparing 2013 to 2016 

Exeter -23.72% -16.25% 
East Devon -21.52% -12.57% 
Mid Devon -19.95% -14.66% 

Teignbridge -24.05% -16.99% 
 
8.6 A comparison of Exeter against other locations, regionally and nationally can be seen 

in Appendix 1. 
 
8.7 Data on main benefit claimants is released every quarter by government, and includes: 

 Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) 
o People can apply for help while they are looking for work.  To receive JSA 

they usually have to be 18 or over, be available for work and meet the 
rules for eligibility.  When applying for JSA the claimant must go to an 
interview and accept a Claimant Commitment, an agreement that the 
claimant will complete certain tasks, eg make a work plan.  

 Employment & Support Allowance 
o If someone is ill or disabled, ESA offers them financial support if they are 

unable to work, and personalised help so that they can work if they are 
able to do so. 

 Incapacity Benefit 
o This benefit is gradually being replaced with ESA (above). 

 Lone Parent 
o Available if an individual meets specific conditions such as: if they and 

their partner have no income or a low income, are working less than 16 
hours a week and you haven’t signed on as unemployed. 

 Carers 
o Carer’s allowance is available to help look after someone with substantial 

caring needs. They must be 16 years old or over and spend at least 35 
hours a week caring for them 

Page 472



  

 Disability Living Allowance 
o Personal Independence Payment (PIP) is gradually replacing this benefit.  

It helps with some of the extra costs caused by long-term ill-health or a 
disability.  The allowance depends on how a condition affects a person, 
not the condition itself.  

 Bereavement Payment 
o If a husband, wife or civil partner has died you may be able to receive a 

one-off, tax-free, lump-sum payment of £2,000.  If the claimant is on low 
income they may get Funeral Payment to assist paying for a funeral.  A 
claimant might be able to claim Bereavement Allowance (previously 
known as Widow’s Pension) if they are widowed between 45 and State 
Pension age.   

 Others on income related benefit  
o Available to those on a low income, that claim Council Tax benefit, 

Pension Credit and Housing benefit. 
 
8.8 The graph below shows the percentage of the total population who are economically 

active within Exeter and comparing the city to other locations and regionally and 
nationally.   Economically active people are either in employment or unemployed aged 
between 16 and 64. Exeter fairs very well locally and against other significant locations 
and nationally.  Independent research has shown that Exeter is the economic 
powerhouse for the wider region and supports the economy of Devon. 

 

 
 
8.9 Economically inactive people are neither in employment nor unemployed and could 

include people:   

 who are looking after a home or retired 

 not in employment who want a job but are not classed as unemployed 
because they have either not sought work in the last four weeks or are not 
available to start work 

 who are neither in employment nor unemployed and who do not want a job. 
 
 Again, Exeter fairs well comparing the city to other locations.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 473



  

 
 
8.10 Due to Exeter and the surround local authority areas having near full employment, 

future projects and initiatives through the Growth & Enterprise team will focus on 
working in partnership with the Employment & Skills Board, Innovation Exeter and our 
neighbouring local authorities, to raise productivity (GVA per job) through increasing 
skills and wage levels within and surrounding the city.  This is the subject of another 
report to this committee - Exeter & the Heart of Devon, a shared economic 
strategy. A Collaborative Approach to Growth & Productivity 2017 - 2020.   

 
9. Specialised local support available to assist young people back into 

employment 
 
9.1 Government initiatives, and some local ones, are assisting people back into work or 

training covering a wide range of ages, some are listed below, with the majority 
featured within Appendix 2 and 3. 

 
9.2 There are a wide range of initiatives and projects that are developed and managed 

locally, addressing issues for key sectors of the community.  There are three specific 
projects for supporting young people addressing opportunities to gain employment, 
based around sport and activity: The majority of national projects and initiatives are 
delivered by JobCentre Plus. 

 
 BEEP 
9.3 BEEP (Business Empowering Employment Programme) is a 10 day programme 

delivered by Motiv-8 South West and Sampson Hall through experiential learning with 
fun and engaging practical activities that get young people ready and fit for work.  
BEEP is a continuation of the success REEP (Rugby Empowering Employment 
Programme), which was delivered as part of the Rugby World Cup 2015 legacy 
programme.  

 
9.4 The programme focuses on:   

 giving the right first impression 

 setting goals and motivating yourself 

 being a team player 

 building self confidence 

 learning to budget 

Page 474



  

 health, fitness and well being  
Each participant is partnered with a buddy/mentor from the local business community 
to assist them in gaining employment during and after the programme.   

 
HITZ Rugby 

9.5 HITZ Rugby is an award winning national programme that tackles some of the 
challenges young people face on a day to day basis. Delivered nationally by 
Premiership Rugby, HITZ uses rugby to increase young peoples’ resilience, self-
reliance and self confidence.  It gives young people aged 16 – 18 years old the skills 
they need to get back into education, vocational training, apprenticeships and 
employment. Through the programme young people will: 

 develop confidence, communication, maths, English and teamwork skills 

 achieve a Level 1 Diploma in Sports & Active Leisure 

 take part in weekly personal social development sessions 

 develop work based skills in employability sessions 

 gain work experience in the sports and active leisure industry 
 
9.6 Referrals are from youth offending teams, probation and social/youth services.  There 

is a commitment for young people to attend for 50 weeks.  HITZ Ambassadors 
(professional rugby players) from Exeter Chiefs attend sessions to provide inspiration 
and offer training sessions for the attendees.  

 
Exeter City Community Trust  

9.7 Over the previous five years Exeter City Community Trust (formerly Football in the 
Community) has delivered a number of mentoring, leadership and employability 
programmes for young people and adults in the greater Exeter area, using sport and 
physical activity to engage with participants.  Many courses were delivered in 
partnership with Active Devon, Devon County Council and The Dame Kelly Holmes 
Trust, using key local partners and business contacts to provide real-life experiences 
and opportunities for young people. 

 
9.8 The Trust also deliver a highly successful 14-16, post 16 (BTEC) and higher education 

(FdA) programme in partnership with Exeter College, with over 130 young people 
enrolled across all courses. Again, using the combination of sport and physical activity 
as a way to keep young people engaged with full-time education. Many of the students 
that enrol on these courses are offered full-time and part-time/casual work with the 
Trust following the completion of their studies. 

 
9.9 Working on ‘hard to reach’ programmes, which are funded by the Premier League, has 

allowed the Trust to engage with young people aged 8-19 years in areas of deprivation 
across the greater Exeter area. Staff and first team players are utilised as positive role 
models to promote the importance of training, leadership, education and hard work. 

 
9.10 The Trust employs a number of apprentices that work across a broad spectrum of 

community work, which have led to the creation of full-time and part-time roles for the 
young people when their course finishes. The Trust is launching a new traineeship 
programme January 2017 which will allow 16-18 year old NEET participants the 
opportunity to undertake a 12 week placement where they will go through a list of short 
courses and qualifications, such as functional skills, employability modules and sports 
coaching courses, which will help to create a pathway into employment, further 
education courses or an apprenticeship. 

 

Page 475



  

9.11 Finally, the National Citizen Scheme is a government funded initiative offering a once 
in a lifetime opportunity for young people aged 15-17 over their summer holiday or 
autumn/spring half-term which is delivered through the Trust. The project mixes young 
people from over 30 different schools and colleges from across the area, taking them 
out of their comfort zone and their local community on two residential adventure 
weeks. Following the initial two weeks, the programme combines outdoor physical 
activities with the opportunity to discover more about their community and also 
important life-skills for the future. The course finishes with a week of action, where the 
young people raise awareness and funds for local charities, organisations and 
community groups.  

 
10. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 
 
10.1 Local and national projects and initiatives listed within this committee report are aimed 

at getting people back into employment and or training.  These tie into the purpose of 
‘Help me with my financial and housing problem’ and ‘Help me run a successful 
business’, and covers the Portfolios of: 

 Customer access 

 Economy & Culture 

 Communities & Neighbourhoods 
 
11. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 
 
11.1 The Economy & Enterprise Manager monitors trends related to unemployment on a 

monthly basis, which now includes neighbouring local authority areas.  If there are any 
unusual changes, these will be discussed with JobCentre Plus, Exeter & the Heart of 
Devon Employment Skills Board, Devon County Council and the Local Enterprise 
Partnership to determine support that could be made available to people recently 
unemployed or those experience long-term unemployment.    

 
11.2 The Growth & Enterprise team also work closely with businesses based within the city 

through the Exeter Key Employer Programme.  Staff visit a wide selection of 
businesses on an annual basis to help and assist them with any issues that may affect 
them, which may result in them relocating elsewhere ort closing down.  

 
12. What is the impact of the decision on equality and diversity; health and 

wellbeing; safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults, 
community safety and the environment? 

 
12.1 Projects and initiatives referred to within this report are being delivered across the city 

and across a wide range of communities, with some initiatives directed towards 
improving opportunities for young people, lone parents and people with disabilities.   

 
13. Are there any other options? 
 
13.1 None – it is advised to continue to monitor trends on a monthly basis and report back 

to Place Scrutiny Committee on an annual basis or when appropriate if there are any 
marked changes in the situation. 

 
 
Victoria Hatfield, Economy & Enterprise Manager 
 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 

Page 476



  
Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 
 
 

 
Contact for enquires:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 2.3 
01392 265275

Page 477



Final 

 
APPENDIX 1 
Population, benefit claimant data and salary averages for Exeter the wider area (October 2016) 
 
  Exeter East 

Devon 
Mid 

Devon 
Teignbridge Torbay Plymouth Bristol Cambridge Devon South West Great Britain 

Total 
population  

127,300 138,100 79,500 128,800 133,400 262,700 449,300 130,900 773,100 5,471,200 63,258,400 

Working age 
population 16-
64  

87,800 75,300 46,900 75,000 76,800 170,000 306,300 94,900 457,700 3,344,700 40,066,400 

Economically 
active 

68,900 70,400 43,600 68,300 61,900 134,800 246,300 76,800 398,100 2,817,000 32,511,000 

Economically 
active % 

80.5 85.6 87 83.4 78.2 77.6 78.7 80.3 80.9 80.2 78.5 

Economically 
inactive 

16,600 10,800 6,100 12,100 16,300 38,000 65,000 18,400 87,100 640,900 8,801,400 

Economically 
inactive % 

19.5 14.4 13 16.6 21.8 22.4 21.3 19.7 19.1 19.4 22.1 

Total benefits 
claimants 

7,940 6,290 4,270 7,430 13,260 24,900 36,010 5,920 43,420 338,190 4,610,800 

Jobs density 1.2 0.81 0.77 0.71 0.75 0.77 0.97 1.19 0.87 0.86 0.82 

JSA Claimants  840 590 450 650 1415 3,755 5,210 680 4,035 40,025 733,635 

Males 535 380 270 405 975 2,420 3,295 440 2,550 25,240 459,450 

Females 310 210 185 245 440 1,335 1,915 235 1,490 14,785 274,180 

Aged 18 to 24 180 105 105 150 280 915 1,020 120 870 9,030 165,990 

Aged 25 to 49 440 305 220 295 700 1,995 3,005 355 1,960 20,480 390,130 

Aged 50+ 220 180 130 200 430 830 1,180 200 1,195 10,415 176,150 

Residence 
weekly Pay 

526.40 519.50 499.40 455.40 443.30 481.50 526.80 589.10 484.50 513.20 541.00 

Workplace 
weekly pay 

547.80 485.00 442.00 429.40 421.80 519.80 536.60 612.70 477.10 505.00 540.20 

P
age 478



Final 

 
APPENDIX 2 
Exeter JobCentre Plus support available   
 

 

Page 479



Final 

 
APPENDIX 3 
Exeter JobCentre Plus support available   
 
Flexible Support 

 District Managers have the autonomy 
to use resources at their disposal to 
provide the support needed locally 

 Advisers have greater flexibility to; 
- work with claimants to identify 

barriers to employment 
- use the menu of support & flexibility 

around interviews depending on 
claimant need 

 
Flexible Support Fund 

 funding support at the discretion of the 
District Manager 

 is a key enabler to meet claimant & 
partner needs in order to maximise off 
flows into work  

 can help with childcare and/or 
transport costs 

 Grant Funding enables Jobcentre Plus 
(JCP) to support partnership activity 
through one-off contributions to the 
cost of the partnership 

 
Work Clubs 

 organised by voluntary organisations, 
partners & employers 

 encourages claimants to share 
experiences & jobsearch skills, identify 
opportunities & make contacts 

 
Work Together 

 enable claimants to develop new work 
skills/experience through volunteering 
& to build their confidence  

 
Work Experience 

 JCP is working with employers to 
provide voluntary opportunities for 
young claimants including 16-17 year 
olds on JSA 

 Adviser discretion to refer 25+ 
claimants 

 will help claimants gain an insight into 
the world of work & offer 2-8 week 
work placements extendable to 12 
weeks for 18-24 year olds to support 
an apprenticeship start  

 

 
 
 
 
 
Movement to Work (MtW) 

 As part of the national Movement to 
Work programme the Civil Service has 
agreed to offer 6,000 MtW 4-6 week 
work placements in 2014/15 for 
NEETs between the ages of 18 and 24 

 
Enterprise Clubs 

 will encourage claimants to exchange 
ideas and skills, share experience & 
work through their business ideas 

 
New Enterprise Allowance 

 to support claimants from day 1 who 
wish to start their own business 

 business mentors will provide 
guidance and help develop the 
business plan through early stages of 
trading 

 an allowance worth up to £1275 will be 
payable for the first 6 months of 
trading 

 a loan of up to £1000 is also available 
to help with start up costs 

 
Sector-based work academies 

 will offer accredited, sector-specific 
pre-employment training, work 
experience and a guaranteed interview 

 
Mandatory Work Activity 

 For claimants who need support to 
gain work related discipline and focus 
their jobsearch. Up to 4 week 
placements are an option. 

 
Rapid Response Service 

 provides support to people/employers 
affected by redundancy or other 
workforce management measures 

 
Work Choice 

 provides long-term help and tailored 
support for individuals with more 
complex disability needs 

 
 

Page 480



  

 
 
 
 
Access to Work 

 assists disabled people who are in 
paid employment (or with a job or 
Work Trial to start) by providing 
practical support in overcoming related 
obstacles from disability 

 may contribute towards additional 
employment costs resulting from 
disability 

 
DWP European Social Fund 

 The  DWP European Social Fund is 
investing in jobs and skills – focusing 
on people who need support the most 
and helping them fulfil their potential, 
transforming lives through better skills 
and better job prospects. 

 
Lone Parent Obligations 

 Lone parents with children over 5 are 
no longer eligible to claim IS solely on 
the grounds of being a lone parent and  
need to claim another benefit if they 
are not in paid employment 

 Support is provided to those lone 
parents who have a youngest child 
aged under five and who are claiming 
Income Support on the grounds of 
being a lone parent 

 some will still be eligible if they receive 
carers allowance, have a foster child 
or a child entitled to DLA middle or 
higher rate care component 

 
Support for 16-17 Year Olds 

 government announced initiatives that 
will provide; 
- early access to the Work 

Programme for vulnerable 18 year 
olds 

- increased support for NEETs 
- a yearly £10 million DWP Innovation 

Fund 
 
Skills Conditionality 

 JSA and ESA WRAG claimants who 
have skills need preventing them 
moving into work should be mandated 

to skills provision funded by SFA 
where the need is less clear 

 sanctions may be applied to claimants 
who fail to attend, participate or 
complete provision 

Youth Contract 

 is a package of support for 
unemployed people that builds on 
support already available via JCP and 
the Work Programme 

 includes a number of key elements; 
 an extra 250,000 Work Experience 

or sbwa placements over the next 3 
years with an offer of a Work 
Experience placement for every 18-
24 year old who wants one before 
entering the Work Programme 

 
JSA Full Time Training Flexibility 

 allows claimants who have been 
claiming JSA for 6+ months and have 
been mandated as part of Skills 
Conditionality to take part in training of 
up to and including 30 hours per week 
and remain on JSA, as long as the 
training is for 8 weeks or less 

 
Work Programme 

 contracted service providers have the 
autonomy to decide how best to 
support claimants 

 a radical change to payment by results 
and performance measures 

 a coherent package of provision 
complimenting the Get Britain Working 
measures and JCP support 

 eligibility ranges from day 1 for ex-
offenders, 3 months (for JSA NEETs, 
YP, former IB claimants) to 12 months 
for 25+ claimants. IB/SDA, care 
Leavers 18-21 from day 1, IS 
claimants and stock ESA claimants 
are eligible anytime with all other ESA 
claimants being eligible from the WCA 
outcome date 

 
Migrants’ Access to Benefits 

 Introduced  new measures to ensure 
that only those who clearly establish 
residence in the UK, and come to the 
UK to work and have a realistic 
chance of finding work, are able to 
access the benefits system. 

Page 481



  

 
 
 
 
 
IB Reassessment 

 the key tool to support reassessment 
is the Work Capability Assessment 
(WCA) 

 the WCA will identify the most severely 
disabled people and/or with the most 
severe health conditions & place them 
in the ESA Support Group 

 those assessed as capable of 
undertaking some work related activity 
will be placed in the ESA Work 
Related Activity Group 

 those assessed as fully capable of 
work will be invited to claim JSA, 
claim/remain in IS if they satisfy an 
alternative condition of entitlement, or 
move off benefits  

 
Help to Work 

 A package of measures to maintain the 
momentum to help claimants enter 
employment at the earliest opportunity 
including:- 
- 20 minute Quarterly Work Search 

Interviews every 13 weeks 
- English language skills screening at 

new claims and mandates 
assessments and training for all 
identified as needed  

- Requirement and help to set up an 
email address,  prepare a  
suitable CV and to register 
onUniversal Jobmatch  

- additional weekly work search 
reviews, the focus given to those 
who need extra support or who are 
not fully engaging with the system. 

- Increased Lone Parent 
conditionality 

- three intensive support options for 
Work Programme completers.  
o the Mandatory Intervention 

Regime 
o Daily Work Search Reviews or 
o Community Work Placements 

 
Personalised Mentoring Project 

 For young people aged between 
18 – 24 years old who have been 
unemployed for 12 weeks or more 

 
 
 
Universal Jobsmatch 
(www.gov.uk/jobsearch ) 
An important part of DWP’s digitalisation 
agenda, the web-based job posting & 
matching service delivered by Monster for 
jobseekers and companies 
 
Universal Credit 

 will be a single income-related 
payment reflecting a claimant’s 
circumstances rolling out nationally 
from February 2015 

 replaces IS, income-based JSA & 
ESA, Housing Benefit, Child & 
Working Tax Credits as a single 
payment 

 will be withdrawn as earnings rise at a 
rate of 65p per pound net earnings 

 designed to ensure work will always 
pay 

 UC has been successfully rolled out to 
many Pathfinder sites including Bath 
and includes both single and couples 
claiming benefits 

 the Claimant Commitment places a 
strong focus on the responsibilities 
that claimants must fulfil. 

 
Digital Agenda 

 work is underway for claimants of JSA, 
ESA, IS, DLA, AA and CA to be able 
to set up an account online, track 
claim/appeal progress, access a full 
breakdown of their award & taxable 
benefits, check payment dates & 
history and report changes of address 
and/or payment method 

 current services available online 
include; 

 State Pension online (via Gov.uk 
website), JSA and Universal Credit 
online, jobsearch (via Universal 
Jobsmatch), online Benefits Adviser 
entitledto.co.uk , Rapid Reclaims, 
Child Maintenance & Enforcement 
Commission and associated claims 

Page 482

http://www.gov.uk/jobsearch
http://www.entitledto.co.uk/benefits-calculator/startcalc.aspx?e2dwp=y


  

to Housing and/or Council Tax 
Benefit 

 Jobcentres have installed over 6000 
Wi-Fi enabled Web Access Devices to 
support claimants to make a claim 
online and for their jobsearch.  

Page 483



This page is intentionally left blank



Final 
 

 

REPORT TO:   PLACE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
Date of Meeting:  12 January 2017 
Report of:   Victoria Hatfield, Economy & Enterprise Manager  
Title:    Support for Small Businesses 
 
Is this a Key Decision?  
No  
 
Is this an Executive or Council Function?  
Executive Function. 
 
1. What is the report about?  
 
1.1 To update Place Scrutiny Committee on progress made in expanding the contract for 

2016/17 to cover Exeter and the Heart of Devon. 
 

1.2 To update plans for the management of the contract for the 2017/18. 
 
2.  Recommendations:  
 
2.1 That members support the City Council in continuing to fund business support for 

embryonic, new and existing businesses in providing opportunities for individuals to 
secure the means of improving their financial position and promoting job creation, at 
a cost of £25,000. 

 
2.2 Officers within Growth & Enterprise be authorised to work with officers at Mid Devon 

District Council to negotiate a contract for up to £100,000 for the financial year 2017 
– 2018.  £25,000 has again been secured from each of the neighbouring local 
authority areas of East Devon, Mid Devon and Teignbridge to contribute to business 
support.   

 
3.  Reasons for the recommendation:  
 
3.1 To ensure that there is fit for a purpose business support, advice and guidance for 

the residents of the Exeter and the Heart of Devon to gain free advice and guidance 
on setting up a new business, and improving the prospects of an existing business.   

 
4.  What are the resource implications including non financial resources:  
 
4.1 £25,000 per annum and officer time to support Mid Devon District Council to manage 

the contract.  
 
5.  Section 151 Officer comments:  
  
5.1 The funding set out in the report is already part of the budget and there are therefore 

no additional financial implications contained within this report. 
 
6.  What are the legal aspects?  
 
6.1 None identified, given that a competitive tendering exercise was undertaken.   
 
7.  Monitoring officer Comments  
 
7.1 This report raises no issues for the Monitoring Officer. 
 

Page 485

Agenda Item 13



Final 
 

 

8.  Background 
 
8.1  In January 2016 Economy Scrutiny Committee received a report on the City 

Council’s funding of free professional business advice and guidance to support the 
start up and early survival of small businesses and social enterprises in Exeter. 

 
8.2  In order to sustain Exeter’s economic strength, particularly as public sector 

employment declines and average wage levels remain low, it is important to 
encourage and support new business start ups to create new and better employment 
opportunities, and assist small businesses which are struggling. 
 

8.3  With East Devon, Mid Devon and Teignbridge District Councils financially 
contributing to this contract, the City Council has been able to reduce its financial 
contribution from what was £42,000 to £25,000 per annum.  The remaining budget of 
£17,000 has been used to appoint a new Inward Investment Officer. 

 
8.4 Following a successful competitive tender process, Business Information Point (BIP) 

were appointed February 2016 to run the Exeter & Heart of Devon Business Support 
& Advice Contract from the April 2016 for 12 months.  Exeter & Heart of Devon 
Business Support & Advice was deemed to be a too unwieldy name for the service, 
so following consultation with the business community it was agreed to change the 
name to Business Boost. 

 
8.5 The range of advice and support offered by Business Boost has the main benefit of 

ensuring expertise is available across the city and its travel to work area and across 
a wide spectrum of business needs which encompasses support for pre-starts, start-
ups, and existing businesses; from privately owned entities to social enterprises, co-
operatives, and mutuals and spans smaller ‘traditional’ to innovative/high growth 
businesses.  

 
8.6 As part of the City Council’s contribution towards business support a range of other 

activity is also provided directly or in partnership with other organisations. These 
include: 

 information for businesses on the City Council’s website including the on-line 
Exeter Commercial Property Register 

 the Exeter Business Centre (Marsh Barton) 

 the retail shops leased by the Estate Services 

 partnership activities with the Exeter and the Heart of Devon Employment and 
Skills Board 

 Heart of the South West Local Enterprise Partnership business support through 
the Growth Hub 

 
8.7 Provision across Exeter for pre-start business support is largely provided by fee 
 charging providers. Some individuals: 

 find the duration of support insufficient or the nature of it unsuitable 

 their business start-up needs are not being addressed 

 lack sufficient income to afford even a modest fee to pay for business support 
 
9. Business Boost (Exeter & Heart of Devon Business Support) 
 
9.1  Services funded by the City Council and offered under the banner of Business Boost 

deliver a range of intensive one to one support and are dependent on the client need, 
and includes the following: 

 business viability evaluation 

Page 486



Final 
 

 

 business health check & recovery strategies to assist with finance and cash flow 

 detailed financial analysis to help prepare strategies for survival 

 marketing review, helping to develop strategies for growth 

 provide detailed feedback on clients’ draft submissions to various agencies and 
potential funders 

 advice on changes to business structure, e.g. from sole trader to limited company 

 independent business assessments for clients facing change 

 provide reports for management on suggested priorities and remedial actions 

 website, social media and marketing support 
 
9.2  A range of marketing material has been developed to promote Business Boost, 

primarily to people who live and work in Exeter & the Heart of Devon: 

 5000 Business Boost leaflets printed and distributed to business centre, banks, 
Chambers of Commerce, Town Councils and organisations across the four local 
authority areas where individuals and businesses may seek advice 

 Regular business support tweets from the Twitter account @BusinessBoost 

 Updated copy on the City Council website 
https://exeter.gov.uk/business/business-support/new-business-support/ and the 
dedicated Business Boost website: http://businessboost.org.uk/   

 Four pull up banners to promote Business Boost have been produced used at 
business 2 business and networking events 

 Business Boost business advisors attending a wide range of networking events 
across the area 

 
9.3  The table below summarises the outputs secured from City Council funding over the 

previous 4 years, which was delivered by an alternative company: 
 

Outputs secured from Council 
funding for business support 

Apr 2012 – 
Mar 2013 

Apr 2013 – 
Mar 2014 

Apr 2014 – 
Mar 2015 

April 2015 – 
Mar 2016 

Pre-start businesses assisted 121 146 131 91 

Small businesses assisted to 
start-up 

22 26 21 24 

Existing small businesses 
supported 

33 29 25 33 

Number of new businesses set 
up 

36 40 38 37 

Number of jobs created 41 48 48 41 

Male 27 27 13 21 

Female 14 21 35 20 

Participants at workshops 207 136 0 71 

 
9.4  The table below summarises the outputs secured against target from the Business 

Boost contract for the 8 months to the end of November 2016: 
 

Business Boost outputs Exeter actuals 
Apr – Nov 

2016 

Exeter Target 
Apr 2016 – 
Mar 2017 

EHOD actuals 
Apr – Nov 

2016 

EHOD Target 
Apr 2016 – 
Mar 2017 

Number of clients 
engaged with Business 
Boost 

140 N/A 443 N/A 

Male 66 N/A 196 N/A 

Female 74 N/A 247 N/A 

Pre-start business 50 clients 125 clients 135 clients 500 clients 

Page 487

https://exeter.gov.uk/business/business-support/new-business-support/
http://businessboost.org.uk/


Final 
 

 

assisted  
(yet to start trading) 

New businesses 
assisted  
(0-1 years trading) 

35 clients 35 clients 89 clients 140 clients 

Existing businesses 
assisted  
(1+ years trading) 

7 clients 35 clients 40 clients 140 clients 

Follow up meetings 
(following enquiry) 

102 200 335 800 

Number of new 
businesses set up 

7 40 16 160 

Number of new jobs 
created 

7 FTE 60 FTE 18.5 FTE 240 FTE 

Number of participants 
at Business Boost 
workshops 

132 200 335 800 

 
9.5 The targets set in the contract were strenuous but deemed to be achievable as BIP 

were already operating and providing business advice and support in East Devon 
and Mid Devon.  After a very slow start outputs have started to increase. 

 
9.6 The website promoting Business Boost http://businessboost.org.uk/ has been up and 

running since June 2016 and is slowly starting to gain traction. 
 
Top 5 referral websites Top search queries Most popular website pages 

East Devon District Council Business boost Home page 

Facebook businessboost Workshops 

BIP Business workshops Support & Digital Mentoring 

Heart of the SW Growth Hub Boost business Contact us 

Cosmic   

 
10. Proposals  
 
10.1  As agreed by Leaders and Portfolio Holders of the four Local Authorities in the 

shared economic strategy, which is the subject of a report to this committee, the 
workload associated to the four key areas of Economic Development will be divided 
between the four local authorities: 

o Exeter City Council will lead on Inward Investment and Relocation Enquiries 
o Mid Devon District Council will lead on Business Support 
o East Devon District Council will lead on Strategic Planning 
o Teignbridge will lead on Employment and Skills 

 
10.2 Going forward, Mid Devon District Council will be leading on business support and 

the Business Boost contract, in consultation with the three other local authority 
partners.  Officers at Mid Devon District Council have engaged with their Legal and 
Procurement teams with a view to advertising a new contract in the New Year. 

 
10.3 In order to secure best value for the four local authorities, the existing contract will be 

retendered in order to deliver payment by results, rather than a set annual fee, with a 
maximum budget of up to £100,000.   

 
10.4  It is proposed that the following types of small business clients are supported within 
 the new contract going forward: 

Page 488

http://businessboost.org.uk/


Final 
 

 

 pre-starts not supported or eligible for assistance with other providers 

 start-ups (0 – 2 years of age) 

 those which are struggling to survive but have the potential to grow and are 
unable to afford fees charged by other providers (0 – 5 years of age) 

 Existing businesses with growth potential but are not eligible for the new Growth 
Hub programme 

 
10.5 The level of demand for business advice offered by the City Council and its success 

in creating and sustaining new businesses and jobs, particularly in the economic 
climate, warrant its continuation. In the ongoing difficult economic circumstances, self 
employment or new business formation remains an important option for some 
individuals to improve their financial position.  One to one and face to face business 
support sessions should still be provided for clients. 

 
10.6 A £100,000 combined contract, which is currently being drawn up for tender by Mid 

Devon District Council, will be awarded April 2017 and will be for one year in length.  
During 2017 the contract will be reviewed on a quarterly basis by all four local 
authority partners, with a view to retendering in April 2018. 

 
10.7 Discussions are ongoing with providers of alternative business support in Exeter and 

the Heart of Devon to discuss partnership working going forward, to avoid duplication 
and confusion.  

 
10.8 Innovation Exeter is currently researching the type and level of business support 

available for high growth technology and knowledge based businesses located in the 
city, with the potential of providing business support for these specialist businesses.  
This type of business support is currently not covered by Business Boost.  

 
11.  How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan?  
 
11.1  Business Boost contributes to ‘Building a stronger sustainable city’ and the main 

purpose of ‘Help me run a successful business in Exeter’ in promoting the city as a 
great place to do business and supporting the local economy and creating jobs.  

 
12. What risks are there and how can they be reduced?  
 
12.1  There could be the potential that a new supplier is not contracted by April 2017, the 

new contract will be promoted locally and nationally to ensure a suitable supplier is 
contracted.  Once a new supplier in contracted, quarterly meetings will be held to 
ensure the contract is followed and adhered to.   

 
13.  What is the impact of the decision on equality and diversity; health and 

wellbeing; safeguarding children, young people and vulnerable adults; 
economy; safety and the environment?  

 
13.1  Business support and advice is provided to residents and businesses of Exeter and 

the Heart of Devon free of charge regardless of race, age, gender or orientation.  
Business ownership promotes a more balanced and versatile economy.  

 
 
 
 
14.  Are there any other options?  
 

Page 489



Final 
 

 

14.1 There are a number of options available regarding the provision of business support 
and advice in Exeter: 

 Exeter, East Devon, Mid Devon and Teignbridge District Councils revert to 
provide business support and advice individually at a higher cost to each local 
authority  

 Exeter, East Devon, Mid Devon and Teignbridge District Councils contribute 
different amounts towards business support and advice, in which case the 
contract will have to be adjusted to reflect proportions accordingly 

 Stop provision when the contract comes to an end in March 2017 and provide a 
signposting service to other providers covering Exeter leaving a gap in the nature 
of the provision 

 Stop provision completely when existing contract comes to an end in March 2017 
 
14.2 Historically Exeter has had below average business start-up and business survival 

rates.  Without dedicated support, business start-up and survival rates could fall in 
Exeter.   

 
 
Maureen Gori de Murden, Inward Investment Manager 
Victoria Hatfield, Economy & Enterprise Manager  
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report:- 
None 
 
Contact for enquires:  
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 2.3  01392 265275 

Page 490



LEGACY LEISURE WORKING GROUP 
 

 
Tuesday 13 December 2016 

 
 

Present:- 
 
Councillor Philip Bialyk (Chair) 
Councillors Robson and Brimble 
 
Councillor Wood  
 
Also Present 
 
Events, Facilities and Markets Manager, Leisure Facilities Manager and Democratic 
Services Officer (Committees) (SLS) 
 
Simeon Lewry  - Legacy Leisure 
Karl Penman – Legacy Leisure 
 

 
26   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor D Henson.  
 
 

24   MINUTES OF THE MEETING ON 12 SEPTEMBER 2016 AND MATTERS 
ARISING 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 September 2016 were agreed as an 
accurate record of the meeting.  
 

25   UPDATE ON ANNUAL TOUR OF FACILITIES 7 DECEMBER 2016 
 

Steve Lyon referred to the annual tour of the City’s Legacy Leisure facilities for 
Members, which had taken place on 7 December 2016.  Members of the Working 
Group, along with an invitation to other Members of the City Council visited each of 
the sites around the city. Councillor Wood who also attended the meeting and site 
visit had welcomed the opportunity to view all of the facilities.  Councillor Bialyk 
referred to the development of the Sports Strategy and suggested it was important 
to appreciate that a more targeted approach should be made, as well as exploring 
new ways of working with partners such as the Exwick Hub and Exeter College.   
One suggestion made was to host the annual tour in the summer.  
Action  - Steve Lyon to arrange. 
 

 Customer Analysis 
27   CUSTOMER COMMENTS ANALYSIS OCTOBER 2015  - OCTOBER 2016 

 
Steve Lyon circulated an analysis of customer comments made for each of the 
leisure centres for the period October 2015 to October 2016, which monitored the 
trend in the quantity and type of comment received. The analysis formed part of the 
contract monitoring process.  
 

Page 491

Agenda Item 14



27   CUSTOMER COMMENTS FEEDBACK 
 

Steve Lyon had circulated a copy of the detailed customer comments for the 
months of October and November 2016. The format included the response or action 
taken, under categorised headings of maintenance, health and safety, cleaning and 
by staff and where a compliment had been recorded on a centre by centre basis.   
 
Steve Lyon presented the October comments. Councillor Robson referred to 
comments made on the appearance of the older facilities such as the Wonford 
Sports Centre, which were often mistaken for the level of cleanliness.  
 
Councillor Bialyk sought more information on the protective shoes now in use at the 
Riverside Leisure Centre. Simeon Lewry welcomed the initiative which had resulted 
in an improvement in the cleanliness of the changing rooms and had received 
positive feedback.  He also responded to Councillor Wood’s enquiry about a higher 
level of seating being provided to enable those patrons with limited mobility to be 
able to be included, and confirmed that a higher level of benching would be 
provided. Councillor Bialyk referred to the good number of comments and 
particularly those received in respect of the Riverside. Simeon Lewry said that he 
encouraged all of his staff and particularly those staff at Reception to obtain as 
many comments as possible, both positive as well as negative.  He also responded 
to comments made on the temperature of the pool and stated that it was the air, 
rather than the pool temperature which had been the cause of the problem.  The 
cooler air had stripped the heat from the pool, but that had been resolved. It was a 
constant challenge to keep the building warm, and particularly challenging with the 
recent bout of cooler weather. 
  
Steve Lyon also presented the November comments and referred to the increase 
from last year.  He responded to a comment on the heating sensors in the main hall 
at the Isca Centre, and despite the recent replacement of the four sensors, only one 
was working properly, but they have been repaired.  It should be noted that there 
were relatively few negative comments as the hall was warmer.  
 
Simeon Lewry also updated Members on the availability of drinking water at the 
Riverside with a water fountain in the entrance and also in the health suite. New 
yoga mats were also on order for January.     
 
Steve Lyon also updated Members on the status of the exterior outdoor space at 
Wonford Sports Centre which was not currently in use. Although the use of the pitch 
had reduced in recent years, local vandalism had contributed towards its closure. 
He sought Members’ views on the future of the space.  He added that there was 
Section 106 money and this was currently being considered in a project for the 
Wonford Hub. To replace the current pitch the cost would be in the region of 
£20,000 to £25,000 depending on the final specification. Councillor Bialyk 
welcomed the detail, but also wanted to ensure that the space would be used and 
have sufficient longevity.  He hoped the awaited overarching Sports Strategy would 
be also be able to offer an approach.   
 

28   PRESENTATION BY LEGACY LEISURE ON THE SERVICE IMPROVEMENT 
PLAN FOR NORTHBROOK SWIMMING POOL 

 
Karl Penman, the Manager of Northbrook Swimming Pool and Pyramids Swimming 
Centre provided an update on the Service Improvement Plan work, covering the 
Northbrook Swimming Pool.  He covered six main areas of interest and 
achievement -  
 

Page 492



 Decor - the feedback had been that the building required an update and 
whilst a substantial amount of decorating work had already been undertaken 
an ongoing review would be made next year.    

 New Lockers - to maintain safety and security, a new system requiring a 
deposit for the locker key had been put in place, and had proved to be very 
successful. 

 Pool Covers – had helped to reduce the carbon footprint and although a long 
term investment, the cover had already helped to save 50 units of energy.  
The pools at Pyramids and also at the Riverside also had pool covers in 
place.  

 Aquazone Swimming Lessons –there had been 30 additional adult 
swimmers and also a real drive to improve the take-up of swimming lessons, 
with 320 children now regularly taking lessons over 50 weeks of the year. 
One benefit was that any child taking swimming lessons were able to swim 
at other pools for free. 

 Pool Party Bookings - This had been very successful with all of the party 
slots booked this term.  

 Variety of Users - There were a variety of users with schools taking 
advantage of the excellent swimming lessons, as well as Age UK and some 
corporate use. 

 
Steve Lyon stated that the pool use was at capacity as the facility was originally 
built as a pool for school use, which had lower usage numbers rather than a public 
facility. An upgrade of the facilities and plant would be required if more intensive use 
was required.  Councillor Bialyk welcomed such facilities for community use and 
also swimming training and lessons. 
 

29   DISABLED AND 50+ SWIMMING AT THE PYRAMIDS SWIMMING CENTRE 
 

Councillor Wood had accepted an invitation to attend the meeting as he also wished 
to raise an issue over a change in the exclusive use of the pool for a 50+ and 
disabled swimming group. Councillors Owen and Robson had also been involved in 
the discussions. The group had used the pool, but more recently the sessions had 
been shared with a school’s swimming lessons. Although it was acknowledged that, 
of late, the number of swimmers had been lower and not consistent, Councillor 
Wood asked if it was possible to reintroduce the exclusive use.  The environment of 
the session had changed the nature of the experience for some of the group, who 
found the increased noise environment more of a challenge.  Dave Lewis 
appreciated that there were economic factors to the running of any session and that 
they could not instruct Legacy Leisure to continue to run the exclusive use for this 
group. Steve Lyon advised that when he had been made aware of the concerns, 
and had checked the average figures of attendance. Karl also appreciated the 
sensitivity of the matter and wished to help restore the balance. He offered a 
solution which could involve the school session being moved forward, enabling half 
of the session attended by this particular group to be for adults only.  Steve Lyon 
added that this change would need consultation with the users, which Karl would 
action over the month of January. If this resulted in a change, then a follow-up 
report on its usage would be provided for Members in six months’ time.    
 
Councillor Bialyk thanked Karl for the proposal which he considered to be a 
reasonable compromise.  
 

30   MEMBERS ACTIVITY EVENING 
 

Steve Lyon asked if members would be interested in a Members Activity Evening to 
use the facilities at the Riverside Leisure Centre and provide an opportunity for 

Page 493



trying the wide variety of activities on offer. The Group were very responsive to this 
and it was agreed that Steve Lyon would liaise with Legacy Leisure over this. 
 

31   PROPOSED DATES OF MEETINGS FOR 2017 
 

 
The following dates were discussed and agreed:- 
 
14 February 2017 – Visit and Improvement Plan Riverside Leisure Centre - 
(Meeting to be held at site) 
 
4 April 2017 – Visit and improvement Plan Clifton Hill Sports Centre - (Meeting held 
at Isca Centre_ 
 
13 June 2017 – Visit and Improvement Plan Exeter Arena – (Meeting to be held at 
Isca Centre) 
 
12 September 2017 – Visit and Improvement Plan Wonford Sports Centre – 
(Meeting to held at Wonford Community Centre) 
 
24 October 2017 – Visit and Improvement Plan Pyramids Swimming Centre – 
(Meeting to be held at Isca Centre) 
 
12 December 2017 – Visit and Improvement Plan Northbrook Swimming Pool – 
(Meeting to be held at Isca Centre) 
  
In addition the annual tour of sites would be made in the summer on a date to be 
identified.  
 
 
 
 

(The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and closed at 11.20 am) 
 
 

Chair 
 
 
 
 

Page 494


	Agenda
	7 Portfolio Holder Updates
	8 Estimates and Fees and Charges 2017/18
	Copy of Appendix 1 - Capital Programme 17-18 Final
	Copy of Appendix 2 - Revenue Estimates Place Services Final
	Copy of Appendix 3 - Fees  Charges Place Services Final

	9 Proposals for the Implementation of a Public Spaces Protection Order
	List of Appendices to PSPOFeb Report
	APPENDIX 1A - Map of PSPO border&shaded
	APPENDIX 1B PSPO Restrictions FINAL
	APPENDIX 1C - PSPO FINAL EQIA
	APPENDIX 1D - FAQs
	APPENDIX 2A PSPO Consultation Results
	Appendix 2B - Letters from necessary consultees
	Appendix 2C - Letters received before 010316
	Appendix 2D - Letters received after 010316
	APPENDIX 2E - Responses to Questions from Consultation
	APPENDIX 3A CCTV Control Room Incidents
	APPENDIX 3B Exeter City Centre Neighbourhood Incidents April 2015 - March 2016
	APPENDIX 3C Exeter City Centre Neighbourhood Incidents April 2016 - October 2016
	Appendix 3D Survey Results
	APPENDIX 3E PSPODecPublicMeetingsSurveyResults
	Appendix 4A [OpenPublicMeetingResults]

	10 Management of Exeter's Waterways
	11 Exeter and the Heart of Devon Joint Growth and Productivity Strategy 2017 - 2020
	FINAL EHOD shared strategy 2017-20  Final

	12 Unemployment in Exeter
	13 Support for Small Businesses
	14 Legacy Leisure Working Group Minutes



